
 

 
Staff Contact Nick Kimball, City Manager 

 

MAYOR/CHAIR CELESTE T. RODRIGUEZ  
VICE MAYOR/VICE CHAIR MARY MENDOZA 
COUNCILMEMBER/BOARDMEMBER CINDY MONTAÑEZ 
COUNCILMEMBER/BOARDMEMBER JOEL FAJARDO 
COUNCILMEMBER/BOARDMEMBER MARY SOLORIO -u 

 

 
 

 

 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
 

 

 

 CITY COUNCIL 
AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  

SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA SUMMARY 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

117 MACNEIL STREET 
SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340 

TELECONFERENCE – PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OPTIONS  
 

WATCH THE MEETING   
 
Live stream with audio and video, via YouTube Live, at: 

 

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando 
 

Note:  Comments submitted via YouTube will not be read into the record.  
 
SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENT IN PERSON 
 
Members of the public may provide comments in person in the City Council Chambers during the Public 
Comments section of the Agenda by submitting a comment card to the City Clerk.   
 
SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENT VIA EMAIL 
 
Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than  
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting, to ensure distribution to the City Council prior to consideration 
of the agenda.  Comments received via email will be distributed to the City Council, read into the 
record, limited to three minutes, and made part of the official public record of the meeting.  

SPECIAL NOTICE REGARDING COVID-19 
 
NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE: Pursuant to Adopted Resolution No. 8098 by the City Council of the City of San Fernando, 
effective January 12, 2022, the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies may participate via teleconference and/or video 
in Accordance with Government Code Section 54953 as permitted under the provisions of Assembly Bill 361 
 
 
 
 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 1 of 778

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – February 6, 2023 
Page 2 of 8 
 

 

CALL-IN TO PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT LIVE AT THE MEETING 
 
Members of the public may call-in between 6:00 p.m. and 6:15 p.m.  Comments will be heard in 
the order received, and limited to three minutes.  If necessary, the call-in period may be extended 
by the Mayor.  Note: This is audio only and no video. 
 
 Call-in Telephone Number: (669) 900-6833 

 Meeting ID:  833 6022 0211 
 Passcode:  924965 
 

When connecting to the Zoom meeting to speak, you will be placed in a virtual “waiting area,” 
with your audio disabled, until it is your turn to speak and limited to three minutes. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz  
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  
Recommend that the City Council approve the agenda as presented and move that all ordinances 
presented tonight be read in title only as authorized under Government Code Section 36934.  
 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
A. PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATES OF APPRECIATION TO THE VOLUNTEERS FOR THE 2023 

GREATER LOS ANGELES HOMELESS POINT-IN-TIME COUNT IN SAN FERNANDO ON  
JANUARY 24, 2023 

 
 
DECORUM AND ORDER 
 
The City Council, elected by the public, must be free to discuss issues confronting the City in an 
orderly environment.  Members of the public attending City Council meetings shall observe the 
same rules of order and decorum applicable to the City Council (SF Procedural Manual). Any person 
making impertinent derogatory or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while 
addressing the City Council or while attending the City Council meeting, may be removed from the 
room if the Presiding Officer so directs the sergeant-at-arms and such person may be barred from 
further audience before the City Council. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 2 of 778



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – February 6, 2023 
Page 3 of 8 
 

 

PUBLIC STATEMENTS 
  
Members of the public may provide comments in person in the City Council Chambers during the 
Public Comments section of the Agenda by submitting a comment card to the City Clerk. 
 
Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than  
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to ensure distribution to the City Council and read into the record.  
 
Members of the public may provide a live public comment by calling in between 6:00 p.m. and 
6:15 p.m.  CALL-IN INFORMATION:  Telephone Number: (669) 900-6833; Meeting ID: 833 6022 
0211; Passcode: 924965  
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be disposed of by a single motion 
to adopt staff recommendation. If the City Council wishes to discuss any item, it should first be 
removed from the Consent Calendar. 

 
1) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES: 

 
a. November 1, 2021 – Regular  

 
2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 

 
Recommend that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-021 approving the Warrant 
Register. 

 
3) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE 

MEETINGS FOR THE PERIOD OF FEBRUARY 11, 2023 TO FEBRUARY 28, 2023, OF THE CITY OF 
SAN FERNANDO’S LEGISLATIVE BODIES IN COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTION 54953(E) AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361 
 
Recommend that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 8208 re-authorizing remote 
teleconference meetings for the period of February 11, 2023 to February 28, 2023, of the City 
of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in compliance with Government Code Section 54953(E) 
and other applicable provisions of Assembly Bill 361. 
 

4) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE AN INCREASE TO COMPRESSED NATURAL GAS RETAIL FUEL 
 
Recommend that the City Council approve an increase to the City’s per gallon equivalent 
Compressed Natural Gas PGE retail fuel rate to $6.52. 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 3 of 778

mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – February 6, 2023 
Page 4 of 8 
 

 

5) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CONSENT AND DISCLAIMER AGREEMENTS TO AUTHORIZE 
THE INSTALLATION OF A SOLAR ENERGY GENERATION AND ENERGY STORAGE SYSTEM AT 
THE CITY-OWNED PROPERTY LOCATED AT 732 MOTT STREET 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 

 
a. Approve a Consent Agreement (Contract No. 2133) and Disclaimer Agreement (Contract 

No. 2133(a)) by and among the City of San Fernando, San Fernando Community Hospital, 
dba San Fernando Community Health Center, and Collective Energy Development, LLC, 
for installation and operation of a solar energy generation and storage system at the  
City-owned Property located at 732 Mott Street; and 
 

b. Authorize the City Manager to execute all related documents.  
 
6) CONSIDERATION TO AUTHORIZE SUBMITTAL OF GRANT APPLICATIONS TO THE NATIONAL 

ENDOWMENT FOR THE ARTS AND THE CALIFORNIA ARTS COUNCIL TO SUPPORT THE 
MARIACHI MASTER APPRENTICE PROGRAM 

 
Recommend that the City Council: 

 
a. Authorize the preparation and submittal of a grant application to the National 

Endowment for the Arts for $57,000 to support the Mariachi Master Apprentice Program; 
 

b. Authorize the preparation and submittal of a grant application to the California Arts 
Council for $40,000 (two year grant) to support the Mariachi Master Apprentice Program; 
 

c. Authorize the City Manager to accept the grants, if awarded; 
 

d. Authorize the City Manager to execute all grant-related documents required for receiving 
such grant funds pursuant to the terms and conditions of the grant; and 
 

e. Upon full execution of all grant-related documents, authorize the City Manager to amend 
the appropriate Fiscal Year 2022-2023, 2023-2024, and 2024-2025 revenue and 
expenditure budgets to appropriate the grant funds. 

 
7) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH RON’S 

MAINTENANCE INCORPORATED FOR CATCH BASIN CLEANOUT SERVICES 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Approve a Professional Services Contract (Contract No. 2136) with Ron’s Maintenance 

Incorporated for an annual cost of $34,384 for the cleaning of the City’s catch basins for 
a five year term, with a City option to renew for two additional years;  
 

b. Approve a ten percent contingency of $3,438 to cover additional cleanings requested by 
the City; and  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 4 of 778



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – February 6, 2023 
Page 5 of 8 
 

 

c. Authorize the City Manager to execute the contract and any related documents. 
 

8) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH EDGESOFT 
INCORPORATED 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 

 
a. Approve a Professional Service Agreement with Edgesoft Incorporated (Contract No. 

2137) for Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation in an amount not-to-
exceed $27,500;  

 
b. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Agreement and make any non-substantive 

changes. 
 

9) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE THE PURCHASE OF ONE LONG DEPLOYMENT SURVEILLANCE 
TRAILER WITH AUTOMATED LICENSE PLATE RECOGNITION AND VIDEO CAPABILITY FROM 
INDUSTRIAL VIDEO & CONTROL 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 

 
a. Accept the lowest responsible and responsive bid in the amount of $72,329 from 

Industrial Video & Control; 
 

b. Utilize funds appropriated in Resolution No. 8064 to pay for the purchase of the Long 
Deployment Surveillance Trailer from IVC; and 
  

c. Authorize the City Manager to execute a Purchase Order with IVC in the amount not to 
exceed $72,329. 

 
10) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH INTERWEST, A SAFEBUILT COMPANY, FOR ADDITIONAL ON-CALL 
PLANNING AND DESIGN REVIEW SERVICES AND RELATED BUDGET TRANSFER TO FUND THE 
AGREEMENT 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 

 

a. Approve a Second Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with Interwest, a 
SAFEbuilt Company (Contract No. 2069(b)), for on-call planning and design review 
services to increase the not-to-exceed amount to $225,000 and extend the contract 
through December 31, 2023; 
 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 8210 authorizing a budget transfer of $84,315 from salary savings 
due to vacant positions to fund the on-call planning and design review professional 
services agreement; and 
 

c. Authorize the City Manager, or designee, to execute the Amendment and all related 
documents. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 5 of 778



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – February 6, 2023 
Page 6 of 8 
 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
11) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AMENDING DIVISION 6 (PURCHASING) OF ARTICLE IV 

(FINANCE) OF CHAPTER 2 (ADMINISTRATION) OF THE SAN FERNANDO CITY CODE RELATING 
TO THE PROCEDURES FOR PURCHASING AND CONTRACTING  
(THIS ITEM HAS BEEN CONTINUED TO A DATE UNCERTAIN) 
 

12) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER FINANCING FUNDING OPTIONS FOR AN ENERGY SAVINGS 
PERFORMANCE CONTRACT WITH WILLDAN ENERGY SOLUTIONS FOR TURNKEY DESIGN, 
ENGINEERING, AND CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR SOLAR, HEATING, VENTILATION, AND 
AIR CONDITIONING AT CITY FACILITIES 

 
Recommend that the City Council: 

 
a. Conduct a Public Hearing and pending public testimony, provide direction on  

the financing terms with Hannon Armstrong Capital, LLC for an  
Energy Savings Performance Contract with Willdan Energy Solutions for Turn-Key  
Design, Engineering, and Construction Services and to approve either Option No. 1 or 
Option No. 2: 

 
Option No. 1: (Full Financing): Finance the unfunded balance of approximately 

$2,500,000 for the Police Department Heating, Ventilation, and Air 
Conditioning (HVAC) project. 

 
 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 8211 approving required findings and authorizing the City Council 
to approve the financing terms with Hannon Armstrong Capital, LLC, for an Energy Saving 
Performance Contract with Willdan Energy Solutions; and authorize the City Manager to 
execute all related documents. 

 
OR – 

 
Option No. 2:  (No Financing):  Appropriate $2,500,000 from General Fund Reserves 

toward the Police Department HVAC project. 
 
 

c. Adopt Resolution No. 8212 authorizing a budget increase of $2,500,000 to  the Fiscal Year 
2022-2023 Budget using General Fund Reserves to fund the Energy Saving Performance 
Contract with Willdan Energy Solutions; and authorize the City Manager to execute all 
related documents. 

 
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 6 of 778



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – February 6, 2023 
Page 7 of 8 
 

 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
13) CONSIDERATION TO ACCEPT A METRO OPEN STREETS GRANT AND APPROVE CIRCULATION 

OF A NOTICE INVITING BIDS FOR THE NORTHEAST VALLEY COMMUNITY STREET FESTIVAL 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 

 
a. Accept the Metro Open Street Grant Cycle Four ID #CYC2102 in the amount of $500,000 

to implement the Northeast Valley Community Street Festival;  
 

b. Approve a Notice Inviting Bids soliciting consulting services for the Management and 
Implementation of the Northeast Valley Community Street Festival; 
 

c. Adopt Resolution No. 8209 to increase the Operating Grants (Fund 110) revenues and 
expenditures by $500,000 for Fiscal Year 2022-2023; and 
 

d. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute all related 
grant documents.  

 
14) SECOND READING FOR ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 1714 AMENDING SAN FERNANDO 

MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD CHAPTER 78, ARTICLE II, DIVISION 6 “URBAN LOT SPLIT” AND TO 
ADD CHAPTER 106, ARTICLE III, DIVISION 2, SECTION 359 “TWO-UNIT URBAN RESIDENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENT” TO ESTABLISH REGULATIONS AND STANDARDS FOR URBAN LOT SPLITS 
AND TWO-UNIT RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS IN SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R-
1) ZONE, PURSUANT TO SENATE BILL 9 
 
Recommend that the City Council conduct a second reading, in title only, of Ordinance No. 
1714 titled, “An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, 
repealing interim urgency ordinance U-1707 and approval of amendments to the San 
Fernando Municipal Code to add Chapter 78, Article II, Division 6 “urban lot split” and to add 
Section 359 of Chapter 106, Article III, Division 2 “two-unit urban residential development” 
to establish regulations and standards for urban lot splits and two-unit residential 
development projects in single-family residential (R-1) zone pursuant to Senate Bill 9.” 
 
 

STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
 
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 7 of 778



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – February 6, 2023 
Page 8 of 8 
 

 

 
GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT   The meeting will adjourn to its next regular meeting. 
 
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
agenda was posted on the City Hall bulletin board not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting.  
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 
Signed and Posted: February 2, 2023 (5:45 p.m.)  

The Regular Meetings of the City Council of the City of San Fernando also serves as concurrent Regular Meetings of the Successor Agency to the 
San Fernando Redevelopment Agency and will be identified as (SA) following the item, and, from time to time, such other bodies of the City 
composed exclusive of the Members of the City Council.    
 

Agendas and complete Agenda Packets (including staff reports and exhibits related to each item) are posted on the City’s `Internet website 
www.sfcity.org.  These are also available for public reviewing prior to a meeting in the City Clerk Department. Any public writings distributed by 
the City Council to at least a majority of the Councilmembers regarding any item on this regular meeting agenda will also be made available at 
the City Clerk Department at City Hall located at 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA, 91340 during normal business hours.  In addition, the City 
may also post such documents on the City’s website at www.sfcity.org. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you 
require a disability-related modification/accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services please call 
the City Clerk Department at (818) 898-1204 or cityclerk@sfcity.org at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 8 of 778

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/
http://www.sfcity.org/
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 9 of 778



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 10 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 11 of 778



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 12 of 778



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
MINUTES 

 
NOVEMBER 1, 2021 – 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340 
 

Teleconference Per Governor Executive Order N-29-20 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Sylvia Ballin called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Sylvia Ballin, Vice Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmember Hector 
A. Pacheco (arrived at 6:13 p.m.) and Celeste Rodriguez  

 
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, Chief of 

Police Anthony Vairo, Director of Public Works Matt Baumgardner, Director 
of Recreation and Community Services Julian Venegas, Interim Director of 
Finance Sonia Garcia and City Clerk Julia Fritz  

 

Absent: Councilmember Cindy Montañez 
 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz  
 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

City Clerk Fritz requested Agenda Item 1b be pulled and returned at a later date.  
 

Motion by Vice Mayor Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to approve the agenda, 
as amended.  By consensus, the motion carried with Councilmember Pacheco and Montañez 
absent. 
 
 
PRESENTATIONS  

 
A. A CERTIFICATE OF PROCLAMATION DECLARING THE WEEK OF NOVEMER 7 – 13, 2021 AS 

NATIONAL NURSE PRACTITIONER WEEK 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 13 of 778



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – November 1, 2021 
Page 2 of 5

 
 

B. A CERTIFICATE OF PROCLAMATION DECLARING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER AS NATIONAL 
VETERANS AND MILITARY FAMILIES MONTH 
 

C. A PRESENTATION ON THE “TEENS FOR A BETTER COMMUNITY YOUTH LEADERSHIP 
PROGRAM” CANNED GOODS DRIVE 

  

 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS 
 
Liana Stepanyan San Fernando Library Manager announced COVID-19 vaccines; computer laptop 
rentals and free internet hotspot are to be offered tomorrow at the library.  
 
Danielle Leidner-Peretz submitted a public comment regarding smoke-free multi-unit housing 
ordinance and suggested to phase-in changes to allow for rental housing to make necessary 
modifications.  
 
Sheila LyonHall submitted a public comment urging the City Council to approve the smoke-free 
multi-unit ordinance to protect children from second hand smoke.  
 
Eddie Martinez, OUT Against Tobacco Coalition Chair, submitted a public comment to encourage 
City Council to support smoke-free multi-unit housing. 
 
Julissa Hernandez, Field Representative from the Office of Assemblymember Luz Rivas, provided 
updates regarding facilitating conversation with EDD, DMV, and CalTrans; and announced a 
vaccination pop-up site will be held in North Hollywood on Saturday from 9 am to 12pm. 
 
Mayor Ballin reopened Public Statements at 8:04 pm. 
 
Michael Madison spoke about the smoke-free multi-unit housing and as a landlord the concerns 
on landlords being fined with tenants in non-compliance of the ordinance. 
 
Victoria Garcia spoke about the smoke-free multi-unit housing and sending advance notice of 
compliance to the landlords.  
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
City Clerk Fritz requested Agenda Item No. 1b be pulled and returned at a later date.  
 
Councilmember Rodriguez requested to pull Agenda Item No. 3 for discussion. Vice Mayor 
Mendoza requested to pull Agenda Item No. 5 for discussion.  
 
 
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 14 of 778



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – November 1, 2021 
Page 3 of 5

 
Motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to approve: 
 
1) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES FOR: 

 
a. AUGUST 18, 2014 - SPECIAL MEETING 
c. JUNE 1, 2020 - REGULAR MEETING 
d. SEPTEMBER 7, 2021 – REGULAR MEETING 
e. SEPTEMBER 20, 2021 – REGULAR MEETING 
f. OCTOBER 18, 2021 - SPECIAL MEETING 
 

2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 
 
3) SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 1703 ADDING ARTICLE IX (ORGANIC 

WASTE DISPOSAL REDUCTION SENATE BILL 1383) TO CHAPTER 70 OF THE SAN FERNANDO 
MUNICIPAL CODE, AND MAKING A DETERMINATION OF EXEMPTION UNDER THE 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 
 

4) CONSIDERATION TO AUTHORIZE AN ADDENDUM TO A PURCHASE ORDER WITH 
ENVIROGEN TECHNOLOGIES, INC. FOR AN ION EXCHANGE NITRATE REMOVAL TREATMENT 
SYSTEM AT THE CITY’S GROUNDWATER WELL NO. 3 AND PREPARATION OF TECHNICAL AND 
OPERATION REPORTS 
 

5) RECEIVE AND FILE AN UPDATE REGARDING COVID-19 RESPONSE EFFORTS 
 
The motion carried with Councilmember Montañez absent.  
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
6) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF AN ORDINANCE APPROVING GENERAL 

PLAN AMENDMENT 2018-001 AND ZONE CHANGE 2018-001 AND THE CONDITIONS OF 
APPROVAL IN ORDER TO CHANGE THE CURRENT R-1 (SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) ZONE 
TO M-1 (LIMITED INDUSTRIAL) ZONE AT 649 – 655 FOURTH STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 
91340 (LOS ANGELES COUNTY ASSESSOR’S IDENTIFICATION NO: 2519-021-014 &  
2519-021-015) 

 
Mayor Ballin opened the public hearing. 
 
Acting Senior Planner Gerardo Marquez presented the staff report and responded to 
Councilmember questions.  
 
Mayor Ballin opened public comment.  
 
Stephen J. Klenk submitted a public comment regarding the drawings and expressed 
continued support for the proposed project. 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 15 of 778



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – November 1, 2021 
Page 4 of 5

 
Mayor Ballin closed the public hearing. Motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, seconded by 
Vice Mayor Mendoza. The motion carried with Councilmember Montañez absent. 
 
Motion by Mayor Ballin, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to introduce for first 
reading, in title only, and waive further reading of Ordinance No. 1704 “An Ordinance of 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, approving a General Plan 
Amendment 2018-001 and Zone Change 2018-001 and the Conditions of Approval in order 
to change the current R-1 (Single Family Residential) zone to M-1 (Limited Industrial) zone 
for the development of a 12,300 sq. ft. industrial building located at 649 and 655 Fourth 
Street. The motion carried with Councilmember Montañez absent. 

 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
7) CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION REGARDING A SMOKE-FREE MULTI-UNIT HOUSING 

ORDINANCE 
 
City Manager Kimball presented the staff report and responded to Councilmember 
questions.  
 
City Council provided feedback to be incorporated into a draft ordinance and staff will 
return to Council at a later date. 

 
It was noted the City Council recessed the meeting at 8:09 p.m. and returned at 8:19 p.m. 

 
8) UPDATE REGARDING THE 2022 FOURTH OF JULY CELEBRATION EVENT 

 
Director of Recreation and Community Services presented the staff report and responded 
to Councilmember questions. 
 

City Council recommended moving forward to consider two event options: Plan A: Include 
stage and no entertainment; Plan B: no stage include entertainment.  Staff was directed to 
come back with updates as the project moves forward. 

 
9) CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION REGARDING SUSTAINABLE SAN FERNANDO: A 

CALIFORNIA NATIVE TREES AND PLANTS POLICY DIRECTION  
 
City Council provided feedback and recommended continued discussions regarding policy, 
tree palette, and maintenance matters be discussed with the Green City Ad Hoc committee 
and provide recommendations from the ad hoc to the City Council at a future meeting date 
uncertain.  
 

 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
City Clerk Fritz had no updates to report. 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 16 of 778



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – November 1, 2021 
Page 5 of 5

 
Police Chief Vairo announced the Special Olympics Torch Run event being held on Wednesday; 
and Tip-a-Cop event will be held at Heavenly Pancakes on November 16, 2021. 
 
Acting Finance Director Garcia announced the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Adopted Budget is available 
on the City website. 
 
Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas announced the Family Hike Program 
begins on November 6, 2021, and the Parks, Wellness, Recreation Commission will meet on 
November 9, 2021. 
 
Acting Senior Planner Marquez announced the first draft of the Housing Element is available 
online and a study session with the Planning Commission will be held later this month.  
 
 
GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
Councilmember Rodriguez requested to promote upcoming City events on social media; 
commented on the need for adequate time would be provided to the City Council to review the 
Housing Element before it is due; and mentioned that the City of Los Angeles has opened a 
guaranteed income program and suggested staff research grant program opportunities through 
the City of Los Angeles and the County of Los Angeles.  
 
Councilmember Pacheco requested to recognize November for Veterans and families and asked 
residents to participate in discussions regarding the Housing Element. 
 
Vice Mayor Mendoza echoed sentiments honoring Veterans and their families; asked if TAC still 
had meetings to conduct; congratulated Mayor Ballin for being selected as San Fernando Valley’s 
200 Most Influential Leaders in 2021 for the San Fernando Valley Business Journal.  
 
Mayor Ballin thanked all Veterans and expressed gratitude to the families.  
 

 
ADJOURNMENT (9:11 p.m.) 
 
Mayor Ballin adjourned the meeting to the next regular meeting. 
 

 
I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct 
copy of the minutes of November 1, 2021, meeting as 
approved by the San Fernando City Council.  
 
 
____________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 17 of 778



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 18 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 19 of 778



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 20 of 778



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-7307                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Erica D. Melton, Director of Finance/City Treasurer 
    
Date:  February 6, 2023    
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Warrant Register 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-021 (Attachment “A”) approving 
the Warrant Register. 
 
  
BACKGROUND: 

For each City Council meeting the Finance Department prepares a Warrant Register for Council 
approval.  The Register includes all recommended payments for the City. Checks, other than 
special checks, generally are not released until after the Council approves the Register.  The 
exceptions are for early releases to avoid penalties and interest, excessive delays and in all other 
circumstances favorable to the City to do so.  Special checks are those payments required to be 
issued between Council meetings such as insurance premiums and tax deposits.  Staff reviews 
requests for expenditures for budgetary approval and then prepares a Warrant Register for 
Council approval and or ratification.  Items such as payroll withholding tax deposits do not require 
budget approval. 
 
The Director of Finance/City Treasurer hereby certifies that all requests for expenditures have 
been signed by the department head, or designee, receiving the merchandise or services thereby 
stating that the items or services have been received and that the resulting expenditure is 
appropriate.  The Director of Finance/City Treasurer hereby certifies that each warrant has been 
reviewed for completeness and that sufficient funds are available for payment of the warrant 
register. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

A. Resolution No. 23-021, including: 
Exhibit A: Payment Demands/Voucher List 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 21 of 778



ATTACHMENT “A” 
RESOLUTION NO. 23-021 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, ALLOWING AND APPROVING FOR PAYMENT DEMANDS 
PRESENTED ON DEMAND / WARRANT REGISTER NO. 23-021 

 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE 
AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1.  That the Payment Demand/Voucher List (EXHIBIT “A”) as presented, having been duly 
audited, for completeness, are hereby allowed and approved for payment in the amounts as 
shown to designated payees and charged to the appropriate funds as indicated. 
 

2.  That the City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and deliver it to the 
City Treasurer. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 6th day of February 2023. 
 
  
                 

Celeste T. Rodriguez, Mayor of the           
City of San Fernando, California                                

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 22 of 778



RES. NO. 23-012 

2 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 23-021, which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
6th day of February, 2023, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have here unto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this ______ day of February, 2023. 

 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 23 of 778



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-021

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 24 of 778



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-021

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 25 of 778



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-021

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 26 of 778



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-021

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 27 of 778



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-021

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 28 of 778



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-021

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 29 of 778



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-021

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 30 of 778



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-021

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 31 of 778



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-021

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 32 of 778



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-021

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 33 of 778



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-021

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 34 of 778



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-021SPECIAL CHECKS

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 35 of 778



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 23-021SPECIAL CHECKS

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 36 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 37 of 778



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 38 of 778



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1204                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
 
Date:  February 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference 

Meetings for the Period of February 11, 2023 to February 28, 2023, of the City of 
San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in Compliance with Government Code Section 
54953(E) and Other Applicable Provisions of Assembly Bill 361  

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 8208 (Attachment “A”)  
re-authorizing remote teleconference meetings for the period of February 11, 2023 to  
February 28, 2023, of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in compliance with 
Government Code (GC) Section 54953(E) and other applicable provisions of Assembly Bill 361. 

BACKGROUND:  
 
1. On October 4, 2021, the City Council was presented with an agenda report regarding 

adopting a resolution to continue remote teleconference meetings of the City of San 
Fernando’s Legislative Bodies under the provisions of Assembly Bill (AB) 361 (Attachment 
“B”), which was signed into law on September 17, 2021.  The City Council did not adopt the 
resolution, thereby reverting all legislative body meetings to comply with all Ralph M. Brown 
Act (Brown Act) requirements for public meetings.  

 
2. On January 12, 2022, due to the surge of the Omicron variant of the COVID-19 virus, the City 

Council adopted Resolution No. 8089 to authorize remote teleconference meetings of the 
City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 
days, effective January 12, 2022 through February 11, 2022. 

 
3. On February 7, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8119 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective February 12, 2022 through  
March 13, 2022. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 39 of 778



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings for the Period of 
February 11, 2023 to February 28, 2023, of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in Compliance 
with Government Code Section 54953(E) and Other Applicable Provisions of Assembly Bill 361  
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
4. On March 7, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8124 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective March 14, 2022 through April 13, 2022. 

 
5. On April 4, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8134 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective April 14, 2022 through May 13, 2022. 

 
6. On May 2, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8144 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective May 14, 2022 through June 13, 2022. 

 
7. On June 6, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8155 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective June 14, 2022 through July 13, 2022.  

 
8. On July 5, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8165 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective July 14, 2022 through August 12, 2022. 

 
9. On August 1, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8170 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective August 13, 2022 to  
September 11, 2022. 

 
10. On September 6, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8174 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective September 12, 2022 to  
October 11, 2022. 

 
11. On October 3, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8182 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective October 12, 2022 to  
November 10, 2022. 

 
12. On November 7, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8189 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective November 11, 2022 to  
December 10, 2022. 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 40 of 778



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings for the Period of 
February 11, 2023 to February 28, 2023, of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in Compliance 
with Government Code Section 54953(E) and Other Applicable Provisions of Assembly Bill 361  
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
13. On December 5, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8198 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective December 11, 2022 to  
January 10, 2023. 

 
14. On January 3, 2023, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8202 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meeting of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the provisions 
of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective January 11, 2023 to February 10, 2023. 

 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 that 
waived certain teleconferencing requirements under the Brown Act, allowing public agencies to 
conduct public meetings via teleconference, while still complying with open meeting 
requirements and abiding by public health orders.  The Executive Order N-29-20 expired on 
September 30, 2021.  

AB 361 amends the Brown Act’s Government Code Section 54953 to allow a local agency the 
option to hold teleconference meetings without complying with teleconferencing requirements 
of the Brown Act, if certain circumstances and findings are met.  The special circumstances are 
found particularly in subsection (e) of Section 54953, and require that the legislative body holds 
a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and: 

1. That state and local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 
distancing; or 

2. The legislative body holds a meeting for the purpose of determining, by majority vote, 
whether as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks 
to the health or safety of attendees; or 

3. The legislative body holds a meeting and determines by majority vote, that as a result of 
the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety 
of the attendees. 

On January 3, 2023, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8202 making a determination 
approving findings in accordance with AB 361, to allow the City to continue the option to hold 
teleconference meetings without complying with certain teleconferencing requirements of the 
Brown Act.  The resolution is only effective for 30 days and expires on February 10, 2023.  The 
City Council may renew the resolution, every 30 days, at which time a subsequent resolution 
(Attachment “A”) will need to be adopted.  If the resolution lapses, the City’s Legislative Bodies 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 41 of 778



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings for the Period of 
February 11, 2023 to February 28, 2023, of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in Compliance 
with Government Code Section 54953(E) and Other Applicable Provisions of Assembly Bill 361  
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
will be required to comply with the Brown Act (Pre-COVID-19 Pandemic) until a new resolution 
is adopted to make the initial determinations and findings again. 
 
On October 17, 2022, Governor Gavin Newsom announced that the COVID-19 State of Emergency 
will end on February 28, 2023 (Attachment “C”), which will remove the conditions needed to 
implement AB 361 for the holding of remote or “hybrid” format meetings.   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

There is no additional fiscal impact associated with consideration of the proposed resolution.  
The cost of the Zoom virtual meeting platform is included in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Adopted 
Budget. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 8208 (Attachment “A”)  
re-authorizing remote teleconference meetings for the period of February 11, 2023 to  
February 28, 2023, of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in compliance with 
Government Code (GC) Section 54953(E) and other applicable provisions of Assembly Bill (AB) 
361.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Resolution No. 8208 
B. Assembly Bill (AB) 361 
C. Governor’s Office Press Release 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 42 of 778



ATTACHMENT “A” 

RESOLUTION NO. 8208 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF 
EMERGENCY BY GOVERNOR NEWSOM ON MARCH 4, 2020, AND 
AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS FOR ALL 
LEGISLATIVE BODIES OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, FROM  
FEBRUARY 11, 2023 THROUGH FEBRUARY 28, 2023, PURSUANT TO 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953(E) IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
ASSEMBLY BILL 361 

 
 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 (also known as the “Coronavirus Disease”) is a respiratory disease 
that was first reported in China in December 2019, it has now spread throughout the world, 
including the State of California and the City of San Fernando (“City”); and  
 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom declared a State of Emergency in 
response to the rising cases of COVID-19 throughout the state of California; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors and Los 
Angeles County Department of Public Health (“LACDPH”) declared a local emergency and local 
public health emergency in response to the spread of COVID-19 throughout the County; and  
 

WHEREAS, on April 10, 2020, in response to the conditions of extreme peril to the safety 
of persons within the City, the San Fernando City Council (“City Council”) declared a local 
emergency consistent with the declaration of local emergency by the LACPH; and  
 

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed into law Assembly Bill  
No. 361 (“AB 361”), which, until January 1, 2024, authorizes a local agency to use 
teleconferencing without complying with the teleconferencing requirements imposed by the 
Ralph M. Brown Act (“Brown Act”) when a legislative body of a local agency holds a meeting 
during a declared state of emergency, as that term is defined, when state or local health officials 
have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing or when the legislative 
body has determined that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety 
of attendees; and  

 
WHEREAS, since the declaration of emergency by LACDPH, LACDPH have issued a series 

of Health Officer Orders containing mandates and recommendations for keeping individuals safe 
and preventing the spread of COVID-19; and  

 
WHEREAS, the LACDPH Health Officer Order issued March 23, 2022, and effective  

April 1, 2022, continues to advise that all individuals and businesses are strongly urged to follow 
the LACDPH Best Practices Guidance, containing health and safety recommendations for  
COVID-19;  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 43 of 778



  RES. NO. 8208 

2 

WHEREAS, the LACDPH Best Practices Guidance provides, among other things: 
 
1. Masks are strongly recommended in most indoor public settings to prevent 

transmission of the virus particularly to persons with prolonged, cumulative 
exposures (e.g., workers and to those with higher risk of illness (e.g., unvaccinated, 
older persons, or those with underlying medical conditions such as 
immunocompromised persons); and  
 

2. Per state and federal law, visitors and workers must continue to wear masks in 
specified high-risk settings to continue protecting vulnerable populations and the 
workforce that delivers critical services in these settings; and  

 
3. Identify and regularly clean frequently touched surfaces and objects such as 

doorknobs, elevator buttons, tools, handrails, phones, headsets, bathroom surfaces 
and steering wheels;  

 
4. Whenever possible, take steps to reduce crowding indoors and encourage physical 

distancing including, but not limited to: 
 

a. Limiting indoor occupancy to increase the physical space between employees at 
the worksite, between employees and customers, and between customers;  
 

b. Using tape, signs, or other visual cues such as decals or colored tape on the floor, 
placed six feet apart, to guide customers about where to stand to avoid crowding 
and to encourage distancing where lines may form; and 

 
c. Continuing, where feasible, to offer telework options and continue those 

teleworking arrangements that do not interfere with business operations as 
telework significantly reduces the risk of exposure for employees, their 
households, and communities. 

 
 WHEREAS, the surges in COVID-19 variants overseas have the potential to quickly spread 
in the United States warranting continued vigilance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, AB 361 requires legislative bodies that conduct teleconferenced meetings 
under its the relaxed and abbreviated teleconferencing procedures to give notice of the meeting 
and post agendas, as described, to allow members of the public to access the meeting and 
address the legislative body, to give notice of the means by which members of the public may 
access the meeting and offer public comment, including an opportunity for all persons to attend 
via a call-in option or an internet-based service option, and to conduct the meeting in a manner 
that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public appearing 
before the legislative body; and 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 44 of 778



  RES. NO. 8208 

3 

WHEREAS, AB 361 requires the legislative body take no further action on agenda items 
when there is a disruption which prevents the public agency from broadcasting the meeting, or 
in the event of a disruption within the local agency’s control which prevents members of the 
public from offering public comments, until public access is restored; and 

 
WHEREAS, AB 361 prohibits the legislative body from requiring public comments to be 

submitted in advance of the meeting and specifies that the legislative body must provide an 
opportunity for the public to address the legislative body and offer comment in real time; and 
 

WHEREAS, AB 361 prohibits the legislative body from closing the public comment period 
and the opportunity to register to provide public comment, until the public comment period has 
elapsed or until a reasonable amount of time has elapsed, as specified; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council meetings and meetings of certain other subordinate bodies 
of the City (e.g, the Planning and Preservation Commission) are customarily open and public, as 
required by the Brown Act, so that any member of the public may attend, participate, and watch 
the City Council or City Commission conduct their business; and 

 
WHEREAS, the ability to undertake meetings under the relaxed regulations of AB 361 are 

still warranted given the size of the City Council chambers and the relative ease with which 
COVID-19 can be transmitted in such an enclosed space, notwithstanding counter measures like 
masking and social distancing; and  
 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 continues to threaten the health and lives of Los Angeles County 
residents particularly during winter months, notwithstanding increased vaccination rates; and 
 

WHEREAS, in light of the continuing State declaration of emergency resulting from the 
COVID-19 pandemic, the continuing recommendation by Los Angeles County Public Health 
officials to observe certain infection control and containment measures; and  

 
WHEREAS, despite the forgoing, Governor Gavin Newsom has announced that the COVID-

19 State of Emergency will end on February 28, 2023, meaning after February 28, 2023, public 
agencies will no longer be able to avail themselves of the relaxed procedures of AB 361, unless 
and until a new State of Emergency is declared or the existing State of Emergency is extended. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS:  

 
SECTION 1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into 

this Resolution by reference; and 
 
SECTION 2. The City Council finds that the State and County declarations of emergency 

in response to the COVID-19 pandemic remain in place and will end on February 28, 2023; and 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 45 of 778



  RES. NO. 8208 

4 

SECTION 3. The City Council finds that local officials, specifically, the Los Angeles 
County Department of Public Health, has continued to recommend social distancing measures.  
 

SECTION 4. The City of San Fernando staff along with the City Council are hereby 
authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this 
Resolution including, taking measures to ensure that meetings of the City Council, the Planning 
and Preservation Commission and all meetings of other commissions subject to the Brown Act 
are conducted in accordance with the provisions of Government Code Section 54953(e) to the 
extent such bodies continue to avail themselves of the relaxed and teleconferencing procedures 
permitted under AB 361.  

 
SECTION 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution is 

for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 
The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this Resolution and each and every 
section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional without 
regard to whether any portion of this Resolution would be subsequently declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 

SECTION 6. The operational provisions of this Resolution shall take effect  
February 11, 2023, and expire on 12:00 am on March 1, 2023. 
 

SECTION 7. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall cause 
a certified resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 6th day of February, 2023 

  
       
           

Celeste T. Rodriguez, Mayor of the City of  
San Fernando, California  

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 46 of 778



  RES. NO. 8208 

5 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8208 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
6th day of February, 2023, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of February, 2023 
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 47 of 778



ATTACHMENT "B" 

Assembly Bill No. 361 

CHAPTER 165 

An act to add and repeal Section 89305.6 of the Education Code, and to amend, repeal, 
and add Section 54953 of, and to add and repeal Section 11133 of, the Government 
Code, relating to open meetings, and declaring the urgency thereof, to take effect 
immediately. 

[ Approved by Governor September 16, 2021. 

Filed with Secretary of State September 16, 2021. ] 

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST 

AB 361, Robert Rivas. Open meetings: state and local agencies: teleconferences. 

(1) Existing law, the Ralph M. Brown Act requires, with specified exceptions, that all
meetings of a legislative body of a local agency, as those terms are defined, be open and
public and that all persons be permitted to attend and participate. The act contains
specified provisions regarding the timelines for posting an agenda and providing for the
ability of the public to directly address the legislative body on any item of interest to the
public. The act generally requires all regular and special meetings of the legislative body
be held within the boundaries of the territory over which the local agency exercises
jurisdiction, subject to certain exceptions. The act allows for meetings to occur via
teleconferencing subject to certain requirements, particularly that the legislative body
notice each teleconference location of each member that will be participating in the public
meeting, that each teleconference location be accessible to the public, that members of
the public be allowed to address the legislative body at each teleconference location, that
the legislative body post an agenda at each teleconference location, and that at least a
quorum of the legislative body participate from locations within the boundaries of the local
agency’s jurisdiction. The act provides an exemption to the jurisdictional requirement for
health authorities, as defined. The act authorizes the district attorney or any interested
person, subject to certain provisions, to commence an action by mandamus or injunction
for the purpose of obtaining a judicial determination that specified actions taken by a
legislative body are null and void.

Existing law, the California Emergency Services Act, authorizes the Governor, or the 
Director of Emergency Services when the governor is inaccessible, to proclaim a state of 
emergency under specified circumstances. 

Executive Order No. N-29-20 suspends the Ralph M. Brown Act’s requirements for 
teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic provided that notice and accessibility 
requirements are met, the public members are allowed to observe and address the 
legislative body at the meeting, and that a legislative body of a local agency has a 
procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable accommodation for 
individuals with disabilities, as specified. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 48 of 778



This bill, until January 1, 2024, would authorize a local agency to use teleconferencing 
without complying with the teleconferencing requirements imposed by the Ralph M. 
Brown Act when a legislative body of a local agency holds a meeting during a declared 
state of emergency, as that term is defined, when state or local health officials have 
imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing, during a proclaimed 
state of emergency held for the purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether meeting 
in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, and during a 
proclaimed state of emergency when the legislative body has determined that meeting in 
person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, as provided. 

This bill would require legislative bodies that hold teleconferenced meetings under these 
abbreviated teleconferencing procedures to give notice of the meeting and post agendas, 
as described, to allow members of the public to access the meeting and address the 
legislative body, to give notice of the means by which members of the public may access 
the meeting and offer public comment, including an opportunity for all persons to attend 
via a call-in option or an internet-based service option, and to conduct the meeting in a 
manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public 
appearing before the legislative body. The bill would require the legislative body to take 
no further action on agenda items when there is a disruption which prevents the public 
agency from broadcasting the meeting, or in the event of a disruption within the local 
agency’s control which prevents members of the public from offering public comments, 
until public access is restored. The bill would specify that actions taken during the 
disruption are subject to challenge proceedings, as specified. 

This bill would prohibit the legislative body from requiring public comments to be 
submitted in advance of the meeting and would specify that the legislative body must 
provide an opportunity for the public to address the legislative body and offer comment in 
real time. The bill would prohibit the legislative body from closing the public comment 
period and the opportunity to register to provide public comment, until the public comment 
period has elapsed or until a reasonable amount of time has elapsed, as specified. When 
there is a continuing state of emergency, or when state or local officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote social distancing, the bill would require a legislative 
body to make specified findings not later than 30 days after the first teleconferenced 
meeting pursuant to these provisions, and to make those findings every 30 days 
thereafter, in order to continue to meet under these abbreviated teleconferencing 
procedures. 

Existing law prohibits a legislative body from requiring, as a condition to attend a meeting, 
a person to register the person’s name, or to provide other information, or to fulfill any 
condition precedent to the person’s attendance. 

This bill would exclude from that prohibition, a registration requirement imposed by a third- 
party internet website or other online platform not under the control of the legislative body. 

(2) Existing law, the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act, requires, with specified exceptions, 
that all meetings of a state body be open and public and all persons be permitted to attend 
any meeting of a state body. The act requires at least one member of the state body to 
be physically present at the location specified in the notice of the meeting. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 49 of 778



The Governor’s Executive Order No. N-29-20 suspends the requirements of the Bagley- 
Keene Open Meeting Act for teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic, provided 
that notice and accessibility requirements are met, the public members are allowed to 
observe and address the state body at the meeting, and that a state body has a procedure 
for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable accommodation for individuals 
with disabilities, as specified. 

This bill, until January 31, 2022, would authorize, subject to specified notice and 
accessibility requirements, a state body to hold public meetings through teleconferencing 
and to make public meetings accessible telephonically, or otherwise electronically, to all 
members of the public seeking to observe and to address the state body. With respect to 
a state body holding a public meeting pursuant to these provisions, the bill would suspend 
certain requirements of existing law, including the requirements that each teleconference 
location be accessible to the public and that members of the public be able to address 
the state body at each teleconference location. Under the bill, a state body that holds a 
meeting through teleconferencing and allows members of the public to observe and 
address the meeting telephonically or otherwise electronically would satisfy any 
requirement that the state body allow members of the public to attend the meeting and 
offer public comment. The bill would require that each state body that holds a meeting 
through teleconferencing provide notice of the meeting, and post the agenda, as provided. 
The bill would urge state bodies utilizing these teleconferencing procedures in the bill to 
use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as reasonably 
possible to existing law, as provided. 

(3) Existing law establishes the various campuses of the California State University under 
the administration of the Trustees of the California State University, and authorizes the 
establishment of student body organizations in connection with the operations of 
California State University campuses. 

The Gloria Romero Open Meetings Act of 2000 generally requires a legislative body, as 
defined, of a student body organization to conduct its business in a meeting that is open 
and public. The act authorizes the legislative body to use teleconferencing, as defined, 
for the benefit of the public and the legislative body in connection with any meeting or 
proceeding authorized by law. 

This bill, until January 31, 2022, would authorize, subject to specified notice and 
accessibility requirements, a legislative body, as defined for purposes of the act, to hold 
public meetings through teleconferencing and to make public meetings accessible 
telephonically, or otherwise electronically, to all members of the public seeking to observe 
and to address the legislative body. With respect to a legislative body holding a public 
meeting pursuant to these provisions, the bill would suspend certain requirements of 
existing law, including the requirements that each teleconference location be accessible 
to the public and that members of the public be able to address the legislative body at 
each teleconference location. Under the bill, a legislative body that holds a meeting 
through teleconferencing and allows members of the public to observe and address the 
meeting telephonically or otherwise electronically would satisfy any requirement that the 
legislative body allow members of the public to attend the meeting and offer public 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 50 of 778



comment. The bill would require that each legislative body that holds a meeting through 
teleconferencing provide notice of the meeting, and post the agenda, as provided. The 
bill would urge legislative bodies utilizing these teleconferencing procedures in the bill to 
use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as reasonably 
possible to existing law, as provided. 

(4) This bill would declare the Legislature’s intent, consistent with the Governor’s 
Executive Order No. N-29-20, to improve and enhance public access to state and local 
agency meetings during the COVID-19 pandemic and future emergencies by allowing 
broader access through teleconferencing options. 

(5) This bill would incorporate additional changes to Section 54953 of the Government 
Code proposed by AB 339 to be operative only if this bill and AB 339 are enacted and 
this bill is enacted last. 

(6) The California Constitution requires local agencies, for the purpose of ensuring public 
access to the meetings of public bodies and the writings of public officials and agencies, 
to comply with a statutory enactment that amends or enacts laws relating to public records 
or open meetings and contains findings demonstrating that the enactment furthers the 
constitutional requirements relating to this purpose. 

This bill would make legislative findings to that effect. 

(7) Existing constitutional provisions require that a statute that limits the right of access to 
the meetings of public bodies or the writings of public officials and agencies be adopted 
with findings demonstrating the interest protected by the limitation and the need for 
protecting that interest. 

This bill would make legislative findings to that effect. 

(8) This bill would declare that it is to take effect immediately as an urgency statute. 

DIGEST KEY 

Vote: 2/3  Appropriation: no  Fiscal Committee: yes  Local Program: no 
 
 
 

BILL TEXT 

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
SECTION 1. 

Section 89305.6 is added to the Education Code, to read: 

89305.6. 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this article, and subject to the notice and 
accessibility requirements in subdivisions (d) and (e), a legislative body may hold public 
meetings through teleconferencing and make public meetings accessible telephonically, 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 51 of 778



or otherwise electronically, to all members of the public seeking to observe and to address 
the legislative body. 

(b) (1) For a legislative body holding a public meeting through teleconferencing pursuant 
to this section, all requirements in this article requiring the physical presence of members, 
the clerk or other personnel of the legislative body, or the public, as a condition of 
participation in or quorum for a public meeting, are hereby suspended. 

(2) For a legislative body holding a public meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to 
this section, all of the following requirements in this article are suspended: 

(A) Each teleconference location from which a member will be participating in a public 
meeting or proceeding be identified in the notice and agenda of the public meeting or 
proceeding. 

(B) Each teleconference location be accessible to the public. 

(C) Members of the public may address the legislative body at each teleconference 
conference location. 

(D) Post agendas at all teleconference locations. 

(E) At least one member of the legislative body be physically present at the location 
specified in the notice of the meeting. 

(c) A legislative body that holds a meeting through teleconferencing and allows members 
of the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or otherwise 
electronically, consistent with the notice and accessibility requirements in subdivisions (d) 
and (e), shall have satisfied any requirement that the legislative body allow members of 
the public to attend the meeting and offer public comment. A legislative body need not 
make available any physical location from which members of the public may observe the 
meeting and offer public comment. 

(d) If a legislative body holds a meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this section 
and allows members of the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or 
otherwise electronically, the legislative body shall also do both of the following: 

(1) Implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable 
modification or accommodation from individuals with disabilities, consistent with the 
federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12101 et seq.), and 
resolving any doubt whatsoever in favor of accessibility. 

(2) Advertise that procedure each time notice is given of the means by which members 
of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment, pursuant to paragraph 
(2) of subdivision (e). 

(e) Except to the extent this section provides otherwise, each legislative body that holds 
a meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this section shall do both of the following: 

(1) Give advance notice of the time of, and post the agenda for, each public meeting 
according to the timeframes otherwise prescribed by this article, and using the means 
otherwise prescribed by this article, as applicable. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 52 of 778



(2) In each instance in which notice of the time of the meeting is otherwise given or the 
agenda for the meeting is otherwise posted, also give notice of the means by which 
members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment. As to any 
instance in which there is a change in the means of public observation and comment, or 
any instance prior to the effective date of this section in which the time of the meeting has 
been noticed or the agenda for the meeting has been posted without also including notice 
of the means of public observation and comment, a legislative body may satisfy this 
requirement by advertising the means of public observation and comment using the most 
rapid means of communication available at the time. Advertising the means of public 
observation and comment using the most rapid means of communication available at the 
time shall include, but need not be limited to, posting such means on the legislative body’s 
internet website. 

(f) All legislative bodies utilizing the teleconferencing procedures in this section are urged 
to use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as 
reasonably possible to the otherwise applicable provisions of this article, in order to 
maximize transparency and provide the public access to legislative body meetings. 

(g) This section shall remain in effect only until January 31, 2022, and as of that date is 
repealed. 

SEC. 2. 

Section 11133 is added to the Government Code, to read: 

11133. 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this article, and subject to the notice and 
accessibility requirements in subdivisions (d) and (e), a state body may hold public 
meetings through teleconferencing and make public meetings accessible telephonically, 
or otherwise electronically, to all members of the public seeking to observe and to address 
the state body. 

(b) (1) For a state body holding a public meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to 
this section, all requirements in this article requiring the physical presence of members, 
the clerk or other personnel of the state body, or the public, as a condition of participation 
in or quorum for a public meeting, are hereby suspended. 

(2) For a state body holding a public meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this 
section, all of the following requirements in this article are suspended: 

(A) Each teleconference location from which a member will be participating in a public 
meeting or proceeding be identified in the notice and agenda of the public meeting or 
proceeding. 

(B) Each teleconference location be accessible to the public. 

(C) Members of the public may address the state body at each teleconference conference 
location. 

(D) Post agendas at all teleconference locations. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 53 of 778



(E) At least one member of the state body be physically present at the location specified 
in the notice of the meeting. 

(c) A state body that holds a meeting through teleconferencing and allows members of 
the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or otherwise electronically, 
consistent with the notice and accessibility requirements in subdivisions (d) and (e), shall 
have satisfied any requirement that the state body allow members of the public to attend 
the meeting and offer public comment. A state body need not make available any physical 
location from which members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public 
comment. 

(d) If a state body holds a meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this section and 
allows members of the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or 
otherwise electronically, the state body shall also do both of the following: 

(1) Implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable 
modification or accommodation from individuals with disabilities, consistent with the 
federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12101 et seq.), and 
resolving any doubt whatsoever in favor of accessibility. 

(2) Advertise that procedure each time notice is given of the means by which members 
of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment, pursuant to paragraph 
(2) of subdivision (e). 

(e) Except to the extent this section provides otherwise, each state body that holds a 
meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this section shall do both of the following: 

(1) Give advance notice of the time of, and post the agenda for, each public meeting 
according to the timeframes otherwise prescribed by this article, and using the means 
otherwise prescribed by this article, as applicable. 

(2) In each instance in which notice of the time of the meeting is otherwise given or the 
agenda for the meeting is otherwise posted, also give notice of the means by which 
members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment. As to any 
instance in which there is a change in the means of public observation and comment, or 
any instance prior to the effective date of this section in which the time of the meeting has 
been noticed or the agenda for the meeting has been posted without also including notice 
of the means of public observation and comment, a state body may satisfy this 
requirement by advertising the means of public observation and comment using the most 
rapid means of communication available at the time. Advertising the means of public 
observation and comment using the most rapid means of communication available at the 
time shall include, but need not be limited to, posting such means on the state body’s 
internet website. 

(f) All state bodies utilizing the teleconferencing procedures in this section are urged to 
use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as reasonably 
possible to the otherwise applicable provisions of this article, in order to maximize 
transparency and provide the public access to state body meetings. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 54 of 778



(g) This section shall remain in effect only until January 31, 2022, and as of that date is 
repealed. 

SEC. 3. 

Section 54953 of the Government Code is amended to read: 

54953. 

(a) All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and 
all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local 
agency, except as otherwise provided in this chapter. 

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of a local agency 
may use teleconferencing for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local 
agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. The 
teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all otherwise applicable 
requirements of this chapter and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a 
specific type of meeting or proceeding. 

(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all purposes in 
connection with any meeting within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. 
All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post 
agendas at all teleconference locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner 
that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing 
before the legislative body of a local agency. Each teleconference location shall be 
identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 
location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of 
the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations within the boundaries 
of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as provided in 
subdivisions (d) and (e). The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the 
public to address the legislative body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each 
teleconference location. 

(4) For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative 
body, the members of which are in different locations, connected by electronic means, 
through either audio or video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 
from providing the public with additional teleconference locations. 

(c) (1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 

(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the 
vote or abstention on that action of each member present for the action. 

(3) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a summary of a 
recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid 
in the form of fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of 
Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken. This 
paragraph shall not affect the public’s right under the California Public Records Act 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 55 of 778



(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to inspect or copy 
records created or received in the process of developing the recommendation. 

(d) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b), if a health authority conducts a teleconference meeting, members who are outside 
the jurisdiction of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a quorum 
when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 percent of the number of members 
that would establish a quorum are present within the boundaries of the territory over which 
the authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides a teleconference 
number, and associated access codes, if any, that allows any person to call in to 
participate in the meeting and the number and access codes are identified in the notice 
and agenda of the meeting. 

(2) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as discouraging health authority 
members from regularly meeting at a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the 
authority or from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction of the 
authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is established pursuant to this 
subdivision shall be subject to all other requirements of this section. 

(3) For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means any entity created pursuant 
to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the 
Welfare and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant to Article 1 
(commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the purpose of contracting 
pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 
committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to Chapter 2.2 
(commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code if the 
advisory committee has 12 or more members. 

(e) (1) A local agency may use teleconferencing without complying with the requirements 
of paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) if the legislative body complies with the requirements 
of paragraph (2) of this subdivision in any of the following circumstances: 

(A) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and 
state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 
distancing. 

(B) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the 
purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting 
in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. 

(C) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has 
determined, by majority vote, pursuant to subparagraph (B), that, as a result of the 
emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 
attendees. 

(2) A legislative body that holds a meeting pursuant to this subdivision shall do all of the 
following: 

(A) The legislative body shall give notice of the meeting and post agendas as otherwise 
required by this chapter. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 56 of 778



(B) The legislative body shall allow members of the public to access the meeting and the 
agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to address the legislative 
body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3. In each instance in which notice of the time of 
the teleconferenced meeting is otherwise given or the agenda for the meeting is otherwise 
posted, the legislative body shall also give notice of the means by which members of the 
public may access the meeting and offer public comment. The agenda shall identify and 
include an opportunity for all persons to attend via a call-in option or an internet-based 
service option. This subparagraph shall not be construed to require the legislative body 
to provide a physical location from which the public may attend or comment. 

(C) The legislative body shall conduct teleconference meetings in a manner that protects 
the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public appearing before the 
legislative body of a local agency. 

(D) In the event of a disruption which prevents the public agency from broadcasting the 
meeting to members of the public using the call-in option or internet-based service option, 
or in the event of a disruption within the local agency’s control which prevents members 
of the public from offering public comments using the call-in option or internet-based 
service option, the body shall take no further action on items appearing on the meeting 
agenda until public access to the meeting via the call-in option or internet-based service 
option is restored. Actions taken on agenda items during a disruption which prevents the 
public agency from broadcasting the meeting may be challenged pursuant to Section 
54960.1. 

(E) The legislative body shall not require public comments to be submitted in advance of 
the meeting and must provide an opportunity for the public to address the legislative body 
and offer comment in real time. This subparagraph shall not be construed to require the 
legislative body to provide a physical location from which the public may attend or 
comment. 

(F) Notwithstanding Section 54953.3, an individual desiring to provide public comment 
through the use of an internet website, or other online platform, not under the control of 
the local legislative body, that requires registration to log in to a teleconference may be 
required to register as required by the third-party internet website or online platform to 
participate. 

(G) (i) A legislative body that provides a timed public comment period for each agenda 
item shall not close the public comment period for the agenda item, or the opportunity to 
register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), to provide public comment until that timed public 
comment period has elapsed. 

(ii) A legislative body that does not provide a timed public comment period, but takes 
public comment separately on each agenda item, shall allow a reasonable amount of time 
per agenda item to allow public members the opportunity to provide public comment, 
including time for members of the public to register pursuant to subparagraph (F), or 
otherwise be recognized for the purpose of providing public comment. 

(iii) A legislative body that provides a timed general public comment period that does not 
correspond to a specific agenda item shall not close the public comment period or the 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 57 of 778



opportunity to register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), until the timed general public 
comment period has elapsed. 

(3) If a state of emergency remains active, or state or local officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote social distancing, in order to continue to 
teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b), the legislative 
body shall, not later than 30 days after teleconferencing for the first time pursuant to 
subparagraph (A), (B), or (C) of paragraph (1), and every 30 days thereafter, make the 
following findings by majority vote: 

(A) The legislative body has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency. 

(B) Any of the following circumstances exist: 

(i) The state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet 
safely in person. 

(ii) State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social 
distancing. 

(4) For the purposes of this subdivision, “state of emergency” means a state of emergency 
proclaimed pursuant to Section 8625 of the California Emergency Services Act (Article 1 
(commencing with Section 8550) of Chapter 7 of Division 1 of Title 2). 

(f) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2024, and as of that date is 
repealed. 

SEC. 3.1. 

Section 54953 of the Government Code is amended to read: 

54953. 

(a) All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and 
all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local 
agency in person, except as otherwise provided in this chapter. Local agencies shall 
conduct meetings subject to this chapter consistent with applicable state and federal civil 
rights laws, including, but not limited to, any applicable language access and other 
nondiscrimination obligations. 

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of a local agency 
may use teleconferencing for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local 
agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. The 
teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all otherwise applicable 
requirements of this chapter and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a 
specific type of meeting or proceeding. 

(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all purposes in 
connection with any meeting within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. 
All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 58 of 778



(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post 
agendas at all teleconference locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner 
that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing 
before the legislative body of a local agency. Each teleconference location shall be 
identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 
location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of 
the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations within the boundaries 
of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as provided in 
subdivisions (d) and (e). The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the 
public to address the legislative body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each 
teleconference location. 

(4) For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative 
body, the members of which are in different locations, connected by electronic means, 
through either audio or video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 
from providing the public with additional teleconference locations. 

(c) (1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 

(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the 
vote or abstention on that action of each member present for the action. 

(3) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a summary of a 
recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid 
in the form of fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of 
Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken. This 
paragraph shall not affect the public’s right under the California Public Records Act 
(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to inspect or copy 
records created or received in the process of developing the recommendation. 

(d) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b), if a health authority conducts a teleconference meeting, members who are outside 
the jurisdiction of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a quorum 
when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 percent of the number of members 
that would establish a quorum are present within the boundaries of the territory over which 
the authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides a teleconference 
number, and associated access codes, if any, that allows any person to call in to 
participate in the meeting and the number and access codes are identified in the notice 
and agenda of the meeting. 

(2) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as discouraging health authority 
members from regularly meeting at a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the 
authority or from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction of the 
authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is established pursuant to this 
subdivision shall be subject to all other requirements of this section. 

(3) For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means any entity created pursuant 
to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the 
Welfare and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant to Article 1 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 59 of 778



(commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the purpose of contracting 
pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 
committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to Chapter 2.2 
(commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code if the 
advisory committee has 12 or more members. 

(e) (1) A local agency may use teleconferencing without complying with the requirements 
of paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) if the legislative body complies with the requirements 
of paragraph (2) of this subdivision in any of the following circumstances: 

(A) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and 
state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 
distancing. 

(B) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the 
purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting 
in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. 

(C) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has 
determined, by majority vote, pursuant to subparagraph (B), that, as a result of the 
emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 
attendees. 

(2) A legislative body that holds a meeting pursuant to this subdivision shall do all of the 
following: 

(A) The legislative body shall give notice of the meeting and post agendas as otherwise 
required by this chapter. 

(B) The legislative body shall allow members of the public to access the meeting and the 
agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to address the legislative 
body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3. In each instance in which notice of the time of 
the teleconferenced meeting is otherwise given or the agenda for the meeting is otherwise 
posted, the legislative body shall also give notice of the means by which members of the 
public may access the meeting and offer public comment. The agenda shall identify and 
include an opportunity for all persons to attend via a call-in option or an internet-based 
service option. This subparagraph shall not be construed to require the legislative body 
to provide a physical location from which the public may attend or comment. 

(C) The legislative body shall conduct teleconference meetings in a manner that protects 
the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public appearing before the 
legislative body of a local agency. 

(D) In the event of a disruption which prevents the public agency from broadcasting the 
meeting to members of the public using the call-in option or internet-based service option, 
or in the event of a disruption within the local agency’s control which prevents members 
of the public from offering public comments using the call-in option or internet-based 
service option, the body shall take no further action on items appearing on the meeting 
agenda until public access to the meeting via the call-in option or internet-based service 
option is restored. Actions taken on agenda items during a disruption which prevents the 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 60 of 778



public agency from broadcasting the meeting may be challenged pursuant to Section 
54960.1. 

(E) The legislative body shall not require public comments to be submitted in advance of 
the meeting and must provide an opportunity for the public to address the legislative body 
and offer comment in real time. This subparagraph shall not be construed to require the 
legislative body to provide a physical location from which the public may attend or 
comment. 

(F) Notwithstanding Section 54953.3, an individual desiring to provide public comment 
through the use of an internet website, or other online platform, not under the control of 
the local legislative body, that requires registration to log in to a teleconference may be 
required to register as required by the third-party internet website or online platform to 
participate. 

(G) (i) A legislative body that provides a timed public comment period for each agenda 
item shall not close the public comment period for the agenda item, or the opportunity to 
register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), to provide public comment until that timed public 
comment period has elapsed. 

(ii) A legislative body that does not provide a timed public comment period, but takes 
public comment separately on each agenda item, shall allow a reasonable amount of time 
per agenda item to allow public members the opportunity to provide public comment, 
including time for members of the public to register pursuant to subparagraph (F), or 
otherwise be recognized for the purpose of providing public comment. 

(iii) A legislative body that provides a timed general public comment period that does not 
correspond to a specific agenda item shall not close the public comment period or the 
opportunity to register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), until the timed general public 
comment period has elapsed. 

(3) If a state of emergency remains active, or state or local officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote social distancing, in order to continue to 
teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b), the legislative 
body shall, not later than 30 days after teleconferencing for the first time pursuant to 
subparagraph (A), (B), or (C) of paragraph (1), and every 30 days thereafter, make the 
following findings by majority vote: 

(A) The legislative body has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency. 

(B) Any of the following circumstances exist: 

(i) The state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet 
safely in person. 

(ii) State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social 
distancing. 

(4) For the purposes of this subdivision, “state of emergency” means a state of emergency 
proclaimed pursuant to Section 8625 of the California Emergency Services Act (Article 1 
(commencing with Section 8550) of Chapter 7 of Division 1 of Title 2). 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 61 of 778



(f) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2024, and as of that date is 
repealed. 

SEC. 4. 

Section 54953 is added to the Government Code, to read: 

54953. 

(a) All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and 
all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local 
agency, except as otherwise provided in this chapter. 

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of a local agency 
may use teleconferencing for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local 
agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. The 
teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all requirements of this chapter 
and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a specific type of meeting or 
proceeding. 

(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all purposes in 
connection with any meeting within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. 
All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post 
agendas at all teleconference locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner 
that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing 
before the legislative body of a local agency. Each teleconference location shall be 
identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 
location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of 
the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations within the boundaries 
of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as provided in 
subdivision (d). The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to 
address the legislative body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each teleconference 
location. 

(4) For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative 
body, the members of which are in different locations, connected by electronic means, 
through either audio or video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 
from providing the public with additional teleconference locations 

(c) (1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 

(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the 
vote or abstention on that action of each member present for the action. 

(3) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a summary of a 
recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid 
in the form of fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of 
Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken. This 
paragraph shall not affect the public’s right under the California Public Records Act 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 62 of 778



(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to inspect or copy 
records created or received in the process of developing the recommendation. 

(d) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b), if a health authority conducts a teleconference meeting, members who are outside 
the jurisdiction of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a quorum 
when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 percent of the number of members 
that would establish a quorum are present within the boundaries of the territory over which 
the authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides a teleconference 
number, and associated access codes, if any, that allows any person to call in to 
participate in the meeting and the number and access codes are identified in the notice 
and agenda of the meeting. 

(2) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as discouraging health authority 
members from regularly meeting at a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the 
authority or from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction of the 
authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is established pursuant to this 
subdivision shall be subject to all other requirements of this section. 

(3) For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means any entity created pursuant 
to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the 
Welfare and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant to Article 1 
(commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the purpose of contracting 
pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 
committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to Chapter 2.2 
(commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code if the 
advisory committee has 12 or more members. 

(e) This section shall become operative January 1, 2024. 

SEC. 4.1. 

Section 54953 is added to the Government Code, to read: 

54953. 

(a) All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and 
all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local 
agency, in person except as otherwise provided in this chapter. Local agencies shall 
conduct meetings subject to this chapter consistent with applicable state and federal civil 
rights laws, including, but not limited to, any applicable language access and other 
nondiscrimination obligations. 

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of a local agency 
may use teleconferencing for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local 
agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. The 
teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all requirements of this chapter 
and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a specific type of meeting or 
proceeding. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 63 of 778



(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all purposes in 
connection with any meeting within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. 
All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post 
agendas at all teleconference locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner 
that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing 
before the legislative body of a local agency. Each teleconference location shall be 
identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 
location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of 
the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations within the boundaries 
of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as provided in 
subdivision (d). The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to 
address the legislative body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each teleconference 
location. 

(4) For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative 
body, the members of which are in different locations, connected by electronic means, 
through either audio or video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 
from providing the public with additional teleconference locations. 

(c) (1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 

(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the 
vote or abstention on that action of each member present for the action. 

(3) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a summary of a 
recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid 
in the form of fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of 
Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken. This 
paragraph shall not affect the public’s right under the California Public Records Act 
(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to inspect or copy 
records created or received in the process of developing the recommendation. 

(d) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b), if a health authority conducts a teleconference meeting, members who are outside 
the jurisdiction of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a quorum 
when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 percent of the number of members 
that would establish a quorum are present within the boundaries of the territory over which 
the authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides a teleconference 
number, and associated access codes, if any, that allows any person to call in to 
participate in the meeting and the number and access codes are identified in the notice 
and agenda of the meeting. 

(2) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as discouraging health authority 
members from regularly meeting at a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the 
authority or from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction of the 
authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is established pursuant to this 
subdivision shall be subject to all other requirements of this section. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 64 of 778



(3) For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means any entity created pursuant 
to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the 
Welfare and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant to Article 1 
(commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the purpose of contracting 
pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 
committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to Chapter 2.2 
(commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code if the 
advisory committee has 12 or more members. 

(e) This section shall become operative January 1, 2024. 

SEC. 5. 

Sections 3.1 and 4.1 of this bill incorporate amendments to Section 54953 of the 
Government Code proposed by both this bill and Assembly Bill 339. Those sections of 
this bill shall only become operative if (1) both bills are enacted and become effective on 
or before January 1, 2022, but this bill becomes operative first, (2) each bill amends 
Section 54953 of the Government Code, and (3) this bill is enacted after Assembly Bill 
339, in which case Section 54953 of the Government Code, as amended by Sections 3 
and 4 of this bill, shall remain operative only until the operative date of Assembly Bill 339, 
at which time Sections 3.1 and 4.1 of this bill shall become operative. 

SEC. 6. 

It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting this act to improve and enhance public access 
to state and local agency meetings during the COVID-19 pandemic and future applicable 
emergencies, by allowing broader access through teleconferencing options consistent 
with the Governor’s Executive Order No. N-29-20 dated March 17, 2020, permitting 
expanded use of teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

SEC. 7. 

The Legislature finds and declares that Sections 3 and 4 of this act, which amend, repeal, 
and add Section 54953 of the Government Code, further, within the meaning of paragraph 
(7) of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article I of the California Constitution, the purposes 
of that constitutional section as it relates to the right of public access to the meetings of 
local public bodies or the writings of local public officials and local agencies. Pursuant to 
paragraph (7) of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article I of the California Constitution, the 
Legislature makes the following findings: 

This act is necessary to ensure minimum standards for public participation and notice 
requirements allowing for greater public participation in teleconference meetings during 
applicable emergencies. 

SEC. 8. 

(a) The Legislature finds and declares that during the COVID-19 public health 
emergency, certain requirements of the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act (Article 9 
(commencing with Section 11120) of Chapter 1 of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 of the 
Government Code) were suspended by Executive Order N-29-20. Audio and video 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 65 of 778



teleconference were widely used to conduct public meetings in lieu of physical location 
meetings, and public meetings conducted by teleconference during the COVID-19 public 
health emergency have been productive, have increased public participation by all 
members of the public regardless of their location in the state and ability to travel to 
physical meeting locations, have protected the health and safety of civil servants and the 
public, and have reduced travel costs incurred by members of state bodies and reduced 
work hours spent traveling to and from meetings. 

(b) The Legislature finds and declares that Section 1 of this act, which adds and repeals 
Section 89305.6 of the Education Code, Section 2 of this act, which adds and repeals 
Section 11133 of the Government Code, and Sections 3 and 4 of this act, which amend, 
repeal, and add Section 54953 of the Government Code, all increase and potentially limit 
the public’s right of access to the meetings of public bodies or the writings of public 
officials and agencies within the meaning of Section 3 of Article I of the California 
Constitution. Pursuant to that constitutional provision, the Legislature makes the following 
findings to demonstrate the interest protected by this limitation and the need for protecting 
that interest: 

(1) By removing the requirement that public meetings be conducted at a primary physical 
location with a quorum of members present, this act protects the health and safety of civil 
servants and the public and does not preference the experience of members of the public 
who might be able to attend a meeting in a physical location over members of the public 
who cannot travel or attend that meeting in a physical location. 

(2) By removing the requirement for agendas to be placed at the location of each public 
official participating in a public meeting remotely, including from the member’s private 
home or hotel room, this act protects the personal, private information of public officials 
and their families while preserving the public’s right to access information concerning the 
conduct of the people’s business. 

SEC. 9. 

This act is an urgency statute necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 
peace, health, or safety within the meaning of Article IV of the California Constitution and 
shall go into immediate effect. The facts constituting the necessity are: 

In order to ensure that state and local agencies can continue holding public meetings 
while providing essential services like water, power, and fire protection to their 
constituents during public health, wildfire, or other states of emergencies, it is necessary 
that this act take effect immediately. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 66 of 778



1/30/23, 3:01 PM Governor Newsom to End the COVID-19 State of Emergency | California Governor

https://www.gov.ca.gov/2022/10/17/governor-newsom-to-end-the-covid-19-state-of-emergency/ 1/2

Governor Newsom to End the COVID-19 State of
Emergency
Published: Oct 17, 2022
Californiaʼs pandemic response saved tens of thousands of lives, protected the economy,
distributed nation-leading financial assistance and built up an unprecedented public health
infrastructure

The SMARTER Plan will maintain Californiaʼs operational preparedness to support
communities and quickly respond to outbreaks

SACRAMENTO – Today, Governor Gavin Newsom announced that the COVID-19 State of
Emergency will end on February 28, 2023, charting the path to phasing out one of the most
e�ective and necessary tools that California has used to combat COVID-19. This timeline gives
the health care system needed flexibility to handle any potential surge that may occur a�er
the holidays in January and February, in addition to providing state and local partners the
time needed to prepare for this phaseout and set themselves up for success a�erwards.

With hospitalizations and deaths dramatically reduced due to the stateʼs vaccination and
public health e�orts, California has the tools needed to continue fighting COVID-19 when the
State of Emergency terminates at the end of February, including vaccines and boosters,
testing, treatments and other mitigation measures like masking and indoor ventilation. As the
State of Emergency is phased out, the SMARTER Plan continues to guide Californiaʼs strategy
to best protect people from COVID-19.

SMARTER Plan progress update

“Throughout the pandemic, weʼve been guided by the science and data – moving quickly and
strategically to save lives. The State of Emergency was an e�ective and necessary tool that we
utilized to protect our state, and we wouldnʼt have gotten to this point without it,” said
Governor Newsom. “With the operational preparedness that weʼve built up and the measures
that weʼll continue to employ moving forward, California is ready to phase out this tool.”

To maintain Californiaʼs COVID-19 laboratory testing and therapeutics treatment capacity, the
Newsom Administration will be seeking two statutory changes immediately upon the
Legislatureʼs return: 1) The continued ability of nurses to dispense COVID-19 therapeutics; and
2) The continued ability of laboratory workers to solely process COVID-19 tests.

“Californiaʼs response to the COVID-19 pandemic has prepared us for whatever comes next. As
we move into this next phase, the infrastructure and processes weʼve invested in and built up
will provide us the tools to manage any ups and downs in the future,” said Secretary of the
California Health & Human Services Agency, Dr. Mark Ghaly. “While the threat of this virus is
still real, our preparedness and collective work have helped turn this once crisis emergency
into a manageable situation.”

Throughout the pandemic, Governor Newsom, the Legislature and state agencies have been
guided by the science and data to best protect Californians and save lives – with a focus on
those facing the greatest social and health inequities – remaining nimble to adapt mitigation
e�orts along the way as we learned more about COVID-19. The stateʼs e�orts to support
Californians resulted in:

Administration of 81 million vaccinations, distribution of a billion units of PPE throughout
the state and processing of 186 million tests.
Allocation of billions of dollars to support hospitals, community organizations, frontline
workers, schools and more throughout the pandemic.
The nationʼs largest stimulus programs to support people hardest hit by the pandemic –
$18.5 billion for direct payments to Californians, $8 billion for rent relief, $10 billion for small
business grants and tax relief, $2.8 billion to help with overdue utility bills, and more.

ATTACHMENT "C"
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 67 of 778

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.ca.gov%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2022%2F10%2FSMARTER-Plan-Progress-Update-FINAL-10.12.2022_jb.pdf%3Femrc%3Deed198&data=05%7C01%7CMarko.Mijic%40chhs.ca.gov%7C0c83978f3e0a46e488e208dab07551a5%7C95762673f4ed4bb6ac42439d725bf5e8%7C0%7C0%7C638016315172970387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=hs%2FDcCK%2F1vOIPqn3WYsDVv56mL7Tzt9QFSA%2BbptEx44%3D&reserved=0


1/30/23, 3:01 PM Governor Newsom to End the COVID-19 State of Emergency | California Governor

https://www.gov.ca.gov/2022/10/17/governor-newsom-to-end-the-covid-19-state-of-emergency/ 2/2

Californiaʼs pandemic response e�orts have saved tens of thousands of lives, kept people out
of the hospital and protected the economy:

Californiaʼs death rate is the lowest amongst large states. If California had Texasʼ death rate,
27,000 more people would have died here. If California had Floridaʼs rate, that figure jumps
to approximately 56,000 more deaths.
In only the first ten months of vaccines being available, a study showed that Californiaʼs
e�orts saved 20,000 lives, kept 73,000 people out of the hospital and prevented 1.5 million
infections.
Californiaʼs actions during the pandemic protected the economy and the state continues to
lead the nation in creating jobs and new business starts:

“ʻLockdownʼ states like California did better economically than ʻlooserʼ states like Florida,
new COVID data shows,” with Californiaʼs economy having contracted less than such
states – economic output shrank 3.5% on average for the U.S., compared with 2.8% for
California.
Since February 2021, California has created 1,628,300 new jobs – over 16% of the
nationʼs jobs, by far more than any other state. By comparison, Texas created 1,133,200
jobs (11.3% of the nationʼs) and Florida created 787,600 jobs (7.9% of the nationʼs) in that
same timeframe.
Since the beginning of 2019, data from the Bureau of Labor Statistics shows that over
569,000 businesses started in California, by far more than any other state.

###

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 68 of 778

https://covid.cdc.gov/covid-data-tracker/#cases_deathsper100klast7days
https://www.latimes.com/science/story/2022-04-22/california-lives-saved-by-covid-19-vaccines
https://news.yahoo.com/lockdown-states-like-california-did-better-economically-than-looser-states-like-florida-new-covid-data-shows-153025163.html
https://www.bls.gov/web/cewbd/ca_table9.txt


February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 69 of 778



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 70 of 778



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1222                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers  
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Matt Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 
       
Date:  February 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve an Increase to Compressed Natural Gas Retail Fuel Rate  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council approve an increase to the City’s per gallon equivalent 
(PGE) Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) PGE retail fuel rate to $6.52. 

  
BACKGROUND: 

1. On May 19, 2014, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 7602 (Attachment “A”) authorizing 
the City Manager or his designee to set the City’s Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) retail fuel 
prices. 

 
2. From May 2014 to the present, the City has adjusted its CNG retail fuel price only once. 

 
3. On January 5, 2023, the City received a letter (Attachment “B”) from Southern California Gas 

(SoCalGas) notifying its customers to expect significantly higher gas bills beginning 
immediately.    

 
4. On January 10, 2023, staff spoke with SoCalGas representative and confirmed that their 

current CNG cost per gallon is $6.42.  
 
5. On January 12, 2023, staff met with the City Manager and obtained direction on adjusting the 

City’s CNG retail fuel cost per gallon to coincide with the current market rate.  
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Resolution No. 7602 set specific conditions, for the City Manager or his designee, when 
determining and setting CNG fuel retail prices.  The conditions are: 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 71 of 778



Consideration to Approve an Increase to Compressed Natural Gas Retail Fuel Rate 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

• CNG fuel prices shall be set in a ten percent (10%) plus or minus range of the City’s 
current retail per gallon equivalent (PGE) of $2.659. 
 

• City Council approval shall be required for any price adjustment beyond the ten percent 
(10%) plus or minus range. 

 
• The CNG fuel price shall be set at a minimum of ten cents ($.10) higher than the Southern 

California Gas Company, Van Nuys Station retail CNG fuel price. 
 

• The CNG price or any subsequent adjustment to the same shall be set or adjusted only 
after a market-place review of the five (5) closest CNG fueling station prices. 
 

Since implementing the conditions, in 2014, for adjusting the City’s retail cost for CNG fuel, there 
has been only one price adjustment to the City’s current rate of $2.659.  
 
The cost of CNG has not fluctuated significantly in prior years, however, over the last 12 months, 
staff has seen a significant increase in the number of large commercial, public and private vehicles 
utilizing the City’s station and the amount of fuel being dispensed.  The reason for the increase is 
that the City’s CNG retail fuel rate is the lowest in Los Angeles County. Combine this with 
SoCalGas increasing their cost for natural gas due to inventories on the West Coast being well 
below the five-year average, reduced pipeline capacity and constraints in gas deliveries heading 
to California from places such as west Texas, Public Works has noticed a substantial increase in 
the amount paid to SoCalGas for CNG; See Table. 
 

CNG USAGE AND COST HISTORY 
PERIOD THERMS* USED AMOUNT 
December 2021 5,159 $5,027.98 
January 2022 6,103 $7,536.29 
February 2022 5,641 $5,674.20 
March 2022 6,929 $6,731.26 
April 2022 6,010 $5,893.54 
May 2022 5,908 $6,749.36 
June 2022 8,730 $12,513.57 
July 2022 12,372 $14,327.16 
August 2022 10,912 $14,988.95 
September 2022 15,122 $20,784.61 
October 2022 14,084 $14,923.44 
November 2022 14,308 $14,988.04 
December 2022 13,641 $19,796.82 

*THERMS – a unit of natural gas used in billing by SoCalGas 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 72 of 778



Consideration to Approve an Increase to Compressed Natural Gas Retail Fuel Rate 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
Per the above table, over a one-year period, the amount of CNG fuel dispensed by the City has 
increased almost threefold and the amount paid out to SoCalGas has increased fourfold.  If this 
trend continues, the net operation and maintenance cost for the CNG will be greater than the 
revenue generated on a year-over-year basis. For this reason, the City needs to increase its PGE 
cost for retail CNG to recapture lost revenue and keep up with ongoing operational and future 
capital costs.   
  
The frame of reference used for initiating an increase to the City’s CNG retail fuel rate is the real-
time CNG fuel rate charged by SoCalGas’ Van Nuys Station.  Currently, SoCalGas’ PGE fuel rate 
for CNG at this location is $6.42, which is $3.76 more than the City’s current PGE rate. Per the 
conditions in Resolution No. 7602, staff should adjust the PGE rate to be at least $0.10 higher 
than the Van Nuys Station. In addition, the staff conducted a market-place review of the closest 
CNG fueling stations (Attachment “C”).  As a result of this analysis and review of conditions, staff 
recommends raising the City’s PGE fuel rate to $6.52.  Going forward, staff will conduct a monthly 
review of the market rates and the rate charged at the Van Nuys Station and adjust accordingly.  
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
With the increase in rates over the last 12 months, the City is anticipating a loss of approximately 
$13,000 through the first six months of Fiscal Year 2022-2023. The increase to be in line with 
Resolution No. 7602 would likely cover the loss over the final five months of the fiscal year and 
allow for increased funds to be reinvested in the station for future capital upgrades.  
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that City Council approve an increase to the City’s current per gallon 
equivalent (PGE) Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) PGE retail fuel rate from $2.66 to $6.52. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Resolution No. 7602 
B. Letter from SoCalGas 
C. List of CNG Stations 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 73 of 778



RESOLUTION NO. 7602 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING CITY 
MANAGER OR HIS DESIGNEE TO SET CITY'S COMPRESSED 
NATURAL GAS FUEL RETAIL PRICES 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of San Fernando sets all fees and prices for all 
city services rendered; and 

WHEREAS, the process to set Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) fuel retail prices was not 
established at the time the CNG Fueling Station opened to the public nor has it been established 
to-date; and 

WHEREAS, the City's procedures for setting fees requires, among other things, the City 
Council of the City of San Fernando declare by resolution certain authorizations related to the 
operation of the CNG Fueling Station. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City Manager of the City of San Fernando, or his designee, shall 
determine and set the City's CNG fuel retail prices from time to time, pursuant to the following 
conditions: 

a) CNG fuel price shall be set in a ten percent (10%) plus or minus range of the City's 
current retail per gallon equivalent ($2.659); 

b) City Council approval shall be required for any price adjustment beyond the 10% plus or 
mmus range; 

c) The CN G fuel price shall be set at a minimum of ten cents ($.10) higher than the 
Southern California Gas Company, Van Nuys Station retail CNG fuel price; and 

d) The CNG price or any subsequent adjustment to the same shall be set or adjusted only 
after a market-place review of the five (5) closest CNG fueling station prices. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 19th day of May, 2014. 

ATTACHMENT "A"
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 74 of 778



ATTEST: 

Elena G. Chavez, CityClerk: 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) ss 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO ) 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was approved and adopted at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held on the 19th day of May 2014, by the following vote to 
wit: 

A YES: Ballin, Gonzales, Fajardo, Avila- 4 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: Lopez - 1 

Elena G. Chavez, cityClerk' 

2 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 75 of 778



ATTACHMENT “B” 

       
 
 
January 5, 2023 
 
Dear Customer: 
 
The purpose of this letter is to share news that will affect your natural gas bill. Due to a rise in the 
market price of natural gas and core rates, customers can expect significantly higher gas bills beginning 
this month.  
 
SoCalGas does not set the cost of natural gas or earn additional profits from higher supply prices. The 
natural gas market is driven by regional and national conditions, weather, and storage levels, and we 
work hard to secure the best possible prices for the natural gas we purchase on our customers’ behalf.  
 
Several unprecedented events occurring simultaneously over the last few weeks have contributed to the 
rising price of natural gas: 
 

• Widespread, below-normal temperatures 
• High natural gas consumption 
• Reduced natural gas flows 
• Pipeline constraints, including maintenance in West Texas 
• Low natural gas storage levels in the Pacific region 

 
For more information on natural gas prices and predictions, visit 
https://www.eia.gov/naturalgas/weekly/ 
 
SoCalGas’ public-access compressed natural gas stations and your natural gas bill will now reflect the 
increased natural gas costs.  
 
I realize that higher fuel and energy costs can be difficult, but I wanted to inform you ahead of time so 
that you can be prepared for any changes that may occur in our rates.  
 
Please click here to see our current transportation rate schedule. If you have any questions, please do 
not hesitate to contact me at adesai@socalgas.com or (213)-561-2768.  

 
Sincerely,  
 
Ami Desai 
(213)-561-2768 
adesai@socalgas.com 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 76 of 778

https://www.eia.gov/naturalgas/weekly/
https://tariff.socalgas.com/regulatory/tariffs/tm2/pdf/tariffs/GAS_G-SCHEDS_G-NGV.pdf
mailto:adesai@socalgas.com
mailto:adesai@socalgas.com


ATTACHMENT “C” 

 

Public 
Utility 

Station Name Street Address City 
Zip 
Code 

Pump Price - 
($ per gallon) 

SoCalGas Azusa Base 950 North Todd Avenue Azusa 91702 $6.02 

SoCalGas Bakersfield 35118 McMurtrey Ave. Bakersfield 93314 $5.98 

SoCalGas Branford Base 12475 Branford Street Pacoima 91331 $6.54 

SoCalGas Compton Base 1471 E. Elm Street Compton 90221 $6.61 

SoCalGas Energy Resource 
Center 

9240 East Firestone 
Boulevard 

Downey 90241 $6.32 

SoCalGas Fontana 16231 Valley Boulevard Fontana 92335 $6.01 

SoCalGas Garden Grove Base 12698 Industry Street Garden 
Grove 

92840 $6.01 

SoCalGas Lancaster Base 44416 N. Division Street Lancaster 93535 $6.04 

SoCalGas Oxnard Base 1650 Patton Court Oxnard 93030 $6.00 

SoCalGas Pico Rivera Base 8101 Rosemead Boulevard Pico Rivera 90660 $6.04 

SoCalGas San Pedro Base 755 West Capitol Drive San Pedro 90731 $6.65 

SoCalGas Santa Barbara Base 219 N. Quarantina Street Santa 
Barbara 

93103 $6.36 

SoCalGas Saticoy Base 16645 Saticoy Street Van Nuys 91406 $6.54 

SoCalGas Riverside Base 3077 Cottage Street Riverside 92507 $6.04 

SoCalGas Romoland 25200 Trumble Road Manifee 92585 $6.05 

SoCalGas Murrieta Base 25620 Jefferson Avenue Murrieta 92562 $6.05 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 77 of 778



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 78 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 79 of 778



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 80 of 778



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT           117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340           (818) 898-1202           WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Department      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 
Date:  February 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve Consent and Disclaimer Agreements to Authorize the 

Installation of a Solar Energy Generation and Energy Storage System at the City-
owned Property Located at 732 Mott Street 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Approve a Consent Agreement (Attachment “A” – Contract No. 2133) and Disclaimer 

Agreement (Attachment “B” – Contract No. 2133(a)) by and among the City of San Fernando, 
San Fernando Community Hospital, dba San Fernando Community Health Center (SFCHC), 
and Collective Energy Development, LLC, for installation and operation of a solar energy 
generation and storage system at the City-owned Property located at 732 Mott Street; and 

 
b. Authorize the City Manager to execute all related documents.  
 
 
BACKGROUND: 

1. On September 17, 2001, the City accepted a grant deed for the property at 732 Mott Street 
(Assessor Parcel Numbers 2613-001-900, 901, 902, 903, 904, 905 and 2613-004-900) 
pursuant to a United States Bankruptcy Court approved Debtor Plan of Reorganization by San 
Fernando Community Hospital, Inc. dba Mission Community Hospital (SFCHC). The site, 
including a 31,453 sq. ft. building, has served as the home for various health care services to 
the San Fernando community for several decades.  
 

2. On September 15, 2003, the City entered into a Lease Agreement with SFCHC (Contract No. 
1485) for the property located at 732 Mott Street for a term expiring on March 1, 2017. 

 
3. On July 5, 2005, the City approved a First Amendment to Lease adding an option to extend 

the lease term through March 1, 2027, provided that (a) the Lease is in full force and effect; 
(b) Tenant is not in default of the Lease terms; and (c) the Lease had not been assigned. 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 81 of 778



Consideration to Approve Consent and Disclaimer Agreements to Authorize the Installation of a Solar 
Energy Generation and Energy Storage System at the City-owned Property Located at 732 Mott Street  
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
4. On November 4, 2013, the City approved a Second Amendment to Lease consenting to assign 

the Lease to Deanco Healthcare, LLC. 
 
5. On August 6, 2018, the City entered into an Interim Lease Agreement with SFCHC to allow 

the parties to reach an agreement on the terms of a new lease while avoiding unnecessary 
disruption to SFCHC’s ongoing hospital/clinic operations.  

 
6. On November 19, 2018, City Council approved a Lease Agreement with SFCHC (Contract No. 

1898) to lease the property located at 732 Mott Street.  The initial lease term expires on  
October 1, 2028 with two additional five-year extensions, subject to fair market rate rent 
adjustments.   
 

7. In December 2022, SFCHC requested authorization from the City to install a solar energy 
generation and storage system at 732 Mott Street. 

 

ANALYSIS: 

SFCHC is a non-profit corporation and the successor entity formed from prior historic health care 
service providers at the subject property. SFCHC’s mission is to provide high-quality  
state-of-the-art health care services, as well as prevention and education services in a supportive 
atmosphere to every person, particularly the most vulnerable of the San Fernando Valley, 
regardless of religion, race, age, sex, or personal income. It provides preventive, primary, and 
specialized healthcare to general community, homeless and underserved families by offering 
medical, dental, mental health, enabling and health education services.  
 
SFCHC desires to enter into an Energy Services Agreement (ESA) with Collective Energy Company 
(Attachment “C”) to install and operate a solar energy generation and energy storage system 
(“System”) at 732 Mott Street to reduce long-term energy costs at the facility.  Through the ESA, 
Collective Energy Company will install, own and maintain the System and sell the energy 
generated from the System to SFCHC at a fixed price for a period of 15 years, with an option for 
SFCHC to purchase the system after six years.  SFCHC’s Board of Directors has prioritized greener 
energy facilities and supports this request. 
 
The ESA requires a Consent and Disclaimer Agreement from the City as the property owner.  Per 
the Agreement, the City consents to the installation and operation of the System at the property, 
and acknowledge that the System is the property of Collective Energy Company.  The Agreement 
also requires the City to grant access to Collective Energy Company remove the System from the 
property should the lease between the City and SFCHC expire or be terminated for any reason.  
The Consent and Disclaimer Agreement will remain in effect for the duration of the ESA.  The 
proposed Agreement has been reviewed by the City Attorney’s Office and indemnifies the City 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 82 of 778



Consideration to Approve Consent and Disclaimer Agreements to Authorize the Installation of a Solar 
Energy Generation and Energy Storage System at the City-owned Property Located at 732 Mott Street  
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
from any and all liabilities, claims, damage, etc. arising from the installation or operation of the 
System. 
 
Collective Energy Company, LLC (https://collectiveenergyco.com/) is a social enterprise that 
focuses on developing and managing solar energy and energy storage projects to provide energy 
cost savings and energy resilience benefits to community health centers.  Collective Energy 
Development, LLC is a wholly owned subsidiary of Collective Energy Company and will execute 
the Energy Services Agreement (“ESA”) with SFCHC.  As is the case with most third party-owned 
solar projects, Collective Energy plans to create a project company whose sole purpose will be to 
own and operate the SFCHC solar project.  The project company will be created as a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Collective Energy Development.  Once the project company is created, the 
ESA will be assigned to it. 
 

BUDGET IMPACT: 

The Lease with SFCHC for the City-owned property at 732 Mott Street is considered a “triple net” 
lease whereby any additional costs at the property are borne by the tenant and all improvements 
are at tenant’s sole expense.  Therefore, SFCHC is responsible for all costs related to the proposed 
solar energy generation and energy storage system.  The monthly lease rate paid by SFCHC is 
currently $42,961.93 per month, for a total of $515,543.16 per year.  Lease revenue from this 
property is allocated to General Fund revenues. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Consent and Disclaimer Agreement allowing 
San Fernando Community Hospital, dba San Fernando Community Health Center to enter into an 
Energy Services Agreement with Collective Energy Development, LLC, for installation and 
operation of a solar energy generation and storage system at the City-owned Property located at 
732 Mott Street. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Consent Agreement (Contract No. 2133), including: 
Exhibit A: Plans (to be provided after approved by Community Development) 

B. Disclaimer Agreement (Contract No. 2133(a))  
C. Energy Services Agreement 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 83 of 778

https://collectiveenergyco.com/


ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2133 

1 
 

LETTER AGREEMENT 
 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
117 Macneil Street 

San Fernando, CA  91340 
 
_____________, 2023 
 
San Fernando Community Health Center  
732 Mott Street, Suite 100-110 
San Fernando, CA  91340 
Attn: _______________ 
 
[__________________]  
c/o Collective Energy Development, LLC 
605 Pope Lane 
Ojai, California 93023 
Attn: Andrew MacCalla 
 
 
Re: Consent to Alterations as required by Lease, dated November 19, 2018 (the “Lease”), by 

and between the City of San Fernando, as landlord (the “City”) and San Fernando 
Community Hospital d/b/a San Fernando Community Health Center, as tenant (“SFCHC”) 
of property located at 732 Mott Street, San Fernando, California 91340 (the “Property”) 

 
 
Dear __________: 
 
In accordance with the Lease, this letter agreement (this “Letter Agreement”) serves as consent by 
the City, subject to the terms hereof, to the installation and operation of a solar energy generation 
and related equipment (the “System”) on the rooftop of the building (the “Facility”) located at the 
Property, by _______________, as provider (“Provider”), under the terms of an Energy Services 
Agreement, dated _______, 2023, by and between Provider and SFCHC (the “ESA”) and in 
compliance with the plans for the System attached to this Letter Agreement as Exhibit A (the 
“Plans”).  Provider and SFCHC agree not to make material changes to the Plans, or any other 
Alterations under the Lease, without the City’s further consent, not to be unreasonably withheld.   
 
The parties to this Letter Agreement (the “Parties”) agree that the System and all components 
thereof are and shall remain at all times the personal property of Provider and shall not attach to 
or be deemed a part of, or a fixture of, the Facility or the Property, notwithstanding the manner in 
which the System or components thereof are or may become affixed to the Facility or Property.  
The Parties further acknowledge and agree that Provider is and shall remain at all times the legal 
and beneficial owner of the System, and the City and SFCHC hereby disclaim and waive any and 
all interest or liens in the System.  The Parties will sign a disclaimer that includes the provisions 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 84 of 778



ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2133 

2 
 

of this paragraph, in form agreed to by the Parties (the “Disclaimer”), and Provider may record the 
Disclaimer in the applicable land records where the Property is located at its cost with a recordation 
copy of the Disclaimer to be delivered to the City c/o the City Manager. 
 
Upon the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease, the ESA shall automatically terminate and 
Provider will promptly remove the System from the Facility and repair any damage to the Facility 
or Property as a result of such removal of the System, at Provider’s expense.  SFCHC and the City 
will give Provider reasonable access to the Property to perform the foregoing removal.  (For 
avoidance of doubt, (i) as between Provider and SFCHC, the foregoing is not intended to modify 
the allocation between Provider and SFCHC under the ESA of responsibilities with respect to 
removal of the System and (ii) in the event SFCHC has exercised its option under the ESA to 
purchase the System, the foregoing removal and repair obligations shall apply to SFCHC and not 
Provider.) 
 
Throughout the term of the ESA, Provider and SFCHC will maintain comprehensive general 
liability insurance and property insurance as required to be maintained by them under the ESA.  
Provider will name the City as an additional primary insured on its liability policy without offset 
against the City’s liability insurance.  Provider will provide the City with certificates of insurance 
required to be carried hereunder on request.   
 
Provider shall not directly or indirectly cause, create, incur, assume, or suffer to exist any lien on 
or with respect to the Property or any interest therein.  If Provider breaches its obligations under 
this paragraph, it will immediately notify the City in writing, shall promptly cause such lien to be 
discharged and released of record or bonded off without cost to the City, and shall indemnify the 
City against all costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs at trial 
and on appeal) incurred in discharging and releasing such lien. 
 
Provider and SFCHC (each an “Indemnifying Party”) each agree to indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless the City, including its officials, employees, agents and volunteers and their successors 
and assigns (the “Indemnified Parties”), from and against any and all liabilities, claims, suits, 
losses, damages, costs and expenses, including reasonable legal fees and court costs (“Losses”), 
incurred by or on behalf of any of the Indemnified Parties arising out of, resulting from or in 
connection with any claim by a third party for physical damage to or physical destruction of 
property, or death of or bodily injury to any person, related to the installation or operation of the 
System at the Facility and Property.  Each Party shall give prompt notice to the other Parties of 
any claim instituted against it that may affect the other Parties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
indemnity provided under this paragraph shall not extend to Losses to the extent attributable to the 
negligence or willful misconduct of an Indemnified Party. 
 
This Letter Agreement shall not operate to grant any ownership or leasehold interest in the Property 
or Facility to Provider or any third party acting by or on behalf of Provider or be construed as a 
waiver by the City of any of the terms or provisions of the Lease.  
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 85 of 778



ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2133 

3 
 

The installation and operation of the System shall be subject to the terms of the Lease regarding 
use, alterations, maintenance and repairs.  While it is the determination by the City, SFCHC and 
Provider that the System is not an Improvement Work within the meaning of the Lease and 
therefore not subject to the payment of prevailing wages, if, as a result of a determination issued 
by the Department of Industrial Relations or by any decision of an administrative hearing officer 
or court of competent jurisdiction, the Improvement Work, or any portion of it, is determined to 
have been subject to the payment of prevailing wages, SFCHC and Provider, jointly and severally, 
shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City for the payment of any fines assessed to City 
and any wages payable to laborers who worked on the Improvement Work.  
 
In the event of any conflict or inconsistency as between the provisions of the Lease and the 
provisions of the ESA, the Disclaimer or this Letter Agreement, the provisions of the Lease shall 
govern and control.  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency as between the provisions of this 
Letter Agreement and the provisions of the ESA or the Disclaimer, the provisions of the Letter 
Agreement shall govern and control.   
 
The Parties have indicated their agreement to and acceptance of the provisions of this Letter 
Agreement by their signatures in the space provided below. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a California  
  municipal corporation 
 
By: _______________________________ 
 Name: 
 Title: 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED TO: 
 
SAN FERNANDO COMMUNITY HOSPITAL,  
  a California nonprofit public benefit corporation 
  d/b/a SAN FERNANDO COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER 
 
By: ________________________________ Date: _______________________ 
 Name: 
 Title:   
 
 
[_____________________________] 
 
By: _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
 Name: 
 Title: 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 86 of 778



ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2133 

4 
 

Exhibit A 
 

Plans for System 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 87 of 778



ATTACHMENT “B” 
CONTRACT NO. 2133(a) 

Return after recording to: 
____________________ 
c/o Collective Energy Development, LLC 
605 Pope Lane 
Ojai, California 93023 
 

 

DISCLAIMER 

This Disclaimer (this “Agreement”) is executed as of the ___ day of _____________, 2023  (the “Effective 
Date”) by and among the CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a California municipal corporation (“Property 
Owner”), SAN FERNANDO COMMUNITY HOSPITAL, a California nonprofit public benefit 
corporation d/b/a SAN FERNANDO COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER (“Tenant”) and 
_______________________, a _____________________ (“Provider”).  Property Owner, Tenant and 
Provider may be referred to hereinafter collectively as the “Parties”. 
 

Recitals 
 

A. Property Owner owns the real, improved property including a building (the “Facility”)  
located at 732 Mott Street, San Fernando, California 91340, more particularly described in the legal 
description attached as Exhibit __ (the “Property”) and Tenant is the sole tenant of the Facility and Property 
under the terms of a Lease, dated November 19, 2018, by and between Property Owner and Tenant (as it 
may be amended and/or extended, the “Lease”). 
 

B. Tenant and Provider have entered into an Energy Services Agreement, dated  
_________, 2023  (the “ESA”) under the terms of which Provider will arrange for the installation, operation 
and maintenance of a solar energy generation system and related equipment (the “System”) on the rooftop 
of the Facility and sell to Tenant, and Tenant will purchase from Provider, the electricity and services 
generated by the System. 
 

C. City has consented to the installation and operation of the System at the Facility and Property  
under and in accordance with that certain document entitled “_________” (the “Letter Agreement”) dated 
___________.  
 

D. The execution and recording of this Agreement is a requirement of the ESA. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, for Ten and 00/100 Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby ratify and confirm the above 
recitals and covenant and agree as follows: 
 
1. DISCLAIMER 
Property Owner and Tenant acknowledge and agree that the System and all components thereof are and 
shall remain at all times the personal property of Provider and shall not attach to or be deemed a part of, or 
a fixture of, the Facility or the Property.   Subject to the terms of the Letter Agreement, Property Owner 
and Tenant further agree that the System and all components thereof do not constitute an “Improvement 
Work” under the Lease, notwithstanding the manner in which the System or components thereof are or may 
become affixed to the Facility or Property.  Property Owner and Tenant hereby further acknowledge and 
agree that Provider is and shall remain at all times the legal and beneficial owner of the System and Property 
Owner and Tenant hereby disclaim and waive any and all interest or liens in the System.   

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 88 of 778



2 
 

 
2. PROPERTY OWNER COVENANTS 
In the event that the Lease expires or is terminated for any reason, Property Owner shall grant Provider 
access to the Facility and Property as Provider deems necessary, upon reasonable notice by Provider to 
Property Owner prior to entering the Property or Facility, in order for Provider to exercise its rights under 
the ESA, including without limitation the right to remove the System from the Facility and Property, and 
Property Owner shall not take any action that will impair or impede the exercise by Provider of any right 
or remedy pertaining to the System hereunder, under the ESA or otherwise.   

 
3. MISCELLANEOUS 
This Agreement shall be binding upon Property Owner and Tenant and their respective successors and 
assigns and shall benefit Provider, its successors and assigns, and any purchasers of the System or of 
Provider.  This Agreement shall remain in effect for the duration of the ESA.  The provisions of this 
Agreement shall be self-operative; however, Property Owner and Tenant agree to execute, acknowledge 
and deliver such further instruments as may be necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Agreement.  This 
Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California, 
without reference to choice of law provisions, and may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original and all of which, together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.  

 

[Signature Page to Follow]  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 89 of 778



3 
 

 
EXECUTED as a sealed instrument as of the Effective Date set forth above.  
 
PROPERTY OWNER:    TENANT: 
 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a California  SAN FERNANDO COMMUNITY HOSPITAL,  
municipal corporation a California nonprofit public benefit  

corporation d/b/a SAN FERNANDO  
COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER 

 
 
By: ______________________________  By: ______________________________ 

Name:       Name: 
Title:       Title:  

 
 
 
PROVIDER: 
 
[____________________________] 
 
By: _______________________________ 
 Name: 
 Title: 
 

[ADD CALIFORNIA FORM NOTARIES FOR ALL PARTIES] 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 90 of 778



ENERGY SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Energy Services Agreement (the “Agreement”) is effective and made as of _____________, 202__ 

(the “Effective Date”) by and between Collective Energy Development, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 

company (“Seller”), and San Fernando Community Hospital, a California nonprofit public benefit 

corporation d/b/a San Fernando Community Health Center (“Host”).  Each of Seller and Host may be 

referred to individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”. 

RECITALS 

A. Seller is in the business of developing, arranging the installation of, and operating solar

energy and energy storage facilities for nonprofit organizations. 

B. Host is the tenant of the premises located at 732 Mott Street, San Fernando, California

91340 (the “Site”) and the building located thereon (the “Facility”), under the terms of a Lease, dated 

November 19, 2018, by and between City of San Fernando, a California municipal corporation, as Lessor 

(“Lessor”) and Host, as Lessee, as more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto. 

C. Host desires that Seller (i) install a solar energy generation system, which may include

battery energy storage, and related equipment (the “System”) on the roof top of the Facility and/or other 

locations at the Site, and (ii) sell to Host all of the electricity and services generated and otherwise provided 

by the System (the “Energy Storage Services”).   

D. The Site and Facility and planned location of the System at the Site are shown on the plan

attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Plan”) and the System is described in Exhibit C attached hereto. 

AGREEMENT 

For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, and 

intending to be legally bound, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Installation of System

1.1 Description of System.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Seller 

agrees to arrange for the installation of the System on the Facility and at the Site in the approximate location 

shown on the Plan, subject to adjustment by Seller.  At its request, Host shall have the opportunity to review 

the preliminary construction plans and designs for the System prepared by Seller. 

1.2 Installation Work.  Host understands and acknowledges that Seller is the developer and 

planned owner of the System and not a licensed contractor.  As developer and owner of the System, Seller 

shall contract with a licensed installer and other contractors to install the System and perform the related 

installation work at the Facility and Site between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. in a manner that 

minimizes interference with the use of the Facility by Host, to the extent commercially practical. 

ATTACHMENT "C"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 91 of 778



 

 

2 

 

1.3 Compliance with Law.  Seller will comply with all applicable laws relating to the 

installation of the System, and will be responsible for compliance with all applicable laws by any 

contractors that Seller may use in connection with the installation of the System.  

1.4 Permits. Seller will undertake commercially reasonable efforts to obtain any building 

permit or other governmental approval or permit that is required in connection with the installation of the 

System at the Site (collectively, “Permits”), and Host will cooperate with and provide assistance to Seller 

in applying for and obtaining such required Permits, including without limitation, signing applications for 

Permits in Host’s name as and when requested by Seller.   

1.5 Installation Timing.  Seller will use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the 

installation of the System at the Site to begin after the required Conditions to Installation (as defined below) 

are satisfied and will use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the completion of the installation of the 

System at the Site by the Anticipated Installation Completion Date.  Notwithstanding any provision herein 

to the contrary, at any time prior to commencement of installation of the System, Seller may terminate this 

Agreement with notice to Host if all Conditions to Installation have not been met, as reasonably determined 

by Seller. 

1.6 Interconnection of System.  Seller will use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain any 

consent, permission to operate, or interconnection rights from the utility providing electric service to the 

Site (the “Utility”), as may be required in connection with the installation of the System at the Site (“Utility 

Approvals”), and Host will cooperate with and provide assistance to Seller in applying for and obtaining 

such required Utility Approvals, including without limitation, signing applications for Utility Permits in 

Host’s name as and when requested to do so.  

1.7 Installation Updates.  Seller will provide reasonable periodic updates to Host regarding the 

status of the installation of the System at the Site, and will provide reasonable advance notice to Host of the 

date on which the System will be operational (the “Commercial Operation Date”). 

1.8 Liens.  Seller shall not directly or indirectly cause, create, incur, assume or suffer to exist 

any mortgage, pledge, lien (including mechanic’s, labor or materialman’s lien), charge, security interest, 

encumbrance or claim of any nature (“Liens”) to be recorded against the Site or any interest therein, in each 

case to the extent such Lien arises from or is related to Seller’s performance or non-performance of its 

obligations hereunder.  If Seller becomes aware of any such Lien, it shall (i) immediately notify Host and 

(ii) promptly cause such Lien to be discharged and released of record without cost to Host, provided that, 

Seller shall have the right to contest any such lien, so long as it provides a statutory bond or other reasonable 

assurances of payment  sufficient to remove and discharge such lien of record from title to the Facility and 

Site.   

1.9 Temporary Storage Space During Installation or Removal. Host shall supply Seller with 

reasonably sufficient space at the Facility and the Site for the temporary storage and staging of tools, 

materials, and equipment by Seller and for the parking of construction crew vehicles and temporary 

construction facilities reasonably necessary during the installation, repair and removal of the System. 

1.10 Conditions to Installation.  The obligations of Seller to install the System at the Site and to 

sell electricity generated by the System to Host pursuant to this Agreement are subject to the prior 

satisfaction, as reasonably determined by Seller, of each of the following conditions precedent (collectively, 

the “Conditions to Installation”): (i) Seller or its contractors shall have inspected the Facility and the Site 

and been reasonably satisfied that the physical structure and integrity of the roof of the Facility and the 

Facility itself can safely and adequately accommodate the Facility and all structural, electrical and 

engineering requirements and components thereof; (ii) all Permits shall have been obtained for the 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 92 of 778



 

 

3 

 

installation of the System at the Site; (iii) all Utility Approvals shall have obtained from the Utility for 

installation and operation of the System (other than any permission to operate that is granted after 

construction); (iv) Host shall have provided to Seller proof of insurance for all insurance required to be 

maintained by Host pursuant to this Agreement; (v) Seller shall have received binding commitments from 

its primary contractors and suppliers for the purchase of the equipment comprising the System and the 

installation of the System at the Site; (vi) Seller shall have secured financing for the System on terms 

acceptable to Seller; and (vii) no default by Host hereunder shall have occurred and be continuing and Seller 

shall have received reasonably satisfactory evidence thereof.   Notwithstanding any provision herein to the 

contrary, Host acknowledges and agrees that it is satisfied that the physical structure and integrity of the 

roof of the Facility and the Facility itself is suitable to safely and adequately accommodate the System and 

all structural, electrical and engineering requirements and components thereof and that Host is not relying 

on any representation or warranty of Seller in connection therewith, and Host shall hold Seller harmless 

from any and all Losses (as defined below) arising from any failure of the Facility, including without 

limitation the roof thereof, to safely and adequately hold and accommodate the System.  The foregoing 

provision shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

1.11 Title to the System.  Throughout the duration of the Agreement, Seller shall be the legal 

and beneficial owner of the System at all times, and the System shall remain the personal property of Seller 

and shall not attach to or be deemed a part of, or fixture to, the Facility or the Site.  The System shall at all 

times retain the legal status of personal property as defined under Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial 

Code.  Host covenants that it will use reasonable commercial efforts to place all parties now or hereafter 

having or acquiring an interest in or lien upon the real property comprising the Site on notice of Seller’s 

ownership of the System and the legal status or classification of the System as personal property.  Upon or 

immediately following the Effective Date, Host shall obtain and deliver to Seller a fully executed Consent 

and Disclaimer, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D (the “Consent and Disclaimer”), in recordable 

form, which Seller may file in the office where real estate records are customarily filed in the jurisdiction 

of the Facility.  Host shall also obtain and deliver to Seller a signed Consent and Disclaimer, in recordable 

form, from the holder of every mortgage or fixture filing now or hereafter recorded or filed against the 

Facility and/or Site, which Seller may file in the office where real estate records are customarily filed in the 

jurisdiction of the Facility, with such changes to the form as Seller may reasonably request.  

2. Sale of Electricity and Other Energy Services 

2.1 Purchase and Sale.  Starting on the Commercial Operation Date and continuing through 

the remainder of the Term (as defined below), (i) Host will take delivery of and purchase from Seller, and 

Seller will make available and sell to Host, all of the electricity generated by the Solar System (as defined 

in Exhibit C) at the price specified therefor in Exhibit A and (ii) in the event the System includes a battery 

energy storage system, Host will purchaser from Seller, and Seller will make available and sell to Host, 

energy services provided by the BESS (as may be defined in Exhibit C) at the price specified therefor in 

Exhibit A.   

2.2 Metering of Electricity.  The quantity of electricity delivered shall be the amount of 

electricity generated by the Solar System and delivered to Host at, and as measured in whole kilowatt-hours 

(kWh) by, a revenue quality production meter installed and owned by Seller as part of the System (the 

“Delivery Point”). 

2.3 Invoices.  Each month, Seller shall invoice Host for the amounts owing by Host under this 

Agreement with respect to the prior month.  Such monthly invoice shall state (i) the amount of electricity 

produced by the System and delivered to the Delivery Point during such billing period, (ii) the rates 

applicable to, and charges incurred by, Host under this Agreement during such billing period, and (iii) the 

total amount due from Host pursuant to such invoice.  All amounts due under this Agreement shall be due 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 93 of 778



 

 

4 

 

and payable within thirty (30) days from the date of the applicable invoice.  All payments shall be made via 

electronic means pursuant to instructions provided by Seller from time to time.  Any undisputed portion of 

an invoice amount not paid within the thirty-day period shall accrue interest at the annual rate of two and 

one-half percent (2.5%) over the current prime rate, as published in the Wall Street Journal (but not to 

exceed the maximum rate permitted by law). 

2.4 Title.  Title to electricity generated by the Solar System will pass from Seller to Host at the 

Delivery Point (as defined below).  If requested by Seller, Host agrees to provide Seller with copies of any 

electric utility bills it receives relating to the Facility (or, at Seller’s request, if feasible, arrange for Seller 

to have electronic to access to Host’s electric utility account data).   

2.5 Taxes.  Host shall promptly pay (or reimburse Seller for) all Taxes (as defined below) that 

are assessed on or against the generation, sale, delivery, or consumption of electricity produced by the 

System, and all real and personal property taxes assessed against the Site, Host’s personal property and 

fixtures located on or about the Site and the System (including without limitation, any increases to property 

taxes assessed against the Site resulting from installation of the System at the Site).  For purposes of this 

Agreement, the term “Taxes” means any federal, state, local, tribal or Utility ad valorem, property, 

occupation, generation, privilege, sales, use consumption, excise, transaction and other taxes, regulatory 

fees, surcharges or other similar charges, but shall not include any income taxes or similar taxes imposed 

on Seller’s revenues due to the sale of electricity or energy services under this Agreement, which shall be 

Seller’s responsibility.  The Parties agree to cooperate to minimize Taxes assessed against or attributable 

to the System. 

2.6 System Attributes and System Incentives.  Host’s purchase of electricity produced or 

energy services provided by the System shall not include System Attributes (as defined below) or System 

Incentives (as defined below) attributable to the System, the production of electricity from the Solar System, 

or storage and discharge of electricity from the BESS, or the capacity of the System, each of which shall be 

owned by Seller unless and until Host becomes the owner of the System following its exercise of the 

Purchase Option (as defined below) in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  Host disclaims any 

right to any such System Attributes or System Incentives prior to becoming the owner of the System, and 

shall, at the request of Seller, execute and deliver to any document or certificate and take any reasonable 

action to assist Seller to qualify for, collect, obtain, sell, retire, participate in markets or programs relating 

to, or otherwise derive value from, any and all such System Attributes and System Incentives.  For the 

purposes of this Agreement, “System Attributes” shall mean, without limitation, carbon trading credits, 

renewable energy credits or certificates, emissions reduction credits, emissions allowances, green tags, 

tradable renewable credits, or Green-e® products, and “System Incentives” shall mean any and all credits 

(including any federal investment tax credit or production tax credit), rebates, subsidies, payments and other 

incentives that relate to self-generation of electricity, the use of technology incorporated into the System, 

environmental benefits or other electricity grid benefits of using the System, or other similar programs 

available from the local utility, any other regulated entity, the manufacturer of any part of the System or 

any governmental authority.  However, System Attributes excludes any net metering credits that accrue to 

Host for net excess electricity delivered to the Utility.  If any System Attribute or System Incentive may be 

claimed only by Host, then, at Seller’s request and at Seller’s expense, Host shall take such actions as may 

be reasonably necessary from time to time to do so, and any resulting financial benefit shall be provided to 

Seller for so long as Seller remains the owner of the System. 

3. Host Additional Obligations  

3.1 Access Rights.  Host grants to Seller and to Seller’s agents, employees, and contractors an 

irrevocable, non-exclusive license  (the “License”) for access to, on, over, under and across the Facility and 

the Site for the purposes of (a) installing, constructing, operating, owning, maintaining, accessing, 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 94 of 778



 

 

5 

 

removing, and replacing the System, (b) performing all Seller’s obligations and enforcing all of Seller’s 

rights set forth in this Agreement and (c) installing, using, and maintaining electric lines and equipment, 

including inverters and meters, necessary to interconnect the System to Host’s electric system at the Facility 

and/or the electric utility’s electric distribution system or that otherwise may be from time to time useful or 

necessary in connection with the construction, installation, operation, maintenance or repair of the System.  

Seller shall notify Host prior to entering the Facility, except in situations where there is an emergency or 

imminent risk of damage to persons or property.  The term of the License shall continue until the date that 

is one hundred twenty (120) days following the date of the expiration or termination of this Agreement (the 

“License Term”).  During the License Term, Host shall ensure that Seller’s rights under the License and 

Seller’s access to the Facility and the Site are preserved and protected and shall not interfere with or permit 

any third parties to interfere with such rights or access.  Host represents and warrants to Seller that it has 

the full right, power and authority to grant the License to Seller hereunder and that the grant of the License 

does not violate any law, ordinance, rule or other governmental restriction applicable to Host or the Site or 

Facility and is not inconsistent with and will not result in a breach or default under any agreement by which 

Host is bound or that affects the Site or Facility.  Without limiting the foregoing, Host represents and 

warrants to Seller that it has obtained all required consents from Lessor, as owner of the Site and Facility, 

necessary to grant the License and enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement.  Host shall 

maintain the Lease is full force and effect for the duration of the Term and shall provide Seller immediate 

written notice of (i) its receipt of any notice of eviction from the Site or Facility, (ii) its receipt or issuance 

of any notice of termination of the Lease or (iii) its failure to exercise by the deadline therefor any right to 

extend the Lease as needed to maintain the Lease for the duration of the Term, any one of which shall 

automatically be and be deemed an Event of Default (as defined below) of Host hereunder.   The provisions 

of this Section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

3.2 Maintenance of the System.  During the Term, Seller shall cause the System to be 

maintained in good condition and repair in accordance with this Section by a third party service provider 

under the terms of an operation and maintenance agreement (the “O&M Agreement”), except for any 

repairs or maintenance resulting from Host’s negligence, willful misconduct or breach of this Agreement, 

for which Host shall be responsible.  If the System requires repairs for which Host is responsible, Host shall 

pay Seller for diagnosing and correcting the problem at Seller’s or Seller’s contractors’ then-current 

standard rates.   At Host’s request, Seller shall take reasonable actions to enforce any warranties in 

connection with the System, and Host shall reasonably cooperate with Seller’s efforts.  Host will provide 

access at all times requested for the third party service provider under the O&M Agreement in order for 

such service provider to access the System to provide its services, shall ensure that the System remains 

interconnected to the local utility grid at all times and will not permit cessation of the electric service to the 

System from the local utility.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Host is fully responsible for 

the maintenance and repair of the Facility’s electrical system and all of Host’s equipment that utilizes the 

System’s outputs.   Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Seller shall be entitled to temporarily 

suspend delivery of electricity from the System to the Delivery Point for the purpose of maintaining and 

repairing the System and such suspension of service shall not constitute a breach of this Agreement, 

provided that, Seller shall use commercially reasonable efforts to minimize any interruption in service to 

Host. 

3.3 Maintenance of the Facility.  Host shall, at its sole cost and expense, maintain the Facility 

in good condition and repair, provided, however, that Host shall not make any alterations or repairs to the 

Facility (including the roof of the Facility) which may adversely affect the operation of the System or of 

any warranties relating to any components of the System without Seller’s prior written consent.  If Host 

wishes to make such alterations or repairs to the Facility, Host shall give prior written notice to Seller, 

setting forth the work to be undertaken (except for emergency repairs, for which notice may be given by 

telephone), and give Seller (or one of its contractors) an opportunity to advise Host in making such 

alterations or repairs in a manner that avoids or minimizes damage to the System, but notwithstanding any 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 95 of 778



 

 

6 

 

such advice, Host shall be responsible for all damage to the System caused by Host or its contractors.  To 

the extent that temporary disconnection or removal of the System is necessary to perform such alteration 

or repairs, such work and any re-installation of the System after completion of Host’s alterations and repairs 

shall be done by Seller or its contractors at Host’s cost and expense, and Host shall also compensate Seller 

for all lost revenues related to such disconnection or removal.  All of Host’s alterations and repairs of the 

Facility shall be done in a good and workmanlike manner and in compliance with all applicable laws, codes, 

and permits, without causing damage to the System and in a manner that minimizes interruptions to the 

operation of the System and loss of electricity generated therefrom.     

3.4 Prevention and Notice of Damage or Emergency.  Host will not conduct activities on, in or 

about the Facility or System that have a reasonable likelihood of causing damage or impairment to, or 

otherwise adversely affecting, the System.  Host shall (i) promptly notify Seller if it becomes aware of any 

damage to or loss of the use of the System, any material malfunction in the operation of the System, an 

interruption in the supply of electrical energy from the System, or any event or circumstance that could 

reasonably be expected to adversely affect the System and (ii) immediately notify Seller if it becomes aware 

of any event or circumstance that poses an imminent risk to human health, the environment, the System, or 

the Facility.  Host and Seller shall each designate personnel and establish procedures such that each Party 

may provide notice of such conditions requiring Seller’s repair or alteration at all times, twenty-four (24) 

hours per day, including weekends and holidays.   

3.5 Liens.  Host shall not directly or indirectly cause, create, incur, assume, or suffer to exist 

any Lien on or with respect to the System or any interest therein.  If Host breaches its obligations under this 

Section, it shall immediately notify Seller in writing, shall promptly cause such Lien to be discharged and 

released of record without cost to Seller, and shall indemnify Seller against all costs and expenses (including 

reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs at trial and on appeal) incurred in discharging and releasing such 

Lien. 

3.6 Consents and Approvals.  Host shall comply with all applicable law in connection with 

providing Seller with access to the Facility and in performing its obligations under this Agreement.  Host 

shall ensure that any authorizations required in order to enter into this Agreement and make the Facility 

available to Seller for the purposes of this Agreement, are obtained or provided in a timely manner.  Host 

represents and warrants to Seller that neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement by Host nor the 

performance of its obligations hereunder conflicts with. or results or will result in a breach of, any 

agreement or obligations to which Host is a party or by which Host or the Site or Facility is bound.  Host 

further represents and warrants to Seller that all information provided by Host to Seller about the Site and 

Facility is accurate in all material respects. 

3.7 Access to Sunlight.  Host will take all reasonable actions as necessary to prevent other 

buildings, structures, equipment (including without limitation HVAC equipment installed on the roof of the 

Facility) or flora from overshadowing or otherwise blocking access of sunlight to the Solar System, 

including but not limited to trimming and removing trees and plants overshadowing or otherwise blocking 

such access of sunlight.   

3.8 Hazardous Materials at the Site.  Host represents and warrants to Seller that Host has no 

knowledge of any substance, chemical or waste on or affecting the Facility or the Site identified as 

hazardous, toxic or dangerous in any applicable federal, state or local law or regulation (collectively, a 

“Hazardous Substance”).  Notwithstanding any provision contained in this Agreement to the contrary, 

Host will have sole responsibility for the identification, investigation, monitoring and remediation and 

cleanup of any Hazardous Substance discovered at the Facility or the Site.  Host shall indemnify, defend, 

and hold harmless Seller from any and all claims relating to any Hazardous Substance or environmental 

condition present on or affecting the Facility or the Site prior to or on or after the Effective Date, except for  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 96 of 778



 

 

7 

 

releases of a Hazardous Substance by Seller or its contractors on the Site during the Term in violation of 

applicable law.  Neither Party nor its contractors will introduce or use any Hazardous Substance on the Site 

in violation of any applicable law, and each Party will indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other Party 

from and against all claims arising out of any breach of this sentence.  The indemnity obligations under this 

Section will survive expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

3.9 Casualty.  If the Facility or System is damaged or destroyed as a result of any casualty 

event, Host shall exercise commercially reasonable efforts to repair and rebuild the Facility so as to return 

it to its condition prior to such damage or destruction, including without limitation, using all insurance 

proceeds received by Host following such damage or destruction to accomplish the foregoing, and Seller 

shall exercise commercially reasonable efforts to repair and rebuild the System so as to  return it to its 

condition prior to such damage or destruction, including without limitation, using all insurance proceeds 

received by Seller following such damage or destruction to accomplish the foregoing.  Notwithstanding the 

foregoing, if the Facility or System is damaged or destroyed and it is not economically viable for Seller to 

repair and restore the System, as determined by Seller in its sole discretion, then Seller may elect to 

terminate this Agreement upon written notice to Host.   

3.10 Security; Notice.  Host shall be responsible for using commercially reasonable efforts to 

maintain the physical security of the Site, the Facility and the System.   

4. Term and Purchase Option 

4.1 Term.  The initial term of this Agreement (the “Initial Term”) will start on the Effective 

Date of this Agreement and will end on the Initial Term Expiration Date set forth in Exhibit A.  Upon 

expiration of the Initial Term, the Parties may mutually agree to extend this Agreement for an additional 

period of time (a “Renewal Term” and together with the Initial Term, the “Term”).  Without limiting the 

foregoing, upon expiration of the Initial Term, Host shall have the right to extend this Agreement as may 

be specified in Exhibit A. 

4.2 Host Options at End of Term.  Not later than ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the 

Initial Term or any Renewal Term, Host shall notify Seller in writing whether it intends at the expiration of 

such term to (i) renew the Term in accordance with any Host renewal right set forth in Section Article 4 

and Exhibit A (the “Renewal Option”), or (ii) purchase the System in accordance with Section 4.3 (the 

“End-of-Term Purchase Option”), or (c) terminate the Agreement (the “Termination Option”); provided 

that, Host may only exercise the Renewal Option or the End-of-Term Purchase Option so long as no default 

under this Agreement has occurred and is then continuing.  If Host does not timely provide such notice and 

no default has occurred that is continuing and Host has a Renewal Option, Host shall be deemed to have 

elected the Renewal Option.  If Host does not timely provide such notice and is not deemed to exercise the 

Renewal Option, Host shall be deemed to have elected the Termination Option.  If Host elects or is deemed 

to have elected the Termination Option, Seller will promptly remove the System from the Site and Host 

shall bear all costs incurred by Seller in removing such equipment.   

4.3 Purchase Option.  On or after the sixth (6th) anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date 

upon at least one hundred eighty (180) days’ notice to Seller, which notice may not be given prior to such 

sixth (6th) anniversary, Host may elect to purchase the System from Seller (the “Mid-Term Purchase 

Option”), provided that Host may only exercise such purchase option so long as no default under this 

Agreement has occurred and is then continuing.  Alternatively, Host may exercise the End-of-Term 

Purchase Option in accordance with Section 4.2 of this Agreement.  In either case, the purchase price for 

the System shall be an amount equal to the then-fair market value of the equipment as agreed by Host and 

Seller (the “Purchase Option Amount”).  Such purchase shall be consummated as of the close of business 

on the closing date set forth in Host’s notice or on such other date the Parties may otherwise agree (the 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 97 of 778



 

 

8 

 

“Purchase Date”).  For purposes of this Agreement, the Parties agree that “fair market value” means the 

amount that would be paid in an arm’s length, free market transaction, for cash, between an informed, 

willing seller and an informed willing buyer, neither of whom is under compulsion to complete the 

transaction, taking into account, among other things, the age, condition and performance of the System 

equipment and advances in solar and energy storage technology, provided that, prior to the expiration of 

the Initial Term, the installed System equipment shall be valued on an installed, in use, basis, and shall not 

be valued as scrap if it is functioning and in good condition and costs of removal from a current location 

shall not be a deduction from the valuation.  If Host and Seller are not able to agree on the fair market value 

within thirty (30) days after Host has delivered its notice of exercise of Host’s purchase option (as such 

date may be extended by the Parties), then the fair market value will be determined by a qualified appraiser 

appointed by Seller and Host, and each Party shall bear one-half of the cost of obtaining the appraisal.  Such 

appraiser shall act reasonably and in good faith to determine the fair market value and shall set forth such 

determination in a written opinion delivered to the Parties.  After receiving the appraisal, if Seller chooses 

not to sell at the appraised value or Host chooses not to purchase at the appraised value, the Party choosing 

not to sell or purchase shall reimburse the other Party for its share of the appraisal costs.  If Host elects to 

exercise an option to purchase the System, then on the Purchase Date Host shall pay to Seller (i) the 

Purchase Option Amount and all sales, use, value added and other taxes due thereon, plus (ii) any unpaid 

amount for electricity or other energy services delivered through such date, together with any other 

outstanding amount due under this Agreement.  Upon payment of all sums specified in this Section, this 

Agreement shall terminate and Seller shall transfer its rights in the System to Host on an “as is, where is” 

basis without representation or warranty of any kind, and free and clear of any Lien created by Seller. 

5. Insurance 

5.1 Insurance Provided by Host. During the Term, Host shall maintain (i) comprehensive 

general liability insurance with coverage of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 annual 

aggregate, (ii) employer’s liability insurance with coverage of at least $1,000,000, (iii) worker’s 

compensation insurance as required by law, and (iv) property (all-risk) insurance on the Facility and all of 

Host’s personal property in a commercially reasonable amount reasonably satisfactory to Seller.  Seller 

shall be named as an additional insured under the comprehensive general liability insurance policy.  The 

comprehensive general liability insurance shall be primary insurance as to Seller.  Each insurance policy 

required hereunder shall include a waiver of subrogation clause.  Prior to the commencement of work under 

this Agreement by Seller, Host shall furnish Seller with certificates of insurance evidencing the coverage 

required above.  Such certificates shall provide that the carrier will give Seller at least thirty (30) days’ prior 

notice of cancellation or material amendment of coverage (ten (10) days for nonpayment of premium).  Host 

shall provide Seller with new certificates of insurance evidencing the renewal of coverage prior to the 

expiration of any policies required hereunder.  Host shall also require all its contractors to carry commercial 

liability insurance in commercially reasonable amounts and other insurance required by law. 

5.2 Insurance Provided by Seller.  During the Term, Seller shall maintain (i) comprehensive 

general liability insurance with coverage of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 annual 

aggregate) (ii) worker’s compensation insurance as required by law, and (iii) property (all-risk) insurance 

on the Facility.  Host shall be named as an additional insured under the comprehensive general liability 

insurance policy.  The comprehensive general liability insurance shall be primary insurance as to Host.  In 

addition, Seller shall require all subcontractor(s) performing installation of or maintenance on the System 

to maintain (i) employer’s liability insurance with coverage of at least $1,000,000 and (ii) worker’s 

compensation insurance as required by law.  Each insurance policy required hereunder shall include a 

waiver of subrogation clause.  Prior to commencing work under this Agreement, Seller shall furnish Host 

with certificates of insurance evidencing the coverage required above.  Such certificates shall provide that 

the carrier will give Host at least thirty (30) days’ prior notice of cancellation or material amendment of 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 98 of 778



 

 

9 

 

coverage (ten (10) days for nonpayment of premium).  Seller shall provide Host with new certificates of 

insurance evidencing the renewal of coverage prior to the expiration of any policies required hereunder.   

6. Default; Remedies; Damages 

6.1 Default.  Each of the following shall be an “Event of Default” under this Agreement:  (i) 

failure of a Party to pay any amount due and payable under this Agreement which is not cured within ten 

(10) days following written notice sent by the other Party (the “Non-Defaulting Party”) of such failure to 

pay (“Payment Default”); (ii) failure of a Party to substantially perform any other material obligation 

under this Agreement which is not cured within thirty (30) days following written notice sent by the Non-

Defaulting Party demanding such cure, provided that, such thirty (30) day cure period shall be extended 

(but not beyond ninety (90) days) if and to the extent reasonably necessary to cure the Event of Default, 

provided that, (a) the defaulting Party initiates such cure with the initial thirty (30) day period and 

continues such cure to completion within ninety (90) days, and (b) there is no material adverse effect on 

the Non-Defaulting Party resulting from the failure to cure the Event of Default; (iii) if any representation 

or warranty of a Party proves at any time to have been incorrect in any material respect when made and is 

material to the transactions contemplated hereby, if the effect of such incorrectness is not cured within 

thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice sent by the Non-Defaulting Party demanding such 

cure; (iv) Host permanently loses its rights to occupy and enjoy the Site and Facility (except where Host 

has assigned this Agreement to a new owner or tenant of the Site and Facility with Seller’s  permission 

and otherwise in compliance with the requirements of Section 7.12);  (v) a Party, or its guarantor, 

becomes insolvent or is a party to a bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, liquidation, receivership, 

dissolution, winding-up or relief of debtors, or any general assignment for the benefit of creditors or other 

similar arrangement or any event occurs or proceedings are taken in any jurisdiction with respect to the 

Party which has a similar effect (or, if any such actions are initiated by a third party, such actions are not 

dismissed within ninety (90) days); or (vi) Host willfully, knowingly, or negligently prevents Seller from 

installing the System or fails to perform its obligations under this Agreement and such failure prevents the 

generation or delivery (or, as applicable, storage or discharge) of electric energy from the System.   

6.2 Remedies.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Non-Defaulting Party may 

suspend performance of its obligations under this Agreement, terminate this Agreement upon notice to the 

Defaulting Party and pursue any other remedy hereunder, at law and in equity, all of which shall be 

cumulative and not exclusive.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, upon termination of this 

Agreement by Seller following an Event of Default of Host, Host shall pay Seller on demand the 

applicable termination payment set forth in Exhibit E attached hereto as liquidated damages and not a 

penalty, the Parties acknowledging and agreeing that actual damages that would be suffered by Seller in 

the event of a Host Event of Default would be difficult to calculate and that the termination payments 

listed in Exhibit E constitute a reasonable approximation thereof. 

6.3 Obligations Following Termination.  If a Non-Defaulting Party terminates this 

Agreement pursuant to this Section 6, then following such termination, Seller shall, at the sole cost and 

expense of the defaulting Party, remove the equipment (except for mounting pads and support structures) 

constituting the System.   

7. Miscellaneous 

7.1      Notices.  All notices, requests, demands and other communications under this Agreement 

must be given in writing and must be personally delivered, sent by electronic mail or sent by nationally 

recognized overnight mail courier service, to the addresses set forth on the signature page for each Party 

and shall be deemed given when delivered, if personally delivered, when receipt is confirmed, if delivered 

by email (provided that auto-confirmation shall not suffice) or the next business day following delivery to 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 99 of 778



 

 

10 

 

the overnight mail courier service, if so sent.  Either Party may change the address to which future notices 

should be sent by written notice to the other Party given in accordance with this Section. 

 

7.2 Costs and Expenses.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, each Party will be 

responsible for all costs and expenses incurred in the performance of their activities and other duties 

under this Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of any legal proceeding or action 

between the Parties arising in connection with this Agreement, the prevailing party in such proceeding or 

action shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney’s fees and costs in addition to any other remedies 

and compensation. 

 

7.3 Disclaimer of Warranties.  SELLER MAKES NO WARRANTIES TO HOST UNDER 

THIS AGREEMENT WHETHER STATUTORY, WRITTEN, ORAL, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 

INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION WARRANTIES OF DESIGN, MERCHANTABILITY, 

FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR 

USAGE OF TRADE AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS ALL SUCH WARRANTIES. 

 

7.4 Limitation on Damages.  Except as expressly provided herein, neither Party shall be 

liable to the other Party or any other Indemnified  Party for any special, punitive, exemplary, indirect, or 

consequential damages, losses or damages for lost revenue or lost profits, whether foreseeable or not, 

arising out of, or in connection with the Agreement, and except to the extent covered by Seller’s 

insurance policies, Seller’s aggregate liability under this Agreement arising out of or in connection with 

the performance or non-performance of this Agreement shall not exceed the total payments made (or, as 

applicable, projected to be made) by Host under this Agreement.  The provisions of this Section 7.4 shall 

apply whether such liability arises in contract, tort (including negligence), strict liability or otherwise.  

 

7.5 Mutual Indemnity.  Each Party (the “Indemnifying Party”) will indemnify, defend and 

hold harmless the other Party, its employees, agents, officers and managers, members, contractors and 

affiliates (collectively, the “Indemnified Party”) from and against any and all claims, suits, hearings, 

actions, damages, liabilities, fines, penalties, costs, losses or expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ 

fees (collectively, “Losses”), incurred by such Indemnified Party to the extent arising from or out of any 

claim for or arising out of any injury or death of any third party or damage to property owned by any third 

party to the extent arising out of any intentional or negligent act or omission by such Indemnifying Party, 

its contractors, employees or agents in connection with this Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 

no Indemnifying Party shall be required to reimburse or indemnify any Indemnified Party for any Loss to 

the extent such Loss is due to the negligence or willful misconduct of any Indemnified Party and provided 

further that the forgoing indemnity shall not limit the right of Seller or its insurers to proceed against and 

collect insurance proceeds from Host’s insurers to the extent any Losses are covered by Host’s polices.   

 

7.6 Mutual Representations.  Each Party represents to the other that: (i) it is duly organized, 

validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its formation; (ii) the execution, 

delivery and performance by such Party of this Agreement have been duly authorized by all necessary 

corporate, partnership or limited liability company action, as applicable, and does not and shall not violate 

any law; and (iii) this Agreement is a valid obligation of such Party, enforceable against such Party in 

accordance with its terms (except as may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, 

moratorium and other similar laws now or hereafter in effect relating to creditors’ rights generally).  

 

7.7 Confidential Information.  If either Party provides confidential information, including 

business plans, strategies, financial information, proprietary, licensed, copyrighted and/or technical 

information regarding the financing, design, operation and maintenance of the System (“Confidential 

Information”) to the other or, if in the course of performing under the Agreement a Party learns 

Confidential Information regarding the facilities or plans of the other, the receiving party shall (i) protect 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 100 of 778



 

 

11 

 

the Confidential Information from disclosure to third parties with the same degree of care accorded its 

own confidential and proprietary information, and (ii) refrain from using such Confidential Information, 

except in the performance of the Agreement.  Notwithstanding the above, a Party may disclose or provide 

such Confidential Information to its officers, directors, members, managers, employees, agents, 

contractors, consultants, attorneys and accountants (collectively, “Representatives”), provided, in each 

case, that such disclosure to such person is reasonably necessary.  Each such recipient of Confidential 

Information shall be informed by the Party disclosing Confidential Information of its confidential nature 

and shall be directed to treat such information confidentially and shall agree to abide by provisions that 

are substantially similar to these (except where the Representative is bound by professional ethical duties 

of confidentiality).  In any event, each Party shall be liable (with respect to the other Party) for any breach 

of this provision by any entity to whom that Party improperly discloses Confidential Information.  The 

terms of the Agreement (but not its execution or existence) shall be considered Confidential Information 

for purposes of this Section.  All Confidential Information shall remain the property of the disclosing 

Party and shall be returned to the disclosing Party or destroyed after the receiving party’s need for it has 

expired or upon the request of the disclosing Party.  Notwithstanding any other provision herein, neither 

Party shall be required to hold confidential any information that: (i) becomes publicly available other than 

through the receiving party; (ii) is required to be disclosed by a governmental authority, under applicable 

law or pursuant to a validly issued subpoena or required filing, but a receiving party subject to any such 

requirement shall promptly notify the disclosing Party of such requirement; (iii) is independently 

developed by the receiving party; or (iv) becomes available to the receiving party without restriction from 

a third party under no obligation of confidentiality.  Each Party agrees that the disclosing Party would be 

irreparably injured by a breach of this Section by the receiving party or its Representatives or other person 

to whom the receiving party discloses Confidential Information of the disclosing Party and that the 

disclosing Party may be entitled to equitable relief, including injunctive relief and specific performance, 

in the event of any breach of the provisions of this Section.  

 

7.8 Relationship of the Parties.  Nothing contained in this Agreement will be construed or 

deemed to create the relationship of a joint venture, partnership or employer and employee between Host 

and Seller.  Each Party has the sole right and obligation to supervise, manage, contract, direct, procure, 

perform or cause to be performed all work to be performed and resources used by such Party under this 

Agreement, except where it is specifically stated that the other Party must give approval or consent.   

 

7.9 Status of Contract.  The Parties wish to characterize this Agreement for income tax 

purposes as a services contract under Section 7701(e) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and not a lease.  

Neither Host nor any party related thereto shall have the right or be deemed to operate the System for 

purposes of Section 7701(e)(4)(A)(i) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

 

7.10 Force Majeure.  Neither Party shall be liable to the other, or be permitted to terminate this  

Agreement, for any failure to perform an obligation of this Agreement to the extent such performance is 

prevented by a Force Majeure Event, which shall mean an event beyond the control of the Party affected 

and which, by exercise of due diligence and foresight, could not reasonably have been avoided; provided, 

that: (i) the Party affected by such Force Majeure Event, as soon as reasonably practicable after obtaining 

knowledge of the occurrence of the claimed Force Majeure Event, gives the other Party prompt oral notice, 

followed by a written notice reasonably describing the event; (ii) the suspension of or extension of time for 

performance is of no greater scope and of no longer duration than is required by the Force Majeure Event; 

and (iii) the Party affected by such Force Majeure event uses all reasonable efforts to mitigate or remedy 

its inability to perform as soon as reasonably possible.  Notwithstanding the foregoing to the contrary, no 

obligation to make any payment due under this Agreement shall be excused in whole or in part by a Force 

Majeure Event.   

 

7.11 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and accompanying exhibits, agreements, instruments,  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 101 of 778



 

 

12 

 

and schedules set forth the entire Agreement among the Parties hereto, and supersedes all prior or 

contemporaneous agreements or undertakings among the Parties pertaining to the subject matter hereof, 

and no change in, modification or addition to this Agreement will be valid unless set forth in writing signed 

by the parties to this Agreement. 

 

7.12 Assignment; Financing Parties.  This Agreement may not be assigned in whole or in part 

by either Party without the prior written consent of the other Party.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Seller 

may, without the prior written consent of Host, (i) assign, mortgage, pledge or otherwise collaterally assign 

its interests in this Agreement to any party providing financing for the System, (ii) directly or indirectly 

assign this Agreement to an affiliate of Seller, (iii) collaterally assign this Agreement to any entity through 

which Seller is obtaining financing or capital for the System, and, (iv) assign this Agreement to any person 

succeeding to all or substantially all of the assets of Seller provided such party has a net worth and 

experience owning and operating solar facilities at least as great as Seller as demonstrated to Host’s 

reasonable satisfaction (provided that Seller shall be released from liability hereunder as a result of any of 

the foregoing permitted assignments only upon assumption of Seller’s obligations hereunder by the assignee 

in writing delivered to Host).  Host’s consent to any assignment shall not be unreasonably withheld if Host 

has been provided with reasonable proof that the proposed assignee (x) has comparable experience in 

operating and maintaining systems comparable to the System and providing services comparable to those 

contemplated by this Agreement and (y) has the financial capability to maintain the System and provide the 

services contemplated by this Agreement in the manner required by this Agreement.  In addition and 

notwithstanding the foregoing, Host may assign this Agreement with Seller’s prior written consent, not to 

be unreasonably withheld, to any person or entity that assumes Host’s Lease of the Site and Facility, 

provided that the proposed assignee has an Investment Grade (as defined below) credit rating at the time of 

the assignment, provided that, Host will not be relieved of liability hereunder unless and until such 

permitted assignee has assumed all obligations of Host hereunder by written instrument delivered to Seller. 

“Investment Grade” means the assignee has a long-term issuer rating from Moody’s or S&P of at least 

Baa3 from Moody’s and/or at least BBB- from S&P.  This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the 

benefit of the successors and permitted assignees of the Parties. 

 

7.13 Invalid Provisions.  Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement will be  

interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this 

Agreement is held to be prohibited by or invalid under applicable law, such provision will be ineffective 

only to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provision or 

the remaining provisions of this Agreement. 

 

7.14 Survival.  The provisions of Sections 3.1, Section 4, Section 6, Section 7 and Host’s  

payment obligations hereunder will survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement, together with 

other provisions which by their terms survive.   

 

7.15 Governing Law; Disputes.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in  

accordance with the laws of the State of California without reference to choice of law provisions.  The 

Parties agree that any dispute that arises under or with respect to this Agreement shall in the first instance 

be the subject of informal negotiations between principals of the Parties, who shall use their respective good 

faith efforts to resolve such dispute.  In the event that the Parties cannot resolve a dispute by informal 

negotiations, the parties shall propose and agree upon a neutral and otherwise qualified mediator.  In the 

event that the parties fail to agree upon a mediator, the Parties shall request that the Los Angeles, California 

office of JAMS appoint a mediator.  The period for mediation shall commence upon the appointment of the 

mediator and shall not exceed sixty (60) days, unless such time period is modified by written agreement of 

the Parties.  The decision to continue mediation shall be in the sole discretion of each Party.  The Parties 

will each bear their own costs of the mediation.  The mediator’s fees shall be shared equally by the 

Parties.  In the event that the Parties cannot resolve a dispute by informal negotiations or mediation, sole 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 102 of 778



 

 

13 

 

venue for judicial enforcement shall be the Superior Court of California located in Ventura County, 

California.  Each Party consents to such venue and expressly waives any objections to venue it might 

otherwise be able to raise.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, injunctive relief from such court may be sought 

without resorting to alternative dispute resolution to prevent irreparable harm that would be caused by a 

breach of this Agreement. 

 

7.16 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of  

which will be deemed an original and all of which will constitute one agreement. 

 

 

[Signature Page Follows] 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 103 of 778



 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their 

duly authorized representatives as of the date first above written. 

 

SELLER: 

Collective Energy Development, LLC 

HOST: 

San Fernando Community Hospital 

d/b/a San Fernando Community Health  

Center 

 

By:  ____________________________ 

 

By:  ____________________________ 

Name: __________________________ Name: __________________________ 

Its:  ____________________________ Its:  ____________________________ 

 

Address for Notices: 

____________________________ 

____________________________ 

Attn: _______________________ 

Email: ______________________ 

 

 

Address for Notices: 

____________________________ 

____________________________ 

Attn:  ______________________ 

Email:  _____________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signature Page to Energy Services Agreement 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 104 of 778



 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

ESA INFORMATION 

 

Site Certain real, improved property more particularly described 

in a deed recorded [________], as Instrument No. 

[______], with the Office of the County Recorder of Los 

Angeles County, California (the “Site”) 

 

Facility The building located at the Site with a street address of 732 

Mott Street, San Fernando, CA  91340 (the “Facility”) 

 

Anticipated Installation 

Completion Date 

50 days following the actual installation start date. 

Initial Term Expiration Date The Initial Term shall expire on the fifteenth (15th) 

anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date, if not 

terminated earlier in accordance with the terms of the 

Agreement.  

 

Host Renewal Right NA 

 

Price of Electricity from Solar 

System 

$0.15 per kWh, escalating by 2% on each anniversary of 

the Effective Date 

 

 

 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 105 of 778



 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

THE PLAN 

 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 106 of 778



 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 

DESCRIPTION OF SYSTEM  

  

Solar System (the “Solar 

System”) Nameplate Capacity 
105.86 kW DC 

Output Criteria 120/208 volt, 3 phase, 60 Hz 

Solar System Capacity 96.365 kW (CEC-AC rated) 

Modules (268 EA) 395w by Trina Solar TSM-395DC15(II)  

Inverters (1 EA) SE17.3kW and (1 EA) SE50kW inverter 

Monitoring 

System/Equipment 
SolarEdge 

Mounting Structure Ironridge BX 5 Degree  

Other Balance of System 

Items 

TBD 

  

 

 

Module Detail: 

 

Type:  395W Trina Solar Modules 

 

Model Number(s): TSM-395DC15(II)  

  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 107 of 778



 

 

EXHIBIT D 

CONSENT AND DISCLAIMER 

 

 

Return after recording to: 

Collective Energy Development, LLC 

605 Pope Lane 

Ojai, California 93023 

 

 

CONSENT AND DISCLAIMER 

This Consent and Disclaimer (this “Agreement”) is executed as of the ___ day of _____________, 

20__  (the “Effective Date”) by and among the CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a California 

municipal corporation (“Property Owner”), SAN FERNANDO COMMUNITY HOSPITAL, a 

California nonprofit public benefit corporation d/b/a SAN FERNANDO COMMUNITY 

HEALTH CENTER (“Tenant”) and COLLECTIVE ENERGY DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a 

Delaware limited liability company (“Provider”).  Property Owner, Tenant and Provider may be 

referred to hereinafter collectively as the “Parties”. 

 

Recitals 

 

A. Property Owner owns the real, improved property including a building (the “Facility”)  

located at 732 Mott Street, San Fernando, California 91340, more particularly described 

________________ (the “Property”) and Tenant is the sole tenant of the Facility and Property 

under the terms of a Lease, dated November 19, 2018, by and between Property Owner and Tenant 

(as it may be amended and/or extended, the “Lease”). 

 

B. Tenant and Provider have entered into an Energy Services Agreement, dated  

_________  (the “ESA”) under the terms of which Provider will arrange for the installation of a 

solar energy generation system, which may include battery energy storage, and related equipment 

(the “System”) on the rooftop of the Facility and/or other locations at the Property and sell to 

Tenant, and Tenant will purchase from Provider, the electricity and services generated by the 

System. 

 

C. The execution and recording of this Agreement is a requirement of the ESA. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, for Ten and 00/100 Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable 

consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby 

ratify and confirm the above recitals and covenant and agree as follows: 

 

1. CONSENT AND DISCLAIMER 

Property Owner hereby consents to the installation and operation of the System at the Facility and 

Property by or on behalf of Provider in accordance with the ESA.  Property Owner and Tenant 

hereby acknowledge and agree that the System and all components thereof are and shall remain at 

all times the personal property of Provider and shall not attach to or be deemed a part of, or a 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 108 of 778



 

 

fixture of, the Facility or the Property notwithstanding the manner in which the System or 

components thereof are or may become affixed to the Facility or Property.  Property Owner and 

Tenant hereby further acknowledge and agree that Provider is and shall remain at all times the 

legal and beneficial owner of the System and Property Owner and Tenant hereby disclaim and 

waive any and all interest or liens in the System. 

 

2. PROPERTY OWNER COVENANTS 

In the event that the Lease expires or is terminated for any reason, Property Owner shall grant 

Provider any access to the Facility and Property as Provider deems necessary or desirable in order 

for Provider to exercise its rights under the ESA, including without limitation the right to remove 

the System from the Facility and Property, and Property Owner shall not take any action that will 

impair or impede the exercise by Provider of any right or remedy pertaining to the System 

hereunder, under the ESA or otherwise.   

 

3. MISCELLANEOUS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon Property Owner and Tenant and their respective successors 

and assigns and shall benefit Provider, its successors and assigns, and any purchasers of the System 

or of Provider.  This Agreement shall remain in effect for the duration of the ESA.  The provisions 

of this Agreement shall be self-operative; however, Property Owner and Tenant agree to execute, 

acknowledge and deliver such further instruments as may be necessary to effectuate the purposes 

of this Agreement.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 

laws of the State of California, without reference to choice of law provisions, and may be executed 

in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which, together, shall 

constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

 

[Signature Page to Follow]  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 109 of 778



 

 

 

EXECUTED as a sealed instrument as of the Effective Date set forth above.  

 

PROPERTY OWNER:    TENANT: 

 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a California  SAN FERNANDO COMMUNITY 

HOSPITAL,  

municipal corporation a California nonprofit public benefit  

corporation d/b/a SAN FERNANDO  

COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER 

 

 

By: ______________________________  By:

 ______________________________ 

Name:       Name: 

Title:       Title:  

 

 

 

PROVIDER: 

 

COLLECTIVE ENERGY DEVELOPMENT, LLC,  

  a Delaware limited liability company 

 

 

By: _______________________________ 

 Name: 

 Title: 

 

[ADD CALIFORNIA FORM NOTARIES FOR ALL PARTIES] 
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 110 of 778



 

 

EXHIBIT E 

TABLE OF TERMINATION PAYMENTS 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 111 of 778



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 112 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 113 of 778



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 114 of 778



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

RECREATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT       208 PARK AVENUE, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340       (818) 898-1290       WWW.SFCITY.ORG 
 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Julian J. Venegas, Director of Recreation and Community Services 
  Maria Calleros, Executive Assistant 
 
Date:  February 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration to Authorize Submittal of Grant Applications to the National 

Endowment for the Arts and the California Arts Council to Support the Mariachi 
Master Apprentice Program 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Authorize the preparation and submittal of a grant application to the National Endowment 

for the Arts (NEA) for $57,000 to support the Mariachi Master Apprentice Program (MMAP); 
 
b. Authorize the preparation and submittal of a grant application to the California Arts Council 

(CAC) for $40,000 (two year grant) to support the Mariachi Master Apprentice Program 
(MMAP); 

 
c. Authorize the City Manager to accept the grants, if awarded; 

 
d. Authorize the City Manager to execute all grant-related documents required for receiving 

such grant funds pursuant to the terms and conditions of the grant; and 
 
e. Upon full execution of all grant-related documents, authorize the City Manager to amend the 

appropriate Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-2023, 2023-2024, and 2024-2025 revenue and expenditure 
budgets to appropriate the grant funds. 

 
  
BACKGROUND: 

1. Since 2001, the City has received grant funds annually from both the NEA and the CAC to 
support the City of San Fernando MMAP. Recipient of serval awards at both the state and 
national level, MMAP continues to reflect a positive image on the City.  
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 115 of 778



Consideration to Authorize Submittal of Grant Applications to the National Endowment for the Arts and 
the California Arts Council to Support the Mariachi Master Apprentice Program  
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
2. On December 12, 2022, staff received notice from NEA that the FY 2024-2025 grant 

application period was open. 
 

3. On December 19, 2022, staff received notice from the CAC that the FY 2022-2025 grant 
application (two-year grant) period was open. 

ANALYSIS: 

Mariachi Master Apprentice Program (MMAP). 
MMAP connects Grammy award-winning mariachi masters with young music students to 
preserve the mariachi music genre. Mariachi Los Camperos provides instruction on traditional 
mariachi instruments: violins, guitars, guitarrones, vihuelas, trumpets, and folk harp. The 
students and instructors experience exemplary artworks at international mariachi conferences 
and workshops throughout California and the southwest. This experience allows students to 
observe, study, and perform with the most prestigious mariachi ensembles and represent the 
City as cultural arts ambassadors.   
 
The curriculum ingrains an empowering sense of self-confidence, pride, and identity while 
providing an outlet for cultural expression in celebration of Mexican heritage. MMAP specific 
arts/music education outcomes include: 1) development, reinforcement, and application of 
student instrumental technique; 2) development, strengthening, and application of student 
musicianship skills; 3) enhancement of student solo and chorus singing skills; 4) performance of 
traditional and popular mariachi music before the public and with other professional ensembles; 
and 5) development and fostering of student professionalism and performance etiquette. These 
outcomes are in accordance with the California Department of Education Music Standards.  
 
National Endowment for the Arts (NEA). 
Established by Congress in 1965, the NEA is the independent federal agency providing funding 
support that gives Americans the opportunity to participate in the arts, exercise their 
imaginations, and develop their creative capacities. Through partnerships with state arts 
agencies, local leaders, other federal agencies, and the philanthropic sector, the NEA supports 
arts learning, affirms and celebrates America’s rich and diverse cultural heritage, and extends its 
work to promote equal access to the arts in every community across America.  
 
The NEA “Grants for Arts Projects” is the principal grants program for organizations based in the 
United States. The arts are a powerful and important part of what unites us and celebrate our 
differences while connecting us through shared experiences. Through project-based funding, the 
program supports public engagement with, and access to, various forms of art across the nation, 
the creation of art, learning the arts at all stages of life, and the integration of the arts into the 
fabric of community life.  
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 116 of 778



Consideration to Authorize Submittal of Grant Applications to the National Endowment for the Arts and 
the California Arts Council to Support the Mariachi Master Apprentice Program  
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
The NEA “Grants for Arts Projects” generally range from $10,000 to $100,000 and support the 
creation of art that meets the highest standards of excellence, public engagement with diverse 
and excellent art, lifelong learning in the arts, and the strengthening of communities through the 
arts.  The San Fernando MMAP project generally receives an average of $45,000 per year in NEA 
funding and has received over $1 million since the program's inception. Grant funds pay for artist 
instructor fees, travel to conferences, and project support.  The deadline to submit for the NEA 
grant funding cycle for FY 2024-2025 is February 21, 2023.   
 
California Arts Council (CAC).  
The CAC “Creative Youth Development” program (formerly Youth Arts Action) is rooted in the 
CAC’s belief that arts learning is an essential tool for healthy human development and that it 
should be available to all young people throughout California. The CAC envisions that all of 
California’s young people are provided with meaningful, culturally responsive arts-learning 
experiences so that they can reach their full potential. 
 
The Creative Youth Development Grant program awards up to $40,000 for a two-year grant cycle 
($20,000 per year). The grant activity period will be from April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2025. Usually, 
the CAC grant program requires a dollar-for-dollar match with non-state funds. Historically, the 
City has matched the CAC awards with General Funds and Federal NEA funds. However, the 
Creative Youth Development Grant does not have a match requirement, but staff recommends 
that the City continue supporting the MMAP with the $12,000 annual allocation to the program.  
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

Sources of MMAP Funding. 
The proposed Budget for MMAP in Fiscal Years 2022-2023 and 2023-2024 is approximately 
$129,950 per year. The NEA grant provides funding to support 45% of all program costs, while 
the CAC grant supports 15% of the cost.   The Source of MMAP funding table lists all funding 
sources for the program. 
 
 

 
The grant disbursement timeline for the California Arts Council will be for the FY 2022-2023 and 
FY 2023-2024 (Grant Activity Period April 1, 2023 – March 31, 2025). The City funding support for 

Source of MMAP Funding 
NEA Grant $57,000 44% 
CAC- State $20,000 15% 
Donations/Honorariums $6,000 5% 
City of San Fernando $12,000 9% 
In Kind $34,950 27% 
Total Project Budget $129,950 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 117 of 778



Consideration to Authorize Submittal of Grant Applications to the National Endowment for the Arts and 
the California Arts Council to Support the Mariachi Master Apprentice Program  
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
the Mariachi Master Apprentice Program will continue to be $12,000 in FY 2022-2023. The grant 
disbursement timeline for the National Endowment for the Arts grant will be for FY 2024-2025. 
 

CONCLUSION: 

It is recommended that the City Council authorize staff to prepare and submit a grant application 
to the National Endowment for the Arts and to the California Arts Council to support the Mariachi 
Master Apprentice Program, and if awarded, authorize the City Manager to accept the grant 
funds, execute all related grant documents, and amend FY 2022-2023, 2023-2024 and FY 2024-
2025 revenue and expenditure budgets to appropriate the grant funds. 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 118 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 119 of 778



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 120 of 778



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1222                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers  
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Matt Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 
  Kenneth Jones, Public Works Management Analyst 
       
Date:  February 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Contract with Ron’s 

Maintenance Incorporated for Catch Basin Cleanout Services  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 

a. Approve a Professional Services Contract (Attachment “A” – Contract No. 2136) with Ron’s 
Maintenance Incorporated for an annual cost of $34,384 for the cleaning of the City’s catch 
basins for a five (5) year term, with a City option to renew for two (2) additional years;  

 
b. Approve a ten percent (10%) contingency of $3,438 to cover additional cleanings requested 

by the City; and  
 

c. Authorize the City Manager to execute the contract and any related documents. 
 
  
BACKGROUND: 

1. On April 17, 2017, G2 Construction was awarded a five-year contract (three-year term with 
two one-year options to renew) for catch basin cleaning; contract expired July 1, 2022. 

 
2. On April 8, 2022, the Los Angeles County Department of Public Works (LACDPW) sent out a 

Notice of Invitation for Bids for Catch Basins Cleanout Services (Attachment “B”).  
 

3. On October 4, 2022, the County of Los Angeles Board of Supervisors awarded seven service 
contracts for on-call catch basins cleanout services (Attachment “C”) with one of the 
contracts awarded to Ron’s Maintenance Incorporated (RMI).  

 
4. On October 17, 2022, LA County Contract Number 003632 (Exhibit “A” to Attachment “A”) 

between Los Angeles County Flood Control District (LACFCD) and RMI for On-Call Catch Basin 
Cleanout Services was fully executed. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 121 of 778



Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Contract with Ron’s Maintenance Incorporated for 
Catch Basin Cleanout Services 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
As part of the mandate from the State Water Resource Control Board (SWRCB), all public agencies 
are subject to the requirements of the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permit.  
Per the MS4 Permit, the City is subject to the Los Angeles River Trash Total Maximum Daily Load 
(TMDL) and must comply with the TMDL provisions of zero trash discharged to the LA River and 
its tributaries. Additionally, per the Public Agency Activities Program of the 2021 National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit, each Permittee is required to implement 
Best Management Practices (BMPs) to control the discharge of pollutants to the MS4. These 
include maintenance such as litter and debris removal of City-owned facilities and catch basins.  
   
In an effort to comply with the TMDL provisions, the City was required to install trash excluders 
on all catch basins located within the City and perform ongoing maintenance and inspection of 
the catch basins to ensure proper operation of the storm drain system. 
 
A catch basin (a.k.a., storm drain inlet) is an inlet to the storm drain system that typically includes 
a grate or curb inlet where storm water enters the catch basin and a sump to capture sediment, 
debris and associated pollutants.  Catch basins act as pretreatment for other treatment practices 
by capturing large sediments.  The performance of catch basins at removing sediment and other 
pollutants depends on the design of the catch basin (e.g., the size of the sump), and routine 
maintenance to retain the storage available in the sump to capture sediment. 
 
There are 307 catch basins within the City; 240 City owned and 67 owned by LACFCD.  In January 
2017, in order to gain access to the 67 LACFCD owned catch basins for the installation of the trash 
excluders, the City entered into an agreement with LACFCD in which the City agreed to perform 
ongoing maintenance and inspections on the 67 catch basins.  LACFCD agreed to pay the City 
$15.25, adjusted annually per the Consumer Price Index, per catch basin for the ongoing 
maintenance and inspection services provided by the City. 
 
The California Public Contract Code and the City of San Fernando’s Purchasing Policy authorizes 
utilizing “Piggybacking,” which is the process of approving a contract based upon the terms of a 
contract competitively bid by another public agency.  Through the piggyback process, staff is 
proposing the City enter into a contact with RMI based upon the unit prices (Exhibit “B” to 
Attachment “A”) set in Contract Number 003632 between LACFCD and RMI for on-call catch basin 
cleanout services, approved on October 27, 2022.  
 
LACDPW followed a formal bid solicitation process advertising a Notice of Invitation for Bids for 
Catch Basins Cleanout Services on April 8, 2022.  On October 4, 2022, the County of Los Angeles 
Board of Supervisors awarded seven service contracts for on-call catch basin cleanout services 
with one of the contracts awarded to RMI.  Through a letter provided to the City (Exhibit “C” to 
Attachment “A”), RMI agreed to allow the City of San Fernando to “piggyback” off its contract 
with LACDPW offering the same rates to San Fernando. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 122 of 778



Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Contract with Ron’s Maintenance Incorporated for 
Catch Basin Cleanout Services 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
RMI has over 25 years of industry experience with a highly trained staff that has over 65 
combined years of experience successfully conducting all aspects of catch basin maintenance and 
inspections.  RMI has provided catch basin services to numerous municipalities throughout all of 
Southern California, currently 28 cities.  In addition, RMI is very familiar with the City’s catch 
basins.  They conducted maintenance and inspections services for five years on all 307 catch 
basins within the City as subcontractor under G2’s on-call catch basin cleaning contract, which 
expired June 30, 2022.   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
Per the NPDES permit, cities are required to clean and inspect catch basins four times per year, 
one time during the dry season and three times during the wet season.  The City’s previous catch 
basin cleaning and inspection contract cost $59,466.00 per year, which breaks down to 
$14,866.50 per cleaning or $48.42 per catch basin.  RMI’s services will cost $34,384 per year; 
which is $8,596 per cleaning or $28.00 per catch basin. 
 
Funds to cover the cost of catch basin cleaning and inspections services has been appropriated 
in General Fund (001-311-0000-4260) and Measure W Fund (023-311-0000-4260) within the 
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Approved Budget 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff recommends that City Council approve Contract No. 2136 with Ron’s Maintenance 
Incorporated for cleaning of the City’s catch basins and authorize the City Manager to execute 
the contract. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Contract No. 2136, including: 

Exhibit A: LACFCD Contract with RMI 
Exhibit B: Approved Unit Prices 
Exhibit C: RMI “Piggyback” Approval Letter 

B. LACDPW Notice Inviting Bids (provided digitally through web link; hardcopy available at the 
Public Works counter) 

C. County of Los Angeles Board of Supervisors Board Letter (10/4/22) 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 123 of 778

https://dpw.lacounty.gov/contracts/asd_rfp/DownloadDocument.aspx?DOCUMENT_ID=111a66cf-cb5c-4b98-9dd8-dd6bca36558a


ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2136 

CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(Service Provided:   Catch Basin Cleanout Services) 

(Awarded Pursuant to Section 2-802(2) of the San Fernando Municipal Code) 
(Contractor:   Ron’s Maintenance Inc.) 

 
 

THIS CONTRACT AGREEMENT is entered into this 6th day of February 2023 (“Effective Date”) by 
and between the CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a municipal corporation (“CITY”) and RON’S 
MAINTENANCE INC. (“CONTRACTOR”).  For the purposes of this Agreement CITY and 
CONTRACTOR may be referred to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.”  The capitalized 
term “Party” may refer to CITY or interchangeably. 
 

RECITALS 
  
A. CITY is a municipal corporation and general law city duly organized and validly existing under 

the laws of the State of California with the power to carry on its business as it is now being 
conducted under the statutes of the State of California.  
 

B. CITY requires the performance of catch basin cleanout services on an on-call basis for the 
CITY’s 307 catch basins. 

 
C.  Per subsection (2) of Section 2-802 (Cooperative, piggyback, and multiple awarded bid 

purchasing with other agencies) of the San Fernando Municipal Code (hereinafter, “Section 
2-802”), the CITY may approve contract services agreements without issuing a competitive 
or informally competitive solicitation when joining into an existing written purchase contract 
obtained through a competitive process prepared by and awarded by another local, state or 
federal government agency. 
 

D. On April 8, 2022, the County of Los Angeles Department of Public Works (“County”) issued 
a Notice of Invitation for Bids for on-call catch basin cleanout services.  

 
E. On October 4, 2022, the County awarded seven service contracts for on-call catch basins 

cleanout services with one of the contracts awarded to Ron’s Maintenance Incorporated, to 
wit, CONTRACTOR.  
 

F. On October 17, 2022, the County and CONTRACTOR executed Contract Number 003632 for 
the performance of on-call catch basin cleanout services for various locations throughout 
Los Angeles County (BRC0000287) West Area B - Wester (hereinafter, the “Master 
Agreement”)(A true and correct copy of the Master Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit 
“A”). 
 

G. The second paragraph of Paragraph B (Work Overview) of Exhibit A (Scope of Work) of the 
Master Agrement provides in relevant part: “Additional catch basins located within 
Participating Cities or unicorporated County of Los Angles (County) areas may be added to 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 124 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
 

this Contract at the sole discretion of Public Works.  The Contractor’s services under all 
terms of this Contract will be offered to cities that have (1) been provided with County 
permits to install inserts in Public Works catch basins; (2) requested city owned catch 
basins be cleaned by Public Works’ Contractor.  Public Works may add or remove catch 
basins to this Contract based on requests submitted by Participating Cities, or the needs of 
Public Works at any time during the duration of the Contract: ….” 
 

H. The County has given its written approval to allow CITY to piggyback upon the Master 
Agreement as referenced under Recital G, above.  

 
I. CONTRACTOR has issued correspondence to CITY dated January 6, 2023 (the “Piggyback 

Authorization”) auhtorizing CITY to piggyback off its Master Agreement with the County and 
further providing that: 
 
• CONTRACTOR will perform cleaning and inspection services on the 307 catch basins 

within the CITY for the price of $28.00/per catch basin as shown in the Schedule of Prices 
(Form PW-2) the Master Agreement (A true and correct copy of Form PW-2 is attached 
and incorporated hereto as Exhibit “B”); 

 
• Catch basins will be cleaned and inspected four (4) time per year; once during the dry 

season and three (3) times during the wet season. 
 

• Pricing set forth in the Master Agremeent and extended to CITY will be honored for the 
duration of the Master Agreement, inclusive of any contract extensions.  

 
A true and correct copy of the Piggyback Authorization is attached and incorporated hereto 
as Exhibit “C”. 

 
J.  As authorized under Section 2-802 of the San Fernando Municipal Code, the CITY wishes to 

avail itself of the opportunity to receive catch basin cleanout services at pricing that is equal 
or better than that offered to the County under the terms and conditions of the Master 
Agreement. 

 
K.  This Agreement was approved by the San Fernando City Council at its Regular Meeting of 

February 6, 2023 as Agenda Item No. XXXX.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein 
contained, CITY and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:  
  
1. COUNTY AUTHORIZATION; SCOPE OF WORK; AND COMPENSATION  
 
 A.   The County has consented to CITY’s participation in the Master Agreement as 
required under the second paragraph of Paragraph B (Work Overview) of Exhibit A (Scope of 
Work) of the Master Agrement provides in relevant part: “Additional catch basins located within 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 125 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
 

Participating Cities or unicorporated County of Los Angles (County) areas may be added to this 
Contract at the sole discretion of Public Works.  The Contractor’s services under all terms of this 
Contract will be offered to cities that have (1) been provided with County permits to install 
inserts in Public Works catch basins; (2) requested city owned catch basins be cleaned by Public 
Works’ Contractor.  Public Works may add or remove catch basins to this Contract based on 
requests submitted by Participating Cities, or the needs of Public Works at any time during the 
duration of the Contract: ….”   County’s written consent is attached and incorporated hereto as 
Exhibit “D”. 
 

B. Except as otherwise provided under this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall perform 
for CITY on an as-needed, on-call basis, those various services and tasks performed by 
CONTRACTOR under Master Agreement subject to the same terms and conditions set forth in 
the Master Agreement.   
 

C.  It is the intent of the parties that CITY be provided all of the same rights and 
privileges provided to the County under the Master Agreement as if CITY had been an original co-
signatory to the Master Agreement with County. Except as otherwise provided under this 
Agreement: (i) all rights and authorizations granted to the County under the Master Agreement 
shall be extended equally to CITY; (ii) all duties obligations and resposnibilities owed by 
CONTRACTOR to the County under the Master Agreement shall be similarly owed to CITY; (iii) all 
requirements, restrictions and prohibitions imposed upon CONTRACTOR under the Master 
Agreement shall apply equally under this Agreement to CITY; (iv) all acknowledgments, 
warranties and representations made by CONTRACTOR to County under the Master Agreement 
are similarly made by CONTRACTOR to CITY; (v) all reporting and record keeing duties and 
responsibilities owed by CONTRACTOR to County under the Master Agreement shall be similarly 
owed to CITY under this Agreement; (vi) any and all indemnification, defense and hold harmless 
obligations owed to County and other designated indeminitees under the Master Agreement 
shall extend equally to the CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers and 
employees; (vii) all insurance requirements, including but not limited to policy types, coverage 
limits and other coverage specifications set forth in the Master Agreement, shall apply equally 
under this Agreement, including but not limited to, naming CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed 
officials, officers and employees as additionall insured in the same manner County and County’s 
other designated indemnitiees may be named as additional insured under the Master Ageement; 
and (viii) all contract enforcement rights and remedies available to County under the Master 
Agreement shall be equally available by CITY under this Agreement, including but not limited to 
all rights to terminate or suspend CONTRACTOR’s performance for convenience or cause. 

 
D. Paragraphs A through C of this Section 1 of this Agreement notwithstanding, the 

following provisions of the Master Agreement shall have no application to this Agreement and 
shall be of no force or effect: 

 
Subpharagph 2 of pagraph I of Section 2 of the Master Agreement; 
Paragraphs J, K, and L of Section 2 of the Master Agreement; 
Paragraph F of Section 3 of the Master Agreement; 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 126 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
 

Section 7 of the Master Agreement; 
Section 9 of the Master Agreement; 
Section 10 of the Master Agreement; and 
Section 12 of the Master Agreement. 

 
E. In consideration for CONTRACTOR’s performance of the services and tasks 

contemplated under the Master Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall be compensated in accordance 
with the schedule of rates and charges in Form PW-2 which is attached and incorporated hereto 
as Exhibit “B”.   Under no circumstances may CONTRACTOR’s rates and charges exceed those set 
forth under Form PW-2.  
 
2.  STANDARD OF CARE.   
  
 In the performance of all services and tasks contemplated under this Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR shall perform such services and tasks in a skillful and competent matter, consistent 
with the standards applicable to other like service providers providing the same or similar 
services and tasks in the State of California.  CONTRACTOR warrants, represents and maintains 
that all employees, subcontractors and other personnel of CONTRACTOR performing on its behalf 
in the performance of this Agreement have sufficient skill, experience and expterise to 
performance the services and tasks assigned to them.  CONTRACTOR further represents that it, 
its employees,  subcontractors and other personnel performing on CONTRACTOR’s behalf in the 
performance of this Agremenet have all licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of 
whatever nature that are legally required to perform the services and tasks contemplated under 
this Agreement and that licenses and approvals shall be maintained throught the term of the 
Master Agreement.  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this 
Section and any provision of the Master Agreement, the provision establishing the higher 
standard of care and most expansive level of responsibility on the part of CONTRACTOR shall 
govern and control.  
 
3. REPRESENTATIVES 
  

A. City Representative.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the contract 
administrator and City’s representative shall be the Public Works Director and the City Manager 
(hereinafter the “City Representatives”).  The foregoing notwithstanding, the Public Works 
Director shall be the primary point of contact for purposes of the day-to-day administration of 
this Agreement.  It shall be CONTRACTOR’s responsibility to assure that the City Representatives 
are kept informed of the progress of the performance of the services, and shall refer any 
decisions which must be made by CITY to the City Representatives.  Unless otherwise specified 
herein, any approval of CITY required hereunder shall mean the approval of the City 
Representatives or, if applicable, the San Fernando City Council. 

  
B. Contractor Representative.  For the purposes of this Agreement, 

__________________ is hereby designated as the principal and representative of authorized to 
act on its behalf with respect to the services specified herein and make all decisions in connection 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 127 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
 

therewith (the “Contractor Representative”).  Any noticing given or otherwise owed to 
CONTRACTOR under this Agreement, inclusive of the Master Agreement, shall be deemed given 
when given to the Contractor Repreentive.  CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the City 
Representatives in writing in the event the persons designated to be the Contractor 
Representtive is changed by CONTRCTOR. 

  
4. PROHIBITED INTERESTS 
  
 CONTRACTOR warrants, represents and maintains that it has not employed nor retained 
any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Consultant, to solicit 
or secure this Agreement.  Further, warrants and represents that it has not paid nor has it agreed 
to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for CONTRACTOR, 
any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or 
resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, 
CITY shall have the absolute and unfettered right to rescind this Agreement without liability or 
penalty.  For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the 
term of his or her service with CITY, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain 
any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 
  
5. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
  
 CONTRACTOR hereby warrants for itself, its employees, and subcontractors that those 
persons presently have no interest and shall not obtain any interest, direct or indirect, which 
would conflict in any manner with the performance of the services contemplated by this 
Agreement.  No person having such conflicting interest shall be employed by or associated with 
in connection with this project. CONTRACTOR hereby warrants for itself, its employees, and 
subcontractors that no such person shall engage in any conduct which would constitute a conflict 
of interest under any CITY ordinance, state law or federal statute.   
   
6.  RECORDS AND INSPECTIONS 
  
 CONTRACTOR shall maintain full and accurate records with respect to all matters covered 
under this Agreement for a period of three (3) years.  CITY shall have access, without charge, 
upon reasonable notice, during normal business hours to such records, and the right to examine 
and audit the same and to make transcripts therefrom, and to inspect all program data, 
documents, proceedings, and activities. This right inspection shall not extend to the makeup of 
lump sum prices, day rates, or profit margins.  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency 
between the provisions of this Section and the provisions of the Master Agreement, the provision 
offer the CITY the broadest rights shall control over provisions affored lesser rights and provisions 
affording a more heightened duty on the part of CONTRACTOR shall govern and control of 
provisions affored a lesser duty.  
   
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 128 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
 

7. NOTICES 
  
 Any notices, bills, invoices, or reports required by this Agreement shall be deemed 
received on:  (a) the day of delivery if delivered by hand or overnight courier service during 
CONTRACTOR’s and CITY’s regular business hours; or (b) on the third business day following 
deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, to the addresses heretofore below, or to such 
other addresses as the parties may, from time to time, designate in writing.   

  
CITY: 
City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
Attn:  Public Works Director 
Phone: (818) 898-1202 
 
  

  CONTRACTOR: 
Ron’s Maintenance  
11542 Horley Avenue 
Downey, CA 90241 
Phone: (213) 359-3827 
E-mail: ronsmaintenance@aol.com 

 
 8. NON-DISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
  

 In addition to any other duties relating to non-discrimination and equal employment as 
may be set forth under the Master Agreement, in the performance of this Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, national origin, ancestry, 
age, physical or mental handicap, medical condition, or sexual orientation or other basis 
prohibited by law.  CONTRACTOR will take affirmative action to ensure that subcontractors and 
job applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard 
to their race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, national origin, ancestry, age, physical or 
mental handicap, medical condition, or sexual orientation. 
  
9. PROHIBITION AGAINST ASSIGNMENT 
  
 Notwithstanding anything in the Master Agreement to the contrary, CONTRACTOR shall 
not delegate, transfer, subcontract or assign its duties or rights hereunder, either in whole or in 
part, without CITY’s prior written consent in CITY’s discretion.  CITY shall not be obligated or liable 
under this Agreement to any other party other than CONTRACTOR.   
  
10. ATTORNEY’S FEES 
  
 Nothwithstanding anything in the Master Agreement to the contrary, in the event either 
Party commences any legal action or proceeding to enforce or interpret the provisionps of this 
Agreement or seek damages in connection a parties performance under this Agrement, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs of suit, including reasonable attorneys’ fees. 
  
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 129 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
 

11. GOVERNING LAWS, JURISDICTION AND VENUE 
  
 Governing laws, jurisdiction and venue applicable to this Agreement shall be the same as 
set forth under pagraph U of Section of the Master Agreement.  
  
12. SEVERABILITY 
  
 Notwithstanding anything in the Master Agreement to the contrary, wherever possible, 
each provision of this Agreement, inclusive of the Master Agreement and all exhibits to the same,  
shall be interpreted in such a manner as to be valid under applicable law.  If any provision of this 
Agreement, inclusive of the Master Agreement and all exhibits to the same, are determined by a 
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 
shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect.   
  
13. AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION 
  

A. In addition to any requirements or obligations set forth under paragraph A of 
Secton 2 of the Master Agrement, no amendment, modification or supplement of this Agreement 
shall be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties, subject to CITY’s 
prior approval.  The requirement for written amendments, modifications or supplements cannot 
be waived and any attempted waiver shall be void and invalid.   
 
 B. CONTRACTOR shall promptly notify CITY of any amendment or modification to the 
Master Agreement requested by County, but no event later than thirty (30) calendars prior to 
the date of any such amendment or modification instrument is to be approved by the County.  If 
the County seeks amendment or modification of any provision of the Master Agreement, CITY 
shall have thirty (30) days from the date notice of the amendment or modification is provided to 
CITY by CONTRACTOR to reject, in its sole discretion, the application of any such amendments or 
modifications to CITY under this Agreement, inclusive of the provisions of the Master Agreement 
and all exhibits and in such event the parties agree that such amendments shall not apply to CITY. 
CITY’s rejection shall be made in writing signed by one or more of the City Representatives.  The 
failure of CITY to timely issue written notice of its rejection of such amendments or modifications 
shall be construed as CITY’s consent to such amendments or modifications being applied to CITY. 
No amendment or modification of the Master Agrement requested by County shall be of any 
force or effect as to CITY where CITY has not been provided with timely notice of such 
amendment or modification.   The failure of CITY to issue its written rejection of any  
 
14. EXECUTION 
  
 This Agreement shall be executed in two (2) original counterparts each of which shall be 
of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or typewritten amendment, modification or 
supplement to any one counterparts shall be valid or binding unless made to all three 
counterparts in conformity with Section 13, above.  One fully executed original counterpart shall 
be delivered to CONTRACTOR and the other shall remain with the CITY for archiving and day-to-

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 130 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
 

day reference by the department responsible for administering the Agreement on the CITY’s 
behalf.  
 
15. AUTHORIZATION   
  

A. Both parties represent and warrant that the person executing this Agreement on 
behalf of each party is an authorized agent who has actual authority to bind each party to each 
and every term, condition, and obligation of this Agreement and that all requirements of each 
party have been fulfilled to provide such actual authority. 
 
 B. CONTRACTOR and its signatory warrant, represent and agree that the execution 
of this Agreement by CONTRACTOR shall not constitute a breach of the Master Agreement on 
the party of CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR further warrants and represents that it has obtained 
all required approvals from County to execute this Agreement and to provide the services and 
tasks contemplated under this Agreement on the terms set forth under the Master Agreement.  
 
16. ENRTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
 All documents referenced as exhibits in this Agreement are hereby incorporated in this 
Agreement, including the Master Agreement and all exhibits attached thereto.  Except as 
expressly provided in this Agreement or its exhibits, in the event of any conflict or inconsistency 
between the provisions of this Agreement and provisions of any exhibit or other document 
incorporated by reference, the provisions of this Agreement shall prevail and control.  This 
instrument contains the entire Agreement between CITY and CONTRACTOR with respect to the 
subject matter herein.  No other prior oral or written agreements are binding on the parties.  Any 
modification of this Agreement will be effective only if it is in writing and executed by CITY and 
CONTRACTOR. 
 
17. SURVIVAL OF PROVISIONS AND OBLIGATIONS  
 
 Any provision of this Agreement, inclusive of the Master Agreement and its exhibits, 
which by its nature must be exercised after termination or expiration of this Agreement, will 
survive termination or expiration and remain effective. Any obligation that accrued prior to the 
termination or expiration of this Agreement will survive the termination or expiration of this 
Agreement. 
 
  

(SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE) 
  
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 131 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written 
above. 
  
 CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
  
  

  RON’S MAINTENANCE INC.   

  
________________________________ 
Nick Kimball, City Manager 
  
Date:__________________________ 

  
  
  

  
By:______________________________ 
  
Name:____________________________ 
  
Date:____________________________ 
  

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
  
  
________________________________ 
Richard Padilla, Assistant City Attorney 

    

  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 132 of 778



Contractor Execute 
003632 

Agreement 

BY AND BETWEEN 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY 
FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT 

AND 

RON'S MAINTENANCE, INC. 

FOR 

ON-CALL CATCH BASINS CLEANOUT SERVICES FOR VARIOUS 
LOCATIONS THROUGHOUT LOS ANGELES COUNTY (BRC0000287) 

WEST AREA B - WESTERN

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 133 of 778



 1

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

AGREEMENT FOR  

ON-CALL CATCH BASINS CLEANOUT SERVICES FOR VARIOUS LOCATIONS THROUGHOUT 
LOS ANGELES COUNTY (BRC0000287) 

WEST AREA B - WESTERN 
 

 PAGE 
AGREEMENT ………….…………………………………………………………………………………… 
EXHIBIT A Scope of Work ...…………………………………………………………………………... 

1-4 
A.1-24 

EXHIBIT A.1  Schedule of Prices ………………………………………………………….…............... 
EXHIBIT B Service Contract General Requirements 

1-2 
 

Section 1 Interpretation of Contract  
A. Ambiguities or Discrepancies …………………………………….….….... B.1 
B. Definitions …………………………………………………………………... B.1 
C. Headings ..……………………………………………………………….….. B.3 

Section 2 Standard Terms and Conditions Pertaining to Contract Administration  
A. Amendments...…………………………………………………………….... B.4 
B. Assignment and Delegation ..……………………………………..…….... B.4 
C. Authorization Warranty ..…………………………………………………… B.5 
D. Budget Reduction ..………………………………………………….….….. B.5 
E. Complaints ………………………………………………………………..… B.6 
F. Compliance with Applicable Laws ..…………………………………….... B.6 
G. Compliance with Civil Rights Laws ……………………………………..... B.7 
H. Confidentiality..……………………………………………………………… B.7 
I. Conflict of Interest …………………………………………………….….... B.8 
J. Consideration of Hiring County Employees Targeted for Layoffs or 
 are on a County Re-employment List ..……………………..…….......... B.8 
K. Consideration of Hiring GAIN and GROW Participants………………... B.9 
L. Contractor's Acknowledgment of County's Commitment to Child 
 Support Enforcement ..…………………………………………….….…... B.9 
M. Contractor's Charitable Activities Compliance ………………………..… B.9 
N. Contractor's Warranty of Adherence to County's Child Support 
 Compliance Program ..………………………………………….………..... B.9 
O. County's Quality Assurance Plan………………………………………….. B.10 
P. Damage to County Facilities, Buildings, or Grounds ………………..…. B.10 
Q. Employment Eligibility Verification ……………………………….…........ B.10 
R. Counterparts and Electronic Signatures and Representations………… B.11 
S. Fair Labor Standards ………………………………………………………. B.11 
T. Force Majeure……………………………….………………………………. B.11 
U. Governing Laws, Jurisdiction, and Venue…….….……………………… B.12 
V. Most Favored Public Entity……….………….…………………………..... B.12 
W. Nondiscrimination and Affirmative Action…………….…………………... B.12 
X. Nonexclusivity………………………………………………………….….... B.14 
Y. No Payment for Services Provided Following   

Expiration/Suspension/Termination of Contract………………………… B.14 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 134 of 778



 2

Z. Notice of Delays…………………………………………………………..... B.14 
AA. Notice of Disputes………………………………………………...………… B.14 
BB. Notice to Employees Regarding the Federal Earned Income Credit…. B.14 
CC. Notices………………………...…………………………………………...... B.14 
DD. Publicity………………………………………………..………………….…. B.15 
EE. Public Records Act……………………………………………………....…. B.15 
FF. Record Retention and Inspection/Audit Settlement………………..….... B.16 
GG. Recycled-Content Paper Products…………………………………..….... B.17 
HH. Contractor's Employee Criminal Background Investigation……….…… 
II. Subcontracting…………………………………………………………..….. 

B.17 
B.18 

JJ. Validity………………………………………………….………………….…. B.19 
KK. Waiver………………………………………………………………….……. B.19 
LL. Warranty Against Contingent Fees……………………………………..… 
MM. Time Off for Voting………………………………………………………….. 
NN. Local Small Business Enterprise Utilization……………………………… 
OO. Compliance with County's Zero Tolerance Human Trafficking……….. 
PP. Method of Payment and Required Information………………………….. 
QQ. Compliance with Fair Chance Employment Practices…………………. 
RR. Compliance with the County Policy of Equity…………………………… 
SS. Contractor Independence…………………………………………………. 

B.19 
B.19 
B.20 
B.20 
B.21 
B.22 
B.22 
B.22 

Section 3 Terminations/Suspensions  
A. Termination/Suspension for Breach of Warranty to Maintain      

Compliance with County's Child Support Compliance Program …..…. 
 
B.23 

B. Termination/Suspension for Convenience …..………………..…………. B.23 
C. Termination/Suspension for Default ..………………………..…………… B.24 
D. Termination/Suspension for Improper Consideration ………………..... B.25 
E. Termination/Suspension for Insolvency …………………………….….... B.25 
F. Termination/Suspension for Nonadherence to County Lobbyists 

Ordinance ..…..……………………………………………………………… B.26 
G. Termination/Suspension for Nonappropriation of Funds ......………...... B.26 

Section 4 General Conditions of Contract Work  
A. Authority of Public Works and Inspection ……………….………..…...… B.27 
B. Cooperation ……………………………………………….……..……..…... B.27 
C. Cooperation and Collateral Work ……………………………….……...… B.27 
D. Equipment, Labor, Supervision, and Materials ……………………..….. B.27 
E. Gratuitous Work ………………………………………………………..…... B.27 
F. Jobsite Safety ……………………………….…………………………..….. B.27 
G. Labor ……………….…………………………………………………..….... B.28 
H. Labor Law Compliance ……………………………………..….….…..….. B.28 
I. Overtime ………………………..……………………………..……….….… B.28 
J. Permits/Licenses ..…………………………………………..…….……….. B.28 
K. Prohibition Against Use of Child Labor ……………………..….……...… B.28 
L. Public Convenience ……………….……………………………………….. B.29 
M. Public Safety ……………………...……..………………………………..… B.29 
N. Quality of Work ………………………...………………………………...…. B.29 
O. Quantities of Work ………………………………………………….………. B.28 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 135 of 778



 3

P. Safety Requirements …………………………………………..….……..... B.28 
Q. Storage of Materials and Equipment ………………………………….…. B.30 
R. Transportation ………………………………………………..………..…... B.30 
S. Work Area Controls ……………………………...………………...….…... 
T.        CARD…………...……………………………………………………………. 

B.30 
B.30 

Section 5 Indemnification and Insurance Requirements  
A. Independent Contractor Status ………………………………………….... B.31 
B. Indemnification …………………………………………………………...…. B.31 
C. Workplace Safety Indemnification ………………………………………… B.31 
D. General Insurance Requirements ………………………………………... B.32 
E. Compensation for County Costs ………………………………………….. B.36 
F. Insurance Coverage Requirements ………………………………………. B.36 

Section 6 Contractor Responsibility and Debarment  
A. Responsible Contractor ……………………………………………………. B.37 
B. Chapter 2.202 of the County Code...……………………………………... B.37 
C. Nonresponsible Contractor ………………………………….…….…….… B.37 
D. Contractor Hearing Board …………………………………………………. B.37 
E. Subcontractors of Contractor ………………………………………….….. 
F.       Prohibition of Contract with Suspended, Debarred, Ineligible or 

Excluded Contractor by Federal or State Government…………………. 

B.37 
 
B.37 

Section 7 Compliance with County's Jury Service Program  
A. Jury Service Program ………………………………………………….….. B.40 
B. Written Employee Jury Service Policy …………………………….….…. B.40 

Section 8 Safely Surrendered Baby Law Program  
A. Contractor's Acknowledgment of County's Commitment to the Safely 

Surrendered Baby Law ...………………………………….………….….... B.42 
B. Notice to Employees Regarding the Safely Surrendered Baby Law…... B.42 

Section 9 Social Enterprise Preference Program………..…….……………………....……. B.43 
Section 10     Local Small Business Enterprise Preference Program…………………………. B.44 
Section 11     Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Preference Program ………………….. B.45 
Section 12 Compliance with County's Defaulted Property Tax Reduction Program……… 
Section 13     COVID-19 Vaccinations of County Contractor Personnel……………………… 

B.46 
B.47 

EXHIBIT C Internal Revenue Service Notice 1015  
EXHIBIT D Safely Surrendered Baby Law Posters  
EXHIBIT E      Defaulted Property Tax Reduction Program 
EXHIBIT F      Performance Requirements Summary  
EXHIBIT G.6   List of Catch Basins - West Area B (Western) - Dry/Wet Season 
EXHIBIT H.1 Catch Basin Standard Plans and Specifications – Shop Drawings ARS 
EXHIBIT H.2 Catch Basin Standard Plans and Specifications – Show Drawings CPS 
EXHIBIT H.3   Catch Basin Standard Plans and Specifications 
EXHIBIT I. Stormwater Maintenance Boundaries Map 
EXHIBIT J.3  West Area B (Western) - Catch Basin Location Maps (Dry Season) 
EXHIBIT K.3   West Area B (Western) - Catch Basin Location Maps (Wet Season) 
EXHIBIT L.  Weekly CB Cleaning Report 
EXHIBIT M.  Catch Basins Cleaning Report Form 
EXHIBIT N.  Confined Space Manual 

 

  
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 136 of 778



 

 
 Page 1 of 4  
 

 
ON-CALL CATCH BASINS CLEANOUT SERVICES FOR VARIOUS LOCATIONS 

THROUGHOUT LOS ANGELES COUNTY, WEST AREA B – WESTERN 
(BRC0000287) 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 17th day of October, 2022,              
by and between the LOS ANGELES COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT, a 
subdivision of the State of California, a body corporate and politic (hereinafter referred to as 
DISTRICT) and RON'S MAINTENANCE, INC., a California Corporation, located at 11542 
Horley Avenue, Downey, California 90241, (hereinafter referred to as CONTRACTOR). 

    WITNESSETH 

FIRST:  The CONTRACTOR, for the consideration hereinafter set forth and the 
acceptance by the County of Los Angeles Board of Supervisors, acting as the governing 
Board of said DISTRICT, of the CONTRACTOR'S bid filed with the DISTRICT on May 18, 
2022, hereby agrees to provide services as described in this Contract for On-Call Catch 
Basins Cleanout Services for Various Locations Throughout  
Los Angeles County, West Area B - Western. 

SECOND:  This AGREEMENT, together with Exhibit A, Scope of Work; Exhibit B, 
Service Contract General Requirements; Exhibit C, Internal Revenue Service  
Notice 1015; Exhibit D, Safely Surrendered Baby Law Posters; Exhibit E, Defaulted 
Property Tax Reduction Program; Exhibit F, Performance Requirements Summary;  
Exhibit G, List of Area Catch Basins; Exhibit H.1, Catch Basin Standard Plans and 
Specifications – Shop Drawings ARS; Exhibit H.2, Catch Basin Standard Plans and 
Specifications – Show Drawings CPS; Exhibit H.3, Catch Basin Standard Plans and 
Specifications; Exhibit I, Stormwater Maintenance Boundaries Map; Exhibit J, Area Catch 
Basins Location Maps (Dry Season); Exhibit K, Area Catch Basins Location Maps 
(Wet Season); Exhibit L, Weekly CB Cleaning Report; Exhibit M, CB Cleaning Report Form; 
and Exhibit N, Confined Space Manual, the CONTRACTOR'S bid, all attached hereto; 
Invitation for Bids; and Addenda to Invitation for Bids, all of which are incorporated herein 
by reference, are agreed by the DISTRICT and the CONTRACTOR to constitute the 
Contract. 

THIRD:  The DISTRICT agrees, in consideration of satisfactory performance of the 
foregoing services in strict accordance with this Contract's specifications to the satisfaction 
of the County of Los Angeles' Director of Public Works, to pay the CONTRACTOR pursuant 
to the Schedule of Prices set forth in the bid and attached hereto as Form PW-2, an 
amount not to exceed $643,150 per year plus any unused authorized amounts up to 25% 
from the previous contract terms will roll over into subsequent renewal terms, or such 
greater amount as the Board may approve (Maximum Contract Sum). 

FOURTH:  This Contract's initial term shall be for a period of 1 year commencing 
upon the Board's approval and execution of this Agreement by both parties, whichever 
occurs last.  The DISTRICT shall have the sole option to renew this Contract term for up to 
three additional 1-year period and a 6 month-to-month extension, for a maximum total 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 137 of 778



 

 
 Page 2 of 4  
 

Contract term of 4 years and 6 months.  Each such option shall be exercised at the sole 
discretion of the DISTRICT.  The DISTRICT, acting through the Director, may give a written 
notice of intent to renew this Contract at least 10 days prior to the end of each term.  At the 
sole discretion of the DISTRICT, in lieu of renewing the Contract for the full 1 year, this 
Contract may be renewed on a month-to-month basis, upon written notice to the 
CONTRACTOR at least ten days prior to the end of a term.  The Director will provide a 
written notice of nonrenewal at least ten days before the last day of any term, in which case 
this Contract shall expire as of midnight on the last day of that term.  Where all option years 
have been exercised, the Director will not provide a written notice of nonrenewal.   

FIFTH:  The CONTRACTOR shall bill monthly, in arrears, for the work performed 
during the preceding month.  Work performed shall be billed at the hourly rates and/or unit 
prices quoted in Form PW-2, Schedule of Prices. 

SIXTH:  The DISTRICT, acting through the Los Angeles County Public Works, will 
make payment to the CONTRACTOR within 30 days of receipt and approval of a properly 
completed and undisputed invoice.  However, should the CONTRACTOR be certified by the 
COUNTY as a Local Small Business Enterprise, payment will be made in accordance with 
Board of Supervisors Policy No. 3.035, Small Business Liaison and Prompt Payment 
Program.  Each invoice shall be in triplicate (original and two copies) and shall itemize the 
work completed.  The invoices shall be submitted to: 

Los Angeles County Public Works 
Attention Fiscal Division, Accounts Payable 
P.O. Box 7508  
Alhambra, CA 91802-7508 

SEVENTH:  In no event shall the aggregate total amount of compensation paid to 
the CONTRACTOR exceed the amount of compensation authorized by the Board.  
Such aggregate total amount is the Maximum Contract Sum. 

EIGHTH:  The CONTRACTOR understands and agrees that only the designated 
DISTRICT Contract Manager is authorized to request or order work under this Contract.  
The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the designated Contract Manager is not authorized 
to request or order any work that would result in the CONTRACTOR earning an aggregate 
compensation in excess of this Contract's Maximum Contract Sum. 

NINTH:  The CONTRACTOR shall not perform or accept work requests from the 
Contract Manager or any other person that will cause the Maximum Contract Sum of this 
Contract to be exceeded.  The CONTRACTOR shall monitor the balance of this Contract's 
Maximum Contract Sum.  When the total of the CONTRACTOR'S paid invoices, invoices 
pending payment, invoices yet to be submitted, and ordered services reaches 75 percent of 
the Maximum Contract Sum, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the 
Contract Manager in writing.  The CONTRACTOR shall send written notification to the 
Contract Manager when this Contract is within six months from expiration of the term as 
provided for hereinabove. 

TENTH:  lf requested by the Contractor, the contract (hourly, daily, monthly, etc.) 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 138 of 778



 

 
 Page 3 of 4  
 

amount may, at the sole discretion of the County, be increased at the time of contract 
renewal, if exercised by the County, based on the most recently published percentage 
change in the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics' Consumer Price lndex 
(CPl) for the Los Angeles-Long Beach-Anaheim CA, areas for the 12-month period 
preceding the renewal date, which shall be the effective date for any 
Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA).  However, any increase shall not exceed the general 
salary movement granted to County employees as determined by the Chief Executive 
Officer as of each July 1 for the prior 12-month period.  Furthermore, should fiscal 
circumstances ultimately prevent the Board from approving any increase in County 
employee salaries, no COLA will be granted.  Upon approval of COLA, a notification will be 
sent to the Contractor.   

ELEVENTH:  In the event that the terms and conditions, which may be listed in the 
CONTRACTOR'S bid, conflict with the DISTRICT'S specifications, requirements, and terms 
and conditions as reflected in this AGREEMENT including, but not limited to, Exhibits A 
through N, inclusive, the DISTRICT'S provisions shall control and be binding. 

TWELFTH:  The CONTRACTOR agrees in strict accordance with this Contract's 
specifications and conditions to meet the DISTRICT'S requirements. 

THIRTEENTH:  This Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the 
COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR with respect to the subject matter of this Contract and 
supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings.  This 
CONTRACT may be signed by the parties hereto in separate counterparts, including both 
counterparts that are executed on paper and counterparts that are in the form of electronic 
signatures.  Electronic signatures include facsimile or e-mail electronic signatures.  Each 
executed counterpart shall be deemed an original.  All counterparts, taken together, 
constitute the executed Agreement. 

The parties hereby acknowledge and agree that electronic records and electronic 
signatures, as well as facsimile signatures, used in connection with the execution of this 
Agreement and electronic signatures, facsimile signatures or signatures transmitted by 
electronic mail in so-called pdf format shall be legal and binding and shall have the same 
full force and effect as if a paper original of this Agreement had been delivered and had 
been signed using a handwritten signature.  Contractor and County (i) agree that an 
electronic signature, whether digital or encrypted, of a party to this Agreement is intended 
to authenticate this writing and to have the same force and effect as a manual signature, 
(ii) intend to be bound by the signatures (whether original, faxed or electronic) on any 
document sent or delivered by facsimile or, electronic mail, or other electronic means, 
(iii) are aware that the other party will reply on such signatures, and (iv) hereby waive any 
defenses to the enforcement of the terms of this Agreement based on the foregoing forms 
of signature.  If this Agreement has been executed by electronic signature, all parties 
executing this document are expressly consenting under the United States Federal 
Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act of 2000 (E-SIGN) and 
California Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (UETA)(Cal. Civ. Code § 1633.1, et seq.), 
that a signature by fax, e-mail or other electronic means shall constitute an Electronic 
Signature to an Electronic Record under both E-SIGN and UETA with respect to this 
specific transaction. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 139 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 140 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 141 of 778



Exhibit A 
 

 -A.1- CB Cleanout Services  
(BRC000287) 

 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

ON-CALL CATCH BASINS CLEANOUT SERVICES FOR  
VARIOUS LOCATIONS THROUGHOUT LOS ANGELES COUNTY  

(BRC0000287) 
 

A. Public Works Contract Manager 

Public Works Contract Manager (CM) will be Ms. Shabnam Hageali of Stormwater 
Maintenance Division who may be contacted at (626) 458-2306 or 
snoroozi@pw.lacounty.gov, Monday through Thursday, 7 a.m. to 5 p.m. The CM 
may designate several Public Works Representatives (PWR) to request work from 
the Contractor.  The CM and PWRs are the only persons authorized by Public 
Works to request work of the Contractor.  Public Works may change CMs and/or 
PWRs at any time.  The Contractor will be notified in writing when there is a 
change. 
 

B. Work Overview 
 

The work to be performed pursuant to this Contract consists of both scheduled and 
as-needed cleaning of approximately 92,000 catch basins with and without inserts.  
The Contractor shall remove trash and debris from the catch basins and inserts.  
As requested by the PWR, additional as-needed work to be performed under this 
Contract shall consist of the monitoring and measuring of trash in catch basins 
and/or gutters, waste characterization of collected trash, emergency catch basin 
cleaning, and taking digital photographs of catch basins. 
 
Additional catch basins located within Participating Cities or unincorporated 
County of Los Angeles (County) areas may be added to this Contract at the sole 
discretion of Public Works.  The Contractor's services under all terms of this 
Contract will be offered to cities that have (1) been provided with County permits 
to install inserts in Public Works catch basins; (2) requested city owned catch 
basins be cleaned by Public Works’ Contractor.  Public Works may add or remove 
catch basins to this Contract based on requests submitted by Participating Cities, 
or the needs of Public Works at any time during the duration of the Contract:  
Exhibits described below show a list of catch basins to be cleaned and maintained 
and will be modified as catch basins are added or removed. 
 
 Exhibit G.1, East Area A (Western) 
 Exhibit G.2, East Area B (Eastern) 
 Exhibit G.3, South Area A (Western)  
 Exhibit G.4, South Area B (Central)  
 Exhibit G.5, South Area C (Eastern)  
 Exhibit G.6, West Area A (Eastern) 
 Exhibit G.7, West Area B (Western) 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 142 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.2 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

C. Request of Work from Contractor 
 

Public Works reserves the right to determine if any work is or will be needed  
and/or requested under this Contract at Public Works’ sole and absolute discretion.  The 
Contractor waives all claims against Public Works for damages or loss of any nature 
resulting from Public Works’ failure to use the Contractor's services including, but not 
limited to, lost profit. 
 

D. Facility Locations 
 

The catch basins to be maintained pursuant to this Contract are located  
throughout the East, South, and West Maintenance areas of Los Angeles County as 
depicted on Exhibit I, Stormwater Maintenance Boundaries Maps. 

 
E. Catch Basin Inserts 
 

Public Works has the following types of catch basin inserts: 
 
 Automatic Retractable Screen (ARS) including Clean Screen and Tony 

Trap inserts.  See Exhibit H.1, Catch Basin Standard Plans and 
Specifications – Shop Drawings ARS. 
 

 Connector Pipe Screen (CPS).  See Exhibit H.2, Catch Basin Standard 
Plans and Specifications – Show Drawings CPS.  Many CPS inserted catch 
basins are also fitted with an ARS insert and are identified herein as 
CPS/ARS catch basin inserts. 

 
ARS inserts prevent trash and debris from entering the catch basin during dry 
weather and moderate storm flows, thereby maintaining trash and debris within the 
street for collection by street sweepers or other equipment.  CPS inserts allow 
debris to collect in the catch basins for later removal. 

 
CPS inserts are 5-mm screens located around the connector pipes within the catch 
basin.  They act as a secondary defense against trash bypassing the  
ARS inserts. 
 
ARS inserts have a locking mechanism in the closed position to prevent street 
sweeping equipment from opening the screen during maintenance activities and 
prevent opening by unauthorized persons.  Tony Traps and Clean Screens are 
classified as ARS Inserts.  The only difference between the two is the difference in 
screen openings.  The Tony Traps are attached at the base of the catch basin inlet 
and fold down to allow water in.  Clean Screens are attached at the roof of the 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 143 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.3 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

catch basin inlet and fold up to allow water in.  ARS inserts are classified into two 
types.  Type I inserts are opened by the force of water acting directly on the screen 
to overcome resistive force of the spring holding the screen closed during dry 
conditions.  Type II inserts collect storm water in a container and uses the weight 
of that water to operate the moving parts that cause the screen to open.  Further 
details for the CPS and ARS inserts are outlined in Exhibit H.3, Catch Basin 
Standard Plans and Specifications.   
 

F. Work Description 
 
 Cleaning of Catch Basins and Inserts 

 
1. Cleaning Requirements 

 
The Contractor shall remove all trash and debris from all inserts and  
catch basins.  The Contractor shall remove all trash and debris found in 
front of curb opening or side opening catch basins on top or between the 
metal grates of grated catch basins and all vegetation growing across 
and/or blocking the catch basin opening.   
 
Chemicals or solvents are not allowed for cleaning the catch basins 
without the approval of the PWR.  When chemicals or solvents are 
approved, at no time shall they be discharged into the storm drain. 

 
a. The Contractor shall visually assess the volume of trash and debris 

within each catch basin as a percentage of the total storage volume 
of each individual catch basin and document the results manually on 
the Catch Basin Cleaning Report Form (Cleaning Report),  
Exhibit M.  The Contractor shall prepare Weekly Catch Basin 
Cleaning Reports, Exhibit L, for all catch basins that were cleaned 
during the previous week.   

 
b. The Contractor shall notify the PWR by telephone or e-mail 

within 24 hours upon discovery of a catch basin with any of the 
following deficiencies, which may pose a safety hazard: 
 
a) Missing manhole lids – Note that Contractor must immediately 

barricade manholes missing a lid to prevent access by the 
public. 
 

b) Missing protection bar 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 144 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.4 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

c) Exterior damage (broken deck, uneven pavement). 
 

d) Grate bars bent, broken, or missing. 
 

e) Distance between grate bars is greater than 3/4 of an inch. 
 

f) Other physical damage that may pose a safety hazard. 
 
2. Seasonal Cleaning 
 

a. Dry Season 
 
For the purposes of this Contract the dry weather 
season shall begin on July 1 and end on September 30.  Dry season 
cleaning of all catch basins and inserts as shown on Exhibit J.1, East 
Area Catch Basin Location Maps (Dry Season), Exhibit J.2, South 
Area Catch Basin Location Maps (Dry Season), and Exhibit J.3, West 
Area Catch Basin Location Maps (Dry Season), shall be performed 
by the Contractor once per dry season on an annual basis.  Changes 
to this schedule may be made by PWR. 
 

b. Storm Season 
 

For the purposes of this Contract, the storm season shall begin on 
October 1 and end on April 15.  The average rainfall for the County 
is approximately 15 inches per year; however, it would not be 
unusual to see storm totals of 20 inches or more per year.  
Countywide, an average storm season produces four "major storm 
events," i.e., a storm with an intensity of 1 inch or more per 12 hours, 
and 12 storm events with an intensity of 0.1 inch - 1.0 inch per 12 
hours.  Although, the average is four major storm events, previous 
storm seasons have produced as many as eight major storm events 
with an intensity of 1 inch or more per 12 hours and as many as 19 
storm events with an intensity of 0.1 inch - 1.0 inch per 12 hours.  It 
is anticipated that cleaning shall be required after each major storm 
event.  During the storm season, the Contractor may adjust their 
cleaning schedule around inclement weather with approval from the 
PWR. 
 

c. Storm Season Cleanings 
 

Unless otherwise directed by the PWR, the Contractor shall  

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 145 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.5 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

clean all inserted Priority A and Priority B catch basins shown  
on Exhibit K.1, East Area Catch Basin Location Maps  
(Storm Season), Exhibit K.2, South Area Catch Basin Location 
Maps (Storm Season), and Exhibit K.3, West Area Catch Basin 
Location Maps (Storm Season), three times during storm season.   
The cleanings shall occur (once in October/November, once in 
December/January, and once in February/March).  The Contractor 
shall commence cleanings for each time period specified above, 
as directed by the PWR, and complete the cleanings with 15 
working days.  Changes to this schedule may be made by the 
PWR.  The cleaning requirements described in Section F.1, 
Cleaning Requirements of this Exhibit must be followed. 

 
d. Post Storm Cleanings 

 
The Contractor shall clean all catch basins containing CPS, ARS, and 
CPS/ARS inserts within seven calendar days of a storm event only 
as directed by the PWR. The seven day cleaning period shall 
commence on a date determined by the PWR. 

 
3. Manhole Requirements during Cleaning 

 
a. The Contractor shall remove the existing manhole covers as required 

to access inside the catch basins and shall reinstall and fasten the 
manhole cover whenever the catch basins are left unattended or 
before leaving the work area.  Screws or bolts that are missing, 
cannot be reused or were damaged by the Contractor shall be 
replaced with new ones meeting the requirements specified in the 
applicable standard plans in the Standard Plans for Public Works 
Construction (SPPWC) book.  Public Works will reimburse the 
Contractor for the cost of missing or damaged bolts replaced by the 
Contractor plus a 10 percent markup upon the receipt of an invoice 
with attached receipts for the purchase of the bolts.  The replacement 
of the screws or bolts should be noted on the Catch Basin Cleaning 
Report Form.  Screws and bolts must be available to the Contractor's 
crew at all times.  The Contractor shall not leave manhole covers 
open or detached and unattended at any time.  The Contractor shall 
notify the PWR of any missing manhole covers as soon as possible 
and no later than 24 hours and shall provide and place barricades 
over the manhole to prevent public access.  
 

b. The manhole cover screws may be frozen.  It shall be the 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 146 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.6 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

Contractor's responsibility to remove each frozen manhole cover 
screw.  If, during their removal, the manhole covers or screws should 
become damaged, it shall be the Contractor's responsibility to 
replace them in accordance with the applicable standard plans in the 
SPPWC book and to redrill and tap new holes, if necessary, at no 
additional cost to Public Works. 

  
c. If heat is used to facilitate removal of frozen manhole cover screws, 

the Contractor shall check the screws the following workday to  
verify that they have not refrozen at no additional cost to  
Public Works. 

 
d. Before leaving any catch basin, the Contractor shall thoroughly clean 

all trash and debris from the manhole frame and cover.  When 
reinstalling manhole covers, the Contractor shall grease all manhole 
cover screws with a high temperature thread lubricant and seal 
grease (Jet-Lube by Koper-Kote or equal).  

 
4. Stenciling 

 
a. Upon the satisfactory cleanout of each catch basin, the Contractor 

shall stencil a two-digit number for the current clean out month and 
four-digit year with red paint in 3-inch high letters on the back wall at 
the downstream end of the catch basin.  For example,  
July 2021, would be stenciled "07-2021" and October 2021 would be 
"10-2021."  All preexisting month—year stencils shall be covered 
neatly with grey paint prior to stenciling the current year.  On   
grate-type catch basins, the stencil shall be placed on the wall 
perpendicular to the grate bars.  The stencil is to be plainly visible 
from the street surface and placed a minimum of 18 inches and a 
maximum of 24 inches below the top of the catch basin. 
 

b. On an annual basis during the dry season, the Contractor shall 
stencil the "No Dumping, This Drains to Ocean" logo on the top slab 
above PWR selected catch basin if it is not already present or if the 
marking is faded and illegible.  The PWR will provide the Contractor 
with the stencil and a listing of PWR selected catch basins at the 
beginning of each dry season. 

 
c. The Contractor shall re-stencil the "percentage" gauge markings in 

each District Owned CPS inserted catch basin on an annual basis, 
unless otherwise directed by the PWR. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 147 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.7 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

 
5. Trash and Debris Removal and Disposal 

 
a. Method of Removal 
 

1. Contractor may make its own determination whether trash and 
debris from inside the catch basins will be removed manually 
or using a vacuum truck.  Contractor's personnel removing 
trash and debris manually must be confined space certified.  
The Contractor shall not allow any trash or debris to enter the 
connector pipes or main lines as a result of the cleanout 
operations. 

 
2. Vacuum trucks utilized by the Contractor shall not exceed 

decibels readings of over 75 within 20 feet of the truck.  The 
Contractor may be required to utilize sounds barriers to meet 
the decibel reading requirement. 

 
3. The Contractor is responsible for implementing traffic control 

per the MUTCD while cleaning catch basins and inserts.  
Payment for traffic control shall be included in the price for 
various items of the Schedule of Prices, PW-2.1. 

 
b. Method of Disposal 

 
1. Prior to the start of the work, the Contractor shall identify its 

intended disposal sites in writing to the PWR.  All debris and 
trash removed under this Contract shall become the property 
of the Contractor and shall be legally disposed of away from 
the catch basin sites at approved waste disposal locations. 
The Contractor shall obtain approvals from all jurisdictional 
agencies, as applicable. 
 

2. All vehicles used by the Contractor to transport debris to 
approved disposal or dumpsites shall be equipped so leakage 
of liquid and spillage do not occur.  Covering the load during 
transport is required.  Vehicles and personnel operating 
vehicles that do not comply with this requirement may be 
ordered removed from the Contract work at the sole discretion 
of Public Works and shall not be utilized again unless 
approved by PWR. 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 148 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.8 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

3. The Contractor is solely responsible for safe operation of 
transport vehicles and compliance with all applicable laws 
including, but not limited to, vehicle code, local ordinances, 
and parking regulations. 

 
4. The Contractor shall be responsible for removing any dead 

animal from inside the catch basins.  A list of local  
Animal Care and Control offices are provided below for  
pickup and disposal of dead animals.  The Contractor shall 
also be solely responsible for contacting and coordinating with 
Animal Care and Control. 
 

 Duarte Animal Control 
 (626) 357-7938 

County of Los Angeles 
Animal Care and Control 
Downey Shelter  
(562) 940-6898 

City of Los Angeles    
Bureau of Sanitation 
(800) 773-2489 

Pasadena Humane 
Society 

  (626) 792-7151 

South East Area 
Animal Control 
Authority (562) 803-3301 

County of Los Angeles 
Animal Care and 
Control Carson Shelter 
(310) 523-9566 

San Gabriel Valley 
Humane Society 

  (626) 286-1159 

Bellflower Animal Control 
(562) 804-1424 

County of Los Angeles 
Animal Care and 
Control Agoura Shelter 
(818) 991-0071 

Temple City Animal 
Control 

  (626) 285-7187 

County of Los Angeles 
Animal Care and Control 
Baldwin Park Shelter 
(626) 962-3577 

Burbank Animal 
Shelter 
(818) 238-3340 

Inland Valley Humane 
Society 

  (909) 623-9777 

  

 
5. Contractor must separate/apportion trash according to its 

origin, identifying by specific City or unincorporated County.  
The Contractor is responsible for reporting the jurisdictional 
percentage of the debris being disposed of as accurately as 
possible.  These invoices must indicate the weights or volume 
of debris disposed. 

 
6. Public Works will reimburse the Contractor for the 

Contractor's disposal fees plus 10 percent handling charge 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 149 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.9 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

upon the receipt of an invoice with attached dump tickets. 
Public Works will not pay for labor and transportation of debris 
to the dumpsite.  

 
7. The Contractor is advised that due to the nature of this 

Contract, discarded hazardous waste may be encountered 
during the performance of this Contract.  In the event an 
unknown substance or hazardous material is discovered, the  
Contractor shall immediately notify the PWR.  The Contractor 
shall NOT attempt to perform any type of hazardous waste 
remediation not included under this Contract's Scope of Work, 
including identifying, containing, cleaning, moving, disposing, 
etc.  The Contractor shall exercise extreme caution in the 
event unknown waste is encountered. 

 
6. As-Needed Services  
 

As-needed services will not be performed until the Contractor obtains 
written approval from the PWR.  The Contractor shall, at the direction of the 
PWR, furnish a cost estimate at the rates provided in form PW-2, Schedule 
of Prices, for As-Needed Items, to accomplish the following  
as-needed services including, but not limited to: 
 
a. Monitoring and Measuring of Trash  

 
1. As directed by the PWR, the Contractor shall collect and 

measure the trash accumulated in designated catch basins 
and/or gutters along designated streets using both of the 
measuring methods described below.  The designated  
catch basins and/or streets may change from year to year.   
The Contractor shall collect, measure, and record the total 
amount of trash that has accumulated in the designated catch 
basins and/or gutters.  The Contractor shall provide a value of 
both the uncompressed volume in gallons (volume in gallons 
that is obtained when trash is placed in an open container and 
allowed to settle without being mechanically compacted) and 
the drip-dry weight in pounds (trash shall be considered to be 
drip-dry when water does not drain away or pond if the trash 
is tumbled and stacked in a pile on level ground) for the trash 
removed as requested by the PWR. The Contractor shall 
record the value on a form provided by the PWR.   
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 150 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.10 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

2. The Contractor shall provide photographic documentation of 
the designated catch basins and/or gutters that show before 
and after removal of trash.  Photographs must clearly show 
the amount of trash in the catch basin based on the level 
markings located on the catch basin wall gauge.  Photographs 
of the gutter shall be identified by street names/intersections 
and taken at locations to be specified by the PWR.  
Photographs must be taken with a digital camera with a 
minimum resolution of six megapixels (1600 x 1200 pixels). 
The file format of each photo shall be JPEG and shall be 
supplied to the PWR on a CD or USB flash drive. Each photo 
shall include the catch basin ID number along with the date 
and GPS coordinates.  

 
3. The Contractor shall furnish all scales and containers to be 

used.  Scales shall be accurate to within +/- 2 percent of 
applied load.  Scales with platforms shall have a platform  
area of sufficient size to accommodate the trash and debris to 
be weighed. 

 
4. The Contractor shall utilize both trash measuring methods, 

the uncompressed volume, and the dripdry weight per catch 
basin and/or gutter and will be paid in accordance with  
rates indicated on Form PW-2, Schedule of Prices.  The 
designated catch basins and/or streets will be provided to the 
Contractor by the PWR at the time the as-needed service 
request is made. 

 
b. Waste Characterization of Collected Trash  
 

1. As directed by the PWR, the Contractor shall separate trash 
collected from designated catch basins and/or streets into the 
below categories and measure the uncompressed volume 
and dripdry weight for each category.  The quantities shall be 
recorded on a form to be provided by the PWR. 
 
i.     Food service packaging 
ii.    Snack and candy packaging 
iii.   Bottles and cans 
iv.   Non-CRV containers 
v.    Molded plastic 
vi.   Metal 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 151 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.11 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

vii.  Glass 
viii. Cigarette butts 
ix.   Polystyrene 
x.    Paper bags, newspaper, etc. 
xi.   Cloths and fabric 
xii.  Plastic film, single-use grocery bags 
xiii. Plastic film, non-grocery bags 
xiv. Plastic film, tarps 
xv.  Other 
 

c. Emergency Catch Basin Cleaning  
 
Contractor shall, within 24 hours upon notification by the PWR, 
remove all trash and debris from within catch basins on an  
as-needed emergency basis as provided in Section F.1, Cleaning 
Requirements.  If the Contractor utilizes a vacuum truck, the 
Contractor will be reimbursed for Contractor owned vacuum trucks 
according to the Contractor’s published rate list.  The Contractor shall 
provide its published rate list at the time of bid submission and 
annually thereafter at the time of Contract renewal.  If the Contractor 
 needs to rent a vacuum truck, the Contractor will be reimbursed for 
the cost of the rented vacuum truck plus 10 percent processing 
charge upon the receipt of an invoice from the rental company. 
 

d. Photographs 
 

 As directed by the PWR, the Contractor shall provide Global 
Positioning Satellite (GPS) based photographic documentation for 
each catch basin cleaned. This photographic documentation must 
be to the satisfaction of the PWR.  Photographs shall depict before 
and after removal of trash conditions and authenticate the amount 
of trash in the catch basin based on the level markings located on 
the catch basin wall gauge.  Photographs with a minimum resolution 
of six (6) megapixels (1600 x 1200 pixels) must be taken with a 
digital camera and supplied to the PWR on a CD, USB drive, or 
external hard drive concurrently with the Weekly Cleaning Report. 
The photographs must be labeled by catch basin number and date 
taken. The GPS location of each catch basin shall be recorded as 
latitude and longitude in degrees, minutes, and seconds. Each 
numerical second shall be noted to four places past the decimal. 
Each catch basin shall be located within a level of precision of 20 
feet or less. Vegetation and topography may reduce the precision of 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 152 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.12 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

the GPS to less than 20 feet at some locations. Catch basins that 
cannot be located with a precision of 20 feet or less shall be noted 
on the photograph along with the indicated level of precision and 
brought to the attention of the PWR.  Photographs must be taken 
with a digital camera using the following criteria: 
 

a) Minimum photographic resolution of six (6) 
megapixels (1600 x 1200 pixels). 

 
b) The file format of each photo shall be JPEG. 

 
c) The digital files shall be named according to the 

following syntax: 
 

"XXXXXXXXX—INT/EXT—BEFORE/AFTER 
M_DD_YY.JPG", where: 

 
i. XXXXXXXXX is the nine-digit County catch 

basin ID number. 
 
ii. INT or EXT to indicate interior photograph or 

exterior photograph. 
 

iii. BEFORE or AFTER to indicate before or after 
cleaning. 

 
d) Each photo shall include a sign in the photo (e.g., 

whiteboard or chalkboard) that clearly shows the nine-
digit County catch basin ID number. 

 
The Contractor shall submit a set of photographs on CD-
ROMs or USB flash drives.  The Contractor will be paid in 
accordance with rates indicated on Form PW-2, Schedule of 
Prices.  The designated catch basins will be provided to the 
Contractor by the PWR prior to the start of each cleaning 
season. 
 

7. Work Schedules 
 
The Contractor shall submit weekly cleaning schedules to the PWR for all 
catch basins and inserts.  The Contractor shall notify the PWR of any 
changes to the schedule prior to performing any work.   

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 153 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.13 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

G. Cleaning Standards 
 

Listed below are cleaning standards, which shall apply to this Contract. Consistent 
failure to meet these standards will constitute a breach of Contract, which could 
result in Contract termination as described in Exhibit B, Section 3.C.  The cleanout 
of each catch basin and insert shall, at a minimum, meet the cleaning standards 
listed below.  
 
1. No trash and debris located immediately in front of and/or 

blocking the catch basin/insert opening and/or on top of or between metal 
grates. 
 

2. No trash and debris within the catch basin in excess of the 
40 percent wall gauge mark. 

 
3. No trash and debris trapped by/or in the insert(s). 
 
4. No trash and debris in connector pipe opening and/or in the connector pipe 

for a distance of 6 feet from the opening. 
 
Trash and debris that is to be removed by Contractor shall include, but is not limited 
to, mud, vegetation, and garbage.  Upon completion of a cleanout operation at any 
catch basin and prior to leaving, the Contractor shall sweep and clean the top 
surface of the catch basins and inserts and remove all resulting debris and in an 
area of at least 2 feet around the catch basins.  The Contractor shall remove any 
trash and debris resulting from the cleanout operations.  No debris is to be left at 
any catch basin for future pickup. 
 

H. Hours and Days of Service 
 

Hours of services shall be primarily performed within the 7 a.m. to 4 p.m. time 
period, Monday through Friday, each week, except legal holidays, at which time the 
service shall be done before or after such holiday.  Work hours may be altered, 
when necessary, with the approval of the PWR. 
 
Holidays Observed by the County of Los Angeles are: 
 
  New Year's Day    Labor Day 
  Martin Luther King, Jr. Day   Indigenous People's Day 
  Presidents' Day    Veterans Day 
  Cesar Chavez Day    Thanksgiving Day 
  Memorial Day    Day after Thanksgiving 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 154 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.14 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

  Juneteenth Day    Christmas Day 
  Independence Day     

 
No Work shall take place on rainy days.  
 
Contractor shall also provide a 24-hour, 7 days a week, emergency phone 
number to receive emergency reports from Public Works. 

 
I. Utilities 
 
 Public Works will not provide utilities. 
 
J. Storage Facilities 
 
 Public Works will not provide storage facilities for the Contractor.   
 
K. Public Convenience and Safety 
 

Payment for implementing, administering, and providing all materials, equipment, 
and personnel to perform traffic control, including permits shall be included in the 
rates on Form PW-2, Schedule of Prices for the various items.  The Contractor 
shall adhere to the following requirements: 
 
1. Traffic and Access 

 
Unless otherwise required, the Contractor shall provide and maintain  
11-feet wide traffic lanes plus a minimum 1 foot clearance between traffic 
delineators and equipment on new or existing pavement as follows: 
maintain local access at all times, maintain traffic on the proper sides of any 
raised median or double yellow centerline at all times.  If the sidewalk is to 
be closed, the Contractor shall post appropriate warning signs and barriers. 
 

2. Street Closures, Detours, Barricades 
 
All street closures, detours, lane closures, signs, lights, and other  
traffic control devices shall conform to the California Manual on Uniform  
 
Traffic Control Devices (California MUTCD) available on the Caltrans 
website:  www.dot.ca.gov/hq/traffops/signtech/mutcdsupp/index.htm. 
 

3. Construction Traffic Control and Traffic Control Plan 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 155 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.15 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

The California MUTCD shall govern the design of the proposed traffic 
control.  Simple daytime lane closures may be installed in accordance with 
the California MUTCD or the Work Area Traffic Control Handbook,  
latest edition, when approved by Public Works. 
 

4. Traffic Control Devices 
 

Unless otherwise specified on the Traffic Control Plans (if required), traffic 
control devices shall conform to the California MUTCD. 

 
5. Confined Spaces 
 

Contractor shall be expected to observe all applicable State of California 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (Cal/OSHA) and  
Public Works' safety requirements while performing all work related to this 
Contract. 
 
Entry into permit-required confined spaces as defined in California Code 
of Regulations Title 8, Section 5157, may be required as a part of the 
work.  All catch basins, manholes, tanks, vaults, or other enclosed or 
partially enclosed spaces shall be considered permit-required confined 
spaces until the pre-entry procedures as provided in Stormwater 
Maintenance Division's Confined Space Entry Permit and Confined Space 
Manual (Confined Space Manual), Exhibit N, demonstrate otherwise. 
 
Public Works protects its employees working in storm drain facilities, 
subdrain vaults, or any confined space area by following the procedures in 
the Confined Space Manual.  The Contractor shall follow the Confined 
Space Manual.  All Contractor costs for implementing and administering 
equipment and personnel for compliance with the Confined Space Manual 
are included in the Total Annual Price for the Contract. 

 
During entry, the Contractor shall continuously test for safe atmospheric 
conditions in each catch basin.  Testing shall be done immediately prior to 
removing the manhole cover and continuously thereafter while working in 
catch basins.  Gas meters shall test for oxygen deficiency or enrichment, 
flammable gases, hydrogen sulfide, and carbon monoxide.  The  
Contractor shall test the atmosphere in the catch basins using a gas meter  
that tests for all four gases simultaneously.  Instruments shall be "bump 
checked" at the start of each day to verify calibration. 
 
The testing instruments are available from: 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 156 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.16 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

 
 J. G. Tucker   

294 West Bonita Avenue 
Pomona, California 91767 
(800) 441-4307 
www.jgtucker.com 
 

 Fisher Scientific 
(800) 772-6733 
www.fishersci.com 

 
 Lab Safety Supply 
 (800) 356-0783 

www.labsafety.com 
 

If unsafe atmosphere readings are indicated, the Contractor shall use a 
blower to provide continuous ventilation of the catch basin.  There shall be 
no manned entry until atmosphere readings in the catch basin show that no 
hazardous atmospheric conditions exist. 
 
Before beginning work, the Contractor shall provide Public Works with 
copies of the Contractor's Injury Illness Prevention Program, proof of 
training for Confined Space Entry, proof of training for Fall Protection, and 
a Rescue Plan.  The receipt of these documents by Public Works does not 
constitute an approval of the Contractor's program. 
 
Failure to comply with the above requirements shall constitute 
noncompliance with the Contract and result in suspension of Contract 
and/or payments. 
 

6. Special Safety Requirements: 
 
 Contractor staff shall wear hard hats at all times.  Suitable clothing, gloves, 

and shoes that meet Cal/OSHA requirements are required.  Special 
emphasis shall be placed on public safety during maintenance operations. 
Contractors shall be responsible for providing all necessary safety 
measures to ensure public safety within the limits of or adjacent to each 
particular maintenance operation. 
  
Contractors shall do the following for safety issues: 

  
a.  Public Safety: If any hazards are found, the contractor will report to 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 157 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.17 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

the PWR; if the hazards are potentially harmful or pose imminent risk 
to the public, contact 911. 

 
b.  Emergency Response:  When the emergency involves injury to a 

member of the public, call 911; stay with the injured person until help 
arrives, if doing so does not pose a risk to the County crews or 
Contractor, and direct emergency services to the injured person, if 
practical; secure the site to restrict the public from going through the 
area.  When needed, use appropriate signage and delineations. 

 
c. Contractor shall file a County of Los Angeles Non-Employee Injury 

Report form to document the incident and injuries to the public and 
transmit the forms to PWR within  
two business day or first day of the next business week.  

 
 *PWR will provide the report form. 

 
d. Contractor shall submit a project safety plan and provide training to 

employees on the above provisions. 
 

L. Report of Discharge, Notices, or Orders 
 

When the Contractor identifies any discharge into any catch basin, which 
causes, or potentially causes, a condition of pollution, the Contractor shall 
immediately call the PWR during normal working hours or after hours call 
Public Works’ Dispatch 1-800-675-4357 to report the incident.  When the 
Contractor notices that a catch basin contains a connection other than the 
catch basin's outlet connector pipe, the Contractor shall notify the PWR.  If 
the Contractor receives a written notice or order from any regulatory 
agency, the Contractor shall inform the PWR within 24 hours.  If a Cease  
Work Order is received by the Contractor, all work must stop immediately. 
The Contractor shall also submit a written report to the PWR within  
24 hours of the notice or order.  The report shall include the following 
information: 

 
1. The date, time, location, nature of the operation, and type of 

discharge, including the cause or nature of the notice or order. 
 
2. All water pollution control practices deployed before the discharge 

event or prior to receiving the notice or order. 
 

3. The date of deployment and type of water-pollution control 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 158 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.18 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

practices deployed after the discharge event or after receiving the 
notice or order, including additional measures installed or planned to 
reduce or prevent recurrences. 

 
4. An implementation and cleaning schedule for any affected water 

pollution control practices. 
 

a. Enforcement and Penalties 
 

Public Works, as a permittee, is subject to enforcement action 
by the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB), 
Environmental Protection Agency, private citizens, and citizen  
groups.  Public Works will assess the Contractor a penalty of 
$1,000 for each calendar day that the Contractor does not fully 
implement or comply with permit or regulatory requirements. 
The penalty will be deducted from Contract payments due the 
Contractor if the Contractor is determined by Public Works to be 
noncompliant with applicable requirements including, but not 
limited to, the following: 

 
i. Applicable provisions of the Best Management Practices 

(BMP) Manual. 
 

ii. Immediate corrective action specified on the Agency issued 
"Field Notice of BMP Noncompliance" form. 

 
iii. Applicable local permits. 

 
iv. Federal, State, and local water pollution control 

regulations. 
 

The Contractor shall be responsible for the costs and for the liabilities 
imposed by law as a result of the Contractor's failure to comply with 
these provisions.  Costs and liabilities include, but are not limited to, 
fines, penalties, and damages whether assessed against Public 
Works or the Contractor, including those levied under the Federal 
Clean Water Act and the State Porter Cologne Water Quality Act.  In 
addition, Public Works will deduct the total amount of any legal fees, 
staff costs, and consultant fees as a result of the Contractor's 
noncompliance with these provisions from any monies due to the 
Contractor. 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 159 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.19 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

The Contractor shall notify the PWR immediately following receipt of 
a request from any jurisdictional regulatory agency to enter, inspect, 
sample, monitor, or otherwise access the Contract site or the 
Contractor's records pertaining to water pollution control. 
 

M. Responsibilities of the Contractor 
 

The Contractor shall: 
 
1. Subcontractors are not allowed for this service. 

 
2. Have a minimum of two years of experience cleaning catch basins including 

trash and debris capturing devices, similar with the type of catch basin 
inserts to be maintained as outlined in this Exhibit A, Scope of Work. 

 
3. Maintain an on-site supervisor with at least one year of experience cleaning 

catch basins including trash and debris capturing devices similar with the 
type of catch basin inserts to be maintained as outlined in this Exhibit A, 
Scope of Work. 

 
4. Comply with provisions of all applicable laws, ordinances, and regulations.  
 
5. The Contractor shall maintain work areas in a neat, orderly, clean, and a 

safe manner. 
 

6. Perform all work necessary to complete this Contract in a satisfactory 
manner.  The Contractor shall furnish all equipment, tools, labor, and 
incidentals necessary to complete the work.  

 
7. Be responsible for restoring and/or repairing any property damage resulting 

from the Contractor's operations within three calendar days at the 
Contractor's expense and to the satisfaction of the PWR. 

 
8. Avoid spreading out equipment around the work area.  Location and layout 

of all equipment and materials at each jobsite shall be subject to the approval 
of the PWR. 

 
9. In the event that Contractor encounters any damaged and/or nonfunctioning 

catch basins inserts during catch basins cleaning, Contractor shall 
immediately notify the PWR.  Contractor shall NOT attempt to perform any 
type of repairs not included under the Scope of Work of this Contract.   

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 160 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.20 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

10. Provide at least one person per crew in charge of specific work who can 
speak, read, and write the English language. 

 
11. Be solely responsible for ensuring that all work performed under the 

Contract is performed in strict compliance with all applicable Federal, State, 
and local occupational safety regulations.   
 

12. The Contractor shall provide, at its expense, all safeguards, safety devices, 
protective equipment, and shall take any and all actions appropriate to 
providing a safe jobsite for employees and the public. 

 
13. Be responsible for the safety of equipment, material, and personnel under 

the Contractor's jurisdiction during the performance of all work.   
Public Works inspection of the Contractor's work shall not be considered an 
approval of the Contractor's safety measures. 

 
14. Perform additional as-needed work if required by the PWR. 

 
15. Responsible for obtaining all necessary City and/or County Permits and 

complying with all safety and other regulatory requirements. 
 
16. Responsible for the security of all of his equipment and public property 

during all phases of Contract work.  For all Contract work, the Contractor 
shall provide protection of his equipment and public property against 
vandalism and/or accidental damaged during both working and nonworking 
hours. 
 

17. Pay all fines, fees, and penalties resulting from traffic control and parking 
violations, such as, but not limited to, overloading, truck route, permits, 
equipment defects, and curb stopping or parking restrictions. 

 
18. Responsible for the safety of his personnel, including providing safety 

training and safety devices, such as traffic delineators and warning lights at 
the worksites. 

 
19. Have copies or suitable extracts of all applicable Construction Safety 

Orders, Tunnel Safety Orders, and General Industrial Safety Orders issued 
by the State Division of Industrial Safety at the worksite at all times.  

Appropriately implement BMPs to control, prevent, remove, or reduce 
pollution.  The Contractor can refer to the California Storm Water BMP 
Handbooks, 2010 Construction BMP Handbook. This Publication is 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 161 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.21 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

available from: 
  

Los Angeles County  
Public Works  
Cashier's Office 
900 South Fremont Avenue 
Alhambra, CA 91803 
(626) 458-6959  

Contractor shall always have a minimum of one readily accessible copy of 
this publication on the Contract site. 
 

20. Within five working days of notice by the Public Works Inspector, the 
Contractor shall correct any deficiencies in their work, including, but not 
limited to:  manhole set screw bolts missing, damaged, or not greased; 
stencil not placed or illegible; debris still within the basin and/or within the  
first 6 feet of the connector pipe from the catch basin; and unclean 
conditions on or surrounding the catch basin.  
 

22.  Contractor shall possess a valid and active Waste Collector Permit issued 
by the Los Angeles County Department of Public Health.  Failure to maintain 
a valid and active Waste Collector permit may lead to Contract termination 
or suspension. 
 

N. Project Safety Official 
 

The Contractor shall designate in writing a Project Safety Official who shall be 
thoroughly familiar with the Contractor's Injury and Illness Prevention Program and 
Code of Safe Practices.  The Contractor's Project Safety Official shall be available 
at all times to abate any potential safety hazards and shall have the authority and 
responsibility to shut down an operation, if necessary.  Failure by the Contractor 
to provide the required Project Safety Official shall be grounds for  
Public Works to direct the cessation of all work activities and operations at no cost 
to Public Works until such time as the Contractor is in compliance. 
 

O. Responsibilities of Public Works 
 

Public Works will determine the need for as-needed services and conduct jobsite 
inspection. 
 

P. Liquidated Damages 
 

1. In any case of the Contractor's failure to meet certain specified 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 162 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.22 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

performance requirements, Public Works may, in lieu of other remedies 
provided by law or the Contract, assess liquidated damages in specified 
sums and deduct them from any regularly scheduled payment to the 
Contractor.  However, neither the provision of a sum of liquidated 
damages for nonperformance or untimely or inadequate performance nor 
Public Works acceptance of liquidated damages shall be construed to waive 
Public Works right to reimbursement for damage to its property or 
indemnification against third-party claims. 
 

2. The amounts of liquidated damages have been set in recognition of the 
following circumstances existing at the time of the formation of the Contract: 

 
a. All of the time limits and acts required to be done by both parties 

are of the essence of the Contract. 
 

b. The parties are both experienced in the performance of the 
Contract work. 

 
c. The Contract contains a reasonable statement of the work to be 

performed in order that the expectations of the parties to the  
Contract are realized.  The expectation of Public Works is that the 
work will be performed with due care in a workmanlike, competent,  
timely, and cost-efficient manner while the expectation of the 
Contractor is a realization of a profit through the ability to perform the 
Contract work in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 
Contract at the Bid price. 

 
d. The parties are not under any compulsion to Contract. 

 
e. The Contractor's acceptance of the assessment of liquidated 

damages against it for unsatisfactory and late performance is by  
agreement and willingness to be bound as part of the consideration 
being offered to the District for the award of the Contract. 

 
f. It would be difficult for Public Works to prove the loss resulting from 

nonperformance or untimely, negligent, or inadequate performance 
of the work. 
 

g. The liquidated sums specified represent a fair approximation of the 
damages incurred by the District resulting from the Contractor's 
failure to meet the performance standard as to each item for which 
an amount of liquidated damages is specified. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 163 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.23 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

3. The Contractor shall pay Public Works, or Public Works may withhold and 
deduct from monies due the Contractor, liquidated damages in the sum of 
$500 for each consecutive working day that the Contractor fails to complete 
dry season or storm season catch basin cleaning or stenciling work within 
the time specified, unless otherwise provided in this Contract or approved 
by PWR or for any violation of safety practices including those outlined in 
the Confined Space Manual, Exhibit N. 

 
The Contractor shall pay Public Works, or Public Works may withhold and 
deduct from monies due to the Contractor, liquidated damages in the sum 
of $100 for each deficiency the Contractor fails to correct within five working 
days of notice by the Public Works Inspector. 

 
4. In addition to the above, Public Works may use Exhibit F, Performance 

Requirements Summary, to evaluate Contractor's performance.  
 

Q. Federally Funded Work 
 

This provision will apply when federally funded or potentially federally funded work 
is needed by County. In accordance with Federal Executive Order 12549 and 
12689 (Debarment and Suspension), individuals or entities that have been 
debarred by the Federal government may not receive work under this Contract as 
a Contractor or Subcontractor.  Contractors and/or Subcontractors listed on the 
governmental exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM) are not 
eligible to receive federally funded work under this contract.  See Office of 
Management and Budget guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive 
Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 
Comp., p. 235), "Debarment and Suspension”.  The SAM exclusions contains the 
names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by Federal agencies 
as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority. 
 
For federally funded work, the Contract Manager will, before assigning work to the 
Contractor, verify that the Contractor is not listed on the governmental exclusions 
in the SAM as a party excluded or ineligible by Federal agencies to participate in 
federally funded projects. For your reference, a List of Debarred Contractors by 
U.S. Department of Labor's (DOL) Office of Federal Contract Compliance 
Programs (OFCCP) may be obtained by going to the following website: 
https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/. 

 
If the Contractor is listed on the governmental exclusions in the SAM as a party 
excluded or ineligible by Federal agencies to participate in federally funded 
projects, then said Contractor will not be offered the work.  The Contract Manager 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 164 of 778



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 

  
-A.24 

                            CB Cleanout Services 
                                         (BRC000287) 

       
  
  
  
  
 

will notify the Contractor of their negative standing in the SAM. The Contract 
Manager will also notify the Contractor of their ineligibility to receive any federally 
funded work under this contract, until the Contractor is able to satisfactorily correct 
the issue.  The Contractor shall notify the Contract Manager when the Contractor 
has corrected their negative standing in the SAM, and the Contractor is no longer 
listed on the governmental exclusions in the SAM. 
 
If the Contractor is not listed on the governmental exclusions in the SAM as a party 
excluded or ineligible by Federal agencies to participate in federally funded 
projects, Public Works may offer said Contractor the federally funded work.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P:\aepub\Service Contracts\CONTRACT\Jairo\CATCH BASIN\2021 IFB\06 FINAL AGREEMENT\07 SOW.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 165 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 166 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 167 of 778



EXHIBIT B 

  

- B.1 - 
 

 Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

SERVICE CONTRACT GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

SECTION 1 
 

INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT 
 

A. Ambiguities or Discrepancies 

Both parties have either consulted or had the opportunity to consult with counsel 
regarding the terms of this Contract and are fully cognizant of all terms and 
conditions.  Should there be any uncertainty, ambiguity, or discrepancy in the terms 
or provisions hereof, or should any misunderstanding arise as to the interpretation 
to be placed upon any position hereof or the applicability of the provisions 
hereunder, neither party shall be deemed as the drafter of this Contract and the 
uncertainty, ambiguity, or discrepancy shall not be construed against either party. 

B. Definitions 

Whenever in the Request for Proposals, Contract, Scope of Work, Specifications, 
Terms, Requirements, and/or Conditions the following terms are used, the intent 
and meaning shall be interpreted as follows: 

Agreement. The written, signed accord covering the performance of the requested.  

Board. The Board of Supervisors of County of Los Angeles and Ex-Officio 
Board of Supervisors of the Los Angeles County Flood Control District. 

Contract. The written agreement covering the performance of the service and the 
furnishing of labor, materials, supervision, and equipment in the performance of the 
service.  The Contract includes the Agreement, Exhibit A, Scope of Work 
(Specifications); Exhibit B, Service Contract General Requirements;  
Exhibit C, Internal Revenue Service Notice 1015; Exhibit D, Safely Surrendered 
Baby Law Posters; Exhibit E, Defaulted Property Tax Reduction Program; and 
other appropriate exhibits, amendments, and change orders.  Included are all 
supplemental agreements amending or extending the service to be performed, 
which may be required to supply acceptable services specified herein. 

Contractor. The person or persons, sole proprietor, partnership, joint venture, 
corporation, or other legal entity who has entered into an agreement with County 
and/or District to perform or execute the work covered by this Contract. 

Contract Work or Work. The entire contemplated work of maintenance and repair to 
be performed, and services rendered as prescribed in this Contract. 

County. Includes County of Los Angeles, Los Angeles County Public Works, Los 
Angeles County Road Department, and/or Los Angeles County Engineer. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 168 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 

 - B.2 - Catch Basins 
(BRC000287) 

 

Day. Calendar day(s) unless otherwise specified. 

Direct Employee. Worker employed by Contractor under Contractor's State and 
Federal taxpayer identification. 

Director. The Director of Public Works, County of Los Angeles, as used herein, 
includes the Road Commissioner, County of Los Angeles; County Engineer, 
County of Los Angeles; Chief Engineer, Los Angeles County Flood Control District; 
and/or authorized representative(s). 

District. Los Angeles County Flood Control District, or Los Angeles County 
Waterworks Districts, or Los Angeles County Consolidated Sewer Maintenance 
District. 

Employee Leasing. Any agreement to employ any worker, at any tier, that is neither 
a Subcontract nor a direct employee relationship. 

Fiscal Year. The 12-month period beginning July 1 and ending the following 
June 30. 

Maximum Contract Sum. The Maximum Contract Sum is the aggregate total 
amount of compensation authorized by the Board. 

Participating Cities.  Cities that have submitted a Request for Services to the 
Department of Public Works, and their Catch Basins have been added to the 
Contract.  

Proposal. The written materials that a Proposer submits in response to a solicitation 
document (Request for Proposals). 

Proposer. Any individual, person or persons, sole proprietor, firm, partnership, joint 
venture, corporation, or other legal entity submitting a Proposal for the work, 
acting directly or through a duly authorized representative. 

Public Works. Los Angeles County Public Works. 

Solicitation. Request for Proposals, Invitation for Bids, Request for Statement of 
Qualifications, or Request for Quotation. 

Specifications. The directions, provisions, and requirements contained herein, 
as supplemented by such special provisions as may be necessary pertaining to 
method, manner, and place of performing the work under this Contract. 

Subcontract. An agreement by the Contractor to employ a Subcontractor at any 
tier; to employ or agree to employ a Subcontractor, at any tier. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 169 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 

 - B.3 - Catch Basins 
(BRC000287) 

 

Subcontractor. Any individual, person or persons, sole proprietor, firm, 
partnership, joint venture, corporation, or other legal entity furnishing supplies, 
services of any nature, equipment, and/or materials to Contractor in furtherance 
of the Contractor's performance of this Contract, at any tier, under oral or written 
agreement. 

C. Headings 

The headings herein contained are for convenience and reference only and are 
not intended to define or limit the scope of any provision thereof.

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 170 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.4 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

 

SECTION 2 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS PERTAINING TO CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATION 

A. Amendments 

1. For any change which affects the Scope of Work, Contract sum, payments, 
or any term or condition included in this Contract, an amendment shall be 
prepared and executed by Contractor and the Board or if delegated by the 
Board, the Director, and Contractor. 

2. The Board or County's Chief Executive Officer or designee may require the 
addition and/or change of certain terms and conditions in this Contract 
during the term of this Contract.  County and/or District reserves the right to 
add and/or change such provisions as required by the Board or the Chief 
Executive Officer.  To implement such changes, an amendment or a change 
order to this Contract shall be prepared by Public Works and signed by the 
Contractor. 

3. County and/or District may, at its sole discretion, authorize extensions of 
time to this Contract's term.  Contractor agrees that such extensions of time 
shall not change any other term or condition of this Contract during the 
period of such extensions.  To implement an extension of time, an 
amendment to this Contract shall be prepared and executed by Contractor 
and the Board or if delegated by the Board, the Director, and Contractor.  To 
the extent that extensions of time for Contractor performance do not impact 
either scope or amount of this Contract, Public Works may, at its sole 
discretion, 
grant Contractor extensions of time, provided the aggregate of all such 
extensions during the life of this Contract shall not exceed 180 days. 

4. For any change which does not materially affect the Scope of Work or any 
other term or condition included under this Contract, a change order shall be 
prepared by Public Works and signed by the Contractor.  If the change order 
is prepared by the Contractor, it shall be approved by Public Works and 
signed by the Contractor and the County and/or District. 

B. Assignment and Delegation 

Contractor shall not assign its rights or delegate its duties under this Contract, or 
both, whether in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of County 
and/or District, in its discretion, and any attempted assignment or delegation 
without such consent shall be null and void.  For purposes of this paragraph, 
County and/or District consent shall require a written amendment to this 
Contract, which is formally approved and executed by Contractor and the Board 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 171 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.5 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

or if delegated by the Board, the Director, and Contractor. 
Any payments by County and/or District to any approved delegatee or assignee 
on any claim under this Contract shall be deductible, at County and/or District's 
sole discretion, against the claims which Contractor may have against County 
and/or District. 
 
1. Shareholders, partners, members, or other equity holders of Contractor 

may transfer, sell, exchange, assign, or divest themselves of any interest 
they may have therein.  However, in the event any such sale, transfer, 
exchange, assignment, or divestment is effected in such a way as to give 
majority control of Contractor to any person(s), corporation, partnership, 
or legal entity other than the majority controlling interest therein at the time 
of execution of this Contract, such disposition is an assignment requiring 
the prior written consent of County and/or District in accordance with 
applicable provisions of this Contract. 

2. Any assumption, assignment, delegation, or takeover of any of 
Contractor's duties, responsibilities, obligations, or performance of same 
by any person or entity other than Contractor, whether through 
assignment, Subcontract, delegation, merger, buyout, or any other 
mechanism, with or without consideration for any reason whatsoever 
without County and/or District's express prior written approval, shall be a 
material breach of this Contract, which may result in the suspension or 
termination of this Contract. In the event of such a termination, County 
and/or District shall be entitled to pursue the same remedies against 
Contractor as it could pursue in the event of default of Contractor. 

C. Authorization Warranty  

Contractor represents and warrants that the person(s) executing this Contract for 
Contractor is an authorized agent who has actual authority to bind Contractor to 
each and every term, condition, and obligation of this Contract and that all 
requirements of Contractor have been fulfilled to provide such actual authority. 

D. Budget Reduction 

In the event that the County's Board of Supervisors adopts, in any fiscal year, 
a County Budget which provides for reductions in the salaries and benefits paid 
to the majority of County and/or District employees and imposes similar 
reductions with respect to County and/or District Contracts, the County and/or 
District reserves the right to reduce its payment obligation under this Contract 
correspondingly for that fiscal year and any subsequent fiscal year during the 
term of this Contract (including any extensions), and the services to be provided 
by the Contractor under this Contract shall also be reduced correspondingly.  
Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, the Contractor shall continue to 
provide all of the services set forth in this Contract.  The County and/or District 's 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 172 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.6 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

notice to the Contractor regarding said reduction in payment obligation shall be 
provided within 30 calendar days of the Board's approval of such actions. 
 

E. Complaints 

Contractor shall develop, maintain, and operate procedures for receiving, 
investigating, and responding to any complaints by any individual. 

1. Within 12 business days after this Contract's effective date, Contractor shall 
provide County and/or District with Contractor's policy for receiving, 
investigating, and responding to any complaints by any individual. 

2. County and/or District will review Contractor's policy and provide Contractor 
with approval of said plan or with requested changes. 

3. If County and/or District requests changes in Contractor's policy, Contractor 
shall make such changes and resubmit the plan within five business days for 
County and/or District approval. 

4. If, at any time, Contractor wishes to change Contractor's policy, Contractor 
shall submit proposed changes to County and/or District for approval before 
implementation. 

5. Contractor shall preliminarily investigate all complaints and notify the 
Contract Manager of the status of the investigation within five business 
days of receiving the complaint. 

6. When complaints cannot be resolved informally, a system of 
follow-through shall be instituted which adheres to formal plans for specific 
actions and strict time deadlines. 

7. Copies of all written responses shall be sent to the Contract Manager 
within three business days of mailing to the complainant. 

F. Compliance with Applicable Laws 

1. In the performance of this Contract, Contractor shall comply with all 
applicable Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, 
directives, guidelines, policies, procedures, and all provisions required 
thereby to be included in this Contract are hereby incorporated herein by 
reference. 

2. Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless County and District, 
its officers, employees, and agents from and against any and all claims, 
demands, damages, liabilities, losses, costs, and expenses including, 
without limitation, defense costs and legal, accounting and other expert, 
consulting or professional fees, arising from, connected with, 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 173 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.7 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

or related to any failure by Contractor, its officers, employees, agents, or 
Subcontractors, to comply with any such laws, rules, regulations, 
ordinances, directives, guidelines, policies, or procedures as determined 
by County or District in its sole judgment.  Any legal defense pursuant to 
Contractor's indemnification obligations under this paragraph shall be 
conducted by Contractor and performed by counsel selected by 
Contractor and approved by County or District.  Notwithstanding the 
preceding sentence, County or District shall have the right to participate in 
any such defense at its sole cost and expense, except that in the event 
Contractor fails to provide County and/or District with a full and adequate 
defense, as determined by County and/or District in its sole judgment, 
County and/or District shall be entitled to retain its own counsel including, 
without limitation, County Counsel, and to reimbursement from Contractor 
for all such costs and expenses incurred by County and/or District in doing 
so.  Contractor shall not have the right to enter into any settlement, agree 
to any injunction or other equitable relief, or make any admission, in each 
case, on behalf of County and/or District without County and/or District's 
prior written approval. 

G. Compliance with Civil Rights Laws 

Contractor hereby assures that it will comply with Subchapter VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 USC Sections 2000 (e)(1) through 2000 (e)(17), 
to the end that no person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, sex, religion, 
ancestry, age, condition of physical disability, marital status, political affiliation, 
or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, 
or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under this Contract or under any 
project, program, or activity supported by this Contract.  Contractor shall comply 
with its EEO Certification (Form PW-7). 

H. Confidentiality 

1. Contractor shall maintain the confidentiality of all records obtained from 
County and/or District under this Contract in accordance with all applicable 
Federal, State, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, and directives 
relating to confidentiality. 

2. Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless County and District, 
its officers, employees, and agents from and against any and all claims, 
demands, damages, liabilities, losses, costs, and expenses including, 
without limitation, defense costs and legal, accounting and other expert, 
consulting or professional fees, arising from, connected with, or related to 
any failure by Contractor, its officers, employees, agents, or 
Subcontractors, to comply with this paragraph, as determined by County 
and/or District in its sole judgment. Any legal defense pursuant to 
Contractor's indemnification obligations under this paragraph shall be 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 174 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.8 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

conducted by Contractor and performed by counsel selected by 
Contractor and approved by County and/or District. Notwithstanding the 
preceding sentence, County and/or District shall have the right to 
participate in any such defense at its sole cost and expense, except that in 
the event Contractor fails to provide County and/or District with a full and 
adequate defense, as determined by County and/or District in its sole 
judgment, County and/or District shall be entitled to retain its own counsel 
including, without limitation, County and/or District Counsel, and to 
reimbursement from Contractor for all such costs and expenses incurred 
by County and/or District in doing so. Contractor shall not have the right to 
enter into any settlement, agree to any injunction, or make any admission, 
in each case, on behalf of County without County and/or District's prior 
written approval. 

3. Contractor shall inform all of its officers, employees, agents, and 
Subcontractors providing services hereunder of the confidentiality 
provisions of this Contract. 

I. Conflict of Interest 

1. No County and/or District employee whose position with County and/or 
District enables such employee to influence the award of this Contract or 
any competing Contract shall be employed in any capacity by Contractor or 
have any other direct or indirect financial interest in this Contract.  No officer 
or employee of Contractor who may financially benefit from the performance 
of the work hereunder shall in any way participate in County and/or District's 
approval, or ongoing evaluation, of such work, or in any way attempt to 
unlawfully influence County and/or District's approval or ongoing evaluation 
of such work. 

 
2. Contractor represents and warrants that it is aware of, and its authorized 

officers have read, the provisions of Los Angeles County Code, 
Section 2.180.010, "Certain Contracts Prohibited," and that execution of this 
Agreement will not violate those provisions.  Contractor shall comply with all 
conflict of interest laws, ordinances, and regulations now in effect or 
hereafter to be enacted during the term of this Contract.  Contractor warrants 
that it is not now aware of any facts that create a conflict of interest.  If 
Contractor hereafter becomes aware of any facts that might reasonably be 
expected to create a conflict of interest, including those identified in Section 
2.180.010, it shall immediately make full written disclosure of such facts to 
County and/or District.  Full written disclosure shall include, but is not limited 
to, identification of all persons so identified and a complete description of all 
relevant circumstances.  Failure to comply with the provisions of this 
paragraph may be a material breach of this Contract subjecting Contractor 
to either Contract termination for default or debarment proceedings or both.   
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 175 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.9 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

J. Consideration of Hiring County and/or District Employees Targeted for Layoffs or 
are on a County Reemployment List 
 
Should the Contractor require additional or replacement personnel after the 
effective date of this Contract to perform the services set forth herein, the 
Contractor shall give first consideration for such employment openings to 
qualified permanent County and/or District employees who are targeted for layoff 
or qualified, former County and/or District employees who are on a 
reemployment list during the life of this Contract. 

K. Consideration of Hiring GAIN and GROW Participants 

1. Should Contractor require additional or replacement personnel after the 
effective date of this Contract, Contractor shall give consideration for any 
such employment openings to participants in County's Department of 
Public Social Services Greater Avenues for Independence 
(GAIN) Program and General Relief Opportunity for Work (GROW) 
Program who meet Contractor's minimum qualifications for the open 
position.  For this purpose, consideration shall mean that Contractor will 
interview qualified candidates.  County will refer GAIN and GROW 
participants by category to Contractor. Contractors shall report all job 
openings with job requirements to: GAINGROW@dpss.lacounty.gov and 
BSERVICES@wdacs.lacounty.gov and DPSS will refer qualified 
GAIN/GROW job candidates. 

2. In the event that both laid-off County and/or District employees and GAIN 
and GROW participants are available for hiring, County and/or District 
employees shall be given first priority. 

L. Contractor's Acknowledgment of County's Commitment to Child Support 
Enforcement 

Contractor acknowledges that County places a high priority on the enforcement 
of child support laws and the apprehension of child support evaders. 
Contractor understands that it is County's policy to encourage all County and/or 
District Contractors to voluntarily post County's L.A.'s Most Wanted:  Delinquent 
Parents poster in a prominent position at Contractor's place of business.  
County's Child Support Services Department will supply Contractor with the 
poster to be used. 

M. Contractor's Charitable Activities Compliance 

The Supervision of Trustees and Fundraisers for Charitable Purposes Act 
regulates entities receiving or raising charitable contributions. 
The "Nonprofit Integrity Act of 2004" (SB 1262, Chapter 919) increased 
Charitable Purposes Act requirements.  By requiring Contractors to complete the 
Charitable Contributions Certification (Form PW-12), County and/or District seeks 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 176 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.10 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

to ensure that all County and/or District Contractors which receive or raise 
charitable contributions comply with California law in order to protect County 
and/or District and its taxpayers.  A Contractor which receives or raises 
charitable contributions without complying with its obligations under California 
law commits a material breach subjecting it to 
either Contract termination for default or debarment proceedings or both. 
(Los Angeles County Code, Chapter 2.202). 

N. Contractor's Warranty of Adherence to County's Child Support Compliance 
Program 

1. Contractor acknowledges that County and/or District has established a 
goal of ensuring that all individuals who benefit financially from County 
and/or District through Contracts are in compliance with their court-
ordered child, family, and spousal support obligations in order to mitigate 
the economic burden otherwise imposed upon County and/or District and 
its taxpayers. 

2. As required by County's Child Support Compliance Program 
(Los Angeles County Code, Chapter 2.200), and without limiting 
Contractor's duty under this Contract to comply with all applicable 
provisions of law, Contractor warrants that it is now in compliance and 
shall during the term of this Contract maintain compliance with the 
employment and wage reporting requirements as required by the 
Federal Social Security Act (42 USC Section 653a) and 
California Unemployment Insurance Code, Section 1088.5, and shall 
implement all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Withholding Orders or 
Child Support Services Department Notices of Wage and 
Earnings Assignment for Child, Family, or Spousal Support, pursuant to 
Code of Civil Procedure Section 706.031 and Family Code, 
Section 5246(b). 

O. County and/or District's Quality Assurance Plan 
 

County and/or District or its agent will monitor the Contractor's performance 
under this Contract on not less than an annual basis.  Such monitoring will 
include assessing Contractor's compliance with all this Contract's terms and 
conditions and performance standards.  Contractor deficiencies which County 
and/or District determines are significant or continuing and that may place 
performance of this Contract in jeopardy, if not corrected, will be reported to the 
Board.  The report will include improvement/corrective action measures taken by 
County and/or District and Contractor. If improvement does not occur consistent 
with the corrective action measures, County and/or District may suspend or 
terminate this Contract for default or impose other penalties as specified in this 
Contract. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 177 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.11 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

P. Damage to County and/or District Facilities, Buildings, or Grounds 

1. Contractor shall repair, or cause to be repaired, at its own cost, any and all 
damage to County and/or District facilities, buildings, or grounds caused 
by Contractor, employees, or agents of Contractor. 

2. Such repairs shall be made immediately after Contractor has become 
aware of such damage, but in no event later than 30 days after the 
occurrence.  If Contractor fails to make timely repairs, County and/or 
District may make any necessary repairs.  All costs incurred by County 
and/or District, as determined by County and/or District, for such repairs 
shall be repaid by Contractor by cash payment upon demand.  County 
and/or District may deduct from any payment otherwise due Contractor for 
costs incurred by County and/or District to make such repairs. 

Q. Employment Eligibility Verification 

1. Contractor warrants that it fully complies with all Federal and State 
statutes and regulations regarding the employment of aliens and others 
and that all of its employees performing work under this Contract meet the 
citizenship or alien status requirements set forth in Federal and State 
statutes and regulations.  Contractor shall obtain, from all covered 
employees performing services hereunder, all verification and other 
documentation of employment eligibility status required by Federal and 
State statutes and regulations including, but not limited to, the Immigration 
Reform and Control Act of 1986 (P.L. 99-603), or as they currently exist 
and as they may be hereafter amended.  Contractor shall retain all such 
documentation for all covered employees for the period prescribed by law. 

2. Contractor shall, defend, and hold harmless the County of Los Angeles, its 
Special Districts, Elected Officials, Officers, Agents, Employees, 
and Volunteers from employer sanctions and any other liability which may 
be assessed against Contractor or County and/or District or both in 
connection with any alleged violation of Federal or State statutes or 
regulations pertaining to the eligibility for employment of persons 
performing services under this Contract. 

R. Counterparts and Electronic Signatures and Representations 

At the discretion of County and/or District, County and/or District may agree to 
regard facsimile representations of original signatures of Contractor's authorized 
officers, when appearing in appropriate places on the change notices and 
amendments prepared pursuant to this Exhibit's Amendments, and received via 
communications facilities, as legally sufficient evidence that such original signatures 
have been affixed to change notices and amendments to this Contract, such that 
the Contractor need not follow up facsimile transmissions of such documents with 
subsequent (nonfacsimile) transmission of "original" versions of such documents. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 178 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.12 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

S. Fair Labor Standards 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Fair Labor 
Standards Act and shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the County and/or 
District County of Los Angeles, its Special Districts, Elected Officials, Officers, 
Agents, Employees, and Volunteers from any and all liability including, but not 
limited to, wages, overtime pay, liquidated damages, penalties, court costs, and 
attorneys' fees arising under any wage and hour law including, but not limited to, 
the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act, for work performed by Contractor's 
employees for which County and/or District may be found jointly or solely liable. 
 

T. Force Majeure  

1. Neither party shall be liable for such party's failure to perform its 
obligations under and in accordance with this Contract, if such failure 
arises out of fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, other natural 
occurrences, strikes, lockouts (other than a lockout by such party or any of 
such party's Subcontractors), freight embargoes, or other similar events to 
those described above, but in every such case the failure to perform must 
be totally beyond the control and without any fault or negligence of such 
party (such events are referred to in this subparagraph as 
"force majeure events").  

2. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a default by a Subcontractor of Contractor 
shall not constitute a force majeure event, unless such default arises out 
of causes beyond the control of both Contractor and such Subcontractor, 
and without any fault or negligence of either of them.  In such case, 
Contractor shall not be liable for failure to perform, unless the goods or  
services to be furnished by the Subcontractor were obtainable from other 
sources in sufficient time to permit Contractor to meet the required 
performance schedule.  As used in this subparagraph, the term 
"Subcontractor" and "Subcontractors" mean Subcontractors at any tier. 

3. In the event Contractor's failure to perform arises out of a force majeure 
event, Contractor agrees to use commercially reasonable best efforts to 
obtain goods or services from other sources, if applicable, and to 
otherwise mitigate the damages and reduce the delay caused by such 
force majeure event.   

U. Governing Laws, Jurisdiction, and Venue 

This Contract shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with the laws of 
the State of California.  To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, 
Contractor and County and/or District agree and consent to the exclusive 
jurisdiction of the courts of the State of California for all purposes concerning this 
Contract and further agree and consent that venue of any action brought in 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 179 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.13 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

connection with or arising out of this Contract, shall be exclusively in the County of 
Los Angeles. 

V. Most Favored Public Entity   

If the Contractor's prices decline, or should the Contractor at any time during the 
term of this Contract provide the same goods or services under similar quantity 
and delivery conditions to the State of California or any County and/or District, 
municipality, or district of the State at prices below those set forth in this Contract, 
then such lower prices shall be immediately extended to the County and/or District. 

W. Nondiscrimination and Affirmative Action 

1. Contractor certifies and agrees that all persons employed by it, 
its affiliates, subsidiaries, or holding companies are and shall be treated 
equally without regard to or because of race, color, religion, ancestry, 
national origin, sex, age, physical or mental disability, marital status, 
or political affiliation, in compliance with all applicable Federal and State 
antidiscrimination laws and regulations. 

2. Contractor shall certify to, and comply with, the provisions of Contractor's 
Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Certification (Form PW-7). 

3. Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are 
employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without 
regard to race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, sex, age, 
physical or mental disability, marital status, or political affiliation, 
in compliance with all applicable Federal and State antidiscrimination laws 
and regulations.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to, 
employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment 
advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation, and selection of training, including apprenticeship. 

4. Contractor certifies and agrees that it will deal with its Subcontractors, 
bidders, or vendors without regard to or because of race, color, religion, 
ancestry, national origin, sex, age, physical or mental disability, 
marital status, or political affiliation. 

5. Contractor certifies and agrees that it, its affiliates, subsidiaries, or holding 
companies shall comply with all applicable Federal and State laws and 
regulations to the end that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, 
religion, ancestry, national origin, sex, age, physical or mental disability, 
marital status, or political affiliation, be excluded from participation in, 
be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination 
under this Contract or under any project, program, or activity supported by 
this Contract. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 180 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.14 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

6. Contractor shall allow County and/or District representatives access to 
Contractor's employment records during regular business hours to verify 
compliance with the provisions of this paragraph when so requested by 
County and/or District. 

7. If County and/or District finds that any of the above provisions have been 
violated, such violation shall constitute a material breach of this Contract 
upon which County and/or District may terminate for default or suspend 
this Contract. While County and/or District reserves the right to determine 
independently that the antidiscrimination provisions of this Contract have 
been violated, in addition, a determination by the California Fair 
Employment Practices Commission or the Federal Equal Employment 
Opportunity Commission that Contractor has violated Federal or State 
antidiscrimination laws or regulations shall constitute a finding by County 
and/or District that Contractor has violated the antidiscrimination 
provisions of this Contract. 

8. The parties agree that in the event Contractor violates any of the 
antidiscrimination provisions of this Contract, County and/or District shall, 
at its sole option, be entitled to a sum of $500 for each violation pursuant 
to California Civil Code, Section 1671, as liquidated damages in lieu of 
terminating or suspending this Contract. 

X. Nonexclusivity 

Nothing herein is intended nor shall be construed as creating any exclusive 
arrangement with Contractor.  This Contract shall not restrict County and/or 
District from acquiring similar, equal, or like goods and/or services from other 
entities or sources. 

Y. No Payment for Services Provided Following Expiration/Suspension/Termination of 
Contract 

Contractor shall have no claim against County and/or District for payment of any 
money or reimbursement, of any kind whatsoever, for any service provided by 
Contractor after the expiration, suspension, or other termination of this Contract. 
Should Contractor receive any such payment, it shall immediately notify County 
and/or District and shall immediately repay all such funds to County and/or 
District.  Payment by County and/or District for services rendered after 
expiration/suspension/termination of this Contract shall not constitute a waiver of 
County and/or District's right to recover such payment from Contractor.  This 
provision shall survive the expiration/suspension/termination of this Contract. 
 

Z. Notice of Delays 

Except as otherwise provided under this Contract, when either party has 
knowledge that any actual or potential situation is delaying or threatens to delay 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 181 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.15 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

the timely performance of this Contract, that party shall, within one business day, 
give notice thereof, including all relevant information with respect thereto, 
to the other party. 

AA. Notice of Disputes 

Contractor shall bring to the attention of the Contract Manager any dispute 
between County and/or District and Contractor regarding the performance of 
services as stated in this Contract.  If the Contract Manager is not able to resolve 
the dispute, the Director will resolve it. 

BB. Notice to Employees Regarding the Federal Earned Income Credit 

Contractor shall notify its employees, and shall require each Subcontractor to 
notify its employees, that they may be eligible for the Federal Earned Income 
Credit under the Federal income tax laws.  Such notice shall be provided in 
accordance with the requirements set forth in Internal Revenue Service 
Notice 1015 (Exhibit C). 

CC. Notices 

Notices desired or required to be given under these Specifications, Conditions, 
or Terms herein or any law now or hereafter in effect may, at the option of the 
party giving the same, be given by enclosing the same in a sealed envelope 
addressed to the party for whom intended and by depositing such envelope with 
postage prepaid with the United States Post Office and any such notice and the 
envelope containing the same shall be addressed to Contractor at its place of 
business, or such other place as may be hereinafter designated in writing by 
Contractor.  The notices and envelopes containing the same to County and/or 
District shall be addressed to: 

Contracting Manager, Business Relations and Contracts Division 
Los Angeles County Public Works  
P.O. Box 1460 
Alhambra, CA 91802-1460 

In the event of suspension or termination of this Contract, notices may also be 
given upon personal delivery to any person whose actual knowledge of such 
suspension or termination would be sufficient notice to Contractor. 
Actual knowledge of such suspension or termination by an individual Contractor 
or by a copartner, if Contractor is a partnership; or by the president, 
vice president, secretary, or general manager, if Contractor is a corporation; 
or by the managing agent regularly in charge of the work on behalf of said 
Contractor shall in any case be sufficient notice. 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 182 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.16 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

DD. Publicity 

Contractor shall not disclose any details in connection with this Contract to any 
person or entity except as may be otherwise provided hereunder or required by 
law.  However, in recognizing Contractor's need to identify its services and 
related clients to sustain itself, County and/or District shall not inhibit Contractor 
from publicizing its role under this Contract within the following conditions: 

1. Contractor shall develop all publicity material in a professional manner. 

2. During the term of this Contract, Contractor shall not, and shall not 
authorize another to, publish or disseminate commercial advertisements, 
press releases, feature articles, or other materials using the name of 
County and/or District without the prior written consent of the Contract 
Manager.  County and/or District shall not unreasonably withhold such 
written consent. 

3. Contractor may, without prior written consent of County and/or District, 
indicate in its proposals and sales materials that it has been awarded this 
Contract with County and/or District, provided that the requirements of this 
paragraph shall apply. 

EE. Public Records Act 

1. Any documents submitted by Contractor; all information obtained in 
connection with County and/or District's right to audit and inspect 
Contractor's documents, books, and accounting records pursuant to this  
Exhibit's Record Retention and Inspection/Audit Settlement of this 
Contract; as well as those documents which were required to be submitted 
in response to the RFP used in the solicitation process for this Contract, 
become the exclusive property of County and/or District.  All such 
documents become a matter of public record and shall be regarded as 
public records, except those documents that are marked "Trade Secret," 
"Confidential," or "Proprietary" and are deemed excluded from disclosure 
under Government Code 6250 et seq. (Public Records Act).  County 
and/or District shall not in any way be liable or responsible for the 
disclosure of any such records including, with limitation, those so marked, 
if disclosure is required by law, or by an order issued by a court of 
competent jurisdiction. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 183 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.17 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

2. In the event County and/or District is required to defend an action on a 
Public Records Act request for any of the aforementioned documents, 
information, books, records, and/or contents of a proposal marked "Trade 
Secret," "Confidential," or "Proprietary," Contractor agrees to defend and 
indemnify County and/or District from all costs and expenses, including 
reasonable attorney's fees, in connection with any requested action or 
liability arising under the Public Records Act. 

FF. Record Retention and Inspection/Audit Settlement 

Contractor shall maintain accurate and complete financial records of its activities 
and operations relating to this Contract in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles.  Contractor shall also maintain accurate and complete 
employment and other records relating to its performance of this Contract.  
Contractor agrees that County and/or District, or its authorized representatives, 
shall have access to and the right to examine, audit, excerpt, copy, or transcribe 
any pertinent transaction, activity, or record relating to this Contract.  All such 
material including, but not limited to, all financial records, bank statements, 
cancelled checks, or other proof of payment, timecards, sign-in/sign-out sheets, 
and other time and employment records, and proprietary data and information 
shall be kept and maintained by Contractor and shall be made available to County 
and/or District during the term of this Contract and for a period of five years 
thereafter unless County and/or District's written permission is given to dispose of 
any such material prior to such time.  All such material shall be maintained by 
Contractor at a location in County, provided that if any such material is located 
outside County, then, at County and/or District's option, Contractor shall pay 
County and/or District for travel, per diem, and other costs incurred by County 
and/or District to examine, audit, excerpt, copy, or transcribe such material at such 
other location. 

1. In the event that an audit of Contractor is conducted specifically regarding 
this Contract by any Federal or State auditor, or by any auditor or 
accountant employed by Contractor or otherwise, then Contractor shall file 
a copy of such audit report with County's Auditor-Controller within 30 days 
of Contractor's receipt thereof, unless otherwise provided by applicable 
Federal or State law or under this Contract.  Subject to applicable law, 
County and/or District shall make a reasonable effort to maintain the 
confidentiality of such audit report(s). 

2. Failure on the part of Contractor to comply with any of the provisions of this 
paragraph shall constitute a material breach of this Contract upon which 
County and/or District may suspend or terminate for default or suspend this 
Contract. 

3. If, at any time during the term of this Contract or within five years after the 
expiration or termination of this Contract, representatives of County and/or 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 184 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.18 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

District conduct an audit of Contractor regarding the work performed under 
this Contract, and if such audit finds that County and/or District's dollar 
liability for any such work is less than payments made by County and/or 
District to Contractor, then the difference shall be either:  a) repaid by 
Contractor to County and/or District by cash payment upon demand or b) at 
the sole option of County's Auditor-Controller, deducted from any amounts 
due to Contractor from County and/or District, whether under this Contract 
or otherwise.  If such audit finds that County and/or District's dollar liability 
for such work is more than the payments made by County and/or District to 
Contractor, then the difference shall be paid to Contractor by County and/or 
District by cash payment, provided that in no event shall County and/or 
District's maximum obligation for this Contract exceed the funds 
appropriated by County and/or District for the purpose of this Contract. 

GG. Recycled-Content Paper Products 

Consistent with Board policy to reduce the amount of solid waste deposited at 
County and/or District landfills, Contractor agrees to use recycled-content paper 
to the maximum extent possible under this Contract. 

HH. Contractor's Employee Criminal Background Investigation 

Each of Contractor's staff performing services under this Contract, who is in a 
designated sensitive position, as determined by County and/or District in County 
and/or District's sole discretion, shall undergo and pass a background 
investigation to the satisfaction of County and/or District as a condition of 
beginning and continuing to perform services under this Contract. Such 
background investigation must be obtained through fingerprints submitted to the 
California Department of Justice to include State, local, and federal-level review, 
which may include, but shall not be limited to, criminal conviction information.  
The fees associated with the background investigation shall be at the expense of 
the Contractor, regardless of whether the member of Contractor's staff passes or 
fails the background investigation. 
  
If a member of Contractor's staff does not pass the background investigation, 
County and/or District may request that the member of Contractor's staff be 
removed immediately from performing services under the Contract.  Contractor 
shall comply with County and/or District's request at any time during the term of 
the Contract. County and/or District will not provide to Contractor or to 
Contractor's staff any information obtained through the County and/or District's 
background investigation  
  
County and/or District, in its sole discretion, may immediately deny or terminate 
facility access to any member of Contractor's staff that does not pass such 
investigation to the satisfaction of the County and/or District or whose 
background or conduct is incompatible with County and/or District facility access.  

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 185 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.19 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

  
Disqualification of any member of Contractor's staff pursuant to this section shall 
not relieve Contractor of its obligation to complete all work in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of this Contract. 
 

II. Subcontracting 

The requirements of this Contract may not be Subcontracted by Contractor without 
the advance written approval of County and/or District.  Any attempt by Contractor 
to Subcontract without the prior written consent of County and/or District may be 
deemed a material breach of this Contract and the County and/or District may 
suspend or terminate for this Contract default. 

1. If Contractor desires to Subcontract, Contractor shall provide the following 
information promptly at County and/or District's request: 

a. A description of the work to be performed by the Subcontractor. 

b. A draft copy of the proposed Subcontract. 

c. Other pertinent information and/or certifications requested by 
County. 

2. Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold County and/or District 
harmless with respect to the activities of each and every Subcontractor in 
the same manner and to the same degree as if such Subcontractor(s) 
were Contractor employees. 

3. Contractor shall remain fully responsible for all performances required of it 
under this Contract, including those that the Contractor has determined to 
Subcontract, notwithstanding County and/or District's approval of 
Contractor's proposed Subcontract. 

4. County and/or District's consent to Subcontract shall not waive County 
and/or District's right to prior and continuing approval of any and all 
personnel, including Subcontractor employees, providing services under 
this Contract.  Contractor is responsible to notify its Subcontractors of this 
County and/or District right. 

5. County and/or District's Contract Manager is authorized to act for and on 
behalf of County and/or District with respect to approval of any Subcontract 
and Subcontractor employees. 

6. Contractor shall be solely liable and responsible for all payments or other 
compensation to all Subcontractors and their officers, employees, agents, 
and successors in interest arising through services performed hereunder, 
notwithstanding County and/or District's consent to Subcontract. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 186 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.20 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

7. Contractor shall obtain certificates of insurance, which establish that the 
Subcontractor maintains all the programs of insurance required by County 
and/or District from each approved Subcontractor.  Contractor shall ensure 
delivery of all such documents to Business Relations and Contracts 
Division, P.O. Box 1460, Alhambra, California 91802-1460, before any 
Subcontractor employee may perform any work hereunder. 

8. Employee Leasing is prohibited. 

JJ. Validity 

If any provision of this Contract or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of this Contract and the application of 
such provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

KK. Waiver 

No waiver by County and/or District of any breach of any provision of this 
Contract shall constitute a waiver of any other breach of said provision or of any 
other provision of this Contract.  Failure of County and/or District to enforce at 
anytime, or from time to time, any provision of this Contract shall not be 
construed as a waiver thereof. 

LL. Warranty Against Contingent Fees 

1. Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed 
or retained to solicit or secure this Contract upon an agreement or 
understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 
fee, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial 
or selling agencies maintained by Contractor for the purpose of securing 
business. 

2. For breach of this warranty, County and/or District shall have the right, in 
its sole discretion, to suspend or terminate this Contract for default, deduct 
from amounts owing to the Contractor, or otherwise recover, the full 
amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. 

MM. Time Off for Voting 

The Contractor shall notify its employees, and shall require each Subcontractor 
to notify and provide to its employees, information regarding the time off for 
voting law (Elections Code, Section 14000).  Not less than ten days before every 
Statewide election, every Contractor and Subcontractors shall keep posted 
conspicuously at the place of work, if practicable, or elsewhere where it can be 
seen as employees come or go to their place of work, a notice setting forth the 
provisions of Section 14000. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 187 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.21 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

NN. Local Small Business Enterprise Utilization 

When requested by the County and/or District, the Contractor shall provide to the 
County via methods specified by the County and/or District, such as submission of 
electronic live (or dynamic) data on invoices for the prime and all subcontractors 
using County and/or District-designated third party software system or to a County 
and/or District approved website, or other means of submitting expenditure 
information on subcontractors, including but not limited to the following information: 
the name, business address and telephone number/email address of each 
subcontractor.   
 
In addition, the Contractor shall be required to provide each of the specified 
subcontractor Local Small Business Enterprise (SBE), Disabled Veteran Business 
Enterprise (DVBE), and Social Enterprise (SE) status (i.e., whether any of the listed 
subcontractors are Local SBE's) and the proposed monetary amount of the work 
the subcontractor will perform on each Notice to Proceed. At the time of submittal of 
each invoice, the Contractor shall indicate, via methods specified by the County 
and/or District, the actual dollar amounts paid to each listed subcontractor who 
performed work on the project.  The subcontractor may be requested to confirm 
receipt of the actual payment to the subcontractor by the prime. 
 
The parties agree that it will be impracticable or extremely difficult to fix the extent of 
actual damages resulting from the failure to the Contractor to comply with this 
Section.  The parties will agree that under the current circumstances a reasonable 
estimate of such damages is specified in Exhibit F, Performance Requirements 
Summary, and that the Contractor shall be liable to the County and/or District for 
said amount. 
 
If in the judgment of the Director, or his/her designee, the Contractor is deemed to 
be in non-compliance with the terms and obligations, the Director or his/her 
designee, at his/her option, in addition to, or in lieu of, other remedies provided in 
Exhibit F, Performance Requirements Summary, may deduct and withhold 
liquidated damages from County and/or District's final payment to the Contractor. 

OO. Compliance with County's Zero Tolerance Human Trafficking 

Contractor acknowledges that the County has established a Zero Tolerance 
Human Trafficking Policy prohibiting contractors from engaging in human 
trafficking. 

If a Contractor or member of Contractor's staff is convicted of a human trafficking 
offense, the County and/or District shall require that the Contractor or member of 
Contractor's staff be removed immediately from performing services under the 
Contract. County and/or District will not be under any obligation to disclose 
confidential information regarding the offenses other than those required by law. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 188 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.22 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

Disqualification of any member of Contractor's staff pursuant to this paragraph 
shall not relieve Contractor of its obligation to complete all work in accordance 
with the terms and conditions of this Contract. 

PP. Method of Payment and Required Information 
 
The County and/or District may, at its sole discretion, determine the most 
appropriate, efficient, secure, and timely form of payment for any amounts due 
for goods and/or services provided under a Contract with the County and/or 
District. Proposers/Contractors further agree that the default form of payment 
shall be EFT or direct deposit, unless an alternative method of payment is 
deemed appropriate by the A-C. 
 
Upon Contract award and at the request of the A-C and/or Public Works, the 
Contractor shall provide the A-C with electronic banking and related information 
for the Contractor and/or any other payee that the Contractor designates to 
receive payment pursuant to this Contract. Such electronic banking and related 
information includes, but is not limited to: bank account number and routing 
number, legal business name, valid taxpayer identification number or TlN, a 
working e-mail address capable of receiving remittance advices and other 
payment related correspondence, and any other information that the A-C 
determines is reasonably necessary to process the payment and comply with all 
accounting, recordkeeping, and tax reporting requirements. 
 
Any provision of law, grant, or funding agreement requiring a specific form or 
method of payment other than EFT or direct deposit shall supersede this 
requirement with respect to those payments.  Upon Contract award or at any 
time during the duration of the Contract, a Contractor may submit a written 
request for an exemption to this requirement.  Such request must be based on 
specific legal, business or operational needs and explain why the payment 
method designated by the A-C is not feasible and an alternative is necessary. 
 The A-C, in consultation with Public Works, shall decide whether to approve 
exemption requests. 

QQ. Compliance with Fair Chance Employment Practices 
 
Contractor, and its subcontractors, must comply with fair chance employment 
hiring practices set forth in California Government Code Section 12952. 
Contractor's violation of this paragraph of the Contract may constitute a material 
breach of the Contract. In the event of such material breach, County and/or 
District may, in its sole discretion, terminate the Contract. 

RR. Compliance with the County Policy of Equity 
 

The Contractor acknowledges that the County and/or District takes its 
commitment to preserving the dignity and professionalism of the workplace very 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 189 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.23 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

seriously, as set forth in the County Policy of Equity (CPOE) 
(https://ceop.lacounty.gov/). The contractor further acknowledges that the County 
strives to provide a workplace free from discrimination, harassment, retaliation 
and inappropriate conduct based on a protected characteristic, and which may 
violate the CPOE.   The Contractor, its employees and Subcontractors 
acknowledge and certify receipt and understanding of the CPOE.  Failure of the 
Contractor, its employees or its Subcontractors to uphold the County and/or 
District 's expectations of a workplace free from harassment and discrimination, 
including inappropriate conduct based on a protected characteristic, may subject 
the Contractor to termination of contractual agreements as well as civil liability. 

SS. Contractor Independence 
 

A Contractor or its subsidiary or Subcontractor (Contractor), is prohibited from 
submitting a bid or proposal in a County and/or District solicitation if the 
Contractor has provided advice or consultation for the solicitation.  A Contractor 
is also prohibited from submitting a bid or proposal in a County and/or District 
solicitation if the Contractor has developed or prepared any of the solicitation 
materials on behalf of the County and/or District.  A violation of this provision 
shall result in the disqualification of the Contractor from participation in the 
County and/or District solicitation or the termination or cancellation of any 
resultant County and/or District contract.  This provision shall survive the 
expiration, or other termination of this Agreement. 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 190 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.24 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

SECTION 3 

TERMINATIONS/SUSPENSIONS 

A. Termination/Suspension for Breach of Warranty to Maintain Compliance with 
County's Child Support Compliance Program 

Failure of Contractor to maintain compliance with the requirements set forth in 
this Exhibit's Contractor's Warranty of Adherence to County's Child Support 
Compliance Program shall constitute a default under this Contract. 
Without limiting the rights and remedies available to County and/or District under 
any other provision of this Contract, failure of Contractor to cure such default 
within 90 calendar days of written notice shall be grounds upon which the County 
and/or District may suspend or terminate this Contract pursuant to this  
Exhibit's Termination/Suspension for Default, and pursue debarment of 
Contractor pursuant to Los Angeles County Code, Chapter 2.202. 

B. Termination/Suspension for Convenience 

1. This Contract may be suspended or terminated, in whole or in part, 
from time to time, when such action is deemed by County and/or District, 
in its sole discretion, to be in its best interest.  Suspension or termination 
of work hereunder shall be effected by notice of suspension or termination 
to Contractor specifying the extent to which performance of work is 
suspended or terminated and the date upon which such suspension or 
termination becomes effective.  The date upon which such suspension or 
termination becomes effective shall be no less than ten days after the 
notice is sent. 

2. After receipt of a notice of suspension or termination and except as 
otherwise directed by County and/or District, Contractor shall:  

a. Stop work under this Contract on the date and to the extent specified 
in such notice.  

b. Complete performance of such part of the work as shall not have 
been suspended or terminated by such notice. 

3. All material including books, records, documents, or other evidence bearing 
on the costs and expenses of Contractor under this Contract shall be 
maintained by Contractor in accordance with this Exhibit's Record Retention 
and Inspection/Audit Settlement. 

4. If this Contract is suspended or terminated, Contractor shall complete 
within the Director's suspension or termination date contain within the 
notice of suspension or termination, those items of work which are in 
various stages of completion, which the Director has advised the 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 191 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.25 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

Contractor are necessary to bring the work to a timely, logical, and orderly 
end.  Reports, samples, and other materials prepared by Contractor under 
this Contract shall be delivered to County and/or District upon request and 
shall become the property of County and/or District. 

C. Termination/Suspension for Default 

1. County and/or District may, by written notice to Contractor, suspend or 
terminate the whole or any part of this Contract, if, in the judgment of the 
County and/or District: 

a. Contractor has materially breached this Contract; or 

b. Contractor fails to timely provide and/or satisfactorily perform any 
task, deliverable, service, or other work required under this 
Contract; or 

c. Contractor fails to demonstrate a high probability of timely fulfillment 
of performance requirements under this Contract, or of any 
obligations of this Contract and in either case, fails to demonstrate 
convincing progress toward a cure within five working days 
(or such longer period as County and/or District may authorize in 
writing) after receipt of written notice from County and/or District 
specifying such failure. 

In the event County and/or District suspends or terminates this Contract in 
whole or in part pursuant to this paragraph, County and/or District may 
procure, upon such terms and in such manner, as County and/or District 
may deem appropriate, goods and services similar to those so suspended 
or terminated.  Contractor shall be liable to County and/or District for any 
and all excess costs incurred by County and/or District, as determined by 
County and/or District, for such similar goods and services. 
Contractor shall continue the performance of this Contract to the extent 
not suspended or terminated under the provisions of this paragraph. 
 

2. Except with respect to defaults of any Subcontractor, Contractor shall not 
be liable for any excess costs of the type identified in  
subparagraph "2" above, if its failure to perform this Contract arises out of 
causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of 
Contractor.  Such causes may include, but are not limited to, acts of God 
or of the public enemy, acts of County and/or District in either its sovereign 
or contractual capacity, acts of the Federal or State government in its 
sovereign capacity, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, 
strikes, freight embargoes, and unusually severe weather; but in every 
case, the failure to perform must be beyond the control and without the 
fault or negligence of Contractor.  If the failure to perform is caused by the 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 192 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.26 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

default of a Subcontractor, and if such default arises out of causes beyond 
the control of both Contractor and Subcontractor, and without the fault or 
negligence of either of them, Contractor shall not be liable for any such 
excess costs for failure to perform, unless the goods or services to be 
furnished by the Subcontractor were obtainable from other sources in 
sufficient time to permit Contractor to meet the required delivery schedule. 

3. If, after County and/or District has given notice of termination or 
suspension under the provisions of this paragraph, it is determined by 
County and/or District that Contractor was not in default under the 
provisions of this paragraph or that the default was excusable under the 
provisions of this paragraph, the rights and obligations of the parties shall 
be the same as if the notice of termination or suspension had been issued 
pursuant to this Exhibit's Termination/Suspension for Convenience. 

4. The rights and remedies of County and/or District provided in this 
paragraph shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights 
and remedies provided by law or under this Contract. 

5. As used herein, the terms "Subcontractor" and "Subcontractors" mean 
Subcontractor at any tier. 

D. Termination/Suspension for Improper Consideration 

1. County and/or District may, by written notice to Contractor, immediately 
suspend or terminate the right of Contractor to proceed under this 
Contract if it is found that consideration, in any form, was offered or given 
by Contractor, either directly or through an intermediary, to any County 
and/or District officer, employee, or agent with the intent of securing this 
Contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the award, 
amendment, extension of this Contract, or the making of any 
determinations with respect to Contractor's performance pursuant to this 
Contract.  In the event of such termination or suspension, County and/or 
District shall be entitled to pursue those same remedies against 
Contractor as it could pursue in the event of default by Contractor. 

2. Contractor shall immediately report any attempt by a County and/or 
District officer or employee to solicit such improper consideration.  The 
report shall be made either to County and/or District manager charged 
with the supervision of the employee or to County Auditor-Controller's 
Employee Fraud Hotline at (800) 544-6861. 

3. Among other items, such improper consideration may take the form of 
cash; discounts; services; the provision of travel, entertainment, 
or tangible gifts. 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 193 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.27 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

E. Termination/Suspension for Insolvency 

1. County and/or District may suspend or terminate this Contract forthwith in 
the event of the occurrence of any of the following: 

a. Insolvency of Contractor.  Contractor shall be deemed to be insolvent 
if it has ceased to pay its debts for at least 60 days in the ordinary 
course of business or cannot pay its debts as they become due, 
whether or not a petition has been filed under the Federal Bankruptcy 
Code, and whether or not Contractor is insolvent within the meaning 
of the Federal Bankruptcy Code. 

b. The filing of a voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy petition relative to 
Contractor under the Federal Bankruptcy Code. 

c. The appointment of a bankruptcy Receiver or Trustee for Contractor. 

d. The execution by Contractor of a general assignment for the benefits 
of creditors. 

2. The rights and remedies of County and/or District provided in this paragraph 
shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies 
provided by law or under this Contract. 

F. Termination/Suspension for Nonadherence to County Lobbyists Ordinance 

Contractor, and each County lobbyist or County lobbying firm as defined in 
Los Angeles County Code, Section 2.160.010, retained by Contractor, shall fully 
comply with County's Lobbyist Ordinance, Los Angeles County Code, 
Chapter 2.160.  Failure on the part of Contractor or any County Lobbyists or 
County Lobbying firm retained by Contractor to fully comply with County's 
Lobbyist Ordinance shall constitute a material breach of this Contract, 
upon which County and/or District may in its sole discretion, immediately 
suspend or terminate for default of this Contract. 

G. Termination/Suspension for Nonappropriation of Funds 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Contract, County shall not be obligated 
for Contractor's performance hereunder or by any provision of this Contract during 
any of County and/or District's future fiscal years unless and until the Board 
appropriates funds for this Contract in County and/or District's budget for each 
such future fiscal year.  In the event that funds are not appropriated for this 
Contract, then this Contract may be suspended or terminated as of June 30 of the 
last fiscal year for which funds were appropriated.  County and/or District will notify 
Contractor in writing of any such nonallocation of funds at the earliest possible 
date. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 194 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.28 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

SECTION 4 

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT WORK 

A. Authority of Public Works and Inspection 

The Director will have the final authority in all matters affecting the work covered 
by this Contract's Terms, Requirement, Conditions, and Specifications. 
On all questions relating to work acceptability or interpretations of these Terms, 
Requirements, Conditions, and Specifications, the decision of the Director will be 
final. 

B. Cooperation 

Contractor shall cooperate with Public Works' forces engaged in any other 
activities at the jobsite.  Contractor shall carry out all work in a diligent manner 
and according to instructions of the Director. 

C. Cooperation and Collateral Work 

Contractor shall perform work as directed by the Director.  The Director will be 
supported by other Public Works personnel in assuring satisfactory performance 
of the work under these Specifications and that satisfactory Contract controls and 
conditions are maintained. 

D. Equipment, Labor, Supervision, and Materials 

All equipment, labor, supervision, and materials required to accomplish this 
Contract, except as might be specifically outlined in other sections, shall be 
provided by Contractor. 

E. Gratuitous Work 

Contractor agrees that should work be performed outside the Scope of Work 
indicated and without Public Works' prior written approval in accordance with this 
Exhibit's Amendments, such work shall be deemed to be a gratuitous effort by 
Contractor, and Contractor shall have no claim against County and/or District. 

F. Jobsite Safety 

Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all work performed under 
this Contract is performed in strict compliance with all applicable Federal, State, 
and local occupational safety regulations.  Contractor shall provide at its expense 
all safeguards, safety devices, and protective equipment and shall take any and 
all actions appropriate to providing a safe jobsite. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 195 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.29 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

G. Labor 

No person shall be employed on any work under this Contract who is found to be 
intemperate, troublesome, disorderly, or is otherwise objectionable to 
Public Works.  Any such person shall be reassigned immediately and not again 
employed on Public Works' projects or providing services. 

H. Labor Law Compliance 

Contractor, its agents, and employees shall be bound by and shall comply with 
all applicable provisions of the Labor Code of the State of California as well as all 
other applicable Federal, State, and local laws related to labor including 
compliance with prevailing wage laws.  The Contractor is responsible for 
selecting the classification of workers, which will be required to perform this 
service in accordance with the Contractor's method of performing the work and 
when applicable, is required to pay current prevailing wage rates adopted by the 
Director of the Department of Industrial Relations and will indemnify the County 
and/or District for any claims resulting from their failure to so comply.  Contractor 
shall comply with Labor Code, Section 1777.5, with respect to the employment of 
apprentices. 

I. Overtime 

Eight hours labor constitutes a legal day's work.  Work in excess thereof, 
or greater than 40 hours during any one week, shall be permitted only as 
authorized by and in accordance with Labor Code, Section 1815 et seq. 

J. Permits/Licenses 

Contractor shall be fully responsible for possessing or obtaining all 
permits/licenses, except as might be specifically outlined in other sections, 
from the appropriate Federal, State, or local authorities relating to work to be 
performed under this Contract. 

K. Prohibition Against Use of Child Labor 

1. Contractor shall: 

a. Not knowingly sell or supply to County and/or District any products, 
goods, supply, or other personal property manufactured in violation 
of child labor standards set by the International Labor Organization 
through its 1973 Convention Concerning Minimum Age for 
Employment. 

b. Upon request by County and/or District, identify the 
country/countries of origin of any products, goods, supplies, or 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 196 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.30 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

other personal property Contractor sells or supplies to County 
and/or District. 

c. Upon request by County, provide to County the manufacturer's 
certification of compliance with all international child labor 
conventions. 

d. Should County discover that any products, goods, supplies, or 
other personal property sold or supplied by Contractor to County 
and/or District are produced in violation of any international child 
labor conventions, Contractor shall immediately provide an 
alternative, compliant source of supply. 

2. Failure by Contractor to comply with provisions of this paragraph will 
constitute a material breach of this Contract and will be grounds for 
immediate suspension or termination of this Contract for default. 

L. Public Convenience 

Contractor shall conduct operations to cause the least possible obstruction and 
inconvenience to public traffic or disruption to the peace and quiet of the area 
within which the work is being performed. 

M. Public Safety 

It shall be Contractor's responsibility to maintain security against public hazards 
at all times while performing work at contracted work locations.  In the event 
Contractor determines a public hazard exists at a work location, Contractor shall 
immediately mark the location to prevent public access to the hazard and 
immediately notify the Contract Manager. 
 

N. Quality of Work 

Contractor shall provide the County and/or District high and consistent quality 
work under this Contract and which is at least equivalent to that which Contractor 
provides to all other clients it serves.  All work shall be executed by experienced 
and well-trained workers.  All work shall be under supervision of a well-qualified 
supervisor.  Contractor also agrees that work shall be furnished in a professional 
manner and according to these Specifications. 

O. Quantities of Work 

Contractor shall be allowed no claims for anticipated profits or for any damages 
of any sort because of any difference between the work estimated by Contractor 
in responding to County and/or District's solicitation and actual quantities of work 
done under this Contract or for work decreased or eliminated by County and/or 
District. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 197 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.31 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

P. Safety Requirements 

Contractor shall be responsible for the safety of equipment, material, 
and personnel under Contractor's jurisdiction during the work. 

Q. Storage of Materials and Equipment 

Contractor shall not store material or equipment at the jobsite, except as might 
be specifically authorized by this Contract.  County and/or District will not be 
liable or responsible for any damage, by whatever means, or for the theft of 
Contractor's material or equipment from any jobsite. 

R. Transportation 

County and/or District will not provide transportation to and from the jobsite and will 
not provide travel around the limits of the jobsite. 

S. Work Area Controls 

1. Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations.  
Contractor shall maintain work area in a neat, orderly, clean, and safe 
manner.  Contractor shall avoid spreading out equipment excessively.  
Location and layout of all equipment and materials at each jobsite will be 
subject to the Contract Manager's approval. 

2. Contractor shall be responsible for the security of any and all of 
Public Works/ County and/or District facilities in its care.  Contractor shall 
provide protection against vandalism and accidental and malicious 
damage, both during working and nonworking hours. 

T. CARD 

The County maintains databases that track/monitor Contractor performance history.  
Information entered into such databases may be used for a variety of purposes, 
including determining whether the County and/or District will exercise a contract 
term extension option. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 198 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.32 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

SECTION 5 

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

A. Independent Contractor Status 

1. This Contract is by and between County and/or District and Contractor and 
is not intended, and shall not be construed to create the relationship of 
agent, servant, employee, partnership, joint venture, or association as 
between County and/or District and Contractor.  The employees and agents 
of one party shall not be, or be construed to be, the employees or agents of 
the other party for any purpose whatsoever. 

2. Contractor shall be solely liable and responsible for providing to, or on behalf 
of, all persons performing work pursuant to this Contract all compensation 
and benefits.  County and/or District shall have no liability or responsibility 
for the payment of any salaries, wages, unemployment benefits, disability 
benefits, Federal, State, or local taxes, or other compensation, benefits, or 
taxes for any personnel provided by or on behalf of Contractor. 

3. Contractor understands and agrees that all persons performing work 
pursuant to this Contract are, for purposes of Workers' Compensation 
liability, solely employees of Contractor and not employees of County 
and/or District.  Contractor shall be solely liable and responsible for 
furnishing any and all Workers' Compensation benefits to any person as a 
result of any injuries arising from or connected with any work performed by 
or on behalf of Contractor pursuant to this Contract. 

B. Indemnification 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the County of  
Los Angeles, its Special Districts, the Los Angeles County Flood Control District, 
Elected Officials, Appointed Officers, Agents, Employees, Participating Cities, 
and Volunteers ("County and District Indemnitees"), from and against any and all 
liability including, but not limited to, demands, claims, actions, fees, costs, and 
expenses of any nature whatsoever (including attorney and expert witness fees), 
arising from or connected with Contractor's acts and/or omissions arising from 
and/or relating to this Contract except for loss or damage arising from the sole 
negligence or willful misconduct of the County Indemnitees or District 
Indemnitees.  This indemnification also shall include any and all intellectual 
property liability, including copyright infringement and similar claims. 
 

C. Workplace Safety Indemnification 

In addition to and without limiting the indemnification required by this 
Exhibit's Section 5.B (above), and to the extent allowed by law, Contractor agrees 
to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the County of Los Angeles, its Special 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 199 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.33 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

Districts, District, Elected Officials, Appointed Officers, Agents, Employees, 
Participating Cities, and Volunteers from and against any and all investigations, 
complaints, citations, liability, expense (including defense costs and legal fees), 
claims, and/or causes of action for damages of any nature whatsoever including, 
but not limited to, injury or death to employees of Contractor, its Subcontractors or 
County and/or District, attributable to any alleged act or omission of Contractor 
and/or its Subcontractors which is in violation of any Cal/OSHA regulation.  The 
obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless County and District includes all 
investigations and proceedings associated with purported violations of Section 
336.10 of Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations pertaining to multiemployer 
worksites.  Contractor shall not be obligated to indemnify for liability and expenses 
arising from the active negligence of County or District.  County and/or District may 
deduct from any payment otherwise due Contractor any costs incurred or 
anticipated to be incurred by County and/or District, including legal fees and staff 
costs, associated with any investigation or enforcement proceeding brought by 
Cal/OSHA arising out of the work being performed by Contractor under this 
Contract. 

D. General Insurance Requirements 

1. Without limiting Contractor's indemnification of County and District, and in 
the performance of this Contract and until all of its obligations pursuant to 
this Contract have been met, Contractor shall provide and maintain at its 
own expense insurance coverage satisfying the requirements specified in 
this paragraph and paragraph F of this Section.  These minimum 
insurance coverage terms, types, and limits (the "Required Insurance") 
also are in addition to and separate from any other contractual obligation 
imposed upon Contractor pursuant to this Contract.  The County and 
District in no way warrants that the Required Insurance is sufficient to 
protect the Contractor for liabilities which may arise from or relate to this 
Contract. 

2. Evidence of Coverage and Notice to County:  A certificate(s) of insurance 
coverage (Certificate) satisfactory to County and/or District, and a copy of 
an Additional Insured endorsement confirming the County of Los Angeles, 
its Special Districts, the Los Angeles County Flood Control District, 
Elected Officials, Officers, Agents, Employees, 
Participating Cities, and Volunteers has been given Insured status under 
the Contractor's General Liability policy, shall be delivered to County 
and/or District at the address shown below and provided prior to 
commencing services under this Contract.  

a. Renewal Certificates shall be provided to County and/or District not 
less than ten days prior to Contractor's policy expiration dates.  The 
County and/or District reserves the right to obtain complete, 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 200 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.34 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

certified copies of any required Contractor and/or Subcontractor 
insurance policies at any time. 

b. Certificates shall identify all Required Insurance coverage types 
and limits specified herein, reference this Contract by name or 
number, and be signed by an authorized representative of the 
insurer(s).  The Insured party named on the Certificate shall match 
the name of the Contractor identified as the contracting party in this 
Contract.  Certificates shall provide the full name of each insurer 
providing coverage, its NAIC (National Association of Insurance 
Commissioners) identification number, its financial rating, 
the amounts of any policy deductibles or self-insured retentions 
exceeding $50,000, and list any County and/or District-required 
endorsement forms. 

c. Neither the County or District's failure to obtain, nor the County 
and/or District's receipt of, or failure to object to a noncomplying 
insurance certificate or endorsement, or any other insurance 
documentation or information provided by the Contractor, its 
insurance broker(s) and/or insurer(s), shall be construed as a 
waiver of any of the Required Insurance provisions. 

d. Certificates and copies of any required endorsements shall be sent 
to: 

 Los Angeles County Public Works 
Business Relations and Contracts Division 

 P.O. Box 1460 
Alhambra, California 91802-1460 

 Attention: Contract Analyst (noted in the RFP Notice) 
 

e. Contractor also shall promptly report to County and/or District any 
injury or property damage accident or incident, including any injury 
to a Contractor employee occurring on County and/or District 
property, and any loss, disappearance, destruction, misuse, or theft 
of County and/or District property, monies or securities entrusted to 
Contractor.  Contractor also shall promptly notify County and/or 
District of any third-party claim or suit filed against Contractor or 
any of its Subcontractors which arises from or relates to this 
Contract, and could result in the filing of a claim or lawsuit against 
Contractor and/or County and/or District.  

 
3. Additional Insured Status and Scope of Coverage - The County of  

Los Angeles, its Special Districts, the Los Angeles County Flood Control 
District Elected Officials, Officers, Agents, Employees, Participating Cities, 
and Volunteers shall be provided additional insured status under 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 201 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.35 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

Contractor's General Liability policy with respect to liability arising out of 
Contractor's ongoing and completed operations performed on behalf of the 
County and/or District.  The County of Los Angeles, its Special Districts, 
the Los Angeles County Flood Control District, Elected Officials, Officers, 
Agents, Employees, Participating Cities, and Volunteers additional insured 
status shall apply with respect to liability and defense of suits arising out of 
the Contractor's acts or omissions, whether such liability is attributable to 
the Contractor or to the County and/or District.  The full policy limits and 
scope of protection also shall apply to the County of Los Angeles, its 
Special Districts, the Los Angeles County Flood Control District, Elected 
Officials, Officers, Agents, Employees, Participating Cities, and Volunteers  
as an additional insured, even if they exceed the County and/or District's 
minimum Required Insurance specifications herein.  Use of an automatic 
additional insured endorsement form is acceptable providing it satisfies 
the Required Insurance provisions herein.  

 
4. Cancellation of or Changes in Insurance:  Contractor shall provide County 

and/or District with, or Contractor's insurance policies shall contain a 
provision that County shall receive, written notice of cancellation or any 
change in Required Insurance, including insurer, limits of coverage, term 
of coverage or policy period.  The written notice shall be provided to 
County and/or District at least ten days in advance of cancellation for 
nonpayment of premium and30 days in advance for any other cancellation 
or policy change.  Failure to provide written notice of cancellation or any 
change in Required Insurance may constitute a material breach of the 
Contract, in the sole discretion of the County and/or District, upon which 
the County and/or District may suspend or terminate this Contract. 

 
5. Failure to Maintain Insurance:  Contractor's failure to maintain or to 

provide acceptable evidence that it maintains the Required Insurance shall 
constitute a material breach of the Contract, upon which County and/or 
District immediately may withhold payments due to Contractor, and/or 
suspend or terminate this Contract.  County and/or District, at its sole 
discretion, may obtain damages from Contractor resulting from said 
breach. Alternatively, the County and/or District may purchase the 
Required Insurance, and without further notice to Contractor, deduct the 
premium cost from sums due to Contractor or pursue Contractor 
reimbursement. 

 
6. Insurer Financial Ratings:  Coverage shall be placed with insurers 

acceptable to the County and/or District with A.M. Best ratings of not less 
than A:VII unless otherwise approved by County and/or District.  

 
7. Contractor's Insurance Shall Be Primary:  Contractor's insurance policies, 

with respect to any claims related to this Contract, shall be primary with 
respect to all other sources of coverage available to Contractor. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 202 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.36 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

Any County and/or District-maintained insurance or self-insurance 
coverage shall be in excess of and not contribute to any Contractor 
coverage.  

 
8. Waivers of Subrogation:  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the 

Contractor hereby waives its rights and its insurer(s)' rights of recovery 
against County and District under all the Required Insurance for any loss 
arising from or relating to this Contract.  The Contractor shall require its 
insurers to execute any waiver of subrogation endorsements which may 
be necessary to effect such waiver.  

 
9. Subcontractor Insurance Coverage Requirements:  Contractor shall 

include all Subcontractors as insureds under Contractor's own policies, or 
shall provide County and/or District with each Subcontractor's separate 
evidence of insurance coverage.  Contractor shall be responsible for 
verifying each Subcontractor complies with the Required Insurance 
provisions herein, and shall require that each Subcontractor name the 
County of Los Angeles, its Special Districts, the Los Angeles County Flood 
Control District, Elected Officials, Officers, Agents, Employees, 
Participating Cities, Volunteers, and Contractor as additional insureds on 
the Subcontractor's General Liability policy.  Contractor shall obtain 
County and/or District's prior review and approval of any Subcontractor 
request for modification of the Required Insurance.  

 
10. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions (SIRs):  Contractor's policies 

shall not obligate the County and/or District to pay any portion of any 
Contractor deductible or SIR.  The County and/or District retains the right 
to require Contractor to reduce or eliminate policy deductibles and SIRs as 
respects the County and/or District, or to provide a bond guaranteeing 
Contractor's payment of all deductibles and SIRs, including all related 
claims investigation, administration, and defense expenses.  Such bond 
shall be executed by a corporate surety licensed to transact business in 
the State of California.  

 
11. Claims Made Coverage:  If any part of the Required Insurance is written 

on a claims made basis, any policy retroactive date shall precede the 
effective date of this Contract.  Contractor understands and agrees it shall 
maintain such coverage for a period of not less than three years following 
Contract expiration, termination, or cancellation. 

 
12. Application of Excess Liability Coverage:  Contractors may use a 

combination of primary, and excess insurance policies which provide 
coverage as broad as ("follow form" over) the underlying primary policies, 
to satisfy the Required Insurance provisions.   

 
13. Separation of Insureds:  All liability policies shall provide cross-liability 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 203 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.37 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

coverage as would be afforded by the standard Insurance Services Office, 
Inc. (ISO) separation of insureds provision with no insured versus insured 
exclusions or limitations.  

 
14. Alternative Risk Financing Programs:  The County and/or District reserves 

the right to review, and then approve, Contractor use of self-insurance, 
risk retention groups, risk purchasing groups, pooling arrangements, and 
captive insurance to satisfy the Required Insurance provisions.  The 
County of Los  Angeles,  its Special Districts,  Elected Officials,  Officers,  
Agents, Employees, Participating Cities, and Volunteers shall be 
designated as an Additional Covered Party under any approved program.   

 
15. County Review and Approval of Insurance Requirements:  The County 

reserves the right to review and adjust the Required Insurance provisions, 
conditioned upon County's determination of changes in risk exposures. 

 
E. Compensation for County or District Costs 

In the event that the Contractor fails to comply with any of the indemnification or 
insurance requirements of this Contract, and such failure to comply results in any 
costs to the County and/or District, the Contractor shall pay full compensation for 
all costs incurred by the County and/or District. 

F. Insurance Coverage Requirements  

1. Commercial General Liability insurance (providing scope of coverage 
equivalent to ISO policy form CG 00 01), naming The County of 
Los Angeles, its Special Districts, the Los Angeles County Flood Control 
District, Elected Officials, Officers, Agents, Employees, Participating 
Cities, and Volunteers  as an additional insured, with limits of not less 
than: 

 
General Aggregate:     $2 million 
Products/Completed Operations Aggregate: $1 million 
Personal and Advertising Injury:   $1 million 
Each Occurrence:     $1 million 

 
2. Automobile Liability insurance (providing scope of coverage equivalent to 

ISO policy form CA 00 01) with limits of not less than $1 million for bodily 
injury and property damage, in combined or equivalent split limits, for each 
single accident.  Insurance shall cover liability arising out of Contractor's 
use of autos pursuant to this Contract, including owned, leased, hired, 
and/or nonowned autos, as each may be applicable. 

 
3. Workers Compensation and Employers' Liability insurance or qualified 

self-insurance satisfying statutory requirements, which includes 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 204 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.38 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

Employers' Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1 million per 
accident.  If Contractor is a temporary staffing firm or a Professional 
Employer Organization (PEO), coverage also shall include an Alternate 
Employer Endorsement (providing scope of coverage equivalent to ISO 
policy form WC 00 03 01 A) naming the County and District as the 
Alternate Employer, and the endorsement form shall be modified to 
provide that County and District will receive not less than 30 days advance 
written notice of cancellation of this coverage provision.  If applicable to 
Contractor's operations, coverage also shall be arranged to satisfy the 
requirements of any Federal workers or workmen's compensation law or 
any Federal occupational disease law. 

 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 205 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.39 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

SECTION 6 

CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY AND DEBARMENT 

A. Responsible Contractor 

A responsible Contractor is a Contractor who has demonstrated the attribute of 
trustworthiness as well as quality, fitness, capacity, and experience to 
satisfactorily perform the contract.  It is County and/or District's policy to conduct 
business only with responsible Contractors. 

B. Chapter 2.202 of the County Code 

Contractor is hereby notified that, in accordance with Chapter 2.202 of 
County Code, if County and/or District acquires information concerning the 
performance of Contractor on this or other Contracts which indicates that 
Contractor is not responsible, County and/or District may, in addition to other 
remedies provided in this Contract, debar Contractor from bidding or proposing 
on, being awarded, and/or performing work on County and/or District Contracts 
for a specified period of time, which generally will not exceed five years but may 
exceed five years or be permanent if warranted by the circumstances, and 
suspend or terminate any or all existing Contracts Contractor may have with 
County and/or District. 

C. Nonresponsible Contractor 

County and/or District may debar a Contractor if the Board finds, in its discretion, 
that Contractor has done any of the following:  (1) violated any term of a Contract 
with County and/or District or a nonprofit corporation created by County and/or 
District; (2) committed an act or omission which negatively reflects on 
Contractor's quality, fitness, or capacity to perform a contract with County and/or 
District, any other public entity, or a nonprofit corporation created by County 
and/or District, or engaged in a pattern or practice which negatively reflects on 
same; (3) committed an act or offense which indicates a lack of business integrity 
or business honesty; or (4) made or submitted a false claim against County 
and/or District or any other public entity. 

D. Contractor Hearing Board 

1. If there is evidence that Contractor may be subject to debarment, 
Public Works will notify Contractor in writing of the evidence which is the 
basis for the proposed debarment and will advise Contractor of the 
scheduled date for a debarment hearing before Contractor Hearing Board. 

2. Contractor Hearing Board will conduct a hearing where evidence on the 
proposed debarment is presented.  Contractor and/or Contractor's 
representative shall be given an opportunity to submit evidence at that 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 206 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.40 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

hearing.  After the hearing, Contractor Hearing Board will prepare a 
tentative proposed decision, which shall contain a recommendation 
regarding whether Contractor should be debarred, and, if so, 
the appropriate length of time of the debarment.  Contractor and 
Public Works shall be provided an opportunity to object to the tentative 
proposed decision prior to its presentation to the Board.  

3. After consideration of any objections, or if no objections are submitted, 
a record of the hearing, the proposed decision, and any other 
recommendation of Contractor Hearing Board shall be presented to the 
Board.  The Board shall have the right to modify, deny, or adopt the 
proposed decision and recommendation of Contractor Hearing Board. 

4. If a Contractor has been debarred for a period longer than five years, 
that Contractor may, after the debarment has been in effect for at least 
five years, submit a written request for review of the debarment 
determination to reduce the period of debarment or terminate the 
debarment.  County and/or District may, in its discretion, reduce the period 
of debarment or terminate the debarment if it finds that Contractor has 
adequately demonstrated one or more of the following:  (1) elimination of the 
grounds for which the debarment was imposed; (2) a bona fide change in 
ownership or management; (3) material evidence discovered after 
debarment was imposed; or (4) any other reason that is in the best interests 
of County and/or District. 

5. Contractor Hearing Board will consider a request for review of a debarment 
determination only where (1) Contractor has been debarred for a period 
longer than five years; (2) the debarment has been in effect for at least 
five years; and (3) the request is in writing, states one or more of the 
grounds for reduction of the debarment period or termination of the 
debarment, and includes supporting documentation.  Upon receiving an 
appropriate request, Contractor Hearing Board will provide notice of the 
hearing on the request.  At the hearing, Contractor Hearing Board shall 
conduct a hearing where evidence on the proposed reduction of debarment 
period or termination of debarment is presented.  This hearing shall be 
conducted and the request for review decided by Contractor Hearing Board 
pursuant to the same procedure as for a debarment hearing. 

6. Contractor Hearing Board's proposed decision shall contain a 
recommendation on the request to reduce the period of debarment or 
terminate the debarment.  Contractor Hearing Board shall present its 
proposed decision and recommendation to the Board.  The Board shall have 
the right to modify, deny, or adopt the proposed decision and 
recommendation of Contractor Hearing Board. 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 207 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.41 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

E. Subcontractors of Contractor 

These terms shall also apply to Subcontractors of County and/or District 
contractors. 

F. Prohibition of Contract with Suspended, Debarred, Ineligible or Excluded Contractor 
by Federal or State Government 

Contractor hereby acknowledges that County and/or District is prohibited from 
contracting with parties that are suspended, debarred, ineligible or excluded from 
securing State-funded or Federally-funded contracts. By executing this Contract, 
Contractor certifies that neither it nor any of its owners, officers, partners, 
directors, or other principals is currently suspended, debarred, ineligible or 
excluded from securing State-funded or Federally-funded Contracts. Further by 
executing this Contract, Contractor certifies that, to its knowledge, none of its 
subcontractors, at any tier, or any owner, officer, partner, director, or other 
principal of any subcontractor is currently suspended, debarred, ineligible or 
excluded from securing State-funded or Federally-funded contracts. During the 
term of this Contract, Contractor shall immediately notify County and/or District 's 
Compliance Manager in writing should it or any of its subcontractors or any 
principals of either be suspended, debarred, ineligible or excluded from securing 
State-funded or Federally-funded contracts. Failure of Contractor to comply with 
this provision shall constitute a material breach of this Contract upon which 
County and/or District may immediately terminate or suspend this Contract.  
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 208 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.42 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

SECTION 7 

COMPLIANCE WITH COUNTY'S JURY SERVICE PROGRAM 

A. Jury Service Program 

This Contract is subject to the provisions of County's ordinance entitled 
Contractor Employee Jury Service (Jury Service Program) as codified in 
Sections 2.203.010 through 2.203.090 of the Los Angeles County Code. 

B. Written Employee Jury Service Policy 

1. Unless Contractor has demonstrated to County and/or District's 
satisfaction either that Contractor is not a "Contractor" as defined under 
the Jury Service Program (Section 2.203.020 of County Code) or that 
Contractor qualifies for an exception to the Jury Service Program 
(Section 2.203.070 of County Code), Contractor shall have and adhere to 
a written policy that provides that its Employees shall receive from 
Contractor, on an annual basis, no less than five days of regular pay for 
actual jury service.  The policy may provide that Employee deposit any 
fees received for such jury service with Contractor or that Contractor 
deduct from the Employee's regular pay the fees received for jury service. 

2. For purposes of this Section, "Contractor" means a person, partnership, 
corporation, or other entity which has a Contract with County and/or 
District or a Subcontract with a County Contractor and has received or will 
receive an aggregate sum of $50,000 or more in any 12-month period 
under one or more County Contracts or Subcontracts.  "Employee" means 
any California resident who is a full-time employee of Contractor.  "Full-
time" means 40 hours or more worked per week, or a lesser number of 
hours if:  1) the lesser number is a recognized industry standard as 
determined by County and/or District, or 2) Contractor has a long-standing 
practice that defines the lesser number of hours as full-time.  Full-time 
employees providing short-term, temporary services of 90 days or less 
within a 12-month period are not considered full-time for purposes of the 
Jury Service Program. If Contractor uses any Subcontractor to perform 
services for County and/or District under this Contract, the Subcontractor 
shall also be subject to the provisions of this Section.  The provisions of 
this Section shall be inserted into any such Subcontract agreement and a 
copy of the Jury Service Program shall be attached to the agreement. 

3. If Contractor is not required to comply with the Jury Service Program when 
this Contract commences, Contractor shall have a continuing obligation to 
review the applicability of its "exception status" from the Jury Service 
Program, and Contractor shall immediately notify County and/or District if 
Contractor at any time either comes within the Jury Service Program's 
definition of "Contractor" or if Contractor no longer qualifies for an 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 209 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.43 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

exception to the Jury Service Program.  In either event, Contractor shall 
immediately implement a written policy consistent with the Jury Service 
Program.  County and/or District may also require, at any time during this 
Contract and at its sole discretion, that Contractor demonstrate to County 
and/or District's satisfaction that Contractor either continues to remain 
outside of the Jury Service Program's definition of "Contractor" and/or that 
Contractor continues to qualify for an exception to the Jury Service 
Program. 

4. Contractor's violation of this Section of this Contract may constitute a 
material breach of this Contract.  In the event of such material breach, 
County and/or District may, in its sole discretion, suspend or terminate this 
Contract and/or bar Contractor from the award of future County and/or 
District contracts for a period of time consistent with the seriousness of the 
breach. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 210 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.44 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

SECTION 8 

SAFELY SURRENDERED BABY LAW PROGRAM 

A. Contractor's Acknowledgment of County's Commitment to the Safely Surrendered 
Baby Law 

Contractor acknowledges that County and District place a high priority on the 
implementation of the Safely Surrendered Baby Law.  Contractor understands that 
it is County and District's policy to encourage all County Contractors to voluntarily 
post County's "Safely Surrendered Baby Law" poster in a prominent position at 
Contractor's place of business.  Contractor will also encourage its Subcontractors, if 
any, to post this poster in a prominent position in the Subcontractor's place of 
business.  The Contractor, and its Subcontractor(s), can access posters and other 
campaign material at www.babysafela.org.   

B. Notice to Employees Regarding the Safely Surrendered Baby Law 

Contractor shall notify and provide to its employees, and shall require each 
Subcontractor to notify and provide to its employees, a fact sheet regarding the 
Safely Surrendered Baby Law, its implementation in the County, and where and 
how to safely surrender a baby.  The fact sheet is set forth in Exhibit D of this 
Contract and is available on the Internet at www.babysafela.org. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 211 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.45 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

SECTION 9 

SOCIAL ENTERPRISE PREFERENCE PROGRAM 

This Contract is subject to the provisions of the County's ordinance entitled Social 
Enterprise (SE) Preference Program, as codified in Chapter 2.205 of the Los Angeles 
County Code. 

Contractor shall not knowingly and with the intent to defraud, fraudulently obtain, retain, 
attempt to obtain or retain, or aid another in fraudulently obtaining or retaining or 
attempting to obtain or retain certification as a SE. 

Contractor shall not willfully and knowingly make a false statement with the intent to 
defraud, whether by affidavit, report, or other representation, to a County and/or District 
official or employee for the purpose of influencing the certification or denial of 
certification of any entity as a SE. 

If Contractor has obtained County certification as a SE by reason of having furnished 
incorrect supporting information or by reason of having withheld information, and which 
knew, or should have known, the information furnished was incorrect or the information 
withheld was relevant to its request for certification, and which by reason of such 
certification has been awarded this contract to which it would not otherwise have been 
entitled, Contractor shall: 

1. Pay to the County and/or District any difference between the Contract amount 
and what the County and/or District's costs would have been if the Contract had 
been properly awarded. 

2. In addition to the amount described in subdivision (1), be assessed a penalty in 
the amount of not more than 10 percent of the amount of this Contract. 

3. Be subject to the provisions of Chapter 2.202 of the Los Angeles County Code 
(Determinations of Contractor Nonresponsibility and Contractor Debarment). 

The above penalties shall also apply to any entity that has previously obtained proper 
certification, however, as a result of a change in their status would no longer be eligible 
for certification, and fails to notify the Department of Consumer and Business Affairs of 
this information prior to responding to a solicitation or accepting a contract award. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 212 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.46 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

SECTION 10 

LOCAL SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PREFERENCE PROGRAM 

A. This Contract is subject to the provisions of County's ordinance entitled 
Local Small Business Enterprise Preference Program, as codified in 
Chapter 2.204 of the Los Angeles County Code. 

B. Contractor shall not knowingly and with the intent to defraud, fraudulently 
obtain, retain, attempt to obtain or retain, or aid another in fraudulently 
obtaining or retaining or attempting to obtain or retain certification as a 
Local Small Business Enterprise. 

C. Contractor shall not willfully and knowingly make a false statement with the intent to 
defraud, whether by affidavit, report, or other representation, to a County and/or 
District official or employee for the purpose of influencing the certification or denial 
of certification of any entity as a Local Small Business Enterprise. 

D. If Contractor has obtained County certification as a Local Small Business 
Enterprise by reason of having furnished incorrect supporting information or by 
reason of having withheld information, and which knew, or should have known, the 
information furnished was incorrect or the information withheld was relevant to its 
request for certification, and which by reason of such certification has been 
awarded this Contract to which it would not otherwise have been entitled, shall: 

1. Pay to County and/or District any difference between this Contract amount 
and what County and/or District's costs would have been if this Contract 
had been properly awarded. 

2. In addition to the amount described in subdivision (1), be assessed a penalty 
in an amount of not more than 10 percent of the amount of this Contract. 

3. Be subject to the provisions of Chapter 2.202 of the Los Angeles County 
Code (Determinations of Contractor Nonresponsibility and Contractor 
Debarment). 

E. The above penalties shall also apply to any business that has previously 
obtained proper certification, however, as a result of a change in their status 
would no longer be eligible for certification, and fails to notify the State and the 
Department of Consumer and Business Affairs of this information prior to 
responding to a solicitation or accepting a contract award. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 213 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.47 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

SECTION 11 
 

DISABLED VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PREFERENCE PROGRAM 
 
A. This Contract is subject to the provisions of the County's ordinance entitled 

Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise (DVBE) Preference Program, as codified in 
Chapter 2.211 of the Los Angeles County Code. 
 

B. Contractor shall not knowingly and with the intent to defraud, fraudulently obtain, 
retain, attempt to obtain or retain, or aid another in fraudulently obtaining or 
retaining or attempting to obtain or retain certification as a DVBE. 

 
C. Contractor shall not willfully and knowingly make a false statement with the intent to 

defraud, whether by affidavit, report, or other representation, to a County and/or 
District official or employee for the purpose of influencing the certification or denial 
of certification of any entity as a DVBE. 

 
D. If Contractor has obtained certification as a DVBE by reason of having furnished 

incorrect supporting information or by reason of having withheld information, and 
which knew, or should have known, the information furnished was incorrect or 
the information withheld was relevant to its request for certification, and which by 
reason of such certification has been awarded this contract to which it would not 
otherwise have been entitled, shall: 

 
a. Pay to the County and/or District any difference between the Contract 

amount and what the County and/or District's costs would have been if the 
Contract had been properly awarded. 
 

b. In addition to the amount described in subdivision (1), be assessed a penalty 
in an amount of not more than 10 percent of the amount of the Contract. 

 
c. Be subject to the provisions of Chapter 2.202 of the Los Angeles County 

Code (Determinations of Contractor Nonresponsibility and Contractor 
Debarment). 

 
E. Notwithstanding any other remedies in this contract, the above penalties shall 

also apply to any business that has previously obtained proper certification, 
however, as a result of a change in their status would no longer be eligible for 
certification, and fails to notify the State and the Department of Consumer and 
Business Affairs of this information prior to responding to a solicitation or 
accepting a contract award. 

 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 214 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.48 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

SECTION 12 

COMPLIANCE WITH COUNTY'S DEFAULTED PROPERTY TAX 
REDUCTION PROGRAM 

 
A. Defaulted Property Tax Reduction Program  

This Contract is subject to the provisions of County's ordinance entitled  
Defaulted Property Tax Reduction Program ("Defaulted Tax Program") as 
codified in Sections 2.206 of the Los Angeles County Code (Exhibit E). 

B. Contractor's Warranty of Compliance with County's Defaulted Property Tax 
Reduction Program 

Contractor acknowledges that County and/or District has established a goal of 
ensuring that all individuals and businesses that benefit financially from the 
County and/or District through any Contract are current in paying their property 
tax obligations (secured and unsecured roll) in order to mitigate the economic 
burden otherwise imposed upon the County and/or District and its taxpayers. 

Unless Contractor qualifies for an exemption or exclusion, Contractor warrants and 
certifies that to the best of its knowledge it is now in compliance, and during the 
term of this Contract will maintain compliance, with Los Angeles County Code, 
Chapter 2.206. 

C. Termination for Breach of Warranty of Compliance with County's Defaulted 
Property Tax Reduction Program 

Failure of Contractor to maintain compliance with the requirements set forth in 
paragraph B, above, shall constitute default under this Contract.  Without limiting 
the rights and remedies available to County and/or District under any other 
provision of this Contract, failure of Contractor to cure such default within ten 
days of notice shall be grounds upon which County and/or District may terminate 
this Contract and/or pursue debarment of Contractor, pursuant to County Code, 
Chapter 2.206.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 215 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.49 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

 

SECTION 13 
 

COVID-19 VACCINATIONS OF COUNTY CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL 
 
A. At Contractor's sole cost, Contractor shall comply with Chapter 2.212 

(COVID-19 Vaccinations of County and/or District Contactor Personnel) of 
County Code Title 2 - Administration, Division 4.  All employees of 
Contractor and persons working on its behalf, including but not limited to, 
Subcontractors of any tier (collectively, "Contractor Personnel"), must be 
fully vaccinated against the novel coronavirus 2019 ("COVID-19") prior to 
(1) interacting in person with County and/or District employees, interns, 
volunteers, and commissioners ("County and/or District workforce 
members"), (2) working on County and/or District owned or controlled 
property while performing services under this Contract, and/or (3) coming 
into contact with the public while performing services under this Contract 
(collectively, “In-Person Services”).   
 

B. Contractor Personnel are considered “fully vaccinated” against COVID-19 
two (2) weeks or more after they have received (1) the second dose in a 
2-dose COVID-19 vaccine series (e.g. Pfizer-BioNTech or Moderna), (2)  
a single-dose COVID-19 vaccine (e.g. Johnson and Johnson 
[J&J]/Janssen), or (3) the final dose of any COVID-19 vaccine authorized 
by the World Health Organization ("WHO"). 

 
C. Prior to assigning Contractor Personnel to perform In-Person Services, 

Contractor shall obtain proof that such Contractor Personnel have been 
fully vaccinated by confirming Contractor Personnel is vaccinated through 
any of the following documentation: (1) official COVID-19 Vaccination 
Record Card (issued by the Department of Health and Human Services, 
CDC or WHO Yellow Card), which includes the name of the person 
vaccinated, type of vaccine provided, and date of the last dose 
administered ("Vaccination Record Card"); (2) copy (including a 
photographic copy) of a Vaccination Record Card; (3) Documentation of 
vaccination from a licensed medical provider; (4) a digital record that 
includes a quick response ("QR") code that when scanned by a SMART 
HealthCard reader displays to the reader client name, date of birth, 
vaccine dates, and vaccine type, and the QR code confirms the vaccine 
record as an official record of the State of California; or (5) documentation 
of vaccination from Contractors who follow the CDPH vaccination records 
guidelines and standards.  Contractor shall also provide written notice to 
County and/or District before the start of work under this Contract that its 
Contractor Personnel are in compliance with the requirements of this 
section.  Contractor shall retain such proof of vaccination for the document 
retention period set forth in this Contract, and must provide such records 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 216 of 778



Service Contract General Requirements – EXHIBIT B 
 

  
 

- B.50 - 

 
 

Catch Basins 
(BRC0000287) 

 

to the County and/or District for audit purposes, when required by County 
and/or District.  
  

D. Contractor shall evaluate any medical or sincerely held religious 
exemption request of its Contractor Personnel, as required by law.  If 
Contractor has determined that Contractor Personnel is exempt pursuant 
to a medical or sincerely held religious reason, the Contractor must also 
maintain records of the Contractor Personnel’s testing results. The 
Contractor must provide such records to the County and/or District for 
audit purposes, when required by County and/or District.  The 
unvaccinated exempt Contractor Personnel must meet the following 
requirements prior to (1) interacting in person with County and/or District 
workforce members, (2) working on County and/or District owned or 
controlled property while performing services under this Contract, and/or 
(3) coming into contact with the public while performing services under this 
Contract: 

 
1. Test for COVID-19 with either a polymerase chain reaction (PCR) 

or antigen test has an Emergency Use Authorization (EUA) by the 
FDA or is operating per the Laboratory Developed Test 
requirements by the U.S. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 
Services. Testing must occur at least weekly, or more frequently as 
required by County and/or District or other applicable law, 
regulation or order. 

2.  Wear a mask that is consistent with CDC recommendations at all 
times while on County and/or District controlled or owned property, 
and while engaging with members of the public and County and/or 
District workforce members.   

3. Engage in proper physical distancing, as determined by the 
applicable County department that the Contract is with. 

 
E. In addition to complying with the requirements of this section, Contractor 

shall also comply with all other applicable local, departmental, State, and 
federal laws, regulations and requirements for COVID-19.   

 

 

 

P:\aepub\Service Contracts\CONTRACT\Jairo\CATCH BASIN\2021 IFB\06 FINAL AGREEMENT\08 EXHIBIT B, DISTRICT.doc 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 217 of 778



øÎ »ªòÜ »½»³ ¾»® î ðî ð÷

Ò ±¬·½» ïðïë

Ü »°¿®¬³ »²¬±º¬̧ » Ì®»¿«®§
×²¬»®²¿´Î »ª»²«» Í »®ª·½»

Ø ¿ª» Ç ±« Ì± ¼́ Ç ±«® Û ³ ° ±́§»» ß ¾±«¬ ¬̧ »

Û ¿®²»¼ ×²½±³ » Ý ®»¼·¬øÛ ×Ý ÷á

É ¸¿¬× ¬̧ » Û ×Ý á
Ì¸» Û×Ý · ¿ ®»º«²¼¿¾ »́ ¬¿¨ ½®»¼·¬º±®½»®¬¿·² © ±®µ»®ò

É ¸·½¸ Û ³ ° ±́§»» Ó «¬ ×Ò ±¬·º§ ß ¾±«¬ ¬̧ » Û ×Ý á
Ç±« ³ «¬²±¬·º§ »¿½¸ »³ ° ±́§»» © ¸± © ±®µ»¼ º±®§±« ¿¬¿²§ ¬·³ » ¼«®·²¹
¬̧ » §»¿®¿²¼ º®±³ © ¸±» © ¿¹» §±« ¼·¼ ²±¬© ·¬̧ ¸± ¼́ ·²½±³ » ¬¿¨ò
Ø ±© »ª»®ô§±« ¼± ²±¬¸¿ª» ¬± ²±¬·º§ ¿²§ »³ ° ±́§»» © ¸± ½ ¿́·³ »¼

»¨»³ °¬·±² º®±³  © ·¬̧ ¸± ¼́·²¹ ±² Ú±®³  É óìô Û³ ° ±́§»»� É ·¬̧ ¸± ¼́·²¹ 

Ò ±¬»æÇ±« ¿®» »²½±«®¿¹»¼ ¬± ²±¬·º§ »¿½¸ »³ ° ±́§»» © ¸±» © ¿¹» º±®
î ðî ð ¿®» »́ ¬̧ ¿² üëêôèìì ¬̧ ¿¬¸» ±®¸» ³ ¿§ ¾» » ·́¹·¾ »́ º±®¬̧ » Û×Ý ò

Ø ±© ¿²¼ É ¸»² Ó «¬×Ò ±¬·º§ Ó § Û ³ ° ±́§»»á
Ç±« ³ «¬¹·ª» ¬̧ » »³ ° ±́§»» ±²» ±º¬̧ » º±´́±© ·²¹ò

� Ì¸» ×Î Í  Ú±®³  É óî ô É ¿¹» ¿²¼  Ì¿¨ Í ¬¿¬»³ »²¬ô © ¸·½¸ ¸¿ ¬̧ » ®»¯«·®»¼  
·²º±®³ ¿¬·±² ¿¾±«¬¬̧ » Û×Ý ±² ¬̧ » ¾¿½µ ±ºÝ ±°§ Þ ò

� ß  «¾¬·¬«¬» Ú±®³  É óî  © ·¬̧  ¬̧ » ¿³ » Û×Ý  ·²º±®³ ¿¬·±² ±²  ¬̧ » ¾¿½µ ±º 

¬̧ » »³ ° ±́§»»� ½±°§ ¬̧ ¿¬ · ±² Ý ±°§ Þ  ±º ¬̧ » ×Î Í  Ú±®³  É óî ò

� Ò ±¬·½» éçéô Ð ±·¾ »́ Ú»¼»®¿  ́ Ì¿¨ Î »º«²¼  Ü «» ¬±  ¬̧ » Û¿®²»¼  ×²½±³ » 
Ý ®»¼·¬øÛ×Ý ÷ò

� Ç±«® © ®·¬¬»² ¬¿¬»³ »²¬ © ·¬̧  ¬̧ » ¿³ » © ±®¼·²¹ ¿ Ò ±¬·½» éçéò

×º§±« ¹·ª» ¿² »³ ° ±́§»» ¿ Ú±®³ É óî ±² ¬·³ »ô²± º«®¬̧ »®²±¬·½» ·
²»½»¿®§ ·º¬̧ » Ú±®³ É óî ¸¿ ¬̧ » ®»¯«·®»¼ ·²º±®³ ¿¬·±² ¿¾±«¬¬̧ » Û×Ý
±² ¬̧ » ¾¿½µ ±º ¬̧ » »³ ° ±́§»»� ½±°§ò ×º §±« ¹·ª» ¿²  »³ ° ±́§»» ¿ 

«¾¬·¬«¬» Ú±®³ É óî ô¾«¬·¬¼±» ²±¬¸¿ª» ¬̧ » ®»¯«·®»¼ ·²º±®³ ¿¬·±²ô§±«

³ «¬²±¬·º§ ¬̧ » »³ ° ±́§»» © ·¬̧ ·² ï © »»µ ±º¬̧ » ¼¿¬» ¬̧ » «¾¬·¬«¬»
Ú±®³ É óî · ¹·ª»²ò×ºÚ±®³ É óî · ®»¯«·®»¼ ¾«¬· ²±¬¹·ª»² ±² ¬·³ »ô§±«

³ «¬¹·ª» ¬̧ » »³ ° ±́§»» Ò ±¬·½» éçé ±®§±«®© ®·¬¬»² ¬¿¬»³ »²¬¾§ ¬̧ »
¼¿¬» Ú±®³ É óî · ®»¯«·®»¼ ¬± ¾» ¹·ª»²ò×ºÚ±®³ É óî · ²±¬®»¯«·®»¼ô§±«
³ «¬²±¬·º§ ¬̧ » »³ ° ±́§»» ¾§ Ú»¾®«¿®§ èôî ðî ïò

Ç±« ³ «¬¸¿²¼ ¬̧ » ²±¬·½» ¼·®»½¬́§ ¬± ¬̧ » »³ ° ±́§»» ±®»²¼ ·¬¾§

¬± °±¬¬̧ » ²±¬·½» ¬± ¸» °́ ·²º±®³ ¿´́ »³ ° ±́§»» ±º¬̧ » Û×Ý òÇ±« ½¿²
¼±© ² ±́¿¼ ½±°·» ±º¬̧ » ²±¬·½» ¿¬ òÑ ®§±« ½¿²
¹± ¬± ¬± ±®¼»®·¬ò

Ø ±© É ·́´Ó § Û ³ ° ±́§»» Õ ²±© ·ºÌ¸»§ Ý ¿²

Ý ¿́·³ ¬̧ » Û ×Ý á

Ì¸» ¾¿·½ ®»¯«·®»³ »²¬ ¿®» ½±ª»®»¼ ·² Ò ±¬·½» éçéòÚ±®³ ±®» ¼»¬¿·́»¼
·²º±®³ ¿¬·±²ô¬̧ » »³ ° ±́§»» ²»»¼ ¬± »» Ð «¾òëçêôÛ¿®²»¼ ×²½±³ »
Ý ®»¼·¬øÛ×Ý ÷ô±®¬̧ » ×²¬®«½¬·±² º±®Ú±®³  ïðìð ¿²¼ ïðìðóÍ Î ò

Ø ±© Ü ± Ó § Û ³ ° ±́§»» Ý ¿́·³ ¬̧ » Û ×Ý á

ß ² » ·́¹·¾ »́ »³ ° ±́§»» ½ ¿́·³  ¬̧ » Û×Ý ±² ¸· ±®¸»®î ðî ð ¬¿¨ ®»¬«®²òÛª»²
¿² »³ ° ±́§»» © ¸± ¸¿ ²± ¬¿¨ © ·¬̧ ¸» ¼́ º®±³ © ¿¹» ¿²¼ ±© » ²± ¬¿¨ ³ ¿§

¼± ±òÚ±®»¨¿³ ° »́ô·º¿² »³ ° ±́§»» ¸¿ ²± ¬¿¨ © ·¬̧ ¸» ¼́ ·² î ðî ð ¿²¼

î ðî ð ¬¿¨ ®»¬«®² ¬± ¹»¬¬̧ » üèðð ®»º«²¼ò

Ò ±¬·½» ïðïë øÎ »ªòïî óî ðî ð÷

Ý ¿¬òÒ ±òî ðëçç×

EXHIBIT C
CONTRACT NO. 2136 

EXHIBIT "A"
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 218 of 778



 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 219 of 778



 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 220 of 778



 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 221 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 222 of 778



EXHIBIT E

Page 1 of 4

Chapter 2.206 DEFAULTED PROPERTY TAX REDUCTION PROGRAM

2.206.010 Findings and declarations.
2.206.020 Definitions.
2.206.030 Applicability.
2.206.040 Required solicitation and Contract language.
2.206.050 Administration and compliance certification.
2.206.060 Exclusions/Exemptions.
2.206.070 Enforcement and remedies.
2.206.080 Severability.

2.206.010 Findings and declarations.

The Board of Supervisors finds that significant revenues are lost each year as a result
of taxpayers who fail to pay their tax obligations on time. The delinquencies impose an
economic burden upon the County and its taxpayers. Therefore, the Board of
Supervisors establishes the goal of ensuring that individuals and businesses that benefit
financially from Contracts with the County fulfill their property tax obligation.
(Ord. No. 2009-0026 § 1 (part), 2009.)

2.206.020 Definitions.

The following definitions shall be applicable to this chapter:

A. "Contractor" shall mean any person, firm, corporation, partnership, or
combination thereof, which submits a bid or proposal or enters into a Contract or
agreement with the County.

B. "County" shall mean the County of Los Angeles or any public entities for which
the Board of Supervisors is the governing body.

C. "County Property Taxes" shall mean any property tax obligation on the County's
secured or unsecured roll; except for tax obligations on the secured roll with
respect to property held by a Contractor in a trust or fiduciary capacity or
otherwise not beneficially owned by the Contractor.

D. "Department" shall mean the County department, entity, or organization
responsible for the solicitation and/or administration of the Contract.

E. "Default" shall mean any property tax obligation on the secured roll that has
been deemed defaulted by operation of law pursuant to California Revenue
and Taxation Code section 3436; or any property tax obligation on the unsecured
roll that remains unpaid on the applicable delinquency date pursuant to
California Revenue and Taxation Code section 2922; except for any property tax
obligation dispute pending before the Assessment Appeals Board.

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 223 of 778



EXHIBIT E

Page 2 of 4

F. "Solicitation" shall mean the County's process to obtain bids or proposals for
goods and services.

G. "Treasurer-Tax Collector" shall mean the Treasurer and Tax Collector of the
County of Los Angeles. (Ord. No. 2009-0026 § 1 (part), 2009.)

2.206.030 Applicability.

This chapter shall apply to all solicitations issued 60 days after the effective date of the
ordinance codified in this chapter. This chapter shall also apply to all new, renewed,
extended, and/or amended Contracts entered into 60 days after the effective date of
the ordinance codified in this chapter. (Ord. No. 2009-0026 § 1 (part), 2009.)

2.206.040 Required solicitation and Contract language.

All solicitations and all new, renewed, extended, and/or amended Contracts shall
contain language, which:

A. Requires any Contractor to keep County Property Taxes out of Default status at
all times during the term of an awarded Contract;

B. Provides that the failure of the Contractor to comply with the provisions in this
chapter may prevent the Contractor from being awarded a new Contract; and

C. Provides that the failure of the Contractor to comply with the provisions in this
chapter may constitute a material breach of an existing Contract, and failure to
cure the breach within ten days of notice by the County by paying the
outstanding County Property Tax or making payments in a manner agreed to and
approved by the Treasurer-Tax Collector, may subject the Contract to
suspension and/or termination. (Ord. No. 2009-0026 § 1 (part), 2009.)

2.206.050 Administration and compliance certification.

A. The Treasurer-Tax Collector shall be responsible for the administration of this
chapter. The Treasurer-Tax Collector shall, with the assistance of the
Chief Executive Officer, Director of Internal Services, and County Counsel issue
written instructions on the implementation and ongoing administration of this
chapter. Such instructions may provide for the delegation of functions to other
departments.

B. Contractor shall be required to certify, at the time of submitting any bid or
proposal to the County, or entering into any new Contract, or renewal, extension
or amendment of an existing Contract with the County, that it is in compliance
with this chapter is not in Default on any County Property Taxes or is current in

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 224 of 778



EXHIBIT E

Page 3 of 4

payments due under any approved payment arrangement (Ord. No. 2009-0026
§ 1 (part), 2009.)

2.206.060 Exclusions/Exemptions.

A. This chapter shall not apply to the following Contracts:

1. Chief Executive Office delegated authority agreements under $50,000;

2. A Contract where Federal or State law or a condition of a Federal or State
program mandates the use of a particular Contractor;

3. A purchase made through a State or Federal Contract;

4. A Contract where State or Federal monies are used to fund
service-related programs including, but not limited to, voucher programs,
foster care, or other social programs that provide immediate direct
assistance;

5. Purchase orders under a master agreement, where the Contractor was
certified at the time the master agreement was entered into and at any
subsequent renewal, extension and/or amendment to the master
agreement;

6. Purchase orders issued by Internal Services Department under $100,000
that is not the result of a competitive bidding process;

7. Program agreements that utilize Board of Supervisors' discretionary funds;

8. National Contracts established for the purchase of equipment and
supplies for and by the National Association of Counties, U.S.
Communities Government Purchasing Alliance, or any similar
related group purchasing organization;

9. A monopoly purchase that is exclusive and proprietary to a specific
manufacturer, distributor, reseller, and must match and intermember with
existing supplies, equipment, or systems maintained by the County
pursuant to the Los Angeles Purchasing Policy and Procedures Manual,
Section P-3700 or a successor provision;

10. A revolving fund (petty cash) purchase pursuant to the Los Angeles
County Fiscal Manual, Section 4.6.0 or a successor provision;

11. A purchase card purchase pursuant to the Los Angeles County
Purchasing Policy and Procedures Manual, Section P-2810 or a
successor provision;

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 225 of 778



EXHIBIT E

Page 4 of 4

12. A nonagreement purchase worth a value of less than $5,000 pursuant to
the Los Angeles County Purchasing Policy and Procedures Manual,
Section A-0300 or a successor provision; or

13. A bona fide emergency purchase pursuant to the Los Angeles County
Purchasing Policy and Procedures Manual Section P-0900 or a successor
provision;

14. Other Contracts for mission critical goods and/or services where the Board
of Supervisors determines that an exemption is justified.

B. Other laws. This chapter shall not be interpreted or applied to any Contractor in a
manner inconsistent with the laws of the United States or California.
(Ord. No. 2009-0026 § 1 (part), 2009.)

2.206.070 Enforcement and remedies.

A. The information furnished by each Contractor certifying that it is in compliance
with this chapter shall be under penalty of perjury.

B. No Contractor shall willfully and knowingly make a false statement certifying
compliance with this chapter for the purpose of obtaining or retaining a County
Contract.

C. For Contractor's violation of any provision of this chapter, the County department
head responsible for administering the Contract may do one or more of the
following:

1. Recommend to the Board of Supervisors the termination of the Contract;
and/or,

2. Pursuant to Chapter 2.202, seek the debarment of the Contractor; and/or,

3. Recommend to the Board of Supervisors that an exemption is justified
pursuant to Section 2.206.060.A.14 of this chapter or payment deferral as
provided pursuant to the California Revenue and Taxation Code.
(Ord. No. 2009-0026 § 1 (part), 2009.)

2.206.080 Severability.

If any provision of this chapter is found invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the
remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect. (Ord. No. 2009-0026 § 1 (part),
2009.)

P:\aepub\Service Contracts\CONTRACT\CONTRACTING FORMS\RFP\11 Exhibit E_Default Tax 06-04-15.docx

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 226 of 778



                                                                                                                                                                                                   EXHIBIT F 
PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS SUMMARY 

 
The items listed under this Performance Requirements Summary (PRS) are not all encompassing, and any conflict or discrepancy between the 
requirements specified in Exhibits A through N, inclusive, of this Contract (Exhibits A-N) and this PRS, Exhibits A-N shall control. The County reserves 
the right to modify this PRS at any time consistent with the requirements set forth in Exhibits A-N, to clarify Performance Requirements, or to monitor 
of any part of this Contract. 

Required Service/Tasks Performance 
Indicator 

Deductions / 
Consequences for 

Failure to Meet 
Performance Indicator* 

Compliance Comments 

 

*Deductions may be imposed in addition to the Liquidated Damages at the sole discretion of the Contract Manager. 
 

Page 1 of 5 

 

A. SCOPE OF WORK     

1. Fines by Regulatory and 
Governmental Agencies 

Fined by a local, regional, 
State, or Federal regulatory or 
governmental agency as a 
result of the Contractor's 
negligence or failure to comply 
with any Federal, State, or local 
rules, regulations, or 
requirements. 

$500 per occurrence 
plus any fine(s) charged 
to the County by a 
regulatory or 
governmental agency; 
possible suspension; 
possible termination for 
default of contract. 

☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

2. Violation of the National 
Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System 

Discharge of debris into storm 
drains and/or gutter. 

$500 per occurrence 
plus any fines by 
regulatory and 
governmental agencies 
plus any remediation 
cost; possible 
suspension; possible 
termination for default of 
contract. 

☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

B. REPORTS/DOCUMENTATIONS     

1. Daily/Weekly/Monthly/ 
Quarterly Reports 

Submitted to Contract Manager 
daily/weekly/monthly report. 

$25 per day per report 
that is late or not 
submitted. 

☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

2. Special Reports  Filed within time frame 
requested. 

$50 per day per report 
that is late or not 
submitted. 

☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 227 of 778



                                                                                                                                                                                                   EXHIBIT F 
PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS SUMMARY 

 
The items listed under this Performance Requirements Summary (PRS) are not all encompassing, and any conflict or discrepancy between the 
requirements specified in Exhibits A through N, inclusive, of this Contract (Exhibits A-N) and this PRS, Exhibits A-N shall control. The County reserves 
the right to modify this PRS at any time consistent with the requirements set forth in Exhibits A-N, to clarify Performance Requirements, or to monitor 
of any part of this Contract. 

Required Service/Tasks Performance 
Indicator 

Deductions / 
Consequences for 

Failure to Meet 
Performance Indicator* 

Compliance Comments 

 

*Deductions may be imposed in addition to the Liquidated Damages at the sole discretion of the Contract Manager. 
 

Page 2 of 5 

 

C. EMPLOYEES     

1. Contractor's Employee 
Criminal Background 
Investigation 

As applicable, prior to the start 
of the contract and continuation 
of the contract, the contractor 
shall certify all employees who 
are in a designated sensitive 
position has passed a 
fingerprints background check 
submitted to the California 
Department of Justice to 
include State, local, and 
federal-level review as required 
by the Contract. 
Employees who do not pass or 
are not certified shall be 
immediately removed.  

$100 per employee per 
day who is not certified 
as passing the 
background check. 

☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

2. Staffing Staffing levels are equal or 
exceed contract requirements. 

$50 per occurrence. ☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

3. Photo I.D. Badges 
(REMOVED if not needed) 

Photo I.D. badges worn by all 
employees on the job at all 
times. 

$50 per employee, per 
occurrence.   

☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

4. Uniform (REMOVED if not 
needed) 

Uniforms worn by all day time 
employees on the job. 

$50 per employee, per 
occurrence.   

☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

5. Training Program 
(REMOVED if not needed) 

Document training of each 
employee. 

$250 per untrained 
employee. 

☐Yes   
☐No 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 228 of 778



                                                                                                                                                                                                   EXHIBIT F 
PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS SUMMARY 

 
The items listed under this Performance Requirements Summary (PRS) are not all encompassing, and any conflict or discrepancy between the 
requirements specified in Exhibits A through N, inclusive, of this Contract (Exhibits A-N) and this PRS, Exhibits A-N shall control. The County reserves 
the right to modify this PRS at any time consistent with the requirements set forth in Exhibits A-N, to clarify Performance Requirements, or to monitor 
of any part of this Contract. 

Required Service/Tasks Performance 
Indicator 

Deductions / 
Consequences for 

Failure to Meet 
Performance Indicator* 

Compliance Comments 

 

*Deductions may be imposed in addition to the Liquidated Damages at the sole discretion of the Contract Manager. 
 

Page 3 of 5 

 

☐N/A 

6. Maintain Knowledge of 
Safety Requirements 

Understands the standards for 
safe practices related to the 
work. 

$50 per employee, per 
occurrence.   

☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

D. SUPERVISOR/MANAGERS     

1. Change in Project Manager Contractor shall notify the 
County in writing of any change 
in name or address of the 
Project Manager. 

$50 per occurrence. ☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

2. Respond to Complaints, 
Requests, and 
Discrepancies. 

Respond within the time frame 
outlined in the Contract. 

$50 per complaint not 
responded to within the 
time frame outlined in 
the specifications. 

☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

3. Makes Site Inspections Facility inspected each shift or 
as required by Contract. 

$50 per occurrence. ☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

4. Competent Supervisory Staff Responsiveness to complaints 
and requests, maintain good 
work records, and acceptable 
level of service. 

$50 per day; possible 
suspension. 

☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

5. Provide Adequate 
Supervision and Training 

Contract specifications met. $50 per occurrence; 
possible suspension. 

☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 229 of 778



                                                                                                                                                                                                   EXHIBIT F 
PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS SUMMARY 

 
The items listed under this Performance Requirements Summary (PRS) are not all encompassing, and any conflict or discrepancy between the 
requirements specified in Exhibits A through N, inclusive, of this Contract (Exhibits A-N) and this PRS, Exhibits A-N shall control. The County reserves 
the right to modify this PRS at any time consistent with the requirements set forth in Exhibits A-N, to clarify Performance Requirements, or to monitor 
of any part of this Contract. 

Required Service/Tasks Performance 
Indicator 

Deductions / 
Consequences for 

Failure to Meet 
Performance Indicator* 

Compliance Comments 

 

*Deductions may be imposed in addition to the Liquidated Damages at the sole discretion of the Contract Manager. 
 

Page 4 of 5 

 

6. Project Safety Official Project Safety Official who shall 
be thoroughly familiar with the 
Contractor's Injury and Illness 
Prevention Program and Code 
of Safe Practices. 

$100 per occurrence. ☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

7. Supervisors speak, read, 
write, and understand 
English 

On-site supervisor can 
communicate in English with 
County Contract Manager. 

$50 per day for use of 
non-English-speaking 
supervisor; possible 
suspension. 

☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

E. CONTRACT ADMINSTRATION     

1. Insurance Certifications Certifications submitted before 
implementation of contract and 
on a timely basis thereafter. 

$100 per day; 
work/contract; possible 
suspension; possible 
termination for default of 
contract. 

☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 
 
 

2. Record Retention & 
Inspection/Audit Settlement  

Maintain all required 
documents as specified in 
contract. 

$200 per occurrence. ☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

3. License and Certification All license and certifications 
required to perform the work, if 
any. 

$100 per day; possible 
suspension; possible 
termination for default of 
contract. 

☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

4. Assignment and Delegation Contractor shall not assign its 
rights or delegate its duties 
under this Contract, or both, 
whether in whole or in part, 
without the prior written 
consent of County.  

$200 per day the County 
is not informed of this 
change; possible 
suspension; possible 
termination for default of 
contract. 

☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 230 of 778



                                                                                                                                                                                                   EXHIBIT F 
PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS SUMMARY 

 
The items listed under this Performance Requirements Summary (PRS) are not all encompassing, and any conflict or discrepancy between the 
requirements specified in Exhibits A through N, inclusive, of this Contract (Exhibits A-N) and this PRS, Exhibits A-N shall control. The County reserves 
the right to modify this PRS at any time consistent with the requirements set forth in Exhibits A-N, to clarify Performance Requirements, or to monitor 
of any part of this Contract. 

Required Service/Tasks Performance 
Indicator 

Deductions / 
Consequences for 

Failure to Meet 
Performance Indicator* 

Compliance Comments 

 

*Deductions may be imposed in addition to the Liquidated Damages at the sole discretion of the Contract Manager. 
 

Page 5 of 5 

 

5. Safety Requirements Comply with all applicable 
State of California 
Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration 
(Cal/OSHA). 

$200 per occurrence; 
possible suspension. 

☐Yes   
☐No 
☐N/A 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P:\aepub\Service Contracts\CONTRACT\Jairo\CATCH BASIN\2021 IFB\06 FINAL AGREEMENT\12 Exhibit F Performance Requirements Summary.docx 

 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 231 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 232 of 778



Shop Drawings ARS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.1

Page 1 of 17

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 233 of 778



 

 
 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.1

Page 2 of 17

   

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 234 of 778



 

 
 
 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.1

Page 3 of 17

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 235 of 778



 

 
 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.1

Page 4 of 17

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 236 of 778



 

 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.1

Page 5 of 17

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 237 of 778



 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.1

Page 6 of 17

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 238 of 778



 
 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.1

Page 7 of 17

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 239 of 778



 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.1

Page 8 of 17

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 240 of 778



 
 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.1

Page 9 of 17

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 241 of 778



 
 
 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.1

Page 10 of 17

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 242 of 778



 

 
 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.1

Page 11 of 17

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 243 of 778



 

 
 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.1

Page 12 of 17

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 244 of 778



 

 
 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.1

Page 13 of 17

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 245 of 778



 

 
 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.1

Page 14 of 17

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 246 of 778



 

 
 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.1

Page 15 of 17

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 247 of 778



 

 
 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.1

Page 16 of 17

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 248 of 778



 

 
 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.1

Page 17 of 17

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 249 of 778



Shop Drawings CPS 

 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.2

Page 1 of 5

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 250 of 778



 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.2

Page 2 of 5

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 251 of 778



 

 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.2

Page 3 of 5

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 252 of 778



 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.2

Page 4 of 5

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 253 of 778



 

 
 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.2

Page 5 of 5

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 254 of 778



Standard Plans 

 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.3

Page 1 of 10

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 255 of 778



 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.3

Page 2 of 10

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 256 of 778



 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.3

Page 3 of 10

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 257 of 778



 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.3

Page 4 of 10

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 258 of 778



 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.3

Page 5 of 10

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 259 of 778



 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.3

Page 6 of 10

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 260 of 778



 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.3

Page 7 of 10

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 261 of 778



 

CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.3

Page 8 of 10

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 262 of 778



CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.3

Page 9 of 10

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 263 of 778



CATCH BASIN
STANDARD PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT H.3

Page 10 of 10

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 264 of 778



EXHIBIT I 
 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY 
STORMWATER MAINTENANCE AREAS

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 265 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 266 of 778



EXHIBIT L 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

WEEKLY CATCH BASIN CLEANING REPORT 
 

WEEK OF  ____________________  
 

CB NO. DATE 

C 
P 
S 

A 
R 
S 

M 
R 
S 

F 
B 
I 

CO 
OWNED 

CITY 
OWNED 

GRATED 
Y/N 

DEFICIENCY  
NO. 

VOLUME 
OF 

DEBRIS 

AMOUNT OF DEBRIS 
REMOVED IN LBS 

REMARKS 

Trash 
Green 
waste 

Sediment 

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

 
DEFICIENCIES: 

 
A) Missing Manhole Lid      
B) Missing Protection Bar      
C) Exterior Damage (broken deck, uneven pavement)         
D) Grate Bars Bent, Broken, or Missing      
E) Distance Between Grate Bars is greater than ¾” inch        
F) Other Physical Damage That May Pose a Safety Hazard  

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 267 of 778



EXHIBIT M 

 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
CATCH BASIN CLEANING REPORT 

 
CITY OF ____________________   MAP NO. __________________ 

 
Cleaning Date ________________  Contractor Representative__________________________ 

 

CB No. 

C 
P 
S 
 

A 
R 
S 

M 
R 
S 

F 
B 
I 

CO 
OWNED 

CITY 
OWNED 

GRATED 
Y/N 

DEFICIENCY 
NO. 

VOLUME 
OF 

DEBRIS 

AMOUNT OF DEBRIS 
REMOVED IN LBS 

REMARKS 

Trash Green 
waste 

Sediment 

              

              

              

              

              

              

              

              

              

              

              

              

              

              

              

              

 
DEFICIENCIES: 

 
A) Missing Manhole Lid      
B) Missing Protection Bar        
C) Exterior Damage (broken deck, uneven pavement)         
D) Grate Bars Bent, Broken, or Missing      
E) Distance Between Grate Bars is greater than ¾” inch        
F) Other Physical Damage That May Pose a Safety Hazard        

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 268 of 778



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

FLOOD MAINTENANCE DIVISION 

 

 
 

CONFINED SPACE 
MANUAL 

 
 

 

EXHIBIT N
CONTRACT NO. 2136 

EXHIBIT "A"
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 269 of 778



FMD Confined Space Manual Update
December 2008

Confined Space Manual Revisions

PG. 25 Continuous storm drain inspections.
(Size limitations)

PG. 27 Storm drain maintenance.
(Size limitations)

PG. 33 Storm drain rescue procedures.
(Escape pack procedures)

PG. 59 Simulated rescue drils.
(Notify DSC)

PG. 78 New permit for Big Dalton Dam arches.

I

REVIEW SIGNATURE PAGE

,--/./
/.:".~ /.~ .-,~~/--.tvV ~ ;£--

Signature /
,

3/3/01
Date

Rudy Lee
Flood Maintenance Assistant Deputy Director

---

=l7Date

Je ey Bartizal
Employee Health and Safety Manager

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 270 of 778



REVIEW SIGNATURE PAGE

¡L
Rudy Lee
Flood Maintenance Assistant Deputy Director

ýø:#S¡9n# ~_.
Jeffrey Bartizal

Employee Health and Safety Manager

2 he /0 7
Date

~?7
Dat

1-00-01
Date

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 271 of 778



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

INTRODUCTION............................................................................................................. 1 

DEFINITIONS ................................................................................................................. 3 

CONFINED SPACE ........................................................................................................ 7 

CONFINED SPACE SIGN-IN SHEET............................................................................. 9 

ENTRY PERMITS ......................................................................................................... 13 

PERSONNEL ASSIGNMENT ....................................................................................... 15 

NON-FLOOD MAINTENANCE DIVISION PERSONNEL ............................................. 19 

CONTRACTOR............................................................................................................. 21 

 

STORM DRAIN INSPECTIONS .................................................................................... 23 

 
SUBDRAIN INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE......................................................... 35 

 
PUMP PLANTS............................................................................................................. 39 

 

RADIO EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE GUIDELINES.................................................... 45 

AIRFLOW REQUIREMENTS........................................................................................ 47 

RESPIRATORS ............................................................................................................ 49 

TRAINING REQUIREMENTS ....................................................................................... 55 

SIMULATED RESCUE DRILLS ................................................................................... 59 

RECORD KEEPING...................................................................................................... 61 

APPENDIX I - FORMS.................................................................................................. 63 

APPENDIX II - PERMITS.............................................................................................. 78 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 272 of 778



Page 1 

INTRODUCTION 

The intent of this Manual is to comply with the philosophy of good safety practices and the 
explicit requirements of safety orders and to exceed the CAL/OSHA Safety Orders where 
added protection is warranted. 
 
This confined space manual is meant to supplement and expand the Department's G114 
Safety Directive on confined spaces.  All employees working in/around confined spaces 
shall be familiar with directive G114.  This manual provides instruction to all personnel 
working in Flood Maintenance Division facilities. 
 
This manual covering work in confined spaces is intended to: 
 
1. Minimize exposure to hazardous atmospheric conditions. 
 
2. Maintain continuous communications with workers inside confined spaces. 
 
3. Provide safe work procedures while working in confined spaces. 
 
4. Provide safety and emergency equipment and training. 
 
5. Describe employee duties and responsibilities for each confined space job 
 category-entrant, attendant, and supervisor. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Updated and revised November 2008 

 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 273 of 778



 

 Page 2 

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 274 of 778



 

 Page 3 

DEFINITIONS 

1. Attendant 
 

• A person who is assigned to monitor a confined space entry and provide for 
the safety of entrants. 

 
2. California Occupational Safety and Heath Association (Cal/OSHA) 
 

• A governing agency that writes and enforces health and safety regulations. 
 
3. Confined Space 
 

• A Confined Space as defined by Cal/OSHA has all of the following 
characteristics: 

 
o Is large enough and so configured that an employee can bodily enter and 

perform assigned work 
 
o Has limited or restricted means for entry or exit 

 
o Is not designed for continuous occupancy 

 
4. County-Wide Integrated Radio System (CWIRS) 
 

• Is the current radio system used in Public Works. 
 
5. Cubic Feet Per Minute (CFM) 
 

• Is a measure used in industrial hygiene and ventilation engineering.  It describes 
the rate of flow of a gas or air volume into or out of a space. 

 
6. Divisional Safety Coordinator (DSC) 
 

• An individual selected by their division head to assist their division on safety 
related matters. 

 
7. Emergency Medical Assistance 
 

• Emergency medical assistance refers to local emergency services (law 
enforcement, fire or medical) during an emergency.  

 
8. Emergency Retrieval Equipment  
 

• The combination of a tripod or davit and a self retracting lifeline with rescue 
retrieval capabilities.  This is also required to be used when entering and exiting 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 275 of 778



 

 Page 4 

storm drains and on ladders greater than 20 feet in length as it acts as a fall 
arrest system. 

 
9. Employee Health and Safety (EHS) 
 

• A section of Public Works Human Resources Division that handles all aspects of 
safety. 

 
10. Entrant 
 

• A person who enters a confined space to perform an assigned task. 
 
11. Entry Supervisor 
 

• An individual who has been assigned the responsibility for directing all  
aspects of the confined space entry and terminate entry when required. 
 

12. Evacuation 
 

• An unaided emergency exit out of a confined space.  This action may result from 
the entrant’s own decision or by a command from outside the space. 
 

13. Excavation 
 

• A man-made cut, trench or depression in an earth surface, formed by earth 
removal. 

 
14. Hazard 
 

• A condition or changing set of circumstances that presents a potential for injury 
or illness.  The potential or inherent characteristics of an activity, condition, or 
circumstance, which can produce adverse or harmful consequences. 

 
15. Hazardous Atmosphere 
 

• An atmosphere that may be, or is injurious to occupants by reason of oxygen 
deficiency or enrichment, flammability or explosiveness, or toxicity. 

 
16. Hot Work Permit 
 

• A permit used in conjunction with other entry permits to allow the use of welding 
and/or a cutting torch in a confined space.  Any hot work in a confined space 
makes it a permit-required confined space. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 276 of 778



 

 Page 5 

 
17. Immediately Dangerous to Life or Health (IDLH)  
 

• IDLH means any condition that poses an immediate or delayed threat to life or 
that would cause irreversible adverse health effects or that would interfere with 
an individual's ability to escape unaided from a permit space. 

 
18. Lower Explosive Limit (LEL) 
 

• The lower limit of flammability of a gas or vapor at ordinary ambient 
temperatures expressed by a percentage of the gas or vapor in air by volume.  

 
19. Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) 
 

• The Manual on Uniform Traffic Controls for Controls for Construction and 
Maintenance Work Zones (Manual) is published by the State of California, 
Department of Transportation (Caltrans), and is issued to provide the basic 
standards for uniform types of warning signs, lights, and devices to be placed 
upon any public highway or street. 

   
20. National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) 
 

• The National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health is a federal agency 
that conducts research on health and safety concerns, tests and certifies 
respirators, and trains occupational health and safety professionals. 

 
21. Spotter 
 

• An individual who monitors the activities of a permit-required confined space, 
serves in the link of communication between the Entrant and Attendant, and is 
involved in a rescue.  Serving as a spotter shall be his only assignment. 

 
22. Trench 
 

• A narrow excavation in which usually the depth is greater than its width. 
 
23. Permissible Exposure Limit (PEL)  
 

• An exposure limit published and enforced by Cal/OSHA as a legal standard. 
 
24. Permit-required Confined Space 
 

• A space defined by Cal/OSHA that has one or more of the following 
characteristics: 

 
o Contains or has a potential to contain a hazardous atmosphere 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 277 of 778



 

 Page 6 

 
o Contains a material that has the potential for engulfing an entrant 

 
o Has an internal configuration such that an entrant could be trapped or 

asphyxiated by inwardly converging walls or by a floor which slopes 
downward and tapers to a smaller cross section 

 
o Contains any other recognized serious safety or health hazard 

 
25. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 
 

• Devices worn by the worker for protection against hazards in the environment.  
Respirators, gloves, and hearing protectors are examples of PPE. 

 
26. Work Area Traffic Control Handbook (WATCH Manual) 
 

• The handbook is intended to serve as a standard for control of traffic in work 
areas in public streets by cities, counties and other agencies for employees who 
perform work activities in and in the vicinity of the Public Right-of-Way. 
 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 278 of 778



 

 Page 7 

CONFINED SPACE  

Confined space operations subject to CAL/OSHA regulations can be categorized into 
"Non-permit" and "Permit-required" confined space activities. 
 
"Non-permit" required confined space (defined in this manual as a Confined Space) - A 
confined space that does not contain, or with respect to atmospheric hazards, have the 
potential to contain any hazard capable of causing death or serious physical harm.  The 
area can be entered without an attendant on hand to perform minor maintenance work 
provided the atmosphere has been tested prior to entry and the air testing results are 
recorded on a sign-in sheet. 
 
Minor maintenance work includes routine inspection and maintenance tasks not expected 
to introduce airborne hazards. 
 
Examples: 
 

• Tightening a packing nut 
 

• Working on electrical systems 
 

• Test run engines 
 

• Taking leakage measurements 
 

• Making valve adjustments 
 
Facilities that meet the "Confined Space" space criteria: 
 

• Pump Plants/Pump Stations above the catwalks 
 

• Pressure Reducing Vaults 
 

• Injection Well Vaults 
 

• San Gabriel Dam Tunnel at or above Catwalk Level 
 

• San Gabriel Dam Silo  
 

• Catch Basins 
 

• Enclosed Sections of Open Channel 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 279 of 778



 

 Page 8 

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 280 of 778



 

 Page 9 

CONFINED SPACE SIGN-IN SHEET 
 
A "Confined Space" sign-in sheet will authorize employee(s) to enter and perform routine 
maintenance as indicated on the "Confined Space" sign-in sheet. 
 
Work performed in a "Confined Space" facility does not require an attendant when it is in 
compliance with a Confined Space sign-in-sheet. 
 
When entering the facility the employee(s) must test for atmospheric conditions which 
consist of oxygen deficiency, flammable gas (LEL), hydrogen sulfide, and carbon 
monoxide.  Test results shall be recorded on the "Confined Space" sign-in sheet.  All work 
assignments shall require continuous air monitoring.  If the supervisor or operations staff is 
aware of any additional atmospheric hazards that may be present then appropriate testing 
for this potential hazard should be conducted prior to entering the confined space. 
 
Specific requirements for each Confined Space are listed in task specific sign-in sheets.  
Please read, understand, and follow them. 
 
1. Pump Plants and Pressure Reducing Vaults 
 

• Pump plants (engine room), pressure reducing vaults and pump plants at road 
underpasses are classified as "Confined Space" facilities. 

 
• Pump plants - In addition to work in the engine room, an employee(s) can 

proceed no lower than the catwalk level in the sump room when a stairway is 
available.  Before descending into the sump area, the individual(s) must comply 
with the permit-required Confined Space Permit for this area. 

 
2. San Gabriel Dam Tunnel – at or above catwalk level 
 

• The tunnel is classified as a "Confined Space" facility when the ventilation fans 
are operating.  Refer to the sign-in sheet for the tunnel in Appendix II if fans are 
not operating. 

 
• In addition to performing maintenance tasks along the catwalk and upper landing 

(donut area), an employee can not proceed down into the bay areas (between 
concrete penstock columns) for inspections without complying with the permit-
required Confined Space Permit for this area. 

 
3. San Gabriel Dam Silo 
 

• The silo is classified as a "Confined Space" facility when the ventilation fans are 
operating. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 281 of 778



 

 Page 10 

4. Catch Basin 
 

• A catch basin is classified as a "Confined Space" facility when work does not 
introduce a hazardous atmosphere. 

 

• When the vertical height is 20 feet or greater, a harness, and emergency 
retrieval equipment must be used as fall protection during entry and exit from the 
catch basin. 

 
5. Enclosed sections of an open channel that meet one or more of the following criteria are 

classified as a confined space: 
 

• Have enclosed sections greater than 300’ in length. 
 

• Have inadequate ventilation (air flow that can be felt at a minimum). 
 

• Have restricted means of egress (blockage in or so narrow a channel that it 
would impede the egress of the space). 

 

• When work is done in a section that could introduce airborne hazards.  (The use 
of internal combustion engine i.e.;  water pump, compressor, Vactor Truck, etc.) 

 
Exception:  When traveling through an enclosed section of a channel in an enclosed 
cab of a motorized vehicle and the channel is wide enough to turn around in that 
motorized vehicle, NO air monitoring equipment or escape breathing apparatus are 
required. If an employee exits the vehicle while in an enclosed section, all requirements 
of a confined space apply. 

 
6. Excavations/Trenches 
 

• Excavations, in particular trenches, have the possibility of having a hazardous 
atmosphere.  Where an excavation or trench is in landfill areas or areas where 
hazardous substances are stored nearby, the atmosphere in the excavation shall 
be tested before employees enter excavations greater than four feet in depth.  A 
sign-in sheet is provided to record gas monitor readings.      

 

• Excavations and trenches over four feet in depth require a means of egress 
every 25 feet of travel.  Trenches greater than five feet in depth require a means 
to protect the employees in the trench (shoring or sloping).  Additionally, all 
excavations shall be inspected daily by a properly trained competent person. 

 
See Appendix II, Permits Section for copies of the prepared sign-in sheets. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 282 of 778



 

 Page 11 

PERMIT-REQUIRED CONFINED SPACE 
 
A Permit-Required Confined Space as defined by Cal/OSHA has one or more of the 
following characteristics: 
 

• Contains or has a potential to contain a hazardous atmosphere  
 
• Contains a material that has the potential for engulfing an entrant  
 
• Has an internal configuration such that an entrant could be trapped or 

asphyxiated by inwardly converging walls or by a floor which slopes downward 
and tapers to a smaller cross-section  

 

• Contains any other recognized serious safety or health hazard 
 
Examples: 
 

• Pump plants - sump area 
 

• Storm drains 
 

• Outlet tunnels or Penstocks 
 

• Channel subdrains 
 

• CDS/Low Flow Diversion Vaults 
 
These areas, which can expose an employee(s) to a risk of death, incapacitation or injury, 
must be entered with the aid of a crew trained to work in confined spaces as required in the 
individual permit. 
 
Major maintenance work that would be expected to produce an atmospheric hazard in a 
confined space facility mandates a "Permit-Required" entry permit.  Tasks would include 
painting, hotwork (welding), using an internal combustion engine, cleaning a  pump plant 
sump, etc. 
 
Atmospheric Hazards possible in a Confined Space: 
 
An atmosphere, which exposes employees to a risk of death, incapacitation, injury or 
illness from one or more of the following: 
 
1. Atmospheric Oxygen concentration below 19.5 percent or above 23.5 percent. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 283 of 778



 

 Page 12 

 
2. Atmospheric concentration of a substance in excess of its OSHA Permissible 

Exposure Limit (PEL): 
 

Examples: 
 

• Carbon monoxide 

• Hydrogen sulfide 

• Welding fumes 

• Paint vapors 
 
3. Flammable gas, vapor or mist in excess of ten percent (10%) of its Lower 
 Explosive Limit (LEL): 
 

Examples: 
 

• Methane (natural gas) 

• Propane 

• Fuel/solvent vapors 
 

Airborne combustible dust of a concentration that meets or exceeds its PEL 
(obscures vision at a distance of approximately five feet or less). 

 
4. Any atmospheric condition recognized as immediately dangerous to life or health 
 (IDLH). 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 284 of 778



 

 Page 13 

ENTRY PERMITS 

A "Permit-Required" entry permit will authorize personnel to enter a confined space to 
perform a task, provided all the provisions of the entry permit are followed. 
 
When entering the space, the trained employees must test for atmospheric conditions.  
Test results shall be recorded on the "Permit-Required" entry permit.  All work assignments 
require continuous air monitoring. 
 
An attendant must be on duty outside the permit space. 
 
See Appendix II for copies of the prepared permits. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 285 of 778



 

 Page 14 

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 286 of 778



 

 Page 15 

PERSONNEL ASSIGNMENT 

I.   Flood Control Construction Supervisor 
 

A Flood Control Construction Supervisor (FCCS) will be assigned the responsibility of 
supervising a crew participating in confined space entries.   
 
A FCCS shall make sure that employees under their supervision who enter or work in 
confined spaces know and understand confined space entry, operational, and rescue 
procedures.  They are also responsible for making sure that their employees comply 
with the requirements of this manual, Safety Directive G114, and Cal/OSHA. 
 
A FCCS shall report areas of concern regarding confined space operations to the DSC 
who may contact EHS.  DSC/EHS shall recommend ways and means and/or safety 
equipment necessary to correct safety deficiencies discovered during the operation. 

 
1. FCCS shall be trained and knowledgeable with the following: 

 
General hazards associated with confined spaces. 

 

• Specific hazards associated with the facility, location or operation. 
 

• Proper use and limitations of personal protective equipment, and other safety 
equipment. 

 

• Permit system and other procedural requirements. 
 

o Duties and responsibilities of the confined space entry team.  
 

• Recognition of overexposure symptoms. 
 

o Proper use of atmospheric monitoring instruments.  This shall include 
zeroing, daily bump checks, and calibration of the instrument. 
 

o Use, maintenance, and limitations of respirators. 
 

• Proper response to emergencies. 
 
Foremen supervising crews working in permit-required confined spaces shall be trained 
in Fall Protection Competent Person.  This qualifies them to conduct the bi-annual 
inspection of fall arrest equipment. 
 
For permit-confined spaces, only physically fit employees who have been properly 
trained and do not exceed full body harness and tripod-weight limitations (310 lbs.) with 
equipment on shall be allowed to inspect and work in a confined space. 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 287 of 778



 

 Page 16 

• Employees should be screened for: 
 

o Claustrophobia - fear of working in small/dark areas 
o Fear of insects, snakes and rats 
o Fear of wearing masks or hoods 

 
2. The FCCS will have the responsibility to ensure that: 
 

• Crews are properly trained. 
 

• Daily visual inspection of all safety equipment is performed. 
 

• Monthly inspection reports on safety equipment are completed. 
 

• Daily Functional (Bump) Test shall be performed prior to each day's use.  Refer 
to manufacturer guide for bump test instructions.  A functional test is defined as 
a brief exposure of the monitor to a known concentration of gases for the 
purpose of verifying sensor and alarm operation and is not intended to be a 
measure of the accuracy of the instrument. 
 

• If an instrument fails to operate properly during any functional "Bump" test, a full 
instrument calibration shall be performed prior to use.    

 

• Calibrations of air monitoring equipment per manufacturer’s recommendations 
are completed. 

 
II.  Employee 
 

• Shall attend training before working in confined spaces.  Refer to the Training 
Matrix for details in the Training Requirements section. 

 

• Inspect safety equipment before every use. 
 

• Ensure all equipment is on the vehicle before leaving the yard. 
 

• Know how to use all equipment including gas monitor, fall protection equipment, 
respirators, and emergency retrieval equipment. 

 

• Immediately report equipment problems to their supervisor. 
 

• Report incidents of exposure, an accident, or an injury in a confined space to 
their supervisor immediately. 

 

• Employees who enter and work in confined spaces shall know and understand 
confined space entry , operational, and rescue procedures and shall follow these 
procedures when entering a confined space. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 288 of 778



 

 Page 17 

 

• Employees who discover unidentified hazards in confined spaces shall report 
them to their supervisor immediately. 

 

• Employees shall wear required PPE. 
 

• Employees who fail to follow confined space procedures or comply with 
instructions from their supervisors regarding confined space procedures are 
subject to disciplinary action. 

 
III.  Entry Team 
 

1.  Entry Supervisor 
 

• Personnel Requirements:  One entry supervisor per job is responsible for 
authorizing an entry into a permit required confined space and terminates  the 
entry when required. 

 

• Duties:  The Entry Supervisor shall have the following duties: 
 

o Attend confined space training. 
 

o Know the requirements of the confined space entry program, including 
proper duties of entrants, attendants, and rescue personnel. 

 
o Be knowledgeable about the gas monitor. 

 
o Verify that all required actions have been taken prior to signing the 

permit and allowing entry to begin, and ensure that acceptable 
conditions are maintained for the duration of the entry. 

 
o Verify that rescue services are available prior to and throughout the 

entry, and that the means for summoning them are operable. 
 

o Communicate the status and requirements of the entry to other Entry 
Supervisor(s) whenever the Entry Supervisor is changed. 

 
o Terminate entry, assure removal of personnel and equipment, and 

cancel or complete the entry permit when required. 
 

2.  Attendant 
 

• Location:  The attendant shall be stationed immediately outside the point of 
entry/exit of the confined space to observe the permit required confined space 
(PRCS) and be able to communicate with the occupants throughout the entry. 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 289 of 778



 

 Page 18 

• Personnel Requirements:  There shall be one attendant per point of 
entry/exit. 

 

• Duties:  Attendants shall have the following duties: 
 

o Provide standby assistance to entrants entering the confined space. 
 

o Direct entrants to exit the confined space when any irregularities are 
observed. 

 
o Initiate an evacuation of the space and emergency procedures. 

 
o Monitor for any conditions or changes that could adversely affect the 

entry. 
 

o Remain at the entry point unless relieved by another attendant or 
until the entry is cancelled or completed. 

 
o Always maintain two-way communication at all entrances and have 

a secondary method to communicate with entrants if primary 
means fail. 

 
3.  Entrant 

 
• Duties: Entrant shall have the following duties: 

 
o Recognize potential hazards that may be encountered during entry 

and the proper use and limitations of equipment for control of these 
hazards. 

 
o Inspect for hazards not identified by atmospheric monitoring during 

entry activities. 
 

o Recognize symptoms and warning signs of exposure to potential 
hazards or prohibited conditions. 

 
o Notify the attendant of any emergency or unacceptable condition in 

the confined space. 
 

o Exit the confined space immediately if symptoms, warning signs, or 
unacceptable conditions occur or if directed by the Attendant or Entry 
Supervisor. 

 
o Respond to emergencies, which includes method(s) for self-rescue. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 290 of 778



 

 Page 19 

NON-FLOOD MAINTENANCE DIVISION PERSONNEL 

• This section does not apply to Flood Maintenance field personnel, as FMD employees 
are expected to work in confined spaces and receive confined space training.  This 
section may apply to the engineering sections in Flood Maintenance if they have not 
had an opportunity to attend confined space training and a project requires them to 
review a confined space area as identified in the previous sections of this manual. 

 

• There are times that Public Works employees who work for Division’s other than Flood 
Maintenance, may have a need to enter areas classified as confined spaces or Permit 
required confined spaces.  Examples of this may be engineers from Design Division 
who are looking at design/repair issues. 

 

• There may also be times that persons not employed by the Department may need to 
access these facilities as well.  In the past, examples have been the media, state 
inspectors, contractors on a pre-bid inspection and also law enforcement. 

 

• In either case, appropriate training is provided to the personnel prior to them entering 
the confined space and it is solely directed towards the particular space and the 
applicable hazards.  This training is intended to introduce the hazards of a Flood 
Maintenance Division confined space to someone who has not received FMD In-house 
Confined Space training on Flood Maintenance Division spaces.  A Public Works Crew 
Leader or above will conduct the tailgate.  The training shall cover the items listed on 
the Permit Required Confined Space Tailgate for Non-FMD Personnel.  Everyone 
receiving the training shall sign the tailgate sign-in sheet. 

 

• To help ensure the safety of the space, prior to allowing entry, a FMD crew shall 
proceed through the space checking the atmosphere and the conditions to be sure that 
it is safe to allow people into the confined space.  Only the number of personnel that 
can be safely rescued are allowed to enter the confined space at one time.  This 
determination is based upon the site supervisor's determination of equipment availability 
and analysis of space to be entered. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 291 of 778



 

 Page 20 

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 292 of 778



 

 Page 21 

CONTRACTOR 

When a contract has been awarded for work in a confined space and contractor employees 
will work in the space, either Construction Division or Flood Maintenance Division shall: 
 

• Inform the contractor that the workplace contains or is a confined space and that 
confined space entry is allowed only through compliance with a confined space  
program meeting the requirements of Cal/OSHA, Title 8, Section 5157. 

 

• Apprise the contractor of the elements, including the hazards identified and Flood 
Maintenance's experience with the confined space.  

 

• Provide applicable portions of the confined space manual and procedures to all 
contractors entering a Flood Maintenance confined space.   

 

• Coordinate entry operations with the contractor, when Flood Maintenance 
personnel and contractor personnel will be working in or near the confined space. 
 

• Debrief the contractor following an incident during their confined space operation.  
 

• Once the contract is awarded, the contractor shall provide their own equipment and 
PPE for confined space entry. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 293 of 778



 

 Page 22 

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 294 of 778



 

 Page 23 

PROCEDURES  
 
STORM DRAIN INSPECTIONS AND MAINTENANCE 
 
The entry supervisor must know the hazards of the confined space, verify that all tests are 
conducted and all procedures and equipment are in place, and verify that rescue services 
are available. 
  
1. Vehicles  
 

Traffic control devices (arrow boards, high rise flag stands, and cones) shall be 
positioned as needed to direct traffic around the work area in accordance with the 
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices and/or the Watch Manual. 

 
2. Personal Protective Equipment Requirements  
 

Each crew member entering a manhole shall be equipped with: 
 

• Hard hat 
 

• Full body harness 
 

• Approved flashlight 
 

• Gloves 
 

• Rubber boots (if needed) with anti-slip devices when necessary 
 

• An escape breathing apparatus 
 

• A gas monitor for every inspection team  
 
3. Monitoring for Hazardous Atmosphere  
 

Before the manhole lid is removed, a test shall be performed to determine if there is a 
hazardous atmosphere present.  Once it is determined safe, the manhole lid is 
removed. The manhole shaft shall be tested for an atmospheric condition and the test 
results recorded on the permit.  Air tends to stratify in a confined space; be sure to 
measure at various levels (heights), not to exceed four feet apart. 

 
Test shall be taken for the following: 

 

• Oxygen content 
 

• Flammable gas (LEL) 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 295 of 778



 

 Page 24 

• Hydrogen sulfide 
 

• Carbon monoxide 
 

Note:  If any one of the four elements test positive, or a hazardous material spill is 
suspected in the drain, entry is NOT permitted until such time the area becomes safe 
(see forced ventilation). 

 
4. Safety Equipment  
 

Emergency retrieval equipment shall be positioned above the manhole opening, used 
as fall protection during entry into and exiting the storm drain, and including rescues.  If 
emergency retrieval equipment is not used, a barrier shall be used to protect the 
manhole. 

 
5. Smoking  
 

Smoking within 20 feet of the entrance to the manhole is prohibited. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 296 of 778



 

 Page 25 

INSPECTIONS  
 
CONTINUOUS INSPECTIONS ARE ONLY ALLOWED IN STORM DRAINS 42 INCHES 
AND ABOVE.  SPOT INSPECTIONS AND MAINTENANCE MAY BE CONDUCTED IN 
LINES OF ANY SIZE. 
 
Continuous storm drain inspections shall require a minimum of six crew members qualified 
to work in a confined space. The crew size is based on the criteria that each truck is 
equipped with a hand held CWIRS radio and/or cell phones which will be used by the 
attendant at each manhole shaft.  It is the responsibility of the attendant to summons 
emergency medical assistance.   
 
 
1. Two Hole Open Continuous Inspection 
 
Continuous inspection crew size consists of the following: One attendant and spotter 
located at each of the open manholes and a two-person inspection crew inspecting the 
drain. 
 
A continuous inspection as shown in Figure 1, involves entering one manhole (No. 1) and 
exiting through another manhole when the inspection is completed (No. 2).  Employees (A) 
& (F) - are attendants outside the manhole, ready to give assistance. 
 
Each manhole shaft shall have a SCBA available. 
 
Manholes (Nos. 1 and 2) are protected by traffic control devices. 
 
Test (Nos. 1 and 2) for an atmospheric condition before removing manhole lid. 
 
Employees (B), (C) & (D) with appropriate safety equipment descend to invert of manhole 
(No.1).  Employee (B) serve as a spotter. 
 
Employee (E) with appropriate safety equipment descends to invert of manhole (No. 2). 
Employee (E) serves as spotter. 
 
After employees have entered, employees must disconnect the self-retracting lifeline and 
attach it to either the drop step or send it back up to the attendant.  An emergency retrieval 
equipment shall be used when entering and exiting the manhole shaft. 
 
After employees (B) & (E) have made contact and the storm drain is declared safe, 
employees (C) & (D) proceed toward manhole (No. 2).  The leading employee will carry the 
gas monitor and will perform continuous monitoring of atmospheric conditions as he 
proceeds through the storm drain.  The second employee will inspect and record storm 
drain deficiencies, keeping a reasonable distance behind the lead employee. 
 
When employees (C) & (D) approach manhole (No. 2), employees (A) & (B) are notified. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 297 of 778



 

 Page 26 

They close manhole (No. 1) and proceed to manhole (No. 3) and the procedure is repeated 
to the completion of the job. 
 
2. Three-Hole Open Continuous Inspection 
 
Continuous inspection crew size consists of the following personnel: One attendant and 
spotter located at each of the open manholes and a two-person inspection crew inspecting 
the storm drain. 
 
A continuous inspection as shown in Figure 2, involves entering one manhole (No. 1) and  
exiting through another manhole when the inspection is completed (No. 3).   Employees 
(A), (F) & (G) - are attendants outside the manhole. 
 
Each manhole shaft shall have a SCBA available. 
 
Manholes (No. 1, 2, and 3) are protected by traffic control devices. 
 
Test manholes (No. 1, 2, and 3) for an atmospheric hazard before removing manhole lid. 
 
Employees (B), (C) & (D) with appropriate safety equipment descend to invert of manhole 
(No.1).  Employee (B) serve as a spotter. 
 
Employees (E) & (H) with appropriate safety equipment descend to invert of manholes  
(No. 2) & (No. 3)  Employees (E) & (H) serve as spotters. 
 
Emergency retrieval equipment shall be used when entering and exiting the manhole shaft. 
After employees have entered, employees must disconnect the self- retracting life-line and 
attach it to either the drop step or send it back up to the attendant.   
 
After employees (B), (E) & (H) have made contact, employees (C) & (D) proceed towards 
manhole (No. 2).  The leading employee will carry the gas monitor and will perform 
continuous monitoring of atmospheric conditions as he proceeds through the storm drain.  
The second employee will inspect and record storm drain deficiencies, keeping a 
reasonable distance behind the lead employee. 
 
When employees (C) & (D) approach manhole (No. 2), employees (A) & (B) are notified 
that employees (C) & (D) have reached manhole (No. 2).   Employees (A) & (B) will close 
manhole (No. 1) and proceed to manhole (No. 4).  During the time that employees (A) & (B) 
are moving to manhole (No. 4) employees (C) & (D) proceed toward manhole (No. 3).  This 
procedure is repeated to the completion of the job. 
 
At no time during continuous inspection shall the two person inspection crew proceed past 
the last monitored manhole shaft. 
 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 298 of 778



 

 Page 27 

3. Spot inspections 
 
Spot inspections may be conducted in any size storm drain.  
 
A spot inspection crew will consist of two employees provided that the entrant/inspector 
does not disconnect from the retractable lifeline and stays within the area of the manhole 
shaft to maintain communication.  A non-entry rescue would be performed using the 
emergency retrieval equipment.  
 
If the entrant/inspector needs to conduct a spot inspection and must travel away from the 
manhole shaft or disconnect from the emergency retrieval equipment, a three-man crew is 
required.  The third employee serves as the spotter or rescuer. 
 
The requirements of this section also pertain to the Underground Camera Crew.  As long as 
the entrant does not disconnect from the retractable lifeline, only two employees are 
required.  If the emergency retrieval equipment is not set up over the manhole, a temporary 
barrier shall be placed to prevent falling into the open manhole. 
 
4.  Maintenance 
 
Maintenance may be conducted in any size storm drain, lateral, or connector pipe provided 
an effective rescue plan has been established.  The Storm Drain Confined Space Entry 
Permit for General Maintenance Activities shall be completed prior to work being 
performed.   
 
Supervisors will ensure all safety equipment and procedures are in placed due to the 
various scenarios crews may encounter conducting maintenance.  Additional safety 
equipment used should be listed on the permit under the Precautions Completed section. 
 
Contact the Flood Maintenance Divisional Safety Coordinator if additional assistance in 
needed. 

 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 299 of 778



 

 Page 28 

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 300 of 778



Page 29 

FIGURE 1 
CONTINUOUS INSPECTION (2 HOLES – 6 PERSON) 
 
FLOW OF VEHICLE TRAFFIC 
 
 
 

            

 

                                         
 
 
                                                        
                                   
     
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
 
 
 
 
                                                                      
 
 

                                                                             

 

                      

 

                                                                   
 
                              

Manhole #1 Manhole #2 Manhole #3

(A) 

EMPLOYEE (B) (C) (D) EMPLOYEE (E) 

(F) 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 301 of 778



 

Page 30 

FIGURE 2 
CONTINUOUS INSPECTION (3 HOLES –  8 PERSON) 
 
FLOW OF VEHICLE TRAFFIC 
 
 
 
 

    

 

                                      

 

 
 
 
                                                        
                                   
     
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
 
 
 
 
                                                                      
 
 

                                                   

 

                      

 

                                                                                                              
                                                                                        
 
 
 
                                       

Manhole #1 Manhole #2

(A) 

EMPLOYEE (B) (C) (D) EMPLOYEE (E) 

(G) (F) 

(H) 

Manhole #3

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 302 of 778



Page 31 

MINIMUM EQUIPMENT FOR CONTINUOUS STORM DRAIN INSPECTION 
 
Each truck will be equipped with a  warning light, traffic directional board, mobile radio, and 
the following additional equipment: 
 
1. Respirators 
 

• One, escape breathing apparatus for each person entering a permit required 
confined space. 

 
• One, self-contained breathing apparatus (SCBA). 

 
2. Monitoring Instruments 
 

• Gas monitors appropriate for the work assignment shall be provided for continuous 
storm drain inspection. 

 
3. Traffic Cones 
 

• Ten, 28-inch reflector traffic cones 
 
4. Storm Drain Carts 
 

• One, storm drain cart. 
 A cart for the purpose of transporting an employee through an area too small for the 

employee to stand. 
 

5. Ladder - 20 ft. Extension (Optional) 
 

• One, fiberglass extension ladder per inspection crew.   
 
6. Tools 

1 each  digging bar, 5 foot 
1 each  hammer, striking 4 pounds  
1 each  lifter, catch basin grate 
1 each  lifter, catch basin lid 
1 each  lifter, manhole lid, manual 
1 each  lifter, manhole lid, easy lift 
1 each  pick, railroad  
1 each  shovel, round point 
1 each  socket set with deep sockets of various sizes 

 
 7. Harness 

 
• Full body harness with shoulder and rear dorsal D-ring attachments for all personnel 

entering a confined space. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 303 of 778



 

Page 32  

8. Emergency Retrieval System 
 

• One, emergency retrieval system equipped with a self-retracting lifeline (SRL) 
with emergency retrieval capabilities and auxiliary personnel/equipment hoist. 

 
9. First Aid Supply and Biohazard Kit 
 

• One, First Aid Kit. 
A monthly inspection shall be taken to determine what items need to be 
replenished. 

 
• One, Biohazard Kit 

 
• Two, bottles of 32 oz. eye rinse solution  

  
10. Flashlights 
 

All personnel entering a permit-required confined space will be provided with an 
approved flashlight. 

 
11. Anti-Slip Shoe Devices 
 

• Two, pairs of anti-slip shoe devices. 
 
12. Hearing Protection 
 

• Twelve, pairs of ear plugs. 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 304 of 778



 

Page 33  

STORM DRAIN RESCUE PROCEDURE 
 
Before starting any new assignment, the supervisor shall inform the crew about the 
emergency rescue procedures for that particular job.  Each member of the crew shall be 
assigned a specific task to perform during an emergency.  Those employees not involved in 
the actual rescue shall assist as needed in other areas such as in guiding traffic and 
looking out for EMA. 
 
It is considered an atmospheric hazard if the gas monitor alarm is sounding.  Employees 
within the vicinity shall put on their escape pack and exit the area. 

 
A. Emergency Rescue Procedure 

 
When at any time there is any questionable action or non-movement by the employee 
inside, a verbal check will be made.  If there is no response, the employee will be 
removed.  Exception:  If the employee is disabled due to falling or impact, he/she shall 
not be removed from the confined space unless there is immediate danger to his/her 
life.  Emergency medical assistance shall be notified immediately, and shall remove the 
injured employee. 

 
Emergency Rescue Procedures for a Hazardous Atmosphere Rescue 

 
1. Employee(s) assignment within the confined space: 

 

• Put on escape breathing apparatus, and if possible, that of the fallen co-worker, 
alert the attendant, and evacuate the space. 

 

• Rescue employee(s), don a SCBA, enter the space,  move injured employee to 
the nearest exit.   

 

• Attach retrieval line to injured person when making a rescue through a top 
opening.  

 

• Communications shall be maintained between the rescuer within the confined 
space and attendant. 

 
2.  Attendant(s) outside the confined space shall: 

 

• Ensure that emergency retrieval equipment is positioned above the manhole 
opening. 

 

• Provide carts, respirator(s), stretcher, etc., as needed to assist in the rescue 
operations. 

 

• Operate the emergency retrieval equipment to remove the injured person from 
the confined space, and proceed with first aid, cardiopulmonary resuscitation, or 
rescue breathing, as needed. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 305 of 778



 

Page 34  

If the attendant is not the entrant supervisor, he or she must notify entrant 
supervisor. 

 
NOTE:  The attendant shall not leave the area, nor enter the confined space  

area unless relieved by another attendant. 
 

3.  Entrant Supervisor: 
 

• Notify Public Works dispatch of the injury and location of the emergency and 
request emergency medical assistance (the name of the injured should not be 
given in radio communication). 

 
Rescue Procedures for a Non-Hazardous Atmosphere Rescue 
 

1.  Employee(s) assignment within the confined space: 
 

• Evaluate the downed employee and alert the attendant. 
 

• Perform first aid or CPR as required. 
 

• Assist Emergency Medical Service personnel when they arrive and continue to 
monitor the work environment. 

 
2.  Attendant(s) outside the confined space shall: 

 

• Ensure that emergency retrieval equipment is positioned above the manhole 
opening. 

 

• Provide carts, respirator(s), stretcher, etc., as needed to assist in the rescue 
operations. 

 

• Operate the emergency retrieval equipment to remove the injured person from 
the confined area, and proceed with first aid, cardiopulmonary resuscitation, or 
rescue breathing, as needed. 

 
   If the attendant is not the entrant supervisor, he or she must notify entrant  
   supervisor. 
 

NOTE:   The attendant shall not leave the area, nor enter the confined space 
area unless relieved by another attendant. 

 
 3.  Entrant Supervisor: 

 

• Notify Public Works dispatch of the injury and location of the emergency and 
request emergency medical assistance.  (the name of the injured should not be 
given in radio communication). 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 306 of 778



 

Page 35  

SUBDRAIN INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE 
 
Cleanout Only 
 
This section applies to the many different types of sub-drain systems that Flood 
Maintenance is responsible for maintaining. 
 
A Confined Space entry permit for sub-drain vault clean out activities is not required when 
employees are cleaning a sub-drain with a vactor truck and not entering the sub-drain vault. 
No employee may break the plane of the sub-drain vault without completing a Confined 
Space Permit for sub-drain vault general maintenance activities.  The following procedural 
guideline shall be followed: 
 
• Remove bolts and lids. 
 
• Sample the air if the vault is not full of water.  This ensures there is not a high 

concentration of hydrogen-sulfide. 
 
• Use the vactor truck to remove sediment from the vault. 
 
• Replace the lids and bolts. 
 
Cleanout and Maintenance 
 
Entry into a sub-drain vault must be done for inspection and maintenance of the flap gates 
on a routine basis.  Entry into a sub-drain vault is a "Permit-Required" confined space.  
Completion of the Confined Space Permit for sub-drain vault general maintenance activities 
is required prior to entry.   
 
A minimum of two employees will be required for sub-drain entry provided that the entrant 
does not disconnect from the retractable lifeline and stays within the area of the opening. 
Two employees are needed for sub-drain entries, one entrant and one attendant.  If the 
entrant disconnects from the retractable lifeline, a three-man crew will be required.  The 
third employee serves as a spotter.  There may also be the need for an employee to 
operate the vactor truck or a pump to remove the water. 
 
There are different types, styles, and configurations of sub-drains.  The guidelines are as 
follows: 
 

• Water must be diverted from the sub-drain lid, an alignment scratch mark can be placed 
on the lid and ring to help align bolt holes when reinstalling the lid.  The bolts and lids 
are removed.  

 

• The vault is cleaned with a vactor truck or it can be pumped out into a water tank or 
both.  A barrier around the manhole is placed to prevent water from entering the vault.  
When the vault is empty, the atmosphere shall be tested prior to the initial entry and 
tested continuously while occupied.  

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 307 of 778



 

Page 36  

 

• Due to the noise produced by the pumps and the vactor truck, hearing protection is  
 required. 
 

• Before the employee enters the sub-drain vault, emergency retrieval equipment must be 
set over the manhole.  The entrant shall be required to use a full body harness, a 
SCBA, and/or a supplied air line  with an egress bottle.  The Entrant hooks to the 
emergency retrieval equipment and enters the sub-drain vault and is handed the tools 
needed.   

 

• To perform longer maintenance, the subdrain vault  can be isolated from possible 
airborne contamination by installing inflatable plugs in the drains.  When the 
atmosphere is verified to be safe, the entrant may remove the SCBA/supplied air, while 
performing the work.  Prior to removing the plugs from the system, the entrant will don 
the SCBA/supplied air until exited from the vault. 

 

• When the work is completed, the entrant exits the sub-drain, unhooks the emergency 
retrieval equipment and removes the SCBA/supplied air.  

 

• All water removed from the vault may be decanted back into the vault. 
 

• The lid(s) and bolts are replaced. 
 
 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 308 of 778



 

Page 37  

SUBDRAIN RESCUE PROCEDURES 
 
In the event that a rescue is needed, all equipment shall be shut down unless it is being 
used to prevent water from filling the sub drain vault.  Depending upon the injury, the entry 
supervisor shall contact dispatch to request emergency medical assistance.  In all cases 
requiring a rescue, supervision shall be contacted. 
 
If the employee is still connected to the emergency retrieval equipment and the employee is 
unable to exit the vault under his own power, the attendant shall operate the emergency 
retrieval equipment to raise the employee out of the vault.  Trained crew members shall 
attend to his first aid needs.   
 
Atmospheric Hazard Related Rescue 
 
If an employee collapses for an unknown reason and/or the gas monitor alarm is sounding, 
it is considered an atmospheric hazard.  If the employee requiring rescuing has 
disconnected from the emergency retrieval equipment, another employee shall enter the 
sub drain vault on supplied air, connect the injured employee to the emergency retrieval 
equipment and the attendant shall crank the employee out of the vault.  The other 
employee shall exit the vault after the injured employee has been removed.  If the second 
employee is in the vault at the time of injury, he shall don his escape breathing apparatus, 
attach the retrieval line to the injured employee and exit after the injured employee has 
cleared the hole. 
 
Non-Atmospheric Hazard Related Rescue 
 
A non-atmospheric hazard related rescue is when an employee is injured and there is no 
suspected airborne contamination and it is substantiated by the gas monitor.  If the injured 
employee has disconnected from the emergency retrieval equipment, the rescuing 
employee will enter the vault, attach the emergency retrieval equipment to the injured 
employee and the attendant shall crank the employee out of the vault.  The rescuer then 
exits the vault and the crew members perform first aid on the injured employee. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 309 of 778



 

Page 38  

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 310 of 778



 

Page 39  

PUMP PLANTS 
 
Each pump plant is unique in its characteristic.  Entry into the office area is a confined 
space.  Test for atmosphere before entering.  All areas below the catwalks are permit-
required confined spaces.  See applicable permits for details.  Consult with your supervisor 
for specific characteristics and procedures of individual pump plants. 
 
Access 
 
When access to the sump is by a ladder more than 20 feet in length, emergency retrieval 
equipment shall be used as fall protection.  If the ladder is more than 5 feet in length, 
emergency retrieval equipment must be nearby for rescue purposes although it may not be 
needed for entry.  Any access to the sump requires all entrants to wear a full body harness. 
 
Sump Cleanout 
 
Sump cleaning requires a minimum of one attendant and one standby employee when 
either utilizing a vactor truck or removing debris by manual labor.  There is a potential 
exposure to hydrogen sulfide (H2S) and other hazardous waste; therefore, the sump area 
has been classified a "Permit-required" confined space. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 311 of 778



 

Page 40  

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 312 of 778



 

Page 41  

PUMP PLANT - SUMP RESCUE PROCEDURE 
 
1. One employee will serve as the attendant at the top of the stairs or the ladder.  The 

attendant may also be stationed at the floor opening that the vactor truck is using as 
access to the sump.  In the event of an emergency the attendant reacts as follows:  

 
Access by Ladder 

 
If the entry to the sump is by ladder, the attendant calls for the vactor truck operator and 
informs him of the emergency.  The vactor truck operator will then shut down the vactor 
and call for emergency medical assistance by phone or radio.  The attendant shall set-
up the emergency retrieval equipment for the rescue of the injured employee.  The 
attendant shall not leave the area unless the potential hazard could expose them to a 
potential injury or harm. 
 
Access by Stairs  

 
If the entry to the sump is by stairs, the attendant calls for the vactor truck operator and 
informs him of the emergency.  The vactor truck operator will shut down the vactor and 
call emergency medical assistance by phone or  radio.  The operator then must return 
and assist the attendant.  

 
2. A second (standby) employee will be stationed at the bottom of the stairs, below the 

opening in the floor or at the base of the ladder.  He monitors the gas meter and has a 
SCBA with him.  The function of the standby is to monitor the entrance and maintain 
communication between the entrants and the attendant.  In case of emergency, the 
standby employee, dons the SCBA and serves as a rescuer. 

 
3.  At least one of the entrants in the sump area shall be carrying a gas meter in the area 

that the work is being done.  This would be at the end of the vactor hose or where the 
sump is being disturbed.  All entrants shall be equipped with an escape breathing 
apparatus. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 313 of 778



 

Page 42  

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 314 of 778



 

Page 43  

PUMP PLANT PAINTING 
 
This section applies to all Pump Plant painting projects, and precautions that need to be 
taken before the job begins.  Other divisions shall notify Flood Maintenance to arrange for 
entry into all FMD pump plants.   
 
Exposures to high vapor concentrations can produce undesirable symptoms when painting. 
A Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) shall be reviewed before the job is to begin.  A 
MSDS shall be on-site during painting operations. 
 
Painters shall ensure that adequate ventilation is sufficient in the space during work 
operations.  Not all pump plants have large bay doors to ventilate air inside a pump plant.  
Refer to the Airflow Requirements section for additional ventilation requirements for 
conducting paint operations. 
  

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 315 of 778



 

Page 44  

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 316 of 778



 

Page 45  

RADIO EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE GUIDELINES 

The following guidelines are to be used when calling Public Works dispatch for emergency 
assistance. 
 
If the radio call is after normal working hours, the Flood dispatcher may have to be used to 
reach an operator.  
 

• When calling Public Works dispatch, use the phrase "CODE 3" which stands for 
"Emergency, act immediately."  This alerts the radio operators to give the call top 
priority. 

 

• Provide the operators the radio number of the vehicle calling. 

• Provide the area or city that the call is coming from. 
 

• Provide the location, street address, and cross streets where help is needed. 
 

• Provide the type of emergency and what types of services are needed.  This may be the 
police, paramedics, fire department, or swift water rescue. 

 

• Inform the operator if any Public Works vehicles or employees are involved. 
(The name of the injured employee should not be given in radio communication). 

• Be prepared to give necessary details about the incident. 
 

• Stay near the radio if possible to supply the operators with further information. 

• Contact the supervisor or the area yard. 

• Supervisor shall contact EHS and/or DSC. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 317 of 778



 

Page 46  

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 
 
 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 318 of 778



 

Page 47  

AIRFLOW REQUIREMENTS 

• Forced air mechanical ventilation can be used to control atmospheric hazards within a 
confined space. 

 

• Control of atmospheric hazards through forced air ventilation does not constitute 
elimination of the hazards. 

 

• Based on requirements within this manual, an employee may not enter the confined 
space until the forced air ventilation has eliminated any hazardous atmosphere. 

 

• The forced air ventilation shall be directed to ventilate the immediate areas where an 
employee is or will be present within the space and shall continue until all employees 
have left the space. 

 

• The air supply for the forced air ventilation shall be from a clean source and may not 
increase the hazards in the space. 

 

• Locate the blower at least 5 feet from the opening to prevent re-entry. 
 

• Select the blower based on the volume of the space, number of elbows in the flex hose, 
and the length of hose and not just on the cubic feet per minute (CFM) on the fan. 

 

• Place the supply air hose near the area of work and never lower than 25 percent of the 
total height of the space. 

 

• Purge the space for at least ten minutes prior to entry.  Longer purge times may be 
necessary for smaller blowers. 

 

• NIOSH studies recommend 20 air changes per hour for a ventilation rate.  
 

• Supply and local exhaust ventilation may be necessary when welding in a confined 
space. 

 

• Locate the blower away from generator exhaust, car exhaust, or contaminant sources. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 319 of 778



 

Page 48  

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 320 of 778



 

Page 49  

RESPIRATORS 

 
I.  Respirators shall be inspected and sanitized after each use and inspected monthly.  A 

record of the most recent certification shall be maintained with the respirator.  It shall 
include the inspector's identification, the date, and a respirator identification number.   

 
1. Self Contained Breathing Apparatus  

 

• A Self Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) is a self-contained respirator 
intended to supply fresh breathing air on demand.  A single tank of compressed 
air, carried on the back, provides the air, and a regulator controls the flow of air 
to the face mask.  Exhaled air is released to the atmosphere. 

 

• A SCBA is designed to protect the wearer with respiratory protection while 
working in hazardous atmospheres, such as oxygen deficiency and/or inhalation 
of toxic contaminants.  

 

• When engaged in rescue where protection against a hazardous atmosphere is 
needed, the employee(s) shall use a SCBA. 

 
2.   Supplied Air Respirator 

 

• A supplied air respirator (SAR) or airline respirator provides breathing air through 
an airline from a source outside the work area.  Hazardous atmospheres can be 
encountered during emergency situations, chemical spills, high concentrations of 
air contaminants, or the use of materials that have poor warning properties. 

 
3. An Escape Breathing Apparatus  

 

• An Emergency Escape Breathing Apparatus is a small lightweight refillable 
escape unit to be used in confined spaces, when a gas monitor indicates a 
hazard, and it may take some time to get to a safe area.  

 

• An Escape Breathing Apparatus is intended for use only during an emergency 
exit. It cannot be used to enter an area that has a hazardous atmosphere. 

 
4.   Air Purifying Respirator   

 

• An air-purifying respirator (APR) means a respirator with an air-purifying filter, 
cartridge, or canister that removes specific air contaminants by passing ambient 
air through the air-purifying element. 

 

• Air purifying respirators are not designed for use in conditions that are 
immediately dangerous to life or health and must not be used when entering an 
area that is oxygen deficient. 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 321 of 778



 

Page 50  

II. Inspection and Maintenance of a SCBA 
 

1. Exhalation Valve 
 

• This valve may be tested by visual inspection and by doning the face mask, 
covering inhalation tube, and inhaling.  If the mask is tight on the face and 
leakage is noted, the valve should be removed for closer inspection. 

 

• Inhalation Tube:  Inspect for cracks, punctures, or other openings.  This test may 
be made at the time the exhalation valve is tested. 

 

• Face Piece:  Inspect entire mask for general condition, face shield, and all 
clamps for tightness. 

 

• Air Tank:  Inspect tank fittings for leaks. 
 

2. Testing for Leaks 
 

• To test the complete assembly, open the cylinder control valve and the main line 
control valve on the regulator.  Note:  the reading on both pressure gauges.  
Close the cylinder control valve and observe the regulator pressure gauges for a 
3-minute period.  If the pressure drops more than 100 psi in this period, inspect 
all fittings and hoses for leaks.  Soapy water will aid in detecting leaks.  Notify 
your immediate supervisor if a leak in the system or defective parts are found. 

  
3. Cleaning 

 

• Respirators shall be cleaned and sanitized at least monthly, but weekly for 
routinely used respirators. 

 

• Soap and water are the only materials needed to clean respirators. 
 

• Respirator equipment shall not be passed from one person to another until it has 
been cleaned and sanitized. 

 
4. Storage 

 

• When not in use, respirators shall be stored to protect against dust, sunlight, 
extreme temperatures, excessive moisture, or damaging chemicals. 

 
5.  Fit-Testing 

 

• Employees required to use respiratory protection shall not be permitted to have 
any facial hair that interferes with the sealing surface of the respirator and the 
face.  Refer to Facial Hair Guidelines, Figure 3. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 322 of 778



 

Page 51  

6.  Recertification 
 

• SCBA and supplied-air respirator equipment shall be certified per manufacturer 
recommendation. 

 
7. Training 

 

• Training requirements for use of respirators can be found in the training section 
of this manual. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 323 of 778



 

Page 52  

FIGURE 3 – Facial Hair Guidelines 

 
The Shade Portions are your respirator seal areas. Facial Hair is not permitted on these portions of the face. 

 
Unacceptable 

     
                  Full Beard        Goatee & Narrow Mustache        Goatee & Wide Mustache 

                                    
 Extended Side Burns  Full Manchu Mustache      Wide Mustache 

 
Acceptable 

               

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 324 of 778



 

Page 53  

 

 
MINIMUM TRAINING REQUIREMENT 

 
FLOOD MAINTENANCE DIVISION CONFINED SPACE TRAINING MATRIX 

 
 

 

C
o

n
fi

n
e
d

 S
p

a
c
e
 

T
ra

in
in

g
- 

8
 h

o
u

r 
&

 

R
e
fr

e
s
h

e
rs

 4
 h

o
u

r 
 

C
o

n
fi

n
e
d

 S
p

a
c
e
 

T
ra

in
in

g
- 

In
-h

o
u

s
e
 

N
o

n
-F

M
D

 P
e
rm

it
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 C
o

n
fi

n
e
d

 

S
p

a
c
e
 T

a
il
g

a
te

 

H
A

Z
W

O
P

E
R

- 
F

ir
s

t 

R
e
s
p

o
n

d
e
r 

a
n

d
 

R
e
fr

e
s
h

e
rs

 

M
e
d

ic
a
l 

E
x
a
m

 N
o

. 
2
- 

C
o

n
fi

n
e
d

 S
p

a
c
e
  

  
  

  
  

M
e
d

ic
a
l 

E
x
a
m

 N
o

. 
5
- 

R
e
s
p

ir
a
to

r 
  

 

S
C

B
A

/S
A

 T
ra

in
in

g
 

a
n

d
 F

it
 T

e
s
ti

n
g

 

R
e
s
p

ir
a
to

r 
T

ra
in

in
g

 

a
n

d
 F

it
 T

e
s
ti

n
g

 

C
P

R
 &

 F
ir

s
t 

A
id

 

T
ra

in
in

g
 

In
-h

o
u

s
e
 R

e
s

c
u

e
 

tr
a
in

in
g

 

E
s
c
a
p

e
 B

re
a
th

in
g

  

A
p

p
a
ra

tu
s
 E

v
a
c
u

a
ti

o
n

 

T
ra

in
in

g
 

G
a
s
 M

e
te

r 
T

ra
in

in
g

 

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 

a
n

d
 

F
la

g
g

in
g

 T
ra

in
in

g
 

Continuous 
Inspection 

Team 
R R  R R R R O R R R R R 

Pump Plant 
Sump Cleanout 

Crew 
R R   R R R  R R R R O 

Sub-drain 
Maintenance 

Crew 
R R   R R R  R R R R  

Catch Basin 
Maintenance 

R           R R 

All Confined 
Spaces 

R           R O 

San Gabriel 
Dam Tunnel & 

Silo 
R          R R  

All Dam 
Tunnels 

 {PRCS areas} 
R R   R R R  R R R R  

Non FMD 
personnel not 

regularly 
assigned to 

work in 
confined 
spaces 

  R        R   

 
R = required  O = optional 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 325 of 778



 

Page 54  

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 326 of 778



 

Page 55  

TRAINING REQUIREMENTS 

1. Confined Space Training  
 

• Initial - 8 hours 
 
o All employees working in Confined Spaces are required to attend an 8-hour 

training course. 
 

• Refresher - 4 hours 
 

o A refresher course is required every 5 years,  when recommended by the EHS 
office, when regulations change or when a supervisor deems it is necessary. 

 
2. Confined Space Training In-house 
 

• This training is to supplement the training provided by EHS and their vendor.  It 
covers the actual procedures for Flood Maintenance Division’s confined spaces, 
work, and safety procedures. 

 

• The In-House Confined Space Training form shall be completed as the training is 
conducted and retained to verify the employee received the training. 

 
3. Non-FMD Permit-Required Confined Space Tailgate 
 

• This training is intended to introduce the hazards of a Flood Maintenance Division 
confined space to an employee not assigned to FMD.   

 

• The training shall be done by a Public Works Crew Leader or above  and shall cover 
the items addressed on the Permit Required Confined Space Tailgate for Non-FMD 
Personnel. 

 

• Everyone entering the confined space shall sign that they have received this tailgate 
training on the specifics of the individual confined space.  They shall also be listed 
on the entry permit as entrants. 

 
4. HAZWOPER-First Responder Operational Level and Refresher 
 

• Due to the nature of the Flood Control channel and storm drain system, crews are 
often called to assist agencies in Hazardous Material spills.  Sometimes FMD crews 
are first on site to these spills.  Subsequently, the division requires HAZWOPER 
First Responder Operational Level training for employees responding to spills and to 
allow them to work in a defensive manner to control the spread of hazardous 
materials.  This training establishes the procedures and limitations FMD employees 
can do to protect themselves, the public, and the environment.  These procedures 
are outlined in the Flood Maintenance Division Hazardous Materials Emergency 
Response Procedures. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 327 of 778



 

Page 56  

 

• The initial training is 8-hour.  Annual refresher training is 4-hour. 
 
5. Medical Exam No. 2  - Confined Space 
 

• All employees who work in a confined space are required to have this exam. 
 

• The examination is required initially and every 2 years thereafter. 
 
6. Medical Exam No. 5 – Respirators 
 

• All employees who are required to wear a respirator; such as a SCBA or APR, as 
part of their job duties are required to have this exam.   

 

• Employees shall receive the exam before the initial fit-testing and whenever the 
following trigger events occur: 

 
o An employee reports medical signs or symptoms related to respirator use.  

 
o A supervisor observes the employee to have medically-related problems when 

using the respirator. 
 

o There is a change in an employee's workplace conditions (e.g., physical work 
effort, protective clothing, or temperature) that results in a substantial increase in 
the physiological burden placed on the employee. 

 
o There is a change in an employee's job duties to such an extent that an 

employee who was previously using an air-purifying respirator must now use a 
self-contained breathing apparatus. 

 
7. SCBA/SA Training and Fit-Testing 
 

• All employees who use SCBA/SA system are required to attend initial/annual 
SCBA/SA training and fit testing.            

 
8. Respiratory Training and Fit-Testing 
 

• All employees are required to attend initial/annual Respiratory training and 
 fit-testing. 

 
9. CPR and First Aid Training 
 

• Each member of the team should be trained in basic first-aid and in cardiopulmonary 
resuscitation (CPR).  At least one member of the rescue team shall have a current 
certification in first aid and CPR. 

 
10. In-House Rescue Training 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 328 of 778



 

Page 57  

 

• Each member of the team shall practice making permit space rescues at least once 
every 12 months, by means of simulated rescue operations in which they remove 
dummies, manikins, or actual persons from the actual  permit spaces or from 
representative permit spaces.  Representative permit spaces shall, with respect to 
opening size, configuration, and accessibility, simulate the types of permit spaces 
from which rescue is to be performed.  Continuous storm drain inspection crews 
conduct rescue drills every six months. 

 
11. Escape Breathing Apparatus Training 
 

• Any employee who may have to use the Escape Breathing Apparatus shall be given 
a tailgate level training on the particular unit. This training will follow the 
manufacturers requirements in the owners/operators manual and shall include at a 
minimum, inspections, how to properly use the apparatus and its limitations. 

 

• Employees are not required to receive respirator training or fit testing and are not 
required to be clean shave to wear these escape breathing apparatus.  

 
12. Gas Monitor Training 
 

• All employees using gas monitors shall be trained in how to properly use the meter. 
 

• Initial gas meter training should be provided by a manufacturers trained 
representative and be model specific. 

 

• Subsequent gas meter training for employees can be conducted by a FMD 
employee who is knowledgeable in the daily operation of the gas meter and was 
originally trained by the manufacturer’s representative. 

 
13. Traffic Control and Flagging Training 
 

• All employees who work in or around traffic are required to attend Traffic Control 
and Flagger training initially. 

 

• The initial 8-hour training is required one-time.  A refresher course is required when 
recommended by the EHS office, when regulations change or when a supervisor 
deems it necessary. 

 
14. Fall Protection Training 
 

• Supervisors shall be trained as a Fall Protection Competent Person.  The initial 32-
hour training is required one-time and a 16-hour refresher is required every two 
years. 

 

• Employees should be trained in Worker at Heights or trained in fall protection 
equipment as part of the confined space training.   

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 329 of 778



 

Page 58  

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 330 of 778



 

Page 59  

SIMULATED RESCUE DRILLS  

• Every member of the crew including alternates who work on a continuous storm drain 
inspection crew shall participate in making simulated rescue drills every six months. 

 
• Other regular routine operations shall conduct rescue drills annually (i.e.; Pump Plant 

Sump cleanout). 
 
• Non-routine work in a permit-required confined space shall have rescue drills prior to 

starting work.  (i.e.; General maintenance or sub-drain vault.) 
 
Simulated rescue drills shall include removing mannequins or actual persons from a 
representative permit-required space. 
 
The FMD DSC shall be notified of scheduled dates and times for the simulated rescue 
drills. 
 
Documentation of simulated rescue drills using the supplied form shall be recorded and 
kept on file with the training records. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 331 of 778



 

Page 60  

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 332 of 778



 

Page 61  

RECORD KEEPING 

The following documents shall be maintained at the yards for a period of three years: 
 
1. Sign-in sheets for both "Confined Space" and "Permit Required" areas. 
 
2. Confined Spaces Tailgates. 
 
3. Maintenance records on safety equipment and gas monitoring instruments. 
 
4. Monthly equipment inspection sheet. 
 
5. Records shall be kept at FMD yards for employees who work in confined spaces 
 and had training in: 
   
 a.  CPR and First Aid 

b.  Gas Monitor Operation 
c. In-house Confined Space training 

     
6. Simulated Rescue Drills. 
 
7. Records shall be kept at EHS for employees who had training in: 
 
 a. Confined Space 
 b. HAZWOPER training  
 c. Traffic Control training 
 d. Respiratory Protection training 
 e. Fall Protection training (Competent Person and Worker at Heights) 
 f. Medical Exam Records 
 
Incident Records 
 
In the event of an employee exposure to levels above the permissible exposure limits 
(PEL), and after all employees have been evacuated, a print out from the meter's days 
events shall be printed and attached to the permit for documentation of the incident.  The 
supervisor or entrant supervisor then must write on the entry permit (comment section) the 
time, location, the names of exposed employees, and the description of the incident.  
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 333 of 778



 

Page 62  

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 334 of 778



 

Page 63  

APPENDIX I – FORMS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 335 of 778



 

Page 64  

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
FLOOD MAINTENANCE DIVISION 

GAS MONITOR TRAINING 

  
Division:_______________________________________ Yard:__________________________________ 

 
Date: ____________________ Time:__________________
 

Location:_______________________________ 

Supervisor conducting training:____________________________ Title:________________________ 
 

Type of gas monitor: ____________________________  
 
Make: ______________________________________ 
 
Model: _____________________________________ 
 
Topics covered: 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

ATTENDANCE: 
 

 Print Name Signature Job Title 

1.    

2.    

3.    

4.    

5.    

6.    

7.    

8.    

9.    

10.    

11.    

12.    

13.    

14.    

15.    

 

Flood Maintenance 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 336 of 778



 

Page 65  

 COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
FLOOD MAINTENANCE DIVISION 

SIMULATED RESCUE DRILL 
  
Division:_______________________________________ Yard:__________________________________
  
Date:_________________ Time:______________________ Location:___________________________
  
Supervisor conducting drill:_________________________________ Title:__________________________
  

 
Brief summary of rescue drill:________________________________________________________________

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________________________________

 

Equipment used:__________________________________________________________________________

 

________________________________________________________________________________________
 

 

ATTENDANCE: 
 

 Print Name Signature Job Title 

1.    

2.    

3.    

4.    

5.    

6.    

7.    

8.    

9.    

10.    

11.    

12.    

 
Employee Safety 
Recommendations:_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Flood Maintenance 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 337 of 778



 

Page 66  

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
FLOOD MAINTENANCE DIVISION 

ESCAPE BREATHING APPARATUS TRAINING 

  
Division:_______________________________________ Yard:__________________________________
  
Date:_________________ Time:______________________ Location:___________________________
  
Supervisor conducting training:_______________________________ Title:__________________________
  

 
Brief summary of the training:________________________________________________________________

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________________________________

 

Equipment used:__________________________________________________________________________

 

________________________________________________________________________________________
 

 

ATTENDANCE: 
 

 Print Name Signature Job Title 

1.    

2.    

3.    

4.    

5.    

6.    

7.    

8.    

9.    

10.    

11.    

12.    

 
Employee Safety 
Recommendations:_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Flood Maintenance 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 338 of 778



Page 67 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
FLOOD MAINTENANCE DIVISION 

 
SCBA INSPECTION CHECKLIST 

 
Serial No.:_______________________  Location: _______________________ PW No.:_______________________ 

 

DATE 
INSPECTED 

CYLINDER 
PRESSURE 

 
CALIBRATION 

DATE 

 
REGULATOR 
SERIAL NO. 

FACEPIECE & 
BREATHING 

TUBE  
CONDITION 

OVER-ALL 
CONDITION 

CONNECTIONS 
SECURE 

CLEAN 
AND 

SANITIZED 
REMARKS 

INSPECTED BY 
(first initial and 

last name) 

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

Comments:_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 339 of 778



 

Page 68  

 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

FLOOD MAINTENANCE DIVISION 
 

ESCAPE BREATHING APPARATUS INSPECTION LOG 
 

 
MO/YR CYLINDER SERIAL 

NO. 
REGULATOR 
SERIAL NO. 

HYDRO 
DATE 

CYLINDER 
PRESSURE 

CYLINDER SIZE CONDITION/COMMENTS INSPECTED 
BY 

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 340 of 778



 

Page 69  

 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

FLOOD MAINTENANCE DIVISION  
 

SUPPLIED AIR RESPIRATOR INSPECTION LOG 
 

Serial No.:_______________________  Location: _______________________ PW No.:_______________________ 
 

DATE 
INSPECTED 

CYLINDER 
PRESSURE 

 
CALIBRATION 

DATE 

 
REGULATOR 
SERIAL NO. 

FACEPIECE & 
BREATHING TUBE 

CONDITION 

OVER-ALL 
CONDITION 

CONNECTIONS 
SECURE 

CLEAN AND 
SANITIZED  

REMARKS 
INSPECTED BY 
(first initial and 

last name) 

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

Comments:_______________________________________________________________________________________________  
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 341 of 778



 

Page 70  

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
FLOOD MAINTENANCE DIVISION 

 
GRADE "D" BREATHING AIR CYLINDERS INSPECTION LOG 

 
MO/YR CYLINDER 

SERIAL NO. 
CYLINDER NO. HYRDRO DATE CYLINDER 

PRESSURE 
CYLINDER SIZE CONDITION/ 

COMMENTS 
INSPECTED 

BY 

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 342 of 778



 

Page 71  

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
FLOOD MAINTENANCE DIVISION 

 
SUPPLIED AIR SYSTEM REGULATOR INSPECTION LOG 

 
 

MO/YR REGULATOR 
SERIAL NO. 

REGULATOR NO. CERTIFICATION DATE CHECK 
GAUGES 

CONDITION/COMMENTS INSPECTED BY 

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

Comments:  
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 343 of 778



 

Page 72  

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
FLOOD MAINTENANCE DIVISION  

 
 
 

INDUSTRIAL SCIENTIFIC CORPORATION 
ATMOSPHERIC METERS 

 
MODEL TMX 412 

 
 

BUMP TESTING 
 

Gas detection instruments are potential life-saving devices.  Recognizing this fact, Industrial 
Scientific Corporation recommends that a functional (“bump”) test be performed on every 
instrument prior to each days use.  A functional test is defined as a brief exposure to the 
monitor to a concentration of gases in excess of the lowest alarm set-point for each sensor 
for the purpose of verifying sensor and alarm operation and is not intended to be a 
measure of the accuracy of the instrument. 
 
Industrial Scientific recommends that a full instrument calibration be performed using a certified 
concentration of gases monthly to ensure maximum accuracy.  If an instrument fails to operate 
properly following any functional “bump” test, a full instrument calibration should be performed 
prior to use. 
 
When you bump test or field calibrate the meter, you must record it on a bump test record sheet.  
This information has to be kept on file for a period of three years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 344 of 778



Page 73 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
FLOOD MAINTENANCE DIVISION  

 
BUMP TEST RECORD SHEET 

 
BUMP TESTING IS MANDATORY PRIOR TO EACH DAYS USE. 
THIS BUMP TEST RECORD SHEET MUST BE KEPT ON FILE FOR A PERIOD OF 
THREE YEARS. 
 
BUMP TESTING WILL NOT CALIBRATE YOUR METER. 
BUMP TESTING IS FOR THE PURPOSE OF VERIFYING SENSOR AND ALARM 
OPERATION AND IS NOT INTENDED TO BE A MEASURE OF THE ACCURACY 
OF THE INSTRUMENT. 

 
Check CO, H2S, O2, and LEL BOXES, IF INDIVIDUAL SENSORS ARE 
VISUALLY ALARMING.  IF ONE OR MORE SENSORS ARE NOT FLASHING IN 
ALARM MODE THEN THE METER MUST BE CALIBRATED. ONLY WRITE YES IN 
THE CAL BOX IF THE METER IS FIELD CALIBRATED. 
 

SERIAL 
NO. 

DATE TIME LOCATION 
CO 

ALARM 
H2S 

ALARM 
O2 

ALARM 
LEL 

ALARM 
CAL 

YES/NO
USER 

INITIAL 

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 345 of 778



 

Page 74  

PERMIT REQUIRED CONFINED SPACE TAILGATE FOR NON-FMD PERSONNEL 
 

An expanded tailgate meeting shall be held prior to entry into a permit required confined 
space in which non-FMD personnel will be entering the confined space.  
 
This tailgate meeting will cover the following topics: 

 
1. The hazards associated with confined spaces: 
 

• Atmosphere 
 

• Engulfment 
 

• Insects, vermin, snakes  
 

• Limited ingress and egress 
 

• Slip hazard 
 

• Claustrophobia 
 

2. The proper use of fall protection/rescue equipment: 
 

• Full body harness 
 

• Emergency retrieval equipment 
 

• Dorsal D-ring 
 

3. The use of gas monitors: 
 

• Purpose 

• Sample procedure 

• Alarm procedure 
 

4. The use of escape breathing apparatus:  
 

• Unpack unit 
 

• Turn on air 
 

• Don the hood 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 346 of 778



 

Page 75  

 
5. Emergency procedures: 

 
• FOLLOW FMD PERSONNEL DIRECTIONS 

 
• Provide site specific instructions 

 
• Evacuate confined space in an orderly manner 

 
6. Complete sign-in sheet 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 347 of 778



 

Page 76  

 COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
FLOOD MAINTENANCE DIVISION 

PERMIT REQUIRED CONFINED SPACE TAILGATE FOR NON-FMD PERSONNEL 

 

Division:            Flood Maintenance                      Yard/Area/District: 
____________________________ 

 
Date:____________________________Time:________________________Location: 
____________________ 

 
Supervisor Conducting 
Tailgate:______________________________Title:_____________________________ 
 
An expanded tailgate meeting was held and the personnel listed below have received instructions in the 
the following topics: 

 
1. Confined space hazards 
2. The proper use of emergency retrieval equipment 
3. The use of a gas monitor 
4. The use of an escape breathing apparatus 
5. Emergency procedures 
 
 ATTENDANCE: 
 

 
 

 
Print Name 

 
Signature 

 
Job Title Division/Company 

 
 1.   

 
 

 

 
2. 

 
 

 
  

 
3. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
4. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
5. 

 
   

 
6. 

 
  

 
 

 

 
7. 

 
  

 
 

 

 
8. 

 
  

 
 

 

 
9. 

 
  

 
 

 

 
10. 

 
  

 
 

 

 
11. 

 
  

 
 

 

 
12. 

 
  

 
 

 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 348 of 778



 

Page 77  

 COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
FLOOD MAINTENANCE DIVISION 

 
IN-HOUSE CONFINED SPACE TRAINING 

 
Date: ________________________________ 
 
Location: _____________________________ 
 
Employee Name: ______________________ 
            (print) 

Employee No: _________________________ 
 
The above employee has received in-house confined space training in the following 
areas. 

 

 Trainee Initial 

1.   Confined Space Manual 
 

2.   General Hazards Associated with Confined Space Entry 
 

3.   Operating Procedures 
 

4.   Permit System 
 

5.   Rescue Procedures 
 

6.   Personal Protective Equipment 
 

7.   Gas Monitoring Equipment 
 

8.   Fall Protection Equipment 
 

9.   Escape Breathing Apparatus 
 

10.  Traffic Control, if applicable 
 

 
Training conducted by: ________________ Signature:_______________ Date:______ 
                                                       
 
Trainee Signature: ____________________ Date: _______ 
 

(print) 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 349 of 778



 

Page 78  

APPENDIX II - PERMITS 

The following types of permits are valid for use during the 2007 calendar year.  
Individual copies are included. 
 
A.  "Confined Spaces"  

   
1. Catch Basins   

 
2. Cogswell Dam Water Filtration System Chambers 

 
3. Enclosed Sections of Open Channel  

 
4. Injection Well Vaults  

 
5. Pump Plants 

 
6. Pressure Reducing Station 

 
7. San Gabriel Dam Tunnel  

 
8. San Gabriel Dam Hydroelectric Silo Unit No. 1 

 
9. Trenches and/or Excavations 

 
10. Big Dalton Dam Arches 

 
B. "Permit-Required" Confined Spaces 

 
1.  Pump Plants      - sump activities 

 
2.  Various Facilities     - hotwork (welding) 
                                          - generic confined space permit 

 
3.  Storm Drains     - continuous inspections 
        - spot inspections 
       - general maintenance activities 

 
4.  Subdrain Vaults    - general maintenance activities 

 
5.  Catch Basins         - general maintenance activities 

 
6.  CDS/Low Flow Diversion Vault  - general maintenance activities 

 
7.  Debris Basin Tower    - general maintenance activities 

 
8.  Dams Tunnel, Vault, and area                 - general maintenance activities 
 below Catwalks 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 350 of 778



 

Page 79  

 
 

Each October the areas will be responsible to review their particular permits and suggest 
changes.  These changes will be submitted to the FMD Divisional Safety Coordinator who 
will review and incorporate the changes as necessary. 
 
"Confined Space" sign-in sheets posted at permanent Flood facilities are valid for a year, 
however, each month a new sign-in sheet shall be posted.  A copy will be kept on file. 
 
"Permit-Required" entry permits will be authorized for individual work assignments by the 
Construction Superintendent or Flood Control Construction Supervisor.  A new permit is 
required for each new project. 
 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 351 of 778



Catch Basin Clean-out Services for various 
locations throughout Los Angeles County  
In reply to: BRC-1 

Ronnie Norman, President
Prepared for: Los Angeles County   
Address: 11542 Horley Ave Downey, CA 90241 
Phone: 213-359-3827 
Date of Submittal: May 16, 2022 

RON’S MAINTENANCE, INC 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 352 of 778



Table of Contents 

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL	 3 
CORPORATION DOCUMENTS	 4-12
EXPERIENCE	
LICENSES AND CERTIFICATIONS	
INSURANCE	

13-14 
15 
16

FORMS LIST	 17-58

RON’S MAINTENANCE 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 353 of 778



  Downey, CA 90241 
Email: ronsmaintenance@aol.com 
Phone: 213-359-3827 

RON’S MAINTENANCE 

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 

In compliance with RFP BRC0000287 Notice of Invitation for Bids for Catch Basins Clean-out Services for various 
locations throughout Los Angeles County, the undersigned hereby declares full understanding of proposal content 
and scope of work. The undersigned certifies that it has examined and is fully familiar with all of the provisions of 
the Contract Documents; that it has carefully examined all of the figures shown in its Cost Proposal; that it has 
carefully reviewed the accuracy of all statements in this Proposal and attachments hereto; and that it understands 
and agrees that the City will not be responsible for any errors or omissions on the part of the undersigned in 
preparing this Proposal.  

The undersigned declares that the only persons or parties interested in this Proposal as principals are those 
named herein (listed below); that the Proposal is made without collusion with any other person, firm, or 
corporation; that Contractor has carefully examined the locations therein referred to; and Contractor proposes, 
and agrees if this Proposal is accepted, that Contractor will execute a Contract with the County of Los Angeles to 
provide all necessary labor, machinery, tools, and to do all work and provide materials required as specified in the 
Contract documents according to the requirements of the County of Los Angeles  as set forth; and that the 
Contractor will take as payment at the unit prices described in the Contract documents, as payment in full for the 
performed scope of work. 

Name: Ronnie Norman 
Title: President 
Address: 11542 Horley Ave  

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 354 of 778

mailto:ronsmaintenance@aol.com


CORPORATION DOCUMENTS 

Refer to forms below

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 355 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 356 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 357 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 358 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 359 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 360 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 361 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 362 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 363 of 778



EXPERIENCE  

RMI brings over 25 years of industry experience of successfully completing Catch Basin clean-out projects 
throughout all of Southern California. With our experienced, skilled staff and thoroughness, we take pride in 
providing top tier service. Our capabilities has led us to develop a great reputation throughout the industry as a 
reliable resource for all Catch Basin needs. 

RMI will develop a project work plan identifying the street segments and catch basin locations to be inspected and 
cleaned. Our staff will visually inspect the catch basin and annotate the types and amount of man-made material 
(trash) and debris/green-waste in the catch basin. They will document the amounts of materials removed and if 
there were any signs of vectors/ rodents habitats. RMI staff will look for evidence of illegal dumping of hazardous 
waste such as used oil and paint in the catch basin(s). Should our crews encounter these materials, they will 
immediately notify the respective representative.  

Catch Basin screen and filter repair will be visually inspected by our field representatives at the time of cleaning. 
Should a repair or replacement be needed, RMI will document the extent of damages and communicate them to 
the city representative prior to repair. 

All waste and hazardous material captured in catch basins and infiltration basins will be properly disposed at an 
approved, licensed disposal site. RMI will furnish all labor, materials, equipment and incidentals necessary to 
complete the required work. 

RMI will provide photographic documentation of inspection and cleaning activities. Photographs will be taken prior 
to and after cleaning, from the same vantage point. RMI will re-stencil catch basins with damaged or missing 
stencils. RMI will document catch basins that were re-stenceled.  

RMI will document all the information from cleaning and will include the amount of waste and debris removed from 
each catch basin. This information along with site photographs will be provided to the county within 30days of 
inspection and cleaning activities.  

The next page will list some of our current and past projects  

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 364 of 778



1.NAME OF REFERENCE: County of Los Angeles
ADDRESS & PHONE: 900 S Freemont Ave, 818-994-9964 
CONTACT PERSON: Aki Gadim, Head Construction Inspector 
TYPE OF PROJECT: Annual Catch Basin Cleaning and Inspection 
CONTRACT AMOUNT: $545,000
DATE OF COMPLETION: December 2021

2.NAME OF REFERENCE: Orange County
ADDRESS & PHONE: 222 E. Bristol St, 714-448-2924 
CONTACT PERSON:Cesar Segura, Sr Maintenance Inspector 
TYPE OF PROJECT: Annual Catch Basin Cleaning and Inspection 
CONTRACT AMOUNT: $400,000
DATE OF COMPLETION: On-Going

3.NAME OF REFERENCE: City of Ventura
ADDRESS & PHONE: 501 Poli St, Rom 204, 805-583-6424 
CONTACT PERSON: Chris Palmieri, Public Works Supervisor 
TYPE OF PROJECT: Annual Catch Basin Cleaning and Inspection 
CONTRACT AMOUNT: $140,000
DATE OF COMPLETION: December 2021

4.NAME OF REFERENCE: City of Redondo Beach 
ADDRESS & PHONE: 531 N. Gertruda Ave, 310-318-0686 
CONTACT PERSON: Jesse Reyes, Sr Management Analyst 
TYPE OF PROJECT: Annual Catch Basin Cleaning and Inspection 
CONTRACT AMOUNT: $80,000
DATE OF COMPLETION: On-Going

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 365 of 778



LICENSES AND CERTIFICATIONS

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 366 of 778



INSURANCE 

Refer to form PW-15  

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 367 of 778



FORMS LIST  

PW-1 Verification of Bid 
PW-2 Schedule of Prices 
PW-3 County of Los Angeles Contractor Employee Jury Service Program 
Application for Exception and Certification Form 
PW-4 Contractor's Industrial Safety Record 
PW-5 Conflict of Interest Certification 
PW-6 Bidder's Reference List 
PW-7 Bidder's Equal Employment Opportunity Certification 
PW-8 List of Subcontractors 
PW-9 Request for County's Preference Program Consideration and Community 
Business Enterprise Firm/Organization Information Form 
PW-10 GAIN and GROW Employment Commitment 
PW-11 Transmittal Form to Request a Solicitation Requirements Review (Submit 
Only If Requesting A Review.) 
PW-12 Charitable Contributions Certification 
PW-13 Bidder's List of Terminated Contracts 
PW-14 Bidder's Pending Litigations and Judgments 
PW-15 Bidder's Insurance Compliance Affirmation 
PW-16 Certification of Compliance with the County's Defaulted Property Tax 
Reduction Program 
PW-17 Zero Tolerance Human Trafficking Policy Certification 
PW-18 Compliance with Fair Chance Employment Hiring Practices Certification 
PW-19 Compliance with the Minimum Requirements 
PW-20 Bidder's Waste Collector Permit Compliance Affirmation 
PW-21 COVID-19 Vaccinations of County Contractor Personnel 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 368 of 778



FORM PW-1 
VERIFICATION OF BID 

DATE:  , 2022 THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY DECLARES AS FOLLOWS: 
1. This Declaration is given in support of a Bid for a Contract with The County of Los Angeles. The Bidder further acknowledges that if any false, misleading,
incomplete, or deceptively unresponsive statements in connection with this Bid are made, the Bid may be rejected at the Director’s sole judgment and his/her
judgment shall be final.
2. Name of Service: 

DECLARANT INFORMATION 
3. Name Of declarant:

4. I Am duly vested with the authority to make and sign instruments for and on behalf of the Bidder(s).

5. My Title, Capacity, Or Relationship to the Bidder(s) is:

BIDDER INFORMATION 
6. Bidder’s full legal name: Telephone No.: 

Physical Address (NO P.O. BOX): Mobile No.: 

e-mail: Fax No.: 
County WebVen No.: IRS No.: Business License No.: 
7. Bidder’s fictitious business name(s) or dba(s) (if any):

County(s) of Registration: State: Year(s) became DBA: 
8. The Bidder’s form of business entity is (CHECK ONLY ONE):

� Sole proprietor Name of Proprietor: 

� A corporation: 
Corporation’s principal place of business: 

State of incorporation: Year incorporated: 

� Non-profit corporation certified under IRS 501(c) 3 and registered 
with the CA Attorney General's Registry of Charitable Trusts 

President/CEO: 
Secretary: 

� A general partnership: Names of partners: 

� A limited partnership: Name of general partner: 

� A joint venture of: Names of joint venturers: 

� A limited liability company: Name of managing member: 

9. The only persons or firms interested in this Bid as principals are the following:
Name(s) Title Phone Fax 

Street City State Zip 

Name(s) Title Phone Fax 

Street City State Zip 

10. Is your firm wholly or majority owned by, or a subsidiary of another firm?  �   No �   Yes
If yes, name of parent firm: 
State of incorporation/registration of parent firm:

11. Has your firm done business under any other name(s)  within the last five years? �   No �   Yes If yes, please list the other name(s): 
Name(s):  Year of name change:    . 
Name(s):  Year of name change:    . 
12. Is your  firm involved in any pending acquisition or merger? �   No �   Yes 
If yes,  indicate the associated company's name:
13. Bidder acknowledges that if any false, misleading, incomplete, or deceptively unresponsive statements in connection with this Bid are made, the Bid may be
rejected.  The evaluation and determination in this area shall be at the Director's sole judgment and the Director's judgment shall be final.
14. I am making these representations and all representation contained in this Bid based on information that they are true and correct to the best of my information
and belief.
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of California that the above information is true and correct. 

Signature of Bidder or Authorized Agent: Date: 
Type name and title: 

Catch Basin Cleanout Services for Various Locations Throughout Los Angeles County 

Ronnie Norman 

Ron's Maintenance Inc
President 

Ron's Maintenance Inc
11542 Horley Ave Downey, CA 90241

213-359-3827

213-359-3827
Ronsmaintenance@aol.com 562-861-2418

512065 20-1345634 972124

x
California 2004

Ronnie Norman 
11542 Horley Ave Downey  California 90241

President 213-359-3827 562-861-2418

x

x

x

Ronnie Norman     -     President  

Downey, CA

May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 369 of 778

U166073
Typewritten text
May 16



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 370 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 371 of 778



FORM PW-3 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE JURY SERVICE PROGRAM 
APPLICATION FOR EXCEPTION AND CERTIFICATION FORM  

This contract is subject to the County of Los Angeles Contractor Employee Jury Service Program (Program) (Los Angeles 
County Code, Chapter 2.203).  All contractors and subcontractors must complete this form to either (1) request an exception 
from the Program requirements or (2) certify compliance.  Upon review of the submitted form, the County department will 
determine, in its sole discretion, whether the bidder or Bidder is excepted from the Program. 

Company Name: 
Company Address: 
City:      State:        Zip Code: 
Telephone Number: 
(Type of Goods or Services): 

If you believe the Jury Service Program does not apply to your business, check the 
appropriate box in Part I (you must attach documentation to support your claim). If the Jury 
Service Program applies to your business, complete Part II to certify compliance with the 
Program.  Whether you complete Part I or Part II, sign and date this form. 

Part I: Jury Service Program Is Not Applicable to My Business  

� My business does not meet the definition of "contractor," as defined in the Program as it has not received an
aggregate sum of $50,000 or more in any 12-month period under one or more County contracts or subcontracts
(this exception is not available if the contract/purchase order itself will exceed $50,000).  I understand that the
exception will be lost, and I must comply with the Program if my revenues from the County exceed an aggregate
sum of $50,000 in any 12-month period.

� My business is a small business as defined in the Program.  It 1) has ten or fewer employees; and, 2) has
annual gross revenues in the preceding twelve months which, if added to the annual amount of this contract, are
$500,000 or less; and, 3) is not an affiliate or subsidiary of a business dominant in its field of operation, as
defined below.  I understand that the exemption will be lost, and I must comply with the Program if the number of
employees in my business and my gross annual revenues exceed the above limits.

"Dominant in its field of operation" means having more than ten employees, including full-time and part-time
employees, and annual gross revenues in the preceding twelve months, which, if added to the annual amount of
the contract awarded, exceed $500,000.

"Affiliate or subsidiary of a business dominant in its field of operation" means a business which is at least
20 percent owned by a business dominant in its field of operation, or by partners, officers, directors, majority
stockholders, or their equivalent, of a business dominant in that field of operation.

� My business is subject to a Collective Bargaining Agreement that expressly provides that it supersedes all
provisions of the Program. ATTACH THE AGREEMENT.

Part II: Certification of Compliance 

� My business has and adheres to a written policy that provides, on an annual basis, no less than five days of
regular pay for actual jury service for full-time employees of the business who are also California residents, or
my company will have and adhere to such a policy prior to award of the contract.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the information stated above is true 
and correct. 
Print Name: Title: 

Signature: Date: 

Ron's Maintenance Inc
11542 Horley Ave 

Downey CA
213-359-3827

Catch Basin / Storm Drain Maintenance 

x

Ronnie Norman President 

90241

May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 372 of 778

Ronnie Norman




FORM PW-4 

CONTRACTOR'S INDUSTRIAL SAFETY RECORD 

PROPOSED CONTRACT FOR: ________________________________________________________________________________ 
SERVICE BY BIDDER: ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Total Current Year 
to Date 

1. Number of contracts.

2. Total dollar amount of Contracts (in thousands of dollars).

3. Number of fatalities.

4. Number of lost workday cases.

5. Number of lost workday cases involving permanent transfer to
another job or termination of employment.

6. Number of lost workdays.

The above information was compiled from the records that are available to me at this time, and I declare under penalty of perjury that the information is true and 
accurate within the limitations of those records. 

______________________________________________________  _______________________________________________________________________ 
Name of Bidder or Authorized Agent (print) Signature                                                                                                   Date 

Catch Basin Cleanout Services for various locations throughout Los Angeles County 
Ron's Maintenance Inc

BID DATE:  _______May 16, 2022___________________ 

This information must include all work undertaken in the State of California by the Bidder and any partnership, joint venture, or corporation that any principal of the 
Bidder participated in as a principal or owner for the last five calendar years and the current calendar year prior to the date of Bid submittal.  Separate information 
shall be submitted for each particular partnership, joint venture, corporate, or individual Bidder.  The Bidder may attach any additional information or explanation of 
date which the Bidder would like taken into consideration in evaluating the safety record.  An explanation must be attached to the circumstances surrounding any 
and all fatalities. 

5 CALENDAR YEARS PRIOR TO CURRENT YEAR 

21 21 24 23 25 114 22

$1,650,000 $1,820,000 $2,100,000 $1,980,650 $2,630,000 $10,180,650 $1,450,000

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

0

0

0

0

0 0

0

0 0

0

0 0

0

0 0

0

0 0

0

0

Ron's Maintenance Inc May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 373 of 778



FORM PW-5
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CERTIFICATION 

I,      _________________________________________________________________________________ 

� sole owner
� general partner
� managing member
� President, Secretary, or other proper title) ______________________________________

of    _________________________________________________________________________________ 
Name of Bidder 

make this certification in support of a Bid for a contract with the County of Los Angeles for services within the scope 
of Los Angeles County Code, Section 2.180.010, which provides as follows:  

Contracts Prohibited.  

Notwithstanding any other section of this Code, the County shall not contract with, and shall reject 
any Bids submitted by, the persons or entities specified below, unless the Board of Supervisors 
finds that special circumstances exist which justify the approval of such contract. 

1. Employees of the County or of public agencies for which the Board of Supervisors
is the governing body;

2. Profit-making firms or businesses in which employees described in number 1 serve
as officers, principals, partners, or major shareholders;

3. Persons who, within the immediately preceding 12 months, came within the
provisions of number 1, and who:

(a) Were employed in positions of substantial responsibility in the area of
service to be performed by the contract; or

(b) Participated in any way in developing the contract or its service
specifications; and

4. Profit-making firms or businesses in which the former employees, described in
number 3, serve as officers, principals, partners, or major shareholders.

Contracts submitted to the Board of Supervisors for approval or ratification shall be accompanied by an assurance 
by the submitting department, district or agency that the provisions of this section have not been violated. 

I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of California that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Signed _____________________________________________  Date ___________________________ 

Ronnie Norman 

x President 

Ron's Maintenance Inc

May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 374 of 778



FORM PW-6 
BIDDER'S REFERENCE LIST 

BIDDER NAME: _______________________________________________________________

PROPOSED CONTRACT FOR: ______________________________________________________ 

Provide a comprehensive reference list of all contracts for goods and/or services provided by the Bidder during the 
previous three years.  Please verify all contact names, telephone and fax numbers, and e-mail addresses before listing. 
Incorrect names, telephone and/or fax numbers, or e-mail addresses will be disregarded.  Use additional pages if 
required. 

A. COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES AGENCIES
All contracts with the County during the previous three years must be listed.

SERVICE: SERVICE DATES: SERVICE: SERVICE DATES: 

DEPT/ DISTRICT: DEPT/DISTRICT: 

CONTACT: CONTACT: 

TELEPHONE: TELEPHONE: 

FAX: FAX: 

E-MAIL: E-MAIL:

SERVICE: SERVICE DATES: SERVICE: SERVICE DATES: 

DEPT/ DISTRICT: DEPT/DISTRICT: 

CONTACT: CONTACT: 

TELEPHONE: TELEPHONE: 

FAX: FAX: 

E-MAIL: E-MAIL:

B. OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES AND PRIVATE COMPANIES
SERVICE: SERVICE DATES: SERVICE: SERVICE DATES: 

AGENCY/ FIRM: AGENCY/ FIRM: 

ADDRESS: ADDRESS: 

CONTACT: CONTACT: 

TELEPHONE: TELEPHONE: 

FAX: FAX: 

E-MAIL: E-MAIL:

SERVICE: SERVICE DATES: SERVICE: SERVICE DATES: 

AGENCY/ FIRM: AGENCY/ FIRM: 

ADDRESS: ADDRESS: 

CONTACT: CONTACT: 

TELEPHONE: TELEPHONE: 

FAX: FAX: 

E-MAIL: E-MAIL:

Ron's Maintenance Inc 
Catch Basin Cleanout services for various locations throughout Southern California 

Catch Basin Cleanout 2019

LA County Public Works 
Akbar Gadim

818-994-9964

818-786-0978

agadium@ladpw.org

Catch Basin Cleanout 2020

LA County Public Works

Akbar Gadim

818-994-9964
818-786-0978

agadium@ladpw.org

agadium@ladpw.org

Catch Basin Cleanout 2021
LA County Public Works

Akbar Gadim

818-994-9964

818-786-0978

Catch Basin Cleanout 2019

County of Orange 

2301 N Glassel St, 2nd Floor

Caesar Segura

714-955-0328

Ceasar.Segura@ocpw.ocgov.com

Catch Basin Cleanout 2020

County of Orange 
2301 N Glassel St, 2nd Floor

Caesar Segura

714-955-0328

Ceasar.Segura@ocpw.ocgov.com

Ceasar.Segura@ocpw.ocgov.com

714-955-0328

Caesar Segura

2301 N Glassel St, 2nd Floor

County of Orange 

Catch Basin Cleanout Catch Basin Cleanout 20212021

City of South Gate 

4244 Santa Ana Street 

David Torres

323-563-5784

323-216-9524

dtorres@sogate.org

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 375 of 778



FORM PW-7 

BIDDER'S EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CERTIFICATION 

Bidder's Name 

Address 

Internal Revenue Service Employer Identification Number 

In accordance with Los Angeles County Code, Section 4.32.010, the Bidder certifies and agrees that 
all persons employed by it, its affiliates, subsidiaries, or holding companies are and will be treated 
equally by the firm without regard to or because of race, religion, ancestry, national origin, or sex and 
in compliance with all antidiscrimination laws of the United States of America and the State of 
California. 

1. The Bidder has a written policy statement prohibiting any discrimination in all 
phases of employment. 

� YES

� NO

2. The Bidder periodically conducts a self-analysis or utilization analysis of its 
work force. 

� YES

� NO

3. The Bidder has a system for determining if its employment practices are 
discriminatory against protected groups. 

� YES

� NO

4. 
Where problem areas are identified in employment practices, the Bidder has 
a system for taking reasonable corrective action to include establishment of 
goals and timetables. 

� YES

� NO

Bidder 

Authorized representative 

Signature Date 

Ron's Maintenance Inc

11542 Horley Ave Downey, CA 90241

20-1345634

x

x

x

x

Ron's Maintainence Inc

Ronnie Norman 

May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 376 of 778



FORM PW-8

LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS
Bidder is required to complete the following.  Any Subcontractors listed must be properly licensed under the 
laws of the State of California for the type of service that they are to perform, AND THEIR LICENSE 
NUMBERS MUST BE LISTED HEREIN.  Failure to do so may result in delay of the award of contract.  Do 
not list alternate subcontractors for the same service. 

Bidder in providing the requested services will not utilize Subcontractors.  Bidder will perform all 
required services. 

Name Under Which 
Subcontractor Is Licensed 

License 
Number Address Specific Description of 

Subcontract Service 

 1 of 3 

Subcontractors are not allowed! 

√

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 377 of 778



FORM PW-8 

Certification as Minority, Women, Disadvantaged, and Disabled Veteran Business Enterprises:  If any of your Subcontractors are 
currently certified as Minority, Women, Disadvantaged, and Disabled Veteran Business Enterprises by a public agency, complete the 
following and attach a copy of the proof of certification.  All Subcontractors listed in the Proposal/Bid shall be listed below (make copy of 
this form, if necessary). 

Subcontractor Name Local SBE SBE Minority Women- 
Owned 

Disadvantaged 
Business Disabled Veteran 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

Declaration:  I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above information is true and accurate. 
Print Name: Authorized Signature Title Date 

2 of 3 

Subcontractors are not allowed! 

Ronnie Norman President May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 378 of 778



FORM PW-8 

COMMUNITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISES PARTICIPATION FORM 

Contractors are required to indicate their good faith effort in Community Business Enterprises 
(CBE) participation by indicating on this form their proposed involvement on this project.  CBEs 
are Minority/Women/Disadvantaged/Disabled Veteran owned Business Enterprises 
(MBE/WBE/DBE/DVBE).  This form shall be provided to the COUNTY at the time of Bid submittal. 

LIST OF CBE PARTICIPATION 

The following is a list of certified CBE Subcontractors that the Bidder elects to list as a 
Subcontractor to perform a portion or portions of this work and known suppliers from whom 
Bidder proposes to procure materials and/or equipment for the work. 

INDICATE MBE/   PERCENTAGE  
 TYPE OF WORK  WBE/DBE OR   OF BASE PRICE 

NAME/ADDRESS  OR PRODUCT  DVBE  BID 

______________ ______________   

______________ ______________   

______________ ______________   

______________ _______________ 

______________ _______________ 

______________ _______________ 

______________ _______________ 

______________ _______________ 
                  3 of 3 

Subcontractors are not allowed! 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 379 of 778



☐ Request for Social Enterprise (SE) Program Preference

FORM PW-9 
County of Los Angeles 

 Request for County's Preference Program Consideration and 
Community Business Enterprises Firm/Organization Information Form 

I. INSTRUCTIONS:  Businesses requesting preference consideration must complete and return this
form for proper consideration of the Bid. Businesses may request consideration for one or more
preference programs.  Check all certifications that apply.*

I MEET ALL OF THE REQUIREMENTS AND REQUEST THIS BID BE CONSIDERED FOR THE PREFERENCE 
PROGRAM(S) SELECTED BELOW. A COPY OF THE CERTIFICATION LETTER ISSUED BY THE 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AND BUSINESS AFFAIRS (DCBA) IS ATTACHED. 

☐ Request for Local Small Business Enterprise (LSBE) Program Preference

☐ Certified by the State of California as a small business and has had its principal place of
business located in Los Angeles County for at least one (1) year; or

☐ Certified as a LSBE with other certifying agencies under DCBA’s inclusion policy that has its
principal place of business located in Los Angeles County and has revenues and employee
sizes that meet the State’s Department of General Services requirements; and

☐ Certified as a LSBE by the DCBA.

 
 

☐ A business that has been in operation for at least one year providing transitional or permanent
employment to a Transitional Workforce or providing social, environmental, and/or human
justice services; and

☐ Certified as a SE business by the DCBA.

☐ Request for Disabled Veterans Business Enterprise (DVBE) Program Preference

☐ Certified by the State of California, or
☐ Certified by U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs as a DVBE; or
☐ Certified as a DVBE with other certifying agencies under DCBA’s inclusion policy that meets the

criteria set forth by: the State of California as a DVBE or is verified as a service-disabled
veteran-owned small business by the Veterans Administration: and

☐ Certified as a DVBE by the DCBA.
*BUSINESS UNDERSTANDS THAT ONLY ONE OF THE ABOVE PREFERENCES WILL APPLY.  IN
NO INSTANCE SHALL ANY OF THE ABOVE LISTED PREFERENCE PROGRAMS PRICE OR
SCORING PREFERENCE BE COMBINED WITH ANY OTHER COUNTY PROGRAM TO EXCEED
FIFTEEN PERCENT (15%) IN RESPONSE TO ANY COUNTY SOLICITATION.
DECLARATION: I DECLARE UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE 
OF CALIFORNIA THAT THE ABOVE INFORMATION IS TRUE AND ACCURATE. 

☐ DCBA certification is attached.

Name of Firm: County WebVen No.: 

Print Name: Title: 

Signature: Date: 

Reviewer’s Signature Approved Disapproved Date 

1 of 2 

x

x

x

x

Ron's Maintainence Inc

Ronnie Norman President 

512065

May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 380 of 778



FORM PW-9 

All Bidders responding to the Invitation for Bids must complete and return this form for proper 

consideration of the Bid. 

Firm Name: 

My County (WebVen) Vendor Number: 

II. FIRM/ORGANIZATION INFORMATION: The information requested below is for statistical purposes only. On final analysis and consideration of
award, contractor/vendor will be selected without regard to race/ethnicity, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, sexual orientation, or
disability.

Business Structure: � Sole Proprietorship � Partnership � Corporation � Nonprofit � Franchise

� Other (Please Specify):

Total Number of Employees  (including owners): 

Race/Ethnic Composition of Firm.  Please distribute the above total number of individuals into the following categories: 

Race/Ethnic Composition Owners/Partners/ 
Associate Partners Managers Staff 

Male Female Male Female Male Female 

Black/African American 

Hispanic/Latino 

Asian or Pacific Islander 

American Indian 

Filipino 
White 

III. PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP IN FIRM:  Please indicate by percentage (%) how ownership of the firm is distributed.

Black/African 
American Hispanic/ Latino Asian or Pacific 

Islander American Indian Filipino White 

Men % % % % % % 

Women % % % % % % 

IV. CERTIFICATION AS MINORITY, WOMEN, DISADVANTAGED, AND DISABLED VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISES:  If your firm is
currently certified as a minority, women, disadvantaged, or disabled veteran owned business enterprise by a public agency, complete the
following and attach a copy of your proof of certification.  (Use back of form, if necessary.)

Agency Name Minority Women Disadvantaged Disabled Veteran Expiration Date 

V. Bidder further acknowledges that if any false, misleading, incomplete, or deceptively unresponsive statements in connection with
this Bid are made, the Bid may be rejected.  The evaluation and determination in this area shall be at the Director’s sole judgment and
his/her judgment shall be final.

DECLARATION:  I DECLARE UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA THAT THE ABOVE
INFORMATION IS TRUE AND CORRECT.

Authorized Signature: Title: Date: 

LOCAL SBE-FIRM-ORGANIZATION FORM.DOC Rev. 10/18/16   PW Rev. 10/18/

2 of 2 

Ron's Maintenance Inc

x

26

1

2

1

20

2

100

President 

512065

May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 381 of 778



FORM PW-10 

GAIN and GROW EMPLOYMENT COMMITMENT

As a threshold requirement for consideration for contract award, Bidder shall demonstrate a proven 
record for hiring GAIN/GROW participants or shall attest to a willingness to consider GAIN/GROW 
participants for any future employment opening if they meet the minimum qualifications for that 
opening.  Additionally, Bidder shall attest to a willingness to provide employed GAIN/GROW 
participants access to the Bidder's employee mentoring program, if available, to assist these 
individuals in obtaining permanent employment and/or promotional opportunities. 

To report all job openings with job requirements to obtain qualified GAIN/GROW participants as 
potential employment candidates, Contractor shall e-mail: GAINGROW@dpss.lacounty.gov and 
BSERVICES@wdacs.lacounty.gov.  

Bidders unable to meet this requirement shall not be considered for contract award. 

Bidder shall complete all of the following information, sign where indicated below, and return this form 
with their Bid. 

A. Bidder has a proven record of hiring GAIN/GROW participants.

______ YES  (subject to verification by County) ______ NO 

B. Bidder is willing to provide DPSS with all job openings and job requirements to consider
GAIN/GROW participants for any future employment openings if the GAIN/GROW participant
meets the minimum qualifications for the opening. "Consider" means that Bidder is willing to
interview qualified GAIN/GROW participants.

______ YES ______ NO 

C. Bidder is willing to provide employed GAIN/GROW participants access to its employee-mentoring
program, if available.

______ YES ______ NO ______ N/A (Program not available) 

Signature Title 

Firm Name Date 

√

√

√

Ron's Maintenance Inc

President 

May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 382 of 778



FORM PW-11 
TRANSMITTAL FORM TO REQUEST A 

SOLICITATION REQUIREMENTS REVIEW

Bidders requesting a Solicitation Requirements Review must submit this form to the County 
within ten business days of issuance of the solicitation document 

Bidder Name: Date of Request: 

Solicitation Title: Solicitation No.: 

A Solicitation Requirements Review is being requested because the Bidder asserts that they are being 
unfairly disadvantaged for the following reason(s): (check all that apply) 

Application of Minimum Requirements 
Application of Evaluation Criteria 
Application of Business Requirements 

  Due to unclear instructions, the process may result in the County not receiving the 
best possible responses 

I understand that this request must be received by the County within ten business days of issuance of the 
solicitation document. 

For each area contested, Bidder must explain in detail the factual reasons for the requested review. 
(Attach supporting documentation) 

Request submitted by: 

______________________________________________    ________________________________ 
(Name)                                                                                    (Title) 

For County use only 

Date Transmittal Received by County: ____________  Date Solicitation Released:_________________ 

Reviewed by:

Ron's Maintenance Inc

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 383 of 778



FORM PW-12 

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS CERTIFICATION 

Company Name 

Address 

Internal Revenue Service Employer Identification Number 

California Registry of Charitable Trusts "CT" number (if applicable) 

The Nonprofit Integrity Act (SB 1262, Chapter 919) added requirements to California's Supervision of 
Trustees and Fundraisers for Charitable Purposes Act, which regulates those receiving and raising 
charitable contributions. 

Check the Certification below that is applicable to your company 

� Bidder or Contractor has examined its activities and determined that it does not now receive 
or raise charitable contributions regulated under California's Supervision or Trustees and 
Fundraisers for Charitable Purposes Act.  If Bidder engages in activities subjecting it to 
those laws during the term of a County contract, it will timely comply with them and provide 
County a copy of its initial registration with the California State Attorney General's Registry of 
Charitable Trusts when filed. 

OR 

� Bidder or Contractor is registered with the California Registry of Charitable Trusts under the 
CT number listed above and is in compliance with its registration and reporting requirements 
under California law.  Attached is a copy of its most recent filing with the Registry of 
Charitable Trusts as required by Title 11 California Code of Regulations, sections 300-301 
and Government Code sections 12585-12586. 

Signature Date 

Name and Title (please type or print) 

Ron's Maintenance Inc

11542 Horley Ave  Downey, CA 90241 

20-1345634

√

Ronnie Norman  -  President 

May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 384 of 778



FORM PW-13 

BIDDER'S LIST OF TERMINATED CONTRACTS 

BIDDER'S NAME: ______________________________________________________ 

Bidder has not had any contracts terminated in the past three years. 

Bidder must list all contracts that have been terminated within the past three years.  Terminated contracts are 
those contracts terminated by an agency or firm before the contract's expiration date. If a contract(s) was 
terminated, please attach an explanation on a separate sheet, whether the termination was at the fault of the 
Bidder or not.  Any and all terminated contracts should be accompanied with an explanation. It should be noted 
that contracts that naturally expired need not be listed.  The County is only seeking information on contracts that 
were terminated prior to expiration. 

SIGNATURE ___________________________________ DATE: ____________________ 

SERVICE: TERMINATING DATE: SERVICE: TERMINATING DATE: 

NAME OF TERMINATING FIRM NAME OF TERMINATING FIRM 

ADDRESS OF FIRM ADDRESS OF FIRM 

CONTACT PERSON: CONTACT PERSON: 

TELEPHONE: TELEPHONE: 

FAX: FAX: 

E-MAIL: E-MAIL:

SERVICE: TERMINATING DATE: SERVICE: TERMINATING DATE: 

NAME OF TERMINATING FIRM NAME OF TERMINATING FIRM 

ADDRESS OF FIRM ADDRESS OF FIRM 

CONTACT PERSON: CONTACT PERSON: 

TELEPHONE: TELEPHONE: 

FAX: FAX: 

E-MAIL: E-MAIL:

Ron's Maintenance Inc

√

May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 385 of 778



FORM PW-14 

BIDDER'S PENDING LITIGATIONS AND JUDGMENTS 

Bidder's Name: _______________________________________________________ 

□ Bidder and/or principals are not currently involved in any pending litigation; are not aware of
any threatened litigation where they would be a party; and have not had any judgments
entered against them within the last five years as of the date of Bid submission.

Bidder and/or principals of the Bidder must list below (use additional pages if necessary) all pending 
litigation, threatened litigation, and/or any judgments entered against them within the last 
five years as of the date of Bid submission. 

A. □ Pending Litigation □ Threatened Litigation □ Judgment (check one)

1. Against □ Bidder; □ Principal; □ Both (check as appropriate)
2. Name of Litigation/Judgment: ___________________________________
3. Case Number: _______________________________________________
4. Court of Jurisdiction: __________________________________________
5. Please provide a statement describing the size and scope of the pending/threatened

litigation or judgment (use additional page if necessary):

B. □ Pending Litigation □ Threatened Litigation □ Judgment (check one)

1. Against □ Bidder; □ Principal; □ Both (check as appropriate)
2. Name of Litigation/Judgment: ___________________________________
3. Case Number: _______________________________________________
4. Court of Jurisdiction: __________________________________________
5. Please provide a statement describing the size and scope of the pending/threatened

litigation or judgment (use additional page if necessary):

Signature of Bidder: _________________________________ Date: ___________ 

Ron's Maintenance Inc

√

May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 386 of 778



FORM PW-15 

CATCH BASINS CLEANOUT SERVICES FOR VARIOUS LOCATIONS THROUGHOUT LOS 
ANGELES COUNTY (BRC0000287) 

BIDDER'S INSURANCE COMPLIANCE AFFIRMATION 

Bidder's Name 

Address 

� If awarded the contract: Bidder will comply with the insurance coverage provisions set 
forth in Exhibit B, Section 5, Indemnification and Insurance Requirements, of this 
Request for Bids, and Bidder will procure, maintain, and provide the County with proof 
of insurance coverage in the coverage amounts and types specified in Exhibit B, 
Section 5, throughout the entire term of the proposed contract, without interruption or 
break in coverage. 

� If you check this box, your Bid will be determined nonresponsive and your Bid will be 
disqualified. Bidder will not comply with the insurance coverage provisions set forth in 
Exhibit B, Section 5, Indemnification and Insurance Requirements, of this Request for 
Bids, and Bidder will not procure, maintain, and provide the County with proof of 
insurance coverage in the coverage amounts and types specified in Exhibit B, Section 
5, throughout the entire term of the proposed contract, without interruption or break in 
coverage. 

Signature of Bidder: _________________________________ Date: ___________ 

Ron's Maintenance Inc

11542 Horley Ave  Downey, CA 90241 

√

May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 387 of 778



FORM PW-16 

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE COUNTY'S 
DEFAULTED PROPERTY TAX REDUCTION PROGRAM 

The Bidder certifies that: 

� It is familiar with the terms of the County of Los Angeles Defaulted Property Tax Reduction 
Program, Los Angeles County Code, Chapter 2.206. 

To the best of its knowledge, after a reasonable inquiry, the Proposer/Bidder/Contractor is not 
in default, as that term is defined in Los Angeles County Code, Section 2.206.020.E, on any 
Los Angeles County property tax obligation. 

The Proposer/Bidder/Contractor agrees to comply with the County's Defaulted Property Tax 
Reduction Program during the term of any awarded contract. 

-OR-

� I am exempt from the County of Los Angeles Defaulted Property Tax Reduction Program, 
pursuant to Los Angeles County Code, Section 2.206.060, for the following reason: 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the information stated 
above is true and correct. 

Print Name: Title: 

Signature: Date: 

√

Ronnie Norman President 
May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 388 of 778



FORM PW-17 

ZERO TOLERANCE HUMAN TRAFFICKING POLICY CERTIFICATION 

Company Name: 

Company Address: 

City: State: Zip Code: 

Telephone Number: E-Mail Address:

Solicitation/Contract for ________________________________________________________ Services 

BIDDER CERTIFICATION 

Los Angeles County has taken significant steps to protect victims of human trafficking by establishing 
a zero tolerance human trafficking policy that prohibits contractors found to have engaged in human 
trafficking from receiving contract awards or performing services under a County contract. 

Bidder acknowledges and certifies compliance with Exhibit B, Section 1.OO, Compliance with 
County’s Zero Tolerance Human Trafficking Policy, of the proposed Contract and agrees that Bidder 
or a member of his staff performing work under the proposed Contract will be in compliance. Bidder 
further acknowledges that noncompliance with the County's Zero Tolerance Human Trafficking 
Policy may result in rejection of any Bid, or cancellation of any resultant Contract, at the sole 
judgment of the County. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the information 
herein is true and correct and that I am authorized to represent this company. 

Print Name: Title 

Signature: Date: 

Ron's Maintenance Inc

11542 Horley Ave 

Downey CA 90241

213-359-3827 Ronsmaintenance@aol.com
Catch Basin Cleanout Services for Various Cities Throughout Los Angeles County 

Ronnie Norman President

May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 389 of 778



FORM PW-18 

COMPLIANCE WITH FAIR CHANCE EMPLOYMENT HIRING PRACTICES CERTIFICATION 

Company Name: 

Company Address: 

City: State: Zip Code: 

Telephone Number: E-Mail Address:

Solicitation/Contract for ________________________________________________________ Services 

BIDDER/CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION 

The Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors approved a Fair Chance Employment Policy in an 
effort to remove job barriers for individuals with criminal records. The policy requires businesses that 
contract with the County to comply with fair chance employment hiring practices set forth in California 
Government Code Section 12952, Employment Discrimination: Conviction History (California 
Government Code Section 12952), effective January 1, 2018. 

Bidder/Contractor acknowledges and certifies compliance with fair chance employment hiring 
practices set forth in California Government Code Section 12952, as indicated in Section 8.56 
(Compliance with Fair Chance Employment Practices) of the Contract, and agrees that 
Bidder/contractor and staff performing work under the Contract will be in compliance. 
Bidder/Contractor further acknowledges that noncompliance with fair chance employment practices 
set forth in California Government Code Section 12952 may result in rejection of any Bid, or 
termination of any resultant Contract, at the sole judgment of the County. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the information 
herein is true and correct and that I am authorized to represent this company. 

Print Name: Title 

Signature: Date: 

Ron's Maintenance Inc

11542 Horley Ave

Downey CA 90241

213-359-3827 Ronsmaintenance@aol.com
Catch Basin Cleanout Services for Various Cities Throughout Los Angeles County 

Ronnie Norman President

May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 390 of 778



Page 1 of 3 

FORM PW-19 

ON-CALL CATCH BASINS CLEANOUT SERVICES FOR VARIOUS LOCATIONS 
THROUGHOUT LOS ANGELES COUNTY  

 (BRC0000287) 

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS AFFIRMATION 

BIDDER MUST CHECK A BOX IN EVERY SECTION 

Important Note:  The information on this form is subject to verification. 

Completing this form by itself without including detailed narrative in your bid's experience 
section to support the minimum mandatory requirement of this RFP, any inconsistencies or 
inaccuracy in the information provided in this form, or this form and your Bid, may subject 
your Bid to disqualification or other actions at the sole discretion of the County.   

At the time of bid submission, Bidder must meet the following minimum requirements: 

1. Bidder or its managing employee(s) must have a minimum of two years of experience cleaning
catch basins including trash and debris capturing devices, similar to the type of catch basin
inserts to be maintained as outlined in Exhibit A, Scope of Work.

� Yes.  Please complete the chart below. (In addition to responding on this form, as
specified in Part I, Section 2.A.5, Experience, please provide a detailed narrative in your
bid to validate this minimum mandatory requirements.

Bidder’s Name 
Dates of 
Experience 
(Mth/Yrs to 
Mth/Yrs) 

Description of Services/Experience Page 
Number(s)* 

*List the page number in the bid containing the bidder's experience.

OR 
Bidder’s managing employee(s) must have a minimum of two years of experience cleaning 
catch basins including trash and debris capturing devices, similar to the type of catch basin 
inserts to be maintained as outlined in Exhibit A, Scope of Work. 

√

Ron's Maintenance 7-1-1994 to present
Catch Basin Cleaning 13-14

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 391 of 778



Page 2 of 3 

� Yes.  Please complete the chart below. (In addition to responding on this form, as 
specified in Part I, Section 2.A.5, Experience, please provide a detailed narrative in your 
bid to validate this minimum mandatory requirement. 

Managing 
Employee's Name 

Dates of 
Experience 
(Mth/Yrs to 
Mth/Yrs) 

Description of Services/Experience Page 
Number(s)* 

*List the page number in the bid containing the management's experience.

� No.  Bidder or its managing employee does not meet the experience requirement stated 
above. 

2. Bidder’s onsite supervisor must have at least one year of experience cleaning and maintaining
catch basins including trash and debris capturing devices, similar to the type of catch basin
inserts to be maintained as outlined in Exhibit A, Scope of Work.

� Yes.  Please complete the chart below. (In addition to responding on this form, as
specified in Part I, Section 2.A.5, Experience, please provide a detailed narrative in your
bid to validate this minimum mandatory requirement.

Bidder's Onsite 
Supervisor Name(s) 

Dates of 
Experience 
(Mth/Yrs to 
Mth/Yrs) 

Description of Services/Experience Page 
Number(s)* 

*List the page number in the bid containing the bidder's experience.

� No.  Bidder’s onsite supervisor does not meet the experience requirement stated above. 

√

Mario Gudino 

Martin Nava

Christian Gil

07/1998 to present 

07/1999 to present

07/2004 to present 

Catch Basin Cleanout, 

Catch Basin Cleanout, 

Catch Basin Cleanout, 

13-14

13-14

13-14

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 392 of 778



Page 3 of 3 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the above information is true and accurate. 

Bidder's Name: 

Authorized Representative Name: 

Signature: Date: 

P:\aepub\Service Contracts\CONTRACT\Jairo\CATCH BASIN\2021 IFB\IFB\PW-19.1 - Minimum Requirement.doc 

Ron's Maintenance Inc

Ronnie Norman 

May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 393 of 778



FORM PW-20 

ON-CALL CATCH BASINS CLEANOUT SERVICES FOR VARIOUS LOCATIONS 
THROUGHOUT LOS ANGELES COUNTY  

(BRC0000287) 

BIDDER'S WASTE COLLECTOR PERMIT COMPLIANCE AFFIRMATION 

Bidder's Name 

Address 

� Prior to award of this contract, bidder will provide Department of 
Public Works a copy of its valid and active Waste Collector Permit issued 
by the County of Los Angeles Department of Public Health (DPH).  

� Prior to award of this contract, bidder will not provide Department of 
Public Works a copy of its valid and active Waste Collector Permit issued 
by the County of Los Angeles Department of Public Health (DPH).  If you 
check this box, your bid will be immediately disqualified as non-
responsive.  

Print Name: Title: 

Signature: Date: 

Ron's Maintenance Inc

11542 Horley Ave  Downey, CA 90241

Ronnie Norman President 

May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 394 of 778

Ronnie Norman




FORM PW-21 

COVID-19 VACCINATION CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE 
Urgency Ordinance, County Code Title 2 – Administration, Division 4 – Miscellaneous – Chapter 2.212 (COVID-19 

Vaccinations of County Contractor Personnel) 

I, _ _________________, on behalf of ____________________________________, 
(the “Contractor”), certify that on County Contract 
________________________________________________________________________________: 

� All Contractor Personnel on this Contract are fully vaccinated as required by the
Ordinance.

� Most Contractor Personnel on this Contract are fully vaccinated as required by the
Ordinance.  The Contractor or its employer of record, has granted a valid medical or
religious exemption to the below identified Contractor Personnel. Contractor will certify
weekly that the following unvaccinated Contractor Personnel have tested negative within
72 hours of starting their work week under the County Contract, unless the contracting
County department requires otherwise.  The Contractor Personnel who have been
granted a valid medical or religious exemption are

[LIST ALL CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL]:

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

I have authority to bind the Contractor, and have reviewed the requirements above and further 
certify that I will comply with said requirements.   

Company/Contractor Name: 

Print Name: Title 

Signature: Date: 

 Ronnie Norman   Ron's Maintenance 

CATCH BASINS CLEANOUT SERVICES FOR VARIOUS LOCATIONS THROUGHOUT LOS ANGELES COUNTY (BRC000287)

√

Ron's Maintenance Inc

Ronnie Norman President 

May 16, 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 395 of 778



 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES  

Policy on Doing Business 
With Small Business 

 
 
Forty-two percent of businesses in Los Angeles County have five or fewer employees.  Only about 4 percent of 
businesses in the area exceed 100 employees.  According to the Los Angeles Times and local economists, it is 
not large corporations, but these small companies that are generating new jobs and helping move  
Los Angeles County out of its worst recession in decades. 

 WE RECOGNIZE... 
The importance of small business to the County: 

o In fueling local economic growth. 

o Providing new jobs. 

o Creating new local tax revenues. 

o Offering new entrepreneurial opportunity to those historically under-represented in business. 

 

The County can play a positive role in helping small business grow: 
o As a multibillion dollar purchaser of goods and services. 

o As a broker of intergovernmental cooperation among numerous local jurisdictions. 

o By greater outreach in providing information and training. 

o By simplifying the Proposal/Bid process. 

o By maintaining selection criteria which are fair to all. 

o By streamlining the payment process. 

 

 WE THEREFORE SHALL: 
1. Constantly seek to streamline and simplify our processes for selecting our vendors and for conducting 

business with them. 

2. Maintain a strong outreach program, fully coordinated among our departments and districts, as well as other 
participating governments to: (a) inform and assist the local business community in competing to provide 
goods and services; and, (b) provide for ongoing dialogue with and involvement by the business community 
in implementing this policy. 

3. Continually review and revise how we package and advertise solicitations, evaluate, and select prospective 
vendors, address subcontracting, and conduct business with our vendors, in order to: (a) expand 
opportunity for small business to compete for our business; and, (b) to further opportunities for all 
businesses to compete regardless of size. 

4. Ensure that staff who manage and carry out the business of purchasing goods and services are 
well-trained, capable, and highly motivated to carry out the letter and spirit of this policy. 

  

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 396 of 778



 

 

ATTACHMENT 2

Listing of Contractors Debarred in Los Angeles County 
 
 
List of Debarred Contractors in Los Angeles County may be obtained by going to the 
following website: 
 

https://doingbusiness.lacounty.gov/listing-of-contractors-debarred-in-los-angeles-county/  

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 397 of 778



SCHEDULE OF PRICES FOR 

FORM PW-2 
(WEST AREA 8-WESTERN) 

ON-CALL CATCH ~ASINS CLEANOUT SERVICES FOR 
VARIOUS LOCATIONS THROUGHOUT LOS ANGELES COUNTY 

,. (BRC0000287) 

The undersign~d Bidder offers to perform the work described in the Invitation for Bids (IFB) for the following 
price(s). The Bidder rate(s) (hourly, monthly, etc.) shall include all administrative· costs, profit, labor, 
supervision, materials, transportation, taxes, equipment, and supplies unless stated otherwise in the IFB. It is 
understood and agreed that where quantities, if any, are set forth in the Schedule of Prices, they are only 
estimates, and the unit prices quoted, if any, will apply to the actual quantities, whatever they may be. Any 
additional Catch Basin locations added to this Contract will be charged at the same unit prices 
reflected on this Form PW-2 (West Area B-Western). Schedule of Prices. 

NOTE: 
1. All unit prices listed below shall include .labor, equipment, materials, and traffic control unless otherwise indicated " 

in Exhibit A, Scope of Work. 

2. Public Works will reimburse all dumping fees plus a 10 percent handling charge upon receipt of an invoice with 
attached dump tickets. Public Works will not pay for labor and transportation of debris to the dump site. 

3. For work performed under Item B.7 below, Public Works will reimburse for rented vacuum trucks plus a 10 
percent processing charge upon receipt of an invoice from the rental company. The Contractor will be reimbursed 
for Contractor owned vacuum trucks according to the Contractor's published rate list. The Contractor shall provide 
its published rate list at the time of bid submission and annually thereafter at the time of Contract renewal. 

4. All unit prices shall include all requirements listed under E.xhibit A, Scope of Work . 

.. ,6 
. 

Annual Price r 

Item 
Annual Estimated# of {Freguencl£ X 

· --1-
Descrietion Unit Price Unit Price X 

Frequencl£ Units 
" 

A. @ ·a Estimated # of 
~- ~ Units) . .... . . 

Routine Dry Season Cleaning of all 

1. 
Catch Basins including all activities 

1 ~2~.Qo 
, 

11,600 $ 12!f; ~t' c) described in the Scope of Work, .. 
Exhibit A. Once per Dry Season. 
Routine Storm Season Cleaning of 
Inserted, Priority A, and Priority B 

2. Catch Basins including all 1 $ j(,{)/) 900 $ ). {_ tHO, () i> 
activities described in Exhibit A. J 
Once during Storm Season during 
October/November. 
Routine Storm Season Cleaning of 
Inserted, Priority A, and Priority B 

3. Catch Basins including all 1 $ J-(,~; 900 $;)..~~o,t>o 
activities described in Exhibit A. l 
Once during Storm Season during 
October/November. 

Page 1 of 2 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "B"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 398 of 778



Routine Storm Season Cleaning of 
Inserted, Priority A, and Priority B 

4. 
Catch Basins including all 1 
activities described in Exhibit A. 
Once during Storm Season during 
October/November. 
Post Storm Cleaning of all Inserted 

5. Catch Basins as described in Unit Rate 
ExhibitA. " 
Stenciling of the "No Dumping, 

6. 
This Drains to the Ocean" logo on 

Unit Rate 
each catch basin during the Dry 
Season. 

$ ;..r,oo 

$ LJ -~P 

$ },.~~ 

FORM PW-2 
(WEST AREA B-WESTERN) 

900 $ ,2 { .J.ci>< 'o c> 
I 

14,200 
$ ,l~ ~J.o o (7, 1 00 catch 

basins x 2 storms) 

3,900 $ 2 3 {/dt2., ()J 
I 

TOTAL PROPOSED ANNUAL PRICE FOR ITEMS 1 - 6 $ c:; 9 ti, 2 /Jp I /)l) 

.. , · Annual Price 
·Item Description Annual Unit Rate Estimated # of '{Unit Rate X 

Freguenc~ Units . Estimated.# of 
B. ,! , Units) 

. 

AS-NEEDED SERVICES 

7. Emergency Catch Basins Cleaning Unit Rate $ L~· t)z> 500 $ ~ a~~. t> J as described in Exhibit A. 

8. 
Monitor and Measuring of Trash as 

Hourly $ t;. ~ ;3> 120 i:..~t:J(t)/) described in Exhibit A. $ 
Waste Characterization of 

9. Collected Trash as described in . Hourly $ s, l)i) 120 
$ ~~.{)i:J 

Exhibit A. 

10. Digital Photographs as described Unit Rate $ /.~ 28,500 $ L./.2 7.(11, t> J in Exhibit A. 
I 

TOTAL PROPOSED ANNUAL PRICE FOR ITEMS 7 -10 $ ti-t; W,o'i) , 

TOTALPROPOSEDANNUALP~CE 
(TOTAL PROPOSED ANNUAL PRICE FOR ITEMS 1 - 6 + TOTAL PROPOSED ANNUAL PRICE FOR ITEMS 7 -10) $ ~o/'.~ /5'~, ~ t) 

LEGAL NAME OF BIDDER 

SIGNATURE OF PERSON AUT 

T11LE OF AUTHORIZED P ERSON 

DATE LICENSE TYPE 

?ft 

Page 2 of 2 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "B"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 399 of 778



Ron’s Maintenance, Inc. 
P.O. Box 4562, Downey, California, 90241 

Email: Ronsmaintenance@aol.com    
Cell: 213-359-3827 Office: 562-861-2430 

January 6, 2023 

Kenneth Jones, MPA 
City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil St 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

Hi Kenneth: 

Ron's Maintenance Inc. (RMI) authorizes the City of San Fernando to “piggyback” off RMI’s ON-CALL 
CATCH BASINS CLEANOUT SERVICES contract (No. 003632) with the Los Angeles Flood Control 
District.  RMI will perform cleaning and inspection services on the 307 Catch Basins within the City of San 
Fernando for the price of $28.00/per catch basin as shown in the Schedule of Prices (Form PW-2) within 
Contract No. 003632.  As required by NPDES permit, catch basins will be cleaned and inspected four (4) time 
per year; once during the dry season and three (3) times during the wet season. 

The above pricing will be honored for the duration of the contract and will include any contract extensions. If 
you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me directly at (213) 359-
3827 

Sincerely, 

Ron Norman, President 

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "C"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 400 of 778



From: Pamela Manning
To: Kenneth Jones
Cc: Mark Manning
Subject: Re: Piggybacking Question
Date: Monday, January 30, 2023 9:08:55 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image001.png
image002.png
image003.png
image004.png

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Kenneth it was good to speak with you on Friday. It is safe to say that a city can approach any
vendor that LA County has established contracts with and pursue securing the same terms with
that vendor. 
To be clear, I would need clarification between city attorney and county council on what our
mutual understanding of “piggy back” entails. 

As not to delay your process but to give you more resource to intel, I’m including our Internal
Services Dept. Which has the expertise in all matters purchasing. (No relation, just a smart
guy)
Best Pamela

Pamela Manning, Sr.Business Liaison
Community Services Group
LA County Public Works

On Jan 30, 2023, at 9:01 AM, Kenneth Jones <KJones@sfcity.org> wrote:


CAUTION: External Email. Proceed Responsibly.
Good Morning Ms. Manning-
 
I am following up on my email below.  Per our conversation last Friday, will you
please respond to my email confirming?  I need email as backup for my staff
report which I have to submit today.
 
Thank you
Kenneth
 

From: Kenneth Jones 
Sent: Friday, January 27, 2023 2:48 PM
To: PManning@dpw.lacounty.gov

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "C"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 401 of 778











Subject: Piggybacking Question
 
Hello Ms. Manning- 
 
It was a pleasure speaking with you today. 
 
Again, my question to you is:
 
Does a City need to obtain permission from LACDPW in order to piggyback off a
formally procured LACDPW contract for a specific service?  In my case, the City of
San Fernando wants to piggyback off Contract No. 003632
 
BY AND BETWEEN LOS ANGELES COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT
AND
RON'S MAINTENANCE, INC.
FOR ON-CALL CATCH BASINS CLEANOUT SERVICES FOR VARIOUS LOCATIONS
THROUGHOUT LOS ANGELES COUNTY (BRC0000287) WEST AREA B – WESTERN
 
Will you please provide guidance on this matter?  I plan on taking award of

contract for Ron’s Maintenance services to City Council on February 6th.  So need
to confirm if LACDPW allows piggybacking.
 
Thank You and have a great weekend.
 

Kenneth Jones, MPA
Management Analyst

117 Macneil St | San Fernando, CA 91340
Tel (818) 898-1240 | Fax (818) 361-6728
kjones@sfcity.org | www.sfcity.org
 
STAY CONNECTED SAN FERNANDO!

 
CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION. This e-mail message is intended only
for the personal and confidential use of the designated recipients. This message
may contain sensitive, protected and/or confidential information. If the reader of
this message is not an intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review,
use, dissemination, forwarding or copying of this message is strictly prohibited.
Please notify us immediately by reply e-mail if you are not an intended recipient

CONTRACT NO. 2136 
EXHIBIT "C"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 402 of 778

http://secure-web.cisco.com/1g2P0Ywqu-D1DG1aDwxCFckm7kSuua0GkMXeNfU8eFGuQwBtlZCkRnka3EWv7rMS-T3uSsYR_F8wzaMA-xtERjinK-KUFNVkOvWbj4krKApJ8Kx3llSHw1V_S4VORsD31bwRGuQObJwPh9huZSBd_n9FQNEqy4jLn25Q4JjLototNbw3f2ctPjEvLmd_LrghRVTDVk6UUCciU22v7yEvfjLDP30LXxK9ZXZjSvpBovQBWbhtqLCYomZ-QPOX9rjhfd-h-v60NvTtMyb3-ekU0glUDrtSa6vqi39VJ8XqmHXrV1h1k6V3ekmIiLs930Q5YoIJtzSy3zf7kAa6-UXylBffMUVo65R8zTrF5sKXfh8z00svIjC0B3pQ1l5IVCE-V/http%3A%2F%2Fwww.sfcity.org%2F
http://secure-web.cisco.com/1g2P0Ywqu-D1DG1aDwxCFckm7kSuua0GkMXeNfU8eFGuQwBtlZCkRnka3EWv7rMS-T3uSsYR_F8wzaMA-xtERjinK-KUFNVkOvWbj4krKApJ8Kx3llSHw1V_S4VORsD31bwRGuQObJwPh9huZSBd_n9FQNEqy4jLn25Q4JjLototNbw3f2ctPjEvLmd_LrghRVTDVk6UUCciU22v7yEvfjLDP30LXxK9ZXZjSvpBovQBWbhtqLCYomZ-QPOX9rjhfd-h-v60NvTtMyb3-ekU0glUDrtSa6vqi39VJ8XqmHXrV1h1k6V3ekmIiLs930Q5YoIJtzSy3zf7kAa6-UXylBffMUVo65R8zTrF5sKXfh8z00svIjC0B3pQ1l5IVCE-V/http%3A%2F%2Fwww.sfcity.org%2F
https://secure-web.cisco.com/1rCnZ4iN7z050J_l17zNgtX7Hml4GxJrFd_3tBI8oQXtzDJfx4SrddlTy4hzYJ3UzspegxjzQVVkW_bZ0Q7-rgpBh0ghEhbNir4sM1f8Yj0E4IX-nd7wnjjyZEwkm54M55sjlKnRydOp8id0-muGbxTHfwTUTbyUvKii9aqw2thQo3LdoUk9EXNTNzVgW00NgfTG5Ylayev3hmbs36YPI-7aSUcsEnixZrxM5sDUFcIhz8nq9AmmUS1TdDjpht8WwySnzfTYXLvdU6KTMeyQcG5-1kLaT2lNiYHwCiEqT55TFWuE9sTd11pNcfFp854qcJFmhEIYyOBPOP2FkT_8emNxO0dyiAdW78bskI5x1ZZqeIOq13yPSQ1Y-tDrk44A5/https%3A%2F%2Fci.san-fernando.ca.us%2Falert-san-fernando%2F
https://secure-web.cisco.com/1VR6mgh40j49IVoILjDW8mkLl28aHnubhxeTFVD0_oTVCq4r8DNTHGdF6Xi8pEiAm5i2Vq2PSlhGcraYlVL0ojuN-l_5OgBvmmisYXU6cKK6Y2d8u3j1oCAXW8hYhf_nas4H-Y1p_j6D0RgjObWTysowgxNMaHGajK1NjOI5HfyNxQieNtW8hIiRSmkhcOPoyrZ2U9v34WOUI0r9Wmao3FGW7FGyVumyMng3aiRc6TExG5yhrgheKC0JmdD38BFUmroFroiXY1EJbrPZ9Ol4smzD24LqDXKm738i9mL_1zhQc0LuXYprexvoacmAgmvJ3BTCAWPKedmZDmEIn351a_lWDj-oWpOwqtueI5NBSue6DBk07rMWxwPduePA1lEuZ/https%3A%2F%2Fci.san-fernando.ca.us%2Fe-notification%2F%23emailnotification
https://secure-web.cisco.com/1pYEsTaKiKtUTprwB18zcjq769afgnqJ_Cd9fvu6Tzw_-kbJCNw9qEjGngmlMPe57K4GvlokpvrSIoPLiBzGy8KcGytLyuwOyltE5tVcks3-HMqXIhtuutveWpld-sEdIYCBpRo9ZBYeCCVFjc70s3h8nz3ECLYOQyEABhTQxs27SmckL3_5AH2nrup1xEWxDYliNkjuQBXIgTrebt0-7IlOfyWWZk51IBI26jCSILK3e9ELrxHSwrMV0QAcMLx8hha2C2orgPVceDa07c6I1m3crYG_g8g19XKBJgReAzKOJMUOtnqTYycU7az25dwhQ5-SCYnt4fPUPIGxRWa7AFhxHh6AuTKo4GsXtJlF5Paf6boXbJ9KwPtoIY_UWY00z/https%3A%2F%2Fci.san-fernando.ca.us%2Fe-notification%2F%23socialmedia


Public Works is seeking Board approval to award seven separate on-call catch basins cleanout 
service contracts: three service contracts to Clean Environmental, Inc.; two service contracts to J & 
G Maintenance Service, Inc.; and two service contracts to Ron’s Maintenance, Inc., for various 
locations throughout Los Angeles County.

SUBJECT

October 04, 2022

The Honorable Board of Supervisors
County of Los Angeles
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration
500 West Temple Street 
Los Angeles, California 90012

Dear Supervisors:

WATER RESOURCES CORE SERVICE AREA
AWARD OF SERVICE CONTRACTS FOR 

ON-CALL CATCH BASINS CLEANOUT SERVICES 
FOR VARIOUS LOCATIONS THROUGHOUT LOS ANGELES COUNTY 

(ALL SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICTS)
(3 VOTES)

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE BOARD ACTING AS THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE LOS 
ANGELES COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT:

1. Find that the contract work is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California
Environmental Quality Act for the reasons stated in this Board letter and in the record of the
proposed activities maintained by Public Works.

2. Award seven service contracts for on-call catch basins cleanout services for an initial term of one
year each with three one-year renewal options and a month to month extension up to 6 months (for a 
maximum potential contract term of 54 months) as follows: three contracts to Clean Environmental,
Inc., a Local Small Business Enterprise, for East Area A – Western for an annual contract sum of
$1,134,390,  for East Area B – Eastern for an annual contract sum of $685,390,  and for West Area
A – Eastern for an annual contract sum of $836,440; two contracts to J & G Maintenance Service,

39     October 4, 2022

ATTACHMENT "C"

"To E:nrfch .Lives Through , ·no Service~ 

~ WUTI-I FR, NT AVEN'U E 
A I-IA RA, CA IFORN'IA 91002,-1331 

Telep e ~ 4M-5100 

MARK PESTP.JELLA, Director ttp:11<4'1,•. -county.go~ 
ADD-RISS All ~'DENCE iO 

P.O. E.OX l 
.UH..\'! !\,, C.!U.lFOllhl..'11. I 2-01-1 

IN RE1PL Y PLEASE 
REPER TO Fl ,E 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 403 of 778

DMcCullough
Adopt w/Celia



Inc., a Local Small Business Enterprise, for South Area A – Western for an annual contract sum of 
$920,090, and for South Area B – Central for an annual contract sum of $970,700; and two contracts 
to Ron's Maintenance, Inc., a Local Small Business Enterprise, for South Area C – Eastern for an 
annual contract sum of $893,950, and West Area B – Western for an annual contract sum of 
$804,150.

3. Delegate authority to the Chief Engineer of Los Angeles County Flood Control District or his 
designee to execute the contracts, administer the contracts, exercise any or all of the options to 
extend any or all of the contracts if the Chief Engineer or his designee determines that there is 
continued demand for the services and that Clean Environmental, Inc.; J & G Maintenance Services, 
Inc.; and Ron's Maintenance, Inc., satisfactorily performed the contract work during the prior contract 
period(s), approve and execute amendments to the contracts to incorporate necessary changes 
within the scope of work, and suspend work if the Chief Engineer or his designee determines that 
doing so would be in the best interest of the Los Angeles County Flood Control District.

4. Delegate authority to the Chief Engineer of Los Angeles County Flood Control District or his 
designee to increase the annual contract sums by up to an additional 10 percent for unforeseen 
additional work within the scope of the contract if required, and to adjust the annual contract sum for 
each option year over the term of the contract to allow for an annual cost-of-living adjustment in 
accordance with County policy and the terms of the contract.

PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION

Approval of the recommended actions will find that the contract work is categorically exempt from the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and allow Public Works to enter into seven service 
contracts to remove trash and debris from the catch basins and inserts and to perform emergency 
catch basin cleaning at various locations throughout Los Angeles County.  The contractors' services 
under these contracts will benefit the Flood Control District (District), the unincorporated County 
areas, and the cities that have requested these services.  Cleaning service work is anticipated to be 
performed on approximately 92,300 catch basins. 

The District will offer these contract services to cities that have executed agreements to install inserts 
in District catch basins.  The District may also enter into agreements with cities to clean city-owned 
catch basins.  Board approval of the recommended contract awards and the subsequent execution 
of the contracts will ensure the timely completion of these cleaning services.

Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals
These recommendations support the County Strategic Plan: Strategy II.1, Drive Economic and 
Workforce Development in the County and Objective II.1.2, Support Small Businesses and Social 
Enterprises; and Strategy III.3, Pursue Operational Effectiveness, Fiscal Responsibility, and 
Accountability, and Objective III.3.2, Manage and Maximize County Assets, by supporting ongoing 
efforts to maintain public infrastructure assets..

The Honorable Board of Supervisors
10/4/2022
Page 2

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 404 of 778



FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING

Funding for the first year of these services is included in the District’s Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget 
(B07).  Funds to finance the contracts' optional years and 10 percent additional funding for 
contingencies will be requested through the annual budget process.

The County will reimburse the District for cleaning costs incurred under the terms of all seven 
contracts for 6,857 catch basin inserts installed in the unincorporated County areas using the funds 
available in the Public Works General Fund (A01 – Services and Supplies) Fiscal Year 2022-23 
Budget under the Unincorporated Area Stormwater Budget.  The total estimated cost to the County 
for the initial terms of these contracts, including contingency, is $800,000.  Funding for subsequent 
contract years, including the 10 percent additional funding for contingencies, will be requested 
through the annual budget process for both the Public Works General Fund and the District, which is 
subject to Board approval.

The contract for East Area A – Western is at an annual sum of $1,134,390, which includes $227,000 
for disposal costs; the contract for East Area B – Eastern is at an annual sum of $685,390, which 
includes $137,000 for disposal costs; the contract for South Area A – Western is at an annual sum of 
$920,090, which includes $184,000 for disposal costs; the contract for South Area B – Central is at 
an annual sum of $970,700, which includes $194,000 for disposal costs; the contract for South Area 
C – Eastern is at an annual sum of $893,950, which includes $179,000 for disposal costs; the 
contract for West Area A – Eastern is at an annual sum of $836,440 which includes $167,000 for 
disposal costs; and the contract for West Area B – Western is at an annual sum of $804,150 which 
includes $161,000 for disposal costs.  In addition to these annual amounts, the maximum potential 
contract sum for each contract includes a 10 percent contingency for unforeseen additional work 
within the scope of contracts and cost-of-living adjustments in accordance with these contracts.  The 
maximum amounts for each contract, including the 10 percent contingency for unforeseen additional 
work and the cost of living adjustment, for the initial term plus all potential optional extension periods, 
are as follows:  $5,615,231 for East Area A – Western, $3,392,681 for East Area B – Eastern,  
$4,554,446 for South Area A – Western, $4,804,965 for South Area B – Central, $4,425,053 for 
South Area C – Eastern, $4,140,378 for West Area A – Eastern, and $3,980,543 for West Area B – 
Western.  Any unused authorized amounts up to 25 percent from the previous contract terms will roll 
over into subsequent renewal terms.  Total annual expenditures for these services; however, will not 
exceed the maximum potential contract sum for each contract approved by the Board.  The contract 
amounts based on unit prices quoted by the contractors and our estimated annual utilization of the 
contractors' services.

Participating cities may also enter into agreements with the District to provide catch basins cleanout 
services within the cities.  Cities will be required to reimburse the District according to the rates 
established by the contracts with Clean Environmental, Inc.; J & G Maintenance Services, Inc.; and 
Ron's Maintenance, Inc.

FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

The recommended contractors are Clean Environmental, Inc., located in Los Angeles, California; J & 
G Maintenance Services, Inc., located in Downey, California; and Ron's Maintenance, Inc., located in 
Downey, California.  All three contractors are certified by the County of Los Angeles as Local Small 

The Honorable Board of Supervisors
10/4/2022
Page 3

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 405 of 778



Business Enterprises (LSBEs).  These contracts will be for a term of 1 year commencing upon the 
Board's approval and execution by both parties, whichever occurs last, with three 1 year renewal 
options and a month to month extension up to 6 months for a maximum potential contract term of 54 
months.

A standard service contract, in the form previously approved by County Counsel, will be used that 
contains terms and conditions in compliance with the Board's ordinances, policies, and programs.  
The recommended contracts were solicited on an open-competitive basis and are in accordance with 
applicable Federal, State, and County requirements.  Enclosure A reflects the proposers' utilization 
participation and Community Business Enterprise program information.  Data regarding the 
proposers' minority participation is on file with Public Works.  The contractors were selected upon 
final analysis and consideration without regard to race, creed, gender, or color.

Public Works has evaluated and determined that the Living Wage Program (County Code, Chapter 
2.201) does not apply to these recommended contracts, which are for services required on an on-
call basis; hence, these contracts are not a Proposition A contract (Los Angeles County Code, 
Chapter 2.121).

These contracts include a cost-of-living adjustment provision, which is in accordance with Board 
Policy 5.070, Multi-Year Services Contract Cost of Living Adjustments. 

ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION

These services are exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) because they are 
within a class of projects that has been determined not to have the potential to cause a significant 
effect on the environment, which meets the criteria set forth in Section 15301(c) of the State CEQA 
Guidelines and Class 1, subsection (e) of the County’s Environmental Document Reporting 
Procedures and Guidelines, Appendix G. 

Since the contract work involves cleanout of existing catch basins, it is anticipated that there would 
be no cumulative impacts, unusual circumstances, damage to scenic highways, listing on hazardous 
waste sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5, or indications that the activity 
may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource that would make 
the exemption inapplicable based on the records of the activity.

Upon the Board's approval of the recommended actions, Public Works will file a Notice of Exemption 
with the County Clerk in accordance with Section 21152 of the California Public Resources Code 
and will post the notice to its website pursuant to Section 21092.2.

CONTRACTING PROCESS

On April 13, 2022, a notice of the Invitation for Bids (IFB) was placed on the County's "Doing 
Business with the County" website (Enclosure B), "Doing Business with Public Works" website, 
Twitter.  In addition, advertisements were placed in the Los Angeles Daily Journal, Los Angeles 
Sentinel, La Opinión, The Daily Breeze, The Signal (Santa Clarita), World Journal, Watts Times, 
Malibu Times, Press Telegram, and Pasadena Star News.  Also, Public Works informed 1,658 
LSBEs; 189 Social Enterprises; 192 Disabled Veteran Business Enterprises; 889 Community 
Business Enterprises; and 59 independent contractors, various business development centers, and 
municipalities about this business opportunity.

The Honorable Board of Supervisors
10/4/2022
Page 4

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 406 of 778



On May 18, 2022, 3 bids were received for East Area A – Western, 4 bids were received for East 
Area B – Eastern, 3 bids were received for South Area A – Western, 3 bids were received for South 
Area B – Central, 4 bids were received for South Area C – Eastern, 2 bids were received for West 
Area A – Eastern, and 3 bids were received for West Area B - Western.  Bids were first reviewed to 
ensure they met the minimum mandatory requirements in the IFB.  All bids met the minimum 
mandatory requirements as outlined in the IFB.  It is recommended that these contracts be awarded 
to the apparent responsible contractors with the lowest responsive bids:  Clean Environmental, Inc., 
for East Area A – Western, East Area B – Eastern and West Area A – Eastern; J & G Maintenance 
Services, Inc., for South Area A – Western, and South Area B – Central; and Ron's Maintenance, 
Inc., for South Area C – Eastern and West Area B – Western.

IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES (OR PROJECTS)

These services will have a positive impact by cleaning catch basins and preventing trash and debris 
from entering downstream receiving waters via the storm drain system.

CONCLUSION

Please return one adopted copy of this Board letter to Public Works, Stormwater Maintenance 
Division.

MARK PESTRELLA, PE

Director

Enclosures

c: Chief Executive Office (Chia-Ann Yen)
 County Counsel (Mark Yanai)
 Executive Office

Respectfully submitted,

MP:JG:sl

The Honorable Board of Supervisors
10/4/2022
Page 5

? 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 407 of 778



ENCLOSURE A
Agenda Date: 10-4-2022

1 Clean Environmental, Inc.  N/A N/A N/A

2 J & G Maintenance Services, Inc.  N/A N/A N/A

3 Ron's Maintenance, Inc.  N/A N/A N/A

4 None N/A N/A N/A N/A

5 None N/A N/A N/A N/A

6 United Storm Water, Inc. N/A  N/A N/A

7 None N/A N/A N/A N/A

LGBTQQ

LGBTQQ

LGBTQQ

LGBTQQ

MinoritySmall-Sized Business 
Category Proposer Name

Local SBE

Medium-Sized Business 
Category Proposer Name

Local SBE SBE Minority

PROPOSERS' UTILIZATION PARTICIPATION AND COMMUNITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM INFORMATION FOR      
ON-CALL CATCH BASINS CLEANOUT SERVICES FOR VARIOUS LOCATIONS THROUGHOUT LOS ANGELES COUNTY

Large-Sized Business 
Category Proposer Name

SBE

Medium-Sized Business 
Category Proposer Name

*Information provided by proposers in response to the Request for Proposals.  On final analysis and consideration of award, vendors were selected without regard to race, creed, gender, or color. 

NON-SELECTED FIRMS

SELECTED FIRMS

Large-Sized  Business 
Category Proposer Name

Local SBE SBE Minority

Small-Sized Business 
Category Proposer Name

Local SBE SBE Minority

P:\fldpub\HQ\Board Letters\2022\Catch Basin Cleanout Sevrvices Contract\CB Cleanout Services Enclosures\CB Cleanout Services Enclosure A

Page 1 of 2

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 408 of 778



ENCLOSURE A
Agenda Date: 10-4-2022

PROPOSERS' UTILIZATION PARTICIPATION AND COMMUNITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM INFORMATION FOR      
ON-CALL CATCH BASINS CLEANOUT SERVICES FOR VARIOUS LOCATIONS THROUGHOUT LOS ANGELES COUNTY

Clean Environmental, Inc. J & G Maintenance Services, 
Inc. Ron's Maintenance, Inc. United Storm Water, Inc.

Corporation Corporation Corporation Corporation

Black/African American 0 0 1/100% 0
Hispanic/Latino 1/100% 2/100% 0 2/100%
Asian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0
American Indian 0 0 0 0
Filipino 0 0 0 0
White 0 0 0 0
Female (included above) 0 0 0 2

Black/African American 0 0 0 0
Hispanic/Latino 0 2 2 3
Asian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0
American Indian 0 0 0 0
Filipino 0 0 0 0
White 1 0 0 0
Female (included above) 0 1 0 0
Black/African American 1 0 3 0
Hispanic/Latino 7 17 20 27
Asian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0
American Indian 0 0 0 0
Filipino 0 0 0 0
White 0 0 0 0
Female (included above) 1 3 2 4

10 21 26 32

CBE N N N N
LSBE Y Y Y N

N/A N/A N/A City of Los Angeles

O
W

N
ER

S/
PA

R
TN

ER
S

CULTURAL/ETHNIC COMPOSITION

BUSINESS STRUCTURE

FIRM INFORMATION*

Information provided by proposers in response to the Request for Proposal.  On final analysis and consideration of award, vendors were selected without regard to race, 
creed, gender, or color. 

COUNTY CERTIFICATION

OTHER CERTIFYING AGENCY

NUMBER

Total No. of Employees

ST
A

FF
M

A
N

A
G

ER

NUMBER/% OF OWNERSHIP

P:\fldpub\HQ\Board Letters\2022\Catch Basin Cleanout Sevrvices Contract\CB Cleanout Services Enclosures\CB Cleanout Services Enclosure A

Page 2 of 2

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 409 of 778



� e � � «) (/LACoBids/)

la county.gov 

11 Home (/LACoBids/) / c;I Admin (/LACoBids/Admin) / � Open Solicitations (/LACoBids/Admin/Bidlist) / 55 Detail 

0 Solicitation Detail 

Soliciation 
Number: 

BRC0000287 

Title: On-Call Catch Basins Cleanout Services for various locations throughout Los Angeles County (BRC0000287) 

Department: Public Works 

Bid Type: Service Bid Amount: 

Commodity: BODIES & EQUIPMENT-AUTOMOTIVE- SEWER/CATCH BASIN CLEANING 

$4,338,000.00 

Description: PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Public Works invites bid submissions for the On-Call Catch Basins Cleanout Services for various loca ... 

Open Day: 

Contact 
Name: 

4/18/2022 

Jairo Flores 

Contact JFlores@dpw.lacounty.gov 
Email: 

Last 4/18/2022 11:55:17 AM 
Changed On: 

Close Date: 

Contact Phone: 

5/4/2022 5:30:00 PM 

(626) 458-4069

More 

Attachment 
File(0): 

I O Click here to download attachment files. 

Update (!LACoBids/Admin/UpdateBid/NTM1MjY3NDE4MjI5) 

ISD 
Powered by ISD I Contact Us 

Agenda Date: 10/4/2022

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 410 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 411 of 778



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 412 of 778



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1222                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Matt Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 
  Ruby Cornejo, Management Intern 
   
Date:  February 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement with EdgeSoft 

Incorporated  

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Approve a Professional Service Agreement with Edgesoft Incorporated (Edgesoft) 

(Attachment “A” – Contract No. 2137) for Public Works, Online Permit Counter 
Implementation in an amount not-to-exceed $27,500;  

 
b. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Agreement and make any non-substantive 

changes. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
1. On March 1, 2021, City Council approved Professional Services Agreement No. 1979 

(Attachment “B”) with Edgesoft for the installation of an Online Permit Counter and eGov 
Land Management Software.  

 
2. On October 7, 2022, Public Works Staff met with Edgesoft to discuss implementing online 

permitting capabilities and payment for residents and businesses.  
 

3. On November 7, 2022, Edgesoft submitted a proposal for $27,500 (Exhibit “A” to Attachment 
“A”) for the implementation of a Public Works – Online Permit Counter to allow the public 
online access to Public Works related services.   

 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 413 of 778



Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement with EdgeSoft Incorporated 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
In 2007, Edgesoft launched the City’s Enterprise Land Management System (eLMST) Software.  
This software serves as the backbone to the City’s AIMS enterprise software, which supports both 
the Public Works (PW) and Community Development (CD) departments.  The software provides 
the City with a centralized database for tracking and managing permits, in addition to, receiving 
work order and service request. 
 
In 2020, the Community Development Department implemented Edgesoft’s Online Permit 
Counter, which established a customer-facing online citizen access portal.  The portal allowed 
customers to request building permits, submit planning applications, and pay for services via the 
City’s website substantially reducing in-person requests. 
 
The current version of the customer-facing online citizen access portal does not support 
customers requesting services from PW.  With PW playing a critical role in the process of 
reviewing permits and planning applications that originate in CD, and recognizing the importance 
of City Council’s Strategic Goal No. 1 for Fiscal Year-2027, which stands to increase the City’s use 
of technology to work more efficiently, staff felt it would enhance customer service and access 
to expand online permitting services to the Public Works Department. 
 
EdgeSoft and staff met on multiple occasions to develop a clear picture on why online access to 
PW services were needed and what services would be provided.  It was determined that Edgesoft 
would expand the current software by configuring the established Citizen Access Portal to enable 
customers to request and pay for PW specific services online.  Additionally, PW’s online portal 
will have a bilingual option for the Spanish-speaking members of our community.  
 
Benefits of PW’s Online Citizen Access Portal. 
• Reduces foot traffic at City Hall by giving online feature for Public works permits; 
• Allows customers to submit applications for different types of permits; 
• Provides customers status updates on submitted applications; 
• Allows Customers to make service requests;  
• Improves civic engagement; and  
• Reduces the work load for the staff so they can focus on key initiatives.  
 
Sole Source Purchases.  
Per Section 2-801(b) of the City’s Municipal code, “unique commodities or services that can be 
obtained from only one vendor…or which have specific compatibility components with existing 
city products are exempt from the competitive bidding requirements and are deemed sole source 
purchases.” In the case of the Edgesoft software purchase, the ability of multiple departments 
having access to the same online permitting database is a unique service that requires 
compatibility for efficient and collaborative processing of development projects in the City. 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 414 of 778



Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement with EdgeSoft Incorporated 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
Funds to cover the $27,500 for implementing the PW specific Online Citizen Access Portal and 
one year of software maintenance service are appropriated in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 
approved budget.  After the first year, annual maintenance will continue at $250 per month.   
 
The following is the breakdown of funding Sources: 
 

Engineering and Admin 001-310-0000-4260 $ 6,000 
Street Maintenance 001-311-0000-4260 $ 3,000 
Water Administration 070-381-0000-4260 $ 3,000 
Water Production 070-384-0000-4260 $ 5,500 
Sewer Maintenance 072-360-0000-4260 $ 7,000 
Sewer Maintenance 072-360-0000-4260 $ 3,000 
 TOTAL $ 27,500 

     
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that City Council approve Professional Services Agreement No. 2137 with 
EdgeSoft Incorporated for Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation and authorize 
the City Manager to execute the Amendments.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Contract No. 2137, including: 

Exhibit A: EdgeSoft Incorporated Proposal 
B. Contract No. 1979 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 415 of 778



ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2137 

   
 

2023 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Engagement: Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation  
(Parties: EdgeSoft Incorporated and City of San Fernando) 

     
 
THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (hereinafter, “Agreement”) is made and entered into 
this 6th day of February 2023 (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”) by and between the CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO, a municipal corporation (hereinafter, “CITY”) and EDGESOFT INCORPORATED, 
(hereinafter, “CONSULTANT”).  For the purposes of this Agreement, CITY and CONSULTANT may 
be referred to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.”  The capitalized term “Party” may 
refer to CITY or CONSULTANT interchangeably, as appropriate.  
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, CITY requires professional consulting services for Public Works Online Permit 
Counter Implementation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, CITY staff has determined that CONSULTANT possesses the experience, skills 
and training necessary to competently provide such services to CITY; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the execution of this Agreement was approved by the San Fernando City 
Council at its Regular Meeting of February 6, 2023 under Agenda Item No. ___. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
herein contained, CITY and CONSULTANT agree as follows:  
 

I. 
ENGAGEMENT TERMS 

 
1.1 SCOPE OF WORK:    
 

A. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to 
provide the services and tasks described in that certain proposal of CONSULTANT 
entitled “SF PUBLIC WORKS PROPOSAL” dated OCTOBER 26, 2022 (hereinafter, 
the “CONSULTANT Proposal”) which is attached and incorporated hereto as 
Exhibit “A”. CONSULTANT further agrees to furnish to CITY all labor, materials, 
tools, supplies, equipment, services, tasks and incidental and customary work 
necessary to competently perform and timely complete the services and tasks set 
forth in the Scope of Work.  For the purposes of this Agreement the 
aforementioned services and tasks set forth in the Scope of Work shall hereinafter 
be referred to generally by the capitalized term “Work.” 
 

  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 416 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2137 
Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation 
Page 2 of 18 
 
 
1.2 PROSECUTION OF WORK:  

 
A. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each and every provision contained 

herein.  The Work shall be commenced within three (3) calendar days of CITY’s 
issuance of a Notice to Proceed.  CONSULTANT shall complete the various tasks 
identified in the Scope of Work within the timeframes set forth in the Scope of 
Work and shall complete all of the Work by or before APRIL 14, 2023 (the 
“Completion Date”); 

 
B. CONSULTANT shall cooperate with CITY and in no manner interfere with the work 

of CITY, its employees or other consultants, contractors or agents;   
 

C. CONSULTANT shall not claim or be entitled to receive any compensation or 
damage because of the failure of CONSULTANT, or its subconsultants, to have 
related services or tasks completed in a timely manner; 

 
D. CONSULTANT shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among 

CONSULTANT’s employees; and 
 

E. CONSULTANT, at its sole expense, shall pay all sales, consumer, use or other 
similar taxes required by law.  

 
1.3 COMPENSATION:   CONSULTANT shall perform the Work in accordance with “SCHEDULE 

OF COMPENSATION” (hereinafter, the “COMPENSATION RATE”).  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, CONSULTANT’s total compensation for the performance of all Work 
contemplated under this Agreement, will not exceed the total budgeted aggregate sum 
of TWENTY-SEVEN THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED ($27,500) (hereinafter, the “Not-to-
Exceed Sum”) during the prosecution of this Agreement, unless such added expenditure 
is first approved by the City Council.  In the event CONSULTANT’s charges are projected 
to exceed the Not-to-Exceed Sum prior to the expiration of this Agreement, CITY may 
suspend CONSULTANT’s performance pending CITY approval of any anticipated 
expenditures in excess of the Not-to-Exceed Sum or any other CITY approved amendment 
to the compensation terms of this Agreement.  

 
1.4 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION:   Following the conclusion of the work requested in 

Section 1.1, CONSULTANT shall submit to CITY an itemized invoice indicating the services 
performed and tasks completed during the recently concluded calendar month, including 
services and tasks performed and the reimbursable out-of-pocket expenses incurred.  If 
the amount of CONSULTANT’s compensation is a function of hours worked by 
CONSULTANT’s personnel, the invoice should indicate the number of hours worked, the 
persons responsible for performing the Work, the rate of compensation at which such 
services and tasks were performed, the subtotal for each task and service performed and 
a grand total for all services performed.  Within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of each 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 417 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2137 
Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation 
Page 3 of 18 
 
 

invoice, CITY will notify CONSULTANT in writing of any disputed amounts included in the 
invoice.  Within forty-five (45) calendar days of receipt of each invoice, CITY will pay all 
undisputed amounts included on the invoice.  CITY will not withhold applicable taxes or 
other authorized deductions from payments made to CONSULTANT. 

 
1.5 ACCOUNTING RECORDS:   CONSULTANT will maintain complete and accurate records 

with respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a period of three (3) years 
after the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  CITY will have the right to access 
and examine such records, without charge, during normal business hours.  CITY will 
further have the right to audit such records, to make transcripts therefrom and to inspect 
all program data, documents, proceedings, and activities.  

 
1.6 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:   In the event CONSULTANT ceases to perform the 

Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the undertaking 
contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior to completion of 
any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Work, CONSULTANT will deliver to CITY 
immediately and without delay, all materials, records and other work product prepared 
or obtained by CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  Furthermore, 
CONSULTANT will only be compensated for the reasonable value of the services, tasks 
and other Work performed up to the time of cessation or abandonment, less a deduction 
for any damages, costs or additional expenses which CITY may incur as a result of 
CONSULTANT’s cessation or abandonment. 

 
II. 

PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 
 
2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVE:   The CITY hereby designates KENNETH JONES (hereinafter, the 

“City Representative”) to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement.  
The City Representative or their designee will act on behalf of the CITY for all purposes 
under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT will not accept directions or orders from any person 
other than the CITY Representative or their designee. 

 
2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE:   CONSULTANT hereby designates GAURAV GARG, to act 

as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (hereinafter, “Consultant 
Representative”).  Consultant Representative will have full authority to represent and act 
on behalf of the CONSULTANT for all purposes under this Agreement.  Consultant 
Representative or their designee will supervise and direct the performance of the Work, 
using their best skill and attention, and will be responsible for all means, methods, 
techniques, sequences and procedures and for the satisfactory coordination of all 
portions of the Work under this Agreement.  Notice to the Consultant Representative will 
constitute notice to CONSULTANT.  

 
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 418 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2137 
Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation 
Page 4 of 18 
 
 
2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:   CONSULTANT 

agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the Work and this Agreement 
and will be available to CITY staff and the CITY Representative at all reasonable times.  All 
work prepared by CONSULTANT will be subject to inspection and approval by CITY 
Representative or their designees. 

 
2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES: 

 
CONSULTANT represents, acknowledges and agrees to the following: 

 
A. CONSULTANT will perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the highest 

standards of CONSULTANT’s profession; 
 

B. CONSULTANT shall at all times employ such force, plant, materials, and tools as 
will be sufficient in the opinion of the CITY to perform the Services within the time 
limits established, and as provided herein. It is understood and agreed that said 
tools, equipment, apparatus, facilities, labor, and material shall be furnished and 
said Services performed and completed as required by the Agreement, and 
subject to the approval of the CITY’s authorized representative; 

 
C. CONSULTANT will perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the 

CITY; 
 

D. CONSULTANT will comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and 
regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code 
Section 1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et 
seq.).  CONSULTANT shall be liable for all violations of such laws and regulations 
in connection with Services.  If CONSULTANT performs any work knowing it to be 
contrary to such laws, rules and regulations, CONSULTANT shall be solely 
responsible for all costs arising therefrom; 

 
E. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be performed 

under this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of performance;  
 

F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill, knowledge, 
training and experience to perform those services and tasks assigned to them by 
CONSULTANT; and 

 
G. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including, but not limited to, 

subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, certificates, 
qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to 
perform the tasks and services contemplated under this Agreement and all such 
licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and approvals will be maintained 
throughout the term of this Agreement and made available to CITY for copying 
and inspection. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 419 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2137 
Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation 
Page 5 of 18 
 
 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT will perform, at CONSULTANT’s 
own cost and expense and without any reimbursement from CITY, any services necessary 
to correct any errors or omissions caused by CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with the 
standard of care set forth under this Section or by any like failure on the part of 
CONSULTANT’s employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants.  
Such effort by CONSULTANT to correct any errors or omissions will be commenced 
immediately upon their discovery by either Party and will be completed within seven (7) 
calendar days from the date of discovery or such other extended period of time 
authorized by the CITY Representative in writing and in her sole and absolute discretion. 
The Parties acknowledge and agree that CITY’s acceptance of any work performed by 
CONSULTANT or on CONSULTANT’s behalf will not constitute a release of any deficiency 
or delay in performance.  The Parties further acknowledge, understand and agree that 
CITY has relied upon the foregoing representations of CONSULTANT, including but not 
limited to the representation that CONSULTANT possesses the skills, training, knowledge 
and experience necessary to perform the Work skillfully, competently and to the highest 
standards of CONSULTANT’s profession. 

 
2.5 ASSIGNMENT:   The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are 

material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY has an 
interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform the 
services and tasks to be undertaken by CONSULTANT or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement.  In recognition of this interest, CONSULTANT agrees that 
it will not assign or transfer, either directly or indirectly or by operation of law, this 
Agreement or the performance of any of CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the CITY.  In the absence of CITY’s prior 
written consent, any attempted assignment or transfer will be ineffective, null and void 
and will constitute a material breach of this Agreement.  

 
2.6 SUBSTITUTION OF KEY PERSONNEL:   CONSULTANT has represented to CITY that certain 

key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  Should 
one or more of such personnel become unavailable, CONSULTANT may substitute other 
personnel of at least equal competence upon written approval of CITY.  In the event that 
CITY and CONSULTANT cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, CITY shall be 
entitled to terminate this Agreement for cause.  As discussed below, any personnel who 
fail or refuse to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the CITY, or who are 
determined by the CITY to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or 
timely completion of the Project or a threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be 
promptly removed from the Project by the CONSULTANT at the request of the CITY.  The 
key personnel for performance of this Agreement are as follows: SHAN SUNDAR. 

 
2.7 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:   The Work 

will be performed by CONSULTANT or under CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  
CONSULTANT will determine the means, methods and details of performing the Work 
subject to the requirements of this Agreement.  CITY retains CONSULTANT on an 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 420 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2137 
Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation 
Page 6 of 18 
 
 

independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right 
to perform similar or different services for other principals during the term of this 
Agreement, provided such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s 
competent and timely performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement and 
provided the performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized disclosure 
of CITY’s confidential or proprietary information. Any additional personnel performing the 
Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not employees of CITY and will 
at all times be under CONSULTANT’s exclusive direction and control.  CONSULTANT will 
pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due to such personnel and will assume 
responsibility for all benefits, payroll taxes, Social Security and Medicare payments and 
the like.  CONSULTANT will be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 
additional personnel, including, but not limited to: Social Security taxes, income tax 
withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, workers’ compensation 
insurance and the like. 

 
2.8 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:   If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, 

agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by the CITY 
Representative to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely 
performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat to persons or property, or if 
any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or 
subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work in a manner acceptable to the CITY, 
such officer, employee, agent, contractor, subcontractor or subconsultant will be 
promptly removed by CONSULTANT and will not be reassigned to perform any of the 
Work.   

 
2.9 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:   CONSULTANT will keep itself informed of and in compliance 

with all applicable federal, state or local laws to the extent such laws control or otherwise 
govern the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT’s compliance with applicable laws 
will include, without limitation, compliance with all applicable Cal/OSHA requirements 
and applicable regulations of the Federal Department of Housing and Urbanization.  
 

2.10 NON-DISCRIMINATION:   CONSULTANT represents that it is an equal opportunity 
employer and it shall not discriminate against any subconsultant, employee or applicant 
for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, sex 
or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related 
to initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment 
advertising, layoff or  termination.  

 
2.11 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:   The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree 

that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, and will at 
all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, officers, 
employees, departments or subdivisions of CITY.  CONSULTANT will be solely responsible 
for the negligent acts and/or omissions of its employees, agents, contractors, 
subcontractors and subconsultants.  CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 421 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2137 
Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation 
Page 7 of 18 
 
 

by CONSULTANT will have no authority, express or implied, to bind CITY in any manner, 
nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of, or against, CITY, 
whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred to 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred by CITY in writing. 

 
III. 

INSURANCE 
 

3.1 DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE:   Prior to the beginning of and 
throughout the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain policies of 
insurance that meet the requirements and specifications set forth under this Article. 
CONSULTANT will procure and maintain the following insurance coverage, at its own 
expense: 

 
A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT will procure and maintain 

Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) as broad as Insurance 
Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG 0001) 
or its equivalent.  Such CGL Coverage will have minimum limits of no less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000.00) in the general aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury, 
property damage, operations, products and completed operations, and 
contractual liability. 

 
B. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT will procure and maintain 

Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office Form Number 
CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).  Such Automobile 
Liability Insurance shall have minimum limits of no less than Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury and property damage.  
 

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance:  A policy of 
workers’ compensation insurance in such amount as will fully comply with the 
laws of the State of California and which will indemnify, insure and provide legal 
defense for both CONSULTANT and CITY against any loss, claim or damage arising 
from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any worker employed by 
or any persons retained by CONSULTANT in the course of carrying out the Work 
contemplated in this Agreement.     

 
D. Errors & Omissions Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and for a period 

of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain Errors and 
Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to CONSULTANT’s profession.  Such 
coverage will have minimum limits of no less than Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000.00) per claim.   

   
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 422 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2137 
Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation 
Page 8 of 18 
 
 
3.2 ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS:   The CGL Coverage and the Automobile Liability 

Insurance will contain an endorsement naming the CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insureds.  

 
3.3 REQUIRED CARRIER RATING:   All varieties of insurance required under this Agreement 

will be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and authorized to issue 
policies directly to California insureds.  Except as otherwise provided elsewhere under 
this Article, all required insurance will be procured from insurers who, according to the 
latest edition of the Best’s Insurance Guide, have an A.M. Best’s rating of no less than 
A:VII.  CITY may also accept policies procured by insurance carriers with a Standard & 
Poor’s rating of no less than BBB according to the latest published edition the Standard & 
Poor’s rating guide.  As to Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability 
Insurance, the CITY Representative is authorized to authorize lower ratings than those set 
forth in this Section.   

 
3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT’S INSURANCE:   All policies of insurance provided by 

CONSULTANT will be primary to any coverage available to CITY or CITY’s elected or 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by CITY or CITY’s elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, 
agents or volunteers will be in excess of CONSULTANT’s insurance and will not contribute 
with it.  

 
3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:   All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement 

will not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, 
subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of subrogation prior to a loss.  
CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of subrogation against CITY, its officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers.  

 
3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:   CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands and agrees, 

that CITY’s ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the insurance required 
under this Article is critical to safeguarding CITY’s financial well-being and, indirectly, the 
collective well-being of the residents of the CITY.  Accordingly, CONSULTANT warrants, 
represents and agrees that it will furnish CITY with original certificates of insurance and 
endorsements evidencing the coverage required under this Article on forms satisfactory 
to CITY in its sole and absolute discretion.  The certificates of insurance and endorsements 
for each insurance policy will be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind 
coverage on its behalf, and will be on forms provided by the CITY if requested.  All 
certificates of insurance and endorsements will be received and approved by CITY as a 
condition precedent to CONSULTANT’s commencement of any Work.  Upon CITY’s written 
request, CONSULTANT will also provide CITY with certified copies of all required insurance 
policies and endorsements.  

  
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 423 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2137 
Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation 
Page 9 of 18 
 
 
3.7 FAILURE TO MAINTAIN COVERAGE:   In the event any policy of insurance required under 

this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not replaced 
immediately so as to avoid a lapse in the required coverage, CITY has the right but not the 
duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid by CITY will be 
promptly reimbursed by CONSULTANT or CITY will withhold amounts sufficient to pay 
premium from CONSULTANT payments. In the alternative, CITY may cancel this 
Agreement effective upon notice. 
 

3.8 SPECIAL RISKS OR CIRCUMSTANCES:   CITY reserves the right to modify these 
requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, 
coverage, or other special circumstances. 
 

IV. 
INDEMNIFICATION 

 
4.1 The Parties agree that CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 

employees, agents and volunteers (hereinafter, the “CITY Indemnitees”) should, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, damage, claim, 
lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, or any other cost arising out of or 
in any way related to the performance of this Agreement.  Accordingly, the provisions of 
this indemnity provision are intended by the Parties to be interpreted and construed to 
provide the CITY Indemnitees with the fullest protection possible under the law. 
CONSULTANT acknowledges that CITY would not enter into this Agreement in the absence 
of CONSULTANT’s commitment to indemnify, defend and protect CITY as set forth herein. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent CONSULTANT’s services are subject to Civil 
Code Section 2782.8, the above indemnity shall be limited, to the extent required by Civil 
Code Section 2782.8, to Claims that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, 
recklessness, or willful misconduct of the CONSULTANT.  CONSULTANT’s obligation to 
indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the CITY, its 
officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers. 
 

4.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend the CITY Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, damage, expense, cost 
(including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert fees and all other costs, 
and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with CONSULTANT’s 
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations 
contained in this Agreement, except such loss or damage which is caused by the sole 
negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY.  

 
4.3 CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due to 

CONSULTANT under this Agreement, any amount due to CITY from CONSULTANT as a 
result of CONSULTANT’s failure to either pay CITY promptly for any costs associated with 
CONSULTANT’s obligations to indemnify the CITY Indemnitees under this Article, or 
related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay taxes on amounts received pursuant to 
this Agreement, or (ii) comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws.  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 424 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2137 
Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation 
Page 10 of 18 
 
 
4.4 The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the provisions of 

any workers’ compensation act or similar act.  CONSULTANT expressly waives its statutory 
immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.  
 

4.5 CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical 
to those set forth herein this Article from each and every subcontractor or any other 
person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance 
of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain such indemnity obligations 
from others as required herein, CONSULTANT agrees to be fully responsible and 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, 
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers from and against any and all claims and 
losses, costs or expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any person and injury 
to any property resulting from any alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or otherwise 
wrongful acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any other person 
or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement.  Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by 
counsel of CITY’s choice.  
 

4.6 CITY does not, and shall not waive any rights that it may possess against CONSULTANT 
because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of any insurance policy or 
certificate required pursuant to this Agreement.  This hold harmless and indemnification 
provision shall apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined 
to be applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost, or expense. 
 

4.7 This Article and all provisions contained herein (including but not limited to the duty to 
indemnify, defend, and hold free and harmless) shall survive the termination or normal 
expiration of this Agreement and is in addition to any other rights or remedies which the 
CITY may have at law or in equity.   

 
V. 

TERMINATION 
 
5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE:   CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement at 

any time for convenience and without cause by giving prior written notice of CITY’s intent 
to terminate this Agreement which notice shall specify the effective date of such 
termination.  Upon such termination for convenience, CONSULTANT will be compensated 
only for those services and tasks which have been performed by CONSULTANT up to the 
effective date of the termination.  CONSULTANT may not terminate this Agreement 
except for cause as provided under Section 5.2, below.  If this Agreement is terminated 
as provided herein, CITY may require CONSULTANT to provide all finished or unfinished 
Documents and Data, as defined in Section 6.1, below, and other information of any kind 
prepared by CONSULTANT in connection with the performance of the Work.  
CONSULTANT will be required to provide such Documents and Data within fifteen (15) 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 425 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2137 
Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation 
Page 11 of 18 
 
 

calendar days of CITY’s written request.  No actual or asserted breach of this Agreement 
on the part of CITY pursuant to Section 5.2, below, will operate to prohibit or otherwise 
restrict CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement for convenience as provided under this 
Section. 
 

5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT:  
 

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or task set 
forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform any 
such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an event of 
default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) will occur.  For all Events of Default, the 
Party alleging an Event of Default will give written notice to the defaulting Party 
(hereinafter referred to as a “Default Notice”) which will specify: (i)  the nature of 
the Event of Default; (ii) the action required to cure the Event of Default; (iii) a 
date by which the Event of Default will be cured, which will not be less than the 
applicable cure period set forth under Sections 5.2B and 5.2C, below, or if a cure 
is not reasonably possible within the applicable cure period, to begin such cure 
and diligently prosecute such cure to completion.  The Event of Default will 
constitute a breach of this Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to cure the Event 
of Default within the applicable cure period or any extended cure period allowed 
under this Agreement.   

 
B. CONSULTANT will cure the Event of Default within the following time periods: 

 
i. Within ten (10) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for any 

failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or CITY’s employees or agents 
with any information and/or written reports, documentation or work product 
which CONSULTANT is obligated to provide to CITY or CITY’s employees or 
agents under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 10-day cure 
period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for additional time to cure 
the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has commenced 
efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be 
reasonably cured within the 10-day cure period.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, CITY will be under no obligation to grant additional time for 
the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2B.i. that exceeds seven 
(7) calendar days from the end of the initial 10-day cure period; or 

 
ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for 

any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of 
the 14-day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for 
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT 
has commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of 
Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 14-day cure period.  The 
foregoing notwithstanding, CITY will be under no obligation to grant additional 
time for the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2B.ii that exceeds 
thirty (30) calendar days from the end of the initial 14-day cure period.  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 426 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2137 
Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation 
Page 12 of 18 
 
 

In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform any duty, 
obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the failure to timely perform 
or properly perform any such duty, obligation, service or task), an Event of Default on the 
part of CONSULTANT will include, but will not be limited to the following:  (i) 
CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform any of the services or tasks called for under 
the Scope of Work; (ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or perform its obligations under 
this Agreement within the specified time or if no time is specified, within a reasonable 
time; (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its employees’ disregard  or violation of any federal, 
state, local law, rule, procedure or regulation; (iv) the initiation of proceedings under any 
bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, reorganization, or similar legislation as relates to 
CONSULTANT, whether voluntary of involuntary; (v) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to 
perform or observe any covenant, condition, obligation or provision of this Agreement; 
and/or (vii) CITY’s discovery that a statement representation or warranty by CONSULTANT 
relating to this Agreement  is false, misleading or erroneous in any material respect. 

 
C. CITY will cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within forty-five (45) 

calendar days of CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default Notice, unless the Event of 
Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 45-day cure period.  Prior to the 
expiration of the 45-day cure period, CITY may submit a written request for 
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CITY has 
commenced its efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default 
cannot be reasonably cured within the 45-day cure period.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, an Event of Default dealing with CITY’s failure to timely pay any 
undisputed sums to CONSULTANT as provided under Section 1.4, above, will be 
cured by CITY within five (5) calendar days from the date of CONSULTANT’s Default 
Notice to CITY. 

 
D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 

CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending CONSULTANT’s cure 
of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT written notice of CITY’s intent to 
suspend CONSULTANT’s performance (hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY 
may issue the Suspension Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of 
Default.  Upon such suspension, CONSULTANT will be compensated only for those 
services and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the reasonable 
satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.  No actual or 
asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY will operate to prohibit or 
otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as provided herein. 

 
E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement will constitute 

a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  No waiver, 
benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party will give the 
other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

 
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 427 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2137 
Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation 
Page 13 of 18 
 
 

F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights and 
remedies available hereunder will be in addition to and not a limitation of any 
duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. In 
addition to any other remedies available to CITY at law or under this Agreement 
in the event of any breach of this Agreement, CITY, in its sole and absolute 
discretion, may also pursue any one or more of the following remedies: 

 
i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately terminate 

this Agreement in whole or in part; 
 
ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the time of 

performance; 
 
iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms of the 

Agreement to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s breach of the Agreement 
or to terminate the Agreement; or 

 
iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or remedy.  

 
CONSULTANT will be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and expenses that 
CITY incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the CITY’s exercise of its 
remedies under this Agreement.  

 
G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole remedy will 

be the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the recovery of any 
unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under this Agreement for completed 
services and tasks.   

 
5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:   No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement will 

constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or other 
covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement contained in this 
Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a 
Party will give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

 
5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:   The termination of this Agreement 

pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its term or any 
extension thereto will not operate to terminate any Article, Section or provision 
contained herein which provides that it will survive the termination or normal expiration 
of this Agreement. 

 
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 428 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2137 
Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation 
Page 14 of 18 
 
 

VI. 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:   All Documents and 

Data will be and remain the property of CITY without restriction or limitation upon their 
use or dissemination by CITY.  For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Documents and 
Data” means and includes all reports, analyses, correspondence, plans, designs, notes, 
summaries, strategies, charts, schedules, spreadsheets, calculations, lists, data 
compilations, documents or other materials developed and/or assembled by or on behalf 
of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement and fixed in any tangible medium 
of expression, including but not limited to Documents and Data stored digitally, 
magnetically and/or electronically.  This Agreement creates, at no cost to CITY, a 
perpetual license for CITY to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and/or retain any and all 
copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in all Documents and Data.  
CONSULTANT will require all subcontractors and subconsultants working on behalf of 
CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement to agree in writing that CITY will be 
granted the same right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and retain Documents and Data 
prepared or assembled by any subcontractor or subconsultant as applies to Documents 
and Data prepared by CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  
 

6.2 CONFIDENTIALITY:   All data, documents, discussion, or other information developed or 
received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this Agreement are deemed 
confidential and will not be disclosed by CONSULTANT without prior written consent by 
CITY.  CITY will grant such consent of disclosure as legally required.  Upon request, all CITY 
data will be returned to CITY upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement.  
CONSULTANT will not use CITY’s name or insignia, photographs, or any publicity 
pertaining to the Work in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio 
production or other similar medium without the prior written consent of CITY. 

 
6.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:   CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither CONSULTANT 

nor any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, or has an ownership 
interest in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court or tribunal of competent 
jurisdiction to have violated the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C., Section 3789 et seq. and the 
California False Claims Act, Government Code Section 12650 et seq.  

 
6.4 NOTICES:   All notices permitted or required under this Agreement will be given to the 

respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as the respective 
Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

 
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 429 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2137 
Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation 
Page 15 of 18 
 
 

CONSULTANT:  CITY:  
EdgeSoft Incorporated 
1600 Rosecrans Ave 
Media Center, 4th floor 
Manhattan Beach, CA 90266 
Attn: Shan Sundar 
Phone: (213) 277-3040 

 City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
Attn: Public Works  
Phone: (818) 898-1222 

 
Such notices will be deemed effective when personally delivered or successfully 
transmitted by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or when mailed,  
forty-eight (48) hours after deposit with the United States Postal Service, first class 
postage prepaid and addressed to the Party at its applicable address.   

 
6.5 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:   The Parties will fully cooperate with one another, and 

will take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as are reasonably 
necessary, appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this Agreement. 

 
6.6 SUBCONTRACTING:  CONSULTANT will not subcontract any portion of the Work required 

by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the prior written approval 
of CITY.  Subcontracts (including without limitation subcontracts with subconsultants), if 
any, will contain a provision making them subject to all provisions stipulated in this 
Agreement, including provisions relating to insurance requirements and indemnification. 

 
6.7 CITY’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:   CITY reserves the right to employ 

other contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon by CONSULTANT. 
 
6.8 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:   CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains that it has 

not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, 
CONSULTANT warrants and represents that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any 
company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, 
any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent 
upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of 
this warranty, CITY will have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the 
term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the term of his 
or her service with CITY, will have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any 
present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

 
6.9 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:   Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this 

Agreement. 
 
6.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:   This Agreement will be interpreted and governed 

according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the 
Parties, venue, without exception, will be in the Los Angeles County Superior Court of the 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 430 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2137 
Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation 
Page 16 of 18 
 
 

State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law requires that all or part of any such 
litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, venue, without exception, will be in the 
Central District of California located in the City of Los Angeles, California. 

 
6.11 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:   If either Party commences an action against the other Party, legal, 

administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, the 
prevailing Party in such litigation will be entitled to have and recover from the losing Party 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of such action. 

 
6.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:   This Agreement will be binding on the successors and 

assigns of the Parties. 
 
6.13 NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFIT:   There are no intended third-party beneficiaries of any right 

or obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this Agreement inure 
exclusively to the Parties. 

 
6.14 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT:   This Agreement will not be construed in favor of, or 

against, either Party but will be construed as if the Parties prepared this Agreement 
together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of their respective 
attorneys. 

 
6.15 SEVERABILITY:   If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or otherwise 

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions will 
continue in full force and effect.  

 
6.16 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:   No amendment, modification or supplement of this 

Agreement will be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties, 
subject to CITY approval.  The requirement for written amendments, modifications or 
supplements cannot be waived and any attempted waiver will be void and invalid. 

 
6.17 CAPTIONS:   The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are for 

convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe 
the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 

 
6.18 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:   In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between 

the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits attached hereto, the provisions 
of this Agreement will control.   

 
6.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT:   This Agreement, including all attached exhibits, constitutes the 

entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, which may have been entered into between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to 
the execution of this Agreement.  Any statements, representations, or other agreements, 
whether oral or written, made by either Party that is not embodied herein will not be 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 431 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2137 
Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation 
Page 17 of 18 
 
 

valid or binding on the Parties.  No amendment, modification or supplement to this 
Agreement will be valid and binding unless in writing and duly executed by the Parties 
pursuant to Section 6.16, above. 
 

6.20 FORCE MAJEURE:   The Completion Date shall be extended in the event of any delays due 
to unforeseeable causes beyond the control of CONSULTANT and without the fault or 
negligence of CONSULTANT, including but not limited to severe weather, fires, 
earthquakes, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, riots, strikes, freight embargoes, 
wars, litigation, and/or acts of any governmental agency, including the CITY, if the 
CONSULTANT shall within three (3) calendar days of the commencement of such delay 
notify the City Representative in writing of the causes of the delay. The City 
Representative shall ascertain the facts and the extent of delay, and extend the time for 
performing the services for the period of the enforced delay when and if in the judgment 
of the City Representative such delay is justified. The City Representative’s determination 
shall be final and conclusive upon the parties to this Agreement. In no event shall 
CONSULTANT be entitled to recover damages against the CITY for any delay in the 
performance of this Agreement, however caused, CONSULTANT’s sole remedy being 
extension of the Agreement pursuant to this Section. 

 
6.21 COUNTERPARTS:   This Agreement will be executed in three (3) original counterparts each 

of which will be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or typewritten amendment, 
modification or supplement to any one counterpart will be valid or binding unless made 
to all three counterparts in conformity with Section 6.16, above.  One fully executed 
original counterpart will be delivered to CONSULTANT and the remaining two original 
counterparts will be retained by CITY.  
 

 
SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 432 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2137 
Public Works, Online Permit Counter Implementation 
Page 18 of 18 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day 
and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 

 
 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO  EDGESOFT INCORPRATED 

 
 

By:   By:  
 Nick Kimball, City Manager    
   Name:  
Date:     
   Title:  
     
APPROVED AS TO FORM  Date:  
     
By:     
 Richard Padilla, Assistant City Attorney    
     
Date:     

 
 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 433 of 778



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2137 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Works - Online Permit Counter 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 434 of 778



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2137 

 
DATE: October 26, 2022 

 

 

PARTIES: "CLIENT" 

 

  THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a municipal corporation 

 

  Designated Official: Name: Kenneth Jones 

 

  THE "CONSULTANT" 

 

  EDGESOFT, INC. 

 

  Representative Name: Gaurav Garg 

    Title: Technology Head 

    Telephone: (213) 277-3040 

  

  Mailing Address: 1600 Rosecrans Ave 

    Media Center, 4th floor 

    Manhattan Beach, CA 90266 

 

TIMEFRAME: Roughly six to eight weeks.  

 

COST OF SERVICE: $27,500.00 

 

THIS AGREEMENT MUST BE FIRST EXECUTED BY THE CONSULTANT OR ITS REPRESENTATIVE AND APPROVED AS TO 
FORM BY THE CITY ATTORNEY BEFORE THE AGREEMENT MAY BE EXECUTED ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO. 

 

REQUESTS FOR A WAIVER OF TERMS MUST BE IN WRITING AND PRESENTED TO THE CITY ATTORNEY'S OFFICE AT THE 
TIME THIS AGREEMENT IS DELIVERED TO THE CITY ATTORNEY'S OFFICE FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL AS TO FORM. 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 435 of 778



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2137 

 

Scope of Work 
 

• Online public works permits  
o Please refer to Exhibit -A for detailed scope of work  

 
• Training   

o User training on how to configure and use application.   

ASSUMPTIONS 

 
 

1. City of San Fernando will provide appropriate resources for Testing. 
 

2. City of San Fernando will provide appropriate resources for connecting and working with 
Govpaynet. 

 
3. Edgesoft will perform unit and integration testing prior to delivery of the software for installation.  

 
4. Ongoing support of the software, once it has been implemented, shall be handled by a separate 
contract 
 

5. Deliverables will be reviewed and accepted by the Client within 5 working days, after the receipt 
date. Deliverables not accepted by the Client will be returned to Consultant with the specific changes, 
identified in writing, which the Client requires to accept the deliverable 
 

6. Deliverables will be reviewed for completeness, content, clarity and will require Client’s approval, 
during the initial review. Consultant will in good faith make every effort to include all requested changes to 
deliverables, after Client’s approval. Multiple iterations of deliverable reviews will only be introduced when 
issues of completeness, content, or clarity prevail, after Client’s approval.  
 

7. Deliverables will be deemed to be approved after the agreed upon deliverable review periods have 
elapsed without a detailed description of the deficiencies being provided to Consultant, as defined in the 
proposal, unless agreed otherwise. 

 

RISKS: 

 

1. Availability and quality of Client resources. 
  

2. Funding continuity 
 

3. Sponsorship continuity & participation 
 

4. Timeliness of deliverables by Client resources will affect the budget of this project. 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 436 of 778



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2137 

 
Change Management Process 
 

Change control procedures 

Change control procedures are the key to managing the system development process. The Consultant 
employs a formal process that attempts to contain the scope to the greatest degree possible for on time 
implementation, while at the same time providing the flexibility to enhance the original design when 
necessary. 

Change control management and billing 

The Consultant may initiate a change control form. The cost and timing implications are estimated by the 
project manager documented on the form and submitted to the Client’s project manager for approval. 
Only approved changes are scheduled for implementation. Changes will be invoiced with the next 
milestone invoice following implementation of the change. 

What would constitute a change with additional cost? 

Changes are defined as those tasks that deviate from the scope of the requirements document that have 
a likelihood of impacting the resources or the schedule of the project. Some examples follow but should 
not be construed as a complete list: 

• Change in the architectural design of the system 

• Change in the operating system, hardware, database or development software 

• Change in functionality or scope of the project like paying for permit fees with the shopping cart 

The impact of such changes on both the cost and schedule will be assessed and submitted to Client for 
approval. Upon receiving approval, Consultant will make the necessary changes and invoice the Client. 

What would constitute a “no charge” change? 

Typically, any change that does not impact the schedule or resources will be considered a No Charge change and 
will be accommodated as time permits. However, any changes whether initiated by Consultant or Client will have 
the written approval of Consultant and Client’s project manager. 

Pricing 
OPC – Public Works  Price 

Public Works Online Permit Counter $24,500.00 

1 year hosting and maintenance at $250/month  $3,000.00 

One time cost: $27,500.00 

 

 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 437 of 778



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2137 

 
 

 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION 

The total compensation (including any reasonable costs, expenses or reimbursements) payable by the 
City to the Consultant shall not exceed the Cost of Services. 
 
To the extent that the Schedule of Compensation includes any travel, hotel or other reimbursable 
expenses, such expenses shall be for actual and reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of the 
Scope of Services.  
The Consultant and the City agree that the Consultant shall earn compensation according to the 
following method: 
 
Milestone Basis: The City shall pay for the services on a milestone basis. Consultant shall invoice the City 
the applicable milestone amount upon the achievement of the following deliverable date set forth 
below: 
 

1. Project Initiation, Critical Path Analysis and Kickoff Meeting  $ 4,900.00 

  
2. Requirements Gathering and Functional Specifications Document  $ 4,900.00 

  
3. System Installation, Configuration, Pre-Production Support and Testing  $12,250.00 

  
4. Go-Live Production Support, Monitoring, Project Management and 
Implementation  $ 2,450.00 

5. 1 year Hosting and Maintenance cost ($250/month)   $ 3,000.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 438 of 778



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2137 

 

Exhibit A – Workflow of Public Works Permits Online 
Step 1 –  

Logging in or creating an account from homepage 

The citizens of San Fernando can find the application URL on the San Fernando city website, upon clicking the URL it 
will redirect to the San Fernando CAP login screen.  

1. In the San Fernando CAP login screen, click on the “Registration Link”, it will go to the registration page 
where the user must enter all the required credentials.  

Specific credentials: 

i. Licenses by contractors 
1. City business license if a contractor  
2. Contractors State License Board – Contractors License  
3. Certificate of liability naming the City of San Fernando as additionally 

insured 
ii. Insurance by homeowners 

iii. Status of Credentials uploaded to determine if valid for use or not.  
2. After the successful registration, user will get a confirmed email.  
3. On the login page enter the Email Address and password, it will validate the credentials and allow the user 

to login. 
4. After login it will go to the welcome page. 

 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 439 of 778



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2137 

 
Step 2 –  

To apply for a Permits, user has to select the “Apply for a Permit” menu on left side panel. Upon click of the Apply 
for a Permit tab user will start with online simple permit application. 

 

 

 

 

Step 3 –  

Users can enter their address details like Street number, street name, unit, street mod for the permit and the 
address details will be verified by the AIMS database. If it is a valid address then only will the user be allowed to 
the next page. If it is an invalid address then the user will get an error message like “Please enter valid address”. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Step 4 –  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 440 of 778



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2137 

 
In this page user can be select “Type of permit to apply to” 

 
Step 5 –  

• In this page applicant can select subcategories under each permit type 
o Subcategories for Public Works 

 Non-Construction Permit(s) 
• Encroachment Permit  

o A drop down to be “use of right away” including for sidewalk 
closure, and lane closure. 
 Note: 30 days is max for encroachment. 

o A dropdown for parking stalls on City property  
 Note: 30 days is max for encroachment  

o A drop down for dumpsters on City property 
 Note: 14 days is the max amount of time to have the 

dumpster encroachment.  
o Requirements to fill out: Location(s), Start dates, No. of Days, 

From, To, Insurance Company (Liability) – Policy No.,  
o Other information available to fill out: Insurance Company 

(Workman’s Comp) – Policy No. 
• House Moving/Wide Load Permit  

o Requirements to fill out: Height when on equipment, weight, 
street route, number of sections. 

o Other Information available to fill out: Size, moving time, 
completion time, length of route. 

o Note: “IF THE STRUTURE EXCEEDS THE 18 FOOT LIMIT, THE 
PERMITTEE REQUIRES UTILITY COMPANIES CLEARNACE PRIOR 
TO INSURANCE OF PERMIT”  
 Check box for clearance from utility company or no 

clearance from utility company  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 441 of 778



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2137 

 
 

• Drain Swimming Pool Permit  
o A drop down for “Available inspection Date/Day/Time (During 

Business Hours Only)” 
 Monday 7:30 AM–5:30 PM 
 Tuesday 7:30 AM–5:30 PM 
 Wednesday 7:30 AM–5:30 PM 
 Thursday 7:30 AM–5:30 PM 
 Friday 8 AM–5 PM 

 Service Request(s): 
• Utility Service 

o Water Capital Facility Charge – drop down 
 Water Meter 
 Fire Service  
 Fire Hydrant 

o Requirement: Size provided for water meter and/or fire service 
• Construction Meter 

o Requirements: 
 Specific Location  

o City project?  
 If YES, project name or job number 

• Sanitary Dye Test 
o Requirement: 

 Apply with the portal log in information 
• Fire Flow Test 

o Requirement: 
 Apply with the portal log in information 
 Specific Location required 

 Construction/Excavation Permit(s): 
• Construction 

o Drop down box: Sidewalk repair, Driveway Approach, Curb and 
Gutter Repair  

o Other (Specify):  
• Trench Excavation 

o Description Box to explain the excavation 
• Excavation for Sewer Connection/Repair 

o Check off box if for connection or repair 
o Description box to explain their reasoning 
o Check box for USED: SADDLE, TEE, or “Y” 
o Check box for Connection Made At: MAIN or LATERAL 
o Upload License C-42 or License A (if they choose this 

subcategory) 
 As it is required to have one of these licenses to do the 

job 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 442 of 778



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2137 

 

 
Step 6 -  
In this page applicant can enter additional information: 

o For Construction/Excavation Permits 
 Requirement: Square Footage or linear footage 

 

 

  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 443 of 778



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2137 

 
Step 7 –  
On this page verify if user is legal owner, if yes answer below questionnaire. 

 

 

  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 444 of 778



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2137 

 
Step 8 –  
On this page user is able to submit attachments for any of the work necessary that will load into AIMS 

 
Step 9 –  
User will be able to see a preview of the permit before it is uploaded to AIMS. The online Permit has been 
submitted and an email will be sent to the user once the fees have been calculated by staff at the City of 
San Fernando. Note at the bottom will be updated to: 

“Thank you, your online permit has been submitted. Please allow for five (5) working days for the 
application to be reviewed. An email will be sent to you once the fees have been calculated by City staff.  

 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 445 of 778



EXHIBIT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2137 

 

 
 

Other Requests 

Notifications for the applicant to include: 

o Pending due to missing paperwork or other documentation 
o Invalid information 
o Payment Not Completed 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 446 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

EDGESOFT, INC. 
Online Permit Counter Phase 2 and eGov Land Management Software 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 1st day 
of March 2021 (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
a municipal corporation (“CITY”) and EDGESOFT, INC. (hereinafter, “CONSULTANT”).  For the 
purposes of this Agreement CITY and CONSULTANT may be referred to collectively by the 
capitalized term “Parties.”  The capitalized term “Party” may refer to CITY or CONSULTANT 
interchangeably.  

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein 
contained, CITY and CONSULTANT agree as follows:  

I. ENGAGEMENT TERMS

1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and 
all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the 
services and tasks set forth in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter referred to as the “Scope of 
Work”).  CONSULTANT further agrees to furnish to CITY all labor, materials, tools, 
supplies, equipment, services, tasks and incidental and customary work necessary to 
competently perform and timely complete the services and tasks set forth in the Scope 
of Work.  For the purposes of this Agreement the aforementioned services and tasks set 
forth in the Scope of Work shall hereinafter be referred to generally by the capitalized 
term “Work.”  CONSULTANT shall not commence with the performance of the Work until 
such time as CITY issues a written Notice to Proceed. 

1.2 PROSECUTION OF WORK:  The Parties agree as follows:  

A. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each and every provision contained
herein.  The Work shall be commenced within sixty (60) calendar days of CITY’s
issuance of a Notice to Proceed, and shall be completed on a date not more than
three-hundred sixty-five (365) calendar days from the issuance of the Notice to
Proceed (the “Completion Date”);

B. CONSULTANT shall perform the Work continuously and with due diligence so as
to complete the Work by the Completion Date.  CONSULTANT shall cooperate
with CITY and in no manner interfere with the work of CITY, its employees or
other consultants, contractors or agents;

CONTRACT NO.  1979

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8 ATTACHMENT "B"February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 447 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Online Permit Counter Phase 2 and eGov Land Management Software 
Page 2 of 17 

C. CONSULTANT shall not claim or be entitled to receive any compensation or
damage because of the failure of CONSULTANT, or its subconsultants, to have
related services or tasks completed in a timely manner;

D. CONSULTANT shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among
CONSULTANT’s employees; AND

E. CONSULTANT, at its sole expense, shall pay all sales, consumer, use or other
similar taxes required by law.

1.3 COMPENSATION: 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform the various services and tasks set forth in the Scope
of Work in accordance with the Compensation Schedule as set forth in Exhibit “B”
(hereinafter, the “Approved Rate Schedule”).

B. Section 1.3(A) notwithstanding, CONSULTANT’s total compensation for the
performance and completion of the Work shall not exceed the sum of TWENTY-
SIX THOUSAND, FIVE HUNDRED EIGHTY-EIGHT DOLLARS ($26,588.00)
(hereinafter, the “Not-to-Exceed Sum”).  CONSULTANT further agrees that the
Not-to-Exceed Sum is inclusive of compensation for all labor, materials, tools,
supplies, equipment, services, tasks and incidental and customary work necessary
to competently perform and timely complete the Work.

1.4 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION: The Not-to-Exceed Sum shall be paid to CONSULTANT in 
monthly increments as the Work is completed.  Following the conclusion of each calendar 
month, CONSULTANT shall submit to CITY an itemized invoice indicating the services 
performed and tasks completed during the recently concluded calendar month, including 
services and tasks performed and the reimbursable out-of-pocket expenses incurred.  If 
the amount of CONSULTANT’s monthly compensation is a function of hours worked by 
CONSULTANT’s personnel, the invoice shall indicate the number of hours worked in the 
recently concluded calendar month, the persons responsible for performing the Work, 
the rate of compensation at which such services and tasks were performed, the subtotal 
for each task and service performed and a grand total for all services performed. Within 
thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of each invoice, CITY shall notify CONSULTANT in 
writing of any disputed amounts included in the invoice.  Within forty-five (45) calendar 
days of receipt of each invoice, CITY shall pay all undisputed amounts included on the 
invoice.  CITY shall not withhold applicable taxes or other authorized deductions from 
payments made to CONSULTANT.  

1.5 ACCOUNTING RECORDS: CONSULTANT shall maintain complete and accurate records 
with respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a period of three (3) years 
after the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  CITY shall have the right to access 

CONTRACT NO. 1979

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 448 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Online Permit Counter Phase 2 and eGov Land Management Software 
Page 3 of 17 

and examine such records, without charge, during normal business hours.  CITY shall 
further have the right to audit such records, to make transcripts therefrom and to inspect 
all program data, documents, proceedings, and activities.  

1.6 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:  In the event CONSULTANT ceases to perform the 
Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the undertaking 
contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior to completion of 
any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Work, CONSULTANT shall deliver to CITY 
immediately and without delay, all materials, records and other work product prepared 
or obtained by CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  Furthermore, 
CONSULTANT shall only be compensated for the reasonable value of the services, tasks 
and other Work performed up to the time of cessation or abandonment, less a deduction 
for any damages, costs or additional expenses which CITY may incur as a result of 
CONSULTANT’s cessation or abandonment. 

II. PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT

2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates the City Manager and the Director 
of Community Development (hereinafter, the “CITY Representatives”) to act as its 
representatives for the performance of this Agreement.  The CITY Manager shall be the 
chief CITY Representative.  The CITY Representatives or their designee shall act on behalf 
of the CITY for all purposes under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall not accept 
directions or orders from any person other than the CITY Representatives or their 
designee. 

2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates Nancy Aguilar, Senior 
Project Manager, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement 
(hereinafter, “CONSULTANT Representative”).  CONSULTANT Representative shall have 
full authority to represent and act on behalf of the CONSULTANT for all purposes under 
this Agreement.  CONSULTANT Representative or his designee shall supervise and direct 
the performance of the Work, using his best skill and attention, and shall be responsible 
for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for the satisfactory 
coordination of all portions of the Work under this Agreement.  Notice to the 
CONSULTANT Representative shall constitute notice to CONSULTANT.  

2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  CONSULTANT 
agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the Work and this Agreement 
and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY Representatives at all reasonable times. 
All work prepared by CONSULTANT shall be subject to inspection and approval by CITY 
Representatives or their designees. 

CONTRACT NO. 1979

3

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 449 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Online Permit Counter Phase 2 and eGov Land Management Software 
Page 4 of 17 

2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT represents, 
acknowledges and agrees to the following: 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the highest
standards of CONSULTANT’s profession;

B. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the
CITY;

C. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and
regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code
Section 1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et
seq.);

D. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be performed
under this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of performance;

E. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill, knowledge,
training and experience to perform those services and tasks assigned to them by
CONSULTANT; and

F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including but not limited
subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, certificates,
qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to
perform the tasks and services contemplated under this Agreement and all such
licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and approvals shall be maintained
throughout the term of this Agreement and made available to CITY for copying
and inspection.

The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT shall perform, at CONSULTANT’s 
own cost and expense and without any reimbursement from CITY, any services necessary 
to correct any errors or omissions caused by CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with the 
standard of care set forth under this Section or by any like failure on the part of 
CONSULTANT’s employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants. 
Such effort by CONSULTANT to correct any errors or omissions shall be commenced 
immediately upon their discovery by either Party and shall be completed within seven (7) 
calendars days from the date of discovery or such other extended period of time 
authorized by the CITY Representatives in writing and in their sole and absolute 
discretion. The Parties acknowledge and agree that CITY’s acceptance of any work 
performed by CONSULTANT or on CONSULTANT’s behalf shall not constitute a release of 
any deficiency or delay in performance.  The Parties further acknowledge, understand and 
agree that CITY has relied upon the foregoing representations of CONSULTANT, including 
but not limited to the representation that CONSULTANT possesses the skills, training, 

CONTRACT NO. 1979

4

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 450 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Online Permit Counter Phase 2 and eGov Land Management Software 
Page 5 of 17 

knowledge and experience necessary to perform the Work skillfully, competently and to 
the highest standards of CONSULTANT’s profession. 

2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are 
material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY has an 
interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform the 
services and tasks to be undertaken by CONSULTANT or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement.  In recognition of this interest, CONSULTANT agrees that 
it shall not assign or transfer, either directly or indirectly or by operation of law, this 
Agreement or the performance of any of CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the CITY.  In the absence of CITY’s prior 
written consent, any attempted assignment or transfer shall be ineffective, null and void 
and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement.  

2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Work 
shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under CONSULTANT’s strict supervision. 
CONSULTANT will determine the means, methods and details of performing the Work 
subject to the requirements of this Agreement.  CITY retains CONSULTANT on an 
independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right 
to perform similar or different services for other principals during the term of this 
Agreement, provided such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s 
competent and timely performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement and 
provided the performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized disclosure 
of CITY’s confidential or proprietary information.  Any additional personnel performing 
the Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not employees of CITY and 
shall at all times be under CONSULTANT’s exclusive direction and control.  CONSULTANT 
shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due such personnel and shall assume 
responsibility for all benefits, payroll taxes, Social Security and Medicare payments and 
the like.  CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 
additional personnel, including, but not limited to: Social Security taxes, income tax 
withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, workers’ compensation 
insurance and the like. 

2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, 
agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by the CITY 
Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely 
performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat to persons or property, or if 
any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or 
subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work in a manner acceptable to the CITY, 
such officer, employee, agent, contractor, subcontractor or subconsultant shall be 
promptly removed by CONSULTANT and shall not be reassigned to perform any of the 
Work.   

CONTRACT NO. 1979

5

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 451 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Online Permit Counter Phase 2 and eGov Land Management Software 
Page 6 of 17 

2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in compliance 
with all applicable federal, state or local laws to the extent such laws control or otherwise 
govern the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT’s compliance with applicable laws 
shall include, without limitation, compliance with all applicable Cal/OSHA requirements.  

2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall not 
discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, 
national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental disability or medical condition. No 
otherwise qualified person shall be excluded from participation or employment, denied 
program benefits, or be subjected to discrimination based on race, color, ancestry, 
national origin, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, genetic information, age, 
disability, handicap, familial status, religion, or belief, under any program or activity 
funded by the California Department of Housing and Community Development Planning 
Grants Program, as required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Fair Housing 
Act (42 USC 3601-20) and all implementing regulations, and the Age Discrimination Act of 
1975 and all implementing regulations. The CONSULTANT shall include this Non-
Discrimination and compliance provision in all contracts and subcontracts it enters into 
to perform work funded by the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development Planning Grants Program. 

2.10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree 
that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, and shall 
at all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, officers, 
employees, departments or subdivisions of CITY.  CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible 
for the negligent acts and/or omissions of its employees, agents, contractors, 
subcontractors and subconsultants. CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed 
by CONSULTANT shall have no authority, express or implied, to bind CITY in any manner, 
nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of, or against, CITY, 
whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred to 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred by CITY in writing. 

III. INSURANCE

3.1 DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE: Prior to the beginning of and throughout 
the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain policies of insurance 
that meet the requirements and specifications set forth under this Article. CONSULTANT 
shall procure and maintain the following insurance coverage, at its own expense: 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain
Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) as broad as Insurance
Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG 0001)

CONTRACT NO. 1979

6

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 452 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Online Permit Counter Phase 2 and eGov Land Management Software 
Page 7 of 17 

or its equivalent.  Such CGL Coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than 
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000.00) in the general aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury, 
property damage, operations, products and completed operations, and 
contractual liability. 

B. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain
Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office Form Number
CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).  Such Automobile
Liability Insurance shall have minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars
($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance:  A policy of
workers’ compensation insurance in such amount as will fully comply with the
laws of the State of California and which shall indemnify, insure and provide legal
defense for both CONSULTANT and CITY against any loss, claim or damage arising
from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any worker employed by
or any persons retained by CONSULTANT in the course of carrying out the Work
contemplated in this Agreement.

D. Errors & Omissions Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and for a period
of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain Errors and
Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to CONSULTANT’s profession.  Such
coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars
($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and shall be endorsed to include contractual
liability.

3.2 ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS: The CGL Coverage and the Automobile Liability 
Insurance shall contain an endorsement naming the CITY and CITY’s elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insureds.  

3.3 REQUIRED CARRIER RATING:  All varieties of insurance required under this Agreement 
shall be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and authorized to issue 
policies directly to California insureds.  Except as otherwise provided elsewhere under 
this Article, all required insurance shall be procured from insurers who, according to the 
latest edition of the Best’s Insurance Guide, have an A.M. Best’s rating of no less than 
A:VII.  CITY may also accept policies procured by insurance carriers with a Standard & 
Poor’s rating of no less than BBB according to the latest published edition the Standard & 
Poor’s rating guide.  As to Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability 
Insurance, the CITY Representatives are authorized to authorize lower ratings than those 
set forth in this Section.   

CONTRACT NO. 1979

7

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 453 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Online Permit Counter Phase 2 and eGov Land Management Software 
Page 8 of 17 

3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT’S INSURANCE: All policies of insurance provided by 
CONSULTANT shall be primary to any coverage available to CITY or CITY’s elected or 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by CITY or CITY’s elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, 
agents or volunteers shall be in excess of CONSULTANT’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it.  

3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:  All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement 
shall not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, 
subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of subrogation prior to a loss. 
CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of subrogation against CITY.  

3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands and agrees, that 
CITY’s ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the insurance required under 
this Article is critical to safeguarding CITY’s financial well-being and, indirectly, the 
collective well-being of the residents of the CITY.  Accordingly, CONSULTANT warrants, 
represents and agrees that its shall furnish CITY with original certificates of insurance and 
endorsements evidencing the coverage required under this Article on forms satisfactory 
to CITY in its sole and absolute discretion.  The certificates of insurance and 
endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that 
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the CITY if 
requested.  All certificates of insurance and endorsements shall be received and approved 
by CITY as a condition precedent to CONSULTANT’s commencement of any Work or any 
of the Work.  Upon CITY’s written request, CONSULTANT shall also provide CITY with 
certified copies of all required insurance policies and endorsements.   

IV. INDEMNIFICATION

4.1 The Parties agree that CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers (hereinafter, the “CITY Indemnitees”) should, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, damage, claim, 
lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, or any other cost arising out of or 
in any way related to the performance of this Agreement.  Accordingly, the provisions of 
this indemnity provision are intended by the Parties to be interpreted and construed to 
provide the CITY Indemnitees with the fullest protection possible under the law. 
CONSULTANT acknowledges that CITY would not enter into this Agreement in the absence 
of CONSULTANT’s commitment to indemnify, defend and protect CITY as set forth herein. 

4.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend the CITY Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, damage, expense, cost 
(including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert fees and all other costs 
and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with CONSULTANT’s 

CONTRACT NO. 1979

8

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 454 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Online Permit Counter Phase 2 and eGov Land Management Software 
Page 9 of 17 

performance of Work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations 
contained in this Agreement, except such loss or damage which is caused by the sole 
negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY.  

4.3 CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement any amount due CITY from CONSULTANT as a result 
of CONSULTANT’s failure to pay CITY promptly any indemnification arising under this 
Article and related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay taxes on amounts received 
pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws.  

4.4 The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the provisions of 
any workers’ compensation act or similar act. CONSULTANT expressly waives its statutory 
immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.  

4.5 CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical 
to those set forth here in this Article from each and every subcontractor or any other 
person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance 
of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain such indemnity obligations 
from others as required herein, CONSULTANT agrees to be fully responsible and 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against any and all claims and losses, 
costs or expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any person and injury to any 
property resulting from any alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or otherwise wrongful 
acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any other person or entity 
involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement. 
Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by counsel of 
CITY’s choice.  

4.6 CITY does not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against CONSULTANT 
because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of any insurance policy or 
certificate required pursuant to this Agreement. This hold harmless and indemnification 
provision shall apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined 
to be applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost or expense. 

4.7 This Article and all provisions contained herein (including but not limited to the duty to 
indemnify, defend and hold free and harmless) shall survive the termination or normal 
expiration of this Agreement and is in addition to any other rights or remedies which the 
CITY may have at law or in equity.   

V. TERMINATION

CONTRACT NO. 1979

9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 455 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Online Permit Counter Phase 2 and eGov Land Management Software 
Page 10 of 17 

5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: CITY may terminate this Agreement at any time for 
convenience and without cause by giving CONSULTANT a minimum of five (5) calendar 
days’ prior written notice of CITY’s intent to terminate this Agreement.  Upon such 
termination for convenience, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those services 
and tasks which have been performed by CONSULTANT up to the effective date of the 
termination.  CONSULTANT may not terminate this Agreement except for cause as 
provided under Section 5.2, below.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein, 
CITY may require CONSULTANT to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data, 
as defined in section 6.1 below, and other information of any kind prepared by 
CONSULTANT in connection with the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT shall be 
required to provide such Documents and Data within fifteen (15) calendar days of CITY’s 
written request.  No actual or asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY 
pursuant to Section 5.2, below, shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability 
to terminate this Agreement for convenience as provided under this Section. 

5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT: 

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or task set
forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform any
such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an event of
default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall occur.  For all Events of Default, the
Party alleging an Event of Default shall give written notice to the defaulting Party
(hereinafter referred to as a “Default Notice”) which shall specify: (i)  the nature
of the Event of Default; (ii) the action required to cure the Event of Default; (iii) a
date by which the Event of Default shall be cured, which shall not be less than the
applicable cure period set forth under Sections 5.2B and 5.2C below or if a cure is
not reasonably possible within the applicable cure period, to begin such cure and
diligently prosecute such cure to completion.   The Event of Default shall constitute 
a breach of this Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to cure the Event of Default
within the applicable cure period or any extended cure period allowed under this
Agreement.

B. CONSULTANT shall cure the following Events of Defaults within the following time
periods:

i. Within three (3) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for any
failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or CITY’s employees or agents
with any information and/or written reports, documentation or work product
which CONSULTANT is obligated to provide to CITY  or CITY’s employees or
agents under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 3-day cure period,
CONSULTANT may submit a written request for additional time to cure the
Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has commenced efforts to

CONTRACT NO. 1979

10

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 456 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Online Permit Counter Phase 2 and eGov Land Management Software 
Page 11 of 17 

cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably 
cured within the 3-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall 
be under no obligation to grant additional time for the cure of an Event of 
Default under this Section 5.2B.i. that exceeds seven (7) calendar days from 
the end of the initial 3-day cure period; or 

ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for
any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of
the 14-day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT
has commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of
Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 14-day cure period.  The
foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to grant
additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2B.ii
that exceeds thirty (30) calendar days from the end of the initial 14-day cure
period.

In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform any duty, 
obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the failure to timely perform 
or properly perform any such duty, obligation, service or task), an Event of Default on the 
part of CONSULTANT shall include, but shall not be limited to the following:  (i) 
CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform any of the services or tasks called for under 
the Scope of Work;  (ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or perform its obligations under 
this Agreement within the specified time or if no time is specified, within a reasonable 
time;  (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its employees’ disregard  or violation of any federal, 
state, local law, rule, procedure or regulation;  (iv) the initiation of proceedings under any 
bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, reorganization, or similar legislation as relates to 
CONSULTANT, whether voluntary of involuntary; (v) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to 
perform or observe any covenant, condition, obligation or provision of this Agreement; 
and/or (vii) CITY’s discovery that a statement representation or warranty by CONSULTANT 
relating to this Agreement  is false, misleading or erroneous in any material respect. 

C. CITY shall cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within forty-five (45)
calendar days of CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default Notice, unless the Event of
Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 45-day cure period.   Prior to the
expiration of the 45-day cure period, CITY may submit a written request for
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CITY has
commenced its efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default
cannot be reasonably cured within the 45-day cure period.  The foregoing
notwithstanding, an Event of Default dealing with CITY’s failure to timely pay any
undisputed sums to CONSULTANT as provided under Section 1.4, above, shall be

CONTRACT NO. 1979

11

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 457 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Online Permit Counter Phase 2 and eGov Land Management Software 
Page 12 of 17 

cured by CITY within five (5) calendar days from the date of CONSULTANT’s Default 
Notice to CITY. 

D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend
CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending CONSULTANT’s cure
of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT written notice of CITY’s intent to
suspend CONSULTANT’s performance (hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY
may issue the Suspension Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of
Default.  Upon such suspension, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for
those services and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the
reasonable satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.  No
actual or asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY shall operate to
prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as provided
herein.

E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall constitute
a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  No waiver,
benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give
the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.

F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights and
remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any
duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. In
addition to any other remedies available to CITY at law or under this Agreement
in the event of any breach of this Agreement, CITY, in its sole and absolute
discretion, may also pursue any one or more of the following remedies:

i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately terminate
this Agreement in whole or in part;

ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the time of
performance;

iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms of the
Agreement  to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s breach of the Agreement
or to terminate the Agreement; or

iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or remedy.

CONSULTANT shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and expenses that CITY 
incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the CITY’s exercise of its remedies under this 
Agreement.  

CONTRACT NO. 1979

12

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 458 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Online Permit Counter Phase 2 and eGov Land Management Software 
Page 13 of 17 

G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole remedy shall
be the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the recovery of any
unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under this Agreement for completed
services and tasks.

5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement shall 
constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or other 
covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement contained in this 
Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a 
Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:  The termination of this Agreement 
pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its term or any 
extension thereto shall not operate to terminate any Article, Section or provision 
contained herein which provides that it shall survive the termination or normal expiration 
of this Agreement. 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  All Documents and Data 
shall be and remain the property of CITY without restriction or limitation upon their use 
or dissemination by CITY.  For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Documents and 
Data” means and includes all reports, analyses, correspondence, plans, drawings, designs, 
renderings, specifications, notes, summaries, strategies, charts, schedules, spreadsheets, 
calculations, lists, data compilations, documents or other materials developed and/or 
assembled by or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement and 
fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to Documents and 
Data stored digitally, magnetically and/or electronically.  This Agreement creates, at no 
cost to CITY, a perpetual license for CITY to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and/or retain 
any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in all 
Documents and Data.  CONSULTANT shall require all subcontractors and subconsultants 
working on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement to agree in 
writing that CITY shall be granted the same right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and 
retain Documents and Data prepared or assembled by any subcontractor or 
subconsultant as applies to Documents and Data prepared by CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement.  

6.2 CONFIDENTIALITY:  All data, documents, discussion, or other information developed or 
received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this Agreement are deemed 
confidential and shall not be disclosed by CONSULTANT without prior written consent by 
CITY.  CITY shall grant such consent of disclosure as legally required.  Upon request, all 
CITY data shall be returned to CITY upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

CONTRACT NO. 1979

13

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 459 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Online Permit Counter Phase 2 and eGov Land Management Software 
Page 14 of 17 

CONSULTANT shall not use CITY’s name or insignia, photographs, or any publicity 
pertaining to the Work in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio 
production or other similar medium without the prior written consent of CITY. 

6.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:  CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither CONSULTANT nor 
any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, or has an ownership interest 
in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction to 
have violated the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C., Section 3789 et seq. and the California False 
Claims Act, Government Code Section 12650 et seq.  

6.4 NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given to the 
respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as the respective 
Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

CONSULTANT: CITY:  
Edgesoft, Inc. 
1600 Rosecrans Avenue 
Media Center, 4th Floor 
Manhattan Beach, CA 90266 
Attn: Shan Sundar, CEO 
Phone: (310) 321-7658 
Email: shan.sundar.212@edgesoftinc.com 

City of San Fernando 
Community Development Department 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
Attn: Director of Community 
Development 
Phone:  (818) 898-7316 
Fax: (818) 898-7329 

Such notices shall be deemed effective when personally delivered or successfully 
transmitted by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or when mailed, forty-
eight (48) hours after deposit with the United States Postal Service, first class postage 
prepaid and addressed to the Party at its applicable address.   

6.5 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one another, and 
shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as are reasonably 
necessary, appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this Agreement. 

6.6 SUBCONTRACTING: CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the Work required 
by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the prior written approval 
of CITY.  Subcontracts (including without limitation subcontracts with subconsultants), if 
any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all provisions stipulated in this 
Agreement, including provisions relating to insurance requirements and indemnification. 

6.7 CITY’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:  CITY reserves the right to employ other 
contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon by CONSULTANT. 

CONTRACT NO. 1979

14

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 460 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Online Permit Counter Phase 2 and eGov Land Management Software 
Page 15 of 17 

6.8 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:  CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains that it has not 
employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, CONSULTANT 
warrants and represents that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or 
resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this 
warranty, CITY shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the 
term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the term of his 
or her service with CITY, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any 
present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

6.9 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this 
Agreement. 

6.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and governed 
according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the 
Parties, venue, without exception, shall be in the Los Angeles County Superior Court of 
the State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law requires that all or part of any such 
litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, venue, without exception, shall be in the 
Central District of California located in the City of Los Angeles, California. 

6.11 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  If either Party commences an action against the other Party, either 
legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, 
the prevailing Party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the losing 
Party reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of such action. 

6.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement shall be binding on the successors and 
assigns of the Parties. 

6.13 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFIT:  There are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right or 
obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this Agreement inure 
exclusively to the Parties. 

6.14 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT:  This Agreement shall not be construed in favor of, or 
against, either Party but shall be construed as if the Parties prepared this Agreement 
together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of their respective 
attorneys. 

6.15 SEVERABILITY:  If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or otherwise 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall 
continue in full force and effect.  

CONTRACT NO. 1979

15

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 461 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Online Permit Counter Phase 2 and eGov Land Management Software 
Page 16 of 17 

6.16 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:  No amendment, modification or supplement of this 
Agreement shall be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties, 
subject to CITY approval.  The requirement for written amendments, modifications or 
supplements cannot be waived and any attempted waiver shall be void and invalid. 

6.17 CAPTIONS:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe 
the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 

6.18 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between 
the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits attached hereto, the provisions 
of this Agreement shall control.   

6.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement including all attached exhibits is the entire, 
complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, or entered into between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this 
Agreement.  No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or 
written, made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid or binding.  No 
amendment, modification or supplement to this Agreement shall be valid and binding 
unless in writing and duly executed by the Parties pursuant to Section 6.16, above. 

6.20 COUNTERPARTS:  This Agreement shall be executed in three (3) original counterparts each 
of which shall be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or typewritten amendment, 
modification or supplement to any one counterparts shall be valid or binding unless made 
to all three counterparts in conformity with Section 6.16, above.  One fully executed 
original counterpart shall be delivered to CONSULTANT and the remaining two original 
counterparts shall be retained by CITY.  

(SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW) 

CONTRACT NO. 1979

16

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 462 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Online Permit Counter Phase 2 and eGov Land Management Software 
Page 17 of 17 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day 
and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO EDGESOFT, INC., A CALIFORNIA 
CORPORATION 

By: By: 
Nick Kimball, City Manager Name: 

Title: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

By:  
Richard Padilla, Assistant City 
Attorney 

CONTRACT NO. 1979

17

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8

Shan Sundar

CEO

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 463 of 778



2 

Edgesoft will enhance the Online Permit counter to include the following 

1. Building and Safety Online Permit Counter
a. Remaining permits online with payment
b. Enhance Online permits to include project and subproject level on top of activity level.

2. Online Planning application and approval (roughly 4 – 5 weeks)
a. Provide internal updates in order for this feature to be available online.
b. Enhanced Admin feature includes the permit types to be exposed online.
c. Online payment integration with Govpaynet

3. AIMS application will be enhanced by adding the module of Centralized Plan Check Functionality
(roughly 4 – 5 weeks)

a. This module will allow any users from various departments to use Centralized Plan in
AIMS in one screen for the following

i. Tracking Status
ii. Changing Status

iii. Assigning to different departments (Internal or External)
iv. View/Edit start and target dates
v. Email Notification

4. Online Garage sales and payment (roughly 3 weeks)
5. SAIRA Search

a. Search Portal application that allows users to search through multiple information
sources at once, including: Document Management Systems, In-House Servers (file
folders), City Webpages, and more

b. Users who cannot find what they are looking for are easily directed to the SAIRA Public
Records Request Application, decreasing in-person, telephone, and email interaction
with city clerks

6. SARIA Public Records Request
a. PRR workflow application that accepts requests and translates public user requests into

easy to track, monitor, assign, and complete tickets.
b. Completed requests & documents uploaded are stored in the cloud for easy access for

future information seekers.

ASSUMPTIONS 

1. Client will be responsible for installing, testing, training and production operation of this
project / integration.

2. Client shall be responsible for system environment(s).

3. City of San Fernando will provide appropriate resources for Testing.

4. City of San Fernando will provide appropriate resources for connecting and working with
Govpaynet.

Exhibit "A"
Scope of Work

CONTRACT NO. 1979

18

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 464 of 778



3 

5. Edgesoft will perform unit and integration testing prior to delivery of the software for
installation.

6. Ongoing support the software, once it has been implemented shall be handled by a
separate contract

7. Deliverables will be reviewed and accepted by the Client within 5 working days, after the
receipt date. Deliverables not accepted by the Client will be returned to Consultant with the
specific changes, identified in writing, which the Client requires to accept the deliverable

8. Deliverables will be reviewed for completeness, content, clarity and will require Client’s
approval, during the initial review. Consultant will in good faith make every effort to include all
requested changes to deliverables, after Client’s approval. Multiple iterations of deliverable
reviews will only be introduced when issues of completeness, content, or clarity prevail, after
Client’s approval.

9. Deliverables will be deemed to be approved after the agreed upon deliverable review
periods have elapsed without a detailed description of the deficiencies being provided to
Consultant, as defined in the proposal, unless agreed otherwise.

RISKS: 

1. Availability and quality of Client resources.

2. Funding continuity

3. Sponsorship continuity & participation

4. Timeliness of deliverables by Client resources will affect the budget of this project.

5. End user adoption

Change Management Process 

Change control procedures 

Change control procedures are the key to managing the system development process. The 
Consultant employs a formal process that attempts to contain the scope to the greatest degree 
possible for on time implementation, while at the same time providing the flexibility to enhance 
the original design when necessary. 

Change control management and billing 

The Consultant may initiate a change control form. The cost and timing implications are 
estimated by the project manager documented on the form and submitted to the Client’s 
project manager for approval. Only approved changes are scheduled for implementation. 

CONTRACT NO. 1979

19

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 465 of 778



4 

Changes will be invoiced with the next milestone invoice following implementation of the 
change. 

What would constitute a change with additional cost? 

Changes are defined as those tasks that deviate from the scope of the requirements document 
that have a likelihood of impacting the resources or the schedule of the project. Some examples 
follow but should not be construed as a complete list: 

• Change in the architectural design of the system

• Change in the operating system, hardware, database or development software

• Change in functionality or scope of the project like paying for business license renewal
fees with the shopping cart

The impact of such changes on both the cost and schedule will be assessed and submitted to 
Client for approval. Upon receiving approval, Consultant will make the necessary changes and 
invoice the Client. 

What would constitute a “no charge” change? 

Typically, any change that does not impact the schedule or resources will be considered a No Charge 
change and will be accommodated as time permits. However, any changes whether initiated by 
Consultant or Client will have the written approval of Consultant and Client’s project manager. 

CONTRACT NO. 1979

20

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 466 of 778



5 

Pricing 

eGov 2 Phase Price Discount Price for SF (25% off) 

Building and Safety Online Permit Counter Enhancements $7,500.00 $5,625.00 

Online Planning application and approval $8,250.00 $6,188.00 

Centralized Plan Check Functionality $14,950.00 $11,212.00 

Online Garage Sales with payment $4,750.00 $3,563.00 

SAIRA Search and Public Records Request (Included) $19,500 $0 

 Subtotal: $26,588.00 

Exhibit "B"
Approved Rate Schedule

CONTRACT NO. 1979

21

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 467 of 778



6 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION 

The total compensation (including, any reasonable costs, expenses or reimbursements) payable by the 
City to the Consultant shall not exceed the Cost of Services. 

To the extent that the Schedule of Compensation includes any travel, hotel or other reimbursable 
expenses, such expenses shall be for actual and reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of the 
Scope of Services.  

The Consultant and the City agree that the Consultant shall earn its compensation according to the 
following method: 

Milestone Basis: The City shall pay for the services on a milestone basis. Consultant shall invoice the City 
the applicable milestone amount upon the achievement of the following deliverable date set forth 
below: 

1. Project Initiation, Critical Path Analysis and Kickoff Meeting $ 6,647.25 

2. Requirements Gathering and Functional Specifications Document $ 7,976.25 

3. System Installation, Configuration, Pre-Production Support and Testing $ 7,976.25 

4. Go-Live Production Support, Monitoring, Project Management and
Implementation $ 3,988.25 

CONTRACT NO. 1979

22

DocuSign Envelope ID: 74ABF3A1-FAF6-44CC-8800-3469E061F6A8February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 468 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 469 of 778



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 470 of 778



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

POLICE DEPARTMENT                 910 FIRST STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1250                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☐ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Fabian Valdez, Police Chief 
   
Date:  February 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve the Purchase of One Long Deployment Surveillance 

Trailer with Automated License Plate Recognition and Video Capability from 
Industrial Video & Control 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Accept the lowest responsible and responsive bid in the amount of $72,329 from Industrial 

Video & Control (IVC) (Attachment “A”); 
 

b. Utilize funds appropriated in Resolution No. 8064 (Attachment “B”) to pay for the purchase 
of the Long Deployment Surveillance Trailer from IVC; and 
  

c. Authorize the City Manager to execute a Purchase Order with IVC in the amount not to exceed 
$72,329. 

 
  
BACKGROUND: 

1. The Urban Areas Security Initiative (UASI) grant program was first authorized by Congress in 
2003 to help large urban areas enhance their capacity to prepare for, prevent, respond to, 
and recover from acts of terrorism. Funds are used by jurisdictions for assessments and 
development of security strategies, equipment, training, and exercises to prepare for natural, 
technological, and human-caused disasters including terrorism.   
 

2. On April 16, 2021, the City of Los Angeles provided the Subaward Agreement authorizing 
$98,334 for the purchase of automatic license plate readers (ALPR) and personal protective 
equipment (Attachment “C”- Contract No. 1985). 

 
3. On May 3, 2021, the City Council accepted the grant funds for the purchase of an ALPR trailer 

and personal protective equipment and approved Resolution No. 8064, which amended the 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-2021 Budget to appropriate the grant expenditures and revenues for 
the UASI 20 grant. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 471 of 778



Consideration to Approve the Purchase of One Long Deployment Surveillance Trailer with Automated 
License Plate Recognition and Video Capability from Industrial Video & Control 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
4. On December 22, 2022, the City authorized the formal solicitation of bids for the mobile ALPR 

trailer (Attachment “D”). 
 

5. On January 9, 2023, staff responded to the questions posed by the bidders (Attachment “E”). 
 

6. On January 12, 2023, three bids were received and opened by the City Clerk. 
 

 
ANALYSIS: 

In order to optimize the opportunity for funding, the Police Department participates in the UASI 
grant program through a partnership with the Los Angeles County Police Chief’s Association 
(LAPCA).  The LAPCA vets applications for UASI funded projects to ensure they support the goals 
of regional interoperability to prepare, prevent and respond to acts of terrorism.  The LAPCA 
projects are submitted to the City of Los Angeles Mayor’s Office of Public Safety as a whole and 
are subsequently managed by a grant representative along with the department grant manager.  
Projects are limited in scope depending upon guidelines set forth by the Department of 
Homeland Security (DHS).  UASI grant funds are available for projects that support a regional 
response, including training and equipment, to combat terrorism, and other catastrophic related 
incidents and to support regional interoperability with respect to communications. 
 
Automated license plate readers provide invaluable intelligence that can be shared across the 
region to assist in a host of investigations and law enforcement activities.  Video surveillance is 
another critical element of regional intelligence that can be used to contribute to a multitude of 
investigations. Additionally, radar equipment in conjunction with highly visible and 
programmable message boards can be used to promote safe driving and education to residents 
and visitors.   
 
The Long Deployment Surveillance Trailer (the Trailer) offered by IVC is equipped with solar 
panels and a battery pack which allows for continuous operation without the need for electrical 
plug in.  The Trailer is equipped with two automated license plate reader cameras that are low 
light compatible, hosts two video cameras that have infrared capabilities, and can depict images 
in low light conditions.  The cameras are mounted on a point tilt zoom platform that allows for 
directional control that can be maneuvered remotely.  Finally, the Trailer contains radar 
detection for speed identification and an illuminated message board that is programmable.  The 
equipment is mounted on the Trailer that can be placed in a variety of locations.   
 
This set up is ideal for large events or isolated areas that require enhanced police enforcement.  
The ability to house three critical investigative resources on one piece of equipment which is 
mobile will enable the Police Department to provide a robust and comprehensive approach to 
areas of concern.  In addition, the mobile capability would allow the Trailer to be loaned to 
neighboring jurisdictions should the need arise.  
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 472 of 778



Consideration to Approve the Purchase of One Long Deployment Surveillance Trailer with Automated 
License Plate Recognition and Video Capability from Industrial Video & Control 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
Bid Analysis. 
Staff analyzed the three bids received and determined that IVC met all of the requirements for 
the bid submittal.  The table below summarizes the bids received: 
 

Rank Bidder Bid Amount 
1 ECAMSECURE $50,163.75* 
2 Industrial Video & Control, Inc. $72,329.51 
3 Mobile Pro $188,648.12* 

*Bid was non-responsive. 
 
Staff consulted with the City Attorney who determined that the bids from ECAMSECURE and 
Mobile Pro were non-responsive.  The ECAMSECURE bid was incomplete upon submission and 
the Mobile Pro bid did not offer subscription free ALPR data collection, an 1140 solar watt panel 
or the wheel lock anti-theft measure.  The IVC bid total included a miscalculated tax amount, as 
the shipping cost was included.  This resulted in a difference of $563.75, which reduced the IVC 
bid to $71,765.76.  The difference of $563.75 is not a significant amount compared to the entirety 
of the purchase.    
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

During the May 3, 2021 City Council Meeting, Resolution No. 8064 (Attachment “C”) was adopted 
amending the budget to appropriate funds from the UASI 2020 Grant (Fund 110-220-3662-4500).  
Unused grant balances in the amount of $77,595 have been carried forward and sufficient budget 
is available in Fiscal Year 2022-2023 to fund this purchase. Per grant requirements, funds must 
be used by March 31, 2023. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 

It is recommended that the City Council authorize the Purchase Order.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. IVC Proposal 
B. Resolution No. 8064 
C.   Contract No. 1985 
D.   Solicitation for Bid 
E.  Responses to Bid Questions 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 473 of 778



ATTACHMENT "A"
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 474 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 475 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 476 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 477 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 478 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 479 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 480 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 481 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 482 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 483 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 484 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 485 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 486 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 487 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 488 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 489 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 490 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 491 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 492 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 493 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 494 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 495 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 496 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 497 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 498 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 499 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 500 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 501 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 502 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 503 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 504 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 505 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 506 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 507 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 508 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 509 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 510 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 511 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 512 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 513 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 514 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 515 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 516 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 517 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 518 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 519 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 520 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 521 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 522 of 778



RESOLUTION NO. 8064 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2020-2021 ADOPTED ON JULY 1, 2020 

WHEREAS, the City of Council has received and considered the proposed adjustment to 
the budget for Fisca l Year 2020-2021, commencing July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is necessary to amend the revenues 

and expenditures of the current City budget; and 

WHEREAS, an annual budget for the City of San Fernando for the Fiscal Year beginning 

July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021, a copy of which is on file in the City Clerk's Office, has 
been adopted on July 1, 2020. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The following adjustments are made to the City Budget: 

ACCEPTANCE OF URBAN AREA SECURITY INITIATIVE (UASI) 20 GRANT FUNDS 

Fund 110-220-3662-4500 
Increase in Expenditures: 

Fund 110-3696-3662: 
Increase in Revenues: 

$98,334 

$98,334 

SECTION 2. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall 
cause a certified resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 3rd day of May 2021. 

ATTEST: 

lin, MaYtor of the City of San 
Fernando, California 

ATTACHMENT "B"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 523 of 778



RES. NO. 8064 

CERTIFICATION 

I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 

true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8064 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 

3rd day of May, 2021, by the following vote of the City Council: 

AYES: Rodriguez, Montanez, Mendoza, Ballin - 4 

NAYS: None 

ABSENT: Pacheco - 1 

ABSTAINED: None 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this 1-rn day of May, 2021. 

2 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 524 of 778



SUBAWARD AGREEMENT

C  
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 525 of 778



i

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

II. SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

III. STANDARD PROVISIONS

CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 526 of 778



ii

CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 527 of 778



I. GENERAL INFORMATION

$98,334.00

September 1, 2020
to May 31, 2023

CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 528 of 778



None

868471335

None

CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 529 of 778



[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 530 of 778



II. SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 531 of 778



prior

CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 532 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 533 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 534 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 535 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 536 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 537 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 538 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 539 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 540 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 541 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 542 of 778



[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 543 of 778



III. STANDARD PROVISIONS

CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 544 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 545 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 546 of 778



[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 547 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 1985
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 548 of 778



EXHIBIT A 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 549 of 778



2020 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 

The 2020 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions apply to all new federal financial assistance 
awards funded in FY 2020. These terms and conditions flow down to subrecipients, unless an 
award term or condition specifically indicates otherwise.  The United States has the right to seek 
judicial enforcement of these obligations. 

Assurances, Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, Representations and Certifications 

DHS Specific Acknowledgements and Assurances 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 550 of 778



2020 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 

Standard Terms & Conditions 

I. Acknowledgement of Federal Funding from DHS 

II. Activities Conducted Abroad 

III. Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

IV. Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 

V. Best Practices for Collection and Use of Personally Identifiable Information (PII)  

VI. Civil Rights Act of 1964 – Title VI 

VII. Civil Rights Act of 1968 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 551 of 778



2020 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 

VIII. Copyright 

IX. Debarment and Suspension 

X. Drug-Free Workplace Regulations 

XI. Duplication of Benefits 

XII. Education Amendments of 1972 (Equal Opportunity in Education Act) – Title IX 

XIII. Energy Policy and Conservation Act 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 552 of 778



2020 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 

XIV. False Claims Act and Program Fraud Civil Remedies 

XV. Federal Debt Status 

XVI. Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging while Driving 

XVII. Fly America Act of 1974 

XVIII. Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990 

XIX. Limited English Proficiency (Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VI) 

XX. Lobbying Prohibitions 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 553 of 778



2020 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 
XXI. National Environmental Policy Act 

XXII. Nondiscrimination in Matters Pertaining to Faith-Based Organizations 

XXIII. Non-Supplanting Requirement 

XXIV. Notice of Funding Opportunity Requirements 

XXV. Patents and Intellectual Property Rights 

XXVI. Procurement of Recovered Materials 

XXVII. Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 554 of 778



2020 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 
XXVIII. Reporting of Matters Related to Recipient Integrity and Performance 

1. General Reporting Requirements 

2. Proceedings about Which Recipients Must Report 

3. Reporting Procedures 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 555 of 778



2020 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 
4. Reporting Frequency 

5. Definitions 

XXIX. Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation 

1. Reporting of first-tier subawards. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 556 of 778



2020 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 

2. Reporting Total Compensation of Recipient Executives. 

3. Reporting of Total Compensation of Subrecipient Executives. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 557 of 778



2020 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 

4. Exemptions 

5. Definitions 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 558 of 778



2020 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 

XXX. SAFECOM 

XXXI. Terrorist Financing 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 559 of 778



2020 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 
XXXII. Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA) 

1. Provisions applicable to a recipient that is a private entity. 

2. Provision applicable to recipients other than a private entity.

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 560 of 778



2020 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 
3. Provisions applicable to any recipient. 

4. Definitions

XXXIII. Universal Identifier and System of Award Management 

1. Requirement for System for Award Management 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 561 of 778



2020 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 

2. Requirement for unique entity identifier 

3. Definitions 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 562 of 778



2020 DHS Standard Terms and Conditions 
XXXIV. USA PATRIOT Act of 2001 

XXXV. Use of DHS Seal, Logo and Flags 

XXXVI. Whistleblower Protection Act 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 563 of 778



EXHIBIT B 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 564 of 778



Standard Assurances 
For Cal OES Federal Non-Disaster Grant Programs 

Page 1 of 14 Initials    

As the duly authorized representative of the Applicant, I hereby certify that the 
Applicant has the legal authority to apply for federal assistance and the institutional, 
managerial and financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay any non-federal 
share of project cost) to ensure proper planning, management, and completion of the 
project described in this application, within prescribed timelines. 

I further acknowledge that the Applicant is responsible for reviewing and adhering to all 
requirements within the: 

Applicable Federal Regulations (see below); 
Federal Program Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO); 
Federal Preparedness Grants Manual; 
California Supplement to the NOFO; and 
Federal and State Grant Program Guidelines. 

Federal Regulations 
Government cost principles, uniform administrative requirements, and audit 
requirements for federal grant programs are set forth in Title 2, Part 200 of the Code of 
Federal Regulations (C.F.R.). Updates are issued by the Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) and can be found at http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/. 

State and federal grant award requirements are set forth below. The Applicant hereby 
agrees to comply with the following: 

Proof of Authority 
The Applicant will obtain proof of authority from the city council, governing board, or 
authorized body in support of this project. This written authorization must specify that 
the Applicant and the city council, governing board, or authorized body agree: 

To provide all matching funds required for the grant project and that any cash 
match will be appropriated as required; 
Any liability arising out of the performance of this agreement shall be the 
responsibility of the Applicant and the city council, governing board, or 
authorized body; 
Grant funds shall not be used to supplant expenditures controlled by the  city 
council, governing board, or authorized body;  

GVJ
GVJ

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 565 of 778



Standard Assurances 
For Cal OES Federal Non-Disaster Grant Programs

Page 2 of 14 Initials    

Applicant is authorized by the city council, governing board, or authorized 
body to apply for federal assistance, and the institutional, managerial and 
financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-federal share of 
project cost, if any) to ensure proper planning, management and completion 
of the project described in this application; and 
Official executing this agreement is authorized by the Applicant. 

This Proof of Authority must be maintained on file and readily available upon request. 

Period of Performance 
The period of performance is specified in the Award. The Applicant is only authorized 
to perform allowable activities approved under the award, within the period of 
performance.  

Lobbying and Political Activities 
As required by Section 1352, Title 31 of the United States Code (U.S.C.), for persons 
entering into a contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement from an agency or 
requests or receives from an agency a commitment providing for the United States to 
insure or guarantee a loan, the Applicant certifies that: 

No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf 
of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an 
officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any 
federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, 
amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement. 
If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be 
paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall 
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report 
Lobbying”, in accordance with its instructions. 
The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be 
included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including 
subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative 
agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

GVJ
GVJ

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 566 of 778



Standard Assurances 
For Cal OES Federal Non-Disaster Grant Programs

Page 3 of 14 Initials    

The Applicant will also comply with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§ 1501- 1508 
and §§ 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal 
employment activities are funded in whole or in part with federal funds. 

Finally, the Applicant agrees that federal funds will not be used, directly or indirectly, 
to support the enactment, repeal, modification or adoption of any law, regulation or 
policy without the express written approval from the California Governor’s Office of 
Emergency Services (Cal OES) or the federal awarding agency. 

Debarment and Suspension 
As required by Executive Orders 12549 and 12689, and 2 C.F.R. § 200.213 and codified 
in 2 C.F.R. Part 180, Debarment and Suspension, the Applicant will provide protection 
against waste, fraud, and abuse by debarring or suspending those persons deemed 
irresponsible in their dealings with the federal government. The Applicant certifies that 
it and its principals, recipients, or subrecipients: 

Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal 
department or agency; 
Have not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted 
of or had a civil judgment rendered  against  them  for commission of fraud or 
a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or 
performing a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a 
public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission 
of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, 
making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 
Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 
governmental entity (federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the 
offenses enumerated in paragraph (2)(b) of this certification; and 
Have not within a three-year period preceding this application had one or 
more public transaction (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or 
default. 

Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, 
he or she shall attach an explanation to this application. 

Non-Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity 
The Applicant will comply with all state and federal statutes relating to non-
discrimination, including:  

GVJ
GVJ

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 567 of 778



Standard Assurances 
For Cal OES Federal Non-Disaster Grant Programs

Page 4 of 14 Initials    

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Public Law (P.L.) 88-352 and 42 U.S.C. § 
2000d et. seq.) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, or 
national origin and requires that recipients of federal financial  assistance take 
reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to persons with limited English 
proficiency (LEP) to their programs and services; 
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683, and 
1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in any federally 
funded educational program or activity; 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794), which prohibits 
discrimination against those with disabilities or access and functional needs; 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 (42 U.S.C. §§ 12101- 12213), which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability and requires buildings and 
structures be accessible to those with disabilities and access and functional 
needs; 
Age Discrimination Act of 1975, (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6107), which  prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of age; 
Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§ 290 dd—2), relating to 
confidentiality of patient records regarding substance abuse treatment; 
Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. § 3601 et seq.), relating to 
nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing as implemented by 
the Department of Housing and Urban Development at 24 C.F.R. Part100. The 
prohibition on disability discrimination includes the requirement that new 
multifamily housing with four or more dwelling units—i.e., the public and 
common use areas and individual apartment units (all units in buildings with 
elevators and ground-floor units in buildings without elevators)— be designed 
and constructed with certain accessible features (See 24 C.F.R. § 100.201); 
Executive Order 11246, which prohibits federal contractors and federally 
assisted construction contractors and subcontractors, who do over $10,000 in 
Government business in one year from discriminating in employment decisions 
on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identification or national origin; 
Executive Order 11375, which bans discrimination on the basis of race, color, 
religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identification, or national origin in hiring 
and employment in both the United States federal workforce and on the part 
of government contractors; 
California Public Contract Code § 10295.3, which prohibits discrimination based 
on domestic partnerships and those in same sex marriages;  

GVJ
GVJ

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 568 of 778



Standard Assurances 
For Cal OES Federal Non-Disaster Grant Programs

Page 5 of 14 Initials    

DHS policy to ensure the equal treatment of faith-based organizations, under 
which all applicants and recipients must comply with equal treatment policies 
and requirements contained in 6 C.F.R. Part 19; 
The Applicant will comply with California’s Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(FEHA) (California Government Code §§12940, 12945, 12945.2), as applicable. 
FEHA prohibits harassment and discrimination in employment because of 
ancestry, familial status, race, color, religious creed (including religious dress 
and grooming practices), sex (which includes pregnancy, childbirth, 
breastfeeding and medical conditions related to pregnancy, childbirth or 
breastfeeding), gender, gender identity, gender expression, sexual orientation, 
marital status, national origin, ancestry, mental and physical disability, genetic 
information, medical condition, age, pregnancy, denial of medical and family 
care leave, or pregnancy disability leave, military and veteran status, and/or 
retaliation for protesting illegal discrimination related to one of these 
categories, or for reporting patient abuse in tax supported institutions; 
Any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which 
application for federal assistance is being made; and  
The requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) that may apply to this 
application.

Drug-Free Workplace 
As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (41 U.S.C. § 701 et seq.), the 
Applicant certifies that it will maintain a drug-free workplace and a drug-free 
awareness program as outlined in the Act. 

Environmental Standards 
The Applicant will comply with state and federal environmental standards, including: 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (California Public Resources Code 
§§ 21000- 21177), to include coordination with the city or county planning 
agency;
CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Division 6, Chapter 3, 
§§ 15000- 15387); 
Federal Clean Water Act (CWA) (33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.), which establishes the 
basic structure for regulating discharges of pollutants into the waters of the 
United States and regulating quality standards for surface waters; 
Federal Clean Air Act of 1955 (42 U.S.C. § 7401) which regulates air emissions 
from stationary and mobile sources;  

GVJ
GVJ

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 569 of 778



Standard Assurances 
For Cal OES Federal Non-Disaster Grant Programs

Page 6 of 14 Initials    

Institution of environmental quality control measures under the National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) of 1969 (P.L. 91-190); the Council on 
Environmental Quality Regulations for Implementing the Procedural Provisions 
of NEPA; and Executive Order 12898 which focuses on the environmental and 
human health effects of federal actions on minority and low-income 
populations with the goal of achieving environmental protection for all 
communities; 
Evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with Executive Order 
11988; 
Executive Order 11514 which sets forth national environmental  standards; 
Executive Order 11738 instituted to assure that each federal agency 
empowered to enter into contracts for the procurement of goods, materials, or 
services and each federal agency empowered to extend federal assistance by 
way of grant, loan, or contract shall undertake such procurement and 
assistance activities in a manner that will result in effective enforcement of the 
Clean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Executive Order 
11990 which requires preservation of wetlands; 
The Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, (P.L. 93-523); 
The Endangered Species Act of 1973, (P.L. 93-205); 
Assurance of project consistency with the approved state management 
program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 
(16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); 
Conformity of Federal Actions to State (Clear Air) Implementation Plans under 
Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et 
seq.); 
Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. § 1271 et seq.) related to 
protecting components or potential components of the national wild and 
scenic rivers system. 

The Applicant shall not be: 1) in violation of any order or resolution promulgated   by 
the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution district; 2) subject to a cease and 
desist order pursuant to § 13301 of the California Water Code for violation of waste 
discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or 3) determined to be in violation 
of federal law relating to air or water pollution. 

GVJ
GVJ

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 570 of 778



Standard Assurances 
For Cal OES Federal Non-Disaster Grant Programs

Page 7 of 14 Initials    

Audits
For subrecipients expending $750,000 or more in federal grant funds annually, the 
Applicant will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in 
accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and Title 2 of the Code 
of Federal Regulations, Part 200, Subpart F Audit Requirements. 

Access to Records 
In accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.336, the Applicant will give the awarding agency, 
the Comptroller General of the United States and, if appropriate, the state,  through 
any authorized representative, access to and the right to examine all records, books, 
papers, or documents related to the award. The Applicant will require any 
subrecipients, contractors, successors, transferees and assignees to acknowledge 
and agree to comply with this provision. 

Conflict of Interest 
The Applicant will establish safeguards to prohibit the Applicant’s employees from 
using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of 
personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gain. 

Financial Management 
False Claims for Payment - The Applicant will comply with 31 U.S.C §§ 3729-3733 
which sets forth that no subrecipient, recipient, or subrecipient shall submit a false 
claim for payment, reimbursement or advance. 

Reporting - Accountability 
The Applicant agrees to comply with applicable provisions of the Federal Funding 
Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) (P.L. 109-282), specifically (a) the 
reporting of subawards obligating $25,000 or more in federal funds and (b) executive 
compensation data for first-tier subawards. This includes the provisions of FFATA, 
which includes requirements for executive compensation, and also requirements 
implementing the Act for the non-federal entity at 2 C.F.R. Part 25 Financial 
Assistance Use of Universal Identifier and Central Contractor Registration and 2 C.F.R. 
Part 170 Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information. 

Whistleblower Protections 
The Applicant also must comply with statutory requirements for whistleblower 
protections at 10 U.S.C. § 2409, 41 U.S.C. § 4712, and 10 U.S.C. § 2324, 41 U.S.C. § 
4304 and § 4310. 

GVJ
GVJ

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 571 of 778



Standard Assurances 
For Cal OES Federal Non-Disaster Grant Programs

Page 8 of 14 Initials    

Human Trafficking 
The Applicant will comply with the requirements of Section 106(g) of the Trafficking 
Victims Protection Act of 2000, as amended (22 U.S.C. § 7104) which prohibits grant 
award recipients or a subrecipient from: (1) engaging in trafficking in persons during 
the period of time that the award is in effect; (2) procuring a commercial sex act 
during the period of time that the award is in effect; (3) using forced labor in the 
performance of the award or subawards under the award. 

Labor Standards 
The Applicant will comply with the following federal labor standards: 

The Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§ 276a to 276a-7), as applicable, and the 
Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145 and 18 U.S.C. § 874) and the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§ 327-333), regarding labor 
standards for federally-assisted construction contracts or subcontracts, and 
The Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (29 U.S.C. § 201 et al.) as they apply to 
employees of institutes of higher learning (IHE), hospitals and other non-profit 
organizations. 

Worker’s Compensation 
The Applicant must comply with provisions which require every employer to be 
insured to protect workers who may be injured on the job at all times during the 
performance of the work of this Agreement, as per the workers compensation laws 
set forth in California Labor Code §§ 3700 et seq. 

Property-Related
If applicable to the type of project funded by this federal award, the Applicant will: 

Comply with the requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation 
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which 
provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose 
property is acquired as a result of federal or federally-assisted programs. These 
requirements apply to all interests in  real  property acquired for project 
purposes regardless of federal participation in purchase; 
Comply with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the 
Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires subrecipients 
in a special flood hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase 
flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction and acquisition is 
$10,000 or more; 

GVJ
GVJ

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 572 of 778



Standard Assurances 
For Cal OES Federal Non-Disaster Grant Programs

Page 9 of 14 Initials    

Assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the 
National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. § 470), 
Executive Order 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), and 
the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16  U.S.C. §469a-1 et 
seq.); and 
Comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. § 4831 
and 24 CFR Part 35) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction 
or rehabilitation of residence structures. 

Certifications Applicable Only to Federally-Funded Construction Projects 
For all construction projects, the Applicant will: 

Not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the terms of the real property title 
or other interest in the site and facilities without permission and instructions from 
the awarding agency. Will record the federal awarding agency directives and 
will include a covenant in the title of real property acquired in whole or in part 
with federal assistance funds to assure nondiscrimination during the useful life of 
the project; 
Comply with the requirements of the awarding agency with regard to the 
drafting, review and approval of construction plans and specifications; and 
Provide and maintain competent and adequate engineering supervision at 
the construction site to ensure that the complete work conforms with the 
approved plans and specifications and will furnish progressive reports and such 
other information as may be required by the assistance awarding agency or 
State. 

Use of Cellular Device While Driving is Prohibited 
Applicants are required to comply with California Vehicle Code sections 23123 and 
23123.5. These laws prohibit driving motor vehicle while using an electronic wireless 
communications device to write, send, or read a text-based communication. Drivers 
are also prohibited from the use of a wireless telephone without hands-free listening 
and talking, unless to make an emergency call to 911, law enforcement, or similar 
services. 

GVJ
GVJ

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 573 of 778



Standard Assurances 
For Cal OES Federal Non-Disaster Grant Programs

Page 10 of 14 Initials    

California Public Records Act and Freedom of Information Act 
The Applicant acknowledges that all information submitted in the course of applying 
for funding under this program, or provided in the course of an entity’s grant 
management activities that are under Federal control, is subject to the Freedom of 
Information Act (FOIA), 5 U.S.C. § 552, and the California Public Records Act, 
California Government Code section 6250 et seq. The Applicant should consider 
these laws and consult its own State and local laws and regulations regarding the 
release of information when reporting sensitive matters in the grant application, 
needs assessment, and strategic planning process. 

HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT PROGRAM (HSGP) – 
PROGRAM SPECIFIC ASSURANCES / CERTIFICATIONS 

Acknowledgment of Federal Funding from DHS 
All recipients must acknowledge their use of federal funding when issuing statements, 
press releases, requests for proposals, bid invitations, and other documents describing 
projects or programs funded in whole or in part with federal funds. 

Activities Conducted Abroad 
All recipients must ensure that project activities carried on outside the United States 
are coordinated as necessary with appropriate government authorities and that 
appropriate licenses, permits, or approvals are obtained. 

Best Practices for Collection and Use of Personally Identifiable Information (PII) 
DHS defines personally identifiable information (PII) as any information that permits the 
identity of an individual to be directly or indirectly inferred, including any information 
that is linked or linkable to that individual. All recipients who collect PII are required to 
have a publically-available privacy policy that describes standards on the usage and 
maintenance of PII they collect. Recipients may also find the DHS Privacy Impact 
Assessments: Privacy Guidance and Privacy template a useful resource respectively. 

Copyright
All recipients must affix the applicable copyright notices of 17 U.S.C. §§ 401 or 402 and 
an acknowledgement of U.S. Government sponsorship (including the award number) 
to any work first produced under federal financial assistance awards. 

GVJ
GVJ

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 574 of 778



Standard Assurances 
For Cal OES Federal Non-Disaster Grant Programs

Page 11 of 14 Initials    

Duplication of Benefits 
Any cost allocable to a particular federal financial assistance award provided for in 
2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart E may not be charged to other federal financial assistance 
awards to overcome fund deficiencies, to avoid restrictions imposed by federal 
statutes, regulations, or federal financial assistance award terms and conditions, or for 
other reasons. However, these prohibitions would not preclude recipients from shifting 
costs that are allowable under two or more awards in accordance with existing 
federal statutes, regulations, or the federal financial assistance award terms and 
conditions. 

Energy Policy and Conservation Act 
All recipients must comply with the requirements of 42 U.S.C. § 6201 which contain 
policies relating to energy efficiency that are defined in the state energy 
conservation plan issued in compliance with this Act. 

Federal Debt Status 
All recipients are required to be non-delinquent in their repayment of any federal 
debt. Examples of relevant debt include delinquent payroll and other taxes, audit 
disallowances, and benefit overpayments. See OMB Circular A-129. 

Fly America Act of 1974 
All recipients must comply with Preference for U.S. Flag Air Carriers: (air carriers 
holding certificates under 49 U.S.C. § 41102) for international air transportation of 
people and property to the extent that such service is available, in accordance with 
the International Air Transportation Fair Competitive Practices Act of 1974 (49 U.S.C. § 
40118) and the interpretative guidelines issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States in the March 31, 1981, amendment to Comptroller General Decision B- 
138942. 

Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990 
In accordance with Section 6 of the Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990, all 
Applicants must ensure that all conference, meeting, convention, or training space 
funded in whole or in part with federal funds complies with the fire prevention and 
control guidelines of the Federal Fire Prevention and Control Act of 1974, as 
amended, 15 U.S.C. § 2225a. 

GVJ
GVJ

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 575 of 778



Standard Assurances 
For Cal OES Federal Non-Disaster Grant Programs

Page 12 of 14 Initials    

Non-supplanting Requirement 
All recipients who receive federal financial assistance awards made under programs 
that prohibit supplanting by law must ensure that federal funds do not replace 
(supplant) funds that have been budgeted for the same purpose through non- 
federal sources. 

Patents and Intellectual Property Rights 
Unless otherwise provided by law, recipients are subject to the Bayh-Dole Act, Pub. L. 
No. 96-517, as amended, and codified in 35 U.S.C. § 200 et seq. All recipients are 
subject to the specific requirements governing the development, reporting, and 
disposition of rights to inventions and patents resulting from financial assistance 
awards located at 37 C.F.R. Part 401 and the standard patent rights clause located 
at 37 C.F.R. § 401.14. 

SAFECOM
All recipients who receive federal financial assistance awards made under programs 
that provide emergency communication equipment and its related activities must 
comply with the SAFECOM Guidance for Emergency Communication Grants, 
including provisions on technical standards that ensure and enhance interoperable 
communications. 

Terrorist Financing 
All recipients must comply with Executive Order 13224 and U.S. law that prohibit 
transactions with, and the provisions of resources and support to, individuals and 
organizations associated with terrorism. Recipients are legally responsible to ensure 
compliance with the Order and laws. 

Reporting of Matters Related to Recipient Integrity and Performance 
If the total value of the recipient’s currently active grants, cooperative agreements, 
and procurement contracts from all federal assistance offices exceeds $10,000,000 for 
any period of time during the period of performance of this federal financial 
assistance award, you must comply with the requirements set forth in the 
government-wide Award Term and Condition for Recipient Integrity and 
Performance Matters located at 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix XII, the full text of which is 
incorporated here by reference in the award terms and conditions. 

GVJ
GVJ

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 576 of 778



Standard Assurances 
For Cal OES Federal Non-Disaster Grant Programs

Page 13 of 14 Initials    

USA Patriot Act of 2001 
All recipients must comply with requirements of the Uniting and Strengthening 
America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism 
Act (USA PATRIOT Act), which amends 18 U.S.C. §§ 175–175c. 

Use of DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags 
All recipients must obtain permission from their DHS Financial Assistance Office, prior 
to using the DHS seal(s), logos, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS 
agency officials, including use of the United States Coast Guard seal, logo, crests or 
reproductions of flags or likenesses of Coast Guard officials.  

GVJ
GVJ

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 577 of 778



Standard Assurances 
For Cal OES Federal Non-Disaster Grant Programs

Page 14 of 14 Initials    

IMPORTANT
The purpose of the assurance is to obtain federal and state financial assistance, 
including any and all federal and state grants, loans, reimbursement, contracts, etc. The 
Applicant recognizes and agrees that state financial assistance will be extended based 
on the representations made in this assurance. This assurance is binding on the 
Applicant, its successors, transferees, assignees, etc. Failure to comply with any of the 
above assurances may result in suspension, termination, or reduction of grant funds. 

All appropriate documentation, as outlined above, must be maintained on file by the 
Applicant and available for Cal OES or public scrutiny upon request. Failure to comply 
with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the grant or 
termination of the grant or both and the subrecipient may be ineligible for award of any 
future grants if the Cal OES determines that any of the following has occurred: (1) the 
recipient has made false certification, or (2) violates the certification by failing to carry 
out the requirements as noted above. 

All of the language contained within this document must be included in the award 
documents for all subawards at all tiers. All recipients are bound by the Department of 
Homeland Security Standard Terms and Conditions 2020, Version 10.1, hereby 
incorporated by reference, which can be found at: 
https://www.dhs.gov/publication/fy15-dhs-standard-terms-and-conditions. 

The undersigned represents that he/she is authorized to enter into this agreement for and 
on behalf of the Applicant. 

Subrecipient: 

Signature of Authorized Agent:   

Printed Name of Authorized Agent:   

Title:  Date:   

Gabriela Jasso (Jan 13, 2021 15:53 PST)
Gabriela Jasso

GVJ
GVJ

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 578 of 778



EXHIBIT C 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 579 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 580 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 581 of 778



Department Phone Number Today's Date Grant Year

Summary and reason for modification request: Are the modified ledgers attached electronically? Will the project require approvals?
EHP
Sole Source
EOC
Watercraft
Aircraft

Modified From:
FMU 

ONLY
Project 
Letter

Item 
#

Sub 
Line # Project Name Investment Justification (IJ) Disc Solution Sub-Solution  $ Before  $ After  $ Change Action APPR #

From  $                      -   

From  $                      -   

From  $                      -   

From  $                      -   

From  $                      -   
Total: -$                    

Modified To:
FMU 

ONLY
Project 
Letter

Item 
#

Sub 
Line # Project Name Investment Justification (IJ) Disc Solution Sub-Solution  $ Before  $ After  $ Change Action APPR #

To  $                    -    $                    -    $                      -   

To  $                    -    $                    -    $                      -   

To  $                    -    $                    -    $                      -   

To  $                    -    $                    -    $                      -   

To  $                    -    $                    -    $                      -   
Total: -$                    

Date Received Date Approved by MOPS

Date Reviewed

 $                   - 
 $                   - 

Grant Specialist
MOPS Use Only :

Exercise Ledger
 $                   - 

Organization Ledger
Planning Ledger

Revised Amount

25% Increase

LA/LB UASI Modification Request Form

Jurisdiction
UASI 20

REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBMISSION:
Name of Representative

Grant Specialist to complete

Email Address

Equipment Ledger
Training Ledger

Please fill out the Modification Request Form, and associated Project Timeline, and submit it to your Grant Specialist.  Include the project details for each 
line # affected by the modification request. For new line #'s being created, leave the Project Letter, Item #, and Sub-Line # columns in the 'Modified To' 
section blank- your Grant Specialist will assign them. You MUST include the reason for the modification request.  Your Grant Specialist will advise if your 
modification request requires additional information.  Additionally, you MUST attach a completed ledger(s) with the proposed changes.  Formulas are 
embedded in the Form to automatically calculate the $ Change, and the Form is balanced when the Totals (highlighted yellow) in the 'Modified From' and 
the 'Modified To' sections are equal.  Modification requests are submitted to CalOES on a monthly basis. To be considered for that month's modification 
request, please submit by the 15th of each month.   

Contract Amount

Amendment Y/N?

Council/14.8 Y/N?

FMU Verification-- Name Modification #

Modification # Notes

Notes

LA-LB+UASI+Modification+Form+7.30.20 1 of 1

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 582 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 583 of 778



 

Cal OES ARF Revised 07/31/14 
 

Subgrantee Name: 

Homeland Security Grant Program FY Grant Number Cal OES ID#

Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI) FY Grant Number Cal OES ID#

Other Program FY Grant Number Cal OES ID#

Project Amount: UASI $ SHSP $

1. Indicate the type of aircraft/aviation equipment for this request (choose only one of the 
following).

2. Please provide a description of the area that will be served by the requested equipment.

Equipment & Description Cost AEL number

3. Please justify the need for the aircraft/aviation equipment, and how the requested platform 
best meets that need as compared to other options. Include the cost, discipline, and funding 
source.

4. Please identify the applicable goals and objectives in your State/Urban Area Homeland 
Security Strategy that the requested aircraft/aviation equipment addresses. 

5. Please explain how the requested aircraft/aviation equipment fits into the State/Urban Area's 
integrated operational plans.

Aircraft _____        Aviation Related Equipment _____

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 584 of 778



Cal OES ARF Revised 07/31/14 

6. Please explain what types of terrorism incident response and prevention equipment with 
which the requested aircraft/aviation equipment will be outfitted.

7. Please describe how this aircraft/aviation equipment will be used operationally and which 
response assets will be deployed using the requested aircraft/aviation equipment.

8. Please describe how this aircraft/aviation equipment will be utilized on a regular, non-
emergency basis.

9. Please certify on signed letterhead that an existing aviation unit is operating and will continue
to operate independent of the requested funding. Describe the active, operating aviation unit 
and certify that no expenses will be charged against the grant award for the operation of such 
aviation unit. Please certify licensing, registration fees, insurance, and all ongoing 
operational expenses are the responsibility of the grantee or the local units of government and 
are not allowable under this grant.

10. Attach letters of endorsement, if applicable.

 

 

Submitted by: Date: _____________

          (Name) (Signature)

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 585 of 778



Cal OESWRF Revised 07/11/13

Subgrantee Name:       

Homeland Security Grant Program FY  Grant Number Cal OES ID#    

Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI) FY   Grant Number Cal OES ID#    

Other Program FY    Grant Number Cal OES ID#    

Project Amount: UASI $  SHSP $  

1. Indicate the type of equipment for this request (choose only one of the following). 

Watercraft    Watercraft- Related Equipment    

2. Please provide a description of the area that will be served by the requested equipment. 

Equipment & Description Cost AEL number 

3. Please justify the need for the watercraft and how the requested platform best meets 
that need as compared to other options. Include the cost, discipline, and funding source. 

4. Please describe the active, operating waterway patrol unit and certify on signed 
letterhead that no expenses will be charged against the grant award for the operation of 
such unit. 

5. Please identify the applicable goals and objectives in your State/Urban Area Homeland 
Security Strategy that the requested watercraft addresses, and the waterway identified 
as critical asset requiring state and/or local prevention and response capabilities.

6. Please explain how the requested watercraft fits into the State/Urban Area's integrated 
operational plans and vulnerability assessment. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 586 of 778



Cal OESWRF Revised 07/11/13

7. Please describe how this watercraft will be used operationally and which response 
assets will be deployed using the requested watercraft. 

8. Please describe how this watercraft will be utilized on a regular, non-emergency basis. 

9. Please describe what types of terrorism incident response and prevention equipment 
with which the requested watercraft will be outfitted. Include any specialized 
navigational, communications, safety, and operational equipment necessary to enable 
such watercraft to support the homeland security mission. Please certify on signed 
letterhead that licensing, registration fees, insurance, and all ongoing operational 
expenses are the responsibility of the grantee or the local units of government and are 
not allowable under this grant. 

10. Attach letters of endorsement, if applicable. 

Submitted by:   Date:
(Name) (Signature) 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 587 of 778



Cal OES EOCRF Revised 08/1/13

Subgrantee Name:   

Homeland Security Grant Program FY Grant Number Cal OES ID#    

Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI) FY  Grant Number Cal OES ID#    

Other Program FY  Grant Number Cal OES ID#    

1. What type of EOC does your organization plan to establish/enhance? (Choose one of the 
following)

Primary EOC    Alternate/Back-up/Duplicate EOC    

2. Physical address of facility: 

3. Describe how the establishment/enhancement of an EOC improves your organization’s 
ability to prevent, plan for, respond to, and recover from a terrorism event (on a separate 
attachment). 

4. Identify all other sources and uses of additional funds assisting the project in any way. 

5. Identify anticipated homeland security grant costs to establish/enhance your 
organization’s EOC in the table below. 

6.

Computers 
Network Servers 
Printers 
Computer accessories (i.e. surge protectors, battery backups, etc.) 
Computer maintenance contracts 
Computer connections and cables (including fiber optic cabling) 
Fax machines 
Lighting Systems 
LCD projectors 
Projection/plasma/flat screens/monitors/televisions 
GIS plotter and software 
Telephone systems 
Software development 
Commercial off-the-shelf (COTS) software 
Installation of EOC items 
Miscellaneous connections for EOC items 
Standardized mapping software 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 588 of 778



Standardized emergency management software 
Installation of EOC items 
Miscellaneous connections for EOC items 
Leasing Costs2 (Indicate starting and ending dates of lease and 
explain the circumstances under which the moving or leasing costs 
will be incurred.) 
Other (must provide list/description of "other" items and costs) 

7. Explanation of “other” items: 

8. Has your organization determined the costs are reasonable? 

Submitted by:    Date:

(Name) (Signature)

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 589 of 778



ENVIRONMENTAL AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION SCREENING FORM 

Paperwork Burden Disclosure Notice 

PRIVACY NOTICE 

Directions for completing this form: 

Be advised that completion 
of this form does not complete the EHP review process

Example, EHP Submission: Courthouse Camera Installation, Any Town, State, 
12345; 2011-SS-0xxxx

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 590 of 778



SECTION A. PROJECT INFORMATION 

Project Description. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 591 of 778



SECTION B. PROJECT TYPE 

Purchase of equipment. 

Training and exercises. 

Renovations/upgrades/modifications or physical security enhancements to existing structures. 

Generator installation. 

New construction/addition. 

Communication towers, antennas, and related equipment. 

Other.

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 592 of 778



SECTION C PROJECT TYPE DETAILS 

Purchase of equipment. 

Training and exercises. 

Renovations/upgrades/modifications, or physical security 
enhancements to existing structures. If so, Complete Section D.

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 593 of 778



Generator installation.

New construction/addition.

Communication towers, antennas, and related equipment.

Complete items 6.c through 6.q below ONLY if this project involves construction of a new or replacement 
communications tower. Otherwise continue to Section D. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 594 of 778



Other:

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 595 of 778



SECTION D PROJECT DETAILS 

Project Installation

Age of structure/building at project site

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 596 of 778



Site photographs, maps and drawings

•

•

•

•

•

•

Appendix A has guidance on preparing photographs for EHP review

Environmental documentation

•

•

•

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 597 of 778



Appendix A. Guidance for Supporting Photographs for EHP Grant Submissions 

Minimum requirements for photographs 

Best Practices 

Options for Creating Photographs 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 598 of 778



Example Photographs 

Aerial Photographs

Ground-level photographs. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 599 of 778



Ground-level photograph with equipment 
close-up.

Ground-level photograph with excavation 
area close-up. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 600 of 778



Communications equipment 
photographs.

Interior equipment photographs. 

Ground-level photographs of nearby historic structures and buildings. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 601 of 778



                                          REQUEST FOR NONCOMPETITVE PROCUREMENT AUTHORIZATION
FOR USE WITH FY2020 AND PRIOR YEAR GRANT AWARDS ONLY

Grant Program:

Grant Award No.(s): FIPS #:

Subrecipient Name:

If Subaward, list second-tier subrecipient:

Project No.(s): 

Project Title(s): 

Requested Amount: Contract Total:

Vendor:

Please complete the following questions based on the entity making the purchase.

1. Describe what the proposed vendor/contractor will provide:

  
2. Has Cal OES approved a noncompetitive procurement for this item(s)/service(s) in the 

past?

   Yes  No

If Yes, attach the most recent approval letter and Noncompetitive Procurement 
Authorization form.

3. Is this noncompetitive procurement being made under a multi-year contract?

Yes  No          
   

If No, proceed to question 6.

4. If Yes to Question 3, has Cal OES approved a noncompetitive procurement in the past 
under this multi-year contract?

Yes  No            

If No, proceed to question 6.
   

5. If Cal OES has previously approved a noncompetitive procurement under this multi-
year contract, have there been any modifications since that approval? 

Yes  No            

Note: A price/cost analysis must be performed with every procurement above the 
Simplified Acquisition Threshold (SAT) including modifications. Modifications include any
change to the original contract, including extensions.

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 602 of 778



If Yes, proceed to question 8. 
If No, proceed to question 10.

6. Indicate which of the following circumstances resulted in your organization’s need to 
enter into a noncompetitive contract and describe the details of those circumstances 
for this request under the following below. See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart D, §200.320 (f).  

The item is available only from a single source. (Describe and detail the process 
used to make that determination.)

A public necessity or emergency for the requirement will not permit a delay resulting 
from competitive solicitation. (Describe the necessity or emergency. Provide details.)

After solicitation of a number of sources, the competition was determined 
inadequate. (Describe the solicitation process that determined competition was 
inadequate. Provide details including the length of the solicitation.)  

7. Describe your organization’s standard procedures when considering a noncompetitive 
procurement, including the conditions under which a noncompetitive procurement is 
allowed, and any other applicable criteria (i.e., approval requirements, monetary 
thresholds, etc.).

8. Attach a copy of the cost/price analysis for this procurement or contract modification if 
above the SAT.

9. Do you have documentation to support profit negotiation? See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart 
D, §200.323 (b). 

Yes  No

Note:  Profit must be negotiated for each contract in which there is no price 
competition and in all cases where cost analysis is performed.

10.     Certification:

This is to certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the data furnished on this form is 
accurate, complete and current. We further certify that this procurement has followed local 
procurement policies, and state and federal guidelines. We understand that any fraudulent 
information contained on this form may affect the allowability of federal funding for this item 
and/or have an effect on future Cal OES funding for this organization.

Purchasing 
Agent:

Name: Signature: Date:

Primary 
Subrecipient:

Name: Signature: Date:

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 603 of 778



Cal OES Internal Use Only

Date Submitted:

Procurement Type: Single Source   Public Emergency   Inadequate Competition

Attachments enclosed: 

Previous Approval Letter
Previous Noncompetitive Procurement Authorization Request form for this item(s)/service(s)
Cost/Price Analysis
Other Supporting Documents: ______________________________________________ 

Program Representative Review - Comments:

Unit Chief Review - Comments:

Approved           Denied

Grants Procurement Compliance Manager – Comments:

Grants Procurement Compliance Manager: Date:

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 604 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 605 of 778



Mayor's Office of Public Safety
City of Los Angeles
Subrecipient Grants Management Assessment

1 Very Low
2 Low 
3 Medium 
4 High 
5 Very High 

Information
Date of Assessment
Grant Name and Grant Year
Subrecipient Name
Type of Non-Federal Entity (Local, JPA, Non-Profit)
Grant Administration Yes In Progress No N/A Scoring

1. Prior to receiving a subaward from the City of Los Angeles, 
did the organization receive a Federal grant (direct or
indirectly) within the past 3 years? If Yes, please indicate the 
total number of Federal awards in the Comments section.
2. Does the organization have written policies and procedures
in place in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, that include 
procedures for procurements, travel, contractual services and 
records retention? 
3. Does the organization have a method in place to track 
projects performed under Federal awards?
4. Does the organization have a method in place to track 
revenues and expenditures separately and distinctly from
other sources of revenues and expenditures?
5. Does the organization have a method in place to track 
costs incurred against the approved grant budget?
Personnel Yes In Progress No N/A Scoring
6. Are the individuals with primary responsibility for the fiscal 
and administrative oversight of the grant familiar with the 
applicable grants management rules, principles, and 
regulations including the Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (2 CFR Part 200)?

7. Does the organization have a structure in place whereby 
the preparer of documents is different than the approver?
8. Are timesheets used to track the time staff spend on 
specific grants?
Audits Yes In Progress No N/A Scoring

9. Did the organization receive more than $750,000 in Federal 
awards in the past fiscal year? If No, skip to Question 13.
10. Was a single audit report completed per OMB Circular A-
133? If No, skip to Question 13.
11. Did the single audit result in 'No Findings?' If Yes, skip to
Question 13.
12. If findings were identified, have the findings been 
resolved?
Monitoring Yes In Progress No N/A Scoring
13. Does the organization have documented policies and 
procedures in place related to fraud investigations and 
reporting?
14. Does the organization have equipment monitoring 
policies in place, including the tracking and safeguarding of 
equipment?
15. Does the organization inventory grant-funded equipment
at least every two years?

Final Score

Name/Title of Preparer Signature Date

Name/Title of Mayor's Office Reviewer #1 Date

Name/Title of Mayor's Office Reviewer #2 Date

Mayor's 
Office
Use
Only 

Risk Scoring 

Signature

Signature

Comments

Comments

Comments

Comments

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 606 of 778



ATTACHMENT “D” 

 
 

 
 

 
NOTICE INVITING BIDS 

Notice is hereby given that sealed bids 
will be received by the City of San 

Fernando, California, for furnishing the 
following:    

 
POLICE DEPARTMENT PURCHASE of a 

MOBILE AUTOMATED LICENCE PLATE READER (ALPR) 
TRAILER WITH RELATED EQUIPMENT AND 

ACCESSORIES 
 
This Notice Inviting Bids subsequent Invitation to Bid is in strict accordance with the 
Specifications on file in the office of the San Fernando Finance Department, 117 Macneil 
Street, San Fernando, California, 91340. Copies of specifications and bid proposal 
documents may be obtained from the City’s website at http://www.ci.san-
fernando.ca.us/_overview/pr-rfp-rfq.shtml.  
 
One original and one copy of the proposal must be submitted to the POLICE 
DEPARTMENT care of the office of the San Fernando City Clerk in a properly labeled 
and sealed envelope at the OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK located at SAN FERNANDO 
CITY HALL, 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, California, 91340, not later than 5:00 PM 
on Thursday, January 12, 2023.  Late bids will not be accepted. Bids shall be submitted 
in a sealed envelope marked on the outside as follows: “Sealed Bid for Police 
Department ALPR Mobile Trailer: Do Not Open with Regular Mail.”  
 
Any bidder may withdraw their proposal, without obligation, at any time prior to the 
scheduled closing time for receipt of proposals.  A withdrawal will not be effective unless 
made personally or by electronic mail notification received prior to the closing date.  The 
award of any contract pursuant to this bid solicitation will be subject to City Council 
approval.   The City Council, in its sole and absolute discretion, reserves the right to reject 
any or all bids as the best interests of the City may dictate.  
 
By: ________________________ 
      Julia Fritz, City Clerk  
 
Published in The San Fernando Sun on December 29, 2022  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 607 of 778

http://www.ci.san-fernando.ca.us/_overview/pr-rfp-rfq.shtml
http://www.ci.san-fernando.ca.us/_overview/pr-rfp-rfq.shtml


 

Page -2-  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Police Department Invitation and 
Instructions for Bidders with Bid 
Forms for the Purchase of Mobile 
Automated License Plate Reader 

(ALPR) Trailer  
 
I. INTRODUCTION 
 

The City of San Fernando (“City” or “Police Department”) is seeking bids from qualified 
firms (hereinafter “Bidder”) to furnish a new Mobile ALPR (Automated License Plate 
Reader) Trailer (the “Vehicle”). Sealed bids will be received at the Office of the City 
Clerk, City Hall, 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, California, from December 22, 
2022 until January 12, 2023. 
 
Copies of specifications and bid documents may be obtained from the City’s website 
at http://www.ci.san-fernando.ca.us/_overview/pr-rfp-rfq.shtml. One original and one 
copy of the bid documents must be submitted to the POLICE DEPARTMENT in a 
properly labeled and sealed envelope at CITY HALL, 117 Macneil Street, San 
Fernando, California, 91340, not later than 5:00 PM on Thursday, January 12, 2023.  
Late bids will not be accepted. Bids shall be submitted in a sealed envelope marked 
on the outside as follows: “Sealed Bid for Police Department ALPR Mobile Trailer Do 
Not Open with Regular Mail.” 
 
Questions regarding the Vehicle are due by 5:00 PM on January 4, 2023 and must 
be submitted by email to Lieutenant Nichole Hanchett at nhanchett@sfcity.org with 
the following as its subject line: Invitation for Bids for Police Department Mobile ALPR 
Trailer - Questions. All firms registered for the bid will receive responses to all 
questions and any other addenda that may be released, electronically by January 6, 
2023 by 5:00 PM. 

 

II. BID SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS 
 

The City’s designated staff will evaluate all bids received. Bids must be submitted as 
provided in the Introduction as set forth above.  
 
During the review process, the City reserves the right, where it may serve the City’s 
best interest, to request additional information or clarification from those that submit 
bids, or allow clarifications, corrections of errors, or omissions. Any and all changes 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 608 of 778

http://www.ci.san-fernando.ca.us/_overview/pr-rfp-rfq.shtml
mailto:nhanchett@sfcity.org


 

Page -3-  

in the bid will be made by written addendum, which shall be issued by the City to all 
prospective bidders who have been issued or obtained copies of the Notice Inviting 
Bids from the City’s Clerk or the City website. 

 
The City reserves the right to retain all bids submitted. Submission of a bid indicates 
the Bidder’s acceptance of the conditions contained in this Invitation for Bids, unless 
clearly and specifically noted in the bids submitted and confirmed in the contract 
between the City and the Bidder selected. 

 
The preparation of the bid will be at the total expense of the Bidder. There is no 
expressed or implied obligation for the City to reimburse responding Bidders for any 
expense incurred in the preparation of bids in response to this request. All bids 
submitted to the City shall become properties of the City and will not be returned. If 
any information in your bid is confidential and/or proprietary, please further submit a 
separate, redacted copy for servicing public records requests. Bidder is liable for all 
errors or omissions incurred in preparing the Bid. Bidders will not be allowed to alter 
bid documents after the due date for submission. 
 
The City reserves the right to reject any or all bids, in whole or part, to waive any 
informalities or irregularities in the selected bid as may be permitted by law in any 
bid, and to accept the bid which, in its discretion, is in the best interest of the City. 
The City of San Fernando reserves the right to reject a Bidder who has been 
delinquent or unfaithful in any former agreement with the City, should it deem it 
necessary for the public good. The City reserves the right to take all bids under 
advisement for a period of thirty (30) days. No Bidder may withdraw their Bid for a 
period of thirty (30) days after the date from the opening thereof.  
 
Bids must be prepared on the approved Bid Forms in conformance with these Bid 
Submission Instructions and submitted in a sealed envelope plainly marked on the 
outside.  
 
Delivery and Delay: In the event the delivery of the Vehicle under this contract is 
delayed due to strikes, injunctions, government controls, or by reason of any cause 
or circumstance beyond the control of the bidder, the terms of delivery may be 
extended by a number of days to be determined in each instance by mutual written 
agreement between the successful bidder and the City representative of the City of 
San Fernando. 
 
Bidder shall provide electronic communication of delivery status to the City 
representative 30 days prior to the bidder’s original delivery date and every seven (7) 
days thereafter to conclude on date of delivery.  
 
In the event the awarded bidder fails to make complete delivery of the item(s) as 
specified, bid and awarded, within ten (10) calendar days of the specified contract 
delivery date, the City shall have the right to assess a monetary penalty equal to 
$100/day. The City shall have the right to terminate the contract without being liable 
to the bidder and acquire said item(s) as the City deems appropriate. It is further 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 609 of 778



 

Page -4-  

agreed that in the event such damages are sustained by the City, the City shall deduct 
the amount thereof from any monies due or that may become due the Vendor under 
the contract or take other action as the City deems appropriate. 
 
Important Note:  The foregoing notwithstanding, time is of the essence with respect 
to the delivery of all equipment solicited under this bid.  It is materially important that 
delivery of all equipment be fully and successfully completed by or before 5:00 PM 
on March 15, 2023, as referenced below.   Any bidder who submits a bid warrants 
and represents that it is able to meet the City’s March 15, 2023 delivery requirements. 

 
III. BID INQUIRIES 

Questions with regards to this Bid should be submitted by email to Lieutenant Nichole 
Hanchett: nhanchett@sfcity.org by January 4, 2022, by 5:00 PM. All firms registered 
for the bid will receive responses to all questions and any other addenda that may be 
released, electronically by January 6, 2023 by 5:00 PM. 
 

IV. BID SCHEDULE 

The City reserves the right to make changes to the below schedule, but plans to 
adhere to the implementation of this bid process as follows: 

Notice Inviting Bids Issued:   December 22, 2022  

Deadline for Receiving Questions:  January 4, 2023 5:00 PM 

Response to Questions Issued:  January 6, 2023 5:00 PM 

Bids Due:     January 12, 2023 5:00 PM 

Vendor Awarded:    February 6, 2023 10:00 AM  
 
 
V. EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION & SPECIFICATIONS; DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS 

 
The Police Department of the City of San Fernando intends to procure a Mobile ALPR 
Trailer from a qualified dealer to meet or exceed the specifications outlined below and 
in the attached Bid Forms. Bids must include an exact delivery date, which is be 
evaluated as part of Bidder’s formal bid offering.  
 
Vehicle delivery date must be made on or before 5:00 PM on March 15, 2023. 
Bidder must be willing and able to accept wire transfer from City of purchase funds. 
Vendor must show payment has been cashed with proof of deposit on or before March 
27, 2023. 
 
The Bidder should identify any additional standards required, price them, and explain 
them in their response. Bidders are required to state the complete unit price, including 
sales tax. Prices quoted shall be F.O.B. City of San Fernando, CA. 
 
The final determinant for “equal product” quotes shall solely be the City of San 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 610 of 778

mailto:nhanchett@sfcity.org


 

Page -5-  

Fernando. Submission of nay quote or proposal shall be subject to this determination 
and will be a consideration in the presentation and bid award. Any bidder submitting a 
quote or proposal shall do so fully accepting this determinant procedure.  
 
The Vehicle being sought under this Invitation to Bid includes but is not limited to the 
following: 

Portable Mobile Surveillance Trailer 
 Telescoping mast of at least 20’ 
 900 AH batteries  
 1140 solar watt panel 
 DOT approved lighting  
 Anti-theft measures including locking compartments and wheel lock 

24V DC 35 Watt DC to DC switch 
24VDC Dual Channel HI POE 70W 
 
Dual Automated License Plate Reader (ALPR) Cameras 

 4k resolution 
 Infrared (IR) 
 LPR  
 Independent, contract free storage (no ongoing subscription fees) 

 
Dual Video Cameras: 
2MP resolution 
At least 32 X IR PTZ 
Look up tilt 360 degrees   

 
Ruggedized Cellular Router Kit: 

 Connectivity across variety of mobile applications 
 16 port network switch 
 

Network Video Recorder:  
 Ruggedized 8 GB Laptop server with configuration 
 Remote monitoring  
 Video software preloaded 
 2 TB video storage 
 Windows 10 operating system 
 

Radar with Programmable Message Board 
 Internal K band radar 

Radar and message capability 
 

Fisheye camera  
Infrared  
Various detection abilities to prevent theft or tampering  

 
Lighting with remote operation 

 
Speaker with remote operation 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 611 of 778



 

Page -6-  

Color:  white 
 

Hardware and software warranties, all required mounting brackets 
included 

 
VI. EVALUATION OF BIDS 

The City award shall be made to the lowest responsible and responsive Bidder. The 
lowest responsive bid shall be based on the total base bid price. In determining if a 
Bidder is responsible, Bids will be judged on the Bidder’s ability to provide 
goods/equipment that meet the requirements set forth in this document. The City 
reserves the right to make such investigations as it deems necessary to determine 
the ability of the Bidder to provide goods meeting a satisfactory level of performance 
in accordance with the City’s requirements. Interviews and presentations by one, 
several, or all of the Bidders may be requested by evaluators if deemed necessary 
to fully understand and compare the Bidder’s capabilities and qualifications. The 
adequacy, depth, and clarity of the Bid will influence, to a considerable degree, its 
evaluation. The award of the Bid, if made, will be determined solely by the City of San 
Fernando.  
 
Acceptance of a bid does not constitute a contract with the City. A contract shall be 
created only by issuance of a Purchase Order by City. Said Purchase Order shall 
contain the terms and conditions set forth in Exhibit A, as attached hereto.  
Agreement to the terms and conditions set forth in Exhibit A are material to the City’s 
ability to award a contract in response to this solicitation.  By submitting a bid, a bidder 
warrants and represents that it will comply fully with all of the terms and conditions 
set forth under Exhibit A without exception or modification.  
 
Disputes or protests regarding the bidding process must be submitted in writing (via 
email or hard copy) to the Office of the City Clerk  CityClerk@sfcity.org or at City Hall, 
117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, California, by or before 5:00 PM on the fourth 
(4th) working day following the bid opening. Submissions must be submitted by a 
Bidder with a complete and detailed statement of the factual and legal basis for the 
protest, an explanation for the resulting prejudice that the protestor will suffer and 
supporting documentation for such prejudice. The City will review that protest and 
provide a written response to the protester. The decision of the City shall be final.  No 
public hearing will be held on the protest, except as required by law. Time being of 
the essence, the City reserves the right to proceed with award of the Agreement and 
commencement of the Services notwithstanding any pending protest or legal 
challenge.   If the City determines that a protest is frivolous, the protesting Bidder 
may be determined to be nonresponsible and that Bidder may be determined to be 
ineligible for future contract awards. 

 
VII.  VENDOR REGISTRATION  
 

The selected Bidder must be registered with System of Award Management (SAM), 
an official website of the U.S. Government. Register through www.SAM.gov to 
receive a Unique Entry ID, a 12-character alphanumeric ID assigned free of charge.  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 612 of 778

mailto:CityClerk@sfcity.org
http://www.sam.gov/


 

Page -7-  

 
VIII.  FUNDING SOURCE 
 

This procurement is funded through the FY 2020 Urban Area Security Initiative 
(UASI) Grant Program and through Subaward Agreement Number 1985 of City 
Contracts between the City of Los Angeles and the City of San Fernando. City hereby 
provides notice to Bidders of its intended use of federal funding, in whole or in part, 
for the purchase of the Vehicle, as required by Department of Homeland Security 
(DHS) Standard Terms and Conditions and Cal OES Federal Grant Programs.  
 

IX.  FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS  
 

The City, as Subrecipient party to the hereinabove described Subaward Agreement, 
is required to follow federal procurement procedures that shall be included as part of 
the terms and conditions of the City’s Purchase and set forth in a written Purchase 
Order. 

 
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 613 of 778



 

Page -8-  

                        EXHIBIT A 

TERMS & CONDITIONS OF PURCHASE ORDERS FOR GOODS AND SERVICES 

1. PURCHASE OF GOODS & SERVICES. City agrees to purchase, and Vendor 
agrees to sell, the goods (“Goods”) and to provide the services related to the 
installation or delivery of such goods (“Services”) set forth in (i) the City’s Notice 
Inviting Bids or other written solicitation of bids (“City’s Bid Documents”) by the 
City (sometimes hereinafter referred to as “Purchasing Agent”) and (ii) Vendor’s 
Bid in response thereto (“Vendor’s Bid”). The City’s Bid Documents and the 
Vendor’s Bid shall be referred to collectively as the “Bid Documents.” The Goods 
shall comply with all of the standards and specifications set forth in the Bid 
Documents, and the Services shall be provided in a manner consistent with that 
level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members in the same profession, 
practicing in the same locality under similar conditions. In the event of any 
conflict, the order of precedent shall be as follows: (i) specifications set forth in 
this Purchase Order; (ii) City’s Bid Documents; and (iii) Vendor’s Bid. There 
shall be no substitution of Goods or Services, without the prior written 
authorization of the Purchasing Agent.  

2. CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT. City and Vendor shall execute a contract for 
the purchase and sale of the Goods and Services (“Purchase Order”) 
incorporating these Terms and Conditions. 

 
3. DELIVERY DATE. The Goods must be shipped and must arrive at the 

destination specified on the Purchase Order as “Ship/Bill To” and Services 
must be provided by the Vendor by or before the request date specified therein 
(“Required Delivery Date”). Any failure by the Vendor to meet the Required 
Delivery Date will constitute a material default of this Purchase Order and the 
City may cancel any Goods not delivered in a timely manner. The Vendor must 
notify the City immediately if the Vendor reasonably believes the Vendor will not 
be able to meet the Required Delivery Date for any reason and provide the City 
with a schedule that the Vendor reasonably believes it will be able to meet.  

 
4. PURCHASE PRICE. The purchase price for the Goods and Services shall be 

the amount set forth in this Purchase Order. Vendor represents that the prices 
quoted to or paid by the City will not exceed current prices charged to any other 
customer by the Vendor on the Execution Date for items that are the same or 
substantially similar to the Goods, taking into consideration the quantity under 
consideration, and the Vendor will forthwith refund any amounts paid by the 
City in excess of the price. 

 
5. CANCELLATION. The City reserves the right to cancel any portion of this 

Purchase Order at any time prior to the delivery of Goods and Services. 
 

6. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party to this Purchase Order will be held responsible 
for delay or default caused by acts of God or other conditions that are beyond 
that party’s reasonable control. A party defaulting under this provision must 
provide the other party prompt written notice of the default. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 614 of 778



 

Page -9-  

 
7. DELAY. In the event the delivery of the Vehicle under this contract is delayed 

due to strikes, injunctions, government controls, or by reason of any cause or 
circumstance beyond the control of the bidder, the terms of delivery may be 
extended by a number of days to be determined in each instance by mutual 
written agreement between the successful bidder and the Purchasing Agent of 
the City of Victorville. In the event the bidder fails to make complete delivery of 
the item(s) as specified, bid and awarded, within ten (10) calendar days of the 
specified contract delivery date, the City shall have the right to assess a 
monetary penalty equal to $100/day. The City shall have the right to terminate 
the contract without being liable to the bidder and acquire said item(s) as the 
City deems appropriate. It is further agreed that in the event such damages are 
sustained by the City, the City shall deduct the amount thereof from any monies 
due or that may become due the Vendor under the contract or take other action 
as the City deems appropriate. 

 
8. TERMINATION, DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. The City may immediately 

terminate this Purchase Order for convenience, without cause and without 
penalty or liability at any time upon the issuance of written notice to Vendor 
specifying the effective date of such termination.  Such termination for 
convenience shall be made in writing signed by an appropriate City 
Representative. Vendor may only terminate this Purchase Order for cause. 
Either of the following constitutes cause to declare this Purchase Order in 
default: (1) Nonperformance of contractual requirements, or (2) A material 
breach of any term or condition of the Purchase Order. The party claiming default 
must provide written notice of the default, with 30 calendar days to cure the 
default. Time allowed for cure will not diminish or eliminate any liability for 
liquidated or other damages. If the default remains after the opportunity for cure, 
the non-defaulting party may: (a) Exercise any remedy provided by law or equity, 
or (b) Terminate the Purchase Order or any portion thereof, including any orders 
issued against the Purchase Order. 

 
9. DELIVERY RISK OF LOSS. All orders will be F.O.B. destination if not 

otherwise specified. Risk of loss or damage to the Goods shall remain with the 
Vendor until the Goods have been delivered to and accepted by the City. All 
Goods and Services will be received by the City subject to its right of inspection, 
rejection, and revocation of acceptance under the Uniform Commercial Code. 
The City will be allowed a reasonable period of time to inspect the Goods and 
Services and to notify Vendor of any nonconformance with the terms and 
conditions of the specifications. The City may reject any Goods and Services 
that do not conform to the terms and conditions of the Bid Documents. Any 
Goods and Services rejected may be returned to the Vendor at the Vendor’s 
risk and expense. 

 
10. INVOICES. An invoice must be emailed to the City at the address specified in 

the Purchase Order as “Ship/Bill To” on or before the day the shipment is 
made. Individual invoices must be issued for each shipment against each 
Purchase Order. Invoices must contain the Purchase Order number, description 
of Goods and Services, unit price, quantities billed, extended totals, and 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 615 of 778



 

Page -10-  

applicable taxes.   
 

11. PACKING AND SHIPPING. Deliveries must be made as specified, without 
charge, for boxing, crating or storage unless otherwise specified. Goods must 
be suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and, in accordance 
with the requirements of common carriers, in a manner to assure against 
damage from weather or transportation. The City’s order numbers and symbols 
must be plainly marked on all invoices, packages and shipping orders. Packing 
lists specifying the quantity, description, and Purchase Order Number must 
accompany each box or packing shipment. The City’s count or weight will be 
final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by packing lists. 
Shipments for two or more destinations when so directed by the City will be 
shipped in separate boxes or containers for each destination, at no charge. 

 
12. TAXES. The Vendor must separately state on all invoices any taxes imposed 

by the local, state or federal state government applicable to furnishing of Goods 
and Services; provided, however, where a tax exemption is available, the tax 
must be subtracted from the total price and identified. Unless otherwise set 
forth in the Purchase Order, the purchase price will be considered to include 
state and city sales or use tax. 

 
13. WARRANTY. The Vendor warrants that all Goods will conform to applicable 

specifications, drawings, description, and samples, and will be merchantable, 
of good workmanship in material, and free from defect. Unless manufactured 
pursuant to detailed design furnished by the City, the Vendor assumes design 
responsibility and warrants the Goods to be free from design defect and 
suitable for the purposes intended by the City, and that such Goods if installed 
by the Vendor shall conform to applicable specifications. The Vendor’s 
warranties, together with its service guarantees, must run to the City and its 
customers or users of the Goods and Services and must not be deemed 
exclusive. The City’s inspection, approval, acceptance, use of, and payment for 
all or any part of the Goods and Services must in no way affect its warranty 
rights whether or not a breach of warranty had become evident in time. 

 
14. CHANGES. The City has the right, by written notice, to change the quantity or 

specifications of the Goods and Services ordered and the terms of shipment or 
packaging of Goods.  Upon receipt of any notice, the Vendor will proceed 
promptly to make the changes in accordance with the terms of the notice. If any 
change causes an increase or decrease in the cost or performance or in the 
time required for performance, an equitable adjustment must be negotiated 
promptly, and the contract modified in writing accordingly. The Vendor must 
deliver to the City as promptly as possible, and in any event within 30 days after 
receipt of change notice, a statement showing the effect of any change in the 
delivery dates and prices; the statement must be supplemented within 30 days 
by detailed specification of the amount of the price adjustment and supporting 
cost figures. The Vendor’s failure to submit the statements within the time limits 
stated will constitute its consent to perform the change without increase in price, 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 616 of 778



 

Page -11-  

without claim for material rendered obsolete and without change in delivery 
schedules. 

 
15. INDEMNITY. The Vendor assumes all responsibility for, and agrees to 

undertake, to protect, indemnify , defend and hold harmless the City, the City 
Council, each of its members, present and future, and its officers, employees, 
agents (collectively, the “City”), from any and all liabilities, losses, claims, suits, 
judgments and causes of action for damage to property and injuries to persons, 
including death, and from any cost and expense, including recall expenses and 
attorney’s fees, arising out of or related to (i) Goods and Services provided 
pursuant to this Purchase Order, (ii) Vendor’s negligence; (iv) allegations that 
the Goods are defective in manufacture or design; and 
(v) any patent related to the Goods. 

 
16. INTERPRETATION. The terms of this Purchase Order should be construed in 

accordance with the meaning of the language used and should not be 
construed for or against either party by reason of the authorship of this Purchase 
Order or any other rule of construction that might otherwise apply. 

 
17. GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION. This Purchase Order shall be construed 

in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of California. The 
purchase of Goods shall take place in the City of San Fernando, California. For 
any dispute arising from this Purchase Order, the parties consent to jurisdiction 
and venue in the Los Angeles Superior Court. 

 
18. NONTRANSFERABILITY. The Vendor may not transfer or assign this 

Purchase Order, without the prior written approval of the Purchasing Agent, 
which may be withheld in his/her sole discretion. 

 
19. DISCOUNTS. The date used as the basis for discount calculation shall be 

computed from the date of receipt of invoice, Goods and Services, whichever 
is later. 

 
20. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW. Vendor agrees to comply with all 

applicable federal, state and local law in connection with the performance of this 
Purchase Order. 

 
21. INTEGRATION; AMENDMENT. This Purchase Order represents the entire 

understanding of the City and the Vendor as to those matters contained herein. 
No prior oral or written understanding will be of any force or effect with respect to 
the terms of this Purchase Order. The Purchase Order may not be modified 
except in writing through an amended Purchase Order.  

 
22. SPECIAL FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS. City is purchasing the Vehicle with 

federal funds. Vendors are therefore subject to compliance with the following 
additional requirements under federal law.  

 
A. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. Except as otherwise provided 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 617 of 778



 

Page -12-  

under 41 C.F.R. § 60, all contracts that meet the definition of “federally 
assisted construction contract” in 41 C.F.R. § 60-1.3 must include the equal 
opportunity clause provided under 41 C.F.R. § 60-1.4(b), in accordance with 
Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 
12935, 3 C.F.R. §, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive 
Order 11375, “Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal 
Employment Opportunity,” and implementing regulations at 41 C.F.R. § 60, 
“Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment 
Opportunity, Department of Labor.” The equal opportunity clause is 
incorporated herein by reference. 
 

B. DAVIS-BACON ACT, AS AMENDED (40 U.S.C. § 3141-3148). When 
required by federal program legislation, all prime construction contracts in 
excess of $2,000 awarded by nonfederal entities must include a provision for 
compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. § 3141-3144, and 3146-
3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5, 
“Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally 
Financed and Assisted Construction”). In accordance with the statute, 
contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a 
rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination 
made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to 
pay wages not less than once a week. The non-federal entity must place a 
copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department 
of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract 
must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The 
non-federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the 
federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for 
compliance with the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145), as 
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 3, 
“Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed 
in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States”). The Act 
provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from 
inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, 
completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation 
to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-federal entity must report 
all suspected or reported violations to the federal awarding agency. Vendor 
must comply with all applicable Davis-Bacon Act provisions. 
 

C. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT (40 U.S.C. 
§ 3701-3708). Where applicable, all contracts awarded by a non-federal 
entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or 
laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. §§ 3702 and 
3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5). 
Under 40 U.S.C. § 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to 
compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard 
work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is 
permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than 
one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 
40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. § 3704 are 
applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 618 of 778



 

Page -13-  

be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are 
unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the 
purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open 
market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. This 
provision is hereby incorporated by reference into this Purchase Order. 
Vendor certifies that during the term of an award for all contracts by Vendor 
resulting from this procurement process, Vendor must comply with applicable 
requirements as referenced above. 

 
D. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR 

AGREEMENT. If the federal award meets the definition of “funding 
agreement” under 37 C.F.R. § 401.2(a) and the recipient or subrecipient 
wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit 
organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance 
of experimental, developmental, or research work under that “funding 
agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements 
of 37 C.F.R. § 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations 
and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and 
Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the 
awarding agency. Vendor certifies that during the term of an award for all this 
Purchase Order with by City resulting from this procurement process, Vendor 
must comply with applicable requirements as referenced above. 

 
E. CLEAN AIR ACT (42 U.S.C. § 7401-7671Q.) AND THE FEDERAL WATER 

POLLUTION CONTROL ACT (33 U.S.C. § 1251-1387). Contracts and 
subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 require the non-federal award 
to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued 
pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401- 7671q) and the Federal 
Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251- 1387). Violations 
must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of 
the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Vendor certifies that during the 
term of this Purchase Order agreement Vendor will comply with applicable 
requirements as referenced above. 

 
F. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDERS 12549 AND 

12689). A contract award (see 2 C.F.R. § 180.220) must not be made to 
parties listed on the government wide exclusions in the System for Award 
Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 C.F.R. 
§180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 C.F.R. § 1986 Comp., p. 
189) and 12689 (3 C.F.R. § 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and 
Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred, 
suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared 
ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 
12549. Vendor certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently 
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from participation by any federal department or agency. 

 
G. BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT, AS AMENDED (31 U.S.C. § 1352). 

Vendors must file any required certifications. Vendors must not have used 
federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 619 of 778



 

Page -14-  

or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member 
of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member 
of Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant, or any 
other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Vendors must disclose any 
lobbying with non-federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining 
any federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier, up to the 
non-federal award. Vendors must file all certifications and disclosures 
required by, and otherwise comply with, the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment 
(31 U.S.C. § 1352). 

 
H. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS (2 C.F.R. § 200.322). A 

non-federal entity that is a state agency or agency of a political subdivision 
of a state and its contractors must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid 
Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items 
designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 
C.F.R. § 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials 
practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, 
where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the 
quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; 
procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes 
energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement 
program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA 
guidelines. 

 
I. PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO 

SURVEILLANCE SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT. To the extent applicable, 
Vendor certifies that during the term of this Purchase Order it will comply with 
applicable requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 200.216. 

 
J. DOMESTIC PREFERENCES FOR PROCUREMENTS. To the extent 

applicable, Vendor certifies that during the term of this Contract will comply 
with applicable requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 200.322. 
 

 
 
 

 
  

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 620 of 778



EXHIBIT B 
REQUIRED BID FORMS 

 
 
 

   

Page -15- 

  
A. BID SUMMARY & AUTHORIZATION FOR BID:  

San Fernando Police Department - MOBILE ALPR TRAILER VEHICLE 
 
BID SUMMARY: 

 
TOTAL BASE BID AMOUNT (including delivery): $  

 
TOTAL BASE BID PRICE IN WRITTEN WORDS: $  

 
 
BID AUTHORIZATION: 

 
BIDDER/COMPANY NAME:   

 
ADDRESS:   

 
CITY, STATE, ZIP:   

 
TELEPHONE NUMBER:   

 
FAX NUMBER:   

 
EMAIL ADDRESS:   

 
By submission of this Bid, the undersigned certifies that: 

• All of the terms, conditions and requirements of the agreement as stated in the 
specifications, subsequent pages, addenda and notices are understood and 
accepted; 

 
• It has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide 

employee working solely for the Bidder, to solicit or secure this agreement and 
that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for Bidder, any fee, percentage, brokerage fee, 
gifts, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award 
or making of this contract. For violation of this warranty, the City shall have the 
right to annul this agreement without liability; 

 
• The prices contained in this bid are truthful, accurate and have been arrived at 

independently and without collusion, consultation, communication, or 
agreement intended to restrict the competition; and 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 621 of 778



EXHIBIT B 
REQUIRED BID FORMS 

 
 
 

   

Page -16- 

 
• It has the full authority of the Bidder to execute the Bid and execute any 

resulting agreement awarded as the result of, or on the basis of, the bid. 
 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE:   
 
TITLE:   

 
SIGNATURE:   DATE:   

 
  
B. REFERENCES 

 
Provide the name, address, contact information and a brief description of 
goods/services provided from at least three (3) references. References must be for a 
project of similar specifications within the past five (5) years. 

 
1. 

 
Company/Organization Name 

 
Contact Name & Title 

 
Address 

 
City State Zip 

 
Telephone Email 

 
Description (Include dates goods/services provided):  

 

 

  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 622 of 778



EXHIBIT B 
REQUIRED BID FORMS 

 
 
 

   

Page -17- 

 
 
2. 

 
Company/Organization Name 

 
Contact Name & Title 

 
Address 

 
City State Zip 

 
Telephone Email 

 
Description (Include dates goods/services provided):  

 

 

 
3. 

Company/Organization Name 
 

 
Contact Name & Title 

 
Address 

 
City State Zip 

 
Telephone Email 

 
Description (Include dates goods/services provided):  

 

 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 623 of 778



EXHIBIT B 
REQUIRED BID FORMS 

 
 
 

   

Page -18- 

 
ADDITIONAL REFERENCE: 

 
4. 

Company/Organization Name 

 
Contact Name & Title 

 
Address 

 
City State Zip 

 
Telephone Email 

 
Description (Include dates goods/services provided):  

 

 

 
 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 624 of 778



EXHIBIT B 
REQUIRED BID FORMS 

 
 

Page -19-  

  

 

  
C. BID FEE SCHEDULE 

 
The undersigned has carefully checked the above figures and understands that the City, 
or any officer thereof, will not be responsible for any errors or omissions on the part of the 
undersigned in submitting this bid. In case of a discrepancy unit prices and totals, the unit 
prices shall prevail. All amounts and totals given in the Bid Schedule are subject to 
verification by the City. 

 

ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT 
PRICE 

EXTENDED 
AMOUNT 

 

1. 

  
SFPD Mobile ALPR Trailer 

 

$ 

 

$ 

2.  Shipping and Handling Charges $ $ 

  
Other:   

 
 
$ 

 
 
$ 

Subtotal $ 

Sales Tax (10.25%) $ 

BASE BID TOTAL $ 

 
 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE:   
 
 
TITLE:   

 
 
SIGNATURE:   DATE:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 625 of 778



EXHIBIT B 
REQUIRED BID FORMS 

 
 

Page -20-  

  

 

 
D. ADDITIONAL SPECIFICATIONS for SFPD Mobile ALPR Trailer and 

Accessories:  
 

All Bids must meet this minimum requested specifications. Any deviation or change from 
requested specifications shall be clearly identified by Bidder in the spaces provided below. 

 
CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX FOR ITEMS (INCLUDED OR NOT INCLUDED) 

 
 

SPECIFICATION 
 

INCLUDED 
NOT 

INCLUDED 
Portable Mobile Surveillance Trailer   

Telescoping mast of at least 20’   

900 AH batteries   

1140 solar watt panel   

DOT approved lighting   
Anti-theft measures including locking 
compartments and wheel lock   

24V DC 35 Watt DC to DC switch   

24VDC Dual Channel HI POE 70W   
Bidder’s Response/Exceptions (if any): 
 
 
 

  

Dual Automated License Plate Reader (ALPR) 
Cameras   

4k resolution   

Infrared (IR)   

LPR   
Independent, contract free storage (no ongoing 
subscription fees)   

Bidder’s Response/Exceptions (if any): 
 
 
 

  

Dual Video Cameras   

2MP resolution   

At least 32 X IR PTZ   

Look up tilt 360 degrees   

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 626 of 778



EXHIBIT B 
REQUIRED BID FORMS 

 
 

Page -21-  

  

 

 
SPECIFICATION 

 
INCLUDED 

NOT 
INCLUDED 

Bidder’s Response/Exceptions (if any): 
 
 
 

  

Ruggedized Cellular Router Kit   

Connectivity across variety of mobile applications   

16 port network switch   
Bidder’s Response/Exceptions (if any): 
 
 
 

  

Network Video Recorder   
Ruggedized 8 GB Laptop server with 
configuration   

Remote monitoring   

Video software preloaded   

2 TB video storage   

Windows 10 operating system   
Bidder’s Response/Exceptions (if any): 
 
 
 

  

Radar with Programmable Message Board   

Internal K band radar   

Radar and message capability   
Bidder’s Response/Exceptions (if any): 
 
 
 

  

Fisheye camera   

Infrared    
Various detection abilities to prevent theft or 
tampering   

Bidder’s Response/Exceptions (if any): 
 
 
 

  

Lighting with remote operation   

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 627 of 778



EXHIBIT B 
REQUIRED BID FORMS 

 
 

Page -22-  

  

 

 
SPECIFICATION 

 
INCLUDED 

NOT 
INCLUDED 

Bidder’s Response/Exceptions (if any): 
 
 
 

  

Speaker with remote operation   
Bidder’s Response/Exceptions (if any): 
 
 
 

  

Color   

White   
Bidder’s Response/Exceptions (if any): 
 
 
 

  

Hardware and software warranties, all required 
mounting brackets included   

Bidder’s Response/Exceptions (if any): 
 
 
 

  

 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 628 of 778



CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR 
CELESTE T. RODRIGUEZ 

VICE MAYOR 
MARY MENDOZA 

COUNCILMEMBER 
JOEL FAJARDO 

COUNCILMEMBER 
CINDY MONTAÑEZ 

COUNCILMEMBER 
MARY SOLORIO 

POLICE 
DEPARTMENT 

910 FIRST STREET 
SAN FERNANDO 
CALIFORNIA 
91340 

OFFICE OF THE 
POLICE CHIEF 
(818) 898-1250

DETECTIVE DIVISION 
(818) 898-1256

PATROL DIVISION 
(818) 898-1267

RECORDS DIVISION 
(818) 898-1281

SUPPORT SERVICES
DIVISION 
(818) 898-1267

WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

January 9, 2023 

RFP FOR POLICE DEPARTMENT PURCHASE OF A MOBILE AUTOMATED LICENSE PLATE 
READER (ALPR) TRAILER WITH RELATED EQUIPMENT AND ACCESSORIES. 

ADDENDUM NO.1 

Question No. 1:  “We are reviewing your RFP for ALPR Trailers and need more information 
on the lighting and speaker requirements.  Any specifications or details on how this will 
be used is appreciated.” 

Response No. 1: With regard to the lighting, we are looking for a system that is operated 
remotely and can provide illumination on the trailer to ensure high visibility and to 
prevent theft and tampering.   Regarding the speaker, we are looking for a system that 
can broadcast pre-recorded as well as live messages from the trailer. 

Question No. 2:  “Regarding the below requirement. Is your indication that ALPR data 
storage is to be in the Cloud, on the City’s infrastructure or on the Trailer itself?  
“Independent, contract free storage (no ongoing subscription fees)” 

Response No. 2:  The ALPR data would be stored within the ALPR cameras and on the lap 
top.   

Question No. 3:  “Are there any existing ALPR technologies such as software or server 
systems which this ALPR Trailer needs to be compatible with? If so which manufacturer 
and software suite or platform?”  

Response No. 3:  At present, our ALPR server is not functioning which is why we are 
interested in the remote storage. 

Question No. 4: “What if any are the existing video management system(s) which the 
video cameras need to be compatible with?”  

Response No. 4: Currently we utilize a system called OCCULARIS for our video 
management, however the trailer would be independent of that. 

ATTACHMENT "E"
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 629 of 778

http://www.sfcity.org/


RFP FOR POLICE DEPARTMENT PURCHASE OF A MOBILE AUTOMATED LICENSE PLATE 
READER (ALPR) TRAILER WITH RELATED EQUIPMENT AND ACCESSORIES CONTACT 
RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS 
ADDENDUM NO.1 
Page 2 of 2 

 

Question No. 5:  “Where are the video recordings intended to be stored? Such as in the 
Cloud, on the City’s in fracture or on the Trailer itself? Or is this up to the bidder’s 
discretion based on best practices?”  

Response No. 5: The camera data would be stored on the trailer itself and the laptop.  This 
enables the trailer to be deployed to our regional partners (surrounding police 
departments) if needed. 

Question No. 6:  “Is there a preference for the brand of Ruggedized Laptop?” 

Response No. 6:  No preference for the ruggedized laptop as long as it is durable, contains 
the required memory and has a warranty. 

Question No. 7:  “Is there a preference for the brand of Ruggedized Modem?” 

Response No. 7:  We currently use the Cradlepoint IBR series here at the PD in our police 
vehicles. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 630 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 631 of 778



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 632 of 778



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT           117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340           (818) 898-1227           WWW.SFCITY.ORG 
 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Kanika Kith, Director of Community Development  
   
Date:  February 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve a Second Amendment to the Professional Services 

Agreement with Interwest, a SAFEbuilt Company, for Additional On-Call Planning 
and Design Review Services and Related Budget Transfer to Fund the Agreement 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Approve a Second Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with Interwest, a 

SAFEbuilt Company (“Interwest”) (Attachment “A” – Contract No. 2069(b)), for on-call 
planning and design review services to increase the not-to-exceed amount to $225,000 and 
extend the contract through December 31, 2023; 
 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 8210 (Attachment “B”) authorizing a budget transfer of $84,315 from 
salary savings due to vacant positions to fund the on-call planning and design review 
professional services agreement; and 
 

c. Authorize the City Manager, or designee, to execute the Amendment and all related 
documents. 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

 
1. In early 2022, staff requested and received proposals from four planning firms, Willdan, 

Interwest, PlaceWorks, and Rincon, to provide on-call planning and design review services to 
support Planning staff.  
 

2. On April 14, 2022, the City Manager executed Contract No. 2069 (Exhibit “A” of Attachment 
“A”) in the amount of not-to-exceed $24,950 with Interwest to provide on-call planning and 
design review services. The primary factors used in selection was the proposed costs and 
project managers’ experience.   

 
3. On September 6, 2022, City Council approved a first amendment to the Professional Service 

Agreement with Interwest (Exhibit “A” of Attachment “A” – Contract No. 2069(a)) to increase 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 633 of 778



Consideration to Approve a Second Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with Interwest, 
a SAFEbuilt Company, for Additional On-Call Planning and Design Review Services and Related Budget 
Transfer to Fund the Agreement 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

the contract amount from $24,950 to $124,950 and to extend the contract from December 
31, 2022 to June 30, 2023.  

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
On April 14, 2022, the City Manager executed Contract No. 2069 with Interwest to provide on-
call planning and design review services.  The original contract amount of not-to-exceed $24,950 
was expected to be sufficient through the end of 2022 to have Interwest provide supplemental 
help to Planning staff.  However, due to the unexpected staffing vacancy of the Associate Planner 
position, Interwest has been assigned more projects and tasks to help with the day-to-day 
Planning operations than originally anticipated.  
 
On September 6, 2022, the City Council approved a first amendment to the Professional Service 
Agreement with Interwest to increase the contract amount to $124,950 and to extend the 
contract through June 30, 2023.  Since September 2022, Interwest has been providing a 
temporary full-time contract Planner to assist with the day-to-day planning operations, including 
staffing the public planning counter and processing small planning applications.  In addition to 
the temporary contract full-time Planner, Interwest has been providing two part-time Planners 
at a higher level to expedite the processing of larger development projects and assist with 
planning services, as needed.    
 
Since execution of the contract, Interwest has been providing the following services:   
 

• Assisting the public at the counter (no fees collected);  
• Answering questions from the public via phone and email (no fee collected);  
• Conducting preliminary review of potential development projects (no fees collected); 
• Processing development projects (application fees collected); and 
• Assisting with Housing Element review, drafting Senate Bill 9 Ordinance, and Temporary 

Landscape Regulations (no fee collected).  
 
The City recently filled the vacant Associate Planner staff position in early January 2023.  The 
Associate Planner has been assigned to work on long-range planning matters, such as researching 
the impact of artificial turf, revising landscape regulations, and other planning matters.  In 
addition, the Associate Planner is also tasked with improving the City’s online permit counter 
system to make it more user friendly for residents, and other duties to help improve the 
department operation for serving the community.   

To assist the Community Department to continue on-going project processing and counter 
coverage while moving special long-term planning and larger development projects forward 
expeditiously, it is necessary to continue to supplement City staff with contract staff from 
Interwest. Therefore, staff is requesting approval of an amendment to the contract to increase 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 634 of 778



Consideration to Approve a Second Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with Interwest, 
a SAFEbuilt Company, for Additional On-Call Planning and Design Review Services and Related Budget 
Transfer to Fund the Agreement 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
the not-to-exceed amount by $100,000 to a new total of $225,000 and extend the contract 
through December 31, 2023.   
     
  
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
There is currently $124,950 encumbered with Interwest under Contract No. 2069(a). The new 
contract amount is $225,000.  Staff is requesting an amendment to the adopted Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 budget to transfer  $84,315 to fund the additional contract amount from salary savings from 
the Community Development Department’s positions that have been vacant at various times 
throughout the fiscal year (i.e. Associate Planner, Housing Coordinator, Code Enforcement 
Officer, and Administrative Assistant).  
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the Second Amendment to the Professional 
Services Agreement for Interwest (Contract No. 2069(b)) for on-call planning and design review 
services to increase the not-to-exceed amount to $225,000, authorize a budget transfer to fund 
the increase, extend the contact through December 31, 2023, and authorize the City Manager, 
or designee, to execute the Amendment and all related documents. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Contract No. 2069(b), including: 

Exhibit A: Contract Nos. 2069 and 2069(a) 
B. Resolution No. 8210 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 635 of 778



ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2069(b) 

 
2023 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(On-Call Planning and Design Review Services) 

(Interwest a SAFEbuilt Company and City of San Fernando) 
 
THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Second Amendment”) 
by and between the CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a municipal corporation and general law city 
(“CITY”) and INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP, INC., a California corporation (hereinafter, 
“CONSULTANT” is made and entered into as of this 6th day of February, 2023.  For purposes of 
this Second Amendment, the capitalized term “Parties” shall be a collective reference to both 
CITY and CONSULTANT.  The capitalized term “Party” may refer to either CITY or CONSULTANT 
interchangeably as appropriate.    
 RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties executed and entered into that certain agreement dated  
April 14, 2022, and entitled “Professional Services Agreement – On-Call Planning and Design 
Review Services”, Contract No. 2069 (hereinafter, the “Original Agreement”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the Parties executed and entered into that certain First Amendment to 
Professional Services Agreement, Contract No. 2069(a) dated September 6, 2022 (the “First 
Amendment”) whereby the maximum compensation under the Original Agreement was 
increased to $124,950 and the term was extended to June 30, 2023. The Original Agreement, as 
modified by the First Amendment, is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”’ and hereinafter referred to 
as the “Agreement”;  
 

WHEREAS, the Parties now wish to further amend the Agreement to increase the 
maximum compensation Consultant may receive for services rendered and extend the term of 
the Agreement.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, and 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. The Term of the Agreement as set forth under Section 1.1 is hereby 
extended through December 31, 2023.  
 

 SECTION 2.  CONSULTANT’s total compensation for the performance of all Work 
contemplated under the Agreement is amended as follows: The “Not-To-Exceed Sum” as defined 
under Section 1.4 of the Agreement shall mean the aggregate sum of Two Hundred Twenty Five 
Thousand dollars ($225,000). 
 

SECTION 3. Except as otherwise set forth in this Second Amendment, the Agreement 
shall remain binding, controlling and in full force and effect.  The provisions of this Second 
Amendment shall be deemed a part of the Agreement and except as otherwise provided under 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 636 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2069(b) 

2 

this Second Amendment, the Agreement and all provisions contained therein shall remain 
binding and enforceable.  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of 
this Second Amendment and the provisions of the Agreement, the provisions of this Second 
Amendment shall govern and control, but only in so far as such provisions conflict with the 
Agreement and no further.  

 
SECTION 4. The Agreement as amended by way of this Second Amendment, 

constitutes the entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the 
matters addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, or entered into between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this Second 
Amendment.  No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, 
made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid or binding.  No amendment, 
modification or supplement to the Agreement as amended by this Second Amendment shall be 
valid and binding unless in writing and duly executed by the Parties in the form of a written 
contract amendment.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Second Amendment to be executed 
on the day and year first appearing above. 
 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO  INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP, INC.: 

 
 

By:   By:  
 Nick Kimball, City Manager    
   Name:  
Date:     
   Title:  
     
APPROVED AS TO FORM  Date:  
     
By:     
 Richard Padilla, City Attorney    
     
Date:     

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 637 of 778



EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 2069(b)
CONTRACT NO. 2069 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(On-Call Planning and Design Review Services) 

(Interwest a SAFEbuilt Company and City of San Fernando) 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (hereinafter, “Agreement”) is made and entered into 
this 14th day of April 2022 (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”) by and between the CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO, a municipal corporation (hereinafter, “CITY”) and INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP, 
INC., a California corporation (hereinafter, “CONSULTANT”).  For the purposes of this Agreement, 
CITY and CONSULTANT may be referred to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.”  The 
capitalized term “Party” may refer to CITY or CONSULTANT interchangeably, as appropriate.  

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, CITY requires professional consulting services for on-call planning and design 
review services; and 

WHEREAS, CITY staff has determined that CONSULTANT possesses the experience, skills 
and training necessary to competently provide such services to CITY; and 

WHEREAS, the execution of this Agreement was approved by the City of San Fernando 
City Manager.  

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
herein contained, CITY and CONSULTANT agree as follows:  

I. 
ENGAGEMENT TERMS 

1.1 TERM: This Agreement shall have a term commencing from the Effective Date through 
December 31, 2022, (hereinafter, the “Term”).  Nothing in this Section shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement at any time 
for convenience or for cause as provided under Article V (Termination), below. 

1.2 SCOPE OF WORK: 

A. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to
provide the services and tasks described in that certain proposal of CONSULTANT
entitled “Interwest Consulting Group – Contract Planning & Design Review Services”
dated March 23, 2022, (hereinafter, the “Scope of Work”) which is attached and
incorporated hereto as Exhibit “A”. CONSULTANT further agrees to furnish to CITY
all labor, materials, tools, supplies, equipment, services, tasks and incidental and
customary work necessary to competently perform and timely complete the services
and tasks set forth in the Scope of Work.  For the purposes of this Agreement the
aforementioned services and tasks set forth in the Scope of Work shall hereinafter
be referred to generally by the capitalized term “Work.”

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 638 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services 
Page 2 of 20 

2 

1.3 PROSECUTION OF WORK: 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform the Work continuously and with due diligence so as
to complete the Work by the completion date indicated in each Work Order.
CONSULTANT shall cooperate with CITY and in no manner interfere with the work
of CITY, its employees or other consultants, contractors or agents;

B. CONSULTANT shall not claim or be entitled to receive any compensation or
damage because of the failure of CONSULTANT, or its subconsultants, to have
related services or tasks completed in a timely manner;

C. CONSULTANT shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among
CONSULTANT’s employees; and

D. CONSULTANT, at its sole expense, shall pay all sales, consumer, use or other
similar taxes required by law.

1.4 COMPENSATION:  CONSULTANT shall perform the Work in accordance with the fee 
schedule included in the Scope of Work (hereinafter, the “COMPENSATION RATE”).  The 
foregoing notwithstanding, CONSULTANT’s total compensation for the performance of all 
Work contemplated under this Agreement, will not exceed the budgeted sum of Twenty 
Four Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty Dollars ($24,950) (hereinafter, the “Not-to-Exceed 
Sum”) during the Term of this Agreement, unless such added expenditure is first approved 
by the City Council.  In the event CONSULTANT’s charges are projected to exceed the Not-
to-Exceed Sum prior to the expiration of this Agreement, CITY may suspend 
CONSULTANT’s performance pending CITY approval of any anticipated expenditures in 
excess of the Not-to-Exceed Sum or any other CITY approved amendment to the 
compensation terms of this Agreement.  

1.5 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION: The Not-to-Exceed Sum will be paid to CONSULTANT in 
monthly increments as the Work is completed.  Following the conclusion of each calendar 
month, CONSULTANT will submit to CITY an itemized invoice indicating the services 
performed and tasks completed during the recently concluded calendar month, including 
services and tasks performed and the reimbursable out-of-pocket expenses incurred.  If 
the amount of CONSULTANT’s monthly compensation is a function of hours worked by 
CONSULTANT’s personnel, the invoice should indicate the number of hours worked in the 
recently concluded calendar month, the persons responsible for performing the Work, 
the rate of compensation at which such services and tasks were performed, the subtotal 
for each task and service performed and a grand total for all services performed.  Within 
thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of each invoice, CITY will notify CONSULTANT in writing 
of any disputed amounts included in the invoice.  Within forty-five (45) calendar days of 
receipt of each invoice, CITY will pay all undisputed amounts included on the invoice.  CITY 
will not withhold applicable taxes or other authorized deductions from payments made 
to CONSULTANT.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 639 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services 
Page 3 of 20 

3 

1.6 ACCOUNTING RECORDS: CONSULTANT will maintain complete and accurate records with 
respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a period of three (3) years after 
the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  CITY will have the right to access and 
examine such records, without charge, during normal business hours.  CITY will further 
have the right to audit such records, to make transcripts therefrom and to inspect all 
program data, documents, proceedings, and activities.  

1.7 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:  In the event CONSULTANT ceases to perform the 
Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the undertaking 
contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior to completion of 
any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Work, CONSULTANT will deliver to CITY 
immediately and without delay, all materials, records and other work product prepared 
or obtained by CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  Furthermore, 
CONSULTANT will only be compensated for the reasonable value of the services, tasks 
and other Work performed up to the time of cessation or abandonment, less a deduction 
for any damages, costs or additional expenses which CITY may incur as a result of 
CONSULTANT’s cessation or abandonment. 

II. 
PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 

2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVE:  The CITY hereby designates Director of Community 
Development (hereinafter, the “CITY Representative”) to act as its representative for the 
performance of this Agreement.  The CITY Representative or their designee will act on 
behalf of the CITY for all purposes under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT will not accept 
directions or orders from any person other than the CITY Representative or their 
designee. 

2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates Richard Smeaton, to 
act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (hereinafter, “Consultant 
Representative”).  Consultant Representative will have full authority to represent and act 
on behalf of the CONSULTANT for all purposes under this Agreement.  Consultant 
Representative or their designee will supervise and direct the performance of the Work, 
using their best skill and attention, and will be responsible for all means, methods, 
techniques, sequences and procedures and for the satisfactory coordination of all 
portions of the Work under this Agreement.  Notice to the Consultant Representative will 
constitute notice to CONSULTANT.  

2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  CONSULTANT 
agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the Work and this Agreement 
and will be available to CITY staff and the CITY Representative at all reasonable times.  All 
work prepared by CONSULTANT will be subject to inspection and approval by CITY 
Representative or their designees. 

2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT represents, 
acknowledges and agrees to the following: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 640 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services   
Page 4 of 20  

4 

 
A. CONSULTANT will perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the highest 

standards of CONSULTANT’s profession. 
 

B. CONSULTANT shall at all times employ such force, plant, materials, and tools as 
will be sufficient in the opinion of the CITY to perform the Services within the time 
limits established, and as provided herein. It is understood and agreed that said 
tools, equipment, apparatus, facilities, labor, and material shall be furnished and 
said Services performed and completed as required by the Agreement, and 
subject to the approval of the CITY’s authorized representative. 

 
C. CONSULTANT will perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the 

CITY; 
 

D. CONSULTANT will comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and 
regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code 
Section 1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et 
seq.) CONSULTANT shall be liable for all violations of such laws and regulations in 
connection with Services.  If CONSULTANT performs any work knowing it to be 
contrary to such laws, rules and regulations, CONSULTANT shall be solely 
responsible for all costs arising therefrom; 

 
E. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be performed 

under this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of performance;  
 

F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill, knowledge, 
training and experience to perform those services and tasks assigned to them by 
CONSULTANT; and 

 
G. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including, but not limited to, 

subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, certificates, 
qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to 
perform the tasks and services contemplated under this Agreement and all such 
licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and approvals will be maintained 
throughout the term of this Agreement and made available to CITY for copying 
and inspection. 

 
The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT will perform, at CONSULTANT’s 
own cost and expense and without any reimbursement from CITY, any services necessary 
to correct any errors or omissions caused by CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with the 
standard of care set forth under this Section or by any like failure on the part of 
CONSULTANT’s employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants.  
Such effort by CONSULTANT to correct any errors or omissions will be commenced 
immediately upon their discovery by either Party and will be completed within seven (7) 
calendar days from the date of discovery or such other extended period of time 
authorized by the CITY Representative in writing and in her sole and absolute discretion. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 641 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services   
Page 5 of 20  

5 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that CITY’s acceptance of any work performed by 
CONSULTANT or on CONSULTANT’s behalf will not constitute a release of any deficiency 
or delay in performance.  The Parties further acknowledge, understand and agree that 
CITY has relied upon the foregoing representations of CONSULTANT, including but not 
limited to the representation that CONSULTANT possesses the skills, training, knowledge 
and experience necessary to perform the Work skillfully, competently and to the highest 
standards of CONSULTANT’s profession. 

 
2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are 

material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY has an 
interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform the 
services and tasks to be undertaken by CONSULTANT or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement.  In recognition of this interest, CONSULTANT agrees that 
it will not assign or transfer, either directly or indirectly or by operation of law, this 
Agreement or the performance of any of CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the CITY, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably denied or delayed.  In the absence of CITY’s prior written consent, any 
attempted assignment or transfer will be ineffective, null and void and will constitute a 
material breach of this Agreement.  

 
2.6 SUBSTITUTION OF KEY PERSONNEL: CONSULTANT has represented to CITY that certain 

key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  Should 
one or more of such personnel become unavailable, CONSULTANT may substitute other 
personnel of at least equal competence upon written approval of CITY.  In the event that 
CITY and CONSULTANT cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, CITY shall be 
entitled to terminate this Agreement for cause.  As discussed below, any personnel who 
fail or refuse to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the CITY, or who are 
determined by the CITY to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or 
timely completion of the Project or a threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be 
promptly removed from the Project by the CONSULTANT at the request of the CITY.  The 
key personnel for performance of this Agreement are as follows: Eric Norris, Principal 
Planner. 

 
2.7 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Work 

will be performed by CONSULTANT or under CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  
CONSULTANT will determine the means, methods and details of performing the Work 
subject to the requirements of this Agreement.  CITY retains CONSULTANT on an 
independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right 
to perform similar or different services for other principals during the term of this 
Agreement, provided such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s 
competent and timely performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement and 
provided the performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized disclosure 
of CITY’s confidential or proprietary information.  Any additional personnel performing 
the Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not employees of CITY and 
will at all times be under CONSULTANT’s exclusive direction and control.  CONSULTANT 
will pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due to such personnel and will assume 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 642 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services   
Page 6 of 20  

6 

responsibility for all benefits, payroll taxes, Social Security and Medicare payments and 
the like.  CONSULTANT will be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 
additional personnel, including, but not limited to: Social Security taxes, income tax 
withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, workers’ compensation 
insurance and the like. 

 
2.8 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, 

agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by the CITY 
Representative to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely 
performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat to persons or property, or if 
any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or 
subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work in a manner acceptable to the CITY, 
such officer, employee, agent, contractor, subcontractor or subconsultant will be 
promptly removed by CONSULTANT and will not be reassigned to perform any of the 
Work.   

 
2.9 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT will keep itself informed of and in compliance 

with all applicable federal, state or local laws to the extent such laws control or otherwise 
govern the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT’s compliance with applicable laws 
will include, without limitation, compliance with all applicable Cal/OSHA requirements 
and applicable regulations of the Federal Department of Housing and Urbanization.  
 

2.10 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  CONSULTANT represents that it is an equal opportunity 
employer and it shall not discriminate against any subconsultant, employee or applicant 
for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, sex 
or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related 
to initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment 
advertising, layoff or  termination.  

 
2.11 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree 

that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, and will at 
all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, officers, 
employees, departments or subdivisions of CITY.  CONSULTANT will be solely responsible 
for the negligent acts and/or omissions of its employees, agents, contractors, 
subcontractors and subconsultants.  CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed 
by CONSULTANT will have no authority, express or implied, to bind CITY in any manner, 
nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of, or against, CITY, 
whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred to 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred by CITY in writing. 

 
III. 

INSURANCE 
 

3.1 DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE:  Prior to the beginning of and throughout 
the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain policies of insurance 
that meet the requirements and specifications set forth under this Article. CONSULTANT 
will procure and maintain the following insurance coverage, at its own expense: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 643 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services 
Page 7 of 20 

7 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT will procure and maintain
Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) as broad as Insurance
Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG 0001)
or its equivalent.  Such CGL Coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000.00) in the general aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury,
property damage, operations, products and completed operations, and
contractual liability.

B. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT will procure and maintain
Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office Form Number
CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).  Such Automobile
Liability Insurance will have minimum limits of no less than Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance:  A policy of
workers’ compensation insurance in such amount as will fully comply with the
laws of the State of California and which will indemnify, insure and provide legal
defense for both CONSULTANT and CITY against any loss, claim or damage arising
from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any worker employed by
or any persons retained by CONSULTANT in the course of carrying out the Work
contemplated in this Agreement.

D. Errors & Omissions Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and for a period
of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain Errors and
Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to CONSULTANT’s profession.  Such
coverage will have minimum limits of no less than Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000.00) per claim.

3.2 ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS: The CGL Coverage and the Automobile Liability 
Insurance will contain an endorsement naming the CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insureds.  

3.3 REQUIRED CARRIER RATING:  All varieties of insurance required under this Agreement will 
be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and authorized to issue 
policies directly to California insureds.  Except as otherwise provided elsewhere under 
this Article, all required insurance will be procured from insurers who, according to the 
latest edition of the Best’s Insurance Guide, have an A.M. Best’s rating of no less than 
A:VII.  CITY may also accept policies procured by insurance carriers with a Standard & 
Poor’s rating of no less than BBB according to the latest published edition the Standard & 
Poor’s rating guide.  As to Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability 
Insurance, the CITY Representative is authorized to authorize lower ratings than those set 
forth in this Section.   

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 644 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services 
Page 8 of 20 

8 

3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT’S INSURANCE: Other than workers compensation coverage, all 
policies of insurance provided by CONSULTANT will be primary to any coverage available 
to CITY or CITY’s elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers. 
Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by CITY or CITY’s elected or appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers will be in excess of CONSULTANT’s 
insurance and will not contribute with it.  

3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:  All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement 
will not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, 
subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of subrogation prior to a loss. 
CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of subrogation against CITY, its officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers.  

3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands and agrees, that 
CITY’s ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the insurance required under 
this Article is critical to safeguarding CITY’s financial well-being and, indirectly, the 
collective well-being of the residents of the CITY.  Accordingly, CONSULTANT warrants, 
represents and agrees that it will furnish CITY with original certificates of insurance and 
endorsements evidencing the coverage required under this Article on forms satisfactory 
to CITY in its sole and absolute discretion.  The certificates of insurance and 
endorsements for each insurance policy will be signed by a person authorized by that 
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and will be on forms provided by the CITY if 
requested.  All certificates of insurance and endorsements will be received and approved 
by CITY as a condition precedent to CONSULTANT’s commencement of any Work.  Upon 
CITY’s written request, CONSULTANT will also provide CITY with certified copies of all 
required insurance policies and endorsements.  

3.7 FAILURE TO MAINTAIN COVERAGE: In the event any policy of insurance required under 
this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not replaced 
immediately so as to avoid a lapse in the required coverage, CITY has the right but not the 
duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid by CITY will be 
promptly reimbursed by CONSULTANT or CITY will withhold amounts sufficient to pay 
premium from CONSULTANT payments. In the alternative, CITY may cancel this 
Agreement effective upon notice. 

3.8 SPECIAL RISKS OR CIRCUMSTANCES.  CITY reserves the right to modify these 
requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, 
coverage, or other special circumstances. 

IV. 
INDEMNIFICATION 

4.1 The Parties agree that CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers (hereinafter, the “CITY Indemnitees”) should, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all third party loss, injury, 
damage, claim, lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, or any other cost 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 645 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services   
Page 9 of 20  

9 

to the extent arising out of or related to the negligent performance of this 
Agreement.  Accordingly, the provisions of this indemnity provision are intended by the 
Parties to be interpreted and construed to provide the CITY Indemnitees with the fullest 
protection possible under the law. CONSULTANT acknowledges that CITY would not enter 
into this Agreement in the absence of CONSULTANT’s commitment to indemnify, defend 
and protect CITY as set forth herein. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent 
CONSULTANT’s services are subject to Civil Code Section 2782.8, the above indemnity 
shall be limited, to the extent required by Civil Code Section 2782.8, to Claims that arise 
out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the 
CONSULTANT.  CONSULTANT’s obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance 
proceeds, if any, received by the CITY, its officials, officers, employees, agents or 
volunteers. 
 

4.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend the CITY Indemnitees from and against all third party liability, loss, damage, 
expense, cost (including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert fees and all 
other costs, and fees of litigation) of every nature to the extent arising out of or in 
connection with CONSULTANT’s negligent performance of work hereunder or its failure 
to comply with any of its obligations contained in this Agreement, except such loss or 
damage which is caused by the  sole or active negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY. 
CONSULTANT shall defend any action for which indemnification is sought under this 
Section 4.  CITY Indemnitees shall promptly report any claim for which indemnification is 
sought so that defense of the claim is not compromised. 

 
4.3 CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due to 

CONSULTANT under this Agreement, any amount due to CITY from CONSULTANT as a 
result of CONSULTANT’s failure to either pay CITY promptly for any costs associated with 
CONSULTANT’s obligations to indemnify the CITY Indemnitees under this Article or 
related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay taxes on amounts received pursuant to 
this Agreement or (ii) comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws.  
 

4.4 The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the provisions of 
any workers’ compensation act or similar act.  CONSULTANT expressly waives its statutory 
immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.  
 

4.5 CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical 
to those set forth herein this Article from each and every subcontractor or any other 
person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance 
of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain such indemnity obligations 
from others as required herein, CONSULTANT agrees to be fully responsible and 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, 
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers from and against any and all third party claims 
and losses, costs or expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any person and 
injury to any property to the extent resulting from any alleged intentional, reckless, 
negligent, or otherwise wrongful acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT’s 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 646 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services   
Page 10 of 20  

10 

subcontractors or any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of 
CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  Such costs and expenses shall 
include reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by counsel of CITY’s choice and selected from 
CONSULTANT's insurance carrier's panel counsel.  
 

4.6 CITY does not, and shall not waive any rights that it may possess against CONSULTANT 
because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of any insurance policy or 
certificate required pursuant to this Agreement.  This hold harmless and indemnification 
provision shall apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined 
to be applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost, or expense. 
 

4.7 This Article and all provisions contained herein (including but not limited to the duty to 
indemnify, defend, and hold free and harmless) shall survive the termination or normal 
expiration of this Agreement and is in addition to any other rights or remedies which the 
CITY may have at law or in equity.   
 

4.8 WORK OF CONSULTANT’S DESIGN PROFESSIONALS SERVICES:  The duty to indemnify, 
defend and hold harmless as set forth under this subsection shall apply to the negligence, 
recklessness or willful misconduct of any individual who qualifies as a “design 
professional” within the meaning of subsection (c)(2) of Section 2782.8 of the California 
Civil Code in so far as such negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct occurs in the 
performance, work or activities that must be performed by a “design 
professional.”  Subject to the limitation of the preceding sentence, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall immediately defend and indemnify and hold 
harmless the CITY Indemnities, defined above, from and against any and all third party 
liability, loss, damage, expense, cost (including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ 
fees, expert fees and all other costs and fees of litigation) of every nature to the extent 
arising out of the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT or any 
of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, servants, agents, contractors, subcontractors or 
authorized volunteers or any other person or entity involved by, for, or with or on behalf 
of CONSULTANT in the performance of design professional services under this 
Agreement.  The Parties understand and agree that the duty of CONSULTANT to 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless pursuant to this subsection includes the duty to 
defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.  CONTRACTOR’s obligation 
to indemnify applies unless it is finally adjudicated that the liability was caused by the  or 
active negligence or willful misconduct of an indemnified party.  If it is finally adjudicated 
that liability is caused by the comparative active negligence or willful misconduct of an 
indemnified party, then CONSULTANT’s indemnification obligation shall be reduced in 
proportion to the established comparative liability.  
 

4.9 WORK OF ALL OTHER PERSONS/NON-DESIGN PROFESSIONALS:  Except as otherwise 
provided under Section 4.2 of this Article, above, to the fullest extent permitted by law, 
CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the CITY Indemnitees from and 
against all third party liability, loss, damage, expense, cost (including without limitation 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert fees and all other costs and fees of litigation) of every 
nature to the extent caused by CONSULTANT’s negligent performance under this 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 647 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services   
Page 11 of 20  

11 

Agreement, including but not limited to the negligent acts, errors or omissions of 
CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, servants, contractors, 
subcontractors or subconsultants or the failure of the same to comply with any of the 
duties, obligations or standards of care set forth herein. The duty to indemnify, defend 
and hold harmless under this subsection shall not encompass a duty to indemnity, defend 
or hold harmless for liability, loss, suit, damage, expense, or cost caused by the negligence 
or willful misconduct of any or all of the CITY Indemnitees.  The duty to indemnify, defend 
and hold harmless as set forth under this subsection is intended to encompass liabilities, 
losses, damages, expense and costs not otherwise subject to subsection 4.2, above. 
 

4.10 As to the duties to indemnify under Section 4.2 of this Article, above, CITY shall have the 
right to offset against the amount of any compensation due CONSULTANT under this 
Agreement any amount due CITY from CONSULTANT as a result of CONSULTANT’s failure 
to pay CITY promptly any indemnification arising under this Article and related to 
CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay taxes on amounts received pursuant to this 
Agreement, or (ii) comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws. 

 
4.11 As to the duties to indemnify under Section 4.2 of this Article, above, the obligations of 

CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the provisions of any workers’ 
compensation act or similar act. CONSULTANT expressly waives its statutory immunity 
under such statutes or laws as to CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 
employees, agents and authorized volunteers.  

 
4.12 As to the duties to indemnify under Section 4.2 of this Article, above, CONSULTANT agrees 

to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to those set forth here 
in this Article from each and every subcontractor or any other person or entity involved 
by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  In the 
event CONSULTANT fails to obtain such indemnity obligations from others as required 
herein, CONSULTANT agrees to be fully responsible and indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and 
authorized volunteers from and against any and all third party claims and losses, costs or 
expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any person and injury to any property 
to the extent resulting from any alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or otherwise 
wrongful acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any other person 
or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement. Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by 
counsel of CITY’s choice and selected from Consultant's insurance carrier's panel counsel. 
 

4.13 As to the duties to indemnify under Section 4.2 of this Article, above, CITY does not, and 
shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against CONSULTANT because of the 
acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of any insurance policy or certificate 
required pursuant to this Agreement. This hold harmless and indemnification provision 
shall apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined to be 
applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost or expense.  

 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 648 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services   
Page 12 of 20  

12 

4.14 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.2 of this Article, above, the duties to 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless as set forth under this Section, shall survive the early 
termination or normal expiration of this Agreement and shall be in addition to any other 
rights or remedies which the CITY may have at law or in equity. 

 
V. 

TERMINATION 
 
5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement at any 

time for convenience and without cause by giving prior written notice of CITY’s intent to 
terminate this Agreement which notice shall specify the effective date of such 
termination.  Upon such termination for convenience, CONSULTANT will be compensated 
only for those services and tasks which have been performed by CONSULTANT up to the 
effective date of the termination.  CONSULTANT may not terminate this Agreement 
except for cause as provided under Section 5.2, below.  If this Agreement is terminated 
as provided herein, CITY may require CONSULTANT to provide all finished or unfinished 
Documents and Data, as defined in Section 6.1 below, and other information of any kind 
prepared by CONSULTANT in connection with the performance of the Work.  
CONSULTANT will be required to provide such Documents and Data within fifteen (15) 
calendar days of CITY’s written request.  No actual or asserted breach of this Agreement 
on the part of CITY pursuant to Section 5.2, below, will operate to prohibit or otherwise 
restrict CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement for convenience as provided under this 
Section. 
 

5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT:  
 

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or task set 
forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform any 
such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an event of 
default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) will occur.  For all Events of Default, the 
Party alleging an Event of Default will give written notice to the defaulting Party 
(hereinafter referred to as a “Default Notice”) which will specify: (i)  the nature of 
the Event of Default; (ii) the action required to cure the Event of Default; (iii) a 
date by which the Event of Default will be cured, which will not be less than the 
applicable cure period set forth under Sections 5.2B and 5.2C below or if a cure is 
not reasonably possible within the applicable cure period, to begin such cure and 
diligently prosecute such cure to completion.  The Event of Default will constitute 
a breach of this Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to cure the Event of Default 
within the applicable cure period or any extended cure period allowed under this 
Agreement.   

 
B. CONSULTANT will cure the Event of Default within the following time periods: 

 
i. Within ten (10) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for any 

failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or CITY’s employees or agents 
with any information and/or written reports, documentation or work product 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 649 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services   
Page 13 of 20  

13 

which CONSULTANT is obligated to provide to CITY or CITY’s employees or 
agents under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 10-day cure 
period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for additional time to cure 
the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has commenced 
efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be 
reasonably cured within the 10-day cure period.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, CITY will be under no obligation to grant additional time for 
the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2B.i. that exceeds seven 
(7) calendar days from the end of the initial 10-day cure period; or 

 
ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for 

any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of 
the 14-day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for 
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT 
has commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of 
Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 14-day cure period.  The 
foregoing notwithstanding, CITY will be under no obligation to grant additional 
time for the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2B.ii that exceeds 
thirty (30) calendar days from the end of the initial 14-day cure period.  

 
In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform any duty, 
obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the failure to timely perform 
or properly perform any such duty, obligation, service or task), an Event of Default on the 
part of CONSULTANT will include, but will not be limited to the following:  (i) 
CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform any of the services or tasks called for under 
the Scope of Work; (ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or perform its obligations under 
this Agreement within the specified time or if no time is specified, within a reasonable 
time; (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its employees’ disregard  or violation of any federal, 
state, local law, rule, procedure or regulation; (iv) the initiation of proceedings under any 
bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, reorganization, or similar legislation as relates to 
CONSULTANT, whether voluntary of involuntary; (v) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to 
perform or observe any covenant, condition, obligation or provision of this Agreement; 
and/or (vii) CITY’s discovery that a statement representation or warranty by CONSULTANT 
relating to this Agreement  is false, misleading or erroneous in any material respect. 

 
C. CITY will cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within forty-five (45) 

calendar days of CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default Notice, unless the Event of 
Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 45-day cure period.   Prior to the 
expiration of the 45-day cure period, CITY may submit a written request for 
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CITY has 
commenced its efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default 
cannot be reasonably cured within the 45-day cure period.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, an Event of Default dealing with CITY’s failure to timely pay any 
undisputed sums to CONSULTANT as provided under Section 1.5, above, will be 
cured by CITY within five (5) calendar days from the date of CONSULTANT’s Default 
Notice to CITY. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 650 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services   
Page 14 of 20  

14 

D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 
CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending CONSULTANT’s cure 
of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT written notice of CITY’s intent to 
suspend CONSULTANT’s performance (hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY 
may issue the Suspension Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of 
Default.  Upon such suspension, CONSULTANT will be compensated only for those 
services and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the reasonable 
satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.  No actual or 
asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY will operate to prohibit or 
otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as provided herein. 

 
E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement will constitute 

a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  No waiver, 
benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party will give the 
other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

 
F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights and 

remedies available hereunder will be in addition to and not a limitation of any 
duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. In 
addition to any other remedies available to CITY at law or under this Agreement 
in the event of any breach of this Agreement, CITY, in its sole and absolute 
discretion, may also pursue any one or more of the following remedies: 

 
i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately terminate 

this Agreement in whole or in part; 
 
ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the time of 

performance; 
 
iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms of the 

Agreement to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s breach of the Agreement 
or to terminate the Agreement; or 

 
iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or remedy.  

 
CONSULTANT will be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and expenses that 
CITY incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the CITY’s exercise of its 
remedies under this Agreement.  

 
G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole remedy will 

be the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the recovery of any 
unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under this Agreement for completed 
services and tasks.   

 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 651 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services   
Page 15 of 20  

15 

5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement will 
constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or other 
covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement contained in this 
Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a 
Party will give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

 
5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:  The termination of this Agreement 

pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its term or any 
extension thereto will not operate to terminate any Article, Section or provision 
contained herein which provides that it will survive the termination or normal expiration 
of this Agreement. 

 
VI. 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  All Documents and Data 

will be and remain the property of CITY without restriction or limitation upon their use or 
dissemination by CITY.  For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Documents and Data” 
means and includes all reports, analyses, correspondence, plans, designs, notes, 
summaries, strategies, charts, schedules, spreadsheets, calculations, lists, data 
compilations, documents or other materials developed and/or assembled by or on behalf 
of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement and fixed in any tangible medium 
of expression, including but not limited to Documents and Data stored digitally, 
magnetically and/or electronically.  This Agreement creates, at no cost to CITY, a 
perpetual license for CITY to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and/or retain any and all 
copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in all Documents and Data.  
CONSULTANT will require all subcontractors and subconsultants working on behalf of 
CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement to agree in writing that CITY will be 
granted the same right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and retain Documents and Data 
prepared or assembled by any subcontractor or subconsultant as applies to Documents 
and Data prepared by CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement. CITY hereby 
grants Consultant a license to use any materials provided by or on behalf of CITY for the limited 
purpose of providing the services. 
 

6.2 CONFIDENTIALITY:  All data, documents, discussion, or other information developed or 
received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this Agreement are deemed 
confidential and will not be disclosed by CONSULTANT without prior written consent by 
CITY.  CITY will grant such consent of disclosure as legally required.  Upon request, all CITY 
data will be returned to CITY upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement.  
CONSULTANT will not use CITY’s name or insignia, photographs, or any publicity 
pertaining to the Work in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio 
production or other similar medium without the prior written consent of CITY. 

 
6.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:  CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither CONSULTANT nor 

any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, or has an ownership interest 
in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction to 
have violated the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C., Section 3789 et seq. and the California False 
Claims Act, Government Code Section 12650 et seq.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 652 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services   
Page 16 of 20  

16 

6.4 NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement will be given to the 
respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as the respective 
Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

 
CONSULTANT:  CITY:  
Interwest Consulting Group, Inc. 
1500 S. Haven Ave., Suite 220 
Ontario, CA 91761 
Attn: Richard Smeaton 
Phone: (408) 430-2203 
 

 City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
Attn: Community Development Department 
Phone: (818) 898-1227 

 
Such notices will be deemed effective when personally delivered or successfully 
transmitted by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or when mailed, forty-
eight (48) hours after deposit with the United States Postal Service, first class postage 
prepaid and addressed to the Party at its applicable address.   

 
6.5 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:  The Parties will fully cooperate with one another, and 

will take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as are reasonably 
necessary, appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this Agreement. 

 
6.6 SUBCONTRACTING: CONSULTANT will not subcontract any portion of the Work required 

by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the prior written approval 
of CITY.  Subcontracts (including without limitation subcontracts with subconsultants), if 
any, will contain a provision making them subject to all provisions stipulated in this 
Agreement, including provisions relating to insurance requirements and indemnification. 

 
6.7 CITY’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:  CITY reserves the right to employ other 

contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon by CONSULTANT. 
 
6.8 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:  CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains that it has not 

employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, CONSULTANT 
warrants and represents that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or 
resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this 
warranty, CITY will have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the term 
of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the term of his or her 
service with CITY, will have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present or 
anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

 
6.9 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this 

Agreement. 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 653 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services   
Page 17 of 20  

17 

6.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement will be interpreted and governed 
according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the 
Parties, venue, without exception, will be in the Los Angeles County Superior Court of the 
State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law requires that all or part of any such 
litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, venue, without exception, will be in the 
Central District of California located in the City of Los Angeles, California. 

 
6.11 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  If either Party commences an action against the other Party, legal, 

administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, the 
prevailing Party in such litigation will be entitled to have and recover from the losing Party 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of such action. 

 
6.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement will be binding on the successors and assigns 

of the Parties. 
 
6.13 NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFIT:  There are no intended third-party beneficiaries of any right or 

obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this Agreement inure 
exclusively to the Parties. 

 
6.14 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT:  This Agreement will not be construed in favor of, or 

against, either Party but will be construed as if the Parties prepared this Agreement 
together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of their respective 
attorneys. 

 
6.15 SEVERABILITY:  If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or otherwise 

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions will 
continue in full force and effect.  

 
6.16 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:  No amendment, modification or supplement of this 

Agreement will be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties, 
subject to CITY approval.  The requirement for written amendments, modifications or 
supplements cannot be waived and any attempted waiver will be void and invalid. 

 
6.17 CAPTIONS:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are for 

convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe 
the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 

 
6.18 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between 

the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits attached hereto, the provisions 
of this Agreement will control.   

 
6.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement, including all attached exhibits, constitutes the 

entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, which may have been entered into between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to 
the execution of this Agreement.  Any statements, representations, or other agreements, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 654 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services   
Page 18 of 20  

18 

whether oral or written, made by either Party that is not embodied herein will not be 
valid or binding on the Parties.  No amendment, modification or supplement to this 
Agreement will be valid and binding unless in writing and duly executed by the Parties 
pursuant to Section 6.16, above. 
 

6.20 FORCE MAJEURE:   The Completion Date shall be extended in the event of any delays due 
to unforeseeable causes beyond the control of CONSULTANT and without the fault or 
negligence of CONSULTANT, including but not limited to severe weather, fires, 
earthquakes, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, riots, strikes, freight embargoes, 
wars, litigation, and/or acts of any governmental agency, including the CITY, if the 
CONSULTANT shall within three (3) calendar days of the commencement of such delay 
notify the City Representative in writing of the causes of the delay. The City 
Representative shall ascertain the facts and the extent of delay, and extend the time for 
performing the services for the period of the enforced delay when and if in the judgment 
of the City Representative such delay is justified. The City Representative’s determination 
shall be final and conclusive upon the parties to this Agreement. In no event shall 
CONSULTANT be entitled to recover damages against the CITY for any delay in the 
performance of this Agreement, however caused, CONSULTANT’s sole remedy being 
extension of the Agreement pursuant to this Section. 

 
6.21 COUNTERPARTS:  This Agreement will be executed in three (3) original counterparts each 

of which will be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or typewritten amendment, 
modification or supplement to any one counterpart will be valid or binding unless made 
to all three counterparts in conformity with Section 6.16, above.  One fully executed 
original counterpart will be delivered to CONSULTANT and the remaining two original 
counterparts will be retained by CITY.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
the day and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 

 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO: 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 

Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 
Date:____________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:____________________________ 
      Richard Padilla, City Attorney 
 
Date:____________________________ 

 INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP, INC. 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 
 
 
Name: ____________________________ 
 
 
Title: _____________________________ 
 
 
Date:____________________________ 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629

Vice President Operations

04/14/2022 | 2:31 PM PDT

Paul Meschino

04/14/2022 | 2:40 PM PDT

04/14/2022 | 3:35 PM PDT

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 655 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services  EXHIBIT “A” 
Page 19 of 20  

19 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
CONSULTANT PROPOSAL 

 
 

March 23, 2022 
 
 
 
Kanika Kith 
Director of Community Development  
City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA. 91340 
 
 

RE: Interwest Consulting Group – Contract Planning & Design Review Services 
 
Dear Ms. Kith, 
 
Please accept this proposal package for the Interwest’s Planning Services Group for 
Contract Planning Services.  
 
This work would be in the not to exceed amount of $25,000. 
 

Our staff will be directed from our Ontario office. Our Project Administrator, Eric Norris, 
will be responsible for the contract and billing. His contact information is: 

 
Scope of Work 
 
We understand the City is seeking planning assistance to act as an extension of staff 
under the direction of the Community Development Director to assistance with long-
range and current planning projects. The Scope of Work includes: 

 
 Process various types of land use entitlement applications as needed through 

the City’s review process and prepare recommendations for action by City staff, 
Planning Commission and / or City Council. 

 Conduct design reviews to verify compliance with City requirements. 
 Coordinate interdepartmental discretionary review of entitlement applications. 
 Review applications and proposed projects and prepare documents as needed 

for compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

Eric Norris 
Project Administrator | Principal Planner 

(530) 574-4875 | enorris@interwestgrp.com 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 656 of 778



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2069 
On-Call Planning and Design Review Services  EXHIBIT “A” 
Page 20 of 20  

20 

 
 Assist the City in conducting studies funded through SB 2 and/or LEAP grants. 
 Ordinance Updates for SB9 requirements. 
 Process General Plan Amendments and Zoning Code Amendments as needed. 
 Attend meetings of the City Council, Planning Commission, City staff, public 

officials, community leaders, developers, contractors, and the general public as 
directed. 

 Complete Planning reviews of building permits and tract maps. 
 Conduct inspections for approved planning projects and monitor and evaluate 

implementation of conditions of approval as needed. 
 Update planning regulations, such Accessory Dwelling Units, to meet current State 

law Requirements. 
 Other planning-related duties as assigned by the Director of Community 

Development. 
 

At the City’s request the scopes of work can be expanded to cover specialized studies. 
A separate scope of work can be provided for these tasks if they are requested. 

 
Work will be provided primarily remotely or on-site as agreed upon by the City of San 
Fernando and Interwest. 
 
Fee Schedule 
 
The work will be on a time and materials basis in accordance with the table below: 
 
Classification       Hourly Billing Rate 
Community Development Director............................................................$190 
Planning Manager / Principal Planner.........................................................170 
Senior Planner.............................................................................................145 
Associate Planner........................................................................................120 
Assistant Planner………………………………………………………………...100 
Planning Technician……………………………………………………………….85  
 
The rates displayed in the fee schedule below reflect Interwest’s current fees. Hourly 
rates are typically reviewed yearly on July 1* and may be subject to revision unless 
under specific contract obligations. 
 
* Disclaimer: Beginning July 01, 2022 and annually thereafter, the hourly rates listed shall be increased 
based upon the annual increase in the Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics or successor 
thereof, Consumer Price Index (United States City Average, All Items (CPI-U), Not Seasonally adjusted, 
All Urban Consumers, referred to herein as the “CPI”) for the Municipality or, if not reported for the 
Municipality the CPI for cities of a similar size within the applicable region from the previous calendar 
year, such increase, however, not to exceed 4% per annum.  The increase will become effective upon 
publication of the applicable CPI data.  If the index decreases, the rates listed shall remain unchanged. 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1ECBE0FE-3755-4C8F-BC65-E3A9CA805629February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 657 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2069(a) 

2022 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

(On-Call Planning and Design Review Services) 
(Interwest a SAFEbuilt Company and City of San Fernando) 

 
 
THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“First Amendment”) by and 
between the CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a municipal corporation and general law city (“CITY”) and 
INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP, INC., a California corporation (hereinafter, “CONSULTANT” is 
made and entered into this 6th day of September, 2022 (“Effective Date”).  For purposes of this 
First Amendment, the capitalized term “Parties” shall be a collective reference to both CITY and 
CONSULTANT.  The capitalized term “Party” may refer to either CITY or CONSULTANT 
interchangeably as appropriate.    
 RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties executed and entered into that certain agreement dated  
April 14, 2022, and entitled “Professional Services Agreement – On-Call Planning and Design 
Review Services”, Contract No. 2069 (hereinafter, the “Agreement”) attached hereto as Exhibit 
“A”; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Agreement was approved by the San Fernando City Manager (“City 
Manager”) under the City Manager’s expenditure authority set forth in the San Fernando 
Municipal Code and provided for a maximum compensation of Twenty-Four Thousand Nine 
Hundred Fifty Dollars ($24,950) and an expiration date of December 31, 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties now wish to modify the Agreement to increase the maximum 
compensation Consultant may receive for services rendered and extend the term of the 
Agreement. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, and 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. The Term of the Agreement as set forth under Section 1.1 is hereby 
extended through June 30, 2023.    
 

SECTION 2. CONSULTANT’s total compensation for the performance of all Work 
contemplated under the Agreement is amended as follows: The “Not-To-Exceed Sum” as defined 
under Section 1.4 of the Agreement shall mean the aggregate sum of One Hundred Twenty Four 
Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty Dollars ($124,950). 
 

SECTION 3. Except as otherwise set forth in this First Amendment, the Agreement shall 
remain binding, controlling and in full force and effect.  The provisions of this First Amendment 
shall be deemed a part of the Agreement and except as otherwise provided under this First 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B2155090-5D6E-40E9-95B0-046EE4CE5316February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 658 of 778



CONTRACT NO. 2069(a) 

2 

Amendment, the Agreement and all provisions contained therein shall remain binding and 
enforceable.  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this First 
Amendment and the provisions of the Agreement, the provisions of this First Amendment shall 
govern and control, but only in so far as such provisions conflict with the Agreement and no 
further.  

 
SECTION 4. The Agreement as amended by way of this First Amendment, constitutes 

the entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral or 
written, or entered into between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this First 
Amendment.  No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, 
made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid or binding.  No amendment, 
modification or supplement to the Agreement as amended by this First Amendment shall be valid 
and binding unless in writing and duly executed by the Parties in the form of a written contract 
amendment.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this First Amendment to be executed on 
the day and year first appearing above. 
 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO  INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP, INC.: 

 
 

By:   By:  
 Nick Kimball, City Manager    
   Name:  
Date:     
   Title:  
     
APPROVED AS TO FORM  Date:  
     
By:     
 Richard Padilla, Assistant City Attorney    
     
Date:     

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: B2155090-5D6E-40E9-95B0-046EE4CE5316

President

09/09/2022 | 4:02 AM PDT

Paul Meschino

09/12/2022 | 7:37 PM PDT

09/12/2022 | 7:41 PM PDT

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 659 of 778



ATTACHMENT “B” 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 8210 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 
ADOPTED ON JUNE 21, 2022 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Council has received and considered the proposed adjustment to 
the budget for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, commencing July 1, 2022, and ending June 30, 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is necessary to amend the revenues 
and expenditures of the current City budget to increase the not-to-exceed amount for the 
Professional Services Agreement with Interwest a SAFEbuilt Company (“Interwest”) Contract No. 
2069 to $225,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, an annual budget for the City of San Fernando for the Fiscal Year beginning 
July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023, a copy of which is on file in the City Clerk's Office, has 
been adopted on June 21, 2023. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The following adjustment is made to the City Budget: 
  

ON-CALL PLANNING AND DESIGN REVIEW PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(INTERWEST, A SAFEBUILT COMPANY) 
 
Increase in Expenditures    $84,315 

 Account No. 001-150-0000-4270 
 
 Decrease in Expenditures    $84,315 

Account No. 001-150-0000-4101    44,566 
Account No. 001-152-0000-4101    23,470 
Account No. 001-155-0000-4101    16,279 

  
SECTION 2.  The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall cause 

a certified resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 6th day of February, 2023. 

 
 
              
 Celeste T. Rodriguez, Mayor of the City of 

San Fernando, California 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 660 of 778



RES. NO. 8210 

2 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 

I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is 
a full, true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8210, which was regularly introduced and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on 
the 6th day of February 2023, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
  

NAYS:  
 

ABSENT:  
 

ABSTAINED: 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of February 2022.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 661 of 778



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 662 of 778



THIS ITEM HAS BEEN 
CONTINUED TO A 
DATE UNCERTAIN

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 663 of 778



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 664 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 665 of 778



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 666 of 778



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1222                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☐ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Matt Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 
  Erica D. Melton, Director of Finance/City Treasurer 
 
Date:  February 6, 2023 
 
Subject: A Public Hearing to Consider Financing Funding Options for an Energy Savings 

Performance Contract with Willdan Energy Solutions for TurnKey Design, 
Engineering, and Construction Services for Solar, Heating, Ventilation, and Air 
Conditioning at City Facilities 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 

 
a. Conduct a Public Hearing and pending public testimony, provide direction on the financing 

terms with Hannon Armstrong Capital, LLC (Attachment “A”) for an Energy Savings 
Performance Contract with Willdan Energy Solutions for Turn-Key Design, Engineering, and 
Construction Services and to approve either Option No. 1 or Option No. 2: 

 
Option No. 1:  (Full Financing):   Finance the unfunded balance of approximately $2,500,000 

for the Police Department Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning (HVAC) 
project. 

 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 8211 (Attachment “B”) approving required findings and authorizing the 
City Council to approve the financing terms with Hannon Armstrong Capital, LLC, for an 
Energy Saving Performance Contract with Willdan Energy Solutions; and authorize the City 
Manager to execute all related documents. 
 

OR – 
 
Option No. 2: (No Financing):   Appropriate $2,500,000 from General Fund Reserves toward 

the Police Department HVAC project. 
 

c. Adopt Resolution No. 8212 (Attachment “C”) authorizing a budget increase of $2,500,000 to  
 the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget using General Fund Reserves to fund the Energy Saving 

Performance Contract with Willdan Energy Solutions; and authorize the City Manager to 
execute all related documents. 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 667 of 778



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the Financing for an Energy Savings 
Performance Contract with Willdan Energy Solutions for Turn-Key Design, Engineering, and 
Construction Services for Solar, Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning at City Facilities 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. On December 14, 2021, staff released a Request for Proposals (RFP) for design and 

construction management services for Solar, HVAC, and Battery Energy Storage Systems at 
the Police Department and Public Works Operations facilities, as well as an alternate contract 
item for City Hall. 

 
2. On January 4, 2022, staff received three proposals from qualified and experienced MEP 

(mechanical, electrical, and plumbing) engineering firms: NAI Consulting, P2S ENG, and 
Willdan Energy Solutions. 

 
3. On January 18, 2022, the City Council awarded a contract to Willdan Energy Solutions for 

feasibility analysis and design of Solar, HVAC, and BESS projects at City facilities. 
 

4. On November 21, 2022, the City Council awarded an Energy Services Performance Contract 
to Willdan Energy Solutions for turn-key design, engineering, and construction services for 
Solar, Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning, and Battery Energy Storage Systems at City 
Facilities. Staff was directed to return at a future meeting to discuss financing and funding 
options for the contract. 

 
5. On January 3, 2023, the City Council authorized proceed with the HVAC-only project initially 

using a combination of existing appropriated funds and contributing an additional $2,500,000 
from the General Fund Reserve Balance. Staff was directed to return at a future meeting to 
discuss financing the additional funding. 
 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The HVAC system at the Police Department, which was installed in 1988, has been inadequate 
to keep up with cooling the entire facility. Over the last three years, there has been an annual 
average of 20 service call-outs by an outside maintenance contractor to address various issues 
with the aging system. The addition of the new citywide radio system equipment at the Police 
Department facility requires proper cooling and ventilation to prevent the technology and 
communications equipment from overheating, which has created the critical need of having this 
system replaced in the timeliest manner possible. The 24-hour nature of the Police Department 
facility, its critical role in providing public safety and emergency services to the community, and 
its high-energy use requires a prioritized approach to introducing energy-efficient HVAC 
equipment upgrades. 
 
Willdan Energy Solutions conducted an analysis of the redesign of the HVAC system located at 
the Police Department facility. At the time of awarding the contract to Willdan Energy Solutions, 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 668 of 778



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the Financing for an Energy Savings 
Performance Contract with Willdan Energy Solutions for Turn-Key Design, Engineering, and 
Construction Services for Solar, Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning at City Facilities 
Page 3 of 6 
 
 
a total of $1,217,803 was set aside for any future projects involving HVAC at City facilities, 
through the General Fund. At their meeting of January 3, 2023, the City Council approved 
proceeding with the HVAC system at the Police Department with direction to return to further 
discuss financing options. 
 
Options for Funding the Project. 
The City is exploring whether to fund the $2.5 million HVAC project using General Fund Balance 
reserves or a tax-exempt equipment lease financing option. 
 
Financing. 
Following City Council direction, staff met with the financial institution to discuss their proposed 
terms for financing $2.5 million of the HVAC project.  Staff was able to negotiate an extension of 
financing terms through February 8, 2023 and reduce the rate by 10 basis points, from 4.69% to 
4.59% over a period of 20 years. The decreased interest rate would reduce annual debt payments 
by approximately $1,675 to $193,692 per year and total interest cost by $33,508 to $1.37 million 
over the term of the financing.  The table below provides the renegotiated financing terms: 
 

FINANCING OPTION DETAIL 
Loan Amount: $     2,500,000  
Final Maturity: 20 Years 
Annual Interest Rate: 4.59% 
Annual Payment:  $        193,692  
Total Interest:  $     1,373,842  

Financing Total:  $     3,873,842  
 
General Fund Reserves. 
The City has General Fund Reserves of $10.2 million as of June 30, 2022 (i.e. close of fiscal year 
2021-2022). The City’s General Financial Policy outlines a policy for fund reserves, which includes 
a contingency funds which should be established with a target balance of 20% of the adopted 
operating General Fund Budget. Contingency Funds can only be accessed under emergency 
circumstances, including catastrophic loss of infrastructure; following a federally declared state 
or federal emergency; a settlement exceeding the City’s insurance policy coverage and self-
insurance fund reserve availability; significant deviation from revenue projections; inability to 
meet debt service obligations; or any combination of the above greater than five percent of the 
City’s operating budget in a fiscal year. Any use of Contingency Funds must first be approved by 
City Council and presented by the City Manager with a plan to replenish the Fund within five 
years. 
 
For Fiscal Year 2022-2023, $4.2 million would be the target Contingency Fund in compliance with 
the City’s reserve policy leaving $6.0 million available for additional use. 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 669 of 778



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the Financing for an Energy Savings 
Performance Contract with Willdan Energy Solutions for Turn-Key Design, Engineering, and 
Construction Services for Solar, Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning at City Facilities 
Page 4 of 6 
 
 

GENERAL FUND RESERVES OPTION DETAIL 
Fund Balance: $10,223,657 
    Less Contingency Funds ($4,222,550) 
Unassigned Balance: $6,001,107 

 
Whether financing or using General Fund Reserves, fund balances and cash flows will be 
impacted.  Impacts over the term of both funding options are detailed below: 
 

  
 Year 1 

(FY2023)   
Total 

(FY2023 - 2043) 
FUNDING 
OPTIONS 

Fund Balance 
Impact 

Ending Fund  
Balance 

Cash Balance 
Impact 

Ending Cash 
Balance  

Cash & Fund 
Balance Impact 

Option 1:  
Full Financing -$2,614,750 $7,608,907 -$193,692  $12,553,158 -$3,873,842 

Option 2:  
No Financing -$2,500,000 $7,723,657 -$2,500,000  $10,246,850 -$2,500,000 

 
 
As illustrated in the table above, Option 1 reduces the General fund balance $114,750 more than 
Option 2, but results in $2,306,308 more cash available now.  Conversely, the long-term cost of 
Option 1 is $1,373,842 more than Option 2. 
 
Financing Options and Alternative Capital Project Uses. 
The primary objective of reviewing the financing option is to determine: 1) if the interest costs 
offered for the tax-exempt equipment lease purchase (TELP) are relatively low compared to other 
financing options available to the City, and 2) if the additional cash in hand would enable the City 
to pursue alternative projects that we would not otherwise have the funding to pursue 
immediately.  
 
With regards to the relative borrowing cost, other financing options currently range from 3.67%1 
to 5.33%2.  The rate and process timeline would differ contingent upon the funding type. 
 
If the City used the additional cash on hand toward other projects, they should be one-time 
capital projects that have a typical useful life that is at least as long as the financing term (i.e. 20 
years) to avoid paying for an improvement long after the improvement has deteriorated.   
  

                                                 
1 US Treasury Rate as of February 1, 2023 
2 US Bank 20-year Fixed Rate 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 670 of 778



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the Financing for an Energy Savings 
Performance Contract with Willdan Energy Solutions for Turn-Key Design, Engineering, and 
Construction Services for Solar, Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning at City Facilities 
Page 5 of 6 
 
 
Examples of capital projects that could be funded with the additional cash on hand may include, 
but are not limited to, the following: 
 

ALTERNATIVE CAPITAL PROJECTS 
FUND ESTIMATED COSTS 

Facility Improvements  
(e.g. roofs, flooring, painting, etc.) $1,500,000 

Sidewalk Repairs $1,500,000 
Street Resurfacing $2,500,000 

 
 
Energy Services Contract – California Government Code Section 4217. 
Sections 4217.10 through 4217.18 of the California Government Code allow for public agencies 
to contract with consultants to provide turn-key construction services for energy services 
contracts, including HVAC, Solar and BESS installations. This section of the government code 
requires a public hearing be held to consider any outside financing for such a turn-key contract 
and that 14 days notification be provided to the public. The notice for the public hearing was 
published in the San Fernando Valley Sun Newspaper on January 19, 2023. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
Funds were appropriated from the General Fund to cover expenses for the initial professional 
services contract with Willdan Energy Solutions ($212,717) and any future construction costs of 
$1,787,283 for a total appropriation amount of $2,000,000. The funding is broken down as follows: 
 

SOURCES 
Fund Account Number Allocation – HVAC Only 
General Fund 001-190-0765-4932 $ 1,217,803 

Total  $ 1,217,803 
 

USES 
Description Original Budget  HVAC Only 
Engineering Design $ 212,717 $ 212,717 
Construction $ 1,787,283 $ 3,237,224 

Subtotal $ 2,000,000 $3,449,941 
Contingency (8%)  $267,862 

Total $ 2,000,000 $3,717,803 
Difference(Surplus/Deficit)  $2,500,000 

 
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 671 of 778



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the Financing for an Energy Savings 
Performance Contract with Willdan Energy Solutions for Turn-Key Design, Engineering, and 
Construction Services for Solar, Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning at City Facilities 
Page 6 of 6 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council provide direction for funding the unfunded portion of 
the project, as follows: 
 

OPTION PROS CONS 

Option No. 1: Full Financing 
Resolution No. 8211 

• Increase in Current Cash 
Availability 

• Ability to Implement Other 
Immediate Capital Project 
Needs 

• 20-year Debt Obligation 
• Additional $1.3M in Costs 

Over Life of Loan 
• Higher General Fund 

Reserves Impact 

Option No. 2:  No Financing 
Resolution No. 8212 

• No Change to Current City 
Debt Ratio 

• Reduced General Fund 
Impact  

• Immediate Decrease in 
Cash Flow 

• Inability to Implement 
Immediate Capital Project 
Needs 
 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Financing Terms with Hannon Armstrong Capital, LLC 
B. Resolution No. 8211 - Option No. 1 
C. Resolution No. 8212 - Option No. 2 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 672 of 778



One Park Place, Suite 200  •  Annapolis, MD 21401  •  (410) 571–9860  •  www.hannonarmstrong.com 

January 12, 2023 

Zhen Han 
Senior Vice President, Project Finance 
Willdan Group, Inc. 

RE: City of San Fernando, CA TELP Financing Proposal 

Dear Mr. Han, 

Hannon Armstrong Capital, LLC (“Hannon Armstrong”) is pleased to present this proposal (the “Term 
Sheet”) in connection with the above referenced finance request. Hannon Armstrong has been a strategic 
financing partner to Willdan Group, Inc. (“Willdan”) for several years on multiple energy efficiency 
projects.    

Hannon Armstrong (NYSE: HASI) has a long history, dating to the early 1980’s, of providing financing 
solutions for energy projects.  We provide debt and equity financing for sustainable infrastructure projects 
that increase energy efficiency, provide cleaner energy sources, positively impact the environment or make 
more efficient use of natural resources.  Our team funds over $1 billion of such projects on an annual basis. 

Hannon Armstrong is a uniquely qualified partner for Willdan for the following reasons: 

• Public Sector Expertise – Hannon Armstrong has financed energy projects for over 20 years and
has closed over $8 billion across more than 500 transactions.

• Capability for Significant In-House Due Diligence – The principals of Hannon Armstrong have
extensive knowledge of the public sector, project finance, and the development and operation of
energy performance contracts. We have engineering expertise on staff to help facilitate and
expedite review of the work contemplated by the project. Hannon Armstrong has closed numerous
transactions in the capacities of primary investor, senior lender, and securitization lead.

• Long Term Partner – Hannon Armstrong prides itself on partnering with industry leaders such as
Willdan. We actively seek long-term assets. In choosing to go public, we made the conscious decision
to raise permanent capital as opposed to being structured as a fund to avoid having to liquidate
investments at the end of a seven to ten year fund life. As such, we expect to service our investment
throughout the life of the assets and will continue to provide Willdan with ongoing value above and
beyond our capital investment.

• Capital Markets Experience and Relationships – Hannon Armstrong is publicly traded and an
active participant in the capital markets, including for purposes of securing leverage across a variety
of asset classes and capital market segments.  In particular, we have extensive experience in
optimizing and obtaining market-leading structured credit solutions as required in our energy
efficiency and renewable energy portfolios.

Relevant Similar Project Financings 
• $28 Million Energy Efficiency Upgrade – Georgia World Congress Center:

ATTACHMENT "A"

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 673 of 778

file://hannonarmstrong.local/shares/Common/Clients/Willdan/City%20of%20Escadido,%20CA/www.hannonarmstrong.com


 
 
 
 

 
 

One Park Place, Suite 200  •  Annapolis, MD 21401  •  (410) 571–9860  •  www.hannonarmstrong.com 

Hannon Armstrong financed the cost of chilled water & heating plant upgrades, interior/exterior 
lighting improvements, new water/kitchen features and upgrades, and retro-commissioning through 
a 17yr energy savings performance contract between with the Georgia World Congress Center at 
the 4th largest convention center complex in the U.S. 
 

• $60 Million Energy Efficiency Upgrade – Baltimore City, MD Public Schools 
Hannon Armstrong financed a comprehensive energy efficiency upgrade and HVAC installation 
across over 100 Baltimore City Public School facilities.  These upgrades were funded through two 
separate phases over a 4-year period under a contingent payment agreement. 

 
• $27 Million Energy Efficiency Upgrade – Louisville Jefferson City, KY Metropolitan Government 

Hannon Armstrong financed HVAC, lighting, water fixture, building envelope, and other efficiency 
improvements across 181 government facilities. The upgrades were financed through a contingent 
payment agreement with a 25-year term.  

 
Using our direct origination platform, Hannon Armstrong has become a leading provider of financing for 
energy efficiency, wind, and solar projects and presently manages approximately $8 billion of assets. We 
are confident that Hannon Armstrong’s strengths will enable us to provide the financing Willdan needs to 
support its customer.   
 
On the following pages we have summarized our proposal. We have a high degree of flexibility to 
customize our financing structures to best accommodate the accounting and credit treatment goals of 
Willdan and its Customers. 
 
Please reach out to Ryan Beard, available via email: rbeard@hannonarmstrong.com or by phone: 410-
216-5122, should you have any questions.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 674 of 778

file://hannonarmstrong.local/shares/Common/Clients/Willdan/City%20of%20Escadido,%20CA/www.hannonarmstrong.com


 
 
 
 

 
 

One Park Place, Suite 200  •  Annapolis, MD 21401  •  (410) 571–9860  •  www.hannonarmstrong.com 

TERM SHEET 
 
TYPE OF FINANCING: Tax-exempt Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement (the “Lease”) 

with Lessor taking a security interest constituting a first lien on 
the Equipment being financed.  

 
LESSEE: City of San Fernando, CA 
 
LESSOR: Hannon Armstrong, or its designee or assignee 
  
 
EQUIPMENT: Solar, EV Charging, Lighting Controls, Plug Load Controls, and 

Transformers 
 
ESCO: Willdan Group, Inc. 
 
COUNSEL TO THE LESSOR: TBD 
 
ESCROW AGENT: TBD 
  
COMMENCEMENT DATE: On or about February 24, 2023 
 
AMOUNT TO BE FINANCED: Approximately $4,500,000 but dependent upon the selection of 

one of the below options:  
 

 
 
LEASE TERM: Two hundred fifty-two (252) months, consisting of a 12-month 

construction period plus 240 months of amortization 
   
INTEREST RATE: 4.59% (fixed for the entire term) 
 
TAX STATUS: Tax-Exempt 
 
FINAL MATURITY: March 1, 2043 
 
LEASE RENTAL PAYMENTS: Annual Lease Payments as outlined in the attached schedule. 
 
PURCHASE OPTION: The City shall have the right to purchase the Equipment upon 

giving written notice to the Lessor at least 30 days before the 
date of purchase, in accordance with the following: 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 675 of 778

file://hannonarmstrong.local/shares/Common/Clients/Willdan/City%20of%20Escadido,%20CA/www.hannonarmstrong.com


 
 
 
 

 
 

One Park Place, Suite 200  •  Annapolis, MD 21401  •  (410) 571–9860  •  www.hannonarmstrong.com 

  
DOCUMENTATION:  This financing is subject to the execution of mutually acceptable 

documentation to be prepared by Counsel. Documents will 
include those that are normal and customary for a transaction of 
this type and size and may include, but are not limited to: 

 
• Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement 
• Escrow Agreement 
• Lessee’s Closing Certificate with evidence of 

authorization 
• Essential Use Certificate 
• Opinion of Lessee’s Counsel (at Lessee’s expense) 
• IRS Form 8038-G 
• Evidence of Insurance 
• Copy of Energy Services Contract 
• Payment and Performance Bonds with Dual Obligee 

Rider 
• UCC-1 Financing Statements 

 
FEES OF THE LESSOR: $15,000 for legal/structuring 
 

Any costs of issuance incurred by the City such as financial 
advisory, placement agent and legal counsel shall be the 
responsibility of the City and can be included in the Amount to 
be Financed. 

 
ASSIGNMENT BY THE LESSOR: The Lessor shall have the right at any time to further assign its 

interest in this financing, but no such assignment shall be 
effective unless and until a notice has been delivered to the City 
that discloses the name and address of the assignee. Such 
assignment, transfer or conveyance shall be made only to (i) an 
affiliate of the Lessor or (ii) banks, insurance companies or other 
financial institutions or their affiliates. 

 
IRS CIRCULAR 230 DISCLOSURE: The Lessor and its affiliates do not provide tax advice.  

Accordingly, any discussion of U.S. tax matters contained herein 
(including any attachments) is not written or intended to be used, 
and cannot be used, in connection with the promotion, 
marketing or recommendation by anyone unaffiliated with the 

Prepayment Period Prepayment Premium 
Commencement – 3/1/2032 3.00% 

3/2/2032 – 3/1/2037 2.50% 
3/2/2037 and thereafter 2.00% 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 676 of 778

file://hannonarmstrong.local/shares/Common/Clients/Willdan/City%20of%20Escadido,%20CA/www.hannonarmstrong.com


 
 
 
 

 
 

One Park Place, Suite 200  •  Annapolis, MD 21401  •  (410) 571–9860  •  www.hannonarmstrong.com 

Lessor of any of the matters addressed herein or for the purpose 
of avoiding U.S. tax-related penalties. 

 
ADVISORY DISCLOSURE: The Lessor is not a registered municipal advisor as defined under 

the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act 
and its related rules and regulations.  In providing this Term 
Sheet, the Lessor is not providing any advice, advisory services, 
or recommendations with respect to the structure, timing, terms, 
or similar matters concerning an issuance of municipal securities.  
This Term Sheet is a commercial, arms-length proposal that does 
not create a fiduciary duty by Lessor to the City or the 
Corporation.  The City may engage, separately and at its own 
cost, an advisor to review this Term Sheet and the proposed 
transaction on the City’s behalf. 

 
CREDIT APPROVAL: This Term Sheet is subject to formal credit approval by Lessor and 

the execution of mutually acceptable documentation. 
 
PROPOSAL EXPIRATION: Unless accepted by the City or extended in writing by Lessor at 

its sole discretion, this Term Sheet shall expire on February 8, 
2023.  Once accepted, this Term Sheet shall expire if the financing 
is not completed by February 24, 2023. 

 

Upon receipt of the signed Term Sheet, we will endeavor to provide you with a timely commitment and 
we will use good faith efforts to close on the financing based on the terms herein.  It is a pleasure to 
offer this financing proposal to the City, and we look forward to your favorable review. 

 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Ryan J. Beard 
Director, Credit Investments 
Hannon Armstrong 
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 677 of 778

file://hannonarmstrong.local/shares/Common/Clients/Willdan/City%20of%20Escadido,%20CA/www.hannonarmstrong.com


 
 
 
 

 
 

One Park Place, Suite 200  •  Annapolis, MD 21401  •  (410) 571–9860  •  www.hannonarmstrong.com 

AGREED AND ACCEPTED (subject to board approval prior to closing): 
 
City of San Fernando, CA 
 
 
By:                       
   
Title:           
         
Date:       

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 678 of 778

file://hannonarmstrong.local/shares/Common/Clients/Willdan/City%20of%20Escadido,%20CA/www.hannonarmstrong.com


ATTACHMENT “B” 

RESOLUTION NO. 8211 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING REQUIRED FINDINGS AND AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY TO APPROVE THE FINANCING TERMS WITH HANNON ARMSTRONG 
CAPITAL, LLC 

 
WHEREAS, it is the policy of the State of California and the intent of the State Legislature 

to promote all feasible means of energy conservation and all feasible uses of alternative energy 
supply sources; and 

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 4217.10 to 4217.18 authorizes the City 
Council of the City of San Fernando (the “City”) to enter into an energy services contract for the 
implementation of energy related improvements in public buildings or City-owned property  if 
the City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the City to enter into such energy service 
contract energy service contract and that the anticipated cost to the City for thermal energy, 
electrical energy or conservation services provided by the energy conservation facilities under 
the contract will be less than the anticipated marginal cost to the City of the thermal, electrical, 
or other energy that would have been consumed by the City in absence of those purchases; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to reduce the steadily rising costs of meeting the energy needs 
at its facilities; and 

WHEREAS, a set of energy services agreements and related documents have been 
presented to the City Council (collectively, the “Energy Services Contract”) were executed by and 
between the City and Willdan Energy Solutions, as further described in the Agenda Report and 
its attachments (the “Report”), dated November 21, 2022; and  

WHEREAS, as described in the Report, the implementation of certain energy measures 
whose cost to the City such for thermal or electrical energy or conservation services provided 
under the Energy Services Contract, will be less than the anticipated marginal cost to the City of 
thermal, electrical, or other energy that would have been consumed by the City in absent of the 
implementation of the improvements under the Contract; and  

WHEREAS, a duly noticed public hearing, as required by California Government Code 
Section 4217.12, was held on February 6, 2023, when the facts were presented, comments 
considered, and findings made regarding the financing terms for the Energy Services Contract; 
and  

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 4217.13 further provides that a public agency may 
enter into a facility financing contract on terms that its governing body determinates “are in the 
best interest of the public agency if the determination is made at a regularly scheduled public 
hearing, public notice of which is given at least two weeks in advance, and if the governing body 
finds that the funds for the repayment of the financing or the cost of design, construction and 
operation of the emergency conservation facility or both, as required by the contract, are 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 679 of 778



RES. NO. 8211 

2 

projected to be available from revenues resulting … from funding that otherwise would have 
been used for purchase of electrical, thermal or other energy required by the public agency in 
the absence of the energy conservation facility…”; and  

WHEREAS, at its regular meeting of February 6, 2023 the City Council, in compliance with 
Government Code Section 4217.13 conducted a duly noticed public hearing to approve a facility 
financing contract with Hannon Armstrong Capital, LLC on terms described in the materials 
included with this Resolution as part of the February 6, 2023 public hearing;  and 

WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing was given no less than two weeks prior to the date 
of the February 6, 2023 public hearing through publication in the January 19, 2023, Thursday 
edition of the San Fernando Sun as required by Government Code Section 4217.13.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. All the foregoing recitals are true and correct. 
 

SECTION 2. Based on the staff report and other materials included with this Resolution 
as part of the February 6, 2023 public hearing, execution of a facility financing contract with 
Hannon Armstrong Capital, LLC on the material terms described in the staff report and other 
agenda the materials included with this Resolution as part of the February 6, 2023 public hearing 
is in the best interest of the City and the funds for the repayment of the financing or the cost of 
design, construction and operation of the energy conservation facility, as required by the 
contract, are projected to be available from revenues resulting from funding that otherwise 
would have been used for purchase of electrical, thermal or other energy required by the City in 
the absence of the energy conservation facilities contemplated under the previously approved 
energy service contract with Willdan Energy Solutions 

SECTION 3. This City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager in consultation with 
the City Attorney to finalize and execute a facility financing agreement with Hannon Armstrong 
Capital, LLC on the material terms proposed by Hannon Armstrong Capital, LLC as detailed in the 
staff report and other material accompanying this Resolution as part of the February 6, 2023 
public hearing.   

SECTION 4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption by the City 
Council and the City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall cause a certified 
resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 3rd day of February 6, 2023. 
 
 
              

Celeste T. Rodriguez, Mayor of the City of 
San Fernando, California 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 680 of 778



RES. NO. 8211 

3 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 681 of 778



RES. NO. 8211 

4 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8211 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
6th day of February, 2023, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of February, 2023.  
 
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 682 of 778



ATTACHMENT “C” 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 8212 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 
ADOPTED ON JUNE 21, 2022 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Council has received and considered the proposed adjustment to 
the budget for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, commencing July 1, 2022, and ending June 30, 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is necessary to amend the expenditures 
of the current City budget to execute the agreement between the City and Willdan Energy 
Solutions, as further described in the Agenda Report and its attachments (the “Report”), dated 
February 6, 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, an annual budget for the City of San Fernando for the Fiscal Year beginning 
July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023, a copy of which is on file in the City Clerk's Office, has 
been adopted on June 21, 2023. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The following adjustment is made to the City Budget: 
  

Increase in Expenditures    $2,500,000 
 001-190-0765-4932 
 

SECTION 2.  The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall cause 
a certified resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 6th day of February, 2023. 

 
 
ATTEST:             

Celeste T. Rodriguez, Mayor of the City of 
San Fernando, California 

      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 683 of 778



RES. NO. 8212 

2 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 

I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is 
a full, true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8212, which was regularly introduced and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on 
the 6th day of February 2023, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
  

NAYS:  
 

ABSENT:  
 

ABSTAINED: 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of February 2022.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 684 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 685 of 778



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 686 of 778



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

RECREATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT       208 PARK AVENUE, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340       (818) 898-1290       WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Julian J. Venegas, Director of Recreation and Community Services  
   
Date:  February 6, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration to Accept a Metro Open Streets Grant and Approve Circulation of a 

Notice Inviting Bids for the Northeast Valley Community Street Festival  

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Accept the Metro Open Street Grant Cycle Four ID #CYC2102 (Attachment “A”) in the amount 

of $500,000 to implement the Northeast Valley Community Street Festival;  
 

b. Approve a Notice Inviting Bids (Attachment “B”) soliciting consulting services for the 
Management and Implementation of the Northeast Valley Community Street Festival; 

 
c. Adopt Resolution No. 8209 (Attachment “C”) to increase the Operating Grants (Fund 110) 

revenues and expenditures by $500,000 for Fiscal Year 2022-2023; and 
 

d. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute all related grant 
documents.  
 

 
BACKGROUND: 

1. On June 24, 2021, the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Metro) 
Board approved the Open Streets Grant Program Cycle Four making $5 million of Los Angeles 
County Proposition C funds available for temporary events that close or partially close the 
street to automotive traffic and open them to people to walk or bike (“Open Street Events”). 

  
2. Between August 1, 2021 and September 13, 2021, the Recreation and Community Services 

(RCS) Department collaborated with the Los Angeles Department of Transportation (LADOT) 
and the Los Angeles City Council District 7 (CD7) staff on a joint application for the Open Street 
Grant Program.  The City would serve as the Fiscal Agent of the grant funds and implement 
the San Fernando segment of the Open Streets event, while LADOT and CD7 would 
coordinate the Sylmar and Pacoima segments of the Open Streets Event.  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 687 of 778



Consideration to Accept a Metro Open Streets Grant and Approve Circulation of a Notice Inviting Bids 
for the Northeast Valley Community Street Festival 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 
3. On September 15, 2021, the City submitted a joint application to the Metro to host a regional 

Open Streets Event entitled the Northeast Valley Community Street Festival. The Open 
Streets Event encompasses the communities of Sylmar, Pacoima and the City of San Fernando 
along a 7.5-mile route.   

 
4. On December 2, 2021, Metro approved an award of $500,000 to the City to implement an 

Open Streets Event titled The Northeast Valley Community Street Festival (NVCSF).  
Unfortunately, due to the Los Angeles County Counsel workload the Metro agreement for 
implementing the Open Streets Event was significantly delayed. 

 
5. On October 27, 2022, the City received the executed agreement for the NVCSF.  RCS staff 

began meeting with LADOT and CD7 staff to start coordinating the Open Streets Event.  A 
recommendation brought forward in these meetings was to hire a consultant to manage and 
implement the Northeast Valley Community Street Festival.     

 
 
ANALYSIS: 

The City has successfully implemented two Metro grant funded events. The first was on March 
31, 2018, an Open Streets Event called the San Fernando Street Festival. The event brought 
together local businesses, community groups, and organizations serving the Northeast San 
Fernando Valley.  An estimated 10,000 people participated in the festivities that offered 
approximately 98 vendors lining the 3.2-mile course.  The event also provided a conduit to 
celebrate the rich cultural heritage of the City with live entertainment, dance performances, and 
art exhibitions.  The San Fernando Street Festival reconnected neighbors, sparked local business, 
and educated the public on alternative modes of transportation. 
 
The City was also successful in implementing a Metro Cycle 3 Open Streets Grant Event on 
December 2021.  Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic the original event called The San Fernando 
Street Festival – Nocturnal Ride transitioned from an Open Streets event into a Slow Streets 
event, which allowed multiple street closures on a smaller scale.  The City was able to use the 
grant funds to purchase and install removable bollards at traffic intersections along San Fernando 
Road between San Fernando Mission Blvd. and Brand Blvd. to improve pedestrian safety during 
large events.  Additionally, the City was able to use some of the grant funds to collaborate with 
the Downtown Mall Association to host the Night Market and the Holiday Tree Lighting 
Celebration. 
 
The Los Angeles Department of Transportation (LADOT) has hosted similar Open Streets events, 
known as CicLAvia, with the most recent event opening a five-mile stretch of Sherman Way to 
connect the communities of Canoga Park, Winnetka, and Reseda.  Much like the Metro Open 
Streets event, the CivLAvia events close the streets and allow participants to jog, ride, bike, skate, 
run, walk, skateboard, spectate, and enjoy the route however they like.  The Northeast Valley 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 688 of 778



Consideration to Accept a Metro Open Streets Grant and Approve Circulation of a Notice Inviting Bids 
for the Northeast Valley Community Street Festival 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 
Community Street Festival (NVCSF) provides the opportunity for LADOT and Los Angeles Council 
District 7 (CD7) to engage their constituents’ in the Northeast San Fernando Valley that has been 
void of a major community event such as a Metro Open Street event. 
 
The City of San Fernando will be the lead agency, with support from the LADOT and CD7 to 
oversee all work related to this event.  The NVCSF event will be held on Saturday, September 16, 
2023, between 10:00 am and 2:00 pm, encompassing the communities of Sylmar, Pacoima and 
the City of San Fernando connecting them via a 7.5-mile route along San Fernando Road, Maclay 
Avenue and Van Nuys Boulevard.  In addition to the passive recreational opportunities the Open 
Streets event offers, local merchants, business, and community-based organizations will line the 
streets offering their goods and services.  The NVCSF Open Streets route will include a minimum 
of five (5) destination “Legs,” or zoned areas with different family-friendly activities for all age 
groups at the entry points and along the route of the event. These legs will encourage participants 
to physically bike, walk, and skateboard to each leg in order to reach a different activity. 
 
The legs will allow local merchants, community based organizations and special interest groups 
to host a booth to sell or promote their goods and services.  The legs include, but are not limited 
to: 
 

1) Active Transportation – With its close proximity (less than .5 miles) to the Metro Link 
Sylmar/San Fernando Station, this “leg” of the route promotes use of active and 
alternative modes of transportation. 

 
2) Refuel Right! Fest – This “leg” of the route promotes healthy eating and nutrition.  Making 

smarter food choices will be highlighted in this area.  All age groups will get to enjoy the 
flavors of San Fernando Valley’s local cuisines and restaurants, along with healthy food 
trucks. 
 

3) Downtown Art Walk – The City of San Fernando is the oldest city in the San Fernando 
Valley and therefore has a rich, diverse and colorful history. This “leg” of the route 
showcases the City’s historic Downtown district, mall, and businesses. It will be the central 
hub connecting the entire route. 
 

4) In Motion: Bike/Pedestrian Safety – This “leg” of the route will promote bicycle and 
pedestrian safety awareness, which is in line with the City’s current endeavor to create 
an Active Transportation and Safe Routes to School Plan. 
 

5) Challenge U: Physical Fitness – This “leg” of the route is a self-challenging zone meant to 
increase awareness of participant’s own personal fitness.  Youth will get to enjoy various 
small activity challenge booths.  Teens and adults will learn the benefits of physical activity 
through an interactive experience. 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 689 of 778



Consideration to Accept a Metro Open Streets Grant and Approve Circulation of a Notice Inviting Bids 
for the Northeast Valley Community Street Festival 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 
The communities in CD7 (Sylmar and Pacoima) will host similar legs in their respective 
communities.     
 
The City will select, through a formal RFP process, a consultant to manage, promote and 
implement the NVCSF event.  The services being requested include, but are not limited to, the 
promotion through print, news, radio and social media.  The consultant will also brand the event, 
including website, flyers and other marketing strategies.  The consultant will collaborate with 
local community based organizations and local merchants from CD7 and the City.  A 
comprehensive description of the required services are listed in the Notice Inviting Bids 
(Attachment “B”). 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

The total cost of the NVCF event is $600,000. The cost includes the $500,000 Metro grant and a 
20% match ($100,000), which will be split between CD7 and the City at a 50/50 ratio.  The match 
can be satisfied with local funds or In-Kind contributions to the event.  
 
SOURCES 
Fund  Account Number Allocation 
Metro Grant  110-3697-3711 $ 500,000 
City Match (In-Kind) N/A $     50,000 
CD7 (In-Kind) N/A $ 50,000 
Total Sources:  $ 600,000 

 
USES 
Activity Account Number Cost 

Outreach 110-420-3711-4260 
& In-Kind Match $ 105,000 

Pre-Event Planning    110-420-3711-4260 
& In-Kind Match $ 247,000 

Event Day Cost 110-420-3711-4260 
& In-Kind Match $ 248,000 

    
Expenditures-to-Date   $ - 
    
Total Uses:  $ 600,000 

 
Adoption of Resolution No. 8209 (Attachment “C”) establishes an account in the Operating 
Grants (Fund 110) for the NVCSF event and amending said account’s revenues and expenditures 
by $500,000 for Fiscal Year 2022-2023.  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 690 of 778



Consideration to Accept a Metro Open Streets Grant and Approve Circulation of a Notice Inviting Bids 
for the Northeast Valley Community Street Festival 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council accept the Metro Open Street Grant for $500,000 to 
implement the Northeast Valley Community Street Festival, approve a Notice Inviting Bids 
soliciting management and implementation services for the Northeast Valley Community Street 
Festival, adopt Resolution No. 8209 to increase the Operating Grants (Fund 110) revenues and 
expenditures by $500,000 for Fiscal Year 2022-2023; and authorize the City Manager to make 
non-substantive changes and execute all related grant documents.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Metro Open Street Grant 
B. Notice Inviting Bids for Management and Implementation Services  
C. Resolution No. 8209 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 691 of 778



Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

Page 1 
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

GRANT AGREEMENT FOR  
OPEN STREETS GRANT PROGRAM CYCLE FOUR 

This Grant Agreement for Open Streets Grant Program Cycle Four (the “Agreement”) is dated 
the day of the LACMTA Board December 2, 2021 (the “Effective Date”) and is by and between 
the City of San Fernando (the “Grantee”) and the Los Angeles County Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority (“LACMTA”). 

RECITALS 

A. On December 2, 2021, the LACMTA Board approved the Open Streets Grant Program
Cycle Four providing Los Angeles County Proposition C 25% funds for temporary events
that close or partially close the street to automotive traffic and open them to people to
walk or bike (“Open Street Events”). Should other eligible funding sources become
available, they may be used in place of the identified funds.

B. Proposition C 25% funds are eligible for Transportation System Management/Demand
Management (TSM/TDM) programs such as Open Streets Events. SCAG identifies
Open Street Events as Transportation System Management/Demand Management
(TSM/TDM) programs in the 2012 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Congestion
Management Appendix in the section titled Congestion Management Toolbox – Motor
Vehicle Restriction Zones.

C. On December 2, 2021, the LACMTA Board approved the award of $500,000 to Grantee
for Grantee’s Open Street Event titled The Northeast Valley Community Street
Festival (Open Street Grant Program ID#CYC2102, which is more particularly
described in the Scope of Work (“Scope of Work”) attached as Exhibit “A” hereto (the
“Project”).  Grantee’s actual temporary Open Street Event is referred to herein as the
“Event.”  The term Project, as used herein, is defined to include all planning activities
as well as the Event itself.

D. Grantee has agreed to provide the required local match (in kind or monetary) of $100,000
(the “Local Match”), as described in the Financial Plan that is attached as Exhibit “B”,
and any additional funding required to complete the Project. The Financial Plan
documents all sources of funds programmed for the Project.

ATTACHMENT "A"
February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 692 of 778



Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 2  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto do agree as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
1.   GRANT OF FUNDS  
 
 1.1 LACMTA shall make a one-time grant of funds in the amount of $500,000 (the 
“Funds”) to Grantee subject to the terms and conditions of the Grant and this Agreement.   
  
 1.2    This one-time grant shall be paid on a reimbursement basis.  The Local or In-Kind 
Match must be spent in the appropriate proportion to the Funds.   
 
 1.3     Grantee shall be subject to, and shall comply with, all requirements of the United 
States Department of Transportation (USDOT) and the United States Department of Labor 
(USDOL). In addition, Grantee shall comply with all requirements of LACMTA. 
 
 1.4 The obligation for LACMTA to advance the Funds for the Project is subject to 
sufficient funds being made available for the Project by the LACMTA Board of Directors.  If such 
funds are not made available for the Project, this Agreement shall be void and have no further 
force and effect.   
 
2.         SCOPE OF WORK  
 
 2.1  Grantee shall complete the Project, including, without limitation, producing the 
Event, as described in the Scope of Work.  The Scope of Work for the Project is attached to this 
Agreement as Exhibit “A” hereto.  The Scope of Work includes a description of the Project, a 
detailed description of the work to be completed by Grantee including, without limitation, Project 
milestones and a set schedule for the Event.  Work shall be delivered in accordance with that 
schedule unless otherwise agreed to by the parties in writing.  If a Grantee is consistently behind 
schedule in meeting milestones or in delivering the Event, then LACMTA will have the option to 
terminate this Agreement for default.  Immaterial changes to the Scope of Work that do not 
affect the intent or length of the event such as changes of event name, start time, date and route 
may be approved administratively in writing by the Open Streets Grant Program Manager 
without a formal amendment.  Any changes to the Scope of Work that change intent of the 
original Scope of Work, including but not limited to route length, changes in funding and/or 
changes to the Financial Plan must be made by amendment, in the manner described in 
paragraph 16.1. 
 

2.2 Grantee shall utilize the Funds provided herein to complete the Project as 
described in the Scope of Work and in accordance with this Agreement.  The grant Funds 
provided herein can only be used towards the completion of the Scope of Work. 

 
 2.3       The grant shall provide the Funds for the non-infrastructure costs of implementing 
Open Street events per the Metro Board award on December 2, 2021.  Per the funding 
guidelines, physical infrastructure costs associated with the events are not eligible for 
reimbursement. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 693 of 778



Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 3  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 
   
 
3.       TERM   
  
 3.1 The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall 
terminate on December 31, 2023 (the “Termination Date”), unless terminated earlier as 
provided herein or extended by a written amendment to this Agreement.  
 
4.         REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT    
 
 4.1      Not more frequently than once a month, Grantee will prepare and submit to 
LACMTA a Request for Reimbursement for allowable Project costs incurred by Grantee 
consistent with the Project’s Scope of Work. The Request for Reimbursement submitted by 
Grantee shall be signed by an authorized agent who can duly certify the accuracy of the 
included information.  
 

4.2 Each Request for Reimbursement must be submitted on Grantee’s letterhead 
and shall include an invoice number and report the total of Project expenditures, specify the 
percent and amount of Proposition C Funds to be reimbursed, the amount of Local Match 
expended and include a detailed invoice describing all invoiced work completed along with 
appropriate detailed  documentation supporting costs incurred.  To ensure timely processing 
of invoices, each Request for Reimbursement shall not include any invoices which are older 
than three (3) months from the date of the Request for Reimbursement.      

 
4.3 LACMTA will make all disbursements electronically unless an exception is 

requested in writing.  Disbursements via Automated Clearing House (ACH) will be made at no 
cost to Grantee.  GRANTEE must register in LACMTA’s iSupplier portal and submit an 
application before grant payments can be made. The link to the portal can be found at 
http://media.metro.net/uploads/EBB/Vendor Portal Registration.pdf.    
 

4.4 Any funds expended by Grantee prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement 
shall not be reimbursed nor shall they be credited toward Grantee’s Local Match requirement, 
without the prior written consent of LACMTA.  Local Match dollars expended prior to the 
Effective Date shall be spent at Grantee’s own risk.  If applicable, the first Request for 
Reimbursement may be accompanied by a report describing any tasks specified in the Scope 
of Work document which were accomplished prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement, 
which costs could be reimbursed with the Funds provided that LACMTA has provided prior 
written approval for such expenditures to Grantee and authorized reimbursement for such 
amounts. 
 

4.5       Grantee shall be responsible for any and all cost overruns for the Project. 
 

4.6 Grantee shall contribute Grantee’s Local Match (in kind or monetary) of    
$100,000 toward the Project.  If the funds identified in Exhibit “B” are insufficient to complete 
the Project, Grantee agrees to secure and provide such additional non-LACMTA 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 694 of 778

http://media.metro.net/uploads/EBB/Vendor%20Portal%20Registration.pdf


Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 4  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

programmed funds necessary to complete the Project.  
   
 4.7    LACMTA will withhold ten percent (10%) of eligible expenditures per invoice as 
retainage.  LACMTA will release the retainage after LACMTA has evaluated Grantee’s 
performance according to the criteria specified by LACMTA and the data provided by Grantee 
in accordance with the Standardized Data Collection Template provided in Exhibit “C”,   and 
has determined that all contract requirements under this Agreement have been satisfactorily 
fulfilled. Grantee shall invoice LACMTA for reimbursement of the ten percent retention 
separately. 
 

 4.8 Grantee should consult with LACMTA’s Open Streets Program Manager for 
questions regarding non-reimbursable expenses. 

  

 4.9 Total payments shall not exceed the Funds specified in Section 1.1.  
No Request for Reimbursement will be processed by LACMTA for expenses incurred more than 
sixty (60) days after the date of the Event.  

 

 4.10 Grantee shall comply with and ensure that work performed under this Agreement 
is done in compliance with all applicable provisions of federal, state and local laws, statutes, 
ordinances, rules, regulations and procedural requirements, including without limitation, the 
applicable requirements and regulations of LACMTA and any other regulations or requirements 
stipulated by the source of funding used. Grantee acknowledges responsibility for obtaining 
copies of and complying with the terms of the most recent applicable federal, state or local laws 
and regulations and LACMTA requirements, including any amendments thereto. 
 

 4.11 All requests for reimbursement shall be transmitted to LACMTA’s Accounts 
Payable Department using one of the following two options: 

 

 1) E-mail: 
 

 AccountsPayable@Metro.net  
             Ref# Open Streets ID#CYC2102 

 

 2) Standard Mail: 
 

 Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority 
           P.O. Box 512296 
 Attention: Accounts Payable 
 Los Angeles, CA 90051-0296 
           Ref# Open Streets ID#CYC2102 
 

A copy of all Request for Reimbursement submittals shall also be forward to the LACMTA 
Open Streets Program Manager, either by email to ChingF@Metro.net or by standard mail 
to the address set forth in Section 4.12 below.    

              
4.12 All notices required to be provided under this Agreement will be given to the 

parties at the addresses specified below, unless otherwise notified in writing of change of 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 695 of 778



Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 5  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

address. 
      
LACMTA's Address: 
  Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority 
  One Gateway Plaza 
  Los Angeles, CA  90012 
  Attention:  LACMTA Open Streets Program Manager 

Frank Ching, MS 99-24-1 
    Open Streets Grant Program Manager 
    ChingF@metro.net  
 
Grantee's Address:  
  City of San Fernando 
  208 Park Avenue 
  San Fernando, CA 91340 
  Attention:  Recreation and Community Services 

      Julian Venegas 
         Director of Recreation and Community Services 
                                        jvenegas@sfcity.org  
     
5. START AND END DATE OF REIMBURSABLE ACTIVITIES 

 
 5.1      Unless written notification is otherwise provided by LACMTA, the start date of 
reimbursable activities is the Effective Date of this Agreement.  Actual reimbursement of eligible 
work cannot occur until LACMTA and Grantee execute this Agreement. The end date of 
reimbursable activities is sixty (60) days after the date of the Event. 

 
6. REPORTING AND AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 
 
 6.1 Grantee shall be subject to and shall comply with all applicable requirements of 
LACMTA regarding Project reporting and audit requirements. Grantee shall use the assigned 
Open Streets ID# CYC2102 on all correspondence. 
 
 6.2 Grantee shall submit the following Reports and Certifications to LACMTA for the 
duration of the Project: 
 

(a)  Narrative and Financial Report on Project Progress as required by 
LACMTA. 

   
(b)      Other reports that may be required. 
 

 6.3    LACMTA and/or their respective designees, in order to fulfill their respective 
responsibilities as grantor of the Funds, shall have the right to conduct audits of the Project, as 
needed, such as financial and compliance audits and performance audits. Grantee shall 
establish and maintain proper accounting procedures and cash management records and 
documents in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 696 of 778

mailto:ChingF@metro.net
mailto:jvenegas@sfcity.org


Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 6  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

governmental agencies. Grantee shall reimburse LACMTA for any expenditure not in 
compliance with the Scope of Work or other terms and conditions of this Agreement.  LACMTA 
shall have the right to conduct an audit using an outside auditing firm.  The findings of that 
LACMTA audit will be final. 
 

6.4     Grantee shall retain all original records and documents related to the Project for a 
period of three years after final payment.  

  
 6.5 Grantee’s records shall include, without limitation, accounting records, written 
policies and procedures, contract files, original estimates, correspondence, change order files 
(including documentation covering negotiated settlements), invoices, and any other 
supporting evidence deemed necessary by LACMTA to substantiate charges related to the 
Project (all collectively referred to as “records”) shall be open to inspection and subject to 
audit and reproduction by LACMTA auditors or authorized representatives to the extent 
deemed necessary by LACMTA to adequately permit evaluation of expended costs.  Such 
records subject to audit shall also include, without limitation, those records deemed 
necessary by LACMTA to evaluate and verify, direct and indirect costs, (including overhead 
allocations) as they may apply to costs associated with the Project.  These records must be 
retained by Grantee for three years following final payment under this Agreement.  Payment 
of retention amounts shall not occur until after the LACMTA’s final audit is completed. 

 
 6.6 Grantee shall cause all contractors to comply with the requirements of Sections 

6.3, 6.4 and 6.5 above.  Grantee shall cause all contractors to cooperate fully in furnishing 
or in making available to LACMTA all records deemed necessary by LACMTA auditors or 
authorized representatives related to the Project. 

 
 6.7 LACMTA or any of its duly authorized representatives, upon reasonable written 

notice, shall have access to the offices of Grantee and its contractors, shall have access to 
all necessary records, including reproduction at no charge to LACMTA, and shall be provided 
adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. 

 
 6.8 In addition to LACMTA’s other remedies as provided in this Agreement, LACMTA 

shall withhold the Funds provided herein and/or recommend not to award future Open Streets 
Program grants to Grantee if the LACMTA audit has determined that Grantee failed to comply 
with the Scope of Work (such as misusing the Funds provided herein or failure to return the 
Funds provided herein owed to LACMTA in accordance with LACMTA audit findings) and/or is 
severely out of compliance with other terms and conditions as defined by this Agreement, 
including the access to records provisions. 

 
 6.9 When business travel associated with the Project requires use of a vehicle, the 
mileage incurred shall be reimbursed at the mileage rates set by the Internal Revenue Service, 
as indicated in the United States General Services Administration Federal Travel Regulation, 
Privately Owned Vehicle Reimbursement Rates. 
 

6.10 Grantee shall utilize a Standardized Data Collection Template provided by 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 697 of 778



Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 7  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

Metro to provide the LACMTA Open Streets Program Manager a Post-implementation Report 
no later than three months after the day of the Event which report shall include information 
to help Metro better evaluate the progress of the program toward achieving the objectives of 
the program goals presented in Board Motion 72 including providing information in the Post-
implementation Report that details plans for new active transportation infrastructure and what 
the jurisdictions will do to increase bicycle and pedestrian mode shares post event. Additional 
information provided in the Post-implementation Report shall include participation counts; 
transportation use data; personal anecdotes from business owners, participants, and 
volunteers; local economic benefit; and any other reporting requirements detailed in the 
provided Standardized Data Collection Template.  
 
7. ALLOWABLE COSTS  
 
 7.1 Allowable Project costs are described in the Scope of Work.  
 
 7.2 The following guidelines shall apply for indirect costs and in-kind contributions 
and donations:  
 

(a) Indirect costs shall not be considered eligible costs for reimbursement,  
unless all the following requirements are met by Grantee: i) submit a 
written request to LACMTA; and, ii) receive a written approval from 
LACMTA prior to incurring the expenditure.   

 
(b) In-kind contributions and donations shall be considered eligible as local 

match only upon written approval by LACMTA. 
 
8. EXPENDITURE AND DISPOSITION OF FUNDS 
 
 8.1 The expenditure and disposition of the Funds by Grantee shall be subject to and 
in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the applicable requirements 
of LACMTA. Grantee shall not utilize the Funds in any way or on any project other than that 
specified in this Agreement. 
 
 8.2 Grantee shall address all correspondence regarding this Project to the LACMTA 
Open Streets Program Manager. 
 
 8.3 The programmed budget (the "Financial Plan") specifying the sources and 
amounts of the Funds to be used to pay for the Project is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 
“B”.  
 
 8.4 No material changes, as determined by LACMTA in its reasonable discretion, to 
the Financial Plan or the Scope of Work shall be funded or allowed without an amendment to 
this Agreement approved and signed by LACMTA’s CEO or his/her designee. Grantee shall 
give advance written notice to LACMTA of all proposed changes to the Financial Plan or Scope 
of Work that it originally submitted to LACMTA. 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 698 of 778



Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 8  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

9. TIMELY USE OF FUNDS 
 
 9.1 Grantee shall obligate the Funds programmed under this Agreement no later than 
sixty (60) days after the date of the Event.   
 

 9.2  In the event this Agreement is not executed and/or evidence of timely obligation 
of the Funds is not provided as described in Section 10 of this Agreement, the Project will be 
reevaluated by LACMTA and the Funds may be deobligated. In the event that the Funds are 
deobligated, this Agreement shall automatically terminate. 
 
10. DEFAULT 
 
 10.1    Default under this Agreement is defined as one or more of the following: (i) 
Grantee fails to comply with the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement; (ii) Grantee 
fails to perform satisfactorily or to make sufficient progress toward Project completion; (iii) 
Grantee makes a material change to the Scope of Work or the Financial Plan without prior 
written consent or approval by LACMTA; or, (iv) Grantee is in default of any other applicable 
requirements of LACMTA. 
 
11. REMEDIES 
 
 11.1 In the event of a default by Grantee (as defined in Section 10), the LACMTA shall 
provide written notice of such default to Grantee with a 30-day period to cure the default.  In the 
event Grantee fails to cure the default, or commit to cure the default and commence the same 
within such 30-day period to the satisfaction of LACMTA, the following remedies shall be 
available to LACMTA:  
 

(a)      LACMTA may terminate this Agreement;  
(b)    LACMTA may make a determination to make no further disbursements              

of the Funds to Grantee;  
(c)    LACMTA may recover from Grantee any funds paid to Grantee                    
 after the default; and/or,  

 
 11.2 Effective upon receipt of written notice of termination from LACMTA, Grantee 
shall not undertake any new work or obligation with respect to this Agreement unless so 
approved by LACMTA in writing.  
 
          11.3   The remedies described herein are non-exclusive.  In addition to the above 
contractual remedies, LACMTA shall have the right to enforce any and all rights and remedies 
which may be now or hereafter available at law or in equity. 
 
12. TERMINATION 
 
 12.1 Notwithstanding the term of this Agreement, specified in Section 3 above, either 
Grantee or LACMTA may terminate its obligations hereunder at any time, without cause, on 
(30) days prior written notice.  Upon termination, LACMTA shall have no obligation to reimburse 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 699 of 778



Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 9  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

for any costs or expenses incurred after the termination date.   
   
13. COMMUNICATIONS  
 

13.1 LACMTA will be the exclusive presenting sponsor of the Event and all 
promotional materials, press releases, graphics, promotions via print, TV, radio or web channels 
and other identifiers will identify the Event as “Metro presents [insert Event name],” or “[insert 
Event name] presented by Metro.”  The presenting sponsorship may not be shared.  In addition, 
all printed and/or online promotional materials and promotions via print, TV, radio or web 
channels must include the “Open Streets Made Possible By Metro” type and logo lockup as 
supplied by the LACMTA Program Manager.  Any other sponsor logos or credits for the Event 
must be separated graphically, in type and/or in following succession from the presenting 
sponsor mention of LACMTA and “Open Streets Made Possible By Metro” type and logo lockup. 
  

13.2 For purposes of this Agreement, “Communications Materials” include, but are not 
limited to, literature, newsletters, publications, websites, advertisements, brochures, maps, 
information materials, video, radio and public service announcements, press releases, press 
event advisories, and all other related materials. 

 
13.3   All Social Media notification calling out the event will identify the Event as “Metro 

presents [insert Event name],” or “[insert Event name] presented by Metro.” Any graphics used 
in said notifications that include the title of the event must include the “Open Streets Made 
Possible By Metro” type and logo lockup as supplied by the LACMTA Program Manager.  

 
13.4     Grantee shall ensure that all Event promotions via print, TV, Radio or social 

media channels include one of the following references or links to LACMTA’s online presence 
as appropriate depending on the platform:   Twitter accounts: @BikeMetro or  
@Metrolosangeles; Facebook pages: facebook.com/bikemetro or 
facebook.com/losangelesmetro.     

 
13.5 Grantee shall notify the LACMTA Chief Communications Officer or its designee 

of all press events related to the Project in such a manner that allows LACMTA to participate 
in such events, at LACMTA’s sole discretion. 

 
 13.6 Grantee shall ensure that all Communications Materials identify the Event as 
“Metro presents [insert Event name],” or “[insert Event name] presented by Metro,” or other 
mutually agreeable language and graphic lockup featuring Metro and/or the Metro logo, and 
comply with recognition of LACMTA’s contribution to the Event as more particularly set forth 
in “Funding Agreement Communications Materials Guidelines” available online or from the 
LACMTA Open Streets Program Manager.  Grantee shall check with the LACMTA Open 
Streets Program Manager for the web address.  The Funding Agreement Communications 
Materials Guidelines may be changed from time to time during the course of this 
Agreement.  Grantee shall be responsible for complying with the communications 
requirements specified in this Agreement and with the latest Funding Agreement 
Communications Materials Guidelines during the term of this Agreement, unless otherwise 
specifically authorized in writing by the LACMTA Chief Communications Officer. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 700 of 778



Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 10  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 
13.7 Grantee shall submit all graphic files and Communications Materials to 

LACMTA for approval by the LACMTA Open Streets Program Manager and LACMTA 
Communications prior to the release of such publicity or promotional materials or 
Communications Materials for the Event.  LACMTA shall have at least one day to review and 
provide its approval.   After any Communications Materials have been released to the public, 
Grantee shall provide a copy of or notice of such Communications Materials to the LACMTA 
Open Streets Program Manager by e-mail. 

  
13.8 LACMTA shall be provided at no cost with a minimum of 1,000 SF space in a 

prominent, central location at the Event for an LACMTA booth/activity space, plus at least two 
10’ x 10’ spaces for satellite displays elsewhere at the Event. LACMTA shall have the r ight at 
any one or more of the above three locations or through a mobile vending cart, bicycle, or other 
vehicle, to sell, distribute or otherwise make available to Event attendees marketing, outreach 
and other promotional products and merchandise, including, without limitation, fare media, t-
shirts and other apparel, accessories, items available for sale at the Metro Store, brochures, 
maps, Metro Bike Share bike rentals, take-ones and other novelty items. The selection of 
products and merchandise available for sale and distribution shall be at LACMTA’s sole 
discretion. 

 
 13.9 The LACMTA Open Streets Program Manager shall be responsible for 
monitoring Grantee compliance with the terms and conditions of this Section 14.  Grantee 
failure to comply with the terms of this Section shall be deemed a default hereunder and 
LACMTA shall have all rights and remedies set forth herein. 

   
 13.10 The Metro logo is a trademarked item that shall be reproduced and displayed in 
accordance with specific graphic guidelines available from the LACMTA Communications 

Division.  Upon request, LACMTA shall provide scalable vector files with required type styling 
and logo placement for tagline and visual materials.  
 
 13.11 Grantee shall ensure that any subcontractor, including, without limitation, public 
relations, public affairs, and/or marketing firms hired to produce Project related 
Communications Materials will comply with the requirements contained in this Section 14. 
 
14. INDEMNITY 
  
 14.1    Neither LACMTA nor any officer or employee thereof shall be responsible for 

any damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or committed to be done by Grantee 
under or in connection with the Project, any work performed by, and/or service provided by, 
Grantee, its officers, agents, employees, contractors and subcontractors under this Agreement. 
Grantee shall fully indemnify, defend and hold LACMTA, its subsidiaries and their respective 
officers, agents, and employees harmless from and against any claims, loss demand, action, 
damages, liability, penalty, fine judgment, lien, costs, and expenses, including without limitation, 
defense costs, any costs or liability on account of bodily injury, death or personal injury of any 
person or for damage to or loss of use of property, any environmental obligation, any legal fees 
and any claims for damages of any nature whatsoever (including consequential damages) 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 701 of 778



Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

Page 11 
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

(collectively, “Claims”) arising out of the Project, including, without limitation: (i) use of the Funds 
provided herein by Grantee, or its officers, agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors; (ii) 
challenges, claims or litigation filed on behalf of any affected transportation provider and/or 
employees’ union; (iii) breach of the Grantee obligations under this Agreement or the Grant; (iv) 
any act or omission of Grantee, or its officers, agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors 
in the performance of the Scope of Work and the Project; or (v) any Claims arising from the 
actual Event itself. 

15. OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS

15.1 This Agreement, along with the applicable requirements of LACMTA constitutes 
the entire understanding between the parties with respect to the subject matter herein.  The 
Agreement shall not be amended, nor any provisions or breach hereof waived, except in writing 
and signed by the parties who executed the original Agreement or by those at the same level 
of authority. 

15.2 In the event that there is any legal court (e.g. Superior Court of the State 
of California, County of Los Angeles, or the U.S. District Court for the Central District of 
California) proceeding between the parties to enforce or interpret this Agreement or 
the applicable requirements of LACMTA to protect or establish any rights or remedies 
hereunder, each party shall be responsible for its costs and expenses. 

15.3 Neither party hereto shall be considered in default in the performance of its  
obligations hereunder to the extent that the performance of any such obligation is prevented or 
delayed by unforeseen causes including acts of God, floods, earthquake, fires, acts of a public 
enemy, and government acts beyond the control and without fault or negligence of the affected 
party.  Each party hereto shall give notice promptly to the other of the nature and extent of any 
such circumstances claimed to delay, hinder, or prevent performance of any obligations under 
this Agreement. 

15.4 Grantee shall comply with and ensure that work performed under this  
Agreement is done in compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), all 
applicable provisions of federal, state, and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, 
and procedural requirements and applicable requirements and regulations of the LACMTA. 

15.5 Grantee shall not assign this Agreement, or any part thereof, without written 
consent and prior approval of the LACMTA’s CEO or his/her designee, and any assignment 
without said consent shall be void and unenforceable.   

15.6 Subject to all requirements of this Agreement, and all other applicable 
requirements of LACMTA, including, without limitation, any requirement of competitive 
procurement of services and assets, Grantee may contract with other entities to implement this 
Agreement. 

15.7 This Agreement shall be governed by California law and applicable federal law. 
If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 702 of 778



Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 12  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless continue in full force without 
being impaired or invalidated in any way. 
 
 15.8     The terms of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding 
upon, each of the parties and their respective successors and assigns. 
 

15.9   Grantee, in the performance of the work required by this Agreement, is not a 
contractor nor an agent or employee of LACMTA and attests to no organizational or personal 
conflicts of interest and agrees to notify LACMTA immediately in the event that a conflict, or the 
appearance thereof, arises. Grantee shall not represent itself as an agent or employee of 
LACMTA and shall have no powers to bind LACMTA in contract or otherwise. 

 
15.10  On September 26, 2002 the LACMTA Board of Directors required that prior to 

receiving Proposition C 10% or 25% grant funds, GRANTEE meet a Maintenance of Effort 
(MOE) requirement consistent with the State of California’s MOE as determined by the State 
Controller’s office. With regard to enforcing the MOE, LACMTA will follow the State of 
California’s MOE requirements, including, without limitation, suspension and re-implementation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 703 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 704 of 778



Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

Page 14  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

    
EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

Event Name: 

Northeast Valley Community Street Festival  

Event Date and Time: 

Saturday, May 13, 2023 | 10am to 2pm  

Event Description: 

The Northeast Valley Community Street Festival (NVCSF) supports the City of San 
Fernando Council’s strategic goals (2022-2027) adopted to provide blueprint for 
programs and service that will be provide to the residence. It also capitalize on the 
City’s annual Providence Holy Cross Healthy San Fernando 5K Walk and Relay event, 
which typically attracts more than 2,000 participants from across the San Fernando 
Valley and Los Angeles County. The proposed event is a collaborative effort with the 
City of Los Angeles, Council District 7 that will include the communities of Sylmar and 
Pacoima. The Valley’s largest regional hospitals, Providence Holy Cross Medical 
Center, partner with the NVCSF to increase public awareness of obesity-related 
diseases while educating the community on the prevention of diseases through active 
living and healthy eating. A 5K/10K Run and Walk (8:00 am- 10:00 am) links this portion 
of the Valley. The NVCSF Open Streets event will begin immediately after the 5K/10K 
Run, Walk and effectively turn 7.5 miles of streets into a paved, urban playground, 
devoid of all motorized forms of transportation. It will incorporate the City of Los Angeles 
to include the Metrolink Station (a major transit hub) the Mission Trail Bike path and the 
communities of Sylmar and Pacoima. In keeping with the 5K/10K theme, the NVCSF 
Open Streets route will include five (5) destination “Legs,” or zoned areas with different 
family-friendly activities for all age groups at the end of each leg of the route. This will 
encourage participants to physically bike to each leg of the route in order to reach a 
different activity. As shown on the Event Map (provided at the end of the Scope of 
Work), the City has programming in place for each leg. A description of the 
programming and activities for each leg is provided below:  

Leg 1. Active Transportation – With its close proximity (less than .5 miles) to the 
Metrolink Sylmar/San Fernando Station, this “leg” of the route will promote the use of 
active transportation. 

a. All age groups will get to learn the local San Fernando Valley and Los Angeles 
County transit system through an interactive workshop and booths. 

b. The leg will include route-wide games, such as a Healthy San Fernando “Passport” 
game, in which participants get prizes for successfully completing each leg.  

c. Bike feeders, organized through the City’s Open Streets event webpage, will also 
congregate in this area. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 705 of 778



Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 15  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

d. Other Activities/Amenities: Roving Bike Repair Support, Hydration Station, Selfie 
Station. 

Leg 2. Refuel Right! Fest – This “leg” of the route will promote healthy eating and 
nutrition. 

a. Making smarter food choices will be highlighted in this area with a “Guess those 

Macronutrients” pop up display, in which participants will get to guess macronutrients in 
various food displays. For example, a hamburger will be displayed in a glass case, with 
the question: “How much protein is in this hamburger?” People will get to cast a ballot 
with their guesses. An hour before the Open Streets event ends, winners will be 
announced and provided prizes. Similar food/beverage demos will also be incorporated. 

b. All age groups will get to enjoy the flavors of San Fernando Valley’s local cuisines 
and restaurants, along with healthy food trucks. 

c. Other Activities/Amenities: Music/DJ, Healthy Eating Contests. 

Leg 3. Downtown Art Walk – The City of San Fernando is the oldest city in the San 
Fernando Valley and therefore has a rich, diverse and colorful history. This “leg” of the 
route will showcase and highlight the City’s historic Downtown district, mall, businesses. 
It will be the central hub connecting the entire route. 

a. All age groups will get to draw with chalk on the streets and watch live, local artists 
draw and paint. Local artists will also be able to display and sell their art, creating a true, 
art walk. 

b. A parade will be organized consisting of local, cultural dance groups and 
performances representing multicultural communities in the San Fernando Valley, such 
as Bollywood, Folklorico, and Aztec Dance JAM session. 

c. The historically significant Lopez Adobe will be included in this “leg” of the route, 
offering a dance floor where children can dance and move. Veracruz style musicians 
may also be incorporated in this area. 

d. A historic Downtown bike tour will also lead participants through the route to learn 
about the history of the City and of the San Fernando Valley. 

e. Other Activities/Amenities: Spin Art (art made using bikes/wheels), HairArt and 
Braiding, Face Painting, Music/DJ, Selfie Station. 

Leg 4. InMotion: Bike/Ped Safety – This “leg” of the route will promote bicycle and 
pedestrian safety awareness, which is in line with the City’s current endeavor to create 
an Active Transportation and Safe Routes to School Plan. 

a. Children will get to learn how to stay safe while walking and biking in any setting, 
particularly in an urban environment, through a bicycle rodeo, beginning each hour. 

b. Teens and young adults will get to watch a BMX biking stunt show while also learning 
safety tips. They will also have chances to win helmets and other safety gear through 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 706 of 778



Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 16  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

raffles and contests. 

c. In addition to biking the area, adults will get to “Map Your Ride,” which will be an 
interactive experience, allowing adults to map their ride to work using existing 
multimodal modes of transportation. This will effectively allow them to learn new ways of 
getting to work that they may not have considered previously. They will also be able to 
visually compare active modes of transportation vs. automobile against their personal 
health and financial benefits. 

d. Other Activities/Amenities: Roving Bike Repair Support, Spa Water, Selfie Station. 

Leg 5: ChallengeU: Physical Fitness – This “leg” of the route is a self-challenging zone 
meant to increase awareness of participant’s own personal fitness. 

a. Children will get to enjoy various small activity challenge booths. Once each is 
completed, children will be able to dash, pedal and move through a larger obstacle 
course to obtain a health-related prize. 

b. Teens and adults will learn the benefits of physical activity through an interactive 
experience, involving a series of fitness challenges, testing strength, cardio, aerobics 
and other measures of physical fitness. Upon completion, participants will learn how to 
improve their current fitness level. 

c. Other Activities/Amenities: Zumba, Yoga, Hip Hop, Ping Pong, Hula Hoops, Outdoor 
Waterless Rowing, Jump ropes, resistance bands, hurdles, sandbags, agility ladders, 
battle ropes, Pop Up Arcade, Selfie Station. 

Agenda 

(1) 5K /10K Run or Walk  

8:00 a.m. 5K  

8:30 a.m. 10K  

9:30 a.m. 5K relay run 

(2) Northeast Valley Community Street Festival - Open Streets  

10:00 a.m. route opens  

2:00 p.m. event end of Open streets 

Event Location: 

City of San Fernando and City of Los Angeles, specifically San Fernando Road (from 
Bledsoe St. to Van Nuys Blvd.), Maclay St. (from San Fernando Road to Glenoaks 
Blvd.), Van Nuys Blvd. (from Brandley Ave. to Oneida Ave.).  

Roles and Responsibilities: 

The City of San Fernando will be the lead agency, with support from the City of Los 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 707 of 778



Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 17  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

Angeles, and oversee all work related to this event, as follows: 

(1) The City will work with non-profits and other organizations in order to ensure a 
successful event. 

a. Current partners who have already pledged their services include: 

i. Providence Holy Cross Medical Center 

ii. California State University Northridge 

iii. San Fernando Downtown Mall Association 

b. Other potential partners, with whom the City is currently working with to implement 
the 5K Relay Walk or Run event, include: 

i. San Fernando Chamber of Commerce 

ii. Kaiser Permanente 

iii. LA Care Health Plan 

iv. Ford Theatre Foundation (cultural/dance programming) 

v. Relay for Life 

vi. Facey Medical Group 

vii. LA Mission Community College 

c. Specific active/multi-modal focused organizations which can potentially offer 
assistance include, but are not limited to: 

i. San Fernando Valley Bicycle Club (SFVBC) 

ii. San Fernando Valley Mountain Bikers 

(2) The City will select, through a formal RFP process, a consultant to manage, promote 
and implement the event, including communications through print, news, radio and 
social media. The consultant will also brand the project, including website, flyers and 
other marketing strategies. 

Contact Information: Julian Venegas, Recreation and Community Services Director 
Phone: (818) 898-1290, Email: jvenegas@sfcity.org

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 708 of 778



Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

Page 18  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

EVENT MAP 

  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 709 of 778



 
 

Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 19  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

            
EXHIBIT B 

FINANCIAL PLAN 
 

The total cost of the Project is $600,000.  The following is a description of the funding 
category and the corresponding funding amounts and funding source to implement the 
Project.  
 
 
Category                       Metro Grant Award                   Local Match 
 
Non-Infrastructure                                     $500,000                                       $100,000 
 
   
Sources of Local Financial Assistance 
 
                                                        Funding Source                          Amount 
  
                                                        ROW Lease Funds               $500,000 
        
 
Local Match 
 

FUNDING SOURCES 
TOTAL 

($) 

PC25 ($) 
Metro 

Funding 

LOCAL 
 ($)1 City 
Funding 

Metro Grant Award  
 

   $600,000  $500,000   $100,000 
And Local Match     
    

 

ELIGIBLE COSTS 
TOTAL 

($) 
PC25 

($) 
LOCAL 

($)1  

Outreach cost $105,000 
 

       $84,000 
 

    $21,000 
 

Pre-event Planning costs $247,000 $194,600 $52,400  

Event Day costs (Staffing, 
rentals, permits, etc.) 

$248,000 $198,400 $49,600 
 

Total $600,000 $500,000 $100,000  
1. In-kind local contribution as required by the Metro Open Streets Grant Program  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 710 of 778



 
 

Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 20  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

EXHIBIT C 
STANDARDIZED DATA COLLECTION TEMPLATE 

 
 

METRO OPEN STREETS  
PARTICIPANT / VOLUNTEER ANECTODAL INTERVIEWS  
 
In an attempt to better serve the community, we are collecting information for an 
evaluation study to understand how the open street events affect neighborhoods where 
the events take place.  We are conducting interviews with participants and volunteers 
along this street during the event today.  Your participation is voluntary and you can 
stop this interview at any time.  Any personally identifiable information collected through 
this survey is collected solely for the purpose of contacting you to clarify any information 
provided, if needed. Any personally identifiable information collected will not be sold or 
otherwise be distributed outside of the City of San Fernando government or LA Metro. 
Do I have your permission to record this interview? 
 

1. Are you participating in the event today? 
a. If yes: Is this your first time participating in an open street event? 
b. If no: Where have you participated previously? 

 
2. Not including today, have you ever participated in an Open Streets event similar to this, 

or CicLAvia, in the past?  
a. Yes  
b. No 

 
3. How long are you staying at the Open Streets event today?  

a. Less than 30 minutes 
b. 30 to less than 60 minutes 
c. Between 1 and 2 hours 
d. Between 2 and 3 hours 
e. More than 3 hours 

 
4. Do you perceive this open street event as improving this neighborhood / community? 

 
5. How did you arrive at today’s event? 

a. Automobile    b. Bike     c. Walk 
d. Other wheeled device  e. Transit (Rail)  f. Transit (Bus) 
  

6. If you used Metro for transportation to the event. 
a. How did you access Metro today? 

a. Automobile  b. Bike  c. Walk  d. Other wheeled 
device 
 

b. Do you ever ride Metro? 
a. Never   b. Less than once a month  

c. Several times a month d. Several times a week e. Daily 
 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 711 of 778



 
 

Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 21  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

7. After today’s event, your use of transit is likely to: 
a. Increase b. Stay the same c. Decrease d. Don’t know 
 

8. After today’s event, how likely are you to walk in your neighborhood? Please rank on a 
scale from 1 to 5 with 1 being least likely and 5 being most likely. 
 

9. After today’s event, how likely are you to ride a bike on city streets? Please rank on a 
scale from 1 to 5 with 1 being least likely and 5 being most likely. 

 
10. Would you like to see this event in your neighborhood? 

a. If yes: How often? 
 

11. May we follow up with you after today to ask a few questions about your experience at 
the open street event? 

a. If yes:  Please provide contact information below. 
 

12. What is your 5-digit zip code? 
 

13. What is your gender? 
a. Male  
b. Female  
c. Other 

 
14. What is your age group? 

a. 17 or younger 
b. 18-29 
c. 30-39 
d. 40-49 
e. 50-59 
f. 60 or older 

 

 
Participant name: 
Email or phone number: 
 
 
METRO OPEN STREETS  
PARTICIPANT METRO RAIL SURVEY  
 

1. Are you participating in today’s Open Streets event?  
a. Yes 
b. No  

 
2. Is this your first-time riding Metro rail?  

a. Yes (Go to question 6) 
b. No (Go to question 5) 

 
 

3. What best describes your use of public transit?  
a. Daily  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 712 of 778



 
 

Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 22  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

b. More than once a week 
c. Once a week 
d. Once a month 
e. Less than once a month 

 
4. After today’s event would you use public transit again in the future?  

a. Yes 
b. No 
c. I don’t know 

 
5. If you weren’t participating in today’s event, would you have used public transportation 

today? 
a. Yes 
b. No 
c. I don’t know 

 
6. What is your 5-digit zip code? 

a. Zip Code: 
 

METRO OPEN STREETS  
BUSINESS OWNER ECONOMIC BENEFIT INTERVIEWS AFTER EVENT 
 
In an attempt to better serve the community, we are collecting information for an 
evaluation study to understand how open street events affect neighborhoods and 
businesses where the events take place.  We are conducting interviews with businesses 
along this street during the event today.  Your participation is voluntary and you can 
stop this interview at any time.  Do I have your permission to record this interview? 
 

1. Did you experience the open streets event? 
a. If yes: What do you understand the event to be? 

 
2. Did your business participate and/or interact in the open streets event? 

a. If yes: How did your business participate and/or interact with the event? 

 
3. Did the open street event bring new or more patrons to you? 

 
4. How did the event affect your business? Please rank on a scale from 1 to 5 with 1 

affecting your business the least and 5 affecting your business the most. 
 

5. How did the event affect your community? Please rank on a scale from 1 to 5 with 1 
affecting your community the least and 5 affecting your community the most. 

 
6. Did your business experience any change in sales volume during the event? 

a. Are you willing to share sales volume information from the event as compared to 
a non-event Sunday? 

 
7. How often would you like to see this event return to this street and/or this neighborhood?  

a. Never    c. Once a year 
b. Once every other year d. More than once a year 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 713 of 778



 
 

Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 23  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 
8. Do you have any other thoughts to add about this event? 

 

Business name: 
Describe business: 
 
 
 
METRO OPEN STREETS  
BUSINESS OWNER ANECTODAL INTERVIEWS DAY OF EVENT 
 
In an attempt to better serve the community, we are collecting information for an 
evaluation study to understand how open street events affect neighborhoods and 
businesses where the events take place.  We are conducting interviews with businesses 
along this street during the event today.  Your participation is voluntary and you can 
stop this interview at any time.  Do I have your permission to record this interview? 
 
1. Are you familiar with the open streets event today? 

a. If yes: What do you understand the event to be? 
 

2. Is your business participating and/or interacting with the open streets event today? 
a. If yes and held previously in the community: Is this your first time participating in an 

open street event? 
b. In what way will your business participate and/or interact with today’s event? 

 
3. Does your business do any type of marketing or advertising? 

a. If yes: What type of advertising do you do? 
b. Do you believe this event may bring better recognition to the products or services 

your business offers? 

 
4. Have you noticed any changes in your customer volume or demographics today? 

 
5. What effect do you believe today’s event has on this community? Please rank on a scale of 

1 to 5, with 5 being the most positive and 1 being the least positive. 
 

6. What effect do you believe today’s event has on your business?  Please rank on a scale of 1 
to 5, with 5 being the most positive and 1 being the least positive. 

 
7. Would you like to see this event return to this street at another point in the future? 

a. If yes: How often would you like to see this event happen? 
b. If no: Would you recommend this event to happen on a different street in this 

neighborhood? 
 
8. In the past has your business supported transportation improvements, particularly for public 

transit, walking or riding a bike in this community?   
 

9. Do you believe that by experiencing today’s event your business may support these 
improvements in the future? 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 714 of 778



 
 

Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

 Page 24  
 Open Streets ID# 920000000CYC2102 

10. Do you think this community would benefit from future transportation improvements, 
particularly those for riding a bike, walking and/or public transit? 

 
11. Can I come back after the event and ask you some follow-up questions?  If yes, when would 

be a good time? 
 

12. Do you have any other thoughts to add about this event? 
 

Business name: 
Describe business: 
 

 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 715 of 778



Page 1 of 36 
 

ATTACHMENT “B” 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The Recreation and Community Services Department is requesting proposals for: 
 
 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT SERVICES  
OPEN STREETS EVENT 

 
 
 
 
 

RELEASE DATE: February 6, 2023 
 

RESPONSE DUE: March 6, 2023 
 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 716 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 2 of 36 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION  
 

The City of San Fernando is located in the northeast San Fernando Valley and is encircled by the 
City of Los Angeles. The City of San Fernando is approximately 2.4 square miles and has a 
population of nearly 24,000 residents. The Recreation and Community Services Department is 
collaborating with the City of Los Angeles Council District Seven, in particular the communities of 
Pacoima and Sylmar with a population of nearly 170,457 citizens, to host a Metro Open Streets 
Grant Event.  The Open Streets Event will transform busy roads and thoroughfares into open 
spaces for walking, bike riding, skateboarding, or any non-motorized modes of transportation.  
The event also provides an opportunity for local businesses and community-based organizations 
to promote their goods and services to the event participants. 
 
The Open Streets Event billed as the Northeast Valley Community Street Festival (NVCSF) will 
connect the City of San Fernando with the neighborhoods of Sylmar and Pacoima along a 7.5-
mile route utilizing San Fernando Road, Maclay Avenue, and Van Nays Blvd.  The NVCSF event is 
scheduled to take place on Saturday, September 23, 2023, between the hours of 10:00 am and 
2:00 pm.  The route will feature a minimum of five themed legs or activity zones where 
community members will interact with exercise demos, public art displays, and cultural and live 
performances.  A more detailed description of the activity zones is available in the NVCSF Event 
Description (Exhibit A) of this Request for Proposals (RFP).           

 
The City of San Fernando (“City”) is seeking proposals from qualified firms (“Consultant”) to 
provide Event Management services (hereinafter referred to as “Services”) for the City’s 2023 
Northeast Valley Community Street Festival, in accordance with the terms and conditions 
prescribed in this RFP.  Respondents are advised to read this information carefully prior to 
submitting a proposal. 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The City of San Fernando was incorporated in 1911 and is currently organized according to the 
City Council/City Manager form of government with six departments, including Administration, 
Police Department, Public Works Department, Recreation and Community Services Department, 
Community Development Department, and Finance Department. The City employs 
approximately 100 full-time employees from a total Adopted Budget for the fiscal year 2022-2023 
of $53.8 million, which includes a General Fund budget of $25.3 million. The City is a cost-
conscious provider of outstanding public services to its citizens and local businesses.  
 
The City activity pursues grant funding to augment and enhance the programs and services 
provided to the public.  One such grant is the Metro Open Streets Event program, which is funded 
by Proposition C.  As a recipient of public funds, the City believes in an open competitive process 
for awarding product and service contracts.  The City evaluates all proposals submitted to select 
the best Consultant for the public dollar. The City is interested in receiving responsive and 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 717 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 3 of 36 

 

competitive proposals from experienced and qualified Consultants to provide Services for the 
NVCSF event.  The following describes the technical environment, contractor staffing, 
qualifications, and performance expectations for this RFP. 
 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMITTING CONTRACTORS 
 

A. Examination of Proposal Documents 
 

By submitting a proposal, the prospective firm represents that it has thoroughly examined 
and become familiar with the Services required under this RFP and that it is capable of 
delivering quality work to the City in a creative, cost-effective & service-oriented manner. 

 
B. Questions/Clarifications 
 

Please direct any questions regarding this RFP to Julian Venegas, Recreation and Community 
Services Director, via e-mail at jvenegas@sfcity.org.  Questions must be received by 5:00 
p.m. on Wednesday, February 22, 2023.  Responses to all questions received prior to the 
deadline will be posted on the City’s website on Monday, February 27, 2023.    

 
C. Submission of Bid Proposals 

 
Firms must submit their proposals as a hard copy and as an electronic copy. Hard copies may 
be sent in a sealed envelope to the San Fernando City Clerk’s Office, located at 117 Macneil 
Street, San Fernando, California, 91340.  Electronic copies may be sent to Julian Venegas, 
Recreation and Community Services Director, at jvenegas@sfcity.org, with the subject line 
“City of San Fernando RFP – Program Management Services for Open Streets Event.” All bid 
proposals must be received on or before Monday, March 6, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.  All proposals 
received after the due date will not be accepted.  

 
D. Withdrawal of Proposals 

 
A firm may withdraw its proposal at any time before the due date by delivering a written 
request for withdrawal signed by, or on behalf of the prospective firm. 

 
E. Rights of the City of San Fernando 

 
This RFP does not commit the City to enter into a Contract, nor does it obligate the City to 
pay for any costs incurred in the preparation and submission of proposals or in anticipation 
of a contract. 
 
The City reserves the right to:  
1) Make the selection based on its sole discretion; 
2) Reject any and all proposals without prejudice; 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 718 of 778

mailto:jvenegas@sfcity.org
mailto:jvenegas@sfcity.org


                                                                              

 
Page 4 of 36 

 

3) Issue subsequent Requests for Proposal; 
4) Postpone opening for its own convenience; 
5) Remedy technical errors in the Request for Proposal process; 
6) Approve or disapprove the use of particular sub-contractors; 
7) Negotiate with any, all, or none of the prospective firms; 
8) Solicit best and final offers from all or some of the prospective firms; 
9) Accept other than the lowest offer; and/or 
10) Waive informalities and irregularities in the proposal process. 
 

F. Contract Type 
 
It is anticipated that a standard Professional Services Agreement (PSA) contract will be 
executed subsequently to City Council review and approval of the recommended firm.  A 
sample of the standard PSA agreement is enclosed as Exhibit “B”.  
 

G. Collusion 
 
By submitting a proposal, each prospective Consultant represents and warrants that; its 
proposal is genuine and not a sham or collusive or made in the interest of or on behalf of any 
person not named therein; that the prospective Consultant has not directly, induced, or 
solicited any other person to submit a sham proposal or any other person to refrain from 
submitting a proposal; and, that the prospective Consultant has not in any manner sought 
collusion to secure any improper advantage over any other person submitting a proposal. 
 

 
SCOPE OF WORK 
 
The City of San Fernando is soliciting proposals from qualified and experienced firms to manage the 
Northeast Valley Community Street Festival, a Metro Open Streets Event.  The NVCSF is a 7.5-mile 
street closure event that connects the City of San Fernando, Sylmar, and Pacoima through the 
corridors of San Fernando Road, Maclay Avenue, and Van Nays Boulevard.  The event utilizes 
communal gathering locations such as the Downtown District, Westside Park, Bradly Plaza, and 
Pacoima City Hall to serve as activity zones.  The event will highlight alternative modes of 
transportation at the San Fernando/Sylmar Metrolink Station, and the Mission City Bike Trail.   
 
The streets closures void of motor vehicles will allow the public to walk, bike, or take transit, possibly 
for the first time.  The route activities will include, but not be limited to, walking fun zones, farmers 
markets, physical activity challenges, music and dance performances, and street art exhibitions.  A 
5K Run/Walk activity may be hosted if feasible within the greater Open Streets event.  Hubs or legs 
along key communal gathering places will host the activities mentioned.  A description of the legs' 
activities is available in the Event detailed attached as Exhibit “A”. 

 
Prospective Consultants should have significant and relevant experience and familiarity in hosting 
events that promote bicycle and pedestrian awareness, the safe use of bicycles, and pedestrian 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 719 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 5 of 36 

 

activity by connecting diverse portions of the Northeast San Fernando Valley region through 
temporary public spaces, free of cars and traffic, and open to non-motorized modes of mobility.  The 
projected timeline for implementation of the program management services is nine (9) months from 
the date the agreement is executed by all parties.  

 
The Event Project Management is subdivided into five major service areas that include 
Administration, Marketing and Community Engagement, Management/Program Coordination (Day 
of Event),   Safety Management, and Grant Compliance.  The Services may be sub-contracted 
provided sub-contractors are listed in the proposal detailing their experience and qualifications to 
provide such services.  The City may modify the Scope of Work through negotiation and/or by a 
written addendum issued by the City, which becomes part of the original agreement.  The successful 
Consultant is expected to furnish all personnel to provide the following services in the following 
areas: 
 

A. Administration 
The Consultant shall assign a Project Manager (PM) to this event that will be the main 
point of contact with City staff. The PM must be available to: 

 
1. Coordinate Project Kick-Off Meetings involving the City, DC& and LADOT staff. 
2. Attend meetings and provide written reports to City staff after each meeting 

regarding progress in performing required tasks needed to host a successful event. 
3. Host monthly Technical Advisory Meetings to discuss and guide event 

implementation, key stakeholders will be invited to participate in such meetings. 
4. Provide a list of partners and the roles they play in the event planning and production 

of the event. 
5. Coordinate with Health providers to implement health activities as part of this Open 

Streets Event. 
6. Coordinate with local merchants and Community Base Organizations.  
7. Submit appropriate procurement forms, permits, and licenses for the event. 

 
B. Marketing and Community Engagement 

1. Establish a Community Advisory Committee for Sylmar, Pacoima, and the City.   
2. Targeted Market Identification and Event Branding. 
3. Communications, Public Relations, and Marking Plan. 
4. Multilingual Marketing Materials Development. 
5. Develop a Sponsorship Plan for the event. 
6. Community Engagement – Website and Social Media Outreach, PSAs, Radio, etc. 
7. Conduct workshops prior to the event to educate residents - Bike Educational 

Workshops, alternative transportation, etc. in each community (Sylmar, Pacoima, 
and City of San Fernando). 

8. Recruit, train, and manage volunteers to work the day of the event. 
9. Present to City Council and CD7 representatives. 

 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 720 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 6 of 36 

 

 
C. Management/Program Coordination Day of Event 

1. Consult with Public Works and Public Safety on the finalized route. Ensure that all 
soft and hard closures are feasible for the day of the event. 

2. Establish and promote a Community Engagement platform to gather statistical data 
on the day of the event.  

3. Identify a wide array of eateries, cafes, boutiques, entertainment, art galleries, and 
other businesses to serve in the assigned activity zone/hub area. 

4. Coordinate with Metro and municipal transit service operators to provide access to 
the event. 

5. Provide an outline of the general elements/ideas/goals that will be represented in the 
activities along the route. Implement these elements/ideas/goals in the assigned 
activity zones/hub areas. 

6. Set up activity zones, activity signage for hub areas, booths, decorations, etc. 
7. Promote and implement healthier environments, active living, and sustainable 

communities. 
8. Obtain event insurance (including applicable waivers/permits) and ensure compliance 

with all City/County permitting procedures and guidelines. 
 

D. Safety Management  
1. Develop a Traffic Management Plan for the entire 7.5-mile event route. 
2. Notification of street closures affecting public transit agencies (Buses and Rail).   
3. Coordination with Fire, Police, and Public Works in respective jurisdictions (City of Los 

Angeles, City of San Fernando).  
4. Create Map Guides for the event. 
5. Participant Safety – hydration zones, restrooms, bike dismount areas, pedestrian 

crossings, etc. 
6. Create a Vendor and volunteer management Plan. 
7. Coordinate with vendors and businesses along the route. 
8. Surveying all aspects of the event for optimal security.  
9. Develop a Clean-Up and tear-down plan. 

 
E. Grant Compliance Project Close-Out 

1. Grant Reporting shall comply with all applicable requirements of Metro regarding 
Project reporting and audit requirements.  

2. Data Analysis & Event Evaluation Narrative and Financial Report on Project Progress as 
required. 

3. Complete all Federal procurement forms. 
4. Conduct participant / volunteer anecdotal interviews 
5. Project Closeout Report. 

 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 721 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 7 of 36 

 

INFORMATION TO BE SUBMITTED 
 
The content and sequence of the information contained in each copy of the proposal shall 
be as follows: 
 

A. Cover Letter 
Introduction of the firm submitting the proposal, including a general description of the 
firm’s qualifications and experience relevant to the requested services, with emphasis on 
previous projects similar to the one proposed here. Along with introductory remarks, the 
proposal shall include the following information: 

 
1. Complete name, address, principal place of business, telephone number, and fax 

number/e-mail address of legal entity with which contract would be written. 
 

2. Complete the name, title, address, e-mail address, and telephone number of each 
principal officer. 

 
3. Identify the legal entity of the Consultant and state the number of years the entity 

has been organized and doing business under this legal structure. 
 

4. Documentation of the financial status of the firm to ensure the firm will continue to 
be in business through the contract period and finance the costs of adequate 
personnel and other support requirements. 

 
B. Organizational Information 

The consultant will include an organizational chart and staffing plan for key personnel the 
Consultant plans to assign to the ongoing management of the services described in the 
Scope of Work. A section titled “Proposed City of San Fernando Team” shall be included 
and will include resumes, certifications, etc. for the proposed team that will be assigned 
to the City that demonstrates their abilities, skill level, and experience to accomplish the 
required tasks. 

 
C. Qualifications and Experience 

The Consultant will demonstrate that the firm expresses a clear understanding of the 
Scope of Work and indicate features, skills, and/or services that distinguish the firm as the 
better choice for the City. The Consultant will provide a minimum of three (3) examples 
of comparable work performed during the last three years that best demonstrates the 
qualifications and ability of the proposed team to accomplish the work as outlined in the 
Scope of Work section of this RFP. Include dates and descriptions of the services that were 
provided. 

 
Consultant shall provide a minimum of three (3) and maximum of five (5) references and 
should include any California governmental clients or similar public agencies for which 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 722 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 8 of 36 

 

contracts were performed. For each reference, the information shall include the name of 
the client with current address, telephone number, e-mail address, and contact person of 
each client who would be most familiar with the services provided. The City reserves the 
right to contact any of the listed references at any time and make any other reasonable 
investigation into the consultant’s background and experience. 

 
1. Procedures and Methodology – The proposal shall provide a detailed description 

of the firm’s proposed approach demonstrating how the goals and objectives will 
be accomplished as outlined in the Scope of Work. 

 
2. Quality Control – The Consultant shall describe the firm’s policies and procedures 

for assuring high-quality work, including monitoring of any proposed sub-
contracts. 

  

3. Schedule Detail/Schedule Control – The Consultant shall provide a detailed 
schedule outlining the tasks, activities, deliverables, milestones, and duration 
required for the completion and submission of each of the following deliverables. 

 

D. Cost Summary 
The cost summary shall be submitted in a separate sealed envelope. All costs should 
reflect “not to exceed” figures. Fee schedules, including hourly rates for the prime 
consultant and all sub-consultants, meetings, and reproduction costs, should accompany 
the cost summary. 

 
E. Compensation Schedule 

In a separate sealed envelope labeled “Compensation Schedule,” the Consultant shall 
include an appropriate compensation schedule to meet its workload and staffing needs. 
Include the hourly rate for all personnel assigned to the City, the number of hours each 
staff member will be assigned for each major task in the Scope of Work, as well as a list of 
all other reimbursable costs incurred in the performance of services required in the Scope 
of Work. A discussion on how the firm controls overall costs for Services to the City should 
be included as well. 
 

F. Conflict of Interest Statement 
Include a statement disclosing any involvement with plan/development projects in the City 
of San Fernando by the consultant (and sub-consultants) within the last year. The City of 
San Fernando reserves the right to reject any proposals having the potential for a conflict 
of interest. 

 
G. Signature 

The proposal shall be signed by an official who is authorized to bind the consulting firm and 
shall contain a statement that guarantees that the proposal/cost estimate is valid for ninety 
(90) days. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 723 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 9 of 36 

 

SCHEDULE FOR SELECTION  
 
RFP Available:       February 6, 2023 
Question Submittal Deadline:     February 22, 2018 
Response to Questions:     February 27, 2023 
Interviews/Contract Negotiations (if necessary):  March 9, 2023 
Agreement Presented to Council for Review & Approval: March 20, 2023 
 
 

METHOD OF SELECTION AND NOTICES 
 

The Recreation and Community Services Director and staff from Los Angeles Council District 
7 and the Los Angeles Department of Transportation will evaluate the information provided 
in the submitted proposals using the following criteria as a guideline: 

 
• Completeness and Comprehensiveness of the Event 
• Responsiveness to Service Needs 
• Potential Benefits of the Northeast Valley Region 
• Experience of the firm providing similar services to other municipalities 
• Cost-effectiveness 
• Quality of proposed staff 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 724 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 10 of 36 

 

EXHIBIT A  
 

Event Description 

Event Name: The Northeast Valley Community Street Festival 

Event Date and Time: Saturday, September 24, 2023, | 10 am to 2 pm 
 
The Northeast Valley Community 
Street Festival (NVCSF) aligns with 
the adopted City of San Fernando City 
Council’s strategic goals (2022-2027) 
to provide a blueprint for programs 
and services provided to the residents 
of San Fernando.  The event also 
serves as a venue for the Los Angeles 
City Council District 7 to engage its 
constituents in the communities of 
Sylmar and Pacoima.  
 
NVCSF is a collaborative effort to 
bring together various factions of the 
community to make participants 
aware of the alternative modes of transportation available in the region. The event closes down miles 
of streets creating open space for local businesses, Community Based Organizations, Faith Based 
groups, Artisans, and Health Organizations to engage the public. The NVCSF Open Streets event 
effectively turns 7.5 miles of streets into a paved, urban playground, devoid of all motorized forms of 
transportation. Allowing participants to run, walk, skate, and bike along the route and interact with 
the vendors along the route.  
 
The Northeast Valley’s largest regional hospital, Providence Holy Cross Medical Center, will 
collaborate with the NVCSF to increase public awareness of obesity-related diseases while educating 
the community on the prevention of diseases through active living and healthy eating. A proposed 
5K/10K Run and Walk link the three communities together. The event incorporates alternative modes 
of transportation at the San Fernando Sylmar Metrolink Station (a major transit hub), and the Mission 
Trail Bike path that runs through the communities of Sylmar and Pacoima. 
 
The NVCSF Open Streets route will include a minimum of five (5) destination “Legs,” or activity 
areas with different family-friendly activities for all age groups at each entry point of the route.  
Participants are encouraged to physically bike to each leg of the route to reach a different activity 
zone.  The NVCSF event map shows the 7.5-mile route where the City, Sylmar, and Pacoima will 
host these legs for programming activities, and provide open space for vending.  
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 725 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 11 of 36 

 

The City has programming in place for each hub. A description of the programming and activities for 
each hub/leg is provided below: 
 

Hub 1. Active Transportation – With its proximity (less than .5 miles) to the MetroLink 
Sylmar/San Fernando Station, this leg of the route will promote the use of active 
transportation.   
  

a) All age groups will get to learn about the local San Fernando Valley and Los Angeles 
County transit system through an interactive workshop and booth. 

b) The leg will include route-wide games, such as a Healthy San Fernando “Passport” 
game, in which participants get prizes for completing each leg.  

c) Bike feeders, organized through the City’s Open Streets event webpage, will also 
congregate in this area. 

d) Other Activities/Amenities: Roving Bike Repair Support, Hydration Station, Selfie 
Station. 

 
Hub 2. Refuel Right! Fest – This leg of the route will promote healthy eating and nutrition. 
 

a) Making smarter food choices will be highlighted in this area with a “Guess those 
Macronutrients” pop-up display, in which participants will get to guess macronutrients 
in various food displays. For example, a hamburger will be displayed in a glass case, 
with the question: “How much protein is in this hamburger?” People will get to cast a 
ballot with their guesses. An hour before the Open Streets event ends, winners will be 
announced and provided prizes. Similar food/beverage demos will also be 
incorporated. 

b) All age groups will get to enjoy the flavors of San Fernando Valley’s local cuisines 
and restaurants, along with healthy food trucks. 

c) Other Activities/Amenities: Music/DJ, Healthy Eating Contests. 
 

Hub 3. Downtown Art Walk – The City of San Fernando is the oldest city in the San Fernando 
Valley and therefore has a rich, diverse, and colorful history. This “leg” of the route will 
showcase and highlight the City’s historic Downtown district, mall, and businesses. It will be 
the central hub connecting the entire route. 
 

a) All age groups will get to draw with chalk on the streets and watch live, local artists 
draw and paint. Local artists will also be able to display and sell their art, creating a 
true, art walk. 

b) A parade will be organized consisting of local, cultural dance groups and 
performances representing multicultural communities in the San Fernando Valley, 
such as Bollywood, Folklorico, and Aztec Dance JAM sessions. 

c) The historically significant Lopez Adobe will be included in this leg of the route, 
offering a dance floor where children can dance and move.  

d) A historic Downtown bike tour will also lead participants through the route to learn 
about the history of the City and the San Fernando Valley. 

e) Other Activities/Amenities: Spin Art (art made using bikes/wheels), Hair Art and 
Braiding, Face Painting, Music/DJ, Selfie Station. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 726 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 12 of 36 

 

Hub 4.  In Motion: Bike/Ped Safety – This leg of the route will promote bicycle and pedestrian 
safety awareness, which is in line with the City’s current endeavor to create an Active 
Transportation and Safe Routes to School Plan. 
 

a) Children will get to enjoy various activity challenge booths. Once each is completed, 
children will be able to dash, pedal, and move through a larger obstacle course to 
obtain a health-related prize. 

b) Teens and young adults will get to watch a BMX biking stunt show while also 
learning safety tips. They will also have chances to win helmets and other safety gear 
through raffles and contests. 

c) In addition to biking the area, adults will get to “Map Your Ride,” which will be an 
interactive experience, allowing adults to map their ride to work using existing 
multimodal modes of transportation. This will effectively allow them to learn new 
ways of getting to work that they may not have considered previously. They will also 
be able to visually compare active modes of transportation vs. automobiles against 
their health and financial benefits. 

d) Other Activities/Amenities: Roving Bike Repair Support, Spa Water, Selfie Station. 
 
Hub 5: 5K Relay Run/Walk: – This leg of the route is a self-challenging Physical Fitness zone meant 
to increase awareness of the participant’s fitness.  
 

a) Children, adults, and seniors will have an opportunity to participate in the Relay Run, 
Individual Run, and the Kid’s Fun Tot Run in addition to various activity challenge 
booths.  

b) Participants will take advantage of the health fair and learn the benefits of physical 
activity, proper nutrition, and disease prevention through interactive experience and 
screenings testing strength, cardio, aerobics, and other measures of physical fitness. 

c) Other Activities/Amenities: Live entertainment, community altars, cultural 
performances, and vendors.  Pop Up Arcade, Selfie Station. 

 
Booths will be spread throughout the route to include local merchants, non-profit/faith-based 
organizations, and private corporations.   
 
Propose Event Day Agenda 
 

1. Street Closures 5:00 a.m. 
 

2. Vendor Set up  7:00 a.m. 
 

3. 5K Walk or Run   
8:00 a.m. 5K individual run  
8:30 p.m. 5K relay run  
9:30 p.m. Kid’s Fun Run 

 
4. Northeast Valley Community Street Festival 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.  

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 727 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 13 of 36 

 

Event Location: City of San Fernando and City of Los Angeles, specifically along San Fernando 
Road (from Bledsoe St. to Van Nuys Blvd.), along Maclay St. (from San Fernando Road to Glenoaks 
Blvd.), along Van Nuys Blvd. (from Brandley Ave. to Oneida Ave.).   
 
 
Contact Information: Julian Venegas, Recreation and Community Services Director Phone: (818) 
898-1290, Email: jvenegas@sfcity.org 
 
 
 
 

Event Map 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 728 of 778

mailto:jvenegas@sfcity.org


                                                                              

 
Page 14 of 36 

 

 Exhibit B 
 

 
 

2022 
CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

(Contractor: INSERT NAME) 
(Nature of Engagement:  INSERT DESCRIPTION OF ENGAGEMENT) 

 
 
THIS CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT (hereinafter, “Agreement”) is made and entered into this 
_____ day of __________, 2022 by and between the CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a municipal 
corporation (hereinafter, “CITY”) and INSERT CONTRACTOR NAME (hereinafter, “CONTRACTOR”).  
For the purposes of this Agreement, CITY and CONTRACTOR may be referred to collectively by the 
capitalized term “Parties.”  The capitalized term “Party” may refer to CITY or CONTRACTOR 
interchangeably.  
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, CITY is a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of California, 
with power to contract for services necessary to achieve its purpose; and 

 
WHEREAS, CITY requires INSERT THE KIND OF SERVICES REQUIRED; and 

 
WHEREAS, CITY staff has determined that CONTRACTOR possess the skills, experience and 

expertise required to competently provide the services and tasks contemplated under this 
Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the execution of this Agreement was approved by the San Fernando City Council 
at its Regular Meeting of _____ __, 2022 under Agenda Item No. ___. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein 
contained, CITY and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:  
 
SECTION 1. SCOPE OF WORK.   
 
A. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR agrees to provide CITY 

INSERT SERVICES REQUIRED. The various tasks and related services to be performed by 
CONTRACTOR are more specifically described in the CITY’s “[INSERT NAME OF CITY 
REQUIREMENTS]” (hereinafter the “CITY REQUIREMENTS”) and the written proposal of 
CONTRACTOR entitled “INSERT TITLE OF PROPOSAL” (hereinafter, the “CONTRACTOR 
PROPOSAL”) dated INSERT DATE OF PROPOSAL.  The CITY REQUIREMENTS and the 
CONTRACTOR PROPOSAL are attached and incorporated hereto as Exhibits “A” and “B” 
respectively.  The term “Scope of Work” shall be a collective reference to the CITY 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 729 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 15 of 36 

 

REQUIREMENTS and the CONTRACTOR PROPOSAL.  The capitalized term “Work” shall be a 
collective reference to all the various services and tasks referenced in the Scope of Work.  In 
the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of the document entitled 
CITY REQUIREMENTS and the provisions of the document entitled CONTRACTOR PROPOSAL, 
the requirements of the document entitled CITY REQUIREMENTS shall govern and control 
but only to the extent of the conflict or inconsistency and no further.  In the event of any 
conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of the Scope of Work and the provisions of 
this Agreement to which the Scope of Work is attached, the provisions of this Agreement 
shall govern and control. 
 

B. IF NO CITY REQUIREMENTS ISSUED: Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide the services and tasks described in that certain proposal of 
CONTRACTOR entitled “INSERT TITLE OF PROPOSAL” dated INSERT DATE OF PROPOSAL 
(hereinafter, the “CONTRACTOR PROPOSAL”) which is attached and incorporated hereto as 
Exhibit “A”. CONTRACTOR further agrees to furnish to CITY all labor, materials, tools, 
supplies, equipment, services, tasks and incidental and customary work necessary to 
competently perform and timely complete the services and tasks set forth in the Scope of 
Work.  For the purposes of this Agreement the aforementioned services and tasks set forth 
in the Scope of Work shall hereinafter be referred to generally by the capitalized term 
“Work.” 
 

C. CONTRACTOR shall provide all labor, materials, tools, supplies, equipment, services, tasks 
and incidental and customary work necessary to competently perform and timely complete 
the Work.  CONTRACTOR shall perform the Work in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement and in accordance with such other written or verbal directives 
as may be issued by CITY. 

 
D. By executing this Agreement, CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR: (i) has thoroughly 

investigated and considered the nature of the work, services and tasks to be performed 
under this Agreement; (ii) has carefully considered how the Work should be performed; and 
(iii) fully understands the facilities, difficulties, and restrictions attending performance of the 
services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR has or will 
investigate any location where the Work is to be performed and is or will be fully acquainted 
with the conditions there existing, prior to undertaking any service or task requested by CITY 
in the manner described under Section 3, below.  Should the CONTRACTOR discover any 
latent or unknown conditions which will materially affect the performance of the services 
hereunder, CONTRACTOR shall immediately inform the CITY of such fact and shall not 
proceed except at CONTRACTOR’s risk until written instructions are received from the City 
Representative as defined herein.  

 
E. In the event CONTRACTOR ceases to perform the Work agreed to under this Agreement or 

otherwise abandons any undertaking contemplated herein prior to completion and 
acceptance of the Work, CONTRACTOR shall deliver to CITY immediately and without delay, 
all materials, records and other work product prepared or obtained by CONTRACTOR in the 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 730 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 16 of 36 

 

performance of this Agreement.  Furthermore, CONTRACTOR shall only be compensated for 
the reasonable value of the services, tasks and other work performed up to the time of 
cessation or abandonment, less a deduction for any damages, costs or additional expenses 
which CITY may incur as a result of CONTRACTOR’s cessation or abandonment. 

 
SECTION 2. PROSECUTION OF WORK. 
 
A. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each and every provision contained herein.  

The Work shall be commenced within three (3) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a written 
notice to proceed (“Notice to Proceed”).  The Work shall be completed by [insert time to be 
completed by or Insert date to be completed by of CITY’s issuance of the Notice to Proceed] 
(hereinafter, the “Completion Date”).  
 

B. CONTRACTOR shall perform the Work continuously and with due diligence so as to complete 
the Work by the Completion Date.  CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with CITY and in no manner 
interfere with the Work of CITY, its employees or other consultants, contractors or agents. 

 
C. CONTRACTOR may submit a written request for additional time to complete the Work, which 

request must be submitted to the CITY no later than fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the 
Completion Date or any extended Completion Date granted by CITY.  The written request for 
additional time must identify (i) what specific tasks or services remain to be completed by 
CONTRACTOR in order to complete the Work; (ii) how much additional time CONTRACTOR 
requires; (iii) identification of the circumstances that have caused the need for additional 
time, according to CONTRACTOR, including, if applicable, identification of any tasks that 
must be completed by CITY as prerequisite to CONTRACTOR being able to complete any 
other service or task; and (iv) what proactive steps CONTRACTOR has taken up to the date 
of the request to mitigate the need for additional time, including, if applicable, any effort on 
the part of CONTRACTOR to alert CITY of the need to provide information or complete certain 
tasks to be performed by CITY.  CITY in its sole and absolute discretion may grant, deny or 
conditionally grant a request for additional time, provided that no individual grant of 
additional time may exceed a maximum of fifteen (15) calendar days. 
 

D. CONTRACTOR shall not claim or be entitled to receive any compensation or damage because 
of the failure of CONTRACTOR, or its subcontractors, to have related services or tasks 
completed in a timely manner. 

 
E. CONTRACTOR shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among 

CONTRACTOR’s employees. 
 

F. CONTRACTOR, at its sole expense, shall pay all sales, consumer, use or other similar taxes 
required by law.  

 
 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 731 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 17 of 36 

 

SECTION 3. COMPENSATION.  
 
A. CONTRACTOR shall perform all the Work in accordance with the rates set forth in 

CONTRACTOR’s INSERT DATE quote (hereinafter “CONTRACTOR QUOTE”), which is attached 
and incorporated hereto as Exhibit “C”. 
 

B. CONTRACTOR’s total compensation during the Term of this Agreement shall not exceed the 
sum of INSERT WRITTEN AMOUNT ($INSERT NUMBER) (hereinafter, the “Not-to-Exceed 
Sum”).  CONTRACTOR further agrees that the Not-to-Exceed Sum is inclusive of 
compensation for all labor, materials, tools, supplies, equipment, services, tasks and 
incidental and customary work necessary to competently perform and timely complete the 
Work.  CONTRACTOR shall have no right or entitlement to any overage contingency sums 
authorized by the City Council as part of the approval of this Agreement, unless the City 
Representative authorizes the expenditure of such overage contingency funds in writing in 
the City Representative’s sole and absolute discretion. 
 

C. Following the conclusion of Work requested pursuant to Section 1 above, CONTRACTOR shall 
submit to CITY an itemized invoice indicating the services and tasks performed. If the amount 
of CONTRACTOR’s compensation includes hours worked by CONTRACTOR’s personnel, the 
invoice shall indicate the number of hours worked in connection with the specific service or 
task requested, the persons responsible for performing the Work, the rate of compensation 
at which such services and tasks were performed, the subtotal for each task and service 
performed and a grand total for all services performed.  Within thirty (30) calendar days of 
receipt of each invoice, CITY shall notify CONTRACTOR in writing of any disputed amounts 
included in the invoice.  Within forty-five (45) calendar days of receipt of each invoice, CITY 
shall pay all undisputed amounts included on the invoice.  CITY shall not withhold applicable 
taxes or other authorized deductions from payments made to CONTRACTOR. 

 
SECTION 4. STANDARD OF CARE.   
 
CONTRACTOR represents, acknowledges and agrees as follows: 
 
A. CONTRACTOR shall perform all work skillfully, competently and to the highest standards 

applicable to the CONTRACTOR’s field; 
 

B. CONTRACTOR represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional calling necessary 
to perform the Services; 

 
C. CONTRACTOR shall perform all work in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the CITY; 

 
D. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations, 

including the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code Section 1090 and the 
Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et seq.). CONTRACTOR’s compliance 
with applicable laws will include, without limitation, compliance with all applicable Cal/OSHA 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 732 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 18 of 36 

 

requirements and applicable regulations of the Federal Department of Housing and 
Urbanization; 

 
E. CONTRACTOR understands the nature and scope of the Work to be performed under this 

Agreement as well as any and all schedules of performance;  
 

F. All of CONTRACTOR’s employees and agents (including but not limited to CONTRACTOR’s 
subcontractors and subconsultants) possess sufficient skill, knowledge, training and 
experience to perform those services and tasks contemplated under this Agreement;  

 
G. All of CONTRACTOR’s employees and agents (including but not limited to CONTRACTOR’s 

subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications 
and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the tasks and services 
contemplated under this Agreement and all such licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications 
and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement; and 
 

H. CONTRACTOR shall at all times employ such force, plant, materials, and tools as will be 
sufficient in the opinion of the CITY to perform the Services within the time limits 
established, and as provided herein. It is understood and agreed that said tools, equipment, 
apparatus, facilities, labor, and material shall be furnished and said Services performed and 
completed as required by the Agreement, and subject to the approval of the CITY’s 
authorized representative. The quality of Services shall meet or exceed those standards 
established by the CITY or County of jurisdiction. 

 
The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONTRACTOR shall perform, at CONTRACTOR’s own cost 
and expense and without any reimbursement from CITY, any services or tasks necessary to correct 
any errors or omissions caused by CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply with the standard of care set 
forth under this Section or by any like failure on the part of CONTRACTOR’s employees, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants.  Such effort by CONTRACTOR to correct any errors 
or omissions shall be commenced immediately upon their discovery by either Party and shall be 
completed within seven (7) calendars days from the date of discovery or such other extended period 
of time authorized by the City Representative in writing and absolute discretion. The Parties 
acknowledge and agree that CONTRACTOR’s acceptance of any work performed by CONTRACTOR 
or on CONTRACTOR’s behalf shall not constitute a release of any deficiency or delay in performance.  
The Parties further acknowledge, understand and agree that CONTRACTOR has relied upon the 
foregoing representations of CONTRACTOR, including but not limited to the representation that 
CONTRACTOR possesses the skills, training, knowledge and experience necessary to perform the 
Work in a skillful and competent manner equivalent to, the standard of performance generally 
recognized as being employed by professionals performing the same type of work and services in 
the State of California.   
 
SECTION 5. REPRESENTATIVES.  
 
A. City Representative.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the contract administrator and 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 733 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 19 of 36 

 

CITY’s representative shall be INSERT CITY REPRESENTATIVE (hereinafter, the “City 
Representative”).  It shall be CONTRACTOR’s responsibility to assure that the City 
Representative is kept informed of the progress of the performance of the services, and 
CONTRACTOR shall refer any decisions which must be made by CITY to the City 
Representative.  Unless otherwise specified herein, any approval of CITY required hereunder 
shall mean the approval of the City Representative. 
 

B. Contractor Representative.  For the purposes of this Agreement, INSERT CONTRACTOR 
REPRESENTATIVE, is hereby designated as the principal and representative of CONTRACTOR 
authorized to act on its behalf with respect to CONTRACTOR’s performance under this 
Agreement and to make all decisions in connection therewith (hereinafter, the “Contractor 
Representative”).  Notice to the Contractor Representative whether written or verbal shall 
constitute notice to CONTRACTOR. The Contractor’s Representative shall supervise and 
direct the Services, using their best skill and attention, and shall be responsible for all means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures and for the satisfactory coordination of all 
portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 6. CONTRACTOR’S PERSONNEL. 
 
A. CONTRACTOR represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all personnel required 

to perform the Work and all other services and tasks necessary for CONTRACTOR to 
competently and timely complete the improvements contemplated under this Agreement.  
All work, services and tasks will be performed under CONTRACTOR’s supervision, and 
CONTRACTOR’s personnel engaged in the performance of the Work, services and tasks 
contemplated under this Agreement shall possess the qualifications, permits and licenses 
required by applicable law to perform such work, services and tasks. 

 
B. CONTRACTOR shall obtain at its sole cost and expense such licenses, permits, and approvals 

as may be required by law for the performance of the Work.  CONTRACTOR shall have the 
sole obligation to pay for any fees, assessments and taxes, plus applicable penalties and 
interest, which may be imposed by law and arise from or are necessary for the 
CONTRACTOR’s performance of the Work, and shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
CITY against any such fees, assessments, taxes, penalties, or interest levied, assessed, or 
imposed against CITY hereunder.  
 

C. CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for the satisfactory work performance of all 
personnel engaged in performing the Work. 

 
D. In the event that CITY, in its sole reasonable discretion, at any time during the duration of 

the Agreement, desires the removal of any person or persons assigned by CONTRACTOR to 
perform services pursuant to this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall remove any such person 
immediately upon receiving notice from CITY of the desire of CITY for the removal of such 
person or persons. 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 734 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 20 of 36 

 

E. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for payment of all employees’ and subconsultants’ wages 
and benefits and shall comply with all requirements pertaining to employer’s liability, 
workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance, and Social Security. 

 
F. CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain during the duration of the Agreement, all necessary 

licenses, permits and certificates required by law for the performance of the Work 
contemplated under this Agreement.   

 
SECTION 7. SUBSTITUTION OF KEY PERSONNEL.  CONTRACTOR has represented to CITY that 
certain key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  Should one 
or more of such personnel become unavailable, CONTRACTOR may substitute other personnel of at 
least equal competence upon written approval of CITY.  In the event that CITY and CONTRACTOR 
cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, CITY shall be entitled to terminate this 
Agreement for cause.  As discussed below, any personnel who  fail or refuse to perform the 
Services in a manner acceptable to the CITY, or who are determined by the CITY to be uncooperative, 
incompetent, a threat to  the adequate or timely completion of the Project or a threat to the 
safety of persons or property, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the CONTRACTOR at 
the request of the CITY. The key personnel for performance of this Agreement are as follows: 
[INSERT NAME AND TITLE]. 
 
SECTION 8. PREVAILING WAGES AND GENERAL LABOR COMPLIANCE AND REPORTING.  
 
A. CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor performing or contracting any portion of the Work 

shall comply with all applicable provisions of the California Labor Code for all workers, 
laborers and mechanics of all crafts, classifications or types, including, but necessarily limited 
to the following:  
 
1. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1810, eight (8) hours of labor in 

performance of the Work shall constitute a legal day’s work under this Contract.  
CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor shall pay workers overtime pay (not less than 1 1/2 
times the base rate of pay) as required by California Labor Code Section 1815.  
CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor shall, as a penalty to the CITY, forfeit twenty-five 
dollars ($25) for each worker employed in the execution of the contract by the respective 
contractor or subcontractor for each calendar day during which the worker is required 
or permitted to work more than 8 hours in any one calendar day and 40 hours in any one 
calendar week in violation to the provisions of Article 3 of Chapter 1 of Part 7, Division 2 
of the California Labor Code, which is incorporated by this reference as though fully set 
forth herein. 

 
2. Pursuant to the provisions of California Labor Code, Sections 1770 et. seq., CONTRACTOR 

and any subcontractor under CONTRACTOR shall pay not less than the prevailing rate of 
per diem wages as determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial 
Relations.  Pursuant to the provisions of California Labor Code Section 1773.2, 
CONTRACTOR is hereby advised that copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages and 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 735 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 21 of 36 

 

a general prevailing rate for holidays, Saturdays and Sundays and overtime work in the 
locality in which the work is to be performed for each craft, classification, or type of 
worker required to execute the Contract, are on file in the office of the District Secretary, 
which copies shall be made available to any interested party on request. CONTRACTOR 
shall post a copy of said prevailing rate of per diem wages at each job site.  

 
B. As required by Section 1773.1 of the California Labor Code, CONTRACTOR shall pay travel 

and subsistence payments to each worker needed to execute the Work, as such travel and 
subsistence payments are defined in the applicable collective bargaining agreements filed in 
accordance with this Section.  

 
C. To establish such travel and subsistence payments, the representative of any craft, 

classification, or type of workman needed to execute the contracts shall file with the 
Department of Industrial Relations fully executed copies of collective bargaining agreements 
for the particular craft, classification or type of work involved.  Such agreements shall be filed 
within ten (10) days after their execution and thereafter shall establish such travel and 
payments.  

 
D. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the provisions of Section 1775 of the California Labor Code 

and shall, as a penalty to CITY, forfeit up to fifty dollars ($50) for each calendar day, or portion 
thereof, for each worker paid less than the prevailing rate of per diem wages for each craft, 
classification, or type of worker needed to execute the contract.  CONTRACTOR shall pay 
each worker an amount equal to the difference between the prevailing wage rates and the 
amount paid worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which a worker was paid 
less than the prevailing wage rate.  CONTRACTOR is required to pay all applicable penalties 
and back wages in the event of violation of prevailing wage law, and CONTRACTOR and any 
subcontractor shall fully comply with California Labor Code Section 1775, which is 
incorporated by this reference as though fully set forth herein.  

 
E. CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor shall maintain and make available for inspection 

payroll records as required by Labor Code Section 1776, which is incorporated by this 
reference as though fully set forth herein.  CONTRACTOR is responsible for ensuring 
compliance with Labor Code Section 1776 and shall keep accurate payroll records containing 
all such information as maybe called for under Labor Code Section 1776 and other applicable 
provisions of State law.  

 
F. CONTRACTOR and any subcontractors shall, when they employ any person in any 

apprenticeable craft or trade, apply to the joint apprenticeship committee administering the 
apprenticeship standards of the craft or trade in the area of the work site for a certificate 
approving CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under the apprenticeship standards for the 
employment and training of apprentices in the area or industry affected; and shall comply 
with all other requirements of Section 1777.5 of the California Labor Code, which is 
incorporated by this reference as though fully set forth herein.  The responsibility of 
compliance with California Labor Code Section 1777.5 during the performance of this 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 736 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 22 of 36 

 

contract rests with CONTRACTOR.  Pursuant to California Labor Code Section 1777.7, in the 
event CONTRACTOR willfully fails to comply with the provisions of California Labor Code 
Section 1777.5, CONTRACTOR shall be denied the right to bid on any public works contract 
for up to three (3) years from the date noncompliance is determined and be assessed civil 
penalties. 

 
G. In accordance with the provisions of Article 5, Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 (commencing with 

Section 1860), and Chapter 4, Part 1, Division 4 (commencing with Section 3700) of the 
California Labor Code, CONTRACTOR is required to secure the payment of compensation to 
its employees and for that purpose obtain and keep in effect adequate Workers' 
Compensation Insurance and Employers Liability Insurance.  If CONTRACTOR, in the sole 
discretion of the CITY satisfies the CITY of the responsibility and capacity under the applicable 
Workers' Compensation Laws, if any, to act as self-insurer, CONTRACTOR may so act, and in 
such case, the insurance required by this paragraph need not be provided.  CONTRACTOR is 
advised of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 
employer to be insured against liability for Workers' Compensation or to undertake self-
insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code and shall comply with such 
provisions and have Employer’s General Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident before 
commencing the performance of the Work of this Contract.  The Notice to Proceed with the 
Work under this Contract will not be issued, and CONTRACTOR shall not commence Work, 
until CONTRACTOR submits written evidence that it has obtained full Workers' 
Compensation Insurance coverage for all persons whom it employs or may employ in 
carrying out the Work under this Contract. This insurance shall be in accordance with the 
requirements of the most current and applicable state Workers' Compensation Insurance 
Laws.  In accordance with the provisions of Section 1861 of the California Labor Code, 
CONTRACTOR in signing this Contract certifies to the CITY as true the following statement: "I 
am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which requires every employer 
to be insured against liability for Workers' Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in 
accordance with the provisions of that Code, and I will comply with such provisions before 
commencing the performance of the Work of this contract."  A subcontractor is not allowed 
to commence the Work on the project until verification of Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
coverage has been obtained and verified by CONTRACTOR and submitted to the City 
Engineer for the CITY’s review and records.  
 

H. In accordance with the provisions of Section 1727 of the California Labor Code, the CITY, 
before making payment to CONTRACTOR of money due under a contract for public works, 
shall withhold and retain therefrom all wages and penalties which have been forfeited 
pursuant to any stipulation in the contract, and the terms of Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 of 
the California Labor Code (commencing with Section 1720). But no sum shall be withheld, 
retained or forfeited, except from the final payment, without a full investigation by either 
the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement or by the CITY.  
 

SECTION 9. PROHIBITED INTERESTS.  CONTRACTOR warrants, represents and maintains that it 
has not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 737 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 23 of 36 

 

solely for CONTRACTOR, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, CONTRACTOR warrants and 
represents that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for CONTRACTOR, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, 
gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this 
Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, CITY shall have the absolute and unfettered 
right to rescind this Agreement without liability or penalty.  For the duration of this Agreement, no 
member, officer or employee of CITY, during the term of his or her service with CITY, shall have any 
direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising 
therefrom. 
 
SECTION 10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 
 
A. All acts of CONTRACTOR, its agents, officers, subcontractors and employees and all others 

acting on behalf of CONTRACTOR relating to the performance of this Agreement, shall be 
performed as independent contractors and not as agents, officers, or employees of CITY.  
CONTRACTOR, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation 
on behalf of CITY.  CONTRACTOR has no authority or responsibility to exercise any rights or 
power vested in CITY.  No agent, officer, or employee of CITY is to be considered an employee 
of CONTRACTOR.  It is understood by both CONTRACTOR and CITY that this Agreement shall 
not, under any circumstances, be construed or considered to create an employer-employee 
relationship or a joint venture.  
 

B. CONTRACTOR, its agents, officers, subcontractors and employees are and, at all times during 
the duration of this Agreement, shall represent and conduct themselves as independent 
contractors and not as employees of CITY. 

 
C. CONTRACTOR shall determine the method, details and means of performing the Work. 

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible to CITY only for the requirements and results specified in 
this Agreement and, except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected 
to CITY's control with respect to the physical action or activities of the CONTRACTOR in 
fulfillment of this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR has control over the manner and means of 
performing the services under this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR is permitted to provide 
services to others during the same period as it provides services to CITY under this 
Agreement.  If necessary, CONTRACTOR has the responsibility for employing other persons 
or firms to assist CONTRACTOR in fulfilling the terms and obligations under this Agreement. 

 
D. If in the performance of this Agreement any third persons are employed by CONTRACTOR, 

such persons shall be entirely and exclusively under the direction, supervision, and control 
of CONTRACTOR.  All terms of employment including hours, wages, working conditions, 
discipline, hiring, and discharging or any other term of employment or requirement of law 
shall be determined by the CONTRACTOR.  

 
E. It is understood and agreed that as an independent contractor and not an employee of CITY 

neither the CONTRACTOR nor CONTRACTOR'S assigned personnel shall have any entitlement 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 738 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 24 of 36 

 

as a CITY employee, right to act on behalf of CITY in any capacity whatsoever as an agent, or 
to bind CITY to any obligation whatsoever.  

 
F. As an independent contractor, CONTRACTOR hereby indemnifies and holds CITY harmless 

from any and all claims that may be made against CITY based upon any contention by any 
third party that an employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement.  

 
SECTION 11. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.   CONTRACTOR hereby warrants for itself, its employees, 
and subcontractors that those persons presently have no interest and shall not obtain any interest, 
direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of the services 
contemplated by this Agreement.  No person having such conflicting interest shall be employed by 
or associated with CONTRACTOR in connection with this project.  CONTRACTOR hereby warrants for 
itself, its employees, and subcontractors that no such person shall engage in any conduct which 
would constitute a conflict of interest under any CITY ordinance, state law or federal statute.  
CONTRACTOR agrees that a clause substantially similar to this Section shall be incorporated into any 
sub-contract that CONTRACTOR executes in connection with the performance of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 12. NON-DISCRIMINATION.   During the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR 
and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical 
condition, marital status, age (over 40) or set.  CONTRACTOR and subcontractors shall ensure that 
the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free of such 
discrimination.  CONTRACTOR and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair 
Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code, Section 12990 et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated hereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285.0 et seq.).  The 
applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government 
Code, Section 12990, set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of 
Regulations are incorporated into this Contract by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth 
in full. CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this 
clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other agreement.  This 
CONTRACTOR shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all 
subcontracts to perform the Work under this Agreement.  
 
SECTION. 13. INDEMNIFICATION.    
 
A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR hereby agrees, at its sole cost and 

expense, to defend, protect, indemnify, and hold harmless CITY and CITY’s elected and 
appointed officials, officers, attorneys, agents, employees, volunteers, successors, and 
assigns (collectively "Indemnitees") from and against any and all damages, costs, expenses, 
liabilities, claims, demands, causes of action, proceedings, expenses, judgments, penalties, 
liens, and losses of any nature whatsoever, including fees of accountants, attorneys, or other 
professionals and all costs associated therewith (collectively "Liabilities"), arising or claimed 
to arise, directly or indirectly, out of, in connection with, resulting from, or related to any 
act, failure to act, error, or omission of CONTRACTOR or any of CONTRACTOR’s officers, 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 739 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 25 of 36 

 

agents, servants, employees, subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers or their officers, 
agents, servants or employees, arising or claimed to arise, directly or indirectly, out of, in 
connection with, resulting from, or related to this Agreement and the performance or failure 
to perform any term, provision, covenant, or condition of the Agreement, including this 
indemnity provision.  This indemnity provision is effective regardless of any prior, 
concurrent, or subsequent active or passive negligence by CONTRACTOR and shall operate 
to fully indemnify Indemnitees against any such negligence.  This indemnity provision shall 
survive the termination of the Agreement and is in addition to any other rights or remedies 
which Indemnitees may have under the law or elsewhere under this Agreement.  Payment 
is not required as a condition precedent to an Indemnitee's right to recover under this 
indemnity provision, and an entry of judgment against any one or more of the Indemnitees 
shall be conclusive in favor of the Indemnitees’ right to recover under this indemnity 
provision.  CONTRACTOR shall pay Indemnitees for any attorney’s fees and costs incurred in 
enforcing this indemnification provision. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this 
instrument shall be construed to encompass (a) Indemnitees' sole negligence or willful 
misconduct to the limited extent that the underlying Agreement is subject to Civil Code § 
2782(a), or (b) the contracting public agency's active negligence to the limited extent that 
the underlying Agreement is subject to Civil Code § 2782(b).  This indemnity is effective 
without reference to the existence or applicability of any insurance coverage(s) which may 
have been required under the Agreement or any additional insured endorsements which 
may extend to Indemnitees. Accountants, attorneys, or other professionals employed by 
Indemnitor to defend Indemnitees shall be selected by Indemnitees. CONTRACTOR, on 
behalf of itself and all parties claiming under or through it, hereby waives all rights of 
subrogation and contribution against the Indemnitees, while acting within the scope of their 
duties, from all claims, losses and liabilities arising out of or incident to activities or 
operations performed by or on behalf of the Indemnitor regardless of any prior, concurrent, 
or subsequent active or passive negligence by the Indemnitees.  
 

B. CONTRACTOR’s obligations under this or any other provision of this Agreement will not be 
limited by the provisions of any workers compensation act or similar act.  CONTRACTOR 
expressly waives its statutory immunity under such statutes or laws as to the Indemnities.  

 
C. CONTRACTOR agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to 

those in this Section from each and every subcontractor or any other person or entity 
involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONTRACTOR in the performance of this Agreement.  
In the event CONTRACTOR fails to obtain such indemnity obligations for the benefit of CITY, 
CONTRACTOR agrees to be fully responsible and indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY, 
its officers, agents, employees and volunteers from and against any and all claims and losses, 
costs or expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any person and injury to any 
property resulting from any alleged, intentional, reckless, negligent or otherwise wrongful 
acts, errors or omissions of CONTRACTOR or any of its officers, employees, servants, agents, 
subcontractors, volunteers or any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf 
of CONTRACTOR in the performance of this Agreement.  Such costs and expenses shall 
include reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by counsel of CITY’s choice.  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 740 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 26 of 36 

 

 
D. CITY does not, and shall not; waive any rights that it may possess against CONTRACTOR 

because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of any insurance policy or 
certificate required pursuant to this Agreement.  This hold harmless and indemnification 
provision shall apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined to 
be applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost or expense.  CONTRACTOR 
agrees that CONTRACTOR’s covenant under this Section shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement. 

 
E. CONTRACTOR shall fully comply with the workers’ compensation laws regarding 

CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR’s employees.  CONTRACTOR further agrees to indemnify 
and hold CITY harmless from any failure of CONTRACTOR to comply with applicable workers’ 
compensation laws.  CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any fees due 
to CONTRACTOR under this Agreement any amount due to CITY from CONTRACTOR as a 
result of CONTRACTOR’s failure to promptly pay to CITY any reimbursement or 
indemnification arising under this Section. 

 
SECTION 14. INSURANCE.  
 
A. CONTRACTOR shall at all times during the term of this Agreement carry, maintain, and keep 

in full force and effect, insurance as follows:   
 
1. Commercial General Liability Insurance with minimum limits of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000) for each occurrence and in the aggregate for any personal injury, death, loss 
or damage.  
 

2. Automobile Liability Insurance for any owned, non-owned or hired vehicle used in 
connection with the performance of this Agreement with minimum limits of One Million 
Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury and property damage.  
 

3. Worker’s Compensation insurance as required by the State of California. 
 

B. CONTRACTOR shall require each of its sub-consultants or sub-contractors to maintain 
insurance coverage that meets all of the requirements of this Agreement. 

 
C. The policies required by this Agreement shall be issued by an insurer admitted in the State 

of California and with a rating of at least A:VII in the latest edition of Best’s Insurance Guide. 
 
D. CONTRACTOR agrees that if it does not keep the insurance required in this Agreement in full 

force and effect, CITY may either immediately terminate this Agreement or, if insurance is 
available at a reasonable cost, CITY may take out the necessary insurance and pay, at 
CONTRACTOR’S expense, the premium thereon. 

 
E. Prior to commencement of Work under this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall file with CITY’s 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 741 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 27 of 36 

 

Risk Manager a certificate or certificates of insurance showing that the insurance policies are 
in effect and satisfy the required amounts and specifications required pursuant to this 
Agreement.  
 

F. CONTRACTOR shall provide proof that policies of insurance expiring during the duration of 
this Agreement have been renewed or replaced with other policies providing at least the 
same coverage.  Such proof will be furnished at least two weeks prior to the expiration of 
the coverages.  
 

G. The general liability and automobile policies of insurance shall contain an endorsement 
naming CITY, its elected officials, officers, agents, employees, attorneys, servants, 
volunteers, successors and assigns as additional insureds.  All of the policies shall contain an 
endorsement providing that the policies cannot be canceled or reduced except on thirty (30) 
days’ prior written notice to CITY.  CONTRACTOR agrees to require its insurer to modify the 
certificates of insurance to delete any exculpatory wording stating that failure of the insurer 
to mail written notice of cancellation imposes no obligation, and to delete the word 
“endeavor” with regard to any notice provisions.   
 

H. All policies of Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability insurance shall be 
primary and any other insurance, deductible, or self-insurance maintained by the CITY, its 
officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers shall not contribute with this primary 
insurance.  Policies shall contain or be endorsed to contain such provisions. 
 

I. All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement shall not prohibit CONTRACTOR, 
and CONTRACTOR’s employees, agents, subcontractors, or volunteers from waiving the right 
of subrogation prior to a loss.  CONTRACTOR hereby waives all rights of subrogation against 
CITY, its officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.    
 

J. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be approved by CITY.  At the option of CITY, 
CONTRACTOR shall either reduce or eliminate the deductibles or self-insured retentions with 
respect to CITY, or CONTRACTOR shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and 
expenses. 

 
K. If CONTRACTOR is a Limited Liability Company, general liability coverage must be amended 

so that the Limited Liability Company and its managers, affiliates, employees, agents, and 
other persons necessary or incidental to its operation are insureds.    

 
L. Procurement of insurance by CONTRACTOR shall not be construed as a limitation of 

CONTRACTOR’s liability or as full performance of CONTRACTOR’s duties to indemnify, hold 
harmless and defend under Section 15 of this Agreement.  
 

M. In the event any policy of insurance required under this Agreement does not comply with 
these specifications or is canceled and not replaced immediately so as to avoid a lapse in the 
required coverage, CITY has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 742 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 28 of 36 

 

necessary and any premium paid by CITY will be promptly reimbursed by CONTRACTOR or 
CITY will withhold amounts sufficient to pay premium from CONTRACTOR payments. In the 
alternative, CITY may cancel this Agreement effective upon notice. 
 

N. CITY reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature 
of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 
 

SECTION 15. RECORDS AND INSPECTION.  CONTRACTOR shall keep, and require subcontractors 
to keep, such books and records as shall be necessary to document the performance of the Work 
and enable the CITY to evaluate the performance the Work. The Contract Officer shall have full and 
free access to such books and records at all times during normal business hours of CITY, including 
the right to inspect, copy, audit, and make records and transcripts from such records. Such records 
shall be maintained for a period of four (4) years following completion of the services hereunder, 
and the CITY shall have access to such records in the event any audit is required.  
 
SECTION 16. TERMINATION. 
 
A. Termination for Convenience.  CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement for 

convenience, without cause and without penalty or liability at any time upon the issuance of 
written notice to CONTRACTOR specifying the effective date of such termination.  Such 
termination for convenience shall be made in writing signed by either the City 
Representative, the City Manager or the Assistant City Manager.  CONTRACTOR may only 
terminate this Agreement for cause.  

 
B. Termination for Cause.  In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service 

or task set forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform any 
such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an event of default 
(hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall occur.  For all Events of Default, the Party alleging an 
Event of Default shall give written notice to the defaulting Party (hereinafter referred to as 
a “Default Notice”) which shall specify: (i) the nature of the Event of Default; (ii) the action 
required to cure the Event of Default; (iii) a date by which the Event of Default shall be cured, 
which shall not be less than the applicable cure period set forth in this Section or if a cure is 
not reasonably possible within the applicable cure period, to begin such cure and diligently 
prosecute such cure to completion.  The Event of Default shall constitute a breach of this 
Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to cure the Event of Default within the applicable cure 
period or any extended cure period allowed under this Agreement.  An Event of Default shall 
include, but shall not be limited to the following:  (i) CONTRACTOR’s failure to fulfill or 
perform its obligations under this Agreement within the specified time or if no time is 
specified, within a reasonable time;  (ii) CONTRACTOR’s and/or its employees’ disregard  or 
violation of any federal, state, local law, rule, procedure or regulation; (iii) the initiation of 
proceedings under any bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, reorganization, or similar 
legislation as relates to CONTRACTOR, whether voluntary of involuntary; (iv) CONTRACTOR’s 
refusal or failure to perform or observe any covenant, condition, obligation or provision of 
this Agreement; and/or (v) CITY’s discovery that a statement representation or warranty by 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 743 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 29 of 36 

 

CONTRACTOR relating to this Agreement  is false or erroneous in any material respect, 
including any statement, representation or warranty set forth in the Equipment 
Specifications. 
 
1. CONTRACTOR shall cure the following Event of Default within the following time periods: 

 
i. Within three (3) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for any failure 

of CONTRACTOR to timely provide CITY or CITY’s employees or agents with any 
information and/or written reports, documentation or work product which 
CONTRACTOR is obligated to provide to CITY or CITY’s employees or agents under 
this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 3-day cure period, CONTRACTOR 
may submit a written request for additional time to cure the Event of Default 
upon a showing that CONTRACTOR has commenced efforts to cure the Event of 
Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 3-
day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no 
obligation to grant additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this 
subsection that exceeds seven (7) calendar days from the end of the initial 3-day 
cure period; or 

 
ii. Within thirty (30) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for any 

other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 30-
day cure period, CONTRACTOR may submit a written request for additional time 
to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONTRACTOR has commenced 
efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be 
reasonably cured within the 30-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, 
CITY shall be under no obligation to grant additional time for the cure of an Event 
of Default under this subsection that exceeds thirty (30) calendar days from the 
end of the initial 30-day cure period. 

 
If an Event of Default relates to a material falsehood or misrepresentation set forth in 
Exhibit “[insert letter of exhibit relevant to proposal]” that is not susceptible to a cure, 
CITY in its sole and absolute discretion may elect to treat the falsehood or 
misrepresentation as a breach of this Agreement or waive the falsehood or 
misrepresentation.  The foregoing notwithstanding, the prior waiver of a falsehood or 
misrepresentation as an Event of Default shall not operate as a waiver or any other 
falsehood or misrepresentation later discovered by CITY.  

 
2. Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, CITY shall cure any Event of Default 

asserted by CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) calendar days of CONTRACTOR’s issuance of 
a Default Notice, unless the Event of Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 30-
day cure period.  Prior to the expiration of the 30-day cure period, CITY may submit a 
written request for additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CITY 
has commenced its efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default 
cannot be reasonably cured within the 30-day cure period.  The foregoing 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 744 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 30 of 36 

 

notwithstanding, an Event of Default dealing with CITY’s failure to timely pay any 
undisputed sums to CONTRACTOR shall be cured by CITY within five (5) calendar days 
from the date of CONTRACTOR’s Default Notice to CITY. 

 
3. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend CONTRACTOR’s 

performance under this Agreement (or the performance of any specific task or function 
performed by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement) pending CONTRACTOR’s cure of any 
Event of Default by giving CONTRACTOR written notice of CITY’s intent to suspend 
CONTRACTOR’s performance (hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”). CITY may issue the 
Suspension Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of Default. Upon such 
suspension, CONTRACTOR shall be compensated only for those services and tasks which 
have been rendered by CONTRACTOR to the reasonable satisfaction of CITY up to the 
effective date of the suspension.   No actual or asserted breach of this Agreement on the 
part of CITY shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this 
Agreement as provided herein. 

 
4. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall constitute a 

waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  No waiver, benefit, 
privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party 
any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

 
5. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights and remedies 

available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, 
rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. In addition to any other 
remedies available to CITY at law or under this Agreement in the event of any breach of 
this Agreement, CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also pursue any one or 
more of the following remedies: 

 
i. Upon written notice to CONTRACTOR, the CITY may immediately terminate this 

Agreement in whole or in part; 
 

ii. Upon written notice to CONTRACTOR, the CITY may extend the time of 
performance; 

 
iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms of the 

Agreement to recover damages for CONTRACTOR’s breach of the Agreement or 
to terminate the Agreement; or 

 
iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or remedy.  

 
CONTRACTOR shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and expenses that CITY 
incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the CITY’s exercise of its remedies under 
this Agreement.  

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 745 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 31 of 36 

 

6. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR’s sole remedy shall be the 
suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the recovery of any unpaid sums 
lawfully owed to CONTRACTOR under this Agreement for completed services and tasks.  
In no event shall CONTRACTOR be entitled to receive more than the amount that would 
be paid to CONTRACTOR for the full performance of the services required by this 
Agreement.   
 

7. No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of any 
other default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant, warranty, agreement, 
term, condition, duty or requirement contained in this Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, 
privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party 
any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  
 

SECTION 17. FORCE MAJEURE.   The Completion Date shall be extended in the event of any delays 
due to unforeseeable causes beyond the control of CONTRACTOR and without the fault or 
negligence of CONTRACTOR, including but not limited to severe weather, fires, earthquakes, floods, 
epidemics, quarantine restrictions, riots, strikes, freight embargoes, wars, litigation, and/or acts of 
any governmental agency, including the CITY, if the CONTRACTOR shall within three (3) calendar 
days of the commencement of such delay notify the City Representative in writing of the causes of 
the delay. The City Representative shall ascertain the facts and the extent of delay, and extend the 
time for performing the services for the period of the enforced delay when and if in the judgment 
of the City Representative such delay is justified. The City Representative’s determination shall be 
final and conclusive upon the parties to this Agreement. In no event shall CONTRACTOR be entitled 
to recover damages against the CITY for any delay in the performance of this Agreement, however 
caused, CONTRACTOR’S sole remedy being extension of the Agreement pursuant to this Section.  
 
SECTION 18. NOTICES.   Any notices, bills, invoices, or reports required by this Agreement shall be 
deemed received on: (a) the day of delivery if delivered by hand or overnight courier service during 
CONTRACTOR’s and CITY’s regular business hours; or (b) on the third business day following deposit 
in the United States mail, postage prepaid, to the addresses heretofore below, or to such other 
addresses as the parties may, from time to time, designate in writing.   
 

If to CITY:  If to CONTRACTOR: 
 
City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
Attn: INSERT DEPARTMENT   
Phone: (818) 898-1212 

  
INSERT CONTRACTOR NAME 
INSERT ADDRESS 
Attn: INSERT CONTACT NAME 
Phone: INSERT PHONE NUMBER 
 
  

 
SECTION 19. PROHIBITION.   CONTRACTOR shall not delegate, transfer, subcontract or assign its 
duties or rights hereunder, either in whole or in part, without CITY’s prior written consent, and any 
attempt to do so shall be void and of no effect. CITY shall not be obligated or liable under this 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 746 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 32 of 36 

 

Agreement to any party other than CONTRACTOR.     
 
SECTION 20. ATTORNEY FEES.   In the event that CITY or CONTRACTOR commences any legal 
action or proceeding to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party 
shall be entitled to recover its costs of suit, including reasonable attorney’s fees. 
 
SECTION 21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.   All documents referenced as exhibits in this Agreement are 
hereby incorporated in this Agreement.  Except as expressly provided in this Agreement or its 
Exhibits, in the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the express provisions of this 
Agreement and provisions of any document incorporated by reference, the provisions of this 
Agreement shall prevail and control.  This instrument contains the entire Agreement between CITY 
and CONTRACTOR with respect to the subject matter herein.  No other prior oral or written 
agreements are binding on the parties.  Any modification of this Agreement will be effective only if 
it is in writing and executed by both CITY and CONTRACTOR. 
 
SECTION 22. GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION.   This Agreement shall be interpreted and 
governed according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the 
Parties, venue, without exception, shall be in the Los Angeles County Superior Court of the State of 
California.  If, and only if, applicable law requires that all or part of any such litigation be tried 
exclusively in federal court, venue, without exception, shall be in the Central District of California 
located in the City of Los Angeles, California.  
 
SECTION 23. SEVERABILITY.   Wherever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be 
interpreted in such a manner as to be valid under applicable law.  If any provision of this Agreement 
is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the 
remaining provisions shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect.   
 
SECTION 24. CAPTIONS.   The captions used in this Agreement are solely for reference and the 
convenience of the Parties.  The captions are not a part of the Agreement, in no way bind, limit, or 
describe the scope or intent of any provision, and shall have no effect upon the construction or 
interpretation of any provision herein. 
 
SECTION 25. EXECUTION. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which when taken together shall constitute one and 
the same instrument.  

 
 
 

SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 747 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 33 of 36 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day and 
year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 
 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO  CONTRACTOR NAME: 

 
 

By:   By:  
 Nick Kimball, City Manager    
   Name:  
Date:     
   Title:  
     
APPROVED AS TO FORM  Date:  
     
By:     
 Richard Padilla, Assistant City Attorney    
     
Date:     

 
  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 748 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 34 of 36 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

CITY REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 749 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 35 of 36 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

CONTRACTOR PROPOSAL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 750 of 778



                                                                              

 
Page 36 of 36 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 

CONTRACTOR QUOTE 
 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 751 of 778



ATTACHMENT “C” 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 8209 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 
ADOPTED ON JUNE 21, 2022 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Council has received and considered the proposed adjustment to 
the budget for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, commencing July 1, 2022, and ending June 30, 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is necessary to amend the revenues 
and expenditures of the current City budget to accept the METRO Open Streets Cycle 4 Grant  
ID# CYC2102 for $500,000 to implement the Northeast Valley Community Street Festival to be 
held on Saturday, September 16, 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, an annual budget for the City of San Fernando for the Fiscal Year beginning 
July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023, a copy of which is on file in the City Clerk's Office, has 
been adopted on June 21, 2023. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The following adjustment is made to the City Budget: 
  

METRO OPEN STREETS GRANT CYCLE FOUR: 
NORTHEAST VALLEY COMMUNITY STREET FESTIVAL 
 
Increase in Expenditures    $500,000 

 110-420-3711-4260 
 
 Increase in Revenues     $500,000 

110-3697-3711 
  

SECTION 2.  The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall cause 
a certified resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 6th day of February, 2023. 
 
 
              

Celeste T. Rodriguez, Mayor of the City of 
San Fernando, California 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 752 of 778



RES. NO. 8209 

2 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 

I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is 
a full, true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8209, which was regularly introduced and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on 
the 6th day of February 2023, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
  

NAYS:  
 

ABSENT:  
 

ABSTAINED: 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of February 2022.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 753 of 778



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 754 of 778



February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 755 of 778



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 756 of 778



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT           117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340           (818) 898-1227           WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 

 By: Kanika Kith, Director of Community Development 
   
Date:  February 6, 2023 

 
Subject: Second Reading for Adoption of Ordinance No. 1714 amending San Fernando 

Municipal Code to add Chapter 78, Article II, Division 6 “urban lot split” and to add 
Chapter 106, Article III, Division 2, Section 359 “Two-unit Urban Residential 
Development” to establish regulations and standards for urban lot splits and two-
unit residential development projects in single-family residential (R-1) zone, 
pursuant to Senate Bill 9  

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council conduct a second reading, in title only, of Ordinance No. 
1714 (Attachment “A”) titled, “An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of San Fernando, 
California, approving amendments to the San Fernando Municipal Code to add Chapter 78, 
Article II, Division 6 “urban lot split” and to add Section 359 of Chapter 106, Article III, Division 2 
“two-unit urban residential development” to establish regulations and standards for urban lot 
splits and two-unit residential development projects in single-family residential (R-1) zone 
pursuant to Senate Bill 9.” 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 

1. On September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Senate Bill (SB 9) into law that requires all 
local land use agencies to ministerially approve urban lot splits and allow development of two 
residential units per single-family residential lot.  SB 9 became effective on January 1, 2022. 
 

2. On January 18, 2022, the City Council adopted Interim Urgency Ordinance No. U-1706 to 
establish interim regulations and procedures for urban lot splits and two-unit residential 
development projects pursuant to SB 9.   
 

3. On February 14, 2022, the regulations established in Interim Urgency Ordinance No. U-1706 
were presented to the Planning and Preservation Commission (the “Commission”) and the 
Commission discussed options for initiating permanent regulations. The Commission 
continued the discussion to their next regular meeting of March 14, 2022.  
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 757 of 778



Second Reading for Adoption of Ordinance No. 1714 amending San Fernando Municipal Code to add 
Chapter 78, Article II, Division 6 “urban lot split” and to add Chapter 106, Article III, Division 2, Section 
359 “Two-unit Urban Residential Development” to establish regulations and standards for urban lot 
splits and two-unit residential development projects in single-family residential (R-1) zone, pursuant to 
Senate Bill 9  
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
4. On March 1, 2022, the City Council adopted Urgency Ordinance No. U-1707 extending the 

temporary regulations to January 19, 2023, to allow time for staff to develop permanent 
regulations that balance the requirements of SB 9 with the City’s objective to ensure that 
residential development in the City is properly managed in the best interests of the public 
health, safety, and welfare.  

 
5. On March 14, 2022, the Commission continued discussion to their April 11, 2022, meeting.  

 
6. On April 11, 2022, the Commission was provided an overview of proposed provisions for 

urban lot splits and two unit housing developments pursuant to SB 9 for discussion and 
consideration. The Commission directed staff to further evaluate permanent regulations and 
prepare a draft ordinance.  

 
7. On November 14, 2022, the Commission was presented with draft regulations for urban lot 

splits and two unit housing developments in single-family residential zones to amend the San 
Fernando Municipal Code to implement SB 9. The Commission discussed the proposed 
regulations and directed staff to research the inclusion of the affordable housing provision 
and further amend the draft regulations.  
 

8. On December 19, 2022, the Commission considered the proposed regulations for urban lot 
split and two-unit residential development.  The Commission voted 3-0 recommending the 
City Council adopt Ordinance No. 1712 to approve the proposed San Fernando Municipal 
Code amendment to impose the proposed regulations and to replace the current Interim 
Urgency Ordinance for SB 9.   

 
9. On January 3, 2023, the City Council reviewed the proposed Ordinance as recommended by 

the Commission.  The City Council voted 3-2 to continue the public hearing to the January 17, 
2023 meeting to consider approval to extend the interim Urgency Ordinance U-1707 prior to 
the expiration date of January 19, 2023; and directed staff to present a revised proposed 
ordinance to City Council, and prepare summary of issues and standards that were previously 
discussed by the Commission.  

 
10. On January 17, 2023, the City Council conducted a public hearing and voted 4-1 to extend 

Interim Urgency Ordinance No. U-1707, and introducing Ordinance No. 1714 for adoption.  
 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 758 of 778



Second Reading for Adoption of Ordinance No. 1714 amending San Fernando Municipal Code to add 
Chapter 78, Article II, Division 6 “urban lot split” and to add Chapter 106, Article III, Division 2, Section 
359 “Two-unit Urban Residential Development” to establish regulations and standards for urban lot 
splits and two-unit residential development projects in single-family residential (R-1) zone, pursuant to 
Senate Bill 9  
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Interim Urgency Ordinance No. U-1707 was due to expire on January 19, 2023.  On January 17, 
2023, the City Council extended the Interim Urgency Ordinance until Ordinance No. 1714 
becomes effective, which will be effective 30 days after the second reading.   
 
Ordinance No. 1714, which was approved City Council (4 ayes; 1 no) for first reading on January 
17, 2023, will replace the Interim Urgency Ordinance to establish objective zoning, subdivision, 
and design review standards, as allowed by state law, and promote the orderly subdivision of 
parcels and development of housing under SB 9.  The Ordinance No. 1714 maintains a majority 
of the regulations in the Interim Urgency Ordinance and includes additional regulations as 
recommended by the Planning and Preservation Commission on February 14, 2022, March 14, 
2022, April 11, 2022, November 14, 2022, and December 19, 2022. 
 
Ordinance No. 1714 will add two new code sections to the San Fernando Municipal Code, as 
follows: 
 

• Chapter 106, Article III, Division 2, Section 359  “Two Unit Urban Residential 
Development”; and  

• Chapter 78, Article II, Division 6 “Urban Lot Split” 

If the City Council approves the second reading of Ordinance No. 1714 on February 6, 2023, the 
it will be effective on March 9, 2023, and the Interim Urgency Ordinance will no longer be in 
effect. 
 
Environmental Review.  
The adoption of Ordinance No. 1714 is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) under CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) (the “common sense exemption”) and 
Section 15378 (“not a project”) since it can be seen with certainty that adopting an ordinance to 
comply with the state law provisions of SB 9 will not have a significant effect on the environment.   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

Preparation of zoning related ordinances are included in the annual work program for the 
Community Development Department.  Therefore, funding is included in the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 Adopted Budget.   
 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 759 of 778



Second Reading for Adoption of Ordinance No. 1714 amending San Fernando Municipal Code to add 
Chapter 78, Article II, Division 6 “urban lot split” and to add Chapter 106, Article III, Division 2, Section 
359 “Two-unit Urban Residential Development” to establish regulations and standards for urban lot 
splits and two-unit residential development projects in single-family residential (R-1) zone, pursuant to 
Senate Bill 9  
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council conduct a second reading for adoption of Ordinance No. 
1714 amending San Fernando Municipal Code to add Chapter 78, Article II, Division 6 “urban lot 
split” and to add Chapter 106, Article III, Division 2, Section 359 “Two-unit Urban Residential 
Development” to establish regulations and standards for urban lot splits and two-unit residential 
development projects in single-family residential (R-1) zone, pursuant to Senate Bill 9. 

 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
A. Ordinance No. 1714 
 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 760 of 778



ATTACHMENT “A” 

ORDINANCE NO. 1714  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE SAN FERNANDO 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD CHAPTER 78, ARTICLE II, DIVISION 6 “URBAN 
LOT SPLIT” AND TO ADD SECTION 359 OF CHAPTER 106, ARTICLE III, 
DIVISION 2 “TWO-UNIT URBAN RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT” TO 
ESTABLISH REGULATIONS AND STANDARDS FOR URBAN LOT SPLITS AND 
TWO-UNIT RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS IN SINGLE-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL (R-1) ZONE PURSUANT TO SENATE BILL 9  

 
 

WHEREAS, California Constitution Article XI, Section 7, enables the City of San Fernando 
(the “City”) to enact local planning and land use regulations; and 

WHEREAS, the authority to adopt and enforce zoning regulations is an exercise of the 
City’s police power to protect the public health, safety, and welfare; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to ensure that residential development occurs in an orderly 
manner, in accordance with the goals and objectives of the General Plan and reasonable land use 
planning principles; and 

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, California  Governor Gavin Newsom signed Senate Bill 
9 (SB 9) into law as part of an effort to address the State’s housing crisis by streamlining housing 
production; and 

WHEREAS, the new legislation became effective on January 1, 2022, and requires local 
agencies to ministerially approve urban lot splits and development of two residential units per 
single family residential lot provided the projects meet certain criteria; and  

 WHEREAS, the City wishes to balance compliance with State law with the rights still 
preserved under the new legislation authorizing the City to establish objective zoning, subdivision 
and design review standards consistent with SB 9 required to approve urban lot splits and two-
unit residential development; and  

 WHEREAS, on January 18, 2022, the City Council adopted Interim Urgency Ordinance No. 
U-1706 to establish interim regulations and procedures for urban lot splits and two-unit 
residential development projects pursuant to SB 9; and  

WHEREAS, on March 1, 2022, the City Council approved the extension of Urgency 
Ordinance No. U-1706 to January 19, 2023, to allow time for City staff to develop permanent 
regulations that balance the requirements of SB 9 with the City’s objectives for ensuring that 
residential development in the City is properly managed in the best interests of the public health 
and safety; and  

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 761 of 778



  ORD. NO. 1714 

2 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Preservation Commission at their March 14th, April 11th, 
and November 14, 2022, meetings were presented with proposed regulations from the Planning 
Division and discussed, considered, and gave staff input on the proposed regulations; and  

 
WHEREAS, on December 8, 2022, the Planning Division published a notice of a public 

hearing to be held on December 19, 2022, for the Planning and Preservation Commission to 
consider and recommend approval to the City Council of a proposed amendment to the San 
Fernando Municipal Code to establish regulations for implementation of SB 9 in the San Fernando 
Sun as required by Government Code Section 65858(a); and  

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Preservation Commission, as part of its special meeting of 

December 19, 2022, conducted a duly noticed public hearing on the proposed code amendment, 
and all testimony was received and made a part of the public record, and  

 
WHEREAS, on December 23, 2022, the City Clerk published a notice of a public hearing to 

be held on January 3, 2023, for the City Council to consider and approve a proposed Ordinance 
to establish regulations for implementation of SB 9 in the San Fernando Sun as required by 
Government Code Section 65858(a); and  

 
WHEREAS, on January 3, 2023, the City Council conducted a duly noticed public hearing 

on the Ordinance, all testimony was received and made a part of the public record, and the City 
Council continued the item to January 17, 2023 for further discussion; and  

 
WHEREAS, on January 17, 2023, the City Council conducted a duly noticed public hearing 

on the Ordinance, and all testimony was received and made a part of the public record; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has duly considered all information presented to it, including 
the Planning and Preservation Commission findings, P.C. Resolution No. 2022-003, written staff 
reports, and any testimony provided at the public hearing; and 

 
WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of the Ordinance have been met. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 SECTION 1. The City Council of San Fernando hereby makes the following findings: 

A. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated fully in reference. 
 

B. It is the intent and purpose of this Ordinance to amend Chapter 78 (Subdivisions) and Chapter 
106 (Zoning) of the San Fernando Municipal Code regarding urban lot splits and the creation 
of two unit developments.  

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 762 of 778



  ORD. NO. 1714 

3 

SECTION 2. Zoning Code Amendment Findings 
 

Pursuant to San Fernando City Code Section 106-19, the Planning and Preservation Commission 
recommends that the City Council makes the following findings for adoption of the proposed 
amendment to the San Fernando Zoning Code:  
 

a. The proposed amendment is consistent with the objectives, policies, general land uses 
and programs of the City’s general plans.  
 
The proposed amendment to the Zoning Code will establish development standards and 
regulations for Housing Development in Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zone for 
implementation of Senate Bill 9. The proposed amendment will satisfy Policy 1.2 of the 
San Fernando General Plan Housing Element. Policy 1.2 calls for the preservation of 
character, scale, and quality of established residential neighborhoods. The proposed zone 
code amendment will provide objective development standards such as: building height, 
square footage minimums, setbacks, open space and architectural design standards. The 
proposed amendment meets state law requirements while allowing the City to impose 
local regulations to ensure consistency with objectives, policies, general land uses and 
programs of the City’s general plans.  

 
b. The adoption of the proposed amendment would not be detrimental to the public 

interest, health safety, convenience, or welfare.  
 
The proposed zoning code amendment establishes development standards and 
regulations that addresses any adverse impacts that may come from the implementation 
of SB 9. The amendment includes language that gives the City Building Official the 
authority to deny construction of units pursuant to the regulations of SB 9 based upon 
the preponderance of evidence that the proposed housing development project would 
have a specific, adverse impact (as defined in paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of 
Government Code Section 65589.5) upon the public health and safety or the physical 
environment, and for which there is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid 
the specific, adverse impact. Additionally, the amendment satisfies Policy 2.8 of the San 
Fernando General Plan Housing Element. Policy 2.8 promotes the creation of second-
dwelling units within residential neighborhoods as a means of providing additional rental 
housing and addressing household overcrowding. The proposed amendment complies 
with state objectives of creating additional housing and would not be detrimental to the 
public interest, health, safety, convenience or welfare. 

 
SECTION 3. Subdivision Code Amendment Findings 
 

Pursuant to the California Subdivision Map Act, the Planning and Preservation Commission 
recommends that the City Council makes the following findings for adoption of the proposed 
amendment to the San Fernando Subdivision Code:  
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 763 of 778



  ORD. NO. 1714 

4 

c. The proposed amendment is in compliance with Section 66411 of the California 
Subdivision Map Act for local agency to regulate and control design of subdivisions.  
 
The proposed amendment to the Subdivision Code complies with Government Code 
Section 65913.2 as it will establish subdivision standards to promote the orderly 
subdivision of parcels and development of housing under SB 9.   Subdivision and design 
standards are included the proposed amendment as allowed by state law governing SB 9.  

SECTION 4. Article II of Chapter 78 (Subdivisions) of the San Fernando Municipal Code 
is hereby amended to add Division 6 (Urban Lot Split) as follows: 

 
Chapter 78, Article II, Division 6 – Urban Lot Split  
 
Section 78-180. Purpose  
 

(a) This division is adopted in accordance with California Government Code Sections 
65852.21 and 66411.7, also known as Senate Bill 9 (SB 9).  The purpose of this chapter is 
to establish a ministerial objective approval process and special lot design standards for 
the subdivision of single lots in the R-1 zoning district.  

 
Section 78-181. Term of Effect 
 

(a) This division is applicable only while California Government Code Section 66411.7 created 
by SB 9 remains in effect.  

 
Section 78-182. Definitions 
 

“Acting in Concert With” A person "acting in concert with the owner" means a person that 
has common ownership or control of the subject parcel with the owner of the adjacent parcel, a 
person acting on behalf of, acting for the predominant benefit of, acting on the instructions of, 
or actively cooperating with, the owner of the parcel being subdivided. 

 
“Car Share” A service through which vehicles are made available for hourly or daily use. 

Vehicles are typically picked up and dropped off at designated parking locations within the 
community and are made available to provide flexible access to a vehicle. 

 
“Dwelling Unit” As used in this division, “dwelling unit” refers to any primary residential unit 

which is not an Accessory Dwelling Unit as defined in section 106-6 of this Code or a Junior 
Accessory Dwelling Unit (“Junior ADU”) as defined in Government Code Section 56852.22. 

 
“Flag-Lot” Lots that have less than the minimum required frontage on a public or private 

street, have access to a public or private street by a narrow strip of land, and the largest portion 
of the lot is situated behind adjoining lots which front on a public or private street. The front yard 
of the flag lot starts from the back of the front lot. 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 764 of 778



  ORD. NO. 1714 

5 

“Residential Unit” or “Unit” As used in this division, “residential unit” or “unit” refers to a 
dwelling unit, Accessory Dwelling Unit and Junior ADU.  
 
"Tenant” A person who occupies land or property rented from a landlord. 
 
“Urban Lot Split” An urban lot split is the subdivision of a single-family residential lot into two 
parcels that meets the requirements of this chapter. An Urban Lot Split differs from other 
subdivisions only in the standards which apply to the lots created, the criteria which must be 
met, and the ministerial approval process which applies to this type of subdivision. 

 
Section 78-183. Ministerial Approval and Findings 
 

(a) An application for a parcel map for an Urban Lot Split shall be approved in accordance 
with the following requirements:  
 
(1) An Urban Lot Split is subject to staff review and ministerial approval only, without 
discretionary review or hearing, and  

(2) The Urban Lot Split shall be subject to the objective criteria and standards of Chapter 
78 – Subdivisions and conform to all applicable objective requirements of the Subdivision 
Map Act, except as expressly provided in this division.   
 

(b) Notwithstanding subsection (a) of this section, the City shall not require dedication of 
right-of-way, offsite improvements or the correction of nonconforming zoning conditions 
as a condition of issuing a parcel map for an Urban Lot Split pursuant to this division. 

 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 765 of 778



  ORD. NO. 1714 

6 

(c) An Urban Lot Split that meets all the criteria listed below shall be approved unless the 
building official makes a written finding, based upon a preponderance off the evidence, 
that:  

 
(1) The proposed Urban Lot Split would have a specific adverse impact, as defined and 

determined in paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 65589.5, 
upon public health and safety or the physical environment and that there are no 
feasible methods to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the impact; or 

(2) The proposed Urban Lot Split would not comply with all the criteria for approval per 
this division. 

Section 78-184. Covenant and Affidavits Required 
 

(a) A property owner seeking to complete an Urban Lot Split shall be subject to the following 
general requirements, which shall be accepted and acknowledged by the property owner 
by signing and recording a covenant against the property. The covenant shall be supplied 
by the City and provide as follows: 

 
(1) Any subsequent Urban Lot Split of land that was previously subdivided with an Urban 

Lot Split shall be prohibited; 

(2) The owner of the property for which an Urban Lot Split is proposed shall sign an 
affidavit stating that the owner intends to occupy one of the dwelling units on one of 
the lots created by the Urban Lot Split as their principal residence for at least three 
years from the date of the approval of the Urban Lot Split. 

(b) The owner of the property for which an Urban Lot Split is proposed shall sign an affidavit 
stating that neither the owner nor any person acting in concert with the owner of the 
parcel being subdivided has previously subdivided an adjacent parcel using an Urban Lot 
Split as provided for in this division. 

(c) Each owner of the property on which an Urban Lot Split is proposed shall provide a signed 
affidavit stating that the owner intends to occupy one of the dwelling units on one of the 
lots created by the Urban Lot Split as their principal residence for a minimum of three 
years from the date of the approval of the Urban Lot Split, unless the applicant is a 
“community land trust,” as defined in clause (ii) of subparagraph (C) of paragraph (11) of 
subdivision (a) of Section 402.1 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, or is a “qualified 
nonprofit corporation” as described in Section 214.15 of the Revenue and Taxation Code.  

Section 78-185. Criteria for Approval 
 

(a)  Proposed Urban Lot Splits shall comply with all the following: 
 

(1) The parcel proposed for an Urban Lot Split is located within the R-1 (Low Density 
Residential) zone. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 766 of 778



  ORD. NO. 1714 

7 

(2) The Urban Lot Split would not require the demolition or alteration of housing that: 

i.  Is subject to a recorded covenant, ordinance, or law that restricts rents to levels 
affordable to persons and families of moderate, low, or very low income; or that 
is subject to any form of rent or price control through a public entity’s valid 
exercise of its police power;  

ii. Has been occupied by a tenant in the last three years. 

(3) If any existing residential unit is proposed to be demolished, the proposal would 
comply with the replacement housing provisions of Government Code Section 
66300(d). 

(4) The parcel proposed for an Urban Lot Split is not a parcel on which an owner of 
residential real property exercised rights under California Government Code Section 
7060 et seq. to withdraw accommodations from rent or lease within 15 years before 
the date the application is submitted. 

(5) The parcel proposed for an Urban Lot Split was not previously created through a prior 
Urban Lot Split pursuant to this division.  

(6) The parcel proposed for an Urban Lot Split is not located: 

i.  Within a historic district, is not included on the State Historic Resources Inventory, 
and is not within a site that is designated or listed as a city landmark or historic 
property or district pursuant to a city ordinance.  

ii. On prime farmland or farmland of statewide importance as further defined in 
Government Code Section 65913.4(a)(6)(B). 

iii. On wetlands as defined in the United States Fish and Wildlife Service Manual, Part 
660 FW 2 (June 21, 1993).  

iv. On a hazardous waste site that is listed pursuant to Government Code Section 
65962.5 or a hazardous waste site designated by the Department of Toxic 
pursuant to Section 25356 of the Health and Safety Code, unless the State 
Department of Public Health, State Water Resources Control Board, or 
Department of Toxic Substances Control has cleared the site for residential use or 
residential mixed uses. 

v. In a special flood hazard area subject to induction by the 1 percent annual chance 
flood (100-year flood) or regulatory floodway as determined by FEMA. This criteria 
shall not apply if either of the following are met: 

a. The site has been subject to a Letter of Map Revision prepared by FEMA and 
issued to the City; or  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 767 of 778



  ORD. NO. 1714 

8 

b. The site meets FEMA requirements necessary to meet minimum flood plain 
management criteria of the Nation Flood Insurance Program as further spelled 
out in Government Code Section 65913.4 (a)(6)(G)(ii).  

  
(7) The Urban Lot Split would not create a nonconforming condition related to the 

placement of buildings or to any other development standard of Chapter 106 - Zoning 
of this Code, except as specified in this division. 

(8) A signed affidavit has been provided in accordance with Section 78-184 of this Code.  

(9) Neither the owner of the parcel being subdivided nor any person acting in concert 
with the owner has previously subdivided an adjacent parcel using the Urban Lot Split 
process. 

(10) The application complies with all provisions of Government Code Sections 66411.7 
and 65852.21, if the proposed Urban Lot Split includes a concurrent application for a 
Two Unit Urban Residential Development, as defined in section 106-359 of this Code. 

Section 78-186. Urban Lot Split Lot Requirements 
 

(a) The following requirements apply to all lots created using the Urban Lot Split process 
pursuant to this division and Government Code Section 66411.7, except to the extent that 
they would preclude the creation of no more than two new parcels that comply with the 
lot requirements of this section. Any modifications of these requirements shall be the 
minimum modification necessary to avoid physically precluding the creation of no more 
than two new parcels that comply with the lot requirements of this section. 

 
(b) Lot Requirements: 

 
(1) Number: The parcel map subdividing an existing parcel pursuant to this division shall 

create no more than two (2) parcels. Both parcels shall be considered new parcels. 

(2) Street frontage: Each lot shall have street frontage on or access to a public right of 
way as required by the Public Works Department. The lot split line shall be parallel to 
the street property line. If the street property line curves, the lot split line may have 
the same or similar curve radius or may be straight.  

(3) Width Lot width shall be per the R-1 zoning district.  The width of any lot resulting 
from an Urban Lot Split shall not be less than 75% of the original lot width. Flag lot 
width shall be measured across the large portion of the lot, not the narrow portion 
connected to the street. 

(4) Depth: Lots created per this division are not required to have a minimum depth, 
provided that the minimum lot size stated in subsection (b)(5) below is maintained. 

(5) Lot size:  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 768 of 778



  ORD. NO. 1714 

9 

a. No lot resulting from an Urban Lot Split shall be smaller than 1,200 square feet.  

b. The two resulting lots shall be of  approximately equal lot area, and not smaller 
than 48% or larger than 52% of the lot area of the original parcel. 

(6) Parcel Configuration: Flag Lots are permitted, provided that the narrow portion of the 
lot connected to the public right of way has sufficient width for a driveway and for 
emergency pedestrian access. An access easement shall be recorded providing street 
access for the rear parcel. 

(7) Utilities: 

a. Each parcel created by an Urban Lot Split shall have water, sewer, storm drain, gas 
and electric utility service that comply with City standards. 

b. The subdivider shall be responsible to install connections to City facilities in 
accordance with City standards.  

c. All required utility connections shall be placed on the same parcel as the unit or 
units the utilities are serving, or shall be located within a utility easement. 

d. Unused connections shall be abandoned per City standard.  

Section 78-187. Additional Requirements for Urban Lot Split 

(a) In addition to any requirements of this division, the following shall apply for any Urban 
Lot Split: 
 
(1) Easements shall be provided for the provision of public services and facilities. 

(2) All parcels shall have access to, provide access to, or adjoin the public right-of-way. 

Section 78-188. Required Contents for Recorded Title 

(a) The recorded title for any lot or parcel created pursuant to this division shall include the 
following: 

(1) That the Urban Lot Split provisions of this division were used to approve the 
subdivision and may not be used to further subdivide the lot or parcel.  

(2) The signed affidavit required per Section 78-184. 

(3)  A rental of any unit created on the lot or parcel shall be for a minimum term of 31 
consecutive days, and the unit shall not be used for short-term rentals.  

(4) Uses on the lot or parcel shall be limited to residential uses. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 769 of 778



  ORD. NO. 1714 

10 

Section 78-189. Pre-Existing Nonconforming Zoning Conditions  

(a) Approval of an application for the Urban Lot Split shall not be contingent upon the 
correction of a non-conforming zoning condition which existed at the time the application 
was filed. 

Section 78-190. Expiration of Urban Lot Split Subdivisions 

(a) The expiration of tentative maps created per this chapter shall be the same as for a 
standard tentative map as specified in Section 78-71 of this Code.  

Section 78-191. Application Requirements  

(a) Applications for Urban Lot Splits shall include all information required by the Public Works 
Department, as shown on official City application forms. 

SECTION 5. Division 2 (R-1 Single-Family Residential Zone) of Article III of Chapter 106 
(Zoning) of the San Fernando Municipal Code is hereby amended to add Section 359 (Two-Unit 
Urban Residential Development) as follows: 

 
Section 359, Chapter 106, Article III, Division 2 – Two Unit Urban Residential Development  
 
106-359. Two Unit Urban Residential Development 
 
(a) Purpose. This section is adopted in accordance with California Government Code Sections 

65852.21 and 66411.7, also known as Senate Bill 9 (SB 9).  The purpose of this section is to 
establish development standards for two unit residential development pursuant to SB 9. 

 
(b) Term of Effect. This section is applicable only while California Government Code section 

65852.21 created by SB 9 remains in effect.  
 
(c) Definitions  
 

“Car Share” A service through which vehicles are made available for hourly or daily use. 
Vehicles are typically picked up and dropped off at designated parking locations within the 
community and are made available to provide flexible access to a vehicle. 
 
“Dwelling Unit” As used in this section, “dwelling unit” refers to any primary residential unit 
which is not an Accessory Dwelling Unit as defined in section 106-6 of this Code or a Junior 
Accessory Dwelling Unit (“Junior ADU”) as defined in Government Code section 56852.22. 
“Residential Unit” or “Unit” As used in this section, “residential unit” or “unit” refers to a 
dwelling unit, Accessory Dwelling Unit and Junior ADU.  
 
"Tenant” A person who occupies land or property rented from a landlord. 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 770 of 778



  ORD. NO. 1714 

11 

“Two Unit Urban Residential Development” Development of no more than two primary 
dwelling units pursuant to this section.  
 
“Urban Lot Split” As used in this section, refers to an Urban Lot Split as defined in section 78-
182 of the Code. 
 

(d) Applicable Zones and Projects. The provisions of this section apply to all lots in the R-1 (Single 
Family Residential) zoning district.  

 
(e) Ministerial Approval and Findings. The following apply to Two Unit Urban Residential 

Development as defined in this section: 
 

(1) Two Unit Urban Residential Development is subject to staff review and approval only, 
subject to the objective criteria and standards of this section. 

 
(2) Two Unit Urban Residential Development which meets all the criteria listed in Section 

106-359(f) of this Division shall be approved unless the building official makes a written 
finding, based upon a preponderance off the evidence, that:  

 
(i) The proposed Two Unit Urban Residential Development would have a specific adverse 

impact, as defined and determined in paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Government 
Code Section 65589.5, upon public health and safety or the physical environment and 
that there no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the impact; or 

 
(ii) The proposed development would not comply with all the criteria for approval per 

this section. 
 
(f) Criteria for Approval. A proposed Two Unit Urban Residential Development shall be approved 

if it meets all the following criteria: 
 

(1) The parcel proposed for Two Unit Urban Residential Development is located in the R-1 
(Single Family Residential) zone. 

(2) The Two Unit Urban Residential Development would not require the demolition or 
alteration of housing that: 

i. Is subject to a recorded covenant, ordinance, or law that restricts rents to levels 
affordable to persons and families of moderate, low, or very low income; or that is 
subject to any form of rent or price control; or 

ii. Has been occupied by a tenant in the last three years. 

(3) If any existing Dwelling Unit(s) is proposed to be demolished, the proposed Two Unit 
Urban Residential Development would comply with the replacement housing provisions 
of Government Code Section 66300(d). 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 771 of 778



  ORD. NO. 1714 

12 

(4) The parcel proposed for the Two Unit Urban Residential Development is not a parcel on 
which an owner of residential real property exercised rights under California Government 
Code Section 7060 et seq. to withdraw accommodations from rent or lease within 15 
years before the date the application is submitted. 

(5) The parcel proposed for the Two Unit Urban Residential Development is not located: 

i. Within a historic district, is not included on the State Historic Resources Inventory, 
and is not within a site that is designated or listed as a city landmark or historic 
property or district pursuant to a City ordinance; 

ii. On prime farmland or farmland of statewide importance as further defined in 
Government Code Section 65913.4(a)(6)(B); 

iii. On wetlands as defined in the United States Fish and Wildlife Service Manual, Part 660 
FW 2 (June 21, 1993); or 

iv. On a hazardous waste site that is listed pursuant to Section 65962.5 or a hazardous 
waste site designated by the Department of Toxic pursuant to Section 25356 of the 
Health and Safety Code, unless the State Department of Public Health, State Water 
Resources Control Board, or Department of Toxic Substances Control has cleared the 
site for residential use or residential mixed uses; or 

v. In a special flood hazard area subject to induction by the 1 percent annual chance 
flood (100-year flood) or regulatory floodway as determined by FEMA. This criteria 
shall not apply if either of the following are met: 

a. The site has been subject to a Letter of Map Revision prepared by FEMA and issued 
to the city; or  

b. The site meets FEMA requirements necessary to meet minimum flood plain 
management criteria of the Nation Flood Insurance Program as further spelled out 
in Government Code Section 65913.4 (a)(6)(G)(ii). 

(6) The proposed Two Unit Urban Residential Development would not create a 
nonconforming condition related to the placement of buildings or to any other 
development standard of this Zoning Code, except as specified in this Section. 

(7) A signed affidavit has been provided in accordance with Section 106-359(g).  

(8) The application complies with all provisions of Government Code Section 65852.21 and 
Section 66411.7, if the proposed development includes a concurrent application for an 
Urban Lot Split. 

(g) Covenant and Affidavits Required. A property owner seeking to develop a Two Unit Urban 
Residential Development on a parcel located in the R-1 zone pursuant to the regulations set 
forth in Government Code Section 65852.21 and the standards in this section, shall be subject 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 772 of 778



  ORD. NO. 1714 

13 

to the following general requirements, which shall be accepted and acknowledged by the 
property owner by signing and recording a covenant against the property.  The covenant shall 
be supplied by the City and provide as follows: 

 
(1) The short term rental defined as rentals of any duration less than 31 consecutive calendar 

days of any dwelling unit(s) on the site created pursuant to Government Code Section 
65852.21 shall be prohibited. 

An affidavit shall be filed to verify information regarding the rental or ownership history of 
any pre-existing dwelling units, Accessory Dwelling Units and Junior ADUs. 
 

(h) Development Standards.   
 

(1) The following development standards shall apply to all Two Unit Urban Residential 
Developments, except to the extent that the development standards would preclude the 
construction of two (2) dwelling units of at least 800 square feet each. Any modifications 
of development standards shall be the minimum modification necessary to avoid 
physically precluding the construction of two (2) dwelling units of 800 square feet each 
on the parcel proposed for the Two Unit Urban Residential Development. 

 
(2) Except as otherwise prescribed in this section, the standards for residential development 

set forth in Chapter 106, Article III, Division 2 of this Code shall apply. 
 

(3) Except as otherwise prescribed in this section, the standards for Accessory Dwelling Units 
set forth in Section 106-358 of this Code shall apply to any Accessory Dwelling Units. 

 
(4) Number of Residential Units Allowed 

 
i. Lot Split. A maximum of two residential units, including units which existed at the time 

of the lot split, may be built on each lot created using the Urban Lot Split provisions 
set forth in Chapter 78, Article II, Division 6 of this Code. Dwelling units, Accessory 
Dwelling Units and Junior ADUs count toward the maximum number of residential 
units on lots subdivided using the Urban Lot Split provisions set forth in Chapter 78, 
Article II, Division 6 of this Code.  

ii. No Lot Split. A maximum of four dwelling units may be built on a single lot which is 
not subdivided using the Urban Lot Split provisions set forth in Chapter 78, Article II, 
Division 6 of this Code. Any combination of dwelling units, Accessory Dwelling Units 
and Junior ADUs count toward the four residential unit maximum. 

(5) Number of Accessory Dwelling Units Allowed 
 

i. Accessory Dwelling Units and Junior ADUs may be built pursuant to Section 106-358 
of this Code and applicable State law and in conformance with the maximum number 
of residential units specified in this section. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 773 of 778



  ORD. NO. 1714 

14 

(6) Maximum Floor Area  

i. No maximum floor area is specified by this section.  

(7) Height 

i. Maximum height shall be 14 feet and one story, except that the height limit for 
dwellings units in the R-1 zoning district shall apply if there are no windows oriented 
toward any adjacent rear yards.  

(8) Setbacks and Separations Between Buildings 

i. Front yard setback: Per the zoning district setback requirements for a primary 
dwelling unit, except for flag lot.  

a. Flag lot front yard setback shall be a minimum of 10 feet as measured from the 
shared property line with the front lot as illustrated in Section 78-182.  

ii. Side and rear yard: Four (4) feet, except for an existing structure or structure 
constructed at the same location and to the same dimensions as an existing structure. 

iii. Building separation: No detached dwelling unit shall be closer than six feet to any 
other accessory building or dwelling unit, Accessory Dwelling Unit or Junior ADU, on 
the same lot or parcel. The six-foot distance shall be measured from the closet points 
of the building walls or structure walls. A minimum of four feet shall be maintained 
between eave overhangs, chimneys, bay windows or any other architectural feature. 

(9) Site Coverage  

i. Site coverage and maximum coverage in a front yard area shall be per the standards 
for the R-1 zoning district. Coverage calculations shall include all structures, including 
all dwelling units, Accessory Dwelling Units, and Junior ADUs and all non-habitable 
accessory structures. 

(10) Open Space 

i. Common Open Space:  Ten percent (10%) of the lot or a minimum of 400 square feet, 
whichever is greater, shall be dedicated for common open space and shall provide 
amenities such as but not limited to gardening, outdoor seating or furniture, 
playground equipment, patio, and/or outdoor grill appliance.  

ii. Private Open Space:  An adjoining private open space of 150 square feet minimum 
shall be provided for each unit. No dimension shall be less than eight feet.  The 
required setback area may not be used to meet this requirement.  

(11) Landscaping  

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 774 of 778



  ORD. NO. 1714 

15 

i. Landscaping shall be provided as required by the R-1 zoning district. 

(12)  Design 

i. Additions or new dwelling units added to a parcel or lot where an existing structure 
will be retained must match the architectural style of the existing dwelling unit 
including but not limited to the roof pitch, window size, window type, exterior building 
materials, lighting fixtures, and paint colors.  

ii. All dwelling units built on a vacant parcel shall use the same architectural style, 
materials, and colors. 

iii. Accessory Dwelling Units and Junior ADUs shall be designed in conformance with the 
requirements in Section 106-358 of this Code. 

iv. Each dwelling unit built shall have a separate exterior entrance. 

v. To preserve the single-family appearance of the neighborhood, any dwelling unit 
other than the front most dwelling unit, or the front most dwelling unit on the front 
lot, shall be completely screened by other dwelling unit(s) on the lot, landscaping, 
fencing, or a combination of these. 

(13)  Parking 

i. A minimum of one off-street parking space shall be provided for each dwelling unit, 
unless the following apply, in which case no off-street parking is required: 

a. The parcel is located within one-half mile walking distance of either a high-quality 
transit corridor, as defined in subdivision (b) of Section 21155 of the Public 
Resources Code, or a major transit stop, as defined in Section 21064.3 of the Public 
Resources Code.  

b. There is a car share vehicle facility located within one block of the parcel. 

ii. Parking location restrictions  

a. Parking shall be in a covered garage or carport, or in a driveway located within a 
front setback. A driveway is the paved area that is equal to the width of the garage 
or carport opening plus up to one (1) foot on either side and extending from the 
garage or carport to the street. 

b. Rear lot parking shall be accessed via an alley if the site has legal access to an alley. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 775 of 778



  ORD. NO. 1714 

16 

(14)  Non-Habitable Accessory Structures 

i. Development of non-habitable accessory structures as dwelling units shall be per the 
standards for accessory structures in the R-1 zoning district. 

(i) Short Term Rentals Prohibited. Any dwelling unit constructed per this section, if offered for 
rental, shall be rented for a minimum term of 31 consecutive days and shall not be used for 
short-term rentals. 

(j) Owner-Occupancy Requirement. Each applicant for a Two Unit Residential Development shall 
provide a signed affidavit stating that they intend to occupy one of the dwelling units as their 
principal residence for a minimum of three years from the date of the approval of the Two 
Unit Residential Development, unless the applicant is a "community land trust," as defined in 
clause (ii) of subparagraph (C) of paragraph (11) of subdivision (a) of Section 402.1 of the 
Revenue and Taxation Code, or is a "qualified nonprofit corporation" as described in Section 
214.15 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. 

(k) Adverse Impact Findings for Denial of Application.  

(1) The City may deny the construction of dwelling units per this section if the Building Official 
makes a written finding, based upon a preponderance of the evidence, that the proposed 
dwelling unit(s) would have a specific, adverse impact, as defined and determined in 
paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 65589.5, upon public health 
and safety or the physical environment and that there is no feasible method to 
satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the impact. 

(2) An application for a Two Unit Urban Residential Development shall not be rejected solely 
because it proposes adjacent or connected structures, provided that the structures meet 
applicable building code standards and are sufficient to allow separate conveyance. 

(l) Utility Connections. Utility connections shall be provided per City standards. 

(m) Application Requirements. Applications for Two Unit Residential Development shall include 
all information required by the Planning Department, as shown on official City application 
forms. 

SECTION 6. This Ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) under CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) (the “common sense exemption”) and 
Section 15378 (“not a project”) since it can be seen with certainty that adopting an ordinance to 
comply with the state law provisions of SB 9 will not have a significant effect on the environment. 
Adopting the ordinance is also exempt under Government Code Section 66411.7, subd. (n) which 
exempts cities’ adoption of ordinances implementing that section of SB 9 from CEQA. 

SECTION 7. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is 
for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of any competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 776 of 778



  ORD. NO. 1714 

17 

The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance, and each and every 
section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase thereof not declared invalid or unconstitutional 
without regard to whether any portion of the ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid 
or unconstitutional.  

 
SECTION 8. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this ordinance, 

and shall make a minute of the passage and adoption thereof in the records of and the 
proceedings of the City Council at which the same is passed and adopted. The City Clerk shall 
further certify to the adoption and posting of this Ordinance, and shall cause this Ordinance and 
its certification, together with proof of posting, to be entered in the Book of Ordinances of the 
Council of this City of San Fernando.  

 
SECTION 9.  This Ordinance shall go into effect and be in full force effective at 12:01 

a.m. on the thirty-first (31st) day after its passage. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of San Fernando this 
6th day of February, 2023. 

       ATTEST: 
 
 
              

Celeste T. Rodriguez, Mayor of the City of 
San Fernando, California 

      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
Richard A. Padilla, Assistant  
City Attorney 
 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 777 of 778



  ORD. NO. 1714 

18 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Ordinance No. 1714 which was introduced on January 17, 2023 and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California at a regular meeting thereof 
held on the 6th day of February, 2023 by the following vote of the City Council: 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of February, 2023.  
 
 
 

  
       Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

February 6, 2023 Regular CC Mtg

Page 778 of 778


	02-06-23 CC&SA Agenda
	1 - Minutes
	1 - Cover Sheet & 1
	11-01-21 CC&SA Minutes

	2
	2 - FIN_City Warrant (02-06-2023)
	FIN_City Warrant (02-06-23) AR & ATT A
	FIN_City Warrant (02-06-23) ATT A_EXH A

	3
	3 - CLK_Re-Consideration of Remote Meetings (2-6-2023)
	CLK_Re-Consideration of Remote Meetings (2-6-2023) AR
	CLK_Re-Consideration of Remote Meetings (2-6-2023) ATT A
	RESOLUTION NO. 8208

	CLK_Re-Consideration of Remote Meetings (2-6-2023) ATT B
	ATTACHMENT "B"
	Assembly Bill No. 361

	SECTION 1.
	89305.6.

	SEC. 2.
	11133.

	SEC. 3.
	54953.

	SEC. 3.1.
	54953.

	SEC. 4.
	54953.

	SEC. 4.1.
	54953.

	SEC. 5.
	SEC. 6.
	SEC. 7.
	SEC. 8.
	SEC. 9.

	CLK_Re-Consideration of Remote Meetings (2-6-2023) ATT C

	4
	4 - PW_Approve Increase to CNG Retail Fuel Rate (2-6-2023)
	PW_Approve Increase to CNG Retail Fuel Rate (2-6-23) AR
	PW_Approve Increase to CNG Retail Fuel Rate (2-6-23) ATT A
	PW_Approve Increase to CNG Retail Fuel Rate (2-6-23) ATT B
	PW_Approve Increase to CNG Retail Fuel Rate (2-6-23) ATT C

	5
	5 - ADM_SFCHC Consent to Install Solar and Battery Storage System (2-6-2023)
	ADM_SFCHC Consent to Install Solar and Battery Storage System (2-6-23) AR
	ADM_SFCHC Consent to Install Solar and Battery Storage System (2-6-23) ATT A
	c/o Collective Energy Development, LLC

	ADM_SFCHC Consent to Install Solar and Battery Storage System (2-6-23) ATT B
	Return after recording to:
	____________________
	c/o Collective Energy Development, LLC
	DISCLAIMER

	ADM_SFCHC Consent to Install Solar and Battery Storage System (2-6-23) ATT C

	6
	6 - RCS_Authorize Submittal of NEA and CAC Grant Applications for MMAP (02-06-2023)
	7
	7 - PW_Approve Catch Basin Contract (2-6-2023)
	PW_Approve Catch Basin Contract (2-6-23) AR
	PW_Approve Catch Basin Contract (2-6-23) ATT A
	4. PROHIBITED INTERESTS

	PW_Approve Catch Basin Contract (2-6-23) ATT A EX A
	Insert from: "Ron's Original.pdf"
	Corp info 2004
	Corp info 2022
	La County Proposal full draft 
	La County Proposal full draft 
	LA County Propsal 
	Ron’s Maintenance, inc
	RON’S MAINTENANCE
	Ron’s Maintenance
	Letter of Transmittal
	Corporation documents
	Experience
	Licenses and cErtifications
	Insurance
	Forms List



	Untitled


	PW_Approve Catch Basin Contract (2-6-23) ATT A  EX B
	PW_Approve Catch Basin Contract (2-6-23) ATT A  EX C
	PW_Approve Catch Basin Contract (2-6-23) ATT A  EX C
	P.O. Box 4562, Downey, California, 90241
	Email: Ronsmaintenance@aol.com
	Cell: 213-359-3827 Office: 562-861-2430

	Re_ Piggybacking Question

	PW_Approve Catch Basin Contract (2-6-23) ATT C

	8
	8 - PW_Approve EdgeSoft Agreement (2-6-2023)
	PW_Approve EdgeSoft Ageement (2-6-23) AR
	PW_Approve EdgeSoft Agreement (2-6-23) ATT A
	I.
	ENGAGEMENT TERMS
	1.1 SCOPE OF WORK:
	A. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to provide the services and tasks described in that certain proposal of CONSULTANT entitled “SF PUBLIC WORKS PROPOSAL” dated OCTOBER 26, 2022 (hereinafter, the “CONSULTANT Pro...
	1.2 PROSECUTION OF WORK:
	2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVE:   The CITY hereby designates KENNETH JONES (hereinafter, the “City Representative”) to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement.  The City Representative or their designee will act on behalf of the CIT...
	2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE:   CONSULTANT hereby designates GAURAV GARG, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (hereinafter, “Consultant Representative”).  Consultant Representative will have full authority to represent ...
	2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:   CONSULTANT agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the Work and this Agreement and will be available to CITY staff and the CITY Representative at all reasonable times. ...
	2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:
	CONSULTANT represents, acknowledges and agrees to the following:
	2.5 ASSIGNMENT:   The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY has an interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform...
	2.7 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:   The Work will be performed by CONSULTANT or under CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  CONSULTANT will determine the means, methods and details of performing the Work subject to the requi...
	2.8 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:   If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by the CITY Representative to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely perfo...
	2.9 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:   CONSULTANT will keep itself informed of and in compliance with all applicable federal, state or local laws to the extent such laws control or otherwise govern the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT’s compliance with appli...
	2.10 NON-DISCRIMINATION:   CONSULTANT represents that it is an equal opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subconsultant, employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancest...
	2.11 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:   The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, and will at all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, officers, e...
	IV.


	PW_Approve EdgeSoft Agreement (2-6-23) ATT A EX A
	Scope of Work
	Assumptions

	Pricing
	Exhibit A – Workflow of Public Works Permits Online

	PW_Approve EdgeSoft Agreement (2-6-23) ATT B

	9
	9 - PD_ UASI 2020 ALPR Trailer Purchase (2-6-2023)
	PD_ UASI 2020 ALPR Trailer Purchase AR
	PD_ UASI 2020 ALPR Trailer Purchase ATT A
	PD_ UASI 2020 ALPR Trailer Purchase ATT B
	PD_UASI 2020 ALPR Trailer Purchase ATT C
	PD_UASI 2020 ALPR Trailer Purchase ATT D
	NOTICE INVITING BIDS
	POLICE DEPARTMENT PURCHASE of a
	MOBILE AUTOMATED LICENCE PLATE READER (ALPR) TRAILER WITH RELATED EQUIPMENT AND ACCESSORIES
	Police Department Invitation and Instructions for Bidders with Bid Forms for the Purchase of Mobile Automated License Plate Reader (ALPR) Trailer
	I. INTRODUCTION
	II. BID SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS
	III. BID INQUIRIES
	IV. BID SCHEDULE
	V. EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION & SPECIFICATIONS; DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS
	VI. EVALUATION OF BIDS

	EXHIBIT A
	A. BID SUMMARY & AUTHORIZATION FOR BID:
	San Fernando Police Department - MOBILE ALPR TRAILER VEHICLE
	BID SUMMARY:
	BID AUTHORIZATION:

	B. REFERENCES
	ADDITIONAL REFERENCE:

	C. BID FEE SCHEDULE


	PD_UASI 2020 ALPR Trailer Purchase ATT E

	10
	10 - CD_Second Amendment to Interwest Contract (2-6-2023)
	CD_Second Amendment to Interwest Contract (2-6-22) AR
	CD_Second Amendment to Interwest Contract (2-6-22) ATT A
	CD_Second Amendment to Interwest Contract (2-6-22) ATT A EXH A
	CD_Second Amendment to Interwest Contract (2-6-22) ATT B

	11
	12
	12 - FIN_PW_Public Hearing to Consider HVAC Options (2-6-2023)
	FIN_PW_Public Hearing to Consider HVAC Options (2-6-23) AR
	FIN_PW_Public Hearing to Consider HVAC Options (2-6-23) ATT A
	FIN_PW_Public Hearing to Consider HVAC Options (2-6-23) ATT B
	FIN_PW_Public Hearing to Consider HVAC Options (2-6-23) ATT C

	13
	13 - RCS_Accept a Metro Grant and Approve Circulation of a NIB for Open Streets Event_(02-06-23)
	RCS_Accept a Metro Grant and Approve Circulation of a NIB for Open Streets Event_(02-06-23) AR
	RCS_Accept a Metro Grant and Approve Circulation of a NIB for Open Streets Event_(02-06-23) ATT A
	RCS_Accept a Metro Grant and Approve Circulation of a NIB for Open Streets Event_(02-06-23) ATT B
	GENERAL INFORMATION
	The City of San Fernando is located in the northeast San Fernando Valley and is encircled by the City of Los Angeles. The City of San Fernando is approximately 2.4 square miles and has a population of nearly 24,000 residents. The Recreation and Commun...
	The Open Streets Event billed as the Northeast Valley Community Street Festival (NVCSF) will connect the City of San Fernando with the neighborhoods of Sylmar and Pacoima along a 7.5-mile route utilizing San Fernando Road, Maclay Avenue, and Van Nays ...
	The City of San Fernando (“City”) is seeking proposals from qualified firms (“Consultant”) to provide Event Management services (hereinafter referred to as “Services”) for the City’s 2023 Northeast Valley Community Street Festival, in accordance with ...
	BACKGROUND
	INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMITTING CONTRACTORS
	SCOPE OF WORK
	INFORMATION TO BE SUBMITTED
	SCHEDULE FOR SELECTION
	METHOD OF SELECTION AND NOTICES
	The Northeast Valley Community Street Festival (NVCSF) aligns with the adopted City of San Fernando City Council’s strategic goals (2022-2027) to provide a blueprint for programs and services provided to the residents of San Fernando.  The event also ...
	NVCSF is a collaborative effort to bring together various factions of the community to make participants aware of the alternative modes of transportation available in the region. The event closes down miles of streets creating open space for local bus...
	The Northeast Valley’s largest regional hospital, Providence Holy Cross Medical Center, will collaborate with the NVCSF to increase public awareness of obesity-related diseases while educating the community on the prevention of diseases through active...
	The NVCSF Open Streets route will include a minimum of five (5) destination “Legs,” or activity areas with different family-friendly activities for all age groups at each entry point of the route.  Participants are encouraged to physically bike to eac...
	The City has programming in place for each hub. A description of the programming and activities for each hub/leg is provided below:
	Hub 1. Active Transportation – With its proximity (less than .5 miles) to the MetroLink Sylmar/San Fernando Station, this leg of the route will promote the use of active transportation.
	a) All age groups will get to learn about the local San Fernando Valley and Los Angeles County transit system through an interactive workshop and booth.
	b) The leg will include route-wide games, such as a Healthy San Fernando “Passport” game, in which participants get prizes for completing each leg.
	c) Bike feeders, organized through the City’s Open Streets event webpage, will also congregate in this area.
	d) Other Activities/Amenities: Roving Bike Repair Support, Hydration Station, Selfie Station.
	Hub 2. Refuel Right! Fest – This leg of the route will promote healthy eating and nutrition.
	a) Making smarter food choices will be highlighted in this area with a “Guess those Macronutrients” pop-up display, in which participants will get to guess macronutrients in various food displays. For example, a hamburger will be displayed in a glass ...
	b) All age groups will get to enjoy the flavors of San Fernando Valley’s local cuisines and restaurants, along with healthy food trucks.
	c) Other Activities/Amenities: Music/DJ, Healthy Eating Contests.
	Hub 3. Downtown Art Walk – The City of San Fernando is the oldest city in the San Fernando Valley and therefore has a rich, diverse, and colorful history. This “leg” of the route will showcase and highlight the City’s historic Downtown district, mall,...
	a) All age groups will get to draw with chalk on the streets and watch live, local artists draw and paint. Local artists will also be able to display and sell their art, creating a true, art walk.
	b) A parade will be organized consisting of local, cultural dance groups and performances representing multicultural communities in the San Fernando Valley, such as Bollywood, Folklorico, and Aztec Dance JAM sessions.
	c) The historically significant Lopez Adobe will be included in this leg of the route, offering a dance floor where children can dance and move.
	d) A historic Downtown bike tour will also lead participants through the route to learn about the history of the City and the San Fernando Valley.
	e) Other Activities/Amenities: Spin Art (art made using bikes/wheels), Hair Art and Braiding, Face Painting, Music/DJ, Selfie Station.
	Hub 4.  In Motion: Bike/Ped Safety – This leg of the route will promote bicycle and pedestrian safety awareness, which is in line with the City’s current endeavor to create an Active Transportation and Safe Routes to School Plan.
	a) Children will get to enjoy various activity challenge booths. Once each is completed, children will be able to dash, pedal, and move through a larger obstacle course to obtain a health-related prize.
	b) Teens and young adults will get to watch a BMX biking stunt show while also learning safety tips. They will also have chances to win helmets and other safety gear through raffles and contests.
	c) In addition to biking the area, adults will get to “Map Your Ride,” which will be an interactive experience, allowing adults to map their ride to work using existing multimodal modes of transportation. This will effectively allow them to learn new ...
	d) Other Activities/Amenities: Roving Bike Repair Support, Spa Water, Selfie Station.
	Hub 5: 5K Relay Run/Walk: – This leg of the route is a self-challenging Physical Fitness zone meant to increase awareness of the participant’s fitness.
	a) Children, adults, and seniors will have an opportunity to participate in the Relay Run, Individual Run, and the Kid’s Fun Tot Run in addition to various activity challenge booths.
	b) Participants will take advantage of the health fair and learn the benefits of physical activity, proper nutrition, and disease prevention through interactive experience and screenings testing strength, cardio, aerobics, and other measures of physic...
	c) Other Activities/Amenities: Live entertainment, community altars, cultural performances, and vendors.  Pop Up Arcade, Selfie Station.
	Booths will be spread throughout the route to include local merchants, non-profit/faith-based organizations, and private corporations.
	Propose Event Day Agenda
	1. Street Closures 5:00 a.m.
	2. Vendor Set up  7:00 a.m.
	3. 5K Walk or Run
	8:00 a.m. 5K individual run
	8:30 p.m. 5K relay run
	9:30 p.m. Kid’s Fun Run
	4. Northeast Valley Community Street Festival 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.
	Event Location: City of San Fernando and City of Los Angeles, specifically along San Fernando Road (from Bledsoe St. to Van Nuys Blvd.), along Maclay St. (from San Fernando Road to Glenoaks
	Blvd.), along Van Nuys Blvd. (from Brandley Ave. to Oneida Ave.).
	Contact Information: Julian Venegas, Recreation and Community Services Director Phone: (818) 898-1290, Email: jvenegas@sfcity.org
	Event Map



	RCS_Accept a Metro Grant and Approve Circulation of a NIB for Open Streets Event_(02-06-23) ATT C

	14
	14 - CD_SB 9 Proposed Ord 2nd Reading (2-6-2023)
	CD_SB 9 Proposed Ord 2nd Reading (2-6-23) AR
	CD_SB 9 Proposed Ord 2nd Reading (2-6-23) ATT A


	EXHIBIT G: 
	1: 



